
 
 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 

 
Regular Session will begin immediately following Study Session 

 
5:30 p.m. STUDY SESSION 

 
SS-1  Broadband Deployment (Gornick) 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. INVOCATION 
c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
d. ROLL CALL 
f. AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Public comment will be in accordance with the attached policy. This time is reserved for members of the audience to address 
the City Council on items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council.  It is 
recommended that speakers limit their comments to three (3) minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this 
period on items on the Agenda. The Council is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the 
Agenda.  Prior to addressing the Council, any handouts for Council will be provided to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council and 
appropriate staff. The public will have an opportunity to comment on items on the agenda once the item has been called and the 
Mayor opens the item to the public. 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1 
 
1-1 Lemoore Volunteer Firefighter of the Year (American Legion) 
1-2 Appreciation Award for David Brown (Olson) 
 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2 
 
2-1 Department & City Manager Reports 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3 
Items considered routine in nature are placed on the Consent Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as 

one item unless a Council member or member of the public requests individual consideration. 
 
3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – November 15, 2022 
3-2 Approval – Resolution 2022-41 – Authorizing Continued Use of Remote Teleconferencing 

Provisions (AB 361) 
3-3 Approval – Budget Amendment – Upfitting of Two Police Vehicles 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 C STREET 
December 6, 2022 

1



3-4 Approval – Budget Amendment – Additional Funds for Street Light Improvements
3-5 Approval – Change Order – CIP 5508 – Hess Basin Channel Drainage
3-6 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5508 – Hess Basin Channel Drainage
3-7 Approval – Budget Amendment and Agreement between the City of Lemoore and

Motorola Solutions for the Purchase and Implementation of Dispatch Communication and 
9-1-1 Call Taking Equipment

3-8 Approval – Bid Award – Cimarron Lift Station – CIP 5309
3-9 Approval – Notice of Completion – CIP 5705 – Downtown Parking Lot Project
3-10 Approval – Budget Amendment – Lemoore Police Shoe Drive

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

4-1 Public Hearing – Resolution 2022-42 – Amending the Master User Fee Schedule to
Revise and Update Fees Associated with Facility and Park Rentals (Greenlee) 

4-2 Public Hearing – Amendment to Military Policy 709 (Kendall)

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5 
Report, discussion and/or other Council action will be taken. 

5-1 Approval – Resolution 2022-43 – Declaring Fact of City Election and Statement of Election
Results for November 8, 2022 (Avalos) 

5-2 Administration of the Oath of Office (Avalos)
5-3 City Council Reorganization – Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem (Avalos)

BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

6-1 City Council Reports / Requests

ADJOURNMENT 

Upcoming Council Meetings 

• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, December 20, 2022 – Cancelled
• City Council Regular Meeting, Tuesday, January 3, 2023

Agendas for all City Council meetings are posted at least 72 hours prior to the meeting at the Council Chamber, 429 C Street and 
the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive. Written communications from the public for the agenda must be 
received by the City Clerk’s Office no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore complies with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990). The Council Chamber is accessible to the physically disabled. Should you need 
special assistance, please call (559) 924-6744, at least 4 business days prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
I, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above Regular City Council Agenda for the meeting of December 6, 2022 at Council Chamber, 429 C 
Street and Cinnamon Municipal Complex, 711 W. Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, CA on December 1, 2022. 

//s// 
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 

2



CITY OF LEMOORE 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 6, 2022 @ 5:30 p.m. 

All upcoming regular and special City Council meetings will be open to members of the public 
on a first come, first served basis and via Zoom. The meeting may be viewed through the 
following options: 

• Join Zoom Meeting
• Please click the link below to join the webinar:
• https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89058759372?pwd=SVJRYjluNGJacmtGTG1hQ2NXWmZxQT09
• Meeting ID: 890 5875 9372
• Passcode: 148882
• Phone: +1 669 900 6833

The City will also provide links to streaming options on the City’s website and on its Facebook 
page.   

If you wish to make a general public comment or public comment on a particular item on the 
agenda, participants may do so via Zoom during the meeting or by submitting public 
comments by e-mail to: cityclerk@lemoore.com.  In the subject line of the e-mail, please state 
your name and the item you are commenting on.  If you wish to submit a public comment on more 
than one agenda item, please send a separate e-email for each item you are commenting on.  Please 
be aware that written public comments, including your name, may become public information. 
Additional requirements for submitting public comments by e-mail are provided below.  

General Public Comments & Comments on City Council Business Items 

For general public comments and comments regarding specific City Council Business Items, 
public comments can be made via Zoom during the meeting or all public comments must be 
received by e-mail no later than 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments received by this time 
will be read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such 
comments may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion 
of your comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions. 
If a general public comment or comment on a business item is received after 5:00 p.m., efforts will 
be made to read your comment into the record.  However, staff cannot guarantee that written 
comments received after 5:00 p.m. will be read.  All written comments that are not read into the 
record will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comments are received prior 
to the end of the City Council meeting. 
Public Hearings 

For public comment on a public hearing, all public comments must be received by the close of the 
public hearing period.  All comments received by the close of the public hearing period will be 
read aloud by a staff member during the applicable agenda item, provided that such comments 
may be read within the normal three (3) minutes allotted to each speaker.  Any portion of your 
comment extending past three (3) minutes may not be read aloud due to time restrictions.  If a 

3

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89058759372?pwd=SVJRYjluNGJacmtGTG1hQ2NXWmZxQT09


comment on a public hearing item is received after the close of the public hearing, such comment 
will be made part of the meeting minutes, provided that such comment is received prior to the end 
of the meeting.  
 
*PLEASE BE AWARE THAT ANY PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED THAT DO NOT 
SPECIFY A PARTICULAR AGENDA ITEM WILL BE READ ALOUD DURING THE 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT PORTION OF THE AGENDA.* 
 
The City thanks you for your cooperation in advance. Our community’s health and safety is our 
highest priority. 
 

4



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744 

 
 

Staff Report 
 
    Item No: SS-1 

                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
Date: November 18, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Broadband Deployment 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Informational only. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Mr. Frank Gornick will be presenting on behalf of San Joaquin Valley Network regarding 
broadband deployment in California.  
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
N/A 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
N/A 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
 

5



 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:    ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Maps   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☐ Other:   ☐ Finance  

 
 

6



Item 3-1 
 

November 15, 2022 Minutes 
Lemoore City Council Meeting 

Regular Session Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m., the meeting was called to order. 

 
ROLL CALL: Mayor:  LYONS 
 Mayor Pro Tem:  MATTHEWS 
 Council Members: CHANEY, ORTH  
 Absent:  GORNICK 
  
City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Olson; City Attorney Lerner; Public 
Works Director Rivera; Police Chief Kendall, Management Analyst Baley; Community Services 
Manager Greenlee; Maintenance Worker Miller; City Clerk Avalos. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL, ADDITIONS, AND/OR DELETIONS 
 

No agenda additions or deletions. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Alex Walker expressed his gratitude and appreciation for everyone who attended the annual 
Rotary Crab Feed. The event was a success. He thanked the City and the Parks and Recreation 
Department for hosting and for all the help.  
 
Tom Reed congratulated Mayor Lyons and Council Member Gornick for winning their 4 year 
terms. He requested a report in regards to the status of the Golf Course as we are approaching 
the one year mark.  
 
Benjamin Kahikina, with Kings County Greater Chamber of Commerce informed everyone that 
the Chamber is organizing the upcoming Christmas parade being held on December 3rd from 6:00 
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. in Downtown Lemoore. He invited the Council Members to attend and if they 
would like to participate, they can submit an application. They are seeking volunteers for this 
event. Invited the Council to join him in conversation to help play a larger role in the community 
going into 2023. 
 

CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATION – Section 1 
 

No Ceremonies or Presentations. 
 

DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 2 
 
Police Chief Kendall stated that they are coming up on their busy season for events. Reason for 
the Season shopping will be held at Walmart on December 3rd and 10th at 6:00 a.m. Gift wrapping 
will be on December 13th at the Lemoore Police Department. Reason for the Season will be on 
December 16th. Presents on Patrol is on December 20th. The department will be having Active 
Shooter Training on December 19th and December 23rd at Lemoore High School. Notices will go 
out to the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 

7



Community Services Manager Greenlee stated that the Parks and Recreation department started 
a competition with a perpetual trophy between the Police Department and Fire Department. 
Whoever came in first, will get the trophy. There will be a number of competitions throughout the 
year. The Police Department won this competition, as Office Rogers-Jones came in first place at 
the Veterans run. There was a total of 84 people signed up for the Veterans Walk/Run. The Jingle 
and Mingle event will be on November 27th in Downtown Lemoore. Flag football season ended 
on Saturday, November 12th. Baby Ballers has 52 registered kids and Mini Kickers has 66 
registered kids. The department is working on a community wide survey to receive 
recommendations and feedback from the public. He thanked the Maintenance division for 
assisting with the events and flag football.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 3 
 
3-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – November 1, 2022 
3-2 Approval – Resolution 2022-40 – Authorizing Continued Use of Remote Teleconferencing 

Provisions (AB 361) 
3-3 Approval – Agreement between the City of Lemoore and Interwest Consulting Group 
3-4 Approval – Adoption of the 2022 Building Standards Code Effective January 1, 2023 
3-5 Approval – Subdivision Agreement and Final Map – Tract 920 Unit II – Lennar Homes of 

California, Inc. 
3-6 Approval – Purchase of BIO ENERGIZER from Probiotic Solutions 
 
Item 3-5 was pulled for separate consideration.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, seconded by Council Member Orth, to approve the Consent 
Calendar, except item 3-5. 
 
Ayes: Matthews, Orth, Chaney, Lyons 
Absent: Gornick 
 
3-5 Approval – Subdivision Agreement and Final Map – Tract 920 Unit II – Lennar Homes of 

California, Inc. 
 
Motion by Council Member Orth, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, to approve the 
Subdivision Agreement and Final Map – Tract 920 Unit II – Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 
 
Ayes: Orth, Matthews, Chaney, Lyons 
Absent: Gornick 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 4 
 
4-1 Public Hearing – Revising and Updating the Master User Fee Schedule (Olson)  

This public hearing has been cancelled. 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Section 5 
 
No New Business. 
 

BRIEF CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 
 
6-1 City Council Reports / Requests 
 

8



City Manager Olson asked for consensus to cancel the December 20, 2022 meeting. Consensus 
was received. 
 
Council Member Chaney commented on the trophy. He stated that it will look nice at the Police 
Department. 
 
Council Member Orth thanked City staff for all the hard work they do. He stated that he likes to 
see the friendly competition between the departments. He wished everyone a Happy 
Thanksgiving. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews attended the All Hazards Training with Kings County a couple of weeks 
ago. She stated that it was very informational. She also attended the Crab Feed, Avenal First 
Responders event, Veterans Day 5k Run/3k Walk, and closing ceremonies for flag football. She 
would like to see a friendly competition between her fellow Council Members. She informed 
everyone that the Jingle and Mingle is on November 27th. The KCAO food distribution is tomorrow, 
November 16th at West Hills. She wished everyone a happy and safe Thanksgiving.  
 
Mayor Lyons thanked Mr. Reed, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Kahikina. He thanked City staff. and the 
Parks and Recreation Department. He is excited for the Jingle and Mingle event. There is a lot of 
things on the schedule during the event. He is really glad the Parks and Recreation department 
stepped up and planned this event. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 6:02 p.m., Council adjourned. 
 
Approved the 6th day of December 2022. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       Stuart Lyons, Mayor   
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk    

9



                                                                            
 
 
        

   City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-2 
            

To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Nathan Olson, City Manager  
Date: November 3, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject:  Resolution 2022-41 – Authorizing Continued Use of Remote 

Teleconferencing Provisions (AB 361) 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  
 

Proposed Motion: 
Approve Resolution 2022-41, Authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to Continue with 
Teleconferenced Public Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
On September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (“AB”) 361, which 
amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 
teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 
determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body 
holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by majority 
vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  
 
In order for the City Council to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 after October 1, 
2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the City Council to conduct 
teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) days. The City Council made such 
findings on May 23, 2022. In addition, AB 361 requires the City make specified findings 
every 30 days thereafter. Such additional findings were made by the City Council on June 
15, 2022, July 5, 2022, August 2, 2022, August 16, 2022, September 6, 2022, October 4, 
2022. November 1, 2022 and November 15, 2022. 

10



 
Financial Consideration(s): 
No substantial costs noted.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Do not continue with virtual meetings. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not Applicable 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends City Council approve Resolution 2022-41, Authorizing the City Manager 
to Continue with Teleconferenced Public Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution: 2022-41  ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☐ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☐ Other    ☐ Finance   

 List:  
      

 

11



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-41 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE AUTHORIZING 
CONTINUED USE OF REMOTE TELECONFERENCING PROVISIONS (AB 361) 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore (“City Council”) is committed to 

open and transparent government, and full compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown 
Act”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act generally requires that a public agency take certain actions in 
order to use teleconferencing to attend a public meeting virtually; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that a local emergency persists due to the 
worldwide COVID-19 pandemic; and 
 

WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the ongoing state of emergency due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic and has responded by creating an additional means for public meetings 
to be held via teleconference (inclusive of internet-based virtual meetings); and 
  

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill 
(“AB”) 361, which amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 
teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the legislative 
body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the legislative body holds a 
meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of determining, by majority vote, 
whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health 
or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of 
emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of 
the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, in order for the City Council to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 
after October 1, 2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the City Council to 
conduct teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) days. Such adoption occurred by the 
City Council on May 23, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, AB 361 requires the City make specified findings every 30 days thereafter; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, such additional findings were made by the City Council on May 23, 2022,  
June 15, 2022, July 5, 2022, August 2, 2022. August 16, 2022, September 6, 2022, October 4, 
2022, November 1, 2022 and November 15, 2022 with the approval of Resolutions No. 2022-22, 
2022-25, 2022-29, 2022-33, 2022-34, 2022-35, 2022-37, 2022-39 and 2022-40; and 
 

WHEREAS, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency for the State of 
California due to the COVID-19 pandemic in his order entitled “Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency,” signed March 4, 2020; and/or 

12



 
WHEREAS, the California Occupational and Safety Health Administration (OSHA) 

continues to recommend certain social distancing requirements, as described in detail in California 
Code of Regulations Title 8, section 3205 Covid Prevention; and/or 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Kings Department of Public Health in its August 28, 2021 
press release urged “…everyone to physical distance themselves from others…” and further 
recommends as a “very effective” step that people can take: “Stay in your home as much as 
possible. The only exceptions should be for getting food and/or necessary household supplies, 
medications and medical treatments.”  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that the state and local emergencies have 
caused and will continue to cause imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is conducting its meetings through the use of telephonic and 
internet-based services so that members of the public may observe and participate in meetings and 
offer public comment.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals set forth above are true and 
correct and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council is conducting meetings during a 
state of emergency and OSHA recommends measures to promote social distancing; and/or   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council has determined that given the state 
of emergency, holding in-person only meetings would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety of attendees.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions taken by the City Council through this 
resolution shall be applied to all City committees governed by the Brown Act unless otherwise 
desired by that committee.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council authorizes the City Manager or their 
designee(s) to take all actions necessary to continue to conduct City Council meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable provisions of the 
Brown Act, using teleconferencing for a period of thirty (30) days from the adoption of this 
Resolution after which the City Council will again reconsider the circumstances of the state of 
emergency. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Lemoore City Council on this 6th day of December 

2022, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   

 NOES:   

 ABSENT:  

 ABSTAIN:                  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Marisa Avalos       Stuart Lyons 
City Clerk      Mayor 

14



                                       
 
 
       

   City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-3 
              
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From Michael Kendall, Chief of Police 
Date: November 7, 2022   Meeting Date:  December 5, 2022  
Subject: Budget Amendment – Upfitting of Two Police Vehicles 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motions: 
Approve a budget amendment in the amount of $40,264.13 for the upfitting two patrol 
vehicles and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the budget amendment.  
 
Subject/Discussion: 
In 2021 the Lemoore Police Department budgeted for two new vehicles to replace one K-
9 vehicle and one patrol vehicle. This budget included the upfitting to include lights, siren, 
MDT, etc. The budgeted items were approved for fiscal year 2021-2022. The vehicles 
were received in March of 2022, however the upfitting equipment was on backorder due 
to COVID.  
 
Due to the delays, a budget amendment is required to allocate the funds in the FY 2023 
budget from the general fund reserve to the police asset replacement account. 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
A budget amendment in the amount of $40,264.13 from the general fund to the police 
asset replacement account (4221-4840AR) for the uplifting of two new replacement police 
vehicles. The uplifting of vehicles were budgeted in fiscal year 2021-2022. The budget 
amendment will allocate the funds in the FY 2023 budget. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

15



• Two new patrol vehicles will be rotated into the police fleet 
Cons: 

• None. 
 

Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve a budget amendment in the amount of 
$40,264.13 for the upfitting of two new replacement police vehicles. 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/17/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☐ Other:  Budget Amendment  ☐ Finance  

 
 

16



Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 1010 40,264.13$                      40,264.13$                                 

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 4221 4840AR -$                           40,264.13$                      40,264.13$                                 

-$                           

-$                           

APPROVALS: 

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date:

Date:City Manager:

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:

To allocate funds for the upfitting of vehicles leased FY 2022. 

11/7/2022 Alvaro Santos

Police 

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

17



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-4 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Randon Reeder, Management Analyst   
Date: November 22, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Budget Amendment – Additional Funds for Street Light Improvements 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the budget amendment in the amount of $18,000 for street light improvements 
at Cinnamon Drive and Lemoore Avenue and authorize the City Manager, or designee, 
to execute the budget amendment.  
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City received a request from an Orientation and Mobility Specialist/Department of 
Rehabilitation for street light improvements to be installed at the intersection of Cinnamon 
Drive and Lemoore Avenue. A budget amendment is required, as this project was not 
budgeted for in FY 2023. 
 
If approved, new accessible pedestrian pushbutton posts for streetlights at the 
intersection of Cinnamon Drive and Lemoore Avenue will be installed. The upgraded 
streetlights will benefit disabled residents and make crossing the street significantly safer.  
 
Financial Consideration (s): 
Traffic Safety fund (020) will be used for the street light improvements. The approximate 
fund balance for Fund 020 is $395,000. The budget amendment is required in order to 
allocate the expenditures in the FY 2023 budget. 
  
 

18



Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Safer crosswalks 
Cons: 

• None noted. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
N/A. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve the budget amendment in the amount of $18,000 for street light improvements 
at Cinnamon Drive and Lemoore Avenue and authorize the City Manager, or designee, 
to execute the budget amendment. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List: Budget Amendment  

19



Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

20 1010 Cash (18,000.00)$                    (18,000.00)$                                
- - -$                                             
- - -$                                             
- - -$                                             
- - -$                                             

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

20 4722 4317 -$                           18,000.00$                      18,000.00$                                 

- - -$                                             
- - -$                                             
- - -$                                             

-$                                             

APPROVALS: 

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date:

Date:City Manager:

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:
Reallocating funds to cover expenses for  services.

11/22/2022 Randon Reeder

Streets

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

20



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-5 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: November 22, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Change Order – CIP 5508 – Hess Basin Channel Drainage 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the change order in the amount of $46,376 and authorize the City Manager or 
his designee to execute the document for recordation. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore awarded the Hess Basin Channel Drainage project to Packaging 
Pro Tech on October 21, 2021.  
 
The project consisted of installing 2,000 lineal feet of 48” storm drain line in lieu of surface 
drainage swale. This new line connects to a 24” line, which is the City’s main trunk line 
for the area, and will receive runoff from Enterprise Drive, along Commerce Way, and 
Iona Avenue. The project required additional water removal and raise utilities. In addition, 
the contractor had to install pipe anchors.   
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
Increase of $46,375 to the current contract for a total of $371,009. The project was 
approved by City Council with a project budget of 371,009.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Not applicable. 
 

21



 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the change order in the amount of $46,376 
and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the document for recordation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  Change Order 

22



CHANGE ORDER 
 
 
 
Owner:   City of Lemoore  
Contract:   Hess Basin 
Contractor:  Packagin Pro Tech Inc. dba Rockeez Engineering 
Change Order No.: 001 
Date:    November 22, 2022  
 
IF NOT PREVIOUSLY DIRECTED, THE CONTRACTOR IS HEREBY DIRECTED TO 
PERFORM THE WORK REQUIRED BY THIS CHANGE ORDER.   
 
DESCRIPTION OF AGREED CHANGES IN WORK OR CONTRACT (refer to attached 
pages, if necessary):  Install pipe anchors and raise utilities  
 
 
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACT PRICE BY THIS CHANGE ORDER:  $46,376 
 
 
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACT TIME BY THIS CHANGE ORDER:  0 calendar days 
 
 
SUMMARY OF ADJUSTMENTS TO CONTRACT PRICE (OTHER THAN ALLOWANCES 
OR CONTINGENCY):  

Original Contract Price:      $    324,634.00 
Prior City Council-Approved Change Orders:          + $               0.00 
This Change Order (Subject to City Council Approval):         + $      46,376.00  
Adjusted Contract Price:             = $    371,009.00  

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



The compensation (time and cost) set forth in this change order comprises the total 
compensation due the Contractor for the change defined in the change order, including extra 
work and impact on unchanged work.  Acceptance of this change order by Contractor 
constitutes a full and complete accord and satisfaction of any and all claims by Contractor 
arising out of or relating to the work and issues covered by the change order, including but 
not limited to claims for the following:  Costs to perform the work; contract balance; contract 
retention; time; extended field, home office, and other overhead; acceleration, impact, 
disruption, and delay damages; any and all direct and indirect costs; claims by 
subcontractors and suppliers; and any and all other requests to the Owner for time or 
money, from any source and under any legal theory whatsoever, as to the subject of this 
change order.  No signature under protest or accompanied by reservation of rights or protest 
language, or any other attempts to avoid such waiver shall be of any force or effect 
whatsoever.  No additions or deletions to this change order shall be allowed, except with the 
approval of Owner’s governing body.  No language contained in backup material to any 
change order shall constitute a waiver of anything in this paragraph or the next paragraph, 
and such backup material shall be interpreted as though such language does not exist.   
 
CONTRACTOR EXPRESSLY UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO WAIVE THE 
PROVISIONS OF, AND ALL RIGHTS AND BENEFITS AFFORDED BY, CALIFORNIA 
CIVIL CODE SECTION 1542, WHICH PROVIDES IN FULL AS FOLLOWS: 

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE 
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO 
EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE 
RELEASE, AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE 
MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR 
OR RELEASED PARTY.”  

 
This Change Order is hereby agreed to, accepted, and approved, and will be binding and 
enforceable upon signature by Contractor and approval by the Owner’s governing body. 
 
 
On behalf of Owner:      On behalf of Contractor: 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Name       Name 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 

24



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-6 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: November 22, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Notice of Completion – CIP 5508 – Hess Basin Channel Drainage 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 5508 – Hess Basin Channel 
Drainage and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the document for 
recordation. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore awarded the Hess Basin Channel Drainage project to Packaging 
Pro Tech on October 21, 2021.  
 
The project consisted of installing 2,000 lineal feet of 48” storm drain line in lieu of surface 
drainage swale. This new line connects to a 24” line, which is the City’s main trunk line 
for the area, and will receive runoff from Enterprise Drive, along Commerce Way, and 
Iona Avenue.   
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
The overall budget and cost of this project was $371,009. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pro:  

• Filing of the Notice of Completion will allow time for creditors to notify the City of 
unpaid bills and allow for the release of some of the bonds for the Contractor. 

25



Con:   
• None noted 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 
5508 – Hess Basin Channel Drainage and authorize the City Manager or his designee to 
execute the document for recordation. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  Notice of Completion 

26



 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
711 W Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 
No Fee Per Government Code 6103 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Civil Code Section 9204, that the interest or 
estate stated below herein in the real property herein described is owned by the CITY OF 
LEMOORE and that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 711 W Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, 
California, entered into an Agreement on October 21, 2021 with Packing Pro Tech Inc. DBA 
Rockeez Engineering for the Hess Basin Drain Channel Project, located on the northwest 
corner of the intersection of 19th Avenue and Idaho Avenue, in the City of Lemoore in Kings 
County, California 93245.  Such work has been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore 
on the 6th day of December. 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
              
                                                                            Nathan Olson, City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I, Frank Rivera, am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except for those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to 
those matters, I believe them to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this     day of     , 2022 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
       
Frank Rivera 
Public Works Director 

27



City of Lemoore 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Nathan Olson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Frank Rivera, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



  

29



                                       
 
 
       

   City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-7 
              
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From Michael Kendall, Chief of Police 
Date: November 21, 2022   Meeting Date:  December 6, 2022  
Subject: Budget Amendment and Agreement between the City of Lemoore and 

Motorola Solutions for the Purchase and Implementation of Dispatch 
Communication and 9-1-1 Call Taking Equipment 

 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motions: 
Approve the budget amendment in the amount of $1,000,000 and Agreement between 
the City of Lemoore and Motorola Solutions for the purchase and implementation of 
dispatch communication and 9-1-1 call taking equipment and authorize the City Manager, 
or designee, to execute all related documentation.  
 
Subject/Discussion: 
In October of 2021 the City of Lemoore/Police Department applied for and received 
notification, awarding a $1,000,000 federal DOJ COPS Technology grant for the purchase 
of Motorola dispatching and 9-1-1 call taking equipment. In October of 2022, the city 
learned the grant was available for funding and the grant package in order to receive the 
funding was completed. 
 
The grant included a line itemed budget which specifically approved the purchase of 
dispatching/9-1-1 call taking equipment and implementation through Motorola Solutions. 
Motorola Solutions is under H-GAC contract which has met the competitive bidding or 
competitive proposal process (attached). The City will not be required to publicly bid the 
purchase of the new equipment, as that process has already been conducted by H-GAC.  
 

30



The agreement with Motorola Solutions provides for four (4) dispatch consoles, one (1) 
Verint Analog Voice Recorder, and seven (7) APX Consolettes. Our existing VHF and 
UHF repeaters will be upgraded with the GTR8000 Base Radios. Also included in the 
agreement is the Vesta 9-1-1 call taking system and Watson furniture. Implementation, 
training, and support is to be provided by Motorola.  
 
Motorola offers an option for Cybersecurity and city IT personnel advised that we opt for 
the additional Cybersecurity. IT personnel is working to enhance onsite securities, with 
the intent that the service would be provided in-house at the end of the 5-year term. 
 
 Financial Consideration(s): 
The following is a breakdown of contract fees:  
 
Dispatching Equipment:    $426,390.00 
Project Services including installation:  $308,879.00 
Vesta 9-1-1:      $446,918.03 
5yr Cybersecurity Services (Optional):  $134,449.84 
Taxes:      $63,314.83 
Total:       $1,379,951.67 
 
A budget amendment is required to allocate the funds in the FY 2023 budget – CIP 5713. 
This is a reimbursable grant. The remaining balance of this agreement will come from the 
$2,000,000 received from the State in 2021.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
City Council could decide not to proceed with the recommended contract. However, this 
would result in the loss of the DOJ COPS Technology grant in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00.  

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the contract with Motorola Solutions and the 
budget amendment in the amount of $1,000,000, and authorize the City Manager, or 
designee, to execute related documentation.  
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☒ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other:  Budget Amendment  ☐ Finance  

 
 

31



Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

001 1010 1,000,000.00$                

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

401 4220 5713 -$                           1,000,000.00$                3,770,641.00$                           

-$                           

-$                           

APPROVALS: 

11/23/2022 Michael Kendall

Police 

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

equipment. 

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:

Funds to be moved for the use of the DOJ COPS Technology Grant and the agreement between City 

of Lemoore and Motoroal Solutions for the purchase and implementation of dispatching and 9-1-1 call taking 

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date: 11/21/22

Date:City Manager:

32



 
September 19, 2022 
 
Lemoore 9-1-1 – Police Department 
Attention:  Chief Kendall 
657 Fox Drive 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

RE: Proposal for VESTA Emergency Call Handling System 

Dear Chief Kendall,  

Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola Solutions) appreciates the opportunity to provide Lemoore Police 
Department - (“Customer”) quality communications equipment and services.  Motorola Solutions 
project team has taken great care to propose a solution to address your needs and provide exceptional 
value. 

Motorola Solutions is pleased to provide you a proposal for a 4 answering position VESTA Emergency 
Call Handling customer premise-based system.  The proposal includes a total of five years of support.  As 
the incumbent solution provider Motorola Solutions is excited to assist Lemoore Police Department 911 
Dispatch Center with this endeavor.  This response package consists of all the requirements specifically 
outlined in our onsite conversations, along with optional features. 
 
Motorola Solutions’ VESTA® 9-1-1 solution is tackling some of the toughest dilemmas by pioneering the 
consolidation of Next-Generation 9-1-1 call handling into an integrated solution to simplify your 
operations. Motorola Solutions’ NG911 architecture provides a robust, cost-effective system with 
implementation, maintenance and support that is exceptional in the industry.   
 
This proposal is subject to the Houston-Galveston Area Council (“H-GAC”) agreement entered into 
between Motorola Solutions and H-GAC dated February 10, 2021, EC07-20, and the terms of the 
enclosed H-GAC Master Customer Agreement (“H-GAC MCA”) and its addenda, which operates as an 
End User Agreement under Article 2 of the H-GAC Contract Special Provisions.  This proposal shall 
remain valid for 90 days from the date of this cover letter.  Acceptance of this proposal may be made by 
delivering to Motorola a signed copy of the H-GAC MCA. 
 
We thank you for the opportunity to furnish you with “best in class” solutions and we hope to 
strengthen our relationship in implementing this project. Our goal is to provide you with the best 
solutions and services available in the industry. 
 
Should you have any questions or inquiries please contact your Motorola Solutions Representative, 
Jamie Johnson at 619-674-6599 or via email at Jamie.Johnson@motorolasolutions.com. 
 
Best regards, 

 
 
Larsen Grabenkort 
Area Sales Manager 
 
Enclosure 

33



Proposal 
Lemoore 911 Police Department, California 

VESTA 9-1-1 Call Handling 
Single Backroom Configuration 
September 19, 2022 
 
 

 

34



Table of Contents 
Section 1 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 4 

1.1 Key System Capabilities and Advantages ......................................................................... 5 
1.2 Enhancements VESTA 9-1-1 Brings to the PSAP .............................................................. 6 

Section 2 
Solution Description................................................................................................................. 1 

2.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Handling .................................................................................................. 1 
2.2 Summary of Offer ................................................................................................................ 2 

Section 3 
Product Description ................................................................................................................. 1 

3.1 VESTA® 9-1-1 ....................................................................................................................... 1 
3.1.1 Servers ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 
3.1.2 Gateways .................................................................................................................................................. 3 
3.1.3 Remote CAD Port Servers ....................................................................................................................... 4 
3.1.4 Networking ................................................................................................................................................ 4 
3.1.5 Printing ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 
3.1.6 Workstations ............................................................................................................................................. 5 
3.1.7 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Taking Position ........................................................................................................... 5 
3.1.8 ESInet Interface Module (EIM) ................................................................................................................. 6 
3.1.9 VESTA SMS ............................................................................................................................................. 6 
3.1.10 Enhanced Data Window ........................................................................................................................... 7 
3.1.11 VESTA CommandPOST .......................................................................................................................... 7 
3.2 Data Management ................................................................................................................ 8 
3.2.1 VESTA Analytics ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
3.2.2 VESTA Analytics Front End ................................................................................................................... 12 
3.2.3 Call Detail Report (CDR) Interface ......................................................................................................... 13 

Section 4 
Optional Features ..................................................................................................................... 1 

4.1 Geographic Information System (GIS) ............................................................................... 1 
4.1.1 VESTA Map Local (Optional) ................................................................................................................... 1 
4.2 Automated Abandoned Callback (Optional) ...................................................................... 3 
4.3 CommandCentral Cloud-Based Services .......................................................................... 3 
4.3.1 Citizen Input (Optional) ............................................................................................................................. 3 
4.3.2 Smart Transcription (Optional) ................................................................................................................. 5 
4.4 Cybersecurity Services for VESTA 9-1-1 – Optional ......................................................... 6 
4.4.1 Managed Detection and Response .......................................................................................................... 6 

Section 5 
Warranty Services .................................................................................................................... 1 

35



Section 6 
Statement of Work VESTA 9-1-1 .............................................................................................. 1 

6.1 Implementation Methodology ............................................................................................. 1 
6.2 Phase I - Planning ................................................................................................................ 1 
6.2.1 Project Kick-off Meeting ........................................................................................................................... 2 
6.2.2 Project Workflow and Design Review Meeting ........................................................................................ 2 
6.2.3 Project Plan Approval ............................................................................................................................... 3 
6.3 Phase II – Installation and Testing ..................................................................................... 4 
6.3.1 Solution Staging ....................................................................................................................................... 4 
6.3.2 Site Installation ......................................................................................................................................... 4 
6.3.3 Testing ...................................................................................................................................................... 5 
6.3.4 Lockdown ................................................................................................................................................. 5 
6.3.5 Customer Responsibilities During Installation .......................................................................................... 6 
6.4 Phase III – Cutover............................................................................................................... 7 
6.4.1 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities During Cutover ................................................................................ 7 
6.4.2 Customer Responsibilities During Cutover .............................................................................................. 8 
6.5 Phase IV – Project Closure ................................................................................................. 8 
6.5.1 Site Installation and Verification Package ................................................................................................ 8 

Section 7 
Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription ................................. 1 

7.1 Contract ................................................................................................................................ 1 
7.1.1 Contract Award ......................................................................................................................................... 1 
7.1.2 Contract Administration ............................................................................................................................ 1 
7.1.3 Project Kickoff........................................................................................................................................... 2 
7.2 Order Processing ................................................................................................................ 2 
7.2.1 Process Equipment List ............................................................................................................................ 2 
7.3 Manufacturing and Staging ................................................................................................. 3 
7.3.1 Manufacture Motorola Solutions Equipment ............................................................................................ 3 
7.3.2 Staging ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 
7.4 System Installation .............................................................................................................. 3 
7.4.1 Install Call Handling Equipment ............................................................................................................... 3 
7.4.2 Fixed Call Handling Equipment Installation Complete ............................................................................. 4 
7.5 Finalize ................................................................................................................................. 4 
7.5.1 Resolve Punch List ................................................................................................................................... 4 
7.6 Project Administration ........................................................................................................ 4 
7.6.1 Project Status Meetings ........................................................................................................................... 4 
7.6.2 Change Order Process ............................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 8 
Optional Statement of Work – Cybersecurity for VESTA 9-1-1 ............................................. 1 

8.1 VESTA Managed Detection and Response ........................................................................ 1 
8.2 Scope Limitations & Clarifications ..................................................................................... 3 

36



Section 9 
Equipment List .......................................................................................................................... 1 

9.1 Lemoore Police Department PSAP ..................................................................................... 1 
9.2 Optional Feature Details.................................................................................................... 11 
9.2.1 Automated Abandon Callback ................................................................................................................ 11 
9.2.2 VESTA Map Local .................................................................................................................................. 12 
9.2.3 CommandCentral Cloud Base Services Citizen Input and Smart Transcription .................................... 13 
9.2.4 Cybersecurity Managed Detection and Response Services .................................................................. 14 

Section 10 
Pricing ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

10.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Solution .......................................................................................................... 1 
10.2 Payment Terms .................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 11 
Master Customer Agreement ................................................................................................... 1 

 

 

 

37



Section 1 

Introduction 
Motorola Solutions is proud to present the VESTA® 9-1-1 call handling solution in response to Lemoore 
Police Department’s request.  As part of this proposal, Motorola Solutions has included the following 
options for your consideration: 

• Cybersecurity for VESTA Managed Detection and Response Services 

• VESTA Map Local 

• CommandCentral Cloud Base Services – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 

• VESTA Automated Abandoned Callback 

Motorola Solutions redesigned its industry leading 9-1-1 call handling platform from the ground up to 
specifically accommodate future emergency call handling formats. Our VESTA 9-1-1 solution is that 
Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) platform. Already selected by over 2500 agencies, the VESTA 
solution was designed to handle IP communications including Wireline, Wireless, VoIP, TDD/ TTY, 
SMS/Text. 

Today, the VESTA 9-1-1 solution is the industry standard comprehensive NG9-1-1 solution. It offers 
PSAP’s increased product features, operational efficiencies, and reliability along with stable, centralized 
call handling for individual or multiple PSAP locations. 

VESTA 9-1-1 is designed to meet emerging 9-1-1 technology and has evolved with the introduction of 
CommandCentral cloud-based services to accept additional technologies while maintaining our 
reputation for reliability and ease of use. The cloud-based services integrate with the existing VESTA 9-
1-1 solution and provides visual content including photos and real-time video and real-time transcription 
of call audio. This is an option in this proposal 

Motorola Solutions offers a trusted, comprehensive suite of cybersecurity solutions to cost-effectively 
reduce risk and allow customers to focus on their mission instead of security. As cyber attacks become 
more frequent and sophisticated, and mission-critical communications systems become interconnected 
to other IP-based systems, prevention and proactive risk management are critical. In addition, finding 
and retaining qualified cybersecurity professionals is more challenging than ever. As a result, Public 
Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) must consider next-generation cybersecurity solutions to better 
detect and defend against advanced threats. Having security elements like antivirus, firewalls or 
unmonitored intrusion detection systems inspecting traffic is no longer enough. A cyber attack can not 
only bring your system down — it can also cost you millions of dollars in remediation, along with lost 
trust and damage to your reputation. Managed Detection and Response is part of the managed security 
services options we have purpose built for VESTA 9-1-1 direct customers. 

The VESTA 9-1-1 solutions are designed to meet growing community needs and emerging 9-1-1 
technology. Lemoore Police Department is assured the solutions proposed herein will comply and meet 
both the E9-1-1 requirements of today and the NG9-1-1 requirements of tomorrow. By selecting 
Motorola Solutions, Lemoore Police Department can be confident they are partnering with the leading 
provider of Public Safety 9-1-1 solutions and selecting the highest possible level of service to the 
visitors, citizens, and public safety professionals of their region. 

38



 

 

1.1 Key System Capabilities and Advantages 
The VESTA solution provides many significant advantages. Listed below are highlights of a few of the 
many unique standout capabilities of the VESTA 9-1-1 solution. 

• Operating Systems – Microsoft Windows 10 professional (64-bit), CentOS 4.9 (MDS), CentOS 
6.5 (ASN), CentOS 7.2 (CFS), Windows Server 2012 R2 and VMware Hypervisor ESxi 6.0 
Update 2.  

• Database – The VESTA Analytics MIS uses Microsoft SQL Server Analysis Services (SSAS) – A 
database structure has been implemented that enables more efficient reporting and scalability for 
adding additional capabilities in the future as required. 

• Telecommunications – Motorola Solutions provides as a standard component, an industry-
leading soft-switch packaged with Media Gateway's from AudioCodes, which provides traditional 
telecom interfaces to the PSTN and Legacy CAMA interfaces as well as general administrative 
capabilities. The ESInet Interface Module (EIM) interface also provides emerging i3 Next 
Generation connectivity. The system is highly configurable to support 9-1-1, emergency, non-
emergency and administrate telephony needs. 

• Call Handling Functions – The VESTA 9-1-1 solution call handling functions are very robust 
and include, multiple party conferencing, single button transfers, extensive dial directory, ALI 
displayed on the screen layout and/or IP telephone (if equipped), silent monitoring, barge-in, 
abandoned call management, pocket dialing call prevention, queue activity display and much more. 

• Sound Arbitration Module – Traditional headset and handset interfaces are provided via the 
Sound Arbitration Module (SAM) unit. The SAM unit is comprised of the module itself, a 

39



headset/handset unit, an external speaker for system audio, and up to three jackboxes (console 
user, supervisor, and trainer). This provides all necessary analog interconnections for managing 
Call Taker/Dispatcher handsets/headsets, radio system integration and digital logging recorder 
outputs.  

• Notifications – Another advantage of the integrated VESTA 9-1-1 deployment is the 
emergency notifications system. This system delivers critical information via phone, pager, fax, 
email, TTY and SMS text messaging. It can transfer notification recipients or inbound callers to 
a conference bridge, live operator, help desk or other phone lines. Authorized users can modify 
contacts, prepare messages and assess results, easily managing communications. 

• Call Recording – The VESTA 9-1-1 solution provides a short term recording capability for 
emergency, administrative and radio calls. The system records and stores all 9-1-1 calls for IRR 
purposes at each workstation. All call recordings are made available for playback from the 
console layout screen.  

• Architecture - The system's components (such as servers and consoles) can operate on a Wide 
Area Network (WAN) and can support various deployment architectures, such as multi-site 
centralized, dual-site distributed, single-site centralized, and multi-site distributed. The system is 
deployed in a redundant configuration thus providing a High Availability (HA) architecture for 
centralization and integration of server applications. Firewalls are used on the system to 
terminate VPNs and to allow remote access to the site(s). Also, SMS and EIM interfaces are 
supported via Firewalls. In all deployments, a ruggedized laptop (CommandPOST) can provide 
remote emergency call handling functions outside an emergency call center.  

• COTS Design – Motorola Solutions is committed to utilizing off-the-shelf, yet highly configurable 
hardware solutions that eliminate costly implementations and excessive maintenance costs. 
VESTA 9-1-1 standardizes with Cisco networking switches, HP workstation computer hardware, 
HP HA Servers, AudioCodes Gateways and Mitel Enhanced IP telephones. 

• Implementation – Single and/or hosted solution deployments are available. The system may be 
installed and serviced by Motorola Solutions. Customer agencies may also be trained to maintain 
the system if desired.  

• Ease of Use – The VESTA 9-1-1 system offers the most intuitive, flexible and easy-to-use 
graphical interface available in the Public Safety industry today. Thus, providing significant time 
and cost savings in training new personnel. 

• Support – Motorola Solutions provide quality, around-the-clock customer service with remote 
monitoring, patch management, anti-virus and disaster recovery options.  At any time, day or 
night, a member of our highly skilled service team is available to assist customers with any 
questions or concerns. 

1.2 Enhancements VESTA 9-1-1 Brings to the PSAP 
Our systems refine and enhance workflow, while easing many of the issues commonly found in today's 
PSAPs and dispatch centers. The following address the issues core to the VESTA 9-1-1 platform: 

• Customization – At the heart of this unified geospatial multimedia platform is a configurable 
desktop User Interface (UI) that gives Call Takers a richer, more intuitive user experience. The 
UI hosts multiple layouts and workflows to manage voice calls and integrated Text-to-9-1-1 
messages.  

40



• Full Voice and Text-to-9-1-1 Call Detail – A Queue Display on the UI shows voice and Text-to-
9-1-1 queues and their related data. This includes the number of agents logged in, their status, 
and the number of calls in queue and average wait times. Thresholds can be set, with visual 
and audible alerts configured at three levels (High, Medium, and Low).  

• Cost-Effective Scalability – The VESTA 9-1-1 solution serves PSAPs with 2 to 250 Call 
Takers, delivering cost-effective scalability as needs change. Its flexible, open architecture 
sustains single-site installations and geo-diverse, multi-site and multi-agency deployments.  

• Enhances PSAP Productivity – The Pocket Dial Filter reduces Call Taker’s workloads by 
filtering out “pocket dial” calls made by wireless callers. This allows Call Takers to focus on 
handling true emergency calls.  

• Workflow – PSAP supervisors quickly adapt to changing operational requirements by 
configuring applications, information and workflows for each Call Taker role assignment. 
Between this centralized administration and the ability to partition resources and users into 
agencies, 9-1-1 budget owners also have leverage for investment consolidation.  

• Internet Protocol for Robust Functionality – The VESTA 9-1-1 solution’s purpose-built 
Internet Protocol (IP) soft switch delivers uninterrupted SIP telephony. This includes IP voice 
support on i3 Emergency Services IP networks (ESInets), using Request for Assistance 
Interface (RFAI) protocol. It also supplies advanced telephony functions like Automatic Call 
Distribution (ACD) and dynamic conferencing. 

• Reliability – High availability; no single point of failure with robust server connectivity recovery 
and accurate server connectivity status reporting. Optional geo-redundant host deployment. 
Redundant connections at remotes, plus support for dual networks at the workstation(s). 
Optional Local Survivability functionality that gives remote sites the ability to continue to take 
calls when connection to the host(s) sites is lost. 

• Long Term Investment – Open, distributed IP architecture. Native ESInet connectivity. 
Standards compliant (NENA i3). Forward migration path to NG9-1-1 with this integrated, 
geospatial multimedia platform. 

VESTA 9-1-1 is an integral part of Motorola Solutions' end-to-end Public Safety Software Enterprise 
driving the integration of a complete Command Center suite. From answering thousands of emergency 
calls and text messages to processing video, disparate evidence and records, Motorola Solutions is 
helping agencies transform into intelligence-driven command centers, enabling them to make more 
informed decisions resulting in better outcomes. Learn more about Motorola Solutions' wide-ranging 
product portfolio.  

41

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/products/smart-public-safety-solutions-story.html


 

 

 

42



Section 2 

Solution Description 
2.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Handling 
The VESTA 9-1-1 Call Taking solution is a Next Generation 9-1-1, National Emergency Number 
Association (NENA), i3-based call processing system for advanced call centers seeking scalability and 
flexibility in their call handling, along with maximum system availability. Our state-of-the-art solution is 
modernizing the integration of Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) call handling, short message service 
(SMS), geographic information system (GIS) and the management information systems (MIS).   

The VESTA 9-1-1 solution is built on a VoIP - IETF SIP architecture and is ready for NG9-1-1 
deployment while supporting legacy E9-1-1 technologies as well. The call handling software application 
manages the receipt of emergency (and administrative) calls and seamlessly distributes them to Call 
Takers for disposition via the best user friendly GUI interface in the public safety industry. 

Built for both today and tomorrow, the VESTA 9-1-1 solution offers a cost-effective i3-based solution 
today that will protect municipal investments as NENA develops and launches new standards for the 
NG9-1-1 Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP). These standards include higher interoperation 
between networks, PSAP applications and the call processing platform, resulting in significant 
improvements in efficiency and emergency response of all agencies involved. Motorola Solutions as an 
industry leader, is actively involved in NENA ICE to develop and understand these standards; and to 
ensure our products evolve as the Next Generation paradigm takes shape.  

 

 

43



Fully Configurable VESTA 9-1-1 Solution 

2.2 Summary of Offer 
The proposal includes a comprehensive NG9-1-1 Call Handling solution for one PSAP location. 

The configuration proposed is based on information provided by Lemoore Police Department during a 
review of system requirements. Any changes in the proposed system or equipment will require a 
change order, which may incur additional costs. 

Lemoore 911 Police Department 
• (2) Call Taker position(s) with single 24-inch Touchscreen monitor, VESTA 9-1-1 Enhanced 

Operations license  
At each position: 
- 24-key Genovation keypad with 25ft cable 
- Sound Arbitration Unit (SAM) with Speaker Kit 
- Handset and Cord 
- VESTA® EIM per seat license 
- VESTA® CDR per seat license 
- VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR per seat license 
- VESTA® Analytics Standard per seat license 

• (1) Enhanced 911 IP phone with the following licenses 
- VESTA® CDR phone license 
- VESTA® EIM phone license 
- VESTA® Analytics Standard phone license 

• (4) Enhanced 911 backup IP Phones 
• VESTA® SMS - integrated Text-To-9-1-1 services – customer is responsible for TCC services 

and network charges 
• RapidSOS Integration via the Enhanced Data Window 
• (8) CAMA Trunks 
• (8) FXO ports  
• (1) VESTA 9-1-1 Admin Printer 
• ESInet Interface Module (EIM) - NG9-1-1 core functions and capabilities for future ESInet 

deployment 
• MIS - Call management and reporting system 

- VESTA® Analytics Standard Media 3.6 
 (1) User License 
 (1) VESTA Analytics Standalone Workstation with 24” touchscreen monitor and generic 

configuration 
- VESTA® 9-1-1 CDR Module Server license 

• Time Synchronization NetClock and Antenna Kit  

44



• (2) VESTA® CommandPOST – portable laptop position, docking station, 24-inch touchscreen 
monitor, keyboard and mouse, 24-key Genovation keypad, Sound Arbitration Unit (SAM) with 
Speaker Kit, VESTA 9-1-1 Advanced Enhanced Operations License 
- VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR per laptop license 
- VESTA 9-1-1 CDR per laptop license 
- VESTA® Analytics per laptop license 
- ESInet Interface Module (EIM) per laptop license 

 

Training provided 
• VESTA 9-1-1 Agent 
• VESTA 9-1-1 Admin for Standard 
• VESTA Analytics Admin 
• CommandPOST 
• E-Learning VESTA 9-1-1 SMS Agent Delta 
• E-Learning VESTA 9-1-1 SMS Admin Delta 
• E-Learning VESTA SIP 
• Cutover Coaching 

 

Optional 
• VESTA Automated Abandoned Callback 
• VESTA Map Local – R5 Base License 

- (2) 24” Touchscreen Monitor 
- (2) VESTA Map Local per workstation license 
- E-Learning VESTA Map Local Agent 
- E-Learning VESTA Map Local GIS Data Hub 
- (2) 8GB RAM for Zbook CommandPost  
- (2) VESTA Map Local per Laptop License 

• CommandCentral Citizen Input and Smart Transcription 
- (10) Named Users Subscription for (2) Positions 

• Spares 
• Cybersecurity Services for VESTA 9-1-1 

- Managed Detection and Response  
 

Customer Provided 
• Printer for the CDR application 

 

45



System-wide 
• Lemoore Police Department-wide data collection and reporting services on all 9-1-1 

transactions 
• System and component level monitoring, alarming, diagnostics and reporting services 
• Optional if purchased Basic GIS management services to support the VESTA Map 

implementation 
• All-inclusive software support, updates, and upgrades for the contract term 
• 24/7/365 help desk, trouble ticketing and customer support services 
• Installation, testing, training, maintenance and on-site support services by Motorola Solutions 
• Project management services for the planning, design, testing, installation and operation of 

systems for contract term 

46



Section 3 

Product Description 
The product description gives an overview of the features and benefits of VESTA 9-1-1. Some of these 
features are optional. Please refer to the Summary of Offer section listing features and functions that 
are included in this bid. Contact your sales professional if you have any questions. 

3.1 VESTA® 9-1-1 
The VESTA 9-1-1 call handling solution is a mission-critical call management and response solution 
that is a NENA compliant, IETF standards-based, IP-centric implementation. In essence, the VESTA 9-
1-1 solution: 

• Is a 9-1-1 ANI/ALI controller providing voice management and data (ALI) retrieval 
• Supports all of the standard telephony interfaces to simplify integration into existing telephony 

networks. 
• Engineered to ensure that there is essentially no single point of failure, i.e. most of the hardware 

is duplicated within the system to ensure redundancy. 
Below is a description of the minimum hardware components for a VESTA 9-1-1 system being shipped 
are as follows: 

• Servers running Media Distribution Services (MDS) 
• Servers running Data Distribution Services (DDS) 
• FXS (Foreign eXchange Subscriber) gateways 
• FXO (Foreign eXchange Office) gateways 
• Managed Ethernet switches 
• Firewall security appliance with VPN capability 
• VESTA 9-1-1 workstations to manage and process incoming mission critical calls 
• Supported interfaces include: 
• Analog 9-1-1 CAMA (wireline and wireless) trunks used only for incoming emergency calls 
• Administrative lines – Centrex, CLID, POTS 
• Feature Group D (FGD) 
• Ring-down lines: wet (battery provided by CO) and dry (battery seen by the CO) 
• Digital interfaces: T1 and PRI 
• Automatic Location Identification (ALI) to identify caller information 
• CAD interface 
• VoIP 9-1-1 interfaces using NENA I3 or Intrado RFAI protocol 

Specific features may or may not be available based on the options, call flow configurations and 
command assignments at the VESTA 9-1-1 workstations. Additionally, some features listed above 

47



represent integration with other third party products that may not form part of the solution; these are 
denoted for reference purposes. 

3.1.1 Servers 
Media Distribution Services (MDS) 
The VESTA 9-1-1 MDS are the software-based call-processing component of the VESTA 9-1-1 
solution. The software extends telephony features and functions to packet telephony network devices 
such as VESTA 9-1-1 workstations and IP phones.  

MDS servers provide the following feature/functionality: 

• Support for 9-1-1 and Admin queues 
• ACD schemes (Longest idle, Ring all, Circular and Linear) 
• Conferencing, transfer, and call overflow capabilities 
• Administrative phone features and services 
• Auto attendant features 
• Voice mail 

MDS servers are always implemented in pairs and operate in an Active/Standby mode. 

Data Distribution Services (DDS) 
The VESTA 9-1-1 DDS provides advanced 9-1-1 call data handling and system monitoring services. 

 DDS servers provide the following feature/functionality: 

• Retrieve and extract ALI from ALI databases, perform ALI rebids 
• Interfaces to CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) systems 
• Manages the transfer of call details to remote agencies 
• System activity events and logs for tracking, alarming and historical reporting 
• Management of overall system resources 
• A client applications software distribution mechanism for VESTA 9-1-1 workstations, VESTA™ 

Analytics MIS solution, and Activity View management application 
• Real-time CDR (Call Detail Record) printing 

DDS servers are always implemented in pairs and operate in an Active/Standby mode. 

Advanced Services Node (ASN) 
The Advanced Services Nodes (ASNs) are equipped to extend the functionality of the VESTA 9-1-1 
system. These are deployed virtual machines, which may be hosted on the System Hypervisor servers 
or on a separate pair of Hypervisor servers.  

The ASNs provide the following functionality: 

• Support direct-connect capability for delivery of SMS/text calls utilizing MSRP protocol. 
• Provide additional tools for training purposes. This includes simulators for: 

48



- Generating SMS/text calls 
- Generating simulated voice calls 

• Provide additional tools for diagnostic and configuration of the ASN. 
ASNs are always implemented in pairs and operate in an Active/Active mode. 

Virtualized Servers 
The MDS, DDS and other peripheral servers may be implemented as virtual machines (VM’s) on one or 
more physical servers. This approach reduces the amount of back-room equipment, lowers power 
consumption and reduces thermal loading in the equipment room. VM’s also provide greater flexibility 
for future software upgrades, since the operating system and client software are now independent of 
the server hardware. Virtual servers are normally equipped with: 

• Six-core Xenon CPU’s (minimum) 
• 12 GB of RAM (minimum) 
• Multiple disk drives in a minimum RAID 5 configuration 
• Multiple 10/100/1000 NIC’s 
• Dual power supplies 

 

 
Virtualized Server 

3.1.2 Gateways 
The VESTA 9-1-1 solution supports various gateways to interface to traditional (non-IP) telephone 
systems. Gateways convert non-VoIP circuits to standard, SIP-based VoIP. 

Foreign Exchange Subscriber (FXS) 
FXS gateways support the following interfaces: 

• 2-wire CAMA 9-1-1 trunks 
• “Dry” ring-down circuits 
• Analog stations 
• FAX machines/modems 
• Web-based Graphical User Interface (GUI) for configuration 

Foreign Exchange Office (FXO) 
FXO gateways provide the following functionality and interfaces: 

49



• Loop-start CO lines 
• Ground-start CO lines (M1K FXO GS modules only) 
• “Wet” ring-down circuits 
• Direct Inward Dialing (DID) circuits to specific endpoints (phone sets) 
• Web-based GUI for configuration 

Mediant 1000 (M1K) 
Mediant 1000 gateway chassis provides six expansion slots which can be equipped with any 
combination of FXO, FXS and/or T1/PRI interface modules. The Mediant 1000 chassis is also equipped 
with redundant power supplies and dual network interfaces (NICs). 

The following features and circuit types are supported on these gateways: 

• Interface to 2-wire analog CAMA 9-1-1 trunks 
• Interface to 2-wire loop start administrative lines 
• Interface to 2-wire ground-start administrative lines (requires GS FXO module) 
• Interface to either dry or wet ring-down lines 
• Interface to standard T1/E1 circuits* 
• Interface to standard ISDN-PRI circuits* 
• Web-based GUI for configuration and management 

*A maximum of four digital circuits may be equipped per M1K chassis (pre R6.0) or up to six (R6.x and 
later, with firmware upgrade). 

3.1.3 Remote CAD Port Servers 
In virtualized and/or geo-diverse hosts and/or remote PSAPs, RS232 Port Servers RS- 232-to-IP 
devices are deployed to extend serial CAD ports to the remote location.  

These devices provide the following features: 

• Four RS-232 ports per unit 
• Each unit may communicate with multiple DDS servers 
• Web-based GUI for configuration 

For each PSAP equipped with a CAD interface, one set of the following will also be provided to allow 
for CAD port redundancy: 

• Blackbox TL601A-R2 port arbitrator 
• Blackbox TL159A-R4 8-port data sharing unit 

3.1.4 Networking 
The VESTA 9-1-1 system requires specific network capabilities in order to operate correctly.  

Depending upon the price/performance desired by the customer, different managed network switches 
in 24- or 48-port configurations may be quoted. These are typically from either HP or Cisco. Network 

50



switches may be either standard or Power over Ethernet (PoE) versions, depending on the 
configuration required.  

3.1.5 Printing 
The VESTA 9-1-1 system may be equipped with a variety of printers, depending upon the specific 
customer requirements. Printers may be either locally connected (to a workstation or server) or 
connected to the VESTA 9-1-1 LAN utilizing either an internal or external network interface. 

3.1.6 Workstations 
The workstation uses a mini PC providing users with full functionality and power in a space saving 
design. The clean and compact design allows for flexible deployment options and is small enough to be 
mounted to the back of a monitor. Dual monitors are supported. 

 
Mini 800 G6 PC for VESTA 9-1-1 Clients 

Genovation Keypad 
The versatile, 24-key programmable keypad can be labeled to fit specific agency needs. The non-
volatile, programmable memory allows the keypad to connect to any USB port without installing 
resident software. The keypad is easy to program using the Windows compatible software provided. 
Assembled with high quality key switches, the keys are durable, yet light and easy to press. 

 
Genovation Keypad 

3.1.7 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Taking Position 
The VESTA 9-1-1 call taking position provides a GUI to allow Call Takers to quickly process emergency 
and non-emergency calls. Depending upon the specific customer requirements, VESTA 9-1-1 call 
taking positions may be implemented in a variety of ways: 

• Using standard tower or small form factor (SFF) workstations 
• With one or more widescreen monitors. Workstations support up to two monitors natively using 

Display Port outputs. Adapters are optionally available to support other display types (VGA, 
HDMI, DVI, etc.). 

51



• With optional Integrated Instant Recall Recorder (IRR) software. IRR software can be deployed 
as either single-channel (telephone only) or dual-channel (telephone and radio select audio) 
modes. 

• With one or two Network Interface Cards (NICs). When deployed with two NICs, each NIC may 
operate independently (connected to two different networks) or be teamed for redundancy. 

• With a SAM (Sound Arbitration Module) connected to two standard 310-plug headset jack 
boxes, a headset/handset unit and a SAM Speaker.  

• With optional Genovation 24- or 35-key programmable keypads 
• With optional widescreen touch screen monitor(s) 

3.1.8 ESInet Interface Module (EIM)  
The ESInet Interface Module (EIM) provides connectivity to NENA I3-compliant and RFAI VoIP 
networks for the delivery of 9-1-1 calls and related information. Several different versions of EIM are 
available, depending upon the kind of ESInet that the system will be interfaced with: 

• NENA I3 – Comtech/TCS 
• NENA I3 – InDigital Networks 
• NENA I3 – Vesta Solutions NGCS 
• West/Intrado RFAI 

The ESInet is normally interfaced to the VESTA 9-1-1 system by way of a firewall device at each host 
location.  

The following features are provided with the EIM module: 

• Delivery of 9-1-1 voice to the system using VoIP technology 
• Delivery of the ANI as part of the call setup messages (SIP invite) 
• Delivery of ALI information in the PIDF-Lo fields (NENA I3 only) 
• Implementation of a “make busy” switch for PSAP evacuation/reroute (requires stand-alone FXS 

unit – switch to be provided by customer) 

3.1.9 VESTA SMS  
The VESTA SMS solution allows VESTA 9-1-1 systems to connect directly to Text Control Centers 
(TCCs) using standards-based MSRP protocol for delivery of text messages directly to VESTA console 
users. Some of the features of the VESTA SMS solution are: 

• Standards based Text-to-9-1-1 solution 
• Easy and flexible to operate 
• Supports multiple text queues 
• Text capability may be assigned to user roles 
• Allows transfer of text calls within a single multi-PSAP system 

52



3.1.10 Enhanced Data Window  
The Enhanced Data Window is available within the VESTA UI that displays supplemental data such as 
personal information, medical information, precise location information, and traffic conditions in the 
vicinity of the caller. This additional data helps call takers better assist 9-1-1 callers by increasing 
situational awareness.  Data provided today comes from the RapidSOS NG9-1-1 Clearinghouse and is 
automatically delivered to the Enhanced Data Window based on the caller’s calling party number 
(CPN).   

Motorola Solutions and RapidSOS understand that every second counts in an emergency and that 
Telecommunicators and first responders need location accuracy and other supplemental information to 
save lives. Through the integration of the RapidSOS NG911 Portal into VESTA, PSAPs now have the 
capability for improved situational awareness and improved decision making. 

RapidSOS Information Displays in the VESTA User Interface 

 

3.1.11 VESTA CommandPOST  
The VESTA CommandPOST call processing solution is a portable call-taking position designed to allow 
a call-taker to move to another location, reconnect to their host system, and begin taking 9-1-1 (with 
ANI/ALI) and administrative calls. All features of the traditional VESTA 9-1-1 position are persevered. In 
order to use Instant Recall Recording (IRR), the VESTA CommandPOST must be used with the SAM 
module. The VESTA CommandPOST call processing solution can connect to the host system via: 

• Public Internet connection using VPN  
• Private IP network with/without VPN connection  
• IP satellite network with/without VPN connection  

53



The VESTA CommandPOST typically consists of the following components: 

• Hardened laptop computer (refer to hardware specification for latest model) 
• SAM (Sound Arbitration Unit) 
• All required cables 
• Weather-resistant rolling case with cut foam liner 
• Docking station (optional) 
• Additional battery (optional) 
• External monitor (optional) 
• External mouse & keyboard (optional) 

 
CommandPOST Ruggedized Mobile Package 

3.2 Data Management 
3.2.1 VESTA Analytics 
VESTA® Analytics is Motorola Solutions next-generation management information system (MIS). The 
VESTA Analytics solution is a sophisticated emergency call center application for PSAP management 
and is optimized for regional administrators and PSAP supervisors. 

54



VESTA Analytics provides a number of new capabilities not previously existing in 9-1-1 reporting 
solutions that play an important role in improving efficiencies in staffing, operations, and information 
management.  

• Enhanced operational management — VESTA Analytics improves the ability to gather, 
organize, data-mine, and report near real-time information. VESTA Analytics incorporates an 
advanced data warehouse for improved performance for creating custom reports and searching 
for data.  

• Personnel management — VESTA Analytics includes 9-1-1 specific key performance indicators 
(KPIs) that help assess the performance within the call center for more informed decision-
making regarding staffing.  

• Automated evidence organization — VESTA Analytics automatically associates related calls 
into the context of individual incidents. This approach simplifies the tasks involved with 
reconstructing, organizing, searching, and archiving historical incident information.  

VESTA Analytics is built upon state-of-the-art technology, providing a foundation for future 
enhancements, and providing next-generation capabilities. 

VESTA Analytics Standard provides the following features:  

• Home page — VESTA Analytics Home page provides a simple calling party number (CPN) or 
date-time search, and one-click access to report apps. The following report apps are installed 
with VESTA Analytics as samples:  
- Last Month Call Count by Call Types per Trunk Line  
- Last Week Call Count by Day per Agent  
- Last Week Wait Time Range per Call Category  
- Previous 365 days Call Count by Month per Xfer Conf Target  

• Event display — The Event List and Event Details panes display information that VESTA 
Analytics captures from integrated systems. Custom filters can be created to find events 
meeting specific conditions. 

• Trigger filtering — Events meeting user-defined criteria can be highlighted as they enter the 
event list, indicating a possible problem event or trend.  

• Scenario and event management — VESTA Analytics automatically associates related events 
gathered from integrated systems such as the call processing system. The Scenario 
Management system provides manual control over associations, and creates associations 
between complex scenarios.  

• Microsoft SQL Server Analysis Services (SSAS) — A database structure has been implemented 
that enables more efficient reporting.  

• Custom grouping and filtering — You can create custom groups and filters to generate 
advanced reports. VESTA Analytics also supports shift-based reporting. 

• Automatic data purging — VESTA Analytics Standard, Hosted, and Enterprise automatically 
removes data after 5 years to reduce the size of the database. This ensures that sites always 
have access to a 5-year sliding window for running historical reports, comparing trends, and 
maintaining performance.  

• Reports and report layouts — VESTA Analytics includes many new reports offered in three 
bundles: standard, advanced, and analytical. Reports include custom logos, user-selectable 
layouts, graphs, and a description of the content of the report. Reports can be created, saved 

55



with a user-defined name, and run with a single click. VESTA Analytics Product Brief – Standard 
2  

• Scheduled reports — You can create custom reports and store them for future generation or 
scheduled distribution. The Report Scheduler allows reports to be distributed by e-mail 
(requiring an e-mail server) or stored to a shared folder.  

• Ad hoc reports — Custom reports can be created from scratch and saved to the report library 
using an advanced ad hoc engine, or using the analytical solution. Ad hoc reporting has been 
enhanced with user-friendly data views based on agent status, agent perspective, caller 
perspective, and trunk-line perspective. Note VESTA Analytics includes a powerful ad hoc 
reporting engine built on SQL Reporting Services. Because ad hoc reporting is specific to the 
needs of a site, does not provide technical support for customized ad hoc reports. If you want to 
use the ad hoc reporting engine, consider obtaining advanced training on SQL reporting 
services or work with a firm that has this expertise.  

• Standardization of call properties — The classifications applied to calls have been simplified and 
streamlined for more consistency between call platforms. For example, the origination of the call 
(Call Origin) is classified as incoming, outgoing, or internal. These classifications can then be 
used to provide more complete information when filtering or grouping on reports.  

• Perspective reporting — This feature allows for analysis of call handling data from different 
points of view. For example, a call analyzed from the caller perspective includes a ring time until 
the call was answered, whereas from the agent perspective, it only includes the ring time that 
occurs at the agent’s position. If the agent is on a call, that ring time does not exist from the 
agent’s perspective.  

• Time parameters — Reports can be grouped by time-based parameters (by year, quarter, 
month, week, day, or hour). The requested data element is displayed based on the requested 
time period.  

• Key performance indicators (KPIs) — VESTA Analytics includes 5 key performance indicators 
developed specifically for emergency call centers.  

• SMS support — VESTA Analytics supports capturing and reporting on SMS sessions as a 
separate call type.  

• Printing of configuration data — Configuration information for agents, consoles, lines, and so on 
can be printed from the App Manager.  

• Centralized management of security — Groups, users, and permissions are automatically 
created when VESTA Analytics is installed. In addition, site administrators and technicians can 
manage user authorization from the App Manager Product Security page.  

• Role-based logon — VESTA Analytics supports the ability to accept an agency (site) name and 
role from the computer telephony integration (CTI) system and assign activities to the agency 
(site) and to the specific role (call taker, dispatcher, and so on). This information is then 
available for reporting and analysis.  

• Browser-based application — VESTA Analytics does not need to be installed on remote 
workstations, thus eliminating possible disruptions to the call takers. It is Key features 3 a 
server-based application that is accessed from a browser on local or remote computers.  

• VESTA Analytics Data Migration Utility (VADMU) — A utility that, after a system upgrade is 
completed, migrates other multiple sites’ databases into the newly upgraded VESTA Analytics 
site database. 

56



• VESTA Locate integration — Calls in the Event List can be selected and plotted on a VESTA 
Locate workstation. 

Motorola Solutions also offers the following fee-based enhancements to VESTA Analytics:  

• Advanced reporting — Advanced reports are next generation reports specifically developed for 
the 9-1-1 site. They are based on Analysis Services (a historical data warehouse, current to the 
last collection) and provide more complex information than standard reports.  

• Dashboard reporting — This reporting module provides drill-down features, the ability to obtain 
data based on user-defined parameters, and the ability to create special meters, graphs, and 
tables. In addition, this module provides pre-defined views of configurable data for review.  

• Enterprise and Hosted (multi-site) deployment — You can run reports for remote Enterprise and 
Hosted sites. Enterprise functionality is the ability for a single VESTA Analytics Enterprise 
server to collect call records from other VESTA Analytics servers and aggregate the data in a 
single database for enterprise-wide reporting. This functionality is similar to MagIC Data 
Repository (MDR) functionality, with the added ability to segment the data by site. Hosted 
functionality refers to the ability for multiple sites to share a common CTI system while 
controlling access to the data by site. In this way, users from one site cannot see data from 
another site. User authorization controls which users can see which site’s data.  

• Data Dictionary — provides a fee-based Data Dictionary to assist in understanding the database 
schema. 

The reporting capabilities of the VESTA Analytics solution are highly robust, supplying several standard 
documents that provide facts on call counts, transfer averages, trunk and line utilization, etc., and can 
accommodate customization when needs are more specific. All reports can be scheduled and 
automatically distributed, or you may choose to create an ad hoc report. The VESTA Analytics MIS 
solution can automatically associate related events, which simplifies incident reconstruction, 
organization, searching and archiving. 

57



 
VESTA Analytics Home Page with 4 to 8 Tabs 

3.2.2 VESTA Analytics Front End 
No dedicated client software is required to access the VESTA Analytics system. All access is 
performed using the Microsoft Internet Explorer 6.0 or later browser. The workstation accessing the 
VESTA Analytics system must: 

• Have Microsoft .Net 2.0 or later software libraries installed. 
• Be connected to the same network as the VESTA Analytics server or have other dedicated, 

secure access to the VESTA Analytics server network (VPN, etc.) 
• One MS-SQL License per user accessing the VESTA Analytics MIS system is required. 
• One VESTA Analytics system access license is required per user accessing the VESTA 

Analytics MIS system is required. 
The VESTA Analytics access licenses are “concurrent usage” licenses. Users may log into the system 
from any workstation connected to the network as long as the number of users concurrently logged in 
do not exceed the number of access licenses purchased. 

58



 
VESTA MIS Solution 

3.2.3 Call Detail Report (CDR) Interface  
Depending upon the desired functionality in a VESTA 9-1-1 system, the optional Call Details Report 
Interface (CDR) port(s) may be implemented. CDR ports provide the following types of information to 
external devices: 

• Call Detail Record. Shows a detailed listing of every action that has occurred (either 
automatically or by the call-taker) in the handling of the call. 

• Optionally may include the ALI (Automatic Location Information) of the caller. This will typically 
be the last ALI received on the call. 

• Optionally may include any TDD/TTY conversations that occurred as part of the call. 
• Optionally may include call-taker log in/out and ready/not ready status changes. 
• One or more ports may be implemented. To provide CDR port redundancy, one port must be 

equipped on each DDS server. Ports are typically run through a BlackBox TL158A-R2 unit, 
which serves as a data arbitrator if the receiving service cannot perform its own arbitration. 

 

59



Section 4 

Optional Features 
4.1 Geographic Information System (GIS) 
To meet the needs of PSAPs of varying sizes, Motorola Solutions can provide a suite of geographic 
information systems (GIS) display and update products. Each GIS display product supports the 
following capabilities: 

• Display wireline addresses based upon street centerline or point data 
• Accurately plot Phase I & II wireless calls, including showing the uncertainty (if provided) 
• Accurately plot SMS/Text-to-9-1-1 calls based on the location information provided with the call 
• Update the caller’s location when ALI or location information rebids are performed on the 

VESTA 9-1-1 call taker console 
• Integration with Pictometry and aerial imagery (optional) 

4.1.1 VESTA Map Local (Optional) 
VESTA Map Local is a subset of VESTA Map that is run locally on the workstation, rather than being 
network dependent. This allows greater flexibility for use in smaller sites that may not have dedicated 
network resources to support the full VESTA Map product. VESTA Map Local provides all of the 
following features: 

• Provides a detailed, easy-to-use interface for viewing and managing incidents on digital maps 
• Displays call types (wireline, Phase I and II, VoIP and Telematics) on the map using unique 

icons for a comprehensive view 
• Supports Internet delivery of online and 3rd party data such as ArcGIS online, Rapid SOS, etc. 

60



• Streamlines Call Handling processes by displaying 9-1-1 call type and location information as 
layers versus disparate system views. 

 
VESTA Map Local 

RapidSOS Enhanced Location 
To help the PSAP gain greater location accuracy, the RapidSOS NG911 Clearinghouse data is 
available from the VESTA Map Local solution.   

The benefit of integrating with the RapidSOS NG911 Clearinghouse includes: 

• Security – The location is stored securely in the NG911 Clearinghouse, an access-controlled 
NENA i3 – compliant Location Information Server (LIS) and the Additional Data Repository 
(ADR) 

• Speed of Delivery – Upon delivery of a 9-1-1 call, VESTA automatically queries the NG911 
Clearinghouse, providing location information at the same time Phase 1 location data arrives 

• Location Display – RapidSOS supplemental location data is displayed alongside the ALI 
location (when available), not instead of the ALI location 

61



 
RapidSOS Enhanced Location 

 

4.2 Automated Abandoned Callback (Optional) 
Automated Abandoned Callback (AAC) feature allows the VESTA 9-1-1 system to automatically call 
back serviceable abandoned 9-1-1 voice calls and verify if the caller needs assistance or not. If a caller 
responds that emergency service is still needed, the system will automatically queue the call for the 
next available call-taker. Otherwise, the call is marked as no further action required and released. 

NOTE: This feature requires that Answer Supervision be enabled on all lines used to automatically 
return abandoned calls. The use of ISDN-PRI lines is recommended for this purpose, especially in 
larger, busy systems. Lines used for AAC will remain in use even after the call exits the AAC function if 
a caller responds that help is still needed. Sufficient lines will need to be configured for AAC use to 
ensure that there is no blocking during high traffic periods. 

 

4.3 CommandCentral Cloud-Based Services 
4.3.1 Citizen Input (Optional) 
Offering PSAPs experience with cloud-based services in a flexible yet controlled environment, Citizen 
Input can be deployed with current CPE platforms extending capabilities with no impact to call handling 
functionality. Citizen Input allows a citizen to send video, photographs and data to the PSAP enhancing 
operations and improving call handling efficiency. 

Citizen Input requires VESTA 9-1-1, Release 7.2 and above and a FortiGate 60E Firewall for each 
PSAP using the service. 

62



Citizen Input provides the following features: 

• Allows citizens to send video, photographs and data to the PSAP 
• No app download required on citizen's device 
• Provides a controlled, permission-based approach to managing visual content 
• Stores visuals as part of the call detail history  
• Content is approved by the PSAP before it can be submitted and viewed 
• Once authorized, an SMS containing a URL is sent to the citizen's phone that placed the 9-1-1 

call. The citizen uses the URL to send the video or photo to the PSAP 
• Viewing can be stopped at any time and all content is captured as permanent records; storage 

and strong evidence protection protocols are enforced 
• Visual content is linked to VESTA 9-1-1 call records for audit purposes and ease of tracking 

 

We know PSAPs are uncomfortable about allowing video and photographs into the PSAPs and we are 
addressing this concern with a controlled, permissions-based approach where visuals are not accepted 
unless the PSAP authorizes submission. All digital evidence collected from callers using Citizen Input is 
stored and tracked in a CommandCentral storage tool. Storage is included with a subscription to Citizen 
Input. 

Unlimited access to user training videos and Quick Reference Cards (QRC) are included in the Citizen 
Input subscription service. The comprehensive videos are sufficient to educate each user and have 
them ready to begin using Citizen Input in a short amount of time. 

63



4.3.2 Smart Transcription (Optional) 
CommandCentral Smart Transcription is a cloud-based service that takes the 9-1-1 call audio and 
transcribes it real-time into a searchable transcript, making it available for live call monitoring to 
increase situational awareness across an entire agency. It preserves the transcript in long-term, secure 
storage for post-call analysis. 

Smart Transcription is offered as a subscription service and works on VESTA 9-1-1, Release 7.2 and 
above. 

Smart Transcription provides the following features: 

• Integrated real-time audio transcription from VESTA 9-1-1  
• Real-time and post-call transcription  
• Keywords and full text search capability  
• Quick search and review historical transcripts  
• Agent, console and call metadata provided  
• No app download required on citizen device  
• Security processes built into the service to reduce the risk of cyberattacks  
• Ability for supervisors to monitor transcripts  
• Transcripts stored, along with metadata, for investigations, case summaries or locating 

conversation patterns over time  
• Short learning curve for call takers since there are no changes on how they answer voice and 

text calls today on their VESTA 9-1-1 system  
• No impact to VESTA 9-1-1 call handling functionality  

64



 

 

4.4 Cybersecurity Services for VESTA 9-1-1 – Optional 
Protecting people starts with protecting the PSAP, and public safety organizations need mission-critical 
systems to be fully available and resilient to cyber attacks. The risks to organizations both large and 
small are growing as threats like ransomware become increasingly profitable for cyber criminals. 

VESTA Managed Detection and Response reduces the risk that a cybersecurity threat will impact 
system availability, integrity, and confidentiality. Qualified cybersecurity analysts with extensive 
experience working on VESTA 9-1-1 mission-critical systems will monitor the Customer’s system for 
signs of cybersecurity threats. 

4.4.1 Managed Detection and Response  

4.4.1.1 ActiveEye Security Management 
Motorola Solutions’ ActiveEye Security Management platform collects and analyzes security event 
streams from ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors in the Customer’s VESTA 9-1-1 system, using 
security orchestration and advanced analytics to identify the most important security events from 
applicable systems.  

The platform automates manual investigation tasks, verifies activity with external threat intelligence 
sources, and learns what events will require rapid response action. The goal is to reduce time to 
resolution and contain any security event.  

65



The Customer will receive access to the ActiveEye platform as part of this service. ActiveEye will serve 
as a single interface to display system security information. Using ActiveEye, the Customer will be able 
to configure alerts and notifications, review security data, and perform security investigations.  

ActiveEye Remote Security Sensor  
One or more ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors (AERSS) will be deployed into the VESTA 9-1-1 
system to deliver the service. These sensors monitor geo diverse sites in the system for security events 
and pass security information to the ActiveEye platform.  

Log Collection / Analytics 
The AERSS deployed in the system collect logs and other security information from applicable servers, 
workstations, switches, routers, and firewalls. This information is forwarded to the ActiveEye platform, 
which uses advanced analytics to identify signs of cybersecurity incidents.  

Intrusion Detection System  
The AERSS deployed in the system include an Intrusion Detection System (IDS) that constantly 
monitors traffic passing across, into, or out of the VESTA 9-1-1 system. The IDS analyzes traffic for 
signs of malicious activity in real time, and performs packet level and flow level analysis to enable 
communications modeling. This information is used to identify anomalous behavior that is not captured 
by pre-defined traffic signatures, including traffic using encrypted connections. The IDS forwards 
detected suspicious activity to the NSOC for further analysis. 

Service Dependencies 
It is mandatory that all VESTA Managed Detection and Response customers also subscribe to the 
Application Monitoring and Response service for VESTA 9-1-1. In the absence of an active Application 
Monitoring and Response service for VESTA 9-1-1, the VESTA Managed Detection and Response 
service cannot be delivered. 

66



 
ActiveEye Platform Dashboard 

4.4.1.2 Network and Security Operations Center 
The VESTA Managed Detection and Response service is performed by Motorola Solutions’ Network 
and Security Operations Center (NSOC) using specialized monitoring elements. The NSOC’s expert 
cybersecurity analysts monitor for alerts 24x7x365. If an event that may represent a threat is detected, 
analysts will investigate and initiate an appropriate Customer engagement. Customer engagements 
may include, but are not limited to, requesting additional information from the Customer, continuing to 
monitor the event for further development, or informing the Customer to enact the Customer’s 
documented Incident Response plan.  

Motorola’s cybersecurity analysts will develop threat reports and review them with the Customer. 
Analysts perform threat intelligence gathering using a combination of automated and human methods. 
They review threat intelligence findings during normal US business hours 8x5 on standard US business 
days: Monday through Friday 8AM to 5PM local time, excluding US Holidays. 

 

67



Section 5 

Warranty Services 
Motorola Solutions has over 90 years’ experience supporting mission critical communications for public 
safety and public service agencies. Motorola’s technical and service professionals use a structured 
approach to life cycle service delivery and provide comprehensive maintenance and support throughout 
the life of the system. The value of support is measured by system availability, which is optimized 
through the use of proactive processes, such as preventive maintenance, fault monitoring and active 
response management. System availability is a function of having in place a support plan delivered by 
highly skilled support professionals, backed by proven processes, tools, and continuous training. 

5.1 The Service Delivery Team 
5.1.1 Customer Support Manager 
Your Motorola Solutions Customer Support Manager provides 
coordination of support resources to enhance the quality-of-
service delivery and to ensure your satisfaction. The Customer 
Support Manager (CSM) is responsible to oversee the 
execution of the Warranty and Service Agreement and ensure 
that Motorola meets its response and restoration cycle time 
commitments. The CSM will supervise and manage the 
Motorola Authorized Servicer’s functions. 

5.1.2 Motorola Local Service Provider 
Motorola Solutions nationwide network of local Authorized 
Service Centers are staffed with Motorola Solutions factory 
trained technicians. They provide rapid response, repair, 
restoration, installation, removal, and scheduled preventive 
maintenance tasks for site based NG9-1-1 Call Taking 
systems. Motorola’s Authorized Service Centers are assessed 
annually for technical and administrative competency to ensure 
quick and effective service delivery. 
 

 

5.2 Warranty and Maintenance Services 
5.2.1 OnSite Response 
Motorola Solutions’ OnSite Response service gives you that advantage by making available our 
network of expert support resources located all across North America to provide on-site support when 
you need it. These Motorola Solutions certified field technicians arrive at your door equipped and ready 
to do what it takes to get your system running at optimum capacity. 

Motorola has proven experience to 
deliver mission critical network 

support 
 Extensive Experience–Motorola has over 90 

years’ experience supporting mission critical 
communications and the Public Safety 
community. 

 Capacity to Respond–Motorola’s network of 
Authorized Service Centers, repair depots, 
system support center and parts support 
enable Motorola to provide quick and 
effective service delivery. 

 Flexibility and Scalability–Motorola’s 
Support Plans are customized to meet 
individual Customer needs. 

 Skills and Process–Motorola uses a well-
established, structured, and disciplined 
approach to provide service delivery. 
Motorola’s team of well-trained and 
committed people understands the 
communications technology business. 

68



Using Motorola Solutions-approved test equipment, service procedures and backed by Motorola 
Solutions centralized technical resources, technicians from your local authorized service center are 
dispatched to your site. The technicians perform diagnostics, remove components for repair, and 
reinstall new or reconditioned components. When it is a response to a call for help, Motorola Solutions 
OnSite Response service guarantees technician dispatch, site arrival, and problem resolution. 

Motorola Solutions field technicians average 35-60 hours of technical training per year and 15-25 years 
of solution experience that aid in the quick and timely resolution of your service issues. Motorola 
Solutions on-site technicians are also backed up by technical consultants and field engineering support 
across the county when the situation calls for a more specialized expertise. We recognize that your 
communication system is critical to your operation and our support strategy of local and centralized 
support is our promise to you that we will do whatever it takes to keep it working at peak efficiency. 

Motorola Solutions’ OnSite Response service is a vital component of an intelligent communication 
support plan that keeps your business running, your costs down, and helps you stay focused on your 
goals. 

5.2.2 Network Security and Operation Center (NSOC) 
Designed exclusively for Public Safety communications, the NSOC includes state-of-the-art technology, 
processes and tools all provided by our highly trained, dedicated team. With connectivity to the NSOC, 
our advanced systems facilitate true Emergency Services-grade monitoring and management.  

5.2.2.1 Service Desk 
The Service Desk is the central point of contact to report incidents and submit change requests. Co-
located with the Technical Support Center within the Network and Security Operations Center (NSOC), 
the Service Desk maintains a holistic view of your service delivery environment. 

The Service Desk will: 

• Open a case and categorize the reported issue or request 
• Resolve incidents based on priority 
• Perform analysis to assist in identifying a corrective action plan 
• Escalate the incident/request to technical or service experts when required 
• Engage the next level management to ensure timely problem resolution, when 

necessary 
• Provide regular status updates for escalated incidents 

5.2.2.2 Monitor and Response 
With the proposed Monitoring and Response service, system thresholds, established during the 
Monitoring and Response service implementation, are continually monitored by the system.  Anytime 
the system performance exceeds the threshold limit, Monitoring and Response is immediately notified 
via digital alarm. Motorola Solutions then notifies the designated maintenance provider via the means 
(email, phone, etc.) set up upon implementation. This is a very stringent process that takes place in 
seconds. Monitoring and Response provides pre-failure hardware notification, and generates alerts on 
service/device state changes, runaway processes, and memory leaks. It collects and stores user-
defined performance counters, and stores event log messages, performance data, and configuration 

69



data in a centralized database. Below are some of the features available through Monitoring and 
Response: 

• Proactively monitors key systems to detect faults and mitigate risks to ensure highest possible 
system performance and availability 

• Monitors each server, workstation and networking device for hardware alarms, software alarms 
and performance thresholds  

• Minimizes risk and the possibility of service interruptions, predicting issues before they occur  
• Alarms the NSOC for remediation, notification and escalation, with most alarms resolved 

remotely 

5.2.2.3 Anti Virus 
• Delivers virus protection as a service, ensuring updates are tested and applied in a timely, 

efficient manner  
• Provides a best-in-class antivirus solution, certified for our call handling platforms and 

continuously updated to automatically detect and remove the latest viruses.  

5.2.2.4 Patch Management 
• Deploys Microsoft® updates and patches after validating they are compatible with your solution  
• Helps ensure system integrity and security, especially when bundled with Virus Protection for 

comprehensive, hands-free care   

5.2.2.5 Software Upgrades 
Motorola Solutions, in conjunction with the customer, will oversee all approved hardware and software 
upgrades. Motorola Solutions will provide the customer notification of scheduled product updates 
and/or modifications via a Product Change Notice (PCN) or a Product Bulletin (PB).  

 

70



Section 6 

Statement of Work VESTA 9-1-1 
Implementation Planning is an iterative process. It begins during the planning stage and continues until 
the Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) VESTA 9-1-1 system from Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola 
Solutions) is formally migrated and accepted by the agency. The Project Manager (PM), working with 
the project team, is responsible for formulating the required plan to implement and communicate the 
support process for the VESTA 9-1-1 solution. 

6.1 Implementation Methodology 
Your VESTA 9-1-1 system is a large project involving complexity, contingencies, and collaborations 
with multiple parties. Successful implementation requires an organized and systematic approach to 
project management. 

Your Project Manager and Motorola Solutions Project Manager will play a particularly important role in 
this process by communicating back to their teams the project plan, project status, risks, and next 
steps. The project will use an MS Project Schedule and Project Status Report, which will provide a 
consistent vehicle for communication, management, reporting of progress and detection of potential 
progress delays. 

Our project management methodology is also based upon the Project Management Institute’s (PMI) 
Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK). Our methodology will incorporate one primary 
goal; align the project with your overall expectations. Unless otherwise requested, Motorola Solutions 
will implement the project using a “phased” process. 

PLANNING
IMPLEMENTATION 

&
 TESTING

TRAINING CUTOVER

Transition to 
Support

Project Closure 

Phase I Phase II Phase III Phase IV Phase V

 

6.2 Phase I - Planning 
Phase I is the period in which the project is formally launched, the project design is finalized, the Project 
Management Plan (PMP) is finalized and resources are scheduled. Upon the agency contract award 
the Motorola Solutions PM coordinates Phase 1 activities with you to ensure that the project scope has 
been assessed, and that all deliverables have been captured in the Motorola Solutions Project 
Schedule. The PMP will be the control document for Motorola Solutions deliverables for the 
implementation, as will other critical dates or milestones that are integral to the project.  

The specific objectives of the planning phase include: 

71



• Expound on specific strategies and project options  
• Confirm NG9-1-1 project scope 
• Finalize the solution design 
• Finalize plans for solution delivery strategies and resources. The solution is reviewed to align 

each primary stakeholder with a common vision and strategy for unified team design and 
planning. 

• Determine aspects of the 9-1-1 system that are subject to change within the scope of the 
project. Much of this entails identifying and collecting information from project stakeholders. 

Prior to collecting the detailed information that will be used in the course of the project, it is important for 
the team to understand the overall project goals and the criteria that will govern their decision-making.  

The project principles and constraints are communicated to all team members so that all design, 
integrations, and deployment decisions can be assessed. Guided by the project principles and 
constraints, more detail information is then collected. This includes conducting site visits and the 
Project Launch, Call Flow and Design Review Meeting. 

The original configuration proposed was based on information provided by Lemoore Police Department 
during a review of system requirements. Any changes in the proposed system or equipment will require 
a change order, which may incur additional costs. 

6.2.1 Project Kick-off Meeting  
The project kick-off meeting is scheduled as soon as possible following receipt of the contract. One of 
the main objectives of the meeting is to ensure that all project participants begin the project with a clear 
and shared understanding of the project and project expectations. During this meeting: 

• Process owners are identified 
• Key project milestones and objectives are introduced and discussed 
• Review the overall project “As Purchased” design and Statement of Work (SOW). 
• First review of the draft project plan 

6.2.2 Project Workflow and Design Review Meeting 
The project call flow and design review meetings are scheduled with you to be held at the site. The 
purpose of the Call Flow and Design Review (CDR) meeting is to obtain a comprehensive 
understanding of your current operational environment and desired future workflow through interactive 
discussions. It is also to assist in understanding how the new VESTA 9-1-1 system can be configured 
to meet the operational needs.   

During this meeting, Motorola Solutions will gather critical information with your agency to set up and 
program the VESTA 9-1-1 system, including detailed review of trunks, lines and circuits. Motorola 
Solutions will work with you to document the final system design elements that will be used for all 
aspects of the programming and configuration of your VESTA 9-1-1 system. Design discussions and 
decisions will include but are not limited to: 

• Detailed review of the “As Purchased” system design 

72



• Detailed review of call flow and system design 
• Detail review of CommandPOSTs 
• Detail review of Network Requirements  
• Detail review of Network Components (routers and switches) 
• Detailed review of the project Roles and Responsibilities of the collective team 
• Site walks for Environmental Review & Intra-system interfaces 

- Environmental: 
 Power: outlets, power draw, UPS, generator 
 Cabling: positions, training room, backroom 

- Adjuncts: 
 CAD: ALI spill to CAD 
 Recorder 
 Mapping 
 PBX 

- Physical space, furniture, & logistics 
- External interfaces: door access, alarms 

It is important that your key operational decision makers participate in these design meetings. It is 
critical that you and Motorola Solutions understand the responsibilities of each entity in this process. 
The detailed discovery and full disclosure of all facets of the Call Flow (how the different types of 
trunks, lines and circuits that are answered at the PSAP locations are routed to and answered by the 
current communications systems) and the Work Flow (how Call Takers and Dispatchers interact with 
callers and each other) is critical in the design of the new system. This will ensure a smooth and 
comprehensive transition. 

6.2.3 Project Plan Approval 
Once the system design has been finalized, the Motorola Solutions PM will schedule resources for site 
implementation.  

Motorola Solutions resources will be scheduled and dates communicated to the team members via the 
Motorola Solutions Project Schedule. The Motorola Solutions Schedule will be drafted and forwarded to 
team members for review and comment. This “First Pass” schedule will be used to present you with the 
initial deployment schedule. Once all feedback and changes have been received and integrated into the 
schedule, the Master Project Schedule will be created and communicated by Motorola Solutions. Once 
published and a baseline established, the Master Schedule will only be changed as per appropriately 
submitted change requests. 

The Planning Phase ends when: 

• The Project Plan has been approved 
• System design and Call Flow are complete 
• The Master Project Schedule has been developed and a consensus among concerned parties 

reached regarding deliverables and milestones 

73



• A draft site cut plan has been developed 
• A draft Acceptance Test Plan has been developed 
• The materials purchased from Motorola Solutions ship to the site 

6.3 Phase II – Installation and Testing 
Phase II is the period of time in which site preparation, site installation and testing take place. The 
project’s implementation is accomplished to the degree that is possible without actually going “live”, 
while minimizing disruption of the site’s ongoing operations. The Motorola Solutions PM will coordinate 
the Phase II activities with you to minimize interference with other site activities, while ensuring that 
Motorola Solutions’ implementation and testing are completed as per the Project Plan and the Master 
Project Schedule. Implementation and Testing milestones and deliverables will be documented and 
managed via the Master Project Schedule. 

During this phase the components of the solution, including applications, servers, network components 
and data flow, are configured and readied for deployment. All network, regional and premise 
components are delivered, and the equipment rooms and other facilities are made ready. 

6.3.1 Solution Staging 
The process starts with the staging of the system equipment at Motorola Solutions. Your site equipment 
is assembled, configured and burned in with your specific site information, including but not limited to, 
system software, IP addresses, machine names, and line and trunk data. Your equipment is also 
quality-checked for any defects or errors, then packaged and shipped to site.  

Staging increases efficiency by leveraging our technical expertise to help prevent out-of-box failures 
and performing initial configurations before equipment arrives on-site. Less on site installation time is 
required by staging and testing equipment in our facility. You have assurance that each site’s 
equipment is configured and tested, reducing the risk of onsite equipment issues. 

Once staged your system will be shipped to your site for inventory and installation. 

6.3.2 Site Installation 
The following outlines the general steps that will be required for system installation. Additional detail 
and steps will be added during project meetings. 

• Unpack and inventory equipment 
• Placement of racks/cabinet 
• If new cabling is required: 

- Run cable from Motorola Solutions Connector Blocks to backboard for all 9-1-1 trunks 
- Run cable from Motorola Solutions Connector Blocks to backboard for all administrative 

lines 
- Run LAN cables from Motorola Solutions rack/cabinet to all Motorola Solutions workstations; 

this includes providing an adequate number of cable runs for the voice/network, logging 
recorder, and any other equipment that may be required  

74



- Run LAN cables from any IP phones to the Motorola Solutions rack (if applicable)  
• Physical installation of all new VESTA 9-1-1 servers and associated components at the 

identified backrooms (Host A & B) 
• Physical installation of any network equipment required: switches, routers, etc. and associated 

cabling provided by Motorola Solutions 
• Physical installation of all new peripheral devices at all sites 
• For each site, configure and make operable the system as documented in the Detail Design 

Document to include: 
- Configure all new VESTA 9-1-1 system servers.   
- Configure all new workstations purchased for the sites   
- Perform Router Configuration 
- Perform Firewall Configuration 

• Manage all appropriate data and accounts for the VESTA 9-1-1 system 
• Perform installation and configuration of the Motorola Solutions provided MIS solution. 

6.3.3 Testing 
Our plan includes performing various required tests using the agency's actual infrastructure, which is 
beneficial for the following reasons: 

• Testing will be performed on the production solution – actual hardware 
• Testing will be performed in the actual environment  
• Testing will allow you to easily observe the process 

Testing is one of the major aspects of your VESTA 9-1-1 project and its success will require combined 
concentrated effort by your personnel and Motorola Solutions.   

Upon contract award, Motorola Solutions PM will work closely with you to review the System 
Acceptance Test Plan and make mutual agreed upon changes to the Test Plan. At the completion of 
the implementation, your designated participants and Motorola Solutions will execute the test plan that 
displays the system is functioning and configured as designed and document test results. 

6.3.4 Lockdown 
The Implementation and Testing Phase ends when: 

• Site Implementation is complete 
• The site testing has been completed to the degree agreed upon during the project planning 

process 
At the conclusion of the site’s implementation and testing, a lockdown (configuration freeze) period will 
begin and remain in effect until system cutover. During implementation and training, vendors/providers 
of each subsystem will have the opportunity to perform pre-approved nominal system testing without 
making any user application and configuration changes. The site lockdown will be scheduled via the 
Master Project Schedule. 

75



6.3.5 Customer Responsibilities During Installation 
Responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to: 

• Use reasonable efforts to provide supporting information to aid in the solution of any problems 
discovered during installation, implementation or post installation phases of this project 

• Provide appropriate schedule notification and facility availability for VESTA 9-1-1 on-site 
services and training 

• Notify and coordinate schedule changes with Motorola Solutions, which may require a Change 
Order (and potentially additional charges) dependent upon the change 

• Assume sole responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of Customer-supplied data 
• Provide dedicated (2) 20A 110V UPS protected power outlets for the facilities and appropriate 

grounding, or as determined by the site survey, for the proper operation of the emergency 
telephone and computer systems described herein 

• Assume full responsibility for mutually approved base map file, including, but not limited to: X / Y 
coordinates, structure address, street centerlines, ESN boundaries, City boundaries; maintain 
this file and use it to update the VESTA 9-1-1 system 

• Provide a complete ESRI-based GIS formatted map (shapefile) thirty to sixty days prior to on-
site system installation 

• Updates to the base map file, performed by personnel designated, will be transferred to the 
system per Motorola Solutions instructions 

• Provide a floor plan outlining where Motorola Solutions provided equipment is to be installed 
and position numbers for Call Taker, Dispatch, and Supervisor positions 

• Ensure the operating environment is fully functional and meets VESTA 9-1-1 minimum 
operating requirements 

• Provide the applicable broadband service for the VESTA 9-1-1 Virtual Private Network (VPN) for 
remote monitoring, support and troubleshooting connectivity 

• Provide for, move, test and make operational or otherwise deliver CAMA trunks, administrative 
lines and other PSTN connections to the backboard demarcation at least 14 days prior to 
installation start date 

• Provide for, move, test and make operational or otherwise deliver two (2) ALI circuit connections 
to the backboard demarcation at least 14 days prior to installation start date 

• Provide facility specific work and activity, including, but not limited to, construction, core drilling, 
grounding, and any electrical or conduit needed to support the implementation 

• Assist Motorola Solutions in securing any required security clearances, identification tags and 
other requirements for access to areas within the facility necessary for Motorola Solutions 
personnel to complete their project responsibilities under this agreement 

• Provide the tap to the network clock, if applicable. This includes all interfaces necessary, 
preferably to provide the name/address of a timeserver on the network. 

• Document and supply configuration information on the existing CPE 
• Make available at the equipment rack, all remote access lines terminated on RJ 11 or RJ 45 

jacks or contract with Motorola Solutions as required 

76



• Ensure that or contract with Motorola Solutions to guarantee Intermediate Distribution Frame 
(IDF), wall boards and/or interconnect points appear in the immediate area where VESTA 9-1-1 
servers are installed 

6.4 Phase III – Cutover 
Cutover is the primary focus of your NG9-1-1 project, its success will require a methodical focus on 
planning, executing, and monitoring. The cutover plan includes the fallback process to restore the 
system to the pre-migration operation in the event of a catastrophic failure. 

The Cutover Plan defines the sequenced procedures and steps that will occur in the Cutover Phase to 
bring new equipment to an operational state, as well to transition services from the current equipment 
to the new. Appropriate safeguards are built in to ensure a cutover with minimal operational impact.   

The Cutover Phase is the major transition point for the project. Motorola Solutions provided systems 
are brought on line and site’s operations shift from the old equipment to the new equipment. Motorola 
Solutions’ PM will work with your team to minimize the disruption for each PSAP. To that end, during 
the Planning Phase the decision will be made for the cutover plan.  Examples of cutover options are as 
follows: 

• Flash Cut: A flash cut requires a coordinated migration of 9-1-1 traffic to the PSAPs. 
Workstations at a site are cut over to the NG9-1-1. The benefit of a flash cut is that the PSAP 
personnel do not require temporary relocation to another PSAP that might not have the same 
radio or Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system, resulting in less disruption.  

• Relocation Cut:  You may choose to vacate their PSAP and operate at the alternate PSAP while 
their PSAP is upgraded. Once the upgrade is finished the personnel would systematically move 
to the new VESTA 9-1-1 system   

The Draft Cutover Plan will specify specific tasks and responsibilities for Motorola Solutions provided 
systems, materials, and services. The Cutover Phase will be scheduled via the Master Project 
Schedule. 

6.4.1 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities During Cutover 
The Motorola Solutions PM will coordinate assignment of appropriate Motorola Solutions technical staff 
to support the transition to the new VESTA 9-1-1 system.  Resource assignments will be planned and 
tracked via the Motorola Solutions Project Schedule. 

• Pre-cut and Post-cut site testing will be performed in accordance with Motorola Solutions 
System Acceptance Test Plan that will be provided based on the type of system(s) purchased 

• The Motorola Solutions PM will track Motorola Solutions issues and/ or exceptions noted during 
the site cutover and report updates to your team for updates to the Issues Control Log   

• The Cutover Phase will end when the project team agrees that all cutover objectives have been 
met  

At the conclusion of the Cutover Phase, a meeting will be held with the project team members to 
discuss the cutover, any remaining Motorola Solutions issues, and to review the Post-Cutover Support 
Plan. 

77



6.4.2 Customer Responsibilities During Cutover 
The agency is responsible for the following during cutover: 

• Schedule appropriate personnel to support the cutover 
• Assume responsibility for cutover activities that are beyond the scope of Motorola Solutions 

deliverables as delineated in the approved Project Plan 
• Coordinate third party services and/or activities during the cutover that are not Motorola 

Solutions deliverables, but may affect Motorola Solutions systems and/ or services.  This 
includes, but is not limited to Telco’s, third party venders, or other organizations that are 
participating in the cutover 

6.5 Phase IV – Project Closure 
Once all sites are operational and the post-cutover coverage is complete, the Project will move to 
closure phase.  The project closure phase is the process of completing any open issues associated 
with the deployment of your project and to transition the project from Implementation to Support. 

Project closure will occur when: 

• All sites have cutover to the new VESTA 9-1-1 systems 
• All on-site post cutover support has been completed 
• All System Acceptance Testing has been successfully executed and approved by Lemoore 

Police Department 
• Lemoore Police Department has signed the Site Acceptance document 

The Motorola Solutions PM will ensure all issues have been resolved or assigned for resolution. Any 
open issues at time of closure are to be transitioned to Motorola Solutions Technical Support, Site 
Installation, and Verification Package. 

6.5.1 Site Installation and Verification Package 
Motorola Solutions will provide “as-built” documentation: 

• CPE inventory, including a complete list of installed equipment  
• Solution Overview / Detailed System Document 
• System Diagrams  
• IP Schema and Naming Convention 
• Bandwidth Estimates 
• System Acceptance Test 
• Other documentation as mutually agreed to by the parties 

78



Section 7 

Optional Statement of Work – 
Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription 
This Statement of Work (SOW) describes the deliverables to be furnished to Lemoore Police 
Department, and the tasks to be performed by Motorola Solutions, Inc, its subcontractors, and by 
Lemoore Police Department, in order to implement the cloud base service outlined in this proposal. 
This SOW provides the most current understanding of the work required by both parties to ensure a 
successful project implementation. 

It is understood that this SOW may be revised during contract negotiations or during the Contract 
Design Review (CDR), and through any other Change Orders that may occur during the execution of 
the project. If there are changes to the Scope of Work, those changes must be reflected in this SOW 
before becoming binding on either party. This SOW will be an Exhibit to the Contract negotiated 
between Motorola Solutions and Lemoore Police Department. After contract execution, changes to the 
SOW must be made through the formal contract Change Order process as set forth in the Contract. 

7.1 Contract 
7.1.1 Contract Award 
Lemoore Police Department and Motorola Solutions execute the contract and both parties receive all 
the necessary documentation. 

7.1.2 Contract Administration 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Assign a Project Manager as the single point of contact with authority to make project decisions. 
• Assign resources necessary for project implementation. 
• Set up the project in the Motorola Solutions information system. 
• Schedule the project kickoff meeting with Lemoore Police Department. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Assign a Project Manager as the single point of contact responsible for Lemoore Police 

Department -signed approvals.  
• Assign other resources necessary to ensure completion of project tasks for which Lemoore 

Police Department is responsible. 

79



Completion Criteria 
• Motorola Solutions internal processes are set up for project management. 
• Both Motorola Solutions and Lemoore Police Department assign all required resources. 
• Project kickoff meeting is scheduled. 

7.1.3 Project Kickoff 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Conduct a project kickoff meeting during the Contract Design Review (CDR) phase of the 
project. 

• Ensure key project team participants attend the meeting. 
• Review the roles of the project participants.  
• Review the resource and scheduling requirements with Lemoore Police Department. 
• Review the Project Schedule with Lemoore Police Department to address upcoming milestones 

and/or events. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Lemoore Police Department's key project team participants attend the meeting. 
• Review Motorola Solutions and Lemoore Police Department responsibilities. 

Completion Criteria 
• Project kickoff meeting completed. 
• Meeting notes identify the next action items. 

7.2 Order Processing 
7.2.1 Process Equipment List 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Validate Equipment List by checking for valid model numbers, versions, compatible options to 
main equipment, and delivery data. 

• Enter order into Motorola Solutions' Configure Price Quote (CPQ) system. 
• Reconcile the equipment list(s) to the Contract. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Provide shipping location(s). 
• Complete and provide Tax Certificate information verifying tax status of shipping location. 

Completion Criteria 
• Verify that the Equipment List contains the correct model numbers, version, options, and 

delivery data. 

80



• Trial validation completed. 
• Bridge the equipment order to the manufacturing facility. 

7.3 Manufacturing and Staging 
7.3.1 Manufacture Motorola Solutions Equipment 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Manufacture the Motorola Solutions and non-Motorola Solutions equipment necessary for the 
system based on equipment order. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• N/A 

Completion Criteria 
• Ordered equipment shipped to either the field or staging facility. 

7.3.2 Staging 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Pack for shipment to final destination. 
• Arrange for shipment to the field. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Lemoore Police Department to provide shipment location. 

Completion Criteria 
• Equipment ready for shipment to the field. 

7.4 System Installation 
7.4.1 Install Call Handling Equipment 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Remote Field Engineering to complete all on-premise installation and configuration activities. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Provide access to the sites, as necessary. 
• Install and test internet connection that meets minimum requirement (100mbps). 
• Installation of the required firewall when applicable. 

81



Completion Criteria 
• Fixed Network Equipment installation completed and ready for optimization. 

7.4.2 Fixed Call Handling Equipment Installation Complete 
• All fixed network equipment installed and accepted by the Lemoore Police Department. 

7.5 Finalize 
7.5.1 Resolve Punch List 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Work with Lemoore Police Department to resolve punch list items, documented during the 
installation and configuration phase. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Assist Motorola Solutions with resolution of identified punch list items by providing support, such 

as access to the sites, equipment and system, and approval of the resolved punch list item(s). 

Completion Criteria 
• All punch list items resolved and approved by Lemoore Police Department. 

7.6 Project Administration 
7.6.1 Project Status Meetings 
Motorola Solutions Responsibilities 

• Motorola Solutions’ Project Manager, or designee, will attend all project status meetings with 
Lemoore Police Department, as determined during the CDR. 

• Record the meeting minutes and provide reports as required. 
• The agenda will include the following: 

- Overall project status compared to the Project Schedule. 
- Product or service related issues that may affect the Project Schedule. 
- Status of the action items and the responsibilities associated with them, in accordance with 

the Project Schedule. 
- Any miscellaneous concerns of either Lemoore Police Department or Motorola Solutions. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Attend meetings. 
• Respond to issues in a timely manner. 

82



Completion Criteria 
• Completion of the meetings and submission of meeting minutes. 

7.6.2 Change Order Process 
Either Party may request changes within the general scope of this Agreement. If a requested change 
causes an increase or decrease in the cost or time required to perform this Agreement, the Parties will 
agree to an equitable adjustment of the Contract Price, Performance Schedule, or both, and will reflect 
the adjustment in a change order. Neither Party is obligated to perform requested changes unless both 
Parties execute a written change order. 

 

83



Section 8 

Optional Statement of Work – 
Cybersecurity for VESTA 9-1-1 
In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, this Statement of Work (SOW), 
including all of its subsections and attachments, defines the principal activities and responsibilities of all 
parties for the delivery of Motorola Solutions (“Motorola”) cybersecurity services as presented in this 
proposal to Lemoore Police Department (hereinafter referred to as “Customer”). 

8.1 VESTA Managed Detection and Response 
Motorola will provide cybersecurity monitoring continuously 24x7x365, and respond to detected events 
in accordance with the Priority Level Definitions and Response Times section. 

Inclusions 

Cybersecurity Monitoring provides Intrusion Detection System monitoring for traffic across the entire 
on-premises VESTA 9-1-1 system. Only select VESTA 9-1-1 on-premises system components support 
Log Collection / Analytics. 

Motorola Responsibilities 
• Provide, maintain, and when necessary, replace hardware and software required to monitor 

VESTA 9-1-1 system elements. This includes the ActiveEye Remote Security Sensors (AERSS) 
and all software operating on it. 

• Coordinate with the Customer to maintain authentication credentials where necessary. 
• Coordinate with the Customer on any system changes necessary to integrate the AERSS into 

the system and establish necessary connectivity.  
• Maintain trained and accredited technicians.  
• Monitor the Customer’s system 24x7x365 for malicious or unusual activity.  
• Respond to cybersecurity incidents in the Customer’s system in accordance with the section, 

Priority Level Definitions and Response Times. 
• Work with the Customer to ensure that all devices within the system that support logging have 

properly configured Syslog which is forwarding events to the AERSS. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• VESTA Managed Detection and Response requires a connection from the Customer’s system 

to Motorola’s NSOC and to the Internet. Establish connectivity with sufficient bandwidth before 
service commences. 

84



• Allow Motorola continuous remote access to monitor the system. This includes keeping the 
connection plugged-in, providing passwords, and working with Motorola to understand and 
maintain proper privileges. 

• Provide continuous utility service to any Motorola equipment installed or used at the Customer’s 
premises to support delivery of this service. 

• Provide Customer contact information necessary to complete the Customer Support Plan. 
• Provide Motorola-dispatched field service technicians with physical access to service equipment 

when required. 
• Comply with the terms of the applicable license agreements between Customer and the non-

Motorola software copyright owners. 
• Cooperate with Motorola and perform all acts that are reasonable or necessary to enable 

Motorola to provide the services described in this SOW. 

8.1.1 Cybersecurity Incidents 
VESTA Managed Detection and Response excludes services to perform physical containment and/or 
remediation of confirmed cybersecurity incidents, remote or onsite. The Customer may choose to 
purchase additional Incident Response professional services to assist in the creation of and/or 
execution of a Customer’s Incident Response Plan. 

A “Cybersecurity Incident” is defined as an observable event that Motorola Security Analysts have 
identified that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of the 
system. Examples include ransomware or malicious use of PowerShell.  

Motorola Responsibilities 
• Upon the identification of a Cybersecurity Incident, notify Customer's documented contact and 

escalation plan. 
• Take documented customer approved actions in an attempt to contain a Cybersecurity Incident 

to the extent enabled via Motorola Managed technology. Communicate to Customer what 
additional potential containment actions and incident response resources can be taken across 
Customer managed IT infrastructure.  

• Perform investigation using the VESTA Managed Detection and Response integrated and 
enabled data sources in an initial attempt to determine the extent of a Cybersecurity Incident.  

• Document and share Indicators of Compromise and artifacts discovered during investigation. 
Motorola will not perform on site data collection or official forensic capture activities on physical 
devices. 

• Reasonably liaise with Customer’s Incident Response resources as a result of the Cybersecurity 
Incident supporting any service provider that is performing incident response and/or remediation 
related to the Cybersecurity Incident. 

Customer Responsibilities 
• Maintain one named Point of Contact (POC) to coordinate regular team discussions and 

organize data collection and capture across the Customer and Motorola teams. 
• If required, contract for Incident Response service provider to perform procedures beyond the 

scope of the VESTA Managed Detection and Response service such as forensic data capture, 

85



additional malware removal, system recovery, ransomware payment negotiation, law 
enforcement engagement, insurance provider communications, identify patient zero, etc. 

8.1.2 Priority Level Definitions and Response Times 
Incident Priority Incident Definition Response Times 

Critical P1 Security incidents that have caused, or are suspected of 
causing significant and/or widespread damage to the 
functionality of or information stored within the system. Efforts 
to recover from the incident may be significant.  
Examples: 
• Malware that is not quarantined by anti-virus 
• Evidence of communication with suspected malicious actors 

Response provided 24 
hours, 7 days a week, 
including US Holidays. 

High P2 Security incidents that have localized impact, but have the 
potential to become more serious if not quickly addressed. 
Effort to recover from the incident may be moderate to 
significant.  
Examples: 
• Malware that is quarantined by anti-virus 
• Multiple behaviors observed in the system that are 

consistent with known attacker techniques 

Response provided 24 
hours, 7 days a week, 
including US Holidays. 

Medium P3 Security incidents potentially indicative of an attacker 
performing reconnaissance or initial attempts at accessing the 
system. Effort to recover from the incident may be low to 
moderate.   
Examples include: 
• Suspected unauthorized attempts to log into user accounts  
• Suspected unauthorized changes to system configurations 

(firewalls, user accounts, etc.) 
• Observed failures of security components 

Response provided 8 x 5 on 
standard business days, 
which is normally Monday 
through Friday 8AM to 5PM 
local time, excluding US 
Holidays.  

Low P4 These are typically informational in nature or are service 
requests from the Customer.  
Examples include: 
• User account creation or deletion 
• Privilege change for existing accounts 

Response provided 8 x 5 on 
standard business days, 
which is normally Monday 
through Friday 8AM to 5PM 
local time, excluding US 
Holidays. 

8.2 Scope Limitations & Clarifications 
Service Limitations 

Cybersecurity services are inherently limited and will not guarantee that the Customer's system will be 
error-free or immune to security breaches as a result of any or all of the services described in this 
proposal. Motorola does not warrant or guarantee that this service will identify all cybersecurity 
incidents that occur in the Customer’s system.  Services and deliverables are limited by, among other 

86



things, the evolving and often malicious nature of cyber threats, conduct/attacks, as well as the 
complexity/disparity and evolving nature of Customer computer system environments, including supply 
chains, integrated software, services, and devices. 

Processing of Customer Data in the United States and/or other Locations 

Customer understands and agrees that data obtained, accessed or utilized in the performance of the 
services may be transmitted to, accessed, monitored, and/or otherwise processed by Motorola in the 
United States (US) and/or other Motorola operations globally.  Customer consents to and authorizes all 
such processing and agrees to provide, obtain, or post any necessary approvals, consents, or notices 
that may be necessary to comply with applicable law. 

Customer and Third-Party Information 

The Customer understands and agrees that Motorola may obtain, use and/or create and use 
anonymized, aggregated and/or generalized Customer data, such as data relating to actual and 
potential security threats and vulnerabilities, for its lawful business purposes, including improving its 
services and sharing and leveraging such information for the benefit of Customer, other customers, and 
other interested parties.  For purposes of this engagement, so long as not specifically identifying the 
Customer, Customer Data shall not include, and Motorola shall be free to use, share and leverage 
security threat intelligence and mitigation data generally, including without limitation, third party threat 
vectors and IP addresses, file hash information, domain names, malware signatures and information, 
information obtained from third party sources, indicators of compromise, and tactics, techniques, and 
procedures used learned or developed in the course of providing services. 

 

 

87



Section 9 

Equipment List 
9.1 Lemoore Police Department PSAP 
VESTA® 9-1-1       
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

   VESTA® 9-1-1         
2 870899-0104R7.9 V911 R7.9 LIC/DOC/MED 2,002.60 EA $4,005.20 
1 873099-03002 V911 CAD INTF KIT BB 120V 591.75 EA $591.75 
1 870891-66101 V911 CAD INTFC LIC ONLY 294.76 EA $294.76 
           
    VM Medium Server Bundle        

   

Note:  The Medium Server Bundle is 
for PSAP's up to 40 positions with an 
annual call volume of 500,000 or less.       

1 
853031-DLSVRSG-
2 V-DL MED SVR BNDL SNGL 26,369.70 EA $26,369.70 

2 06500-00201 2-POST RELAY RACK MNT KIT 416.42 EA $832.84 
1 870890-75002 VIRTUAL MEDIA SET R7.0 016 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
2 04000-68005 V-SVR BASIC SPT 1YR 102.52 EA Optional 
2 04000-68009 V-SVR BASIC SPT 5YR 509.53 EA $1,019.06 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Features       
   ESInet Interface Module (EIM)       

   

Note: Pricing is provided for budgetary 
purposes only.  Equipment/service 
requirements may change upon 
selection of ESInet Service Provider.       

2 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
2 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $1,275.96 

    

Note: Firewall supports Call and Text 
Handling for ESInet Interface Module 
(EIM), Text to 9-1-1 and Direct PSAP 
Interconnect (DPI).  EIM & SMS to 
Share Firewall.       

2 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $1,322.26 
2 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $336.98 
            

1 04000-00570 
M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL W/1YR 
SPT 10,017.32 EA $10,017.32 

    

Note: An M800C Session Border 
Controller (SBC) is required for all i3 
deployments.       

1 04000-00571 WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41 

88



ADDTL 1YR 

1 04000-00571 
WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL 
ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41 

1 04000-00571 
WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL 
ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41 

1 04000-00571 
WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL 
ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41 

            
208 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS 79.17 EA $16,467.36 

    

Note: FE for installing i3 EIM and/or 
DPI, post VESTA installation. 
Includes: 
 - Firewall Configuration 
 - EIM Configuration 
 - Carrier Failover Testing 
 - Operational Readiness Testing       

           
2 809800-51009 PROJECT MGMT - SUPPORT 1,700.42 EA $3,400.84 
           
   VESTA® SMS       

   

Note:  Customer is responsible for 
Text Control Center (TCC) services and 
network charges.       

2 870891-66301 VESTA 9-1-1 SMS LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1       
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2       
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3       
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4       
1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00 
   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5       
           
   VESTA RapidSOS       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 884.28 EA $884.28 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 884.28 EA $884.28 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 884.28 EA $884.28 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 884.28 EA $884.28 

    Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4       

1 809810-00103 
V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL 
SUB 884.28 EA $884.28 

   Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5       
           

89



    VESTA® 9-1-1 CDR Module       
    Note: Customer to provide CDR Printer       
2 873099-00602 V911 CDR SVR LIC 1,290.67 EA $2,581.34 
2 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $212.14 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
2 PS-0SQ-VSML VS BSC MLTP PER SEAT LIC 2,936.40 EA $5,872.80 
2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-1Y SPT VS BSC 1YR 1,453.68 EA Optional 
2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,654.40 EA $11,308.80 
           

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to 
VESTA® 9-1-1 Advanced Licenses       

    
Note: Advanced licenses required for 
RapidSOS & AAC       

2 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-1Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 1YR 396.36 EA Optional 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,542.00 EA $3,084.00 
           
    VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR Module       
2 873099-00502 V911 IRR LIC/MED 1,177.91 EA $2,355.82 
2 809800-35110 V911 IRR SW SPT 1YR 244.56 EA Optional 
2 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 816.60 EA $1,633.20 
            
    VESTA® Workstation Equipment        
2 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA $2,464.46 
2 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $243.54 
4 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $1,835.04 
2 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA $407.96 
2 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA $44.66 
2 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,514.50 EA $5,029.00 
4 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA $150.24 
2 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $414.12 
2 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA $28.42 
2 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA $79.18 
2 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA $8.12 
2 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $533.90 
2 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $801.86 
1 870890-07501 CPR/SYSPREP MEDIA IMAGE 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin Printer       
1 64040-60019 PRNTR USB/ETHERNET COLOR 318.99 EA $318.99 

    

Note:  Inkjet Color printer.  
Recommended monthly volume, 7,500 
pages.       

1 65000-13403 CBL USB 2.0 A/B 10FT 4.70 EA $4.70 
            
    Network Equipment       

   

Note: Firewall supports Remote and 
Internet Access for Managed Services, 
Remote position access and 
RapidSOS.       

90



1 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $637.98 
1 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $661.13 
1 809800-00201 VPN CFG SVCS 194.88 EA $194.88 
1 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $168.49 
           
   Switches       

   
Note: Part number includes switch and 
warranty.       

2 04000-09206 SWITCH 9200 24-PORT W/24X7 5YR 5,982.78 EA $11,965.56 
2 04000-02919 USB CONSOLE CBL 103.53 EA $207.06 
           
    Peripherals & Gateways       
2 04000-00129 MED 1000B CHASSIS BNDL 3,184.72 EA $6,369.44 
1 870890-74901 V911 M1KB FIRMWARE 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 04000-00186 SW SPT M1000 GATEWAY 1YR 400.93 EA Optional 
2 04000-00190 SW SPT M1000 GATEWAY 5YR 2,002.60 EA $4,005.20 
2 04000-00116 MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL 520.76 EA $1,041.52 
2 04000-00119 MED 1000 FXS-O BNDL 497.26 EA $994.52 
           
   ALI/CAD Output       
1 04000-00159 BLKBX TL159A 8-PORT DATACAST 746.36 EA $746.36 
8 65000-00262 KIT CBL RJ11 ADPTR DB25 17.26 EA $138.08 
           
    Rack & Peripheral Equipment       
1 06500-55053 7FT EQUIPMENT RACK 19IN 366.42 EA $366.42 
1 63000-192610 MNTR LCD 19IN 479.40 EA $479.40 
1 04000-00809 KVM 8-PORT SWITCH USB 698.42 EA $698.42 
           
    Time Synchronization Equipment       
1 04000-09483 NETCLOCK 9483 8,512.64 EA $8,512.64 
1 04000-08230 GPS/GNSS OUTDOOR ANTENNA 492.56 EA $492.56 
1 04000-08231 GPS ANTENNA POST MT KIT 188.94 EA $188.94 
1 04000-08236 GPS PVC POST MNT 143.82 EA $143.82 
1 04000-08228 GPS ANTENNA SURG PROTECTR 301.46 EA $301.46 
1 04000-20601 GND KIT FOR 8226 422.24 EA $422.24 
2 04000-13150 CBL GPS ANTENNA 150FT 573.48 EA $1,146.96 
            

       Subtotal    $156,356.44 
      

VESTA® 9-1-1 IP Phones    
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    VESTA® 9-1-1 Phones       
1 870809-00901 IP PHN LIC ENH 353.94 EA $353.94 
           
1 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA $373.18 
1 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA $316.78 
1 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA $66.99 
           
   ESInet Interface Module (EIM)       

91



1 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 CDR Module       
1 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $106.07 
           

    
VESTA® Analytics - Standard Multi 
Product Purchase       

1 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $954.61 
1 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional 
1 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $667.80 
           
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Backup 911 IP Phones       
4 870809-00901 IP PHN LIC ENH 353.94 EA $1,415.76 
           
4 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA $1,492.72 
4 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA $1,267.12 
4 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA $267.96 
           
   Network Equipment for IP Phones       

    

Note: Phones to be powered via the AC 
power adapter that is included with the 
phone.       

           
       Subtotal    $7,282.93 

      
VESTA® CommandPOST    
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    ESInet Interface Module (EIM)       
2 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1  CDR Module       
2 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $212.14 
            
    VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations       
2 PS-0SQ-VSML VS BSC MLTP PER SEAT LIC 2,936.40 EA $5,872.80 
2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-1Y SPT VS BSC 1YR 1,453.68 EA Optional 
2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,654.40 EA $11,308.80 
           

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to 
VESTA® 9-1-1 Advanced Licenses       

    
Note: Advanced licenses required for 
RapidSOS       

2 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-1Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 1YR 396.36 EA Optional 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,542.00 EA $3,084.00 
           
    VESTA® 9-1-1  IRR Module       
2 873099-00502 V911 IRR LIC/MED 1,177.91 EA $2,355.82 
2 809800-35110 V911 IRR SW SPT 1YR 244.56 EA Optional 
2 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 816.60 EA $1,633.20 

92



            
    CommandPOST Hardware       
2 61050-G819605-5Y HP LAPTOP W/O OS & WARR 5YR 2,614.64 EA $5,229.28 
2 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $243.54 
2 65000-00263 DOCK STATION THUNDERBOLT KIT 543.03 EA $1,086.06 
2 64021-10025 KYBD/MOUSE BNDL 72.38 EA $144.76 
4 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $1,835.04 
2 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA $44.66 
           
2 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA $407.96 
            
2 853004-00301 CPOST SAM HDWR KIT 3,384.00 EA $6,768.00 
2 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA $75.12 
2 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $414.12 
2 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA $28.42 
2 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $533.90 
2 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $801.86 
            

    
VESTA® Analytics Licensing & 
Support       

2 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $1,909.22 
2 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional 
2 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $1,335.60 
           

       Subtotal    $45,324.30 
      

VESTA® Analytics     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
VESTA® Analytics Standard - Multi 
Product Purchase       

1 873399-00103.6 V-ANLYT 3.6 MED 0.00 EA $0.00 
1 873391-00501 V-ANLYT STD LIC 2,786.78 EA $2,786.78 
            
1 873391-00301 V-ANLYT USER LIC 1,045.04 EA $1,045.04 
            
2 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $1,909.22 
2 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional 
2 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $1,335.60 
            

    

VESTA® Analytics Standard Server 
Equipment for Virtualized Server 
Bundle       

   
Note: Additional Hardware to be 

installed in DDS-B Server.       
1 BA-M00-ASA0-3 V-ANLYT STD ADD-ON 7,035.98 EA $7,035.98 
            

   
VESTA® Analytics Standalone 
Workstation Equipment       

1 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA $1,232.23 
1 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $121.77 

93



1 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $458.76 
1 809800-00102 GENERIC WKST CFG FEE 459.80 EA $459.80 
            

       Subtotal    $16,385.18 
      

Managed Services     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

   
Monitoring & Response (M&R): 
Activation Fee       

1 809800-14150 M&R ACT FEE, SMALL SITE 1,821.93 EA $1,821.93 
           

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: 
Servers       

   
Note: Includes (2) DDS Servers, (1) 

VESTA Analytics Server       
3 04000-00398 M&R SVR AGENT LIC 526.79 EA $1,580.37 
3 809800-16361 M&R PM AV SVR SRVC 1YR 1,966.20 EA Optional 
3 809800-16365 M&R PM AV SVR SRVC 5YR 8,588.40 EA $25,765.20 
            

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: 
Workstations       

   

Note: Includes (2) Workstations, (1) 
Management Console, (1) Analytics 
Admin Workstations, (2) Laptop (In 
order to provide Managed Services 
offerings for CommandPOST positions, 
they are required to be connected to the 
VESTA 9-1-1 system and active at all 
times.).       

6 04000-00399 M&R WKST AGENT LIC 154.28 EA $925.68 
6 809800-16377 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 1YR 792.72 EA Optional 
6 809800-16381 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 5YR 3,541.80 EA $21,250.80 
            

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices       

    

Note: Includes (2) Virtual 
Host/Machines, (2) MDS Servers, (1) 
ASN Node, (1) ASN Repo, (1) ASN 
Node 2, (2) Firewalls for EIM/SMS, (2) 
SBC Gateway Devices for EIM,  (1) 
Firewall for Internet/Remote Access, (2) 
Cisco Switches, (2) M1K Gateways,  (1) 
8TB NAS Device       

17 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $1,449.42 
17 809800-16343 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 1YR 424.32 EA Optional 
17 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,825.80 EA $31,038.60 
           

       Subtotal    $83,832.00 
      

Optional 
Parts/Spares     

94



Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  
    Gateways and Equipment       
1 04000-00127-SP MED 1000B CHASSIS SPARE 2,625.42 EA Optional 
1 870890-74901 V911 M1KB FIRMWARE 0.00 EA Optional 
1 04000-00116 MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL 520.76 EA Optional 
1 04000-00119 MED 1000 FXS-O BNDL 497.26 EA Optional 
           
   Cables and Switches       

   
Note: Part number includes switch and 
warranty.       

1 04000-09206 SWITCH 9200 24-PORT W/24X7 5YR 5,982.78 EA Optional 
1 04000-02919 USB CONSOLE CBL 103.53 EA Optional 
           
    VESTA IP Phones       
1 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA Optional 
1 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA Optional 
1 04000-51028 PWR SPLY 6867 PHN 34.78 EA Optional 
1 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA Optional 
           

    
ProDesk Mini Workstation 
Equipment       

1 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA Optional 
1 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA Optional 
1 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA Optional 
1 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA Optional 
1 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA Optional 
1 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,514.50 EA Optional 
1 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA Optional 
1 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA Optional 
1 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA Optional 
1 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA Optional 
1 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA Optional 
1 809800-00102 GENERIC WKST CFG FEE 459.80 EA Optional 

1 04000-01594 
WARR NBD 600/705/800/805 
G2/G3/G4/G5/G6 5YR 123.83 EA Optional 

            
       Subtotal    $0.00 

      
Extended Warranties     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

   Server Extended Warranty       

   
Note: Includes (2) VESTA 9-1-1 

Servers       
2 04000-01621 WARR NBD DL380G10 5YR 3,149.55 EA $6,299.10 

   

Note:  Upgrade & uplift from 3 yr 
warranty 9x5 NBD to 5 yrs, 9x5 NBD 
response time.       

           
   Workstation Extended Warranty       

95



   

Note: Includes (2) Workstations, (1) 
Management Console, (1) Analytics 
Admin Workstations       

4 04000-01594 
WARR NBD 600/705/800/805 
G2/G3/G4/G5/G6 5YR 123.83 EA $495.32 

   
Note:  Warranty upgrade from 3 yrs 

warranty 9x5 NBD to 5 yrs 9x5 NBD.       
           

       Subtotal    $6,794.42 
      

VESTA® Services     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Services to Support VESTA® SMS       

90 
809800-17006-
SMS FIELD ENG-EXPRESS SMS 79.17 EA $7,125.30 

43 
809800-51007-
SMS 

PROJECT MGMT - REMOTE SMS 
COORDINATION 100.49 EA $4,321.07 

1 
000001-06805-
SMS 

E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS ADMIN DELTA 
TR - SMS SVC 530.85 EA $530.85 

   

Note:  Remote Field Engineering 
support to perform the configuration of 
VESTA SMS. Services include:  
* Firewall Configuration 
* VESTA 911 / VESTA SMS 
configuration 
* Import of VESTA SMS VM's (if 
applicable) 
* Preparation of screen layouts 
* TCC Testing 
* Carrier Testing 
* Express Field Engineering Services 
* Remote Project Management 
* E-Learn SMS Admin Delta Training 
Course       

           

1 000001-06806 
E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS AGENT DELTA 
TRNG 316.68 EA $316.68 

   

Note:  E-Learning for VESTA SMS 
AGENT is a computer-based training 
course. The course is for up to a 
maximum of 10 students. E-Learning 
course is available for each student for 
365 days.       

           
    Project Management Services       
5 809800-51009 PROJECT MGMT - SUPPORT 1,700.42 EA $8,502.10 
    Note:  Support PM is Remote only.       
            
    MSI Direct Services       
1 809800-17035 MSI DIRECT SITE READINESS SVCS 17,496.23 EA $17,496.23 
    Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack       
1 809800-51010 MSI DIRECT PM 3,960.00 EA $3,960.00 
1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING 52,488.70 EA $52,488.70 

96



SERVICES 
            
1 809800-17041 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 1YR 10,800.00 EA Optional 
1 809800-17045 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 5YR 54,000.00 EA $54,000.00 
            
   Training       
2 000001-06701 V9-1-1 AGENT TRNG 1,298.19 EA $2,596.38 

   

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Agent bundle 
includes (1) 1/2 day class of Agent 
training for up to 8 students.  Includes 
trainer's daily training expenses and 
travel. VESTA® 9-1-1 Agent training 
does not include training on the SIP 
phones.  SIP phone training is a 
separate class and can be quoted upon 
request.       

1 000001-06704 V9-1-1 ADMIN FOR STD 4,325.93 EA $4,325.93 

   

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin bundle 
includes (1) 1 1/2 day class of Admin 
training for up to 8 students.  Includes 
trainer's daily training expenses and 
travel.        

1 000001-06807 E-LEARN V9-1-1 SIP TRNG 316.68 EA $316.68 
1 000001-06795 CPOST ON-SITE TRNG 0.00 EA $0.00 

   

Note:  On-site training included as 
part of the VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin 
training using customer equipment.  
CommandPOST positions must be 
configured to the network/firewall prior 
to training. This is a 15 minute 
demonstration on how to use the 
CommandPOST position.       

           
1 000002-24404 V-ANLYT ADMIN TRNG 2,162.97 EA $2,162.97 

   

Note:  VESTA® Analytics Admin 
bundle includes (1) 1 day class of 
Admin training for up to 8 students.  
Includes trainer's daily training 
expenses and travel.        

   Cutover Coaching       
1 000001-08541 CUTOVER COACHING 3,751.44 EA $3,751.44 

   

Note:  Cutover Coaching includes (1) 
8 hour session within a 24 hour day.  
Includes trainer's daily training 
expenses and travel.       

           
       Subtotal    $161,894.33 

 

97



9.2 Optional Feature Details 
9.2.1 Automated Abandon Callback 
VESTA® 9-1-1       
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Automated Abandoned Callback       
1 870810-01302 VESTA 9-1-1 AAC PSAP MOD 6,484.63 EA $6,484.63 

1 
853031-
DLSVRCFS V-DL CFS SVR BNDL 9,110.64 EA $9,110.64 

1 06500-00201 2-POST RELAY RACK MNT KIT 416.42 EA $416.42 
2 04000-68005 V-SVR BASIC SPT 1YR 102.52 EA Optional 
2 04000-68009 V-SVR BASIC SPT 5YR 509.53 EA $1,019.06 
            

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to 
VESTA® 9-1-1 Advanced Licenses       

    
Note: Advanced Licenses required for 

AAC       
2 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-1Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 1YR 396.36 EA Optional 
2 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,542.00 EA $3,084.00 
           
            

       Subtotal    $20,114.75 
      

Managed Services     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP 
Devices       

    
Note: Includes  (2) CFS Linux VMs, 

(1) CFS Host       
3 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $255.78 
3 809800-16343 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 1YR 424.32 EA Optional 
3 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,825.80 EA $5,477.40 
           

       Subtotal    $5,733.18 
      

Extended Warranties     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

   Server Extended Warranty       
   Note: Includes (1) CFS Server       
1 04000-01620 WARR 24X7 DL380G10 5YR 5,979.37 EA $5,979.37 

   

Note:  Upgrade & uplift from 3 yr 
warranty 9x5 NBD to 5 yrs, 24x7, 4 hour 
response time.       

           
       Subtotal    $5,979.37 

 

98



9.2.2 VESTA Map Local 
VESTA® CommandPOST    
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

   VESTA® Map Local       
2 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,947.56 EA $5,895.12 
2 809800-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE CONTRACT 1YR 483.14 EA Optional 
2 04000-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 1YR 0.00 EA Optional 
2 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE CONTRACT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $4,823.28 
2 04000-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 0.00 EA $0.00 
            

2 6400C-40053 
8GB RAM ZBOOK POWER 
G5/G6/G7/G8 309.56 EA $619.12 

            
    VESTA Map Local Installation       
2 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS 79.17 EA $158.34 

    

Note:  Motorola Solutions Connectivity 
FE remote installation/configuration of 
VML software, map build per 
workstation.       

           
       Subtotal    $11,495.86 

      
VESTA® Map Local     
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    VESTA® Map Local       
1 871399-40105.0 VMAP LOCAL R5 BASE LIC-KEY/MED 2,947.56 EA $2,947.56 
1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY 2,947.56 EA $2,947.56 
2 809800-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE CONTRACT 1YR 483.14 EA Optional 
2 04000-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 1YR 0.00 EA Optional 
2 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE CONTRACT 5YR 2,411.64 EA $4,823.28 
2 04000-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR 0.00 EA $0.00 
            
1 809800-44119 VMAP LOCAL GIS SVCS 6,421.00 EA $6,421.00 
            

    
VESTA® Map Local - Additional 
Hardware       

2 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $917.52 
            
    VESTA Map Local Installation       

10 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS 79.17 EA $791.70 

    

Note:  Motorola Solutions Connectivity 
FE remote installation/configuration of 
VML software, map build per 
workstation.       

            
    VESTA Map Local Training       

2 000001-69012 
E-LEARN VESTA MAP LOCAL AGENT 
TRNG 316.68 EA $633.36 

99



    

Note: VESTA Map Local Agent 
training course.  Only offered as a 
computer-based training course. 
Maximum number of students per class 
is 10.       

1 000001-69014 
E-LEARN VMAP LOCAL SYS GIS 
DATA HUB TRNG 107.59 EA $107.59 

    

Note: VESTA Map Local GIS Hub 
training course.  Only offered as a 
computer-based training course. 
Maximum number of students per class 
is 5.        

           
       Subtotal    $19,589.57 

 

9.2.3 CommandCentral Cloud Base Services Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription 

CommandCentral Cloud Services    
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    
VESTA® 9-1-1 Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription       

1 870899-60002.0 V911 CLOUD INTERFACE - NO API 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 873090-11302 V911 SMART TRANSCPT LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 
2 873090-11301 V911 CITIZEN INPUT LIC 0.00 EA $0.00 

10 809800-35601 CI/ST BUNDLE NAMED USER 1YR 448.80 EA Optional 
10 809800-35605 CI/ST BUNDLE NAMED USER 5YR 2,244.00 EA $22,440.00 
            

    

VESTA® 9-1-1 Citizen Input and Smart 
Transcription Implementation 
Services       

   

Note: System Implementation services 
are required for installation of Citizen 
Input / Smart Transcription bundle.       

2 809800-16990 CI / ST BUND SYS IMP- PER POS 140.00 EA $280.00 

1 809800-16991 
CI / ST BUND SYS IMP- 1ST AGENCY/ 
SITE 7,160.00 EA $7,160.00 

           

    

Note: Citizen Input, Smart Transcription 
and Aware require a firewall (60E or 
60F) per host for internet connectivity.       

            
       Subtotal    $29,880.00 

 

 

100



9.2.4 Cybersecurity Managed Detection and Response Services 
Advanced Cybersecurity Services    
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M  Total  

    Managed Detection and Response - Small       
1 CYBER-SM-SML1Y CYBERSECURITY SM, SML 1YR 25,000.00 EA Optional 
1 CYBER-SM-SML5Y CYBERSECURITY SM, SML 5YR 132,728.40 EA $132,728.40 
           
    Cybersecurity FE Services       

16 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $1,721.44 
            

       Subtotal    $134,449.84 

 

 

101



Section 10 

Pricing 
10.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Solution 

Summary - 5 YEAR 
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1   
Hardware/Software  $            155,910.43  
Implementation, Project Management and Training  $            129,584.46  
Software Support  $            122,891.26  
24x7 Onsite Maintenance  $              54,000.00  
Hardware Warranties  $               8,689.03  
Extended Warranties  $               6,794.42  
     VESTA 9-1-1  $            477,869.60  
        

        
        
Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services   

     Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services  $            134,449.84  
        
Optional Items      
VESTA Map Local  $             31,085.43  
Citizen Input & Smart Transcription  $             29,880.00  
AAC  $             31,827.30  
            
      
      

Summary - 1 YEAR 
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1   
Hardware/Software  $            155,910.43  
Implementation, Project Management and Training  $            129,584.46  
Software Support  $              28,997.74  
24x7 Onsite Maintenance  $              10,800.00  
Hardware Warranties  $                         -    
Extended Warranties  $               6,794.42  
     VESTA 9-1-1  $            332,087.05  
        
        
Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services   

     Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services  $              26,721.44  
        

102



Optional Items      
VESTA Map Local  $             23,371.43  
Citizen Input & Smart Transcription  $             11,928.00  
AAC  $             24,517.56  
            

 

* Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal. 

 

10.2 Payment Terms 
 

Total Contract Value selected from the above purchase options is___________________. 

Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to Motorola within thirty 
(30) days after the date of each invoice.  Customer will make payments when due in the form of a check, 
cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. financial institution. If Customer has purchased additional 
Professional or Subscription services, payment will be in accordance with the applicable addenda. Payment for 
the System purchase will be in accordance with the following milestones.   
 

1. 25% of the Contract Price due upon contract execution (due upon effective date);  

2. 60% of the Contract Price due upon shipment of equipment;  

3. 10% of the Contract Price due upon installation of equipment; and  

4. 5% of the Contract Price due upon Final Acceptance. 

Motorola shall make partial shipments of equipment and will request payment upon shipment of such 
equipment. In addition, Motorola shall invoice for installations completed on a site-by-site basis or when 
professional services are completed, when applicable. 

 

 

103



Section 11 

Master Customer Agreement 

104



H-GAC Master Customer Agreement 

This Master Customer Agreement (the “MCA”) is entered into between Motorola Solutions, Inc., 
with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 60661 (“Motorola”) and the entity 
set forth in the signature block below (“Customer”). Motorola and Customer will each be 
referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. This Agreement (as defined 
below) is effective as of the date of the last signature (the “Effective Date”).  

WHEREAS, the Customer desires to purchase communications products and services; and 

WHEREAS, Motorola desires to sell communications products and services to Customer; and 

WHEREAS, Houston-Galveston Area Council (“H-GAC”), acting as the agent for various local 
governmental entities who are “End Users” under interlocal agreements (including the 
Customer) has solicited proposals for radio communications equipment and conducted 
discussions with Motorola concerning its proposal and, where applicable, in accordance with the 
competitive procurement procedures of Texas law; and 

WHEREAS, H-GAC and Motorola entered into that certain Contract No. EC07-20 executed on 
February 10, 2021, (the “H-GAC Contract”), which provided that End Users may purchase 
communications products and services from Motorola pursuant to certain terms contained 
therein;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Articles 2 and 6 of the Special Provisions of the H-GAC Contract,  
Motorola and Customer now wish to enter into this Agreement to delineate the specific terms of 
the purchase of communications products and services from Motorola by the Customer. For 
good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Agreement.  

1.1. Scope; Agreement Documents. This MCA governs Customer’s purchase of Products (as 
defined below) and Services (as defined below) from Motorola.  The H-GAC Contract, as 
amended, is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Agreement in full by this 
reference. Additional terms and conditions applicable to specific Products and Services are set 
forth in one or more addenda attached to this MCA (each an “Addendum”, and collectively the 
“Addenda”). In addition, the Parties may agree upon solution descriptions, equipment lists, 
statements of work, schedules, technical specifications, and other ordering documents setting 
forth the Products and Services to be purchased by Customer and provided by Motorola and 
additional rights and obligations of the Parties (the “Ordering Documents”). To the extent 
required by applicable procurement law, a proposal submitted by Motorola in response to a 
competitive procurement process will be included within the meaning of the term Ordering 
Documents. This MCA, its exhibit, the Addenda, and any Ordering Documents collectively form 
the Parties’ “Agreement”.  

1.2. Order of Precedence. In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities, 
Exhibit A shall prevail over this entire Agreement in the event of a conflict.   Each Addendum will 
control with respect to conflicting terms in the MCA, but only as applicable to the Products and 
Services described in such Addendum. Each Ordering Document will control with respect to 
conflicting terms in the MCA or any Addenda, but only as applicable to the Products and 
Services described on such Ordering Document. 

2. Products and Services. 

105



2.1. Products. Motorola will (a) sell hardware provided by Motorola (“Equipment”), (b) 
license software which is either preinstalled on Equipment or installed on Customer-Provided 
Equipment (as defined below) and licensed to Customer by Motorola for a perpetual or other 
defined license term (“Licensed Software”), and (c) license cloud-based software as a service 
products and other software which is either preinstalled on Equipment or installed on Customer-
Provided Equipment, but licensed to Customer by Motorola on a subscription basis 
(“Subscription Software”) to Customer, to the extent each is set forth in an Ordering 
Document, for Customer’s own use in accordance with this Agreement. The Equipment, 
Licensed Software, and Subscription Software shall collectively be referred to herein as 
“Products”, or individually as a “Product”. At any time during the Term (as defined below), 
Motorola may substitute any Products at no cost to Customer, if the substitute is substantially 
similar to the Products set forth in the applicable Ordering Documents.  

2.2. Services. 

2.2.1. Motorola will provide services related to purchased Products (“Services”), to the 
extent set forth in an Ordering Document. 

2.2.2. Integration Services; Maintenance and Support Services. If specified in an 
Ordering Document, Motorola will provide, for the term of such Ordering 
Document, (a) design, deployment, and  integration Services in order to design, 
install, set up, configure, and/or integrate the applicable Products at the 
applicable locations (“Sites”), agreed upon by the Parties (“Integration 
Services”), or (b) break/fix maintenance, technical support, or other Services 
(such as software integration Services) (“Maintenance and Support Services”), 
each as further described in the applicable statement of work. Maintenance and 
Support Services and Integration Services will each be considered “Services”, as 
defined above.  

2.2.3. Service Ordering Documents. The Fees for Services will be set forth in an 
Ordering Document and any applicable project schedules. A Customer point of 
contact will be set forth in the applicable statement of work for the Services. For 
purposes of clarity, each statement of work will be incorporated into, and form an 
integral part of, the Agreement. 

2.2.4. Service Completion. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Ordering 
Document, Services described in an Ordering Document will be deemed 
complete upon Motorola’s performance of all Services listed in such Ordering 
Document (“Service Completion Date”); provided, however, that Maintenance 
and Support Services may be offered on an ongoing basis during a given 
Ordering Document term, in which case such Maintenance and Support Services 
will conclude upon the expiration or termination of such Ordering Document. 

2.3. Non-Preclusion. If, in connection with the Products and Services provided under this 
Agreement, Motorola makes recommendations, including a recommendation to purchase other 
products or services, nothing in this Agreement precludes Motorola from participating in a future 
competitive bidding process or otherwise offering or selling the recommended products or other 
services to Customer. Customer represents that this paragraph does not violate its procurement 
standards or other laws, regulations, or policies.  

2.4. Customer Obligations. Customer will ensure that information Customer provides to 
Motorola in connection with receipt of Products and Services are accurate and complete in all 
material respects. Customer will make timely decisions and obtain any required management 
approvals that are reasonably necessary for Motorola to provide the Products and Services and 

106



perform its other duties under this Agreement. Unless the applicable Ordering Document states 
otherwise, Motorola may rely upon and is not required to evaluate, confirm, reject, modify, or 
provide advice concerning any assumptions or Customer information, decisions, or approvals 
described in this Section. If any assumptions in the Ordering Documents or information provided 
by Customer prove to be incorrect, or if Customer fails to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, Motorola’s ability to perform its obligations may be impacted and changes to 
the Agreement, including the scope, Fees, and performance schedule may be required. 

2.5. Documentation. Products and Services may be delivered with documentation for the 
Equipment, software Products, or data that specifies technical and performance features, 
capabilities, users, or operation, including training manuals, and other deliverables, such as 
reports, specifications, designs, plans, drawings, analytics, or other information (collectively, 
“Documentation”). Documentation is and will be owned by Motorola, unless otherwise 
expressly agreed in an Addendum or Ordering Document that certain Documentation will be 
owned by Customer. Motorola hereby grants Customer a limited, royalty-free, worldwide, non-
exclusive license to use the Documentation solely for its internal business purposes in 
connection with the Products and Services. 

2.6. Motorola Tools and Equipment. As part of delivering the Products and Services, 
Motorola may provide certain tools, equipment, models, and other materials of its own. Such 
tools and equipment will remain the sole property of Motorola unless they are to be purchased 
by Customer as Products and are explicitly listed on an Ordering Document. The tools and 
equipment may be held by Customer for Motorola’s use without charge and may be removed 
from Customer’s premises by Motorola at any time without restriction. Customer will safeguard 
all tools and equipment while in Customer’s custody or control, and be liable for any loss or 
damage. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, Customer, at its expense, 
will return to Motorola all tools and equipment in its possession or control.   

2.7. Authorized Users. Customer will ensure its employees and Authorized Users comply 
with the terms of this Agreement and will be liable for all acts and omissions of its employees 
and Authorized Users. Customer is responsible for the secure management of Authorized 
Users’ names, passwords and login credentials for access to Products and Services. 
“Authorized Users” are Customer’s employees, full-time contractors engaged for the purpose 
of supporting the Products and Services that are not competitors of Motorola, and the entities (if 
any) specified in an Ordering Document or otherwise approved by Motorola in writing (email 
from an authorized Motorola signatory accepted), which may include affiliates or other Customer 
agencies. 

2.8. Export Control. Customer, its employees, and any other Authorized Users will not 
access or use the Products and Services in any jurisdiction in which the provision of such 
Products and Services is prohibited under applicable laws or regulations (a “Prohibited 
Jurisdiction”), and Customer will not provide access to the Products and Services to any 
government, entity, or individual located in a Prohibited Jurisdiction. Customer represents and 
warrants that (a) it and its Authorized Users are not named on any U.S. government list of 
persons prohibited from receiving U.S. exports, or transacting with any U.S. person; (b) it and its 
Authorized Users are not a national of, or a company registered in, any Prohibited Jurisdiction; 
(c) Customer will not permit its Authorized Users to access or use the Products or Services in 
violation of any U.S. or other applicable export embargoes, prohibitions or restrictions; and (d) 
Customer and its Authorized Users will comply with all applicable laws regarding the 
transmission of technical data exported from the U.S. and the country in which Customer, its 
employees, and the Authorized Users are located.  

2.9. Change Orders. Unless a different change control process is agreed upon in writing by 
the Parties, a Party may request changes to an Addendum or an Ordering Document by 

107



submitting a change order to the other Party (each, a “Change Order”). If a requested change 
in a Change Order causes an increase or decrease in the Products or Services, the Parties by 
means of the Change Order will make appropriate adjustments to the Fees, project schedule, or 
other matters. Change Orders are effective and binding on the Parties only upon execution of 
the Change Order by an authorized representative of both Parties. 

3. Term and Termination.  

3.1. Term. The term of this MCA (“Term”) will commence on the Effective Date and continue 
until six (6) months after the later of (a) the termination, expiration, or discontinuance of services 
under the last Ordering Document in effect, or (b) the expiration of all applicable warranty 
periods, unless the MCA is earlier terminated as set forth herein. The applicable Addendum or 
Ordering Document will set forth the term for the Products and Services governed thereby. 

3.2. Termination. Either Party may terminate the Agreement or the applicable Addendum or 
Ordering Document if the other Party breaches a material obligation under the Agreement and 
does not cure such breach within thirty (30) days after receipt of notice of the breach or fails to 
produce a cure plan within such period of time. Each Addendum and Ordering Document may 
be separately terminable as set forth therein.   

3.3. Suspension of Services. Motorola may terminate or suspend any Products or Services 
under an Ordering Document if Motorola determines: (a) the related Product license has expired 
or has terminated for any reason; (b) the applicable Product is being used on a hardware 
platform, operating system, or version not approved by Motorola; (c) Customer fails to make any 
payments when due; or (d) Customer fails to comply with any of its other obligations or 
otherwise delays Motorola’s ability to perform. 

3.4. Effect of Termination or Expiration. Upon termination for any reason or expiration of this 
Agreement, an Addendum, or an Ordering Document, Customer and the Authorized Users will 
return or destroy (at Motorola’s option) all Motorola Materials and Motorola’s Confidential 
Information in their possession or control and, as applicable, provide proof of such destruction, 
except that Equipment purchased by Customer should not be returned. If Customer has any 
outstanding payment obligations under this Agreement, Motorola may accelerate and declare all 
such obligations of Customer immediately due and payable by Customer. Notwithstanding the 
reason for termination or expiration, Customer must pay Motorola for Products and Services 
already delivered. Customer has a duty to mitigate any damages under this Agreement, 
including in the event of default by Motorola and Customer’s termination of this Agreement. 

4. Payment and Invoicing. 

4.1. Fees. Fees and charges applicable to the Products and Services (the “Fees”) will be as 
set forth in the applicable Addendum or Ordering Document, and such Fees may be changed by 
Motorola at any time, except that Motorola will not change the Fees for Products and Services 
purchased by Customer during the term of an active Ordering Document or during a 
Subscription Term (as defined and further described in the applicable Addendum).  The fees 
and charges include the H-GAC administrative fee. Motorola will pay H-GAC’s administrative 
fee in accordance with the payment terms of the H-GAC Contract. Changes in the scope of 
Services described in an Ordering Document may require an adjustment to the Fees due under 
such Ordering Document. If a specific invoicing or payment schedule is set forth in the 
applicable Addendum or Ordering Document, such schedule will apply solely with respect to 
such Addendum or Ordering Document. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Ordering 
Document, the Fees for any Services exclude expenses associated with unusual and costly Site 
access requirements (e.g., if Site access requires a helicopter or other equipment), and 

108



Customer will reimburse Motorola for these or other expenses incurred by Motorola in 
connection with the Services.  

4.2. Taxes. The Fees do not include any excise, sales, lease, use, property, or other taxes, 
assessments, duties, or regulatory charges or contribution requirements (collectively, “Taxes”), 
all of which will be paid by Customer, except as exempt by law, unless otherwise specified in an 
Ordering Document. If Motorola is required to pay any Taxes, Customer will reimburse Motorola 
for such Taxes (including any interest and penalties) within thirty (30) days after Customer’s 
receipt of an invoice therefore. Customer will be solely responsible for reporting the Products for 
personal property tax purposes, and Motorola will be solely responsible for reporting taxes on its 
income and net worth. 

4.3. Invoicing. Motorola will invoice Customer at the frequency set forth in the applicable 
Addendum or Ordering Document, and Customer will pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of 
the invoice date or as otherwise specified in the applicable Addendum or Ordering Document. 
Late payments will be subject to interest charges at the maximum rate permitted by law, 
commencing upon the due date. Motorola may invoice electronically via email, and Customer 
agrees to receive invoices via email at the email address set forth in an Ordering Document. 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that a purchase order or other notice to proceed is not 
required for payment for Products or Services. 

5. Sites; Customer-Provided Equipment; Non-Motorola Content. 

5.1. Access to Sites. Customer will be responsible for providing all necessary permits, 
licenses, and other approvals necessary for the installation and use of the Products and the 
performance of the Services at each applicable Site, including for Motorola to perform its 
obligations hereunder, and for facilitating Motorola’s access to the Sites. No waivers of liability 
will be imposed on Motorola or its subcontractors by Customer or others at Customer facilities 
or other Sites, but if and to the extent any such waivers are imposed, the Parties agree such 
waivers are void. 

5.2. Site Conditions. Customer will ensure that (a) all Sites are safe and secure, (b) Site 
conditions meet all applicable industry and legal standards (including standards promulgated by 
OSHA or other governmental or regulatory bodies), (c) to the extent applicable, Sites have 
adequate physical space, air conditioning, and other environmental conditions, electrical power 
outlets, distribution, equipment, connections, and telephone or other communication lines 
(including modem access and interfacing networking capabilities), and (d) Sites are suitable for 
the installation, use, and maintenance of the Products and Services. This Agreement is 
predicated upon normal soil conditions as defined by the version of E.I.A. standard RS-222 in 
effect on the Effective Date. 

5.3. Site Issues. Upon reasonable advanced written notice to Customer, Motorola will have 
the right to inspect the Sites and advise Customer of any deficiencies or non-conformities with 
the requirements of this Section 5 – Sites; Customer-Provided Equipment; Non-Motorola 
Content. If Motorola or Customer identifies any deficiencies or non-conformities, Customer will 
promptly remediate such issues or the Parties will select a replacement Site. If a Party 
determines that a Site identified in an Ordering Document is not acceptable or desired, the 
Parties will cooperate to investigate the conditions and select a replacement Site or otherwise 
adjust the installation plans and specifications as necessary. A change in Site or adjustment to 
the installation plans and specifications may cause a change in the Fees or performance 
schedule under the applicable Ordering Document. 

5.4. Customer-Provided Equipment. Certain components, including equipment and software, 
not provided by Motorola may be required for use of the Products and Services (“Customer-

109



Provided Equipment”). Customer will be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for 
providing and maintaining the Customer-Provided Equipment in good working order. Customer 
represents and warrants that it has all rights in Customer-Provided Equipment to permit 
Motorola to access and use the applicable Customer-Provided Equipment to provide the 
Products and Services under this Agreement, and such access and use will not violate any laws 
or infringe any third-party rights (including intellectual property rights). Customer (and not 
Motorola) will be fully liable for Customer-Provided Equipment, and Customer will immediately 
notify Motorola of any Customer-Provided Equipment damage, loss, change, or theft that may 
impact Motorola’s ability to provide the Products and Services under this Agreement, and 
Customer acknowledges that any such events may cause a change in the Fees or performance 
schedule under the applicable Ordering Document.  

5.5. Non-Motorola Content. In certain instances, Customer may be permitted to access, use, 
or integrate Customer or third-party software, services, content, and data that is not provided by 
Motorola (collectively, “Non-Motorola Content”) with or through the Products and Services.  If 
Customer accesses, uses, or integrates any Non-Motorola Content with the Products or 
Services, Customer will first obtain all necessary rights and licenses to permit Customer’s and 
its Authorized Users’ use of the Non-Motorola Content in connection with the Products and 
Services. Customer will also obtain the necessary rights for Motorola to use such Non-Motorola 
Content in connection with providing the Products and Services, including the right for Motorola 
to access, store, and process such Non-Motorola Content (e.g., in connection with Subscription 
Software), and to otherwise enable interoperation with the Products and Services. Customer 
represents and warrants that it will obtain the foregoing rights and licenses prior to accessing, 
using, or integrating the applicable Non-Motorola Content with the Products and Services, and 
that Customer and its Authorized Users will comply with any terms and conditions applicable to 
such Non-Motorola Content. If any Non-Motorola Content require access to Customer Data (as 
defined below), Customer hereby authorizes Motorola to allow the provider of such Non-
Motorola Content to access Customer Data, in connection with the interoperation of such Non-
Motorola Content with the Products and Services. Customer acknowledges and agrees that 
Motorola is not responsible for, and makes no representations or warranties with respect to, the 
Non-Motorola Content (including any disclosure, modification, or deletion of Customer Data 
resulting from use of Non-Motorola Content or failure to properly interoperate with the Products 
and Services). If Customer receives notice that any Non-Motorola Content must be removed, 
modified, or disabled within the Products or Services, Customer will promptly do so. Motorola 
will have the right to disable or remove Non-Motorola Content if Motorola believes a violation of 
law, third-party rights, or Motorola’s policies is likely to occur, or if such Non-Motorola Content 
poses or may pose a security or other risk or adverse impact to the Products or Services, 
Motorola, Motorola’s systems, or any third party (including other Motorola customers). Nothing 
in this Section will limit the exclusions set forth in Section 7.2 – Intellectual Property 
Infringement. 

6. Representations and Warranties. 

6.1. Mutual Representations and Warranties. Each Party represents and warrants to the 
other Party that (a) it has the right to enter into the Agreement and perform its obligations 
hereunder, and (b) the Agreement will be binding on such Party. 

6.2. Motorola Warranties. Subject to the disclaimers and exclusions below, Motorola 
represents and warrants that (a) Services will be provided in a good and workmanlike manner 
and will conform in all material respects to the descriptions in the applicable Ordering 
Document; and (b) for a period of ninety (90) days commencing upon the Service Completion 
Date for one-time Services, the Services will be free of material defects in materials and 
workmanship. Other than as set forth in subsection (a) above, recurring Services are not 
warranted but rather will be subject to the requirements of the applicable Addendum or Ordering 

110



Document. Motorola provides other express warranties for Motorola-manufactured Equipment, 
Motorola-owned software Products, and certain Services. Such express warranties are included 
in the applicable Addendum or Ordering Document. Such representations and warranties will 
apply only to the applicable Product or Service that is the subject of such Addendum or 
Ordering Document.  

6.3. Warranty Claims; Remedies. To assert a warranty claim, Customer must notify Motorola 
in writing of the claim prior to the expiration of any warranty period set forth in this MCA or the 
applicable Addendum or Ordering Document. Unless a different remedy is otherwise expressly 
set forth for a particular warranty under an Addendum, upon receipt of such claim, Motorola will 
investigate the claim and use commercially reasonable efforts to repair or replace any confirmed 
materially non-conforming Product or re-perform any non-conforming Service, at its option. 
Such remedies are Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies for Motorola’s breach of a 
warranty. Motorola’s warranties are extended by Motorola to Customer only, and are not 
assignable or transferrable. 

6.4. Pass-Through Warranties. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, Motorola will have no liability for third-party software or hardware provided by 
Motorola; provided, however, that to the extent offered by third-party providers of software or 
hardware and to the extent permitted by law, Motorola will pass through express warranties 
provided by such third parties.    

6.5. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS AND PASS THROUGH 
WARRANTIES IN THIS AGREEMENT, PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PURCHASED 
HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS.  WARRANTIES SET FORTH 
IN THE AGREEMENT ARE THE COMPLETE WARRANTIES FOR THE PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES AND MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, AND QUALITY.  MOTOROLA DOES NOT 
REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT USE OF THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES WILL BE 
UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, OR FREE OF SECURITY VULNERABILITIES, OR THAT 
THEY WILL MEET CUSTOMER’S PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS. 

7. Indemnification. 

7.1. General Indemnity. Motorola will defend, indemnify, and hold Customer harmless from 
and against any and all damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable fees 
and expenses of attorneys) arising from any actual third-party claim, demand, action, or 
proceeding (“Claim”) for personal injury, death, or direct damage to tangible property to the 
extent caused by Motorola’s negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct while performing 
its duties under an Ordering Document or an Addendum, except to the extent the claim arises 
from Customer’s negligence or willful misconduct. Motorola’s duties under this Section 7.1 – 
General Indemnity are conditioned upon: (a) Customer promptly notifying Motorola in writing of 
the Claim; (b) Motorola having sole control of the defense of the suit and all negotiations for its 
settlement or compromise; and (c) Customer cooperating with Motorola and, if requested by 
Motorola, providing reasonable assistance in the defense of the Claim.  

7.2. Intellectual Property Infringement. Motorola will defend Customer against any third-party 
claim alleging that a Motorola-developed or manufactured Product or Service (the “Infringing 
Product”) directly infringes a United States patent or copyright (“Infringement Claim”), and 
Motorola will pay all damages finally awarded against Customer by a court of competent 
jurisdiction for an Infringement Claim, or agreed to in writing by Motorola in settlement of an 
Infringement Claim. Motorola’s duties under this Section 7.2 – Intellectual Property 
Infringement are conditioned upon: (a) Customer promptly notifying Motorola in writing of the 

111



Infringement Claim; (b) Motorola having sole control of the defense of the suit and all 
negotiations for its settlement or compromise; and (c) Customer cooperating with Motorola and, 
if requested by Motorola, providing reasonable assistance in the defense of the Infringement 
Claim.  

7.2.1. If an Infringement Claim occurs, or in Motorola’s opinion is likely to occur, 
Motorola may at its option and expense: (a) procure for Customer the right to 
continue using the Infringing Product; (b) replace or modify the Infringing Product 
so that it becomes non-infringing; or (c) grant Customer (i) a pro-rated refund of 
any amounts pre-paid for the Infringing Product (if the Infringing Product is a 
software Product, i.e., Licensed Software or Subscription Software) or (ii) a credit 
for the Infringing Product, less a reasonable charge for depreciation (if the 
Infringing Product is Equipment, including Equipment with embedded software).  

7.2.2. In addition to the other damages disclaimed under this Agreement, Motorola will 
have no duty to defend or indemnify Customer for any Infringement Claim that 
arises from or is based upon: (a) Customer Data, Customer-Provided Equipment, 
Non-Motorola Content, or third-party equipment, hardware, software, data, or 
other third-party materials; (b) the combination of the Product or Service with any 
products or materials not provided by Motorola; (c) a Product or Service 
designed, modified, or manufactured in accordance with Customer’s designs, 
specifications, guidelines or instructions; (d) a modification of the Product or 
Service by a party other than Motorola; (e) use of the Product or Service in a 
manner for which the Product or Service was not designed or that is inconsistent 
with the terms of this Agreement; or (f) the failure by Customer to use or install 
an update to the Product or Service that is intended to correct the claimed 
infringement. In no event will Motorola’s liability resulting from an Infringement 
Claim extend in any way to any payments due on a royalty basis, other than a 
reasonable royalty based upon revenue derived by Motorola from Customer from 
sales or license of the Infringing Product.  

7.2.3. This Section 7.2 – Intellectual Property Infringement provides Customer’s 
sole and exclusive remedies and Motorola’s entire liability in the event of an 
Infringement Claim. For clarity, the rights and remedies provided in this Section 
are subject to, and limited by, the restrictions set forth in Section 8 – Limitation 
of Liability below.  

7.3. Customer Indemnity. Customer will defend, indemnify, and hold Motorola and its 
subcontractors, subsidiaries and other affiliates harmless from and against any and all 
damages, losses, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable fees and expenses of 
attorneys) arising from any actual or threatened third-party claim, demand, action, or proceeding 
arising from or related to (a) Customer-Provided Equipment, Customer Data, or Non-Motorola 
Content, including any claim, demand, action, or proceeding alleging that any such equipment, 
data, or materials (or the integration or use thereof with the Products and Services) infringes or 
misappropriates a third-party intellectual property or other right, violates applicable law, or 
breaches the Agreement; (b) Customer-Provided Equipment’s failure to meet the minimum 
requirements set forth in the applicable Documentation or match the applicable specifications 
provided to Motorola by Customer in connection with the Products or Services; (c) Customer’s 
(or its service providers, agents, employees, or Authorized User’s) negligence or willful 
misconduct; and (d) Customer’s or its Authorized User’s breach of this Agreement. This 
indemnity will not apply to the extent any such claim is caused by Motorola’s use of Customer-
Provided Equipment, Customer Data, or Non-Motorola Content in violation of the Agreement. 
Motorola will give Customer prompt, written notice of any claim subject to the foregoing 

112



indemnity. Motorola will, at its own expense, cooperate with Customer in its defense or 
settlement of the claim. 

8. Limitation of Liability. 

8.1. DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY 
OR DEATH, MOTOROLA, ITS AFFILIATES, AND ITS AND THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, 
DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, SUCCESSORS, AND 
ASSIGNS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “MOTOROLA PARTIES”) WILL NOT BE LIABLE IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT (WHETHER UNDER MOTOROLA’S INDEMNITY 
OBLIGATIONS, A CAUSE OF ACTION FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT, UNDER TORT 
THEORY, OR OTHERWISE) FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, 
PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS OR 
REVENUES, EVEN IF MOTOROLA HAS BEEN ADVISED BY CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD 
PARTY OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES AND WHETHER OR NOT 
SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES ARE FORESEEABLE.  

8.2. DIRECT DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR PERSONAL INJURY OR DEATH, THE TOTAL 
AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF THE MOTOROLA PARTIES, WHETHER BASED ON A CLAIM IN 
CONTRACT OR IN TORT, LAW OR EQUITY, RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THE 
AGREEMENT WILL NOT EXCEED THE FEES SET FORTH IN THE ORDERING DOCUMENT 
UNDER WHICH THE CLAIM AROSE. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, FOR ANY 
SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR FOR ANY RECURRING SERVICES, THE MOTOROLA 
PARTIES’ TOTAL LIABILITY FOR ALL CLAIMS RELATED TO SUCH PRODUCT OR 
RECURRING SERVICES IN THE AGGREGATE WILL NOT EXCEED THE TOTAL FEES PAID 
FOR SUCH SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE OR RECURRING SERVICE, AS APPLICABLE, 
DURING THE CONSECUTIVE TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING 
THE EVENT FROM WHICH THE FIRST CLAIM AROSE. 

8.3. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF 
THIS AGREEMENT, MOTOROLA WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT 
OF (A) CUSTOMER DATA, INCLUDING ITS TRANSMISSION TO MOTOROLA, OR ANY 
OTHER DATA AVAILABLE THROUGH THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES; (B) CUSTOMER-
PROVIDED EQUIPMENT, NON-MOTOROLA CONTENT, THE SITES, OR THIRD-PARTY 
EQUIPMENT, HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, DATA, OR OTHER THIRD-PARTY MATERIALS, OR 
THE COMBINATION OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES WITH ANY OF THE FOREGOING; (C) 
LOSS OF DATA OR HACKING; (D) MODIFICATION OF PRODUCTS OR SERVICES BY ANY 
PERSON OTHER THAN MOTOROLA; (E) RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR BY THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES; (F) DATA RECOVERY 
SERVICES OR DATABASE MODIFICATIONS; OR (G) CUSTOMER’S OR ANY AUTHORIZED 
USER’S BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT OR MISUSE OF THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES. 

8.4. Voluntary Remedies. Motorola is not obligated to remedy, repair, replace, or refund the 
purchase price for the disclaimed issues in Section 8.3 – Additional Exclusions above, but if 
Motorola agrees to provide Services to help resolve such issues, Customer will reimburse 
Motorola for its reasonable time and expenses, including by paying Motorola any Fees set forth 
in an Ordering Document for such Services, if applicable. 

8.5. Statute of Limitations. Customer may not bring any claims against a Motorola Party in 
connection with this Agreement or the Products and Services more than one (1) year after the 
date of accrual of the cause of action.  

9. Confidentiality.  

113



9.1. Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” means any and all non-public 
information provided by one Party (“Discloser”) to the other (“Recipient”) that is disclosed 
under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, or sample form, being 
clearly designated, labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent or that a reasonable 
businessperson would consider non-public and confidential by its nature. With respect to 
Motorola, Confidential Information will also include Products and Services, and Documentation, 
as well as any other information relating to the Products and Services. The nature and existence 
of this Agreement are considered Confidential Information of the Parties. In order to be 
considered Confidential Information, information that is disclosed orally must be identified as 
confidential at the time of disclosure and confirmed by Discloser by submitting a written 
document to Recipient within thirty (30) days after such disclosure. The written document must 
contain a summary of the Confidential Information disclosed with enough specificity for 
identification purpose and must be labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent. 

9.2. Obligations of Confidentiality. During the Term and for a period of three (3) years from 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Recipient will (a) not disclose Confidential 
Information to any third party, except as expressly permitted in this Section 9 - Confidentiality; 
(b) restrict disclosure of Confidential Information to only those employees (including, employees 
of any wholly owned subsidiary, a parent company, any other wholly owned subsidiaries of the 
same parent company), agents or consultants who must access the Confidential Information for 
the purpose of, and who are bound by confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in, this 
Agreement; (c) not copy, reproduce, reverse engineer, de-compile or disassemble any 
Confidential Information; (d) use the same degree of care as for its own information of like 
importance, but at least use reasonable care, in safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential 
Information; (e) promptly notify Discloser upon discovery of any unauthorized use or disclosure 
of the Confidential Information and take reasonable steps to regain possession of the 
Confidential Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this 
Agreement; and (f) only use the Confidential Information as needed to fulfill its obligations and 
secure its rights under this Agreement.  

9.3. Exceptions. Recipient is not obligated to maintain as confidential any information that 
Recipient can demonstrate by documentation (a) is publicly available at the time of disclosure or 
becomes available to the public without breach of this Agreement; (b) is lawfully obtained from a 
third party without a duty of confidentiality to Discloser; (c) is otherwise lawfully known to 
Recipient prior to such disclosure without a duty of confidentiality to Discloser; or (d) is 
independently developed by Recipient without the use of, or reference to, any of Discloser’s 
Confidential Information or any breach of this Agreement. Additionally, Recipient may disclose 
Confidential Information to the extent required by law, including a judicial or legislative order or 
proceeding. 

9.4. Ownership of Confidential Information. All Confidential Information is and will remain the 
property of Discloser and will not be copied or reproduced without the express written 
permission of Discloser (including as permitted herein). Within ten (10) days of receipt of 
Discloser’s written request, Recipient will return or destroy all Confidential Information to 
Discloser along with all copies and portions thereof, or certify in writing that all such Confidential 
Information has been destroyed. However, Recipient may retain (a) one (1) archival copy of the 
Confidential Information for use only in case of a dispute concerning this Agreement and 
(b) Confidential Information that has been automatically stored in accordance with Recipient’s 
standard backup or recordkeeping procedures, provided, however that Recipient will remain 
subject to the obligations of this Agreement with respect to any Confidential Information retained 
subject to clauses (a) or (b). No license, express or implied, in the Confidential Information is 
granted to the Recipient other than to use the Confidential Information in the manner and to the 

114



extent authorized by this Agreement. Discloser represents and warrants that it is authorized to 
disclose any Confidential Information it discloses pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. Proprietary Rights; Data; Feedback. 

10.1. Data Definitions. The following terms will have the stated meanings: “Customer Contact 
Data” means data Motorola collects from Customer, its Authorized Users, and their end users 
for business contact purposes, including marketing, advertising, licensing and sales purposes; 
“Service Use Data” means data generated by Customer’s use of the Products and Services or 
by Motorola’s support of the Products and Services, including personal information, product 
performance and error information, activity logs and date and time of use; “Customer Data” 
means data, information, and content, including images, text, videos, documents, audio, 
telemetry, location and structured data base records, provided by, through, or on behalf of 
Customer, its Authorized Users, and their end users through the use of the Products and 
Services.  Customer Data does not include Customer Contact Data, Service Use Data, or 
information from publicly available sources or other Third-Party Data or Motorola Data; “Third-
Party Data” means information obtained by Motorola from publicly available sources or its third 
party content providers and made available to Customer through the Products or Services; 
“Motorola Data” means data owned or licensed by Motorola; “Feedback” means comments or 
information, in oral or written form, given to Motorola by Customer or Authorized Users, 
including their end users, in connection with or relating to the Products or Services; and 
“Process” or “Processing” means any operation or set of operations which is performed on 
personal information or on sets of personal information, whether or not by automated means, 
such as collection, recording, copying, analyzing, caching, organization, structuring, storage, 
adaptation, or alteration, retrieval, consultation, use, disclosure by transmission, dissemination 
or otherwise making available, alignment or combination, restriction, erasure or destruction. 

10.2. Motorola Materials. Customer acknowledges that Motorola may use or provide Customer 
with access to software, tools, data, and other materials, including designs, utilities, models, 
methodologies, systems, and specifications, which Motorola has developed or licensed from 
third parties (including any corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates, modifications, 
adaptations, translations, de-compilations, disassemblies, or derivative works of the foregoing, 
whether made by Motorola or another party) (collectively, “Motorola Materials”). The Products 
and Services, Motorola Data, Third-Party Data, and Documentation, are considered Motorola 
Materials. Except when Motorola has expressly transferred title or other interest to Customer by 
way of an Addendum or Ordering Document, the Motorola Materials are the property of 
Motorola or its licensors, and Motorola or its licensors retain all right, title and interest in and to 
the Motorola Materials (including, all rights in patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, 
trade secrets, know-how, other intellectual property and proprietary rights, and all associated 
goodwill and moral rights). For clarity, this Agreement does not grant to Customer any shared 
development rights in or to any Motorola Materials or other intellectual property, and Customer 
agrees to execute any documents and take any other actions reasonably requested by Motorola 
to effectuate the foregoing. Motorola and its licensors reserve all rights not expressly granted to 
Customer, and no rights, other than those expressly granted herein, are granted to Customer by 
implication, estoppel or otherwise. Customer will not modify, disassemble, reverse engineer, 
derive source code or create derivative works from, merge with other software, distribute, 
sublicense, sell, or export the Products and Services or other Motorola Materials, or permit any 
third party to do so. 

10.3. Ownership of Customer Data. Customer retains all right, title and interest, including 
intellectual property rights, if any, in and to Customer Data. Motorola acquires no rights to 
Customer Data except those rights granted under this Agreement including the right to Process 
and use the Customer Data as set forth in Section 10.4 – Processing Customer Data below 
and in other applicable Addenda. The Parties agree that with regard to the Processing of 

115



personal information which may be part of Customer Data, Customer is the controller and 
Motorola is the processor, and may engage sub-processors pursuant to Section 10.4.3 – Sub-
processors.    

10.4. Processing Customer Data.   

10.4.1. Motorola Use of Customer Data. To the extent permitted by law, Customer grants 
Motorola and its subcontractors a right to use Customer Data and a royalty-free, 
worldwide, non-exclusive license to use Customer Data (including to process, 
host, cache, store, reproduce, copy, modify, combine, analyze, create derivative 
works from such Customer Data and to communicate, transmit, and distribute 
such Customer Data to third parties engaged by Motorola) to (a) perform 
Services and provide Products under the Agreement, (b) analyze the Customer 
Data to operate, maintain, manage, and improve Motorola Products and 
Services, and (c) create new products and services. Customer agrees that this 
Agreement, along with the Documentation, are Customer’s complete and final 
documented instructions to Motorola for the processing of Customer Data. Any 
additional or alternate instructions must be agreed to according to the Change 
Order process. Customer represents and warrants to Motorola that Customer’s 
instructions, including appointment of Motorola as a processor or sub-processor, 
have been authorized by the relevant controller.   

10.4.2. Collection, Creation, Use of Customer Data. Customer further represents and 
warrants that the Customer Data, Customer’s collection, creation, and use of the 
Customer Data (including in connection with Motorola’s Products and Services), 
and Motorola’s use of such Customer Data in accordance with the Agreement, 
will not violate any laws or applicable privacy notices or infringe any third-party 
rights (including intellectual property and privacy rights). Customer also 
represents and warrants that the Customer Data will be accurate and complete, 
and that Customer has obtained all required consents, provided all necessary 
notices, and met any other applicable legal requirements with respect to 
collection and use (including Motorola’s and its subcontractors’ use) of the 
Customer Data as described in the Agreement. 

10.4.3. Sub-processors. Customer agrees that Motorola may engage sub-processors 
who in turn may engage additional sub-processors to Process personal data in 
accordance with this Agreement. When engaging sub-processors, Motorola will 
enter into agreements with the sub-processors to bind them to data processing 
obligations to the extent required by law.   

10.5. Data Retention and Deletion.  Except for anonymized Customer Data, as described 
above, or as otherwise provided under the Agreement, Motorola will delete all Customer Data 
following termination or expiration of this MCA or the applicable Addendum or Ordering 
Document, with such deletion to occur no later than ninety (90) days following the applicable 
date of termination or expiration, unless otherwise required to comply with applicable law. Any 
requests for the exportation or download of Customer Data must be made by Customer to 
Motorola in writing before expiration or termination, subject to Section 13.9 – Notices. Motorola 
will have no obligation to retain such Customer Data beyond expiration or termination unless the 
Customer has purchased extended storage from Motorola through a mutually executed 
Ordering Document. 

10.6. Service Use Data.  Customer understands and agrees that Motorola may collect and use 
Service Use Data for its own purposes, including the uses described below.  Motorola may use 
Service Use Data to (a) operate, maintain, manage, and improve existing and create new 

116



products and services, (b) test products and services, (c) to aggregate Service Use Data and 
combine it with that of other users, and (d) to use anonymized or aggregated data for marketing, 
research or other business purposes. Service Use Data may be disclosed to third parties.  It is 
Customer’s responsibility to notify Authorized Users of Motorola’s collection and use of Service 
Use Data and to obtain any required consents, provide all necessary notices, and meet any 
other applicable legal requirements with respect to such collection and use, and Customer 
represents and warrants to Motorola that it has complied and will continue to comply with this 
Section. 

10.7. Third-Party Data and Motorola Data. Motorola Data and Third-Party Data may be 
available to Customer through the Products and Services. Customer and its Authorized Users 
may use Motorola Data and Third-Party Data as permitted by Motorola and the applicable Third-
Party Data provider, as described in the applicable Addendum. Unless expressly permitted in 
the applicable Addendum, Customer will not, and will ensure its Authorized Users will not: (a) 
use the Motorola Data or Third-Party Data for any purpose other than Customer’s internal 
business purposes; (b) disclose the data to third parties; (c) “white label” such data or otherwise 
misrepresent its source or ownership, or resell, distribute, sublicense, or commercially exploit 
the data in any manner; (d) use such data in violation of applicable laws; (e) remove, obscure, 
alter, or falsify any marks or proprietary rights notices indicating the source, origin, or ownership 
of the data; or (f) modify such data or combine it with Customer Data or other data or use the 
data to build databases. Additional restrictions may be set forth in the applicable Addendum. 
Any rights granted to Customer or Authorized Users with respect to Motorola Data or Third-
Party Data will immediately terminate upon termination or expiration of the applicable 
Addendum, Ordering Document, or this MCA. Further, Motorola or the applicable Third-Party 
Data provider may suspend, change, or terminate Customer’s or any Authorized User’s access 
to Motorola Data or Third-Party Data if Motorola or such Third-Party Data provider believes 
Customer’s or the Authorized User’s use of the data violates the Agreement, applicable law or 
Motorola’s agreement with the applicable Third-Party Data provider. Upon termination of 
Customer’s rights to use any Motorola Data or Third-Party Data, Customer and all Authorized 
Users will immediately discontinue use of such data, delete all copies of such data, and certify 
such deletion to Motorola. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement to the contrary, 
Motorola will have no liability for Third-Party Data or Motorola Data available through the 
Products and Services. Motorola and its Third-Party Data providers reserve all rights in and to 
Motorola Data and Third-Party Data not expressly granted in an Addendum or Ordering 
Document.  

10.8. Feedback. Any Feedback provided by Customer is entirely voluntary, and will not create 
any confidentiality obligation for Motorola, even if designated as confidential by Customer.  
Motorola may use, reproduce, license, and otherwise distribute and exploit the Feedback 
without any obligation or payment to Customer or Authorized Users and Customer represents 
and warrants that it has obtained all necessary rights and consents to grant Motorola the 
foregoing rights. 

10.9. Improvements; Products and Services. The Parties agree that, notwithstanding any 
provision of this MCA or the Agreement to the contrary, all fixes, modifications and 
improvements to the Services or Products conceived of or made by or on behalf of Motorola that 
are based either in whole or in part on the Feedback, Customer Data, or Service Use Data (or 
otherwise) are the exclusive property of Motorola and all right, title and interest in and to such 
fixes, modifications or improvements will vest solely in Motorola.  Customer agrees to execute 
any written documents necessary to assign any intellectual property or other rights it may have 
in such fixes, modifications or improvements to Motorola. 

11. Force Majeure; Delays Caused by Customer. 

117



11.1. Force Majeure. Except for Customer’s payment obligations hereunder, neither Party will 
be responsible for nonperformance or delayed performance due to events outside of its 
reasonable control. If performance will be significantly delayed, the affected Party will provide 
notice to the other Party, and the Parties will agree (in writing) upon a reasonable extension to 
any applicable performance schedule. 

11.2. Delays Caused by Customer. Motorola’s performance of the Products and Services will 
be excused for delays caused by Customer or its Authorized Users or subcontractors, or by 
failure of any assumptions set forth in this Agreement (including in any Addendum or Ordering 
Document). In the event of a delay under this Section 11.2 – Delays Caused by Customer, (a) 
Customer will continue to pay the Fees as required hereunder, (b) the Parties will agree (in 
writing) upon a reasonable extension to any applicable performance schedule, and (c) 
Customer will compensate Motorola for its out-of-pocket costs incurred due to the delay 
(including those incurred by Motorola’s affiliates, vendors, and subcontractors).  

12. Disputes. The Parties will use the following procedure to resolve any disputes relating to 
or arising out of this Agreement (each, a “Dispute”): 

12.1. Governing Law. All matters relating to or arising out of the Agreement are governed by 
the laws of the State of Illinois, unless Customer is the United States Government (or an agency 
thereof), in which case all matters relating to or arising out of the Agreement will be governed by 
the laws of the State in which the Products and Services are provided. The terms of the U.N. 
Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods and the Uniform Computer 
Information Transactions Act will not apply. 

12.2. Negotiation; Mediation. Either Party may initiate dispute resolution procedures by 
sending a notice of Dispute (“Notice of Dispute”) to the other Party. The Parties will attempt to 
resolve the Dispute promptly through good faith negotiations, including timely escalation of the 
Dispute to executives who have authority to settle the Dispute (and who are at a higher level of 
management than the persons with direct responsibility for the matter). If a Dispute is not 
resolved through negotiation, either Party may initiate mediation by sending a notice of 
mediation (“Notice of Mediation”) to the other Party. The Parties will choose an independent 
mediator within thirty (30) days of such Notice of Mediation. Neither Party may unreasonably 
withhold consent to the selection of a mediator, but if the Parties are unable to agree upon a 
mediator, either Party may request that the American Arbitration Association nominate a 
mediator. Each Party will bear its own costs of mediation, but the Parties will share the cost of 
the mediator equally. Each Party will participate in the mediation in good faith and will be 
represented at the mediation by a business executive with authority to settle the Dispute. All in 
person meetings under this Section 12.2 – Negotiation; Mediation will take place in Chicago, 
Illinois, and all communication relating to the Dispute resolution will be maintained in strict 
confidence by the Parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Dispute arising from or relating to 
Motorola’s intellectual property rights will not be subject to negotiation or mediation in 
accordance with this Section, but instead will be decided by a court of competent jurisdiction, in 
accordance with Section 12.3 – Litigation, Venue, Jurisdiction below. 

12.3. Litigation, Venue, Jurisdiction. If the Dispute has not been resolved by mediation within 
sixty (60) days from the Notice of Mediation, either Party may submit the Dispute exclusively to 
a court in Cook County, Illinois. Each Party expressly consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of 
such courts for resolution of any Dispute and to enforce the outcome of any mediation.  

13. General. 

13.1. Compliance with Laws.  Each Party will comply with applicable laws in connection with 
the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including that Customer will ensure its 

118



and its Authorized Users’ use of the Products and Services complies with law (including privacy 
laws), and Customer will obtain any FCC and other licenses or authorizations (including 
licenses or authorizations required by foreign regulatory bodies) required for its and its 
Authorized Users’ use of the Products and Services. Motorola may, at its discretion, cease 
providing or otherwise modify Products and Services (or any terms related thereto in an 
Addendum or Ordering Document), in order to comply with any changes in applicable law. 

13.2. Audit; Monitoring. Motorola will have the right to monitor and audit use of the Products, 
which may also include access by Motorola to Customer Data and Service Use Data. Customer 
will provide notice of such monitoring to its Authorized Users and obtain any required consents, 
including individual end users, and will cooperate with Motorola in any monitoring or audit. 
Customer will maintain during the Term, and for two (2) years thereafter, accurate records 
relating to any software licenses granted under this Agreement to verify compliance with this 
Agreement. Motorola or a third party (“Auditor”) may inspect Customer’s and, as applicable, 
Authorized Users’ premises, books, and records. Motorola will pay expenses and costs of the 
Auditor, unless Customer is found to be in violation of the terms of the Agreement, in which 
case Customer will be responsible for such expenses and costs. 

13.3. Assignment and Subcontracting. Neither Party may assign or otherwise transfer this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other Party. Motorola may assign or 
otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement 
without consent (a) for financing purposes, (b) in connection with a merger, acquisition or sale of 
all or substantially all of its assets, (c) as part of a corporate reorganization, or (d) to a 
subsidiary corporation. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement will be binding upon the Parties 
and their respective successors and assigns. 

13.4. Waiver. A delay or omission by either Party to exercise any right under this Agreement 
will not be construed to be a waiver of such right.  A waiver by either Party of any of the 
obligations to be performed by the other, or any breach thereof, will not be construed to be a 
waiver of any succeeding breach or of any other obligation. All waivers must be in writing and 
signed by the Party waiving its rights. 

13.5. Severability. If any provision of the Agreement is found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, such provision will be deemed to be 
modified to reflect as nearly as possible the original intentions of the Parties in accordance with 
applicable law. The remaining provisions of this Agreement will not be affected, and each such 
provision will be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by applicable law. 

13.6. Independent Contractors. Each Party will perform its duties under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor. The Parties and their personnel will not be considered to be employees 
or agents of the other Party. Nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted as granting either 
Party the right or authority to make commitments of any kind for the other. This Agreement will 
not constitute, create, or be interpreted as a joint venture, partnership, or formal business 
organization of any kind. 

13.7. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is entered into solely between, and may be 
enforced only by, the Parties. Each Party intends that the Agreement will not benefit, or create 
any right or cause of action in or on behalf of, any entity other than the Parties. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, a licensor or supplier of third-party software included in the software Products will 
be a direct and intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement. 

13.8. Interpretation. The section headings in this Agreement are included only for convenience 
The words “including” and “include” will be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without 

119



limitation”. This Agreement will be fairly interpreted in accordance with its terms and conditions 
and not for or against either Party. 

13.9. Notices. Notices required under this Agreement to be given by one Party to the other 
must be in writing and either personally delivered or sent to the address provided by the other 
Party by certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid (or by a recognized courier 
service, such as FedEx, UPS, or DHL), and will be effective upon receipt. 

13.10. Cumulative Remedies.  Except as specifically stated in this Agreement, all remedies 
provided for in this Agreement will be cumulative and in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other 
remedies available to either Party at law, in equity, by contract, or otherwise.  Except as 
specifically stated in this Agreement, the election by a Party of any remedy provided for in this 
Agreement or otherwise available to such Party will not preclude such Party from pursuing any 
other remedies available to such Party at law, in equity, by contract, or otherwise. 

13.11. Survival. The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason: Section 2.4 – Customer Obligations; Section 3.4 – Effect of 
Termination or Expiration; Section 4 – Payment and Invoicing; Section 6.5 – Warranty 
Disclaimer; Section 7.3 – Customer Indemnity; Section 8 – Limitation of Liability; Section 
9 – Confidentiality; Section 10 – Proprietary Rights; Data; Feedback; Section 11 – Force 
Majeure; Delays Caused by Customer; Section 12 – Disputes; and Section 13 – General. 

13.12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including all Addenda and Ordering Documents, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject matter hereto, and 
supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings, whether written or oral, 
relating to this subject matter. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and 
will have the same legal force and effect as if the Parties had executed it as a single document. 
The Parties may sign in writing or by electronic signature. An electronic signature, facsimile 
copy, or computer image of a signature, will be treated, and will have the same effect as an 
original signature, and will have the same effect, as an original signed copy of this document. 
This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized 
representatives of both Parties. The preprinted terms and conditions found on any Customer 
purchase order, acknowledgment, or other form will not be considered an amendment or 
modification or part of this Agreement, even if a representative of each Party signs such 
document. 

The Parties hereby enter into this MCA as of the Effective Date. 

Motorola: Motorola Solutions, Inc.  Customer: [___________]   

By: ______________________________   By: ______________________________ 

Name: ___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 

Title: ____________________________    Title: _____________________________ 

Date: ____________________________   Date: ____________________________ 

  

120



Exhibit A 

H-GAC Contract No. EC07-20 

121



Communications Systems Addendum 

This Communications Systems Addendum (this “CSA”) is entered into between Motorola 
Solutions, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 60661 
(“Motorola”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below or in the MCA (“Customer”), 
and will be subject to, and governed by, the terms of the Master Customer Agreement entered 
into between the Parties, effective as of [________] (the “MCA”), and the applicable Addenda. 
Capitalized terms used in this CSA, but not defined herein, will have the meanings set forth in 
the MCA or the applicable Addenda. 

1. Addendum. This CSA governs Customer’s purchase of certain Motorola radio Products, 
including Communications Systems, and will form part of the Parties’ Agreement. A 
“Communications System” is a solution that includes at least one radio Product, whether 
devices, software, or infrastructure, and requires Integration Services to deploy such radio 
Product at a Customer Site or onto any Customer-Provided Equipment or Equipment provided 
to Customer. In addition to the MCA, other Addenda may be applicable to the Communications 
System or other software Products, including the Equipment Purchase and Software License 
Addendum (“EPSLA”), with respect to Licensed Software and Equipment, and the Subscription 
Software Addendum (“SSA”), with respect to Subscription Software, as further described below. 
This CSA will control with respect to conflicting or ambiguous terms in the MCA or any other 
applicable Addendum, but only as applicable to the Communications System or other software 
Products purchased under this CSA and not with respect to other Products and Services. 

2. Communications Systems; Applicable Terms and Conditions. 

2.1. Communications System. If Customer purchases a Communications System, then, 
unless the Ordering Document(s) specify that any software is being purchased on a subscription 
basis (i.e., as Subscription Software), such Equipment and Licensed Software installed at 
Customer Sites, including on devices sold to Customer by Motorola or on Customer-Provided 
Equipment, are subject to the EPSLA. Communications Systems described in this Section 
qualify for the System Warranty as described in Section 5.2 – Communications System 
Warranty (the “System Warranty”).  In connection with a Communications System, Customer 
may also purchase additional Subscription Software that integrates with its Communications 
System (e.g., Critical Connect) (each, an “Add-On Subscription”). Any Add-On Subscription 
will be subject to the terms and conditions of the SSA and excluded from the System Warranty. 

2.2. Services.  

2.2.1. Any Integration Services or Maintenance and Support Services purchased in 
connection with, or included as a part of, a Communications System are subject to the 
MCA, and as described in the applicable Ordering Document.   

2.2.2. During the Warranty Period, in addition to warranty services, Motorola will 
provide Maintenance and Support Services for the Equipment and support for the 
Motorola Licensed Software pursuant to the applicable maintenance and support 
Ordering Document.  Support for the Motorola Licensed Software will be in accordance 
with Motorola's established Software Support Policy (“SwSP”).  Copies of the SwSP can 
be found at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/software_policy.pdf 
and will be sent by mail, email or fax to Customer upon written request. If Customer 
wishes to purchase (a) additional Maintenance and Support Services during the 
Warranty Period; or (b) continue or expand maintenance, software support, installation, 
and/or Motorola’s Lifecycle Management Services (“LMS”) after the Warranty Period, 

122

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/software_policy.pdf


Motorola will provide the description of and pricing for such services in a separate 
proposal document and such terms will be agreed upon in an Ordering Document.   
Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the terms and conditions in this 
Agreement applicable to maintenance, support, installation, and/or LMS, will be included 
in the Maintenance and Support Addendum, LMS Addendum, the applicable Ordering 
Documents, and the proposal (if applicable). These collective terms will govern the 
provision of such Services.  

2.2.3. To obtain any additional Services, Customer will issue a purchase order referring 
to this Agreement and the separate proposal document.  Omission of reference to this 
Agreement in Customer’s purchase order will not affect the applicability of this 
Agreement. Motorola’s proposal may include a cover page entitled “Service Agreement” 
or “Installation Agreement”, as applicable, and other attachments. These cover pages 
and other attachments are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 

3. Communications System Acceptance.  

3.1. Acceptance.  Any Communications System described in an Ordering Document 
hereunder (including the Products, Integration Services, and all other components thereof) will 
be deemed completed upon successful completion of the acceptance procedures (“Acceptance 
Tests”) set forth in the Acceptance Test Plan attached as Exhibit B-4 – Acceptance Test Plan 
hereto (“System Acceptance”).  Motorola will notify Customer at least ten (10) days before the 
Communications System testing commences. Upon System Acceptance, the Parties will 
memorialize this event by promptly executing a certificate documenting such System 
Acceptance as set forth in Exhibit C.  If the Acceptance Test Plan includes separate tests for 
individual sub-Systems or phases of the Communications System, acceptance of the individual 
sub-System or phase will occur upon the successful completion of the Acceptance Tests for the 
sub-Communications System or phase, and the Parties will promptly execute an acceptance 
certificate for the sub-Communications System or phase.  If Customer believes the 
Communications System has failed the completed Acceptance Tests, Customer will provide to 
Motorola a written notice that includes the specific details of the failure.  If Customer does not 
provide to Motorola a failure notice within thirty (30) days after completion of the Acceptance 
Tests, System Acceptance will be deemed to have occurred as of the completion of the 
Acceptance Tests.  Minor omissions or variances in the Communications System that do not 
materially impair the operation of the Communications System as a whole will not postpone 
System Acceptance or sub-Communications System acceptance, but will be corrected 
according to a mutually agreed punch list schedule. This Section applies to Products purchased 
as part of a Communications System notwithstanding the delivery provisions of the Addendum 
applicable to such Products, such as the SSA or EPSLA, and this Section will control over such 
other delivery provisions to the extent of a conflict. 

3.2. Beneficial Use.  Customer acknowledges that Motorola’s ability to perform its 
implementation and testing responsibilities may be impeded if Customer begins using the 
Communications System before System Acceptance.  Therefore, Customer will not commence 
using the system before System Acceptance without Motorola’s prior written authorization, 
which will not be unreasonably withheld. Motorola is not responsible for Communications 
System performance deficiencies that occur prior to System Acceptance or use of the 
Communications System is otherwise authorized in writing by Motorola. Upon such date that 
Customer begins using the Communications System, Customer assumes responsibility for the 
use and operation of the Communications System. 

4. Payment.  Customer will pay invoices for the Products and Services covered by this 
CSA in accordance with the invoice payment terms set forth in the MCA. Additional payment 
terms are set forth hereto in Exhibit A – Payment. 

123



5. Warranty. 

5.1. Radio Products Warranty.  The warranties applicable to Motorola-manufactured 
Equipment set forth in Section 6 – Representations and Warranties; Liabilities of the EPSLA 
shall be applicable to all radio Equipment purchased hereunder whether or not such Equipment 
was manufactured by Motorola. 

5.2. Communications System Warranty.  Subject to the disclaimers in the MCA and any other 
applicable Addenda, Motorola represents and warrants that, on the date of System Acceptance, 
(a) such Communications System will perform in accordance with the descriptions in the 
applicable Ordering Documents in all material respects, and (b) if Customer has purchased any 
Equipment or Motorola Licensed Software (but, for clarity, excluding Subscription Software) as 
part of such on-Communications System, the warranty period applicable to such Equipment and 
Motorola Licensed Software will continue for a period of one (1) year commencing upon System 
Acceptance (the “Warranty Period”) instead of commencing upon delivery of the Products in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Section 6 – Representations and 
Warranties; Liabilities of the EPSLA. The warranties set forth in the applicable Addenda are 
not otherwise modified by this CSA. 

6. Additional Equipment or Software with a Communications System.  Following the 
date of System Acceptance, Customer may order additional Equipment or Software that is 
intended for use with the Communications System for an additional three (3) years, if it is then 
available.  Each purchase order must refer to the Agreement, and must specify the pricing and 
delivery terms. 

7. Broadband Enabled Devices. The terms set forth in this Section 7 – Broadband 
Enabled Devices apply to broadband-enabled devices. 

7.1. Subscription Services.  Customer’s purchase of any broadband-enabled radio devices, 
such as ApxNext radios, includes certain Subscription Software all of which are subject to the 
SSA.  Customer’s purchase of any such broadband enable devices may include an initial or trial 
subscription to the Subscription Software included with purchase of the device; following 
expiration of such initial or trial term, Customer must purchase a subscription for continued use 
of such Subscription Software. 

7.2. Flow-Down Terms.  Additional license terms apply to third-party broadband services 
purchased in connection with a broadband enable Communications System, which are available 
online at: https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/legal/motorola-solutions-customer-
terms/flow-down-terms.html Customer will comply, and ensure its Authorized Users comply, 
with all such additional license terms. 

8. Critical Connect.  The terms set forth in this Section 8 – Critical Connect apply to 
Motorola’s Critical Connect Product. Motorola’s Critical Connect Product is Subscription 
Software, and any purchase of such Product will be subject to the SSA.  

8.1. Term.  Notwithstanding the SSA, the Initial Subscription Period of the Critical Connect 
service shall be for a period of three (3) years from the date of delivery.  Renewal Subscription 
Years shall be for subsequent three (3) year periods rather than twelve (12) month periods as 
set forth in the Section 4 – Term of the SSA, with such renewals to automatically occur unless 
one party notifies the other Party of its intent not to renew at least thirty (30) days before the 
conclusion of the then-current Subscription Term.  

8.2. Cancellation Fees.  If Customer terminates the Critical Connect subscription prior to the 
end of the then-current Subscription Term, Customer will be obligated to pay a cancellation fee 

124

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/legal/motorola-solutions-customer-terms/flow-down-terms.html
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/legal/motorola-solutions-customer-terms/flow-down-terms.html


of fifty percent (50%) of the remaining three (3) year Initial Subscription Period or Renewal 
Subscription Year at list price. 

8.3. Service Tiers.  Customer can upgrade the Critical Connect Subscription Software to 
higher tiers or downgrade to a lower tier. Additionally, Customer can stack multiple tiers together 
(additional setup fees may be required if upgrading to higher capacity levels). When Customer 
performs a tier upgrade or downgrade, the Subscription Term will be reset and a new three (3) 
year Initial Subscription Period will commence. 

8.4. Port Restrictions.  The Motorola on-premise gateway utilizes an ISSI connection and 
port. This connection is to be used only by the Motorola on-premise gateway in accordance with 
this service. Use of this ISSI connection and port with any other non-approved gateway is 
strictly prohibited.  

9. Transport Connectivity Services.  Certain Communications Systems may include one 
or more transport connectivity services as specified in the Ordering Document.  In additions to 
the terms of this CSA, transport connectivity services shall also be governed by the terms of 
Motorola’s standard Transport Connectivity Addendum. 

10. Attachments. In the case of any Communications System sale, the Exhibits listed below 
will be attached hereto and incorporated into and made a part of this CSA:  

Exhibit A     “Payment” 
Exhibit B     Technical and Implementation Documents 

B-1 “System Description” dated _______________ 
B-2 “Pricing Summary & Equipment List” dated _______________ 
B-3    “Implementation Statement of Work” dated _______________ 
B-4    “Acceptance Test Plan” or “ATP” dated _______________ 
B-5    “Performance Schedule” dated _______________ 

Exhibit C     “System Acceptance Certificate” 

11. Survival. The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this CSA 
for any reason: Section 1 – Addendum; Section 2 – Communications Systems; Applicable 
Terms and Conditions; Section 7 – Broadband Services; Section 8 – Critical Connect; 
Section 11– Survival.  

125



Equipment Purchase and Software License Addendum 

This Equipment Purchase and Software License Addendum (this “EPSLA”) is entered into 
between Motorola Solutions, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 
60661 (“Motorola”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below or in the MCA 
(“Customer”), and will be subject to, and governed by, the terms of the Master Customer 
Agreement entered into between the Parties, effective as of [________] (the “MCA”). 
Capitalized terms used in this EPSLA, but not defined herein, will have the meanings set forth in 
the MCA. 

1. Addendum. This EPSLA governs Customer’s purchase of Equipment and license of 
Licensed Software (and, if set forth in an Ordering Document, related Services) from Motorola, 
and will form part of the Parties’ Agreement.  

2. Delivery of Equipment and Licensed Software. 

2.1. Delivery and Risk of Loss. Motorola will provide to Customer the Products (and, if 
applicable, related Services) set forth in an Ordering Document, in accordance with the terms of 
the Agreement. Motorola will, using commercially reasonable practices, pack the ordered 
Equipment and ship such Equipment to the Customer address set forth in the applicable 
Ordering Document or otherwise provided by Customer in writing, using a carrier selected by 
Motorola. Notwithstanding the foregoing, delivery of Equipment (and any incorporated Licensed 
Software) will occur, and title and risk of loss for the Equipment will pass to Customer, upon 
shipment by Motorola in accordance with Ex Works, Motorola’s premises (Incoterms 2020). 
Customer will pay all shipping costs, taxes, and other charges applicable to the shipment and 
import or export of the Products and Services, as applicable, and Customer will be responsible 
for reporting the Products for personal property tax purposes. Delivery of Licensed Software for 
installation on Equipment or Customer-Provided Equipment will occur upon the earlier of (a) 
electronic delivery of the Licensed Software by Motorola, and (b) the date Motorola otherwise 
makes the Licensed Software available for download by Customer. If agreed upon in an 
Ordering Document, Motorola will also provide Services related to such Products.  

2.2. Delays. Any shipping dates set forth in an Ordering Document are approximate, and 
while Motorola will make reasonable efforts to ship Products by any such estimated shipping 
date, Motorola will not be liable for any delay or related damages to Customer. Time for delivery 
will not be of the essence, and delays will not constitute grounds for cancellation, penalties, 
termination, or a refund. 

2.3. Beta Services. If Motorola makes any beta version of a software application (“Beta 
Service”) available to Customer, Customer may choose to use such Beta Service at its own 
discretion, provided, however, that Customer will use the Beta Service solely for purposes of 
Customer’s evaluation of such Beta Service, and for no other purpose. Customer acknowledges 
and agrees that all Beta Services are offered “as-is” and without any representations or 
warranties or other commitments or protections from Motorola. Motorola will determine the 
duration of the evaluation period for any Beta Service, in its sole discretion, and Motorola may 
discontinue any Beta Service at any time. Customer acknowledges that Beta Services, by their 
nature, have not been fully tested and may contain defects or deficiencies. 

3. Licensed Software License and Restrictions. 

3.1. Licensed Software License. Subject to Customer’s and its Authorized Users’ compliance 
with the Agreement (including payment terms), Motorola hereby grants Customer and its 
Authorized Users a limited, non-transferable, non-sublicenseable, and non-exclusive license to 

126



use the Licensed Software identified in an Ordering Document, in object code form only, and the 
associated Documentation, solely in connection with the Equipment provided by Motorola or 
authorized Customer-Provided Equipment (as applicable, the “Designated Products”) and 
solely for Customer’s internal business purposes. Unless otherwise stated in an Addendum or 
the Ordering Document, the foregoing license grant will be limited to the number of licenses set 
forth in the applicable Ordering Document and will continue for the life of the applicable 
Designated Product. Except as otherwise permitted in an applicable Addendum or Ordering 
Document, Customer may install, access, and use Licensed Software only in Customer’s owned 
or controlled facilities, including any authorized mobile sites; provided, however, that Authorized 
Users using authorized mobile or handheld devices may also log into and access the Licensed 
Software remotely from any location.  

3.2. Subscription License Model. If the Parties mutually agree that any Licensed Software 
purchased under this EPSLA will be replaced with or upgraded to Subscription Software, then 
upon such time which the Parties execute the applicable Ordering Document, the licenses 
granted under this EPSLA will automatically terminate, and such Subscription Software will be 
governed by the terms of the applicable Addendum under this Agreement. 

3.3. Customer Restrictions. Customers and Authorized Users will comply with the applicable 
Documentation in connection with their use of the Products. Customer will not and will not allow 
others, including the Authorized Users, to: (a) make the Licensed Software available for use by 
unauthorized third parties, including via a commercial rental or sharing arrangement; (b) reverse 
engineer, disassemble, or reprogram the Licensed Software or any portion thereof to a human-
readable form; (c) modify, create derivative works of, or merge the Licensed Software with other 
software or equipment; (d) copy, reproduce, distribute, lend, lease, or transfer the Licensed 
Software or Documentation for or to any third party without the prior express written permission 
of Motorola; (e) take any action that would cause the Licensed Software or Documentation to be 
placed in the public domain; (f) use the Licensed Software to compete with Motorola; or (g) 
remove, alter, or obscure, any copyright or other notice.  

3.4. Copies. Customer may make one (1) copy of the Licensed Software solely for archival, 
back-up, or disaster recovery purposes during the term of the applicable Licensed Software 
license. Customer may make as many copies of the Documentation reasonably required for the 
internal use of the Licensed Software during such Licensed Software’s license term. Unless 
otherwise authorized by Motorola in writing, Customer will not, and will not enable or allow any 
third party to: (a) install a licensed copy of the Licensed Software on more than one (1) unit of a 
Designated Product; or (b) copy onto or transfer Licensed Software installed in a unit of a 
Designated Product onto another device.  Customer may temporarily transfer Licensed 
Software installed on a Designated Product to another device if the Designated Product is 
inoperable or malfunctioning, if Customer provides written notice to Motorola of the temporary 
transfer and identifies the device on which the Licensed  is transferred.  Temporary transfer of 
the Licensed Software to another device must be discontinued when the original Designated 
Product is returned to operation and the Licensed Software must be removed from the other 
device.  Customer must provide prompt written notice to Motorola at the time temporary transfer 
is discontinued. 

3.5. Resale of Equipment. Equipment contains embedded Licensed Software. If Customer 
desires to sell its used Equipment to a third party, Customer must first receive prior written 
authorization from Motorola and obtain written acceptance of the applicable Licensed Software 
license terms, including the obligation to pay relevant license fees, from such third party.  

127



4. Term.  

4.1. Term. The term of this EPSLA (the “EPSLA Term”) will commence upon either (a) the 
Effective Date of the MCA, if this EPSLA is attached to the MCA as of such Effective Date, or 
(b) the EPSLA Date set forth on the signature page below, if this EPSLA is executed after the 
MCA Effective Date, and will continue until the later of (i) three (3) years after the first order for 
Products is placed via an Ordering Document, or (ii) the expiration of all applicable warranty 
periods (as set forth in Section 6.1 – Motorola Warranties below) under this EPSLA, unless 
this EPSLA or the Agreement is earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement.  

4.2. Termination. Notwithstanding the termination provisions of the MCA, Motorola may 
terminate this EPSLA (and any Ordering Documents hereunder) immediately upon notice to 
Customer if Customer breaches Section 3 – Licensed Software License and Restrictions of 
this EPSLA, or any other provision related to Licensed Software license scope or restrictions set 
forth in an Ordering Document, EULA, or other applicable Addendum. For clarity, upon 
termination or expiration of the EPSLA Term, all Motorola obligations under this EPSLA 
(including with respect to Equipment and Licensed Software delivered hereunder) will terminate. 
If Customer desires to purchase additional Services in connection with such Equipment or 
Licensed Software, Customer may enter into a separate Addendum with Motorola, governing 
such Services. Customer acknowledges that Motorola made a considerable investment of 
resources in the development, marketing, and distribution of the Licensed Software and 
Documentation, and that Customer’s breach of the Agreement will result in irreparable harm to 
Motorola for which monetary damages would be inadequate. If Licensee breaches this 
Agreement, in addition to termination, Motorola will be entitled to all available remedies at law or 
in equity, including immediate injunctive relief and repossession of all non-embedded Licensed 
Software and associated Documentation. 

4.3. Equipment as a Service. In the event that Customer purchases any Equipment at a price 
below the MSRP for such Equipment in connection Customer entering into a fixed- or minimum 
required-term agreement for Subscription Software, and Customer or Motorola terminates the 
Agreement, this EPSLA, or other applicable Addendum (such as the Addendum governing the 
purchase of such Subscription Software) prior to the expiration of such fixed- or minimum 
required-term, then Motorola will have the right to invoice Customer for, and Customer will pay, 
the amount of the discount to  the MSRP for the Equipment or such other amount set forth in the 
applicable Addendum or Ordering Document. This Section will not limit any other remedies 
Motorola may have with respect to an early termination. 

5. Payment. Customer will pay invoices for the Products and Services provided under this 
EPSLA in accordance with the invoice payment terms set forth in the MCA. Generally, invoices 
are issued after shipment of Equipment or upon Motorola’s delivery of Licensed Software (in 
accordance with Section 2.1 – Delivery and Risk of Loss), as applicable, but if a specific 
invoicing or payment schedule is set forth in the applicable Ordering Document, EULA or other 
Addendum, such schedule will control with respect to the applicable Products and Services 
referenced therein. Motorola will have the right to suspend future deliveries of Products and 
Services if Customer fails to make any payments when due. 

6. Representations and Warranties; Liability. 

6.1. Motorola Warranties. Subject to the disclaimers and exclusions set forth in the MCA and 
this EPSLA, (a) for a period of one (1) year commencing upon the delivery of Motorola-
manufactured Equipment under Section 2.1 – Delivery and Risk of Loss, Motorola represents 
and warrants that such Motorola-manufactured Equipment, under normal use, will be free from 

128



material defects in materials and workmanship; (b) to the extent permitted by the providers of 
third-party software or hardware included in the Products and Services, Motorola will pass 
through to Customer any warranties provided by such third parties, which warranties will apply 
for the period defined by the applicable third party; and (c) for a period of ninety (90) days 
commencing upon the delivery of Motorola-owned Licensed Software under Section 2.1 – 
Delivery and Risk of Loss, Motorola represents and warrants that such Licensed Software, 
when used in accordance with the Documentation and the Agreement, will be free from 
reproducible defects that prevent operation of features critical to the primary functionality or 
successful operation of the Motorola-developed Licensed Software (as determined by 
Motorola). The warranty set forth in subsection (c) will be referred to as the “Motorola Licensed 
Software Warranty”. As Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any breach of the Motorola 
Licensed Software Warranty, Motorola will use commercially reasonable efforts to remedy the 
material defect in the applicable Licensed Software; provided, however, that if Motorola does 
not remedy such material defect within a reasonable time, then at Motorola’s sole option, 
Motorola will either replace the defective Licensed Software with functionally-equivalent 
software, provide substitute software to Customer, or terminate the applicable software license 
and refund any paid license fees to Customer on a pro-rata basis. For clarity, the Motorola 
Licensed Software Warranty applies only to the most current version of the Licensed Software 
issued by Motorola, and issuance of updated versions of any Licensed Software does not result 
in a renewal or extension of the Motorola Licensed Software Warranty beyond the ninety (90) 
day warranty period. 

6.2. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS. IN ADDITION TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM DAMAGES 
SET FORTH IN THE MCA, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION OF THE 
AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, MOTOROLA WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR (A) 
DEFECTS IN OR DAMAGE TO PRODUCTS RESULTING FROM USE OTHER THAN IN THE 
NORMAL AUTHORIZED MANNER, OR FROM ACCIDENT, LIQUIDS, OR NEGLECT; (B) 
TESTING, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, INSTALLATION, OR MODIFICATION BY PARTIES 
OTHER THAN MOTOROLA; (C) CUSTOMER’S OR ANY AUTHORIZED USER’S FAILURE TO 
COMPLY WITH INDUSTRY AND OSHA OR OTHER LEGAL STANDARDS; (D) DAMAGE TO 
RADIO ANTENNAS, UNLESS CAUSED BY DEFECTS IN MATERIAL OR WORKMANSHIP; (E) 
EQUIPMENT WITH NO SERIAL NUMBER; (F) BATTERIES OR CONSUMABLES; (G) 
FREIGHT COSTS FOR SHIPMENT TO REPAIR DEPOTS; (H) COSMETIC DAMAGE THAT 
DOES NOT AFFECT OPERATION; (I) NORMAL WEAR AND TEAR; (J) ISSUES OR 
OBSOLESCENCE OF LICENSED SOFTWARE DUE TO CHANGES IN CUSTOMER OR 
AUTHORIZED USER REQUIREMENTS, EQUIPMENT, OR SYSTEMS; (K) TRACKING AND 
LOCATION-BASED SERVICES; OR (L) BETA SERVICES.  

6.3. Voluntary Remedies. Motorola is not obligated to remedy, repair, replace, or refund the 
purchase price for the disclaimed or excluded issues in the MCA or Section 6.2 – Additional 
Exclusions above, but if Motorola agrees to provide Services to help resolve such issues, 
Customer will reimburse Motorola for its reasonable time and expenses, including by paying 
Motorola any Fees set forth in an Ordering Document for such Services, if applicable. 

7. Copyright Notices. The existence of a copyright notice on any Licensed Software will 
not be construed as an admission or presumption of publication of the Licensed Software or 
public disclosure of any trade secrets associated with the Licensed Software. 

8. Survival. The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this 
EPSLA for any reason: Section 3 – Licensed Software License and Restrictions; Section 4 
– Term; Section 5 – Payment; Section 6.2 – Additional Exclusions; Section 8 – Survival.  

129



MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT ADDENDUM  
 

This Maintenance, Support Addendum (this “MSA”) is entered into between Motorola 
Solutions, Inc., with office at 500 W. Monroe, suite 4400, Chicago, IL 60661 
(“Motorola”) and the entity set forth in the signature block below or in the MCA 
(“Customer”) and will be subject to, and governed by, the terms of the Master 
Customer Agreement entered into between the Parties, effective as of [______] the 
(“MCA”). Capitalized terms used in this MSLMA, but not defined herein, will have the 
meanings set forth in the MCA.  

1. Addendum.  This MSA governs Customer’s purchase of Maintenance and 
Support (as defined below) services (and, if set forth in an Ordering Document, related 
Services) from Motorola and will form part of the Parties’ Agreement. In addition to the 
MCA, other Addenda may be applicable to the MSA, including the Equipment Purchase 
and Software License Addendum (“EPSLA”), with respect to Licensed Software and 
Equipment, and the Communications System Addendum (“CSA”) as further described 
below. This MSA will control with respect to conflicting or ambiguous terms in the MCA 
or any other applicable Addendum, but only as applicable to the Maintenance and 
Support services purchased under this MSA and not with respect to other Products and 
Services. 
 
 
2. Scope 
 
Motorola will provide break/fix maintenance, technical support, or other Services (such 
as software integration Services) (“Maintenance and Support Services”) as further 
described in the applicable Ordering Documents. 
 
 
3. Maintenance and Support services 
 

3.1 Purchase Order Acceptance.  Purchase orders for additional, continued, 
or expanded maintenance and software support, during the Warranty Period or after the 
Warranty Period, become binding only when accepted in writing by Motorola.   

 
3. 2 Start Date.  The “Start Date” for Maintenance and Support Services will be 

indicated in the applicable Ordering Documents.   
 
3. 3 Auto Renewal.  Unless the applicable Ordering Documents specifically 

state a termination date or one Party notifies the other in writing of its intention to 
discontinue the Maintenance and Support Services, this Agreement will renew for an 
additional one (1) year term on every anniversary of the Start Date.  At the anniversary 
date, Motorola may adjust the price of the Services to reflect the renewal rate. 

 
3. 4 Termination.  Written notice of intent to terminate must be provided thirty 

(30) days or more prior to the anniversary date.  If Motorola provides Services after the 
termination or expiration of this MSA, the terms and conditions in effect at the time of 
termination or expiration will apply to those Services and Customer agrees to pay for 
those services on a time and materials basis at Motorola’s then effective hourly rates. 

130



This provision survives the expiration or termination of the Agreement and applies 
notwithstanding any contrary provision. 

 
3. 5 Equipment Definition.  For maintenance and support services, Equipment 

will be defined to mean the hardware specified in the applicable Ordering Documents.   
 
3. 6 Additional Hardware.  If Customer purchases additional hardware from 

Motorola that becomes part of the Communications System, the additional hardware 
may be added to this MSA and will be billed at the applicable rates after the warranty 
period for that additional equipment expires. Such hardware will be included in the 
definition of Equipment. 

 
3. 7 Maintenance.  Equipment will be maintained at levels set forth in the 

manufacturer’s product manuals and routine procedures that are prescribed by Motorola 
will be followed. Motorola parts or parts of equal quality will be used for Equipment 
maintenance.  

 
3. 8 Equipment Condition.  All Equipment must be in good working order on 

the Start Date or when additional equipment is added to the MSA.  Upon reasonable 
request by Motorola, Customer will provide a complete serial and model number list of 
the Equipment.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola in writing when any Equipment 
is lost, damaged, stolen or taken out of service.  Customer’s obligation to pay 
maintenance and support fees for this Equipment will terminate at the end of the month 
in which Motorola receives the written notice.  If Equipment cannot, in Motorola’s 
reasonable opinion, be properly or economically maintained for any reason, Motorola 
may modify the scope of Services related to that Equipment; remove that Equipment 
from the Agreement; or increase the price to maintain that Equipment. 

 
3. 9 Equipment Failure.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola of any 

Equipment failure.  Motorola will respond to Customer's notification in a manner 
consistent with the level of Service purchased as indicated in this MSA and applicable 
Ordering Documents.    

 
3. 10 Intrinsically Safe.  Customer must specifically identify any Equipment that 

is labeled intrinsically safe for use in hazardous environments. 
 
3. 11 Excluded Services. 
 

a) Service excludes the repair or replacement of Equipment that has 
become defective or damaged from use in other than the normal, customary, 
intended, and authorized manner; use not in compliance with applicable 
industry standards; excessive wear and tear; or accident, liquids, power 
surges, neglect, acts of God or other force majeure events. 
 

b) Unless specifically included in this MSA or applicable Ordering 
Documents, Service excludes items that are consumed in the normal 
operation of the Equipment, such as batteries or magnetic tapes.; upgrading 
or reprogramming Equipment; accessories, belt clips, battery chargers, 
custom or special products, modified units, or software; and repair or 

131



maintenance of any transmission line, antenna, microwave equipment, tower 
or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler.  Motorola has no 
obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, computer 
networks, the internet or the worldwide web, or for Equipment malfunction 
caused by the transmission medium.  
 

3. 12 Time And Place.  Service will be provided at the location specified in this 
MSA and/or the applicable Ordering Documents.  When Motorola performs 
maintenance, support, or installation at Customer’s location, Customer will provide 
Motorola, at no charge, a non-hazardous work environment with adequate shelter, heat, 
light, and power and with full and free access to the Equipment.  Waivers of liability from 
Motorola or its subcontractors will not be imposed as a site access requirement.  
Customer will provide all information pertaining to the hardware and software elements 
of any system with which the Equipment is interfacing so that Motorola may perform its 
Services.  Unless otherwise stated in this MSA or applicable Ordering Documents, the 
hours of Service will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., local time, excluding weekends and 
holidays.  Unless otherwise stated in this MSA or applicable Ordering Documents, the 
price for the Services exclude any charges or expenses associated with helicopter or 
other unusual access requirements; if these charges or expenses are reasonably 
incurred by Motorola in rendering the Services, Customer agrees to reimburse Motorola 
for those charges and expenses. 

 
3. 13 Customer Contact.  Customer will provide Motorola with designated points 

of contact (list of names and phone numbers) that will be available twenty-four (24) 
hours per day, seven (7) days per week, and an escalation procedure to enable 
Customer’s personnel to maintain contact, as needed, with Motorola. 
 
    

3.14  If Customer terminates this Maintenance and Support service and 
contractual commitment before the end of the __ year term, for any reason other than 
Motorola’s default, then the Customer will pay to Motorola a termination fee equal to the 
discount applied to the last three years of service payments related to the __ year 
commitment.   

 
4. Payment 
4.1 Unless alternative payment terms are stated in the applicable Ordering Documents, 
Motorola will invoice Customer in advance for each payment period.  All other charges 
will be billed monthly, and the Customer must pay each invoice in U.S. dollars within 
thirty (30) days of the invoice date.  Customer will reimburse Motorola for all property 
taxes, sales and use taxes, excise taxes, and other taxes or assessments that are 
levied as a result of Services rendered under this MSA (except income, profit, and 
franchise taxes of Motorola) by any governmental entity.  
4.2 INFLATION ADJUSTMENT. For multi-year agreements, at the end of the first year 
of the Agreement and each year thereafter, a CPI percentage change calculation shall 
be performed using the U.S. Department of Labor, Consumer Price Index, “All Items,” 
Unadjusted Urban Areas (CPI-U). Should the annual inflation rate increase greater than 
3% during the previous year, Motorola shall have the right to increase all future 

132



maintenance prices by the CPI increase amount exceeding 3%. “All Items,” not 
seasonally adjusted shall be used as the measure of CPI for this price adjustment. The 
adjustment calculation will be based upon the CPI for the most recent twelve (12) month 
increment beginning from the most current month available as posted by the U.S. 
Department of Labor (http://www.bls.gov) immediately preceding the new maintenance 
year. For purposes of illustration, if in Year 5 the CPI reported an increase of 8%, 
Motorola may increase the Year 6 price by 5% (8%-3% base). 

133



Cyber Security Services Addendum 

 

This Cyber Security Services Addendum (this “Cyber SSA”) is entered into between Motorola 
Solutions, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 4400, Chicago, IL 60661 (“Motorola”) 
and the entity purchasing Products or Services (as defined below) from Motorola (“Customer”), 
and will be subject to, and governed by, the terms of the Master Customer Agreement ("MCA") 
entered into between the Parties, effective as of the earlier of (a) the first purchase of a Product or 
Service from Motorola, and (b) the date of the last signature on the first Ordering Document (as 
defined below) between the Parties (the “MCA”), and the applicable Addenda. Capitalized terms 
used in this Cyber SSA, but not defined herein, will have the meanings set forth in the MCA or the 
applicable Addenda. 

1.            Addendum. This Cyber SSA governs Customer’s purchase of cyber security services, 
including (i) Remote Security Update Service, Security Update Service, and Managed Detection & 
Response subscription services, among other subscription services, (ii) professional services, 
and/or (iii) retainer services (i.e., professional services when expressly purchased as a block of 
pre-paid hours for use, subject to expiration, within a specified period across certain offered service 
categories (“Retainer Services”), the nature and scope of which are more fully described in an 
Ordering Document and will form part of the Parties’ Agreement. Additional Addenda or other 
terms and conditions may apply to certain related products, software or services, where such terms 
are provided or presented to Customer. 

2.      Cyber Security Services. 

2.1    Cyber Security Services often require active customer engagement. In addition to items or 
actions that may be set out in an applicable Ordering Document, Customer will assist, provide or 
perform items or actions as reasonably requested by Motorola in the course of performance and 
necessary to ensure timely and efficient performance of the Services. Customer will ensure that 
information Customer provides to Motorola in connection with receipt of Services is accurate and 
complete in all material respects. 

2.2    Customer will make timely decisions and obtain any required management approvals that 
are reasonably necessary for Motorola to provide the products and Services and perform its other 
duties under any applicable ordering document and this Cyber SSA. Unless an applicable ordering 
document states otherwise, Motorola may rely upon and is not required to evaluate, confirm, reject, 
modify or provide advice concerning any assumptions or Customer information, decisions, or 
approvals. Cyber Security Services and Deliverables are limited by, among other things: nature of 
the security threats, the accuracy and completeness of information provided to Motorola; the level 
of effort utilized; and subjective judgments relating to relative risk and mitigation priorities which are 
inherent in any such services and may or may not be correct.  

2.3    Customer shall take any actions necessary to mitigate risk to its operations and protect and 
preserve its computer systems, data environment, networks and Customer Data, including creation 
of operational workarounds, backups and redundancies.  Customer shall inform Motorola in 
advance to the extent adequate backups and redundancies are not possible for certain elements of 
its systems or data.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that Services may impact, disrupt or 
damage information systems, data environments, data or Customer Data.  Motorola disclaims 

134



responsibility for costs in connection with any such disruptions of and/or damage to Customer’s or 
a third party’s information systems, equipment, voice transmissions, data and Customer Data, 
including, but not limited to, denial of access to a legitimate system user, automatic shut-down of 
information systems caused by intrusion detection software or hardware, or failure of the 
information system resulting from the provision or delivery of the Service 

2.4    Inherent Limitations on Scope of Services.  Because of the evolving, often malicious and 
often highly sophisticated nature of cyber security threats, as well as the evolving complexity and 
customization inherent in many customer computer system environments, among other things, the 
protections offered by Cyber Security Services are necessarily limited. Motorola does not represent 
that it will identify, fully recognize, discover or resolve all security events or threats, system 
vulnerabilities, malicious codes, files or malware, indicators of compromise or internal threats or 
concerns.  Motorola does not guarantee that any recommendations it makes will be successful. 

2.5     Motorola may modify Services and any related systems so long as their functionality (as 
described in the applicable Ordering Document) is not materially degraded. Documentation for the 
Services, if any, may be updated to reflect such modifications. For clarity, new features or 
enhancements that are added to any subscription Services may be subject to additional fees. 

2.6    Delivery. During the applicable Term (as defined below), Motorola will provide to Customer 
the Cyber Security Services set forth in an Ordering Document, in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement. Motorola will provide Customer advance notice (which may be provided electronically) 
of any planned downtime of subscription Services. Delivery of subscription Services will occur upon 
Customer’s receipt of credentials required for access to the subscription Services or upon Motorola 
otherwise providing access to the subscription Services platform. If agreed upon in an Ordering 
Document, Motorola will also provide services related to such subscription Services. 

2.7    User Credentials. If applicable, Motorola will provide Customer with administrative user 
credentials for the subscription Services, and Customer will ensure such administrative user 
credentials are accessed and used only by Customer’s employees with training on their proper 
use. Customer will protect, and will cause its Authorized Users to protect, the confidentiality and 
security of all user credentials, including any administrative user credentials, and maintain user 
credential validity, including by updating passwords. Customer will be liable for any use of the 
subscription Services through such user credential (including through any administrative user 
credentials), including any changes made to the subscription Services or issues or user impact 
arising therefrom. To the extent Motorola provides Services to Customer in order to help resolve 
issues resulting from changes made to the subscription Services through user credentials, 
including through any administrative user credentials, or issues otherwise created by Authorized 
Users, such Services will be billed to Customer on a time and materials basis, and Customer will 
pay all invoices in accordance with the payment terms of the MCA. 

2.8    Beta or Proof of Concept Services. If Motorola makes any beta version of its Services 
(“Beta Service”) available to Customer, or provides Customer a trial period or proof of concept  
period (or other demonstration) of the Services at reduced or no charge (“Proof of Concept” or 
“POC” Service), Customer may choose to use such Beta or POC Service at its own discretion, 
provided, however, that Customer will use the Beta or POC Service solely for purposes of 
Customer’s evaluation of such Beta or POC Service, and for no other purpose. Customer 
acknowledges and agrees that all Beta or POC Services are offered “as-is” and without any 
representations or warranties or other commitments or protections from Motorola. Motorola will 

135



determine the duration of the evaluation period for any Beta or POC Service, in its sole discretion, 
and Motorola may discontinue any Beta or POC Service at any time. Customer acknowledges that Beta 
Services, by their nature, have not been fully tested and may contain defects or deficiencies.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to the extent a future paid Service has been agreed 
upon subject to and contingent on the Customer’s evaluation of a Proof of Concept Service, Customer may 
cancel such future paid Service as specified in the Ordering Document or, if not specified, within a 
reasonable time before the paid Service is initiated.  

3.      Subscription Cyber Security Services License and Restrictions. 

3.1    Subscription Cyber Security Services License. Subject to Customer’s and its Authorized 
Users’ compliance with the Agreement, Motorola hereby grants Customer and its Authorized Users 
a limited, non-transferable, non-sublicenseable, and non-exclusive license to use the subscription 
Services identified in an Ordering Document, if any, and the associated Documentation, solely for 
Customer’s internal business purposes. The foregoing license grant will be limited to use in the 
territory and to the number of licenses set forth in an Ordering Document (if applicable), and will 
continue for the applicable Subscription Term. Customer may access, and use the subscription 
Services only in Customer’s owned or controlled facilities, including any authorized mobile sites; 
provided, however, that, if applicable, Authorized Users using authorized mobile or handheld 
devices may also log into and access the subscription Services remotely from any location. No 
custom development work will be performed under this CYBER SSA. 

3.2    End User Licenses. Motorola may use, engage, resell, or otherwise interface with third-
party software, hardware or services providers (such as, for example, third-party end point 
detection and response providers) and other sub-processors, who in turn may engage additional 
sub-processors to process personal data and other Customer Data. Customer agrees that such 
third-party software or services providers, sub-processors or their respective sub-processors may 
process and use personal and other Customer Data in accordance with and subject to their own 
respective licenses or terms and in accordance with applicable law. Customer authorizes and will 
provide and obtain all required notices and consents, if any, and comply with other applicable legal 
requirements, if any, with respect to such collection and use of personal data and other Customer 
Data by Motorola, and its subcontractors, sub-processors and/or third-party software, hardware or 
services providers. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, to the extent the use or 
performance of certain Services is governed by any separate license, data requirement, EULA, 
privacy statement, or other applicable agreement, including terms governing third-party software, 
hardware or services, including open source software, Customer will comply, and ensure its 
Authorized Users comply, with any such agreements or terms, which shall govern any such 
Services. 

3.3    Customer Restrictions. Customers and Authorized Users will comply with the applicable 
Documentation and the copyright laws of the United States and all other relevant jurisdictions 
(including the copyright laws where Customer uses the Services) in connection with their use of the 
Services. Customer will not, and will not allow others including the Authorized Users, to make the 
Services available for use by unauthorized third parties, including via a commercial rental or 
sharing arrangement; reverse engineer, disassemble, or reprogram software used to provide the 
Services or any portion thereof to a human-readable form; modify, create derivative works of, or 
merge the Services or software used to provide the Services with other software; copy, reproduce, 
distribute, lend, or lease the Services or Documentation for or to any third party; take any action 
that would cause the Services, software used to provide the Services, or Documentation to be 
placed in the public domain; use the Services to compete with Motorola; remove, alter, or obscure, 

136



any copyright or other notice; share user credentials (including among Authorized Users); use the 
Services to store or transmit malicious code; or attempt to gain unauthorized access to the 
Services or its related systems or networks. 

3.4    Professional Services Delivery.  All Professional Services will be performed in accordance 
with the performance schedule included in an Ordering Document. Delivery of hours purchased as 
Retainer Services is at the onset of the applicable retainer period. Hours purchased as Retainer 
Services expire and are forfeited if not used within the Retainer period, subject to terms of use, 
expiration and extension, if any, as set out in the applicable Ordering Document.  Professional 
Services described in an Ordering Document will be deemed complete upon Motorola’s 
performance of such Services or, if applicable, upon exhaustion or expiration of the Retainer 
Services hours, whichever occurs first.   

4.      Term. 

4.1    Term. The term of this CYBER SSA will commence upon the either (a) the Effective Date of 
the MCA, if this CYBER SSA is attached to the MCA as of such Effective Date, or (b) the CYBER 
SSA Date set forth on the signature page below, if this CYBER SSA is executed after the MCA 
Effective Date.  Unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, the term 
of this CYBER SSA will continue until the later of (a) the expiration or termination of all Subscription 
Terms, or (b) the last applicable Service Completion Date under this CYBER SSA.  

4.2    Order Periods. Non-recurring or non-subscription Services described in an Ordering 
Document will be deemed complete upon Motorola’s performance of all Services listed in such 
Ordering Document (“Service Completion Date”). The duration of Customer’s subscription to its 
initial order of subscription Services, if any, will commence upon delivery of such subscription 
Services and will continue for a twelve (12) month period or such longer period identified in an 
Ordering Document (the “Initial Subscription Period”). Following the Initial Subscription Period, 
Customer’s subscription to the subscription Services will automatically renew for additional twelve 
(12) month periods (each, a “Renewal Subscription Year”), unless either Party notifies the other 
Party of its intent not to renew at least sixty (60) days before the conclusion of the then-current 
Subscription Term. (The Initial Subscription Period and each Renewal Subscription Year will each 
be referred to herein as a “Subscription Term”.) Motorola may increase fees prior to any Renewal 
Subscription Year. In such case, Motorola will notify Customer of such proposed increase no later 
than sixty (60) days prior to commencement of such Renewal Subscription Year. Unless otherwise 
specified in the applicable Ordering Document, if Customer orders any additional subscription 
Services under this CYBER SSA during an in-process Subscription Term, the subscription for each 
new subscription Service will (a) commence upon delivery of such subscription Service, and 
continue until the conclusion of Customer’s then-current Subscription Term (a “Partial 
Subscription Year”), and (b) automatically renew for Renewal Subscription Years thereafter, 
unless either Party notifies the other Party of its intent not to renew at least sixty (60) days before 
the conclusion of the then-current Subscription Term. Thus, unless otherwise specified in the 
applicable Ordering Document, the Subscription Terms for all subscription Services hereunder will 
be synchronized. 

4.3    Termination. Motorola may terminate this Cyber SSA (or any Addendum or Ordering 
Documents hereunder), or suspend delivery of Services, immediately upon notice to Customer if 
(a) Customer breaches Section 3 – Subscription Cyber Services License and Restrictions of 
this CYBER SSA, or any other provision related to Services license scope or restrictions set forth in 

137



an Addendum or Ordering Document, or (b) it determines that Customer’s use of the Services 
poses, or may pose, a security or other risk or adverse impact to any Services, Motorola, 
Motorola’s systems, or any third party (including other Motorola customers). Customer 
acknowledges that Motorola made a considerable investment of resources in the development, 
marketing, and distribution of the Services and Documentation, and that Customer’s breach of the 
Agreement will result in irreparable harm to Motorola for which monetary damages would be 
inadequate. If Customer breaches this Agreement, in addition to termination, Motorola will be 
entitled to all available remedies at law or in equity (including immediate injunctive relief). 

4.4    Wind Down of Subscription Cyber Services. In addition to the termination rights in the MCA, 
Motorola may terminate any Ordering Document and Subscription Term, in whole or in part, in the 
event Motorola plans to cease offering the applicable subscription Services to customers. To the 
extent Equipment is purchased on an installment basis, any early termination of the installment 
period will cause the outstanding balance to become immediately due.  

5.      Payment. 

5.1    Payment. Unless otherwise agreed, an Ordering Document shall set out an agreed upon 
price and/or fee schedule applicable to the Services ordered.  The parties acknowledge that pricing 
is dependent on the full term or subscription periods specified in any such Ordering Document. 
Unless otherwise provided in an Ordering Document, Customer will prepay an annual subscription 
Fee set forth in an Ordering Document for each subscription Service, before the commencement of 
each Subscription Term. For any Partial Subscription Year, the applicable annual subscription Fee 
will be prorated based on the number of months in the Partial Subscription Year. The annual 
subscription Fee for subscription Services may include certain one-time Fees, such as start-up 
fees, license fees, or other fees set forth in an Ordering Document. Motorola will have the right to 
suspend the Services if Customer fails to make any payments when due. 

5.2    Customer Data. For avoidance of doubt, so long as not specifically identifying the 
Customer, “Customer Data,” as defined in the MCA, shall not include, and Motorola shall be free to 
use, share and leverage security threat intelligence and mitigation data generally, including without 
limitation, third party threat vectors and IP addresses, file hash information, domain names, 
malware signatures and information, information obtained from third party sources, indicators of 
compromise, and tactics, techniques, and procedures used, learned or developed in the course of 
providing Services. 

5.3    License True-Up. If applicable, Motorola will have the right to conduct an audit of total user 
licenses credentialed by Customer for any subscription Services during a Subscription Term, and 
Customer will cooperate with such audit. If Motorola determines that Customer’s usage of the 
subscription Services during the applicable Subscription Term exceeded the total number of 
licenses purchased by Customer, Motorola may invoice Customer for the additional licenses used 
by Customer, pro-rated for each additional license from the date such license was activated, and 
Customer will pay such invoice in accordance with the payment terms in the MCA. 

5.4    Future Regulatory Requirements. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this is an 
evolving technological area and therefore, laws and regulations regarding Services may change. 
Changes to existing Services required to achieve regulatory compliance may be available for an 
additional fee. Any required changes may also impact the price for Services. 

138



6.      Liability. 

6.1    ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS. IN ADDITION TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM DAMAGES 
SET FORTH IN THE MCA, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION OF THE AGREEMENT 
TO THE CONTRARY, MOTOROLA WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR (A) INTERRUPTION OR 
FAILURE OF CONNECTIVITY, VULNERABILITIES, OR SECURITY EVENTS; (B) DISRUPTION 
OF OR DAMAGE TO CUSTOMER’S OR THIRD PARTIES’ SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, OR DATA, 
INCLUDING DENIAL OF ACCESS TO USERS, OR SHUTDOWN OF SYSTEMS CAUSED BY 
INTRUSION DETECTION SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE; (C) AVAILABILITY OR ACCURACY OF 
ANY DATA AVAILABLE THROUGH THE SERVICES, OR INTERPRETATION, USE, OR MISUSE 
THEREOF; (D) TRACKING AND LOCATION-BASED SERVICES; OR (E) BETA SERVICES. 

6.2    Voluntary Remedies. Motorola is not obligated to remedy, repair, replace, or refund the 
purchase price for the disclaimed or excluded issues in the MCA or Section 6.1 – Additional 
Exclusions above, but if Motorola agrees to provide Services to help resolve such issues, 
Customer will reimburse Motorola for its reasonable time and expenses, including by paying 
Motorola any Fees set forth in an Ordering Document for such Services, if applicable. 

6.3    Motorola as a Controller or Joint Controller. In all instances where Motorola acts as a 
controller of data, it will comply with the applicable provisions of the Motorola Privacy Statement at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement, as may be 
updated from time to time.  Motorola holds all Customer Contact Data as a controller and shall 
Process such Customer Contact Data in accordance with the Motorola Privacy Statement. In 
instances where Motorola is acting as a joint controller with Customer, the Parties will enter into a 
separate Addendum to the Agreement to allocate the respective roles as joint controllers.  

6.4    DIRECT DAMAGES. For avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding the limitation set out in 
Section 8.2 of the MCA, the direct damages limitation for services provided under this Cyber SSA 
and limited to the fees, or the portion of fees, relating only to the Cyber Security Services under 
this Cyber SSA, even if such Services are offered or bundled with other Motorola services.   

7        Survival. The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this CYBER 
SSA for any reason: Section 4 – Term; Section 5 – Payment; Section 6.1 – Additional 
Exclusions; Section 6.4 – Direct Damages; Section 7 – Survival. 

139

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/about/privacy-policy.html#privacystatement


ECH Add-on Cloud Interface Software Addendum 

This ECH Add-on Cloud Software as a Service Addendum (this “Interface Addendum”) is entered 
into between Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc., with offices at 500 W. Monroe Street, Suite 
4400, Chicago, IL 60661 (“Motorola”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
(“MSI”)  and the entity set forth in the signature block below or in the Subscription Software 
Agreement or Master Customer Agreement, as applicable (“Customer”), and will be subject to, 
and governed by, the terms of the Subscription Software Agreement, or the Master Customer 
Agreement, including the Subscription Software Addendum, as applicable, entered into between 
the Parties, effective as of _____________________ (the applicable Agreement referred to herein 
as the “Agreement”),  and the applicable Addenda. Capitalized terms used in this Interface 
Addendum, but not defined herein, will have the meanings set forth in the Agreement or the 
applicable Addenda. 

1. Scope. This Interface Addendum covers certain add-on cloud products listed in EXHIBIT 1 
(the “Add-on Cloud Products”) and will control with respect to conflicting terms in the Subscription 
Software Agreement or any other applicable Addendum, but only as applicable to the products and 
Services purchased under this Interface Addendum. A list of the on-premise software available for 
license under this Interface Addendum is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 2 (collectively, the “Cloud 
Interface Software”). In connection with the Add-on Cloud Products, Customer may also purchase 
certain Add-On Cloud Services as described in Section 2.2 Services hereto. 

2. Applicable Terms and Conditions. 

2.1. Cloud Interface Software 

2.1.1.  Software License. Subject to Customer’s and its  Authorized Users’ compliance 
with the Agreement (including payment terms), Motorola hereby grants Customer 
and its Authorized Users a limited, non-transferable, non-sublicenseable, and non-
exclusive license to use the Cloud Interface Software identified in an Ordering 
Document, in object code form only, and the associated Documentation, solely in 
connection with the equipment provided by Motorola, or Customer-Provided 
Equipment (as applicable, the “Designated Products”) and solely for Customer’s 
internal business purposes. Unless otherwise stated in an Addendum or the 
Ordering Document, the foregoing license grant will be limited to the number of 
licenses set forth in the applicable Ordering Document and will continue for the life 
of the applicable Designated Product. Except as otherwise permitted in an 
applicable Addendum or Ordering Document, Customer may install, access, and 
use Cloud Interface Software only in Customer’s owned or controlled facilities, 
including any authorized mobile sites; provided, however, that Authorized Users 
using authorized mobile or handheld devices may also log into and access the 
Cloud Interface Software remotely from any location.  

2.1.2. End User Licenses. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the 
Agreement, certain Cloud Interface Software is governed by a separate 
license, end-user license agreement, or other agreement, including terms 
governing third-party equipment or software, such as open source software, 
included in the Cloud Interface Software. Customer will comply, and ensure 
its Authorized Users comply, with any such additional terms applicable to 
third-party equipment or software.   

140



2.1.3. Customer Restrictions. Customers and Authorized Users will comply with the 
applicable Documentation in connection with their use of the Cloud Interface 
Software Customer will not and will not allow others, including the Authorized 
Users, to: (a) make the Cloud Interface Software available for use by 
unauthorized third parties, including via a commercial rental or sharing 
arrangement; (b) reverse engineer, disassemble, or reprogram the Cloud 
Interface Software or any portion thereof to a human-readable form; (c) 
modify, create derivative works of, or merge the Cloud Interface Software 
with other software or equipment; (d) copy, reproduce, distribute, lend, lease, 
or transfer the Cloud Interface Software or Documentation for or to any third 
party without the prior express written permission of Motorola; (e) take any 
action that would cause the Cloud Interface Software or Documentation to 
be placed in the public domain; (f) use the Cloud Interface Software to 
compete with Motorola; or (g) remove, alter, or obscure, any copyright or 
other notice.  

2.1.4. Copies. Customer may make one (1) copy of the Cloud Interface Software 
solely for archival, back-up, or disaster recovery purposes during the term of 
the applicable Cloud Interface Software license. Customer may make as 
many copies of the Documentation reasonably required for the internal use 
of the Cloud Interface Software during such Cloud Interface Software’s 
license term. Unless otherwise authorized by Motorola in writing, Customer 
will not, and will not enable or allow any third party to: (a) install a licensed 
copy of the Cloud Interface Software on more than one (1) unit of a 
Designated Product; or (b) copy onto or transfer Cloud Interface Software 
installed in a unit of a Designated Product onto another device.  Customer 
may temporarily transfer Cloud Interface Software installed on a Designated 
Product to another device if the Designated Product is inoperable or 
malfunctioning, if Customer provides written notice to Motorola of the 
temporary transfer and identifies the device on which the Cloud Interface 
Software is transferred.  Temporary transfer of the Cloud Interface Software 
to another device must be discontinued when the original Designated 
Product is returned to operation and the Cloud Interface Software must be 
removed from the other device.  Customer must provide prompt written 
notice to Motorola at the time temporary transfer is discontinued. 

2.1.5. Motorola Warranties.  Subject to the disclaimers and exclusions set forth in 
this Interface Addendum, (a) to the extent permitted by the providers of third-
party software included in the Add-on Cloud Products and Services, 
Motorola will pass through to Customer any warranties provided by such 
third parties, which warranties will apply for the period defined by the 
applicable third party, and (b) for a period of ninety (90) days commencing 
upon delivery of Motorola-owned Cloud Interface software, Motorola 
represents and warrants that such Cloud Interface Software, when used in 
accordance with the Documentation and the Interface Addendum, will be 
free from reproducible defects that prevent operation of features critical to 
the primary functionality or successful operation of the Motorola-developed 
Cloud Interface Software (as determined by Motorola). The warranty set 
forth in subsection (b) will be referred as the “Motorola Licensed Software 
Warranty”. As Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any breach of the 
Motorola Licensed Software Warranty, Motorola will use commercially 
reasonable efforts to remedy the material defect in the applicable Cloud 

141



Interface Software; provided, however, that if Motorola does not remedy 
such material defect within a reasonable time, then at Motorola’s sole option, 
Motorola will either replace the defective Cloud Interface Software with 
functionally-equivalent software, provide substitute software to Customer, or 
terminate the applicable software license and refund any paid license fees to 
Customer on a pro-rata basis. For clarity, the Motorola Licensed Software 
Warranty applies only to the most current version of the Cloud Interface 
Software issued by Motorola, and issuance of updated versions of any Cloud 
Interface Software does not result in a renewal or extension of the Motorola 
Licensed Software Warranty beyond the ninety (90) day warranty period.  

2.1.6. WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS AND PASS 
THROUGH WARRANTIES IN THIS INTERFACE ADDENDUM, PRODUCTS 
AND SERVICES PURCHASED HEREUNDER ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” 
AND WITH ALL FAULTS.  WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THE 
INTERFACE ADDENDUM ARE THE COMPLETE WARRANTIES FOR THE 
SOFTWARE AND SERVICES AND MOTOROLA DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, AND QUALITY.  MOTOROLA DOES NOT 
REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT USE OF THE PRODUCTS AND 
SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, OR FREE OF 
SECURITY VULNERABILITIES, OR THAT THEY WILL MEET 
CUSTOMER’S PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS. 

2.1.7. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS. IN ADDITION TO THE EXCLUSIONS FROM 
DAMAGES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY PROVISION OF THE AGREEMENT AND THIS INTERFACE 
ADDENDUM TO THE CONTRARY, MOTOROLA WILL HAVE NO LIABILITY 
FOR (A) TESTING, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, INSTALLATION, OR 
MODIFICATION BY PARTIES OTHER THAN MOTOROLA, OR (B) 
TRACKING AND LOCATION-BASED SERVICES 

2.2. Services. 

2.2.1. Motorola will provide services related to purchased Add-on Cloud Products 
(“Add-on Cloud Services”), to the extent set forth in an Ordering Document. 

2.2.2. Service Ordering Documents. The Fees for Add-on Cloud Services will be 
set forth in an Ordering Document and any applicable project schedules. A 
Customer point of contact will be set forth in the applicable statement of work 
for the Add-on Cloud Services. For purposes of clarity, each statement of 
work will be incorporated into, and form an integral part of, the Interface 
Addendum. 

2.2.3. Integration Services. If specified in an Ordering Document, Motorola will 
provide, for the term of such Ordering Document, (a) design, deployment, 
and  integration Services in order to design, install, set up, configure, and/or 
integrate the applicable Add-on Cloud Products at the applicable locations, 
agreed upon by the Parties (“Integration Services”) as further described in 
the applicable statement of work.  

142



2.2.4. Completion of Integration Services. Unless otherwise specified in the 
applicable Ordering Document, Integration Services described in an 
Ordering Document will be deemed complete upon the earlier of Customer’s 
(or the applicable Authorized User’s) (i) Beneficial Use (as defined below) of 
the applicable Add-on Cloud Products or (ii) Motorola’s functional 
demonstration to Customer of the installation and integration of the Add-On 
Services. For clarity, if the Add-On Cloud Products are comprised of more 
than one product, Motorola may notify Customer that the installation and 
integration for a particular product have been completed, and Customer may 
have Beneficial Use of such Add-On Product prior to having Beneficial Use 
of other Add-On Products. In such case, the installation and integration 
applicable to such product will be deemed complete upon Customer’s 
Beneficial Use of the product. As used in this Section, “Beneficial Use” 
means the ability to use the material features and functionalities of a product 
in material conformance with product descriptions in the applicable Ordering 
Document. 

2.2.5. Post-Installation Support and Maintenance Services.   Motorola agrees to 
provide Customer support services, if purchased, as identified in the 
applicable accepted Order Document and in accordance with the applicable 
Motorola support documentation. Support for Motorola proprietary software 
and firmware is available pursuant to Motorola’s Next Generation 9-1-1 
Software Support Program, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3 
and incorporated herein by reference. Motorola’s Managed Services such as 
Remote Monitoring, AntiVirus Definition Update Services, Disaster Recovery 
Services and Patch Management Services are available, if purchased, 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Motorola’s Managed Services 
Offerings Policy which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 4 and incorporated 
herein by reference. The purchase of Add-on Cloud Products includes Cloud 
Interface Software that allows connectivity to the cloud services.  If 
Customer currently has or purchases a new Monitoring and Response 
agreement for VESTA 9-1-1, technical support will be included for Add-on 
Cloud Products.  Monitoring of Add-on Cloud Products events will be 
included as long as additional appropriate application licenses have been 
acquired and installed.

143



EXHIBIT 1 – ADD-ON CLOUD PRODUCTS 
 

 
CommandCentral Citizen Input (“Citizen Input”) 
CommandCentral Smart Transcription (“Smart Transcription”) 
CommandCentral Aware (“Aware”) 
  

144



EXHIBIT 2 –CLOUD INTERFACE PRODUCTS 
 

 
Console Transcription Application (CTA) 
VESTA API 
VESTA Edge 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

145



 
EXHIBIT 3 - NEXT GENERATION 9-1-1 SOFTWARE SUPPORT PROGRAM 

 
[see attached] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

146

https://drive.google.com/file/d/10K2vlwe4v1X_qb7thU3JHtwLnIJt1cKu/view?usp=sharing


 
EXHIBIT 4 - MANAGED SERVICES OFFERINGS POLICY 

 
[see attached] 

 

 

147

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-fGx8QEmxkI8eNIqu0G8tnK6mglmrqAK/view?usp=sharing


H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
 

Cooperative Agreement - Motorola Solutions, Inc. - Public Services - 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council 
hereinafter referred to as H-GAC having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 
120, Houston, Texas 77027 and Motorola Solutions, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, 
having its principal place of business at 500 West Monroe Street, 44th Floor, Chicago, IL 60661. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, H-GAC hereby engages the Contractor to perform certain services in accordance with the 
specifications of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to perform such services in accordance with the specifications of 
the Agreement; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
Both parties warrant and assure that each possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this 
Agreement. The governing body, where applicable, has authorized the signatory official(s) to enter into 
this Agreement and bind the respective parties to the terms of this Agreement and any subsequent 
amendments hereto. 

 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
The Contractor agrees to conduct all activities under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
rules, regulations, directives, standards, ordinances, and laws, in effect or promulgated during the term 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, workers’ compensation laws, minimum and maximum 
salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations. When required, the 
Contractor shall furnish H-GAC with satisfactory proof of its compliance therewith. 

 
ARTICLE 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The execution of this Agreement and the rendering of services prescribed by this Agreement do not 
change the independent status of H-GAC or the Contractor. No provision of this Agreement or act of   
H- GAC in performance of the Agreement shall be construed as making the Contractor the agent, 
servant or employee of H-GAC, the State of Texas or the United States Government. Employees of the 
Contractor are subject to the exclusive control and supervision of the Contractor. The Contractor is 
solely responsible for employee related disputes and discrepancies, including employee payrolls and any 
claims arising therefrom. 

 
ARTICLE 4: WHOLE AGREEMENT 
The General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Attachments, as provided herein, constitute the complete 
Agreement (“Agreement”) between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and written 
agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
Agreement cannot be modified without written consent of the parties. 

 
 

148



2  

ARTICLE 5: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The services to be performed by the Contractor are outlined in an Attachment to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 6: PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
This Agreement shall be performed during the period which begins Jul 01 2020 and ends Jun 30 2022. 
All services under this Agreement must be rendered within this performance period, unless directly 
specified under a written change or extension provisioned under Article 15, which shall be fully 
executed by both parties to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT OR FUNDING 
Payment provisions under this Agreement are outlined in the Special Provisions. 

 
ARTICLE 8: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
If the Contractor fails to submit to H-GAC in a timely and satisfactory manner any report required by 
this Agreement, or otherwise fails to satisfactorily render performances hereunder, H-GAC may 
terminate this agreement with notice as identified in Article 16 of these General Provisions. H-GAC 
has final determination of the adequacy of performance and reporting by Contractor. Termination of 
this agreement for failure to perform may affect Contractor’s ability to participate in future 
opportunities with H-GAC. The Contractor's failure to timely submit any report may also be considered 
cause for termination of this Agreement. 

 
Any additional reporting requirements shall be set forth in the Special Provisions of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 9: INSURANCE 
Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for work performed or services rendered under this 
Agreement as outlined and defined in the attached Special Provisions. 

 
ARTICLE 10: SUBCONTRACTS and ASSIGNMENTS 
Except as may be set forth in the Special Provisions, the Contractor agrees not to subcontract, assign, 
transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or any right, title, obligation or interest 
it may have therein to any third party without prior written approval of H-GAC, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Contractor acknowledges that H-GAC is not liable to any subcontractor or 
assignee of the Contractor. The Contractor shall ensure that the performance rendered under all 
subcontracts shall result in compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement as if the 
performance rendered was rendered by the Contractor. Contractor shall give all required notices, and 
comply with all laws and regulations applicable to furnishing and performance of the work. Except 
where otherwise expressly required by applicable law or regulation, H-GAC shall not be responsible 
for monitoring Contractor's compliance, or that of Contractor’s subcontractors, with any laws or 
regulations. 

 
ARTICLE 11: AUDIT 
Notwithstanding any other audit requirement, H-GAC reserves the right to conduct or cause to be 
conducted an independent audit of any transaction under this Agreement, such audit may be performed 
by the H-GAC local government audit staff, a certified public accountant firm, or other auditors 
designated by H-GAC and will be conducted in accordance with applicable professional standards and 
practices. The Contractor understands and agrees that the Contractor shall be liable to the H-GAC for 
any findings that result in monetary obligations to H-GAC. In no circumstances will Contractor be 
required to create or maintain documents not kept in the ordinary course of its business operations, nor 
will Contractor be required to disclose any information, including but not limited to product cost data, 
which it considers confidential or proprietary. 

 

149



3  

ARTICLE 12: EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor shall maintain during the course of the work complete and accurate records of all of the 
Contractor's invoices and pertinent documentation of items which are chargeable to H-GAC under this 
Agreement. H-GAC, through its staff or designated public accounting firm, the State of Texas, and 
United States Government, shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect, copy and audit 
those pertinent records on or off the premises by authorized representatives of its own or any public 
accounting firm selected by H- GAC. The right of access to records is not limited to the required 
retention period, but shall last as long as the records are retained. Failure to provide access to records 
may be cause for termination of the Agreement.  

 
The Contractor further agrees that the examination of records outlined in this article shall be included 
in all subcontractor or third-party agreements. 

 
ARTICLE 13: RETENTION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain all records pertinent to this Agreement for a 
period of seven (7) years from the later of the date of acceptance of the final payment or until all audit 
findings have been resolved. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the 
records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the records shall be retained 
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
seven (7) years, whichever is later, and until any outstanding litigation, audit, or claim has been fully 
resolved. 

 
ARTICLE 14: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 

A. Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this Agreement, which are required by 
changes in federal or state law or by regulations, are automatically incorporated without 
written amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or by 
regulation. 

B. To ensure the legal and effective performance of this Agreement, both parties agree that any 
amendment that affects the performance under this Agreement must be mutually agreed upon 
and that all such amendments must be in writing. After a period of no less than 30 days 
subsequent to written notice, unless sooner implementation is required by law, such 
amendments shall have the effect of qualifying the terms of this Agreement and shall be 
binding upon the parties as if written herein. 

 
ARTICLE 15: TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
The Contractor acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated for Convenience or Default. 

A. Convenience 
H-GAC may terminate this Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, with or without cause, 
whenever H-GAC determines that for any reason such termination is in the best interest of  
H- GAC, by providing thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail to the Contractor. Upon 
receipt of notice of termination, all services hereunder of the Contractor and its employees and 
subcontractors shall cease to the extent specified in the notice of termination. 

 
The Contractor may cancel or terminate this Agreement upon submission of thirty (30) days 
written notice, presented to H-GAC via certified mail. The Contractor may not give notice of 
cancellation after it has received notice of default from H-GAC. 

B. Default 
H-GAC may, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of 
the Agreement, in any one of the following circumstances: 
(1) If the Contractor fails to perform the services herein specified within the time specified 

150



4  

herein or any extension thereof; or 
(2) If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement for any 

reason whatsoever, or so fails to make progress or otherwise violates the Agreements that 
completion of services herein specified within the Agreement term is significantly 
endangered, and in either of these two instances does not cure such failure within a period 
of fifteen (15) days (or such longer period of time as may be authorized by H-GAC in 
writing) after receiving written notice by certified mail of default from H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 
H-GAC and Contractor agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, which shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

 
ARTICLE 17: FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Agreement shall be wholly or partially prevented from the 
performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of 
labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause 
reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, in such event, 
the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to 
perform is removed. The party affected by the Force Majeure will notify the other within fifteen (15) 
days. Determination of force majeure shall rest solely with H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 18: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or subcontractor, no member of the governing body of 
the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or 
responsibilities in the review or Contractor approval of this Agreement, shall participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any 
personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 19: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, labor 
standards, and environmental compliance. Additionally, for work to be performed under the Agreement 
or subcontract thereof, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, Contractor shall 
notify each potential subcontractor or supplier of the Contractor's federal compliance obligations. These 
may include, but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 676 et. seq.), (d) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; (e) the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 USC 621 et. seq.) and the Age Discrimination Act of 
1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (f) the 
Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of drug abuse; (g) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, 
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (h) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 
(42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee- 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (i) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (j) any other nondiscrimination 
provisions in any specific statute(s) applicable to any Federal funding for this Agreement; (k) the 
requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to this Agreement; (l) 

151



5  

applicable provisions of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), 
Executive Order 11738, and the Environmental Protection Agency regulations at 40 CPR Part 15; (m) 
applicable provisions of the Davis• Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 
276c), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-332), as set forth in 
Department of Labor Regulations at 20 CPR 5.5a; (n) the mandatory standards and policies relating to 
energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 

 
ARTICLE 20: CRIMINAL PROVISIONS AND SANCTIONS 
The Contractor agrees to perform the Agreement in conformance with safeguards against fraud and 
abuse as set forth by the H-GAC, the State of Texas, and the acts and regulations of any related state 
or federal agency. The Contractor agrees to promptly notify H-GAC of any actual or suspected fraud, 
abuse, or other criminal activity through the filing of a written report within twenty-four (24) hours of 
knowledge thereof. Contractor shall notify H-GAC of any serious accident or incident requiring 
medical attention arising from its activities under this Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours of 
such occurrence. Theft or willful damage to property on loan to the Contractor from H-GAC, if any, 
shall be reported to local law enforcement agencies and H-GAC within two (2) hours of discovery of 
any such act. 

 
The Contractor further agrees to cooperate fully with H-GAC, local law enforcement agencies, the State 
of Texas, the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any other duly authorized investigative unit, in 
carrying out a full investigation of all such incidents. 

 
The Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against the 
Contractor pertaining to this Agreement or which would adversely affect the Contractor’s ability to 
perform services under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 21: INDEMNIFICATION AND RECOVERY 
H-GAC’s liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to its order processing charge. In no event will H-GAC be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, lost profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend and hold harmless H-GAC, its board 
members, officers, agents, officials, employees and indemnities from any and all claims, costs, expenses 
(including reasonable attorney fees), actions, causes of action, judgements, and liens arising as a result 
of Contractor’s negligent act or omission under this Agreement. Contractor shall notifyH-GAC of the 
threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against Contractor relating to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 22: LIMITATION OF CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
Except as specified in any separate writing between the Contractor and an END USER, Contractor’s 
total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, but excluding its obligation to indemnify H-GAC, is limited to the price 
of the particular products/services sold hereunder, and Contractor agrees either to refund the 
purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. In no event will 
Contractor be liable for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, loss of profits or 
savings or other incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be 
disclaimed by law. Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be liable to repay and shall repay 
upon demand to END USER any amounts determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any 
agency of State or Federal government to have been paid in violation of the terms of this Agreement. 

 

152



6  

ARTICLE 23: TITLES NOT RESTRICTIVE 
The titles assigned to the various Articles of this Agreement are for convenience only. Titles shall not 
be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any Article, or part of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 24: JOINT WORK PRODUCT 
This Agreement is the joint work product of H-GAC and the Contractor. This Agreement has been 
negotiated by H-GAC and the Contractor and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in 
accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against 
any party. 

 
ARTICLE 25: DISPUTES 
All disputes concerning questions of fact or of law arising under this Agreement, which are not 
addressed within the Whole Agreement as defined pursuant to Article 4 hereof, shall be decided by the 
Executive Director of H-GAC or his designee, who shall reduce his decision to writing and provide 
notice thereof to the Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director or his designee shall be final 
and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Contractor 
requests a rehearing from the Executive Director of H-GAC. In connection with any rehearing under 
this Article, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of 
its position. The decision of the Executive Director after any such rehearing shall be final and 
conclusive. The Contractor may, if it elects to do so, appeal the final and conclusive decision of the 
Executive Director to a court of competent jurisdiction. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Agreement and in accordance with 
H• GAC's final decision. 

 
ARTICLE 26: CHOICE OF LAW: VENUE 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue and jurisdiction of any suit 
or cause of action arising under or in connection with the Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris 
County, Texas. Disputes between END USER and Contractor are to be resolved in accordance with the 
law and venue rules of the state of purchase. Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC of such 
disputes. 

 
ARTICLE 27: ORDER OF PRIORITY 
In the case of any conflict between or within this Agreement, the following order of priority shall be 
utilized: 1) General Provisions, 2) Special Provisions, 3) Scope of Work, and, 4) Other Attachments. 

153



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURES: 
H-GAC and the Contractor have read, agreed, and executed the whole Agreement as of the date first 
written above, as accepted by: 

 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
 
                                  
Signature   $docusign:SignHere::Customer1  
 
Name     Dan Twohig   
           
Title     Vice President, Next Gen Core Svcs  
 
Date     docusign:DateSigned::Customer1 

H-GAC 
 
 
Signature   $docusign:SignHere::InternalSigner 
 
Name       Chuck Wemple 
 
Title         Executive Director 
 
Date  $docusign:DateSigned::InternalSign 

 

154



 

 

H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Motorola Solutions, Inc. - Public Services - 18-00196 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
 

Incorporated by attachment, as part of the whole agreement, H-GAC and the Contractor do, hereby agree to the 
Special Provisions as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE 1: BIDS/PROPOSALS INCORPORATED 
 

In addition to the whole Agreement, the following documents listed in order of priority are incorporated into 
the Agreement by reference: Bid/Proposal Specifications and Contractor’s Response to the Bid/Proposal. 

 
 

 ARTICLE 2: END USER AGREEMENTS (“EUA”) 
 

H-G AC acknowledges that the END USER may choose to enter into an End User Agreement (“EUA”) with the 
Contractor through this Agreement, and that the term of the EUA may exceed the term of the current H-GAC 
Agreement. H-GAC’s acknowledgement is not an endorsement or approval of the End User Agreement’s 
terms and conditions. Contractor agrees not to offer, agree to or accept from the END USER, any terms or 
conditions that conflict with those in Contractor’s Agreement with H-GAC. Contractor affirms that 
termination of its Agreement with H-GAC for any reason shall not result in the termination of any underlying 
EUA, which shall in each instance, continue pursuant to the EUA’s stated terms and duration. Pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement, termination of this Agreement will disallow the Contractor from entering into any 
new EUA with END USERS. Applicable H-GAC order processing charges will be due and payable to H-GAC 
on any EUAs, surviving termination of this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor. 

ARTICLE 3: MOST FAVORED CUSTOMER CLAUSE 

If at any time during this Agreement, Contractor develops a regularly followed standard procedure of entering 
into agreements with other governmental customers within the State of Texas, and offers the same or 
substantially the same products/services offered to H-GAC on a basis that provides prices, warranties, benefits, 
and or terms more favorable than those provided to H-GAC, Contractor shall notify H-GAC within ten (10) 
business days thereafter, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically retroactively amended, to the 
effective date of Contractor’s most favorable past agreement with another entity. Contractor shall provide the 
same prices, warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and its END USER as provided in its most favorable past 
agreement. H-GAC shall have the right and option at any time to decline to accept any such change, in which 
case the amendment shall be deemed null and void. If Contractor claims that a more favorable price, warranty, 
benefit, or term that was charged or offered to another entity during the term of this Agreement, does not 
constitute more favorable treatment, than Contractor shall, within ten (10) business days, notify H-GAC in 
writing, setting forth the detailed reasons Contractor believes the aforesaid offer is not in fact most favored 
treatment. H-GAC, after due consideration of Contractor’s written explanation, may decline to accept such 
explanation and thereupon this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor shall be automatically amended, 
effective retroactively, to the effective date of the most favored agreement, to provide the same prices, 
warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and the END USER. 
EXCEPTION: This clause shall not be applicable to the sale of large communications systems (one 

155



 

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and above). The term “Communication Systems” shall refer to a project 
that includes the sale of infrastructure hardware and/or software, user devices, and Contractor 
engineering and installation service. The contract for a “Communication System” will always have a 
Statement of Work and an Acceptance Test Plan.  This clause shall also not be applicable to pre-existing 
contracts Contractor has in the State of Texas. The term ”pre-existing” shall refer to contracts in 
existence as of the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 4: PARTY LIABILITY 

 

Contractor’s total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to the price of the particular products/services sold hereunder. 
Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. 
Contractor accepts liability to repay, and shall repay upon demand to END USER, any amounts determined by 
H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any state or federal agency, to have been paid in violation of the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNING LAW & VENUE 

 

Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor will make every reasonable effort to resolve disputes the END 
USER in accord with the law and venue rules of the state of purchase. Contractor shall immediately notify H- 
GAC of such disputes. 

 
ARTICLE 6: SALES AND ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE 

 

Contractor shall sell its products to END USERS based on the pricing and terms of this Agreement. H-GAC 
will invoice Contractor for the applicable order processing charge when H-GAC receives notification of an 
END USER order. Contractor shall remit to H-GAC the full amount of the applicable order processing 
charge, after delivery of any product or service and subsequent END USER acceptance. Payment of the Order 
Processing Charge shall be remitted from Contractor to H-GAC, within thirty (30) calendar days or ten (10) 
business days after receipt of an END USER’s payment, whichever comes first, notwithstanding Contractor’s 
receipt of invoice. For sales made by Contractor based on this Agreement, including sales to entities without 
Interlocal Agreements, Contractor shall pay the applicable order processing charges to H-GAC. Further, 
Contractor agrees to encourage entities who are not members of H-GAC’s Cooperative Purchasing Program to 
execute an H-GAC Interlocal Agreement. H-GAC reserves the right to take appropriate actions including, but 
not limited to, Agreement termination if Contractor fails to promptly remit the appropriate order processing 
charge to H-GAC. In no event shall H-GAC have any liability to Contractor for any goods or services an 
END USER procures from Contractor. At all times, Contractor shall remain liable to pay to H-GAC any 
order processing charges on any portion of the Agreement actually performed, and for which compensation was 
received by Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 7: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 

Any liquidated damage terms will be determined between Contractor and End User at the time End User’s purchase 
order is placed. 

 
ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 

 

Unless otherwise stipulated in Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications, Contractor must have the 
following insurance and coverage: 

a. General liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and 
a General Aggregate limit of $2,000,000. 
Product liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a 

156



 

General Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit for all Products 
except Automotive Fire Apparatus.  For Automotive Fire Apparatus, see Section B of the 
Bid/Proposal Specifications. 
Property Damage or Destruction insurance is required for coverage of End User owned 
equipment while in Contractor's possession, custody or control.  The minimum Single 
Occurrence limit is $500,000.00 and the General Aggregate limit must be at least two times 
the Single Occurrence limit. This insurance may be carried in several ways, e.g. under an 
Inland Marine policy, as part of Automobile coverage, or under a Garage Keepers policy. In 
any event, this coverage must be specifically and clearly listed on insurance certificate(s) 
submitted to H-GAC. 

b. Insurance coverage shall be in effect for the length of any contract made pursuant to the 
Bid/Proposal, and for any extensions thereof, plus the number of days/months required to 
deliver any outstanding order after the close of the contract period. 

c. PDF Insurance Certificates must be furnished to H-GAC after contract execution and at policy 
renewal during term of contract, showing Contractor as the insured and showing coverage 
and limits for the insurances listed above. 

d. If any Product(s) or Service(s) will be provided by parties other than Contractor, all such 
parties are required to carry the insurance coverages specified herein, and if requested by H-
GAC, a separate insurance certificate must be submitted for each such party. 

 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS FOR INDIVIDUAL ORDERS 

 

H-GAC’s contractual requirements DO NOT include a Performance & Payment Bond (PPB); therefore, 
Contractor shall offer pricing that reflects this cost savings. Contractor shall remain prepared to offer a PPB to 
cover any order if so requested by the END USER. Contractor shall quote a price to END USER for 
provision of any requested PPB, and agrees to furnish the PPB within ten business (10) days of receipt of END 
USER's purchase order. 

 
ARTICLE 10: CHANGE OF STATUS 

 

Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC, in writing, of ANY change in ownership, control, 
dealership/franchisee status, Motor Vehicle license status, or name. Contractor shall offer written guidance to 
advise H-GAC if this Agreement shall be affected in any way by such change. H-GAC shall have the right to 
determine whether or not such change is acceptable, and to determine what action shall be warranted, up to and 
including cancellation of Agreement. 

 
 

157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
 

Cooperative Agreement - Motorola Solutions, Inc. - Public Services - 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council 
hereinafter referred to as H-GAC having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 
120, Houston, Texas 77027 and Motorola Solutions, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, 
having its principal place of business at 500 West Monroe Street, 44th Floor, Chicago, IL 60661. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, H-GAC hereby engages the Contractor to perform certain services in accordance with the 
specifications of the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to perform such services in accordance with the specifications of 
the Agreement; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
Both parties warrant and assure that each possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this 
Agreement. The governing body, where applicable, has authorized the signatory official(s) to enter into 
this Agreement and bind the respective parties to the terms of this Agreement and any subsequent 
amendments hereto. 

 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
The Contractor agrees to conduct all activities under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
rules, regulations, directives, standards, ordinances, and laws, in effect or promulgated during the term 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, workers’ compensation laws, minimum and maximum 
salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations. When required, the 
Contractor shall furnish H-GAC with satisfactory proof of its compliance therewith. 

 
ARTICLE 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The execution of this Agreement and the rendering of services prescribed by this Agreement do not 
change the independent status of H-GAC or the Contractor. No provision of this Agreement or act of   
H- GAC in performance of the Agreement shall be construed as making the Contractor the agent, 
servant or employee of H-GAC, the State of Texas or the United States Government. Employees of the 
Contractor are subject to the exclusive control and supervision of the Contractor. The Contractor is 
solely responsible for employee related disputes and discrepancies, including employee payrolls and any 
claims arising therefrom. 

 
ARTICLE 4: WHOLE AGREEMENT 
The General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Attachments, as provided herein, constitute the complete 
Agreement (“Agreement”) between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and written 
agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
Agreement cannot be modified without written consent of the parties. 

 
 

314



2  

ARTICLE 5: SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The services to be performed by the Contractor are outlined in an Attachment to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 6: PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
This Agreement shall be performed during the period which begins Jul 01 2020 and ends Jun 30 2022. 
All services under this Agreement must be rendered within this performance period, unless directly 
specified under a written change or extension provisioned under Article 15, which shall be fully 
executed by both parties to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT OR FUNDING 
Payment provisions under this Agreement are outlined in the Special Provisions. 

 
ARTICLE 8: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
If the Contractor fails to submit to H-GAC in a timely and satisfactory manner any report required by 
this Agreement, or otherwise fails to satisfactorily render performances hereunder, H-GAC may 
terminate this agreement with notice as identified in Article 16 of these General Provisions. H-GAC 
has final determination of the adequacy of performance and reporting by Contractor. Termination of 
this agreement for failure to perform may affect Contractor’s ability to participate in future 
opportunities with H-GAC. The Contractor's failure to timely submit any report may also be considered 
cause for termination of this Agreement. 

 
Any additional reporting requirements shall be set forth in the Special Provisions of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 9: INSURANCE 
Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for work performed or services rendered under this 
Agreement as outlined and defined in the attached Special Provisions. 

 
ARTICLE 10: SUBCONTRACTS and ASSIGNMENTS 
Except as may be set forth in the Special Provisions, the Contractor agrees not to subcontract, assign, 
transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or any right, title, obligation or interest 
it may have therein to any third party without prior written approval of H-GAC, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Contractor acknowledges that H-GAC is not liable to any subcontractor or 
assignee of the Contractor. The Contractor shall ensure that the performance rendered under all 
subcontracts shall result in compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement as if the 
performance rendered was rendered by the Contractor. Contractor shall give all required notices, and 
comply with all laws and regulations applicable to furnishing and performance of the work. Except 
where otherwise expressly required by applicable law or regulation, H-GAC shall not be responsible 
for monitoring Contractor's compliance, or that of Contractor’s subcontractors, with any laws or 
regulations. 

 
ARTICLE 11: AUDIT 
Notwithstanding any other audit requirement, H-GAC reserves the right to conduct or cause to be 
conducted an independent audit of any transaction under this Agreement, such audit may be performed 
by the H-GAC local government audit staff, a certified public accountant firm, or other auditors 
designated by H-GAC and will be conducted in accordance with applicable professional standards and 
practices. The Contractor understands and agrees that the Contractor shall be liable to the H-GAC for 
any findings that result in monetary obligations to H-GAC. In no circumstances will Contractor be 
required to create or maintain documents not kept in the ordinary course of its business operations, nor 
will Contractor be required to disclose any information, including but not limited to product cost data, 
which it considers confidential or proprietary. 

 

315



3  

ARTICLE 12: EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor shall maintain during the course of the work complete and accurate records of all of the 
Contractor's invoices and pertinent documentation of items which are chargeable to H-GAC under this 
Agreement. H-GAC, through its staff or designated public accounting firm, the State of Texas, and 
United States Government, shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect, copy and audit 
those pertinent records on or off the premises by authorized representatives of its own or any public 
accounting firm selected by H- GAC. The right of access to records is not limited to the required 
retention period, but shall last as long as the records are retained. Failure to provide access to records 
may be cause for termination of the Agreement.  

 
The Contractor further agrees that the examination of records outlined in this article shall be included 
in all subcontractor or third-party agreements. 

 
ARTICLE 13: RETENTION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain all records pertinent to this Agreement for a 
period of seven (7) years from the later of the date of acceptance of the final payment or until all audit 
findings have been resolved. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the 
records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the records shall be retained 
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
seven (7) years, whichever is later, and until any outstanding litigation, audit, or claim has been fully 
resolved. 

 
ARTICLE 14: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 

A. Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this Agreement, which are required by 
changes in federal or state law or by regulations, are automatically incorporated without 
written amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or by 
regulation. 

B. To ensure the legal and effective performance of this Agreement, both parties agree that any 
amendment that affects the performance under this Agreement must be mutually agreed upon 
and that all such amendments must be in writing. After a period of no less than 30 days 
subsequent to written notice, unless sooner implementation is required by law, such 
amendments shall have the effect of qualifying the terms of this Agreement and shall be 
binding upon the parties as if written herein. 

 
ARTICLE 15: TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
The Contractor acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated for Convenience or Default. 

A. Convenience 
H-GAC may terminate this Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, with or without cause, 
whenever H-GAC determines that for any reason such termination is in the best interest of  
H- GAC, by providing thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail to the Contractor. Upon 
receipt of notice of termination, all services hereunder of the Contractor and its employees and 
subcontractors shall cease to the extent specified in the notice of termination. 

 
The Contractor may cancel or terminate this Agreement upon submission of thirty (30) days 
written notice, presented to H-GAC via certified mail. The Contractor may not give notice of 
cancellation after it has received notice of default from H-GAC. 

B. Default 
H-GAC may, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of 
the Agreement, in any one of the following circumstances: 
(1) If the Contractor fails to perform the services herein specified within the time specified 

316



4  

herein or any extension thereof; or 
(2) If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement for any 

reason whatsoever, or so fails to make progress or otherwise violates the Agreements that 
completion of services herein specified within the Agreement term is significantly 
endangered, and in either of these two instances does not cure such failure within a period 
of fifteen (15) days (or such longer period of time as may be authorized by H-GAC in 
writing) after receiving written notice by certified mail of default from H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 
H-GAC and Contractor agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, which shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

 
ARTICLE 17: FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Agreement shall be wholly or partially prevented from the 
performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of 
labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause 
reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, in such event, 
the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to 
perform is removed. The party affected by the Force Majeure will notify the other within fifteen (15) 
days. Determination of force majeure shall rest solely with H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 18: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or subcontractor, no member of the governing body of 
the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or 
responsibilities in the review or Contractor approval of this Agreement, shall participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any 
personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 19: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE 
Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, labor 
standards, and environmental compliance. Additionally, for work to be performed under the Agreement 
or subcontract thereof, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, Contractor shall 
notify each potential subcontractor or supplier of the Contractor's federal compliance obligations. These 
may include, but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 676 et. seq.), (d) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; (e) the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 USC 621 et. seq.) and the Age Discrimination Act of 
1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (f) the 
Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of drug abuse; (g) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, 
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (h) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 
(42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee- 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (i) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (j) any other nondiscrimination 
provisions in any specific statute(s) applicable to any Federal funding for this Agreement; (k) the 
requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to this Agreement; (l) 

317



5  

applicable provisions of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq.), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), 
Executive Order 11738, and the Environmental Protection Agency regulations at 40 CPR Part 15; (m) 
applicable provisions of the Davis• Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 
276c), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-332), as set forth in 
Department of Labor Regulations at 20 CPR 5.5a; (n) the mandatory standards and policies relating to 
energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 

 
ARTICLE 20: CRIMINAL PROVISIONS AND SANCTIONS 
The Contractor agrees to perform the Agreement in conformance with safeguards against fraud and 
abuse as set forth by the H-GAC, the State of Texas, and the acts and regulations of any related state 
or federal agency. The Contractor agrees to promptly notify H-GAC of any actual or suspected fraud, 
abuse, or other criminal activity through the filing of a written report within twenty-four (24) hours of 
knowledge thereof. Contractor shall notify H-GAC of any serious accident or incident requiring 
medical attention arising from its activities under this Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours of 
such occurrence. Theft or willful damage to property on loan to the Contractor from H-GAC, if any, 
shall be reported to local law enforcement agencies and H-GAC within two (2) hours of discovery of 
any such act. 

 
The Contractor further agrees to cooperate fully with H-GAC, local law enforcement agencies, the State 
of Texas, the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any other duly authorized investigative unit, in 
carrying out a full investigation of all such incidents. 

 
The Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against the 
Contractor pertaining to this Agreement or which would adversely affect the Contractor’s ability to 
perform services under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 21: INDEMNIFICATION AND RECOVERY 
H-GAC’s liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to its order processing charge. In no event will H-GAC be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, lost profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend and hold harmless H-GAC, its board 
members, officers, agents, officials, employees and indemnities from any and all claims, costs, expenses 
(including reasonable attorney fees), actions, causes of action, judgements, and liens arising as a result 
of Contractor’s negligent act or omission under this Agreement. Contractor shall notifyH-GAC of the 
threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against Contractor relating to this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 22: LIMITATION OF CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
Except as specified in any separate writing between the Contractor and an END USER, Contractor’s 
total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, but excluding its obligation to indemnify H-GAC, is limited to the price 
of the particular products/services sold hereunder, and Contractor agrees either to refund the 
purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. In no event will 
Contractor be liable for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, loss of profits or 
savings or other incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be 
disclaimed by law. Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be liable to repay and shall repay 
upon demand to END USER any amounts determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any 
agency of State or Federal government to have been paid in violation of the terms of this Agreement. 

 

318



6  

ARTICLE 23: TITLES NOT RESTRICTIVE 
The titles assigned to the various Articles of this Agreement are for convenience only. Titles shall not 
be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any Article, or part of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 24: JOINT WORK PRODUCT 
This Agreement is the joint work product of H-GAC and the Contractor. This Agreement has been 
negotiated by H-GAC and the Contractor and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in 
accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against 
any party. 

 
ARTICLE 25: DISPUTES 
All disputes concerning questions of fact or of law arising under this Agreement, which are not 
addressed within the Whole Agreement as defined pursuant to Article 4 hereof, shall be decided by the 
Executive Director of H-GAC or his designee, who shall reduce his decision to writing and provide 
notice thereof to the Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director or his designee shall be final 
and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Contractor 
requests a rehearing from the Executive Director of H-GAC. In connection with any rehearing under 
this Article, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of 
its position. The decision of the Executive Director after any such rehearing shall be final and 
conclusive. The Contractor may, if it elects to do so, appeal the final and conclusive decision of the 
Executive Director to a court of competent jurisdiction. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Agreement and in accordance with 
H• GAC's final decision. 

 
ARTICLE 26: CHOICE OF LAW: VENUE 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue and jurisdiction of any suit 
or cause of action arising under or in connection with the Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris 
County, Texas. Disputes between END USER and Contractor are to be resolved in accordance with the 
law and venue rules of the state of purchase. Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC of such 
disputes. 

 
ARTICLE 27: ORDER OF PRIORITY 
In the case of any conflict between or within this Agreement, the following order of priority shall be 
utilized: 1) General Provisions, 2) Special Provisions, 3) Scope of Work, and, 4) Other Attachments. 

319



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNATURES: 
H-GAC and the Contractor have read, agreed, and executed the whole Agreement as of the date first 
written above, as accepted by: 

 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
 
                                  
Signature   $docusign:SignHere::Customer1  
 
Name     Dan Twohig   
           
Title     Vice President, Next Gen Core Svcs  
 
Date     docusign:DateSigned::Customer1 

H-GAC 
 
 
Signature   $docusign:SignHere::InternalSigner 
 
Name       Chuck Wemple 
 
Title         Executive Director 
 
Date  $docusign:DateSigned::InternalSign 

 

320



 

 

H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Motorola Solutions, Inc. - Public Services - 18-00196 

 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
 

Incorporated by attachment, as part of the whole agreement, H-GAC and the Contractor do, hereby agree to the 
Special Provisions as follows: 

 
 

ARTICLE 1: BIDS/PROPOSALS INCORPORATED 
 

In addition to the whole Agreement, the following documents listed in order of priority are incorporated into 
the Agreement by reference: Bid/Proposal Specifications and Contractor’s Response to the Bid/Proposal. 

 
 

 ARTICLE 2: END USER AGREEMENTS (“EUA”) 
 

H-G AC acknowledges that the END USER may choose to enter into an End User Agreement (“EUA”) with the 
Contractor through this Agreement, and that the term of the EUA may exceed the term of the current H-GAC 
Agreement. H-GAC’s acknowledgement is not an endorsement or approval of the End User Agreement’s 
terms and conditions. Contractor agrees not to offer, agree to or accept from the END USER, any terms or 
conditions that conflict with those in Contractor’s Agreement with H-GAC. Contractor affirms that 
termination of its Agreement with H-GAC for any reason shall not result in the termination of any underlying 
EUA, which shall in each instance, continue pursuant to the EUA’s stated terms and duration. Pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement, termination of this Agreement will disallow the Contractor from entering into any 
new EUA with END USERS. Applicable H-GAC order processing charges will be due and payable to H-GAC 
on any EUAs, surviving termination of this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor. 

ARTICLE 3: MOST FAVORED CUSTOMER CLAUSE 

If at any time during this Agreement, Contractor develops a regularly followed standard procedure of entering 
into agreements with other governmental customers within the State of Texas, and offers the same or 
substantially the same products/services offered to H-GAC on a basis that provides prices, warranties, benefits, 
and or terms more favorable than those provided to H-GAC, Contractor shall notify H-GAC within ten (10) 
business days thereafter, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically retroactively amended, to the 
effective date of Contractor’s most favorable past agreement with another entity. Contractor shall provide the 
same prices, warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and its END USER as provided in its most favorable past 
agreement. H-GAC shall have the right and option at any time to decline to accept any such change, in which 
case the amendment shall be deemed null and void. If Contractor claims that a more favorable price, warranty, 
benefit, or term that was charged or offered to another entity during the term of this Agreement, does not 
constitute more favorable treatment, than Contractor shall, within ten (10) business days, notify H-GAC in 
writing, setting forth the detailed reasons Contractor believes the aforesaid offer is not in fact most favored 
treatment. H-GAC, after due consideration of Contractor’s written explanation, may decline to accept such 
explanation and thereupon this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor shall be automatically amended, 
effective retroactively, to the effective date of the most favored agreement, to provide the same prices, 
warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and the END USER. 
EXCEPTION: This clause shall not be applicable to the sale of large communications systems (one 

321



 

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and above). The term “Communication Systems” shall refer to a project 
that includes the sale of infrastructure hardware and/or software, user devices, and Contractor 
engineering and installation service. The contract for a “Communication System” will always have a 
Statement of Work and an Acceptance Test Plan.  This clause shall also not be applicable to pre-existing 
contracts Contractor has in the State of Texas. The term ”pre-existing” shall refer to contracts in 
existence as of the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 4: PARTY LIABILITY 

 

Contractor’s total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to the price of the particular products/services sold hereunder. 
Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. 
Contractor accepts liability to repay, and shall repay upon demand to END USER, any amounts determined by 
H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any state or federal agency, to have been paid in violation of the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNING LAW & VENUE 

 

Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor will make every reasonable effort to resolve disputes the END 
USER in accord with the law and venue rules of the state of purchase. Contractor shall immediately notify H- 
GAC of such disputes. 

 
ARTICLE 6: SALES AND ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE 

 

Contractor shall sell its products to END USERS based on the pricing and terms of this Agreement. H-GAC 
will invoice Contractor for the applicable order processing charge when H-GAC receives notification of an 
END USER order. Contractor shall remit to H-GAC the full amount of the applicable order processing 
charge, after delivery of any product or service and subsequent END USER acceptance. Payment of the Order 
Processing Charge shall be remitted from Contractor to H-GAC, within thirty (30) calendar days or ten (10) 
business days after receipt of an END USER’s payment, whichever comes first, notwithstanding Contractor’s 
receipt of invoice. For sales made by Contractor based on this Agreement, including sales to entities without 
Interlocal Agreements, Contractor shall pay the applicable order processing charges to H-GAC. Further, 
Contractor agrees to encourage entities who are not members of H-GAC’s Cooperative Purchasing Program to 
execute an H-GAC Interlocal Agreement. H-GAC reserves the right to take appropriate actions including, but 
not limited to, Agreement termination if Contractor fails to promptly remit the appropriate order processing 
charge to H-GAC. In no event shall H-GAC have any liability to Contractor for any goods or services an 
END USER procures from Contractor. At all times, Contractor shall remain liable to pay to H-GAC any 
order processing charges on any portion of the Agreement actually performed, and for which compensation was 
received by Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 7: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 

Any liquidated damage terms will be determined between Contractor and End User at the time End User’s purchase 
order is placed. 

 
ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 

 

Unless otherwise stipulated in Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications, Contractor must have the 
following insurance and coverage: 

a. General liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and 
a General Aggregate limit of $2,000,000. 
Product liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a 

322



 

General Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit for all Products 
except Automotive Fire Apparatus.  For Automotive Fire Apparatus, see Section B of the 
Bid/Proposal Specifications. 
Property Damage or Destruction insurance is required for coverage of End User owned 
equipment while in Contractor's possession, custody or control.  The minimum Single 
Occurrence limit is $500,000.00 and the General Aggregate limit must be at least two times 
the Single Occurrence limit. This insurance may be carried in several ways, e.g. under an 
Inland Marine policy, as part of Automobile coverage, or under a Garage Keepers policy. In 
any event, this coverage must be specifically and clearly listed on insurance certificate(s) 
submitted to H-GAC. 

b. Insurance coverage shall be in effect for the length of any contract made pursuant to the 
Bid/Proposal, and for any extensions thereof, plus the number of days/months required to 
deliver any outstanding order after the close of the contract period. 

c. PDF Insurance Certificates must be furnished to H-GAC after contract execution and at policy 
renewal during term of contract, showing Contractor as the insured and showing coverage 
and limits for the insurances listed above. 

d. If any Product(s) or Service(s) will be provided by parties other than Contractor, all such 
parties are required to carry the insurance coverages specified herein, and if requested by H-
GAC, a separate insurance certificate must be submitted for each such party. 

 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS FOR INDIVIDUAL ORDERS 

 

H-GAC’s contractual requirements DO NOT include a Performance & Payment Bond (PPB); therefore, 
Contractor shall offer pricing that reflects this cost savings. Contractor shall remain prepared to offer a PPB to 
cover any order if so requested by the END USER. Contractor shall quote a price to END USER for 
provision of any requested PPB, and agrees to furnish the PPB within ten business (10) days of receipt of END 
USER's purchase order. 

 
ARTICLE 10: CHANGE OF STATUS 

 

Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC, in writing, of ANY change in ownership, control, 
dealership/franchisee status, Motor Vehicle license status, or name. Contractor shall offer written guidance to 
advise H-GAC if this Agreement shall be affected in any way by such change. H-GAC shall have the right to 
determine whether or not such change is acceptable, and to determine what action shall be warranted, up to and 
including cancellation of Agreement. 

 
 

323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0

Sales Support Specialist: Jennifer Caviles Account Rep: Jamie Johnson
Phone: 847-576-1074 Phone: (619) 674-6599
E-Mail: Jennifer.Caviles@MotorolaSolutions.com E-Mail: jamie.johnson@motorolasolutions.com

Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Hardware/Software 154,267.45$              
Implementation, Project Management and Training 127,275.87$              
Software Support 122,891.26$              
24x7 Onsite Maintenance 27,000.00$                
Hardware Warranties 8,689.03$                  
Extended Warranties 6,794.42$                  

VESTA 9-1-1 446,918.03$              

Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services

Optional Advanced Cybersecurity Services 134,877.68$              

Optional Items

Optional Parts/Spares 15,139.67$               

VESTA Map Local 31,085.43$               

Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc.. Contact Information

Summary - 5 YEAR

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 1 of 1
480



.

Quote Date: 8/10/2022

Quote No.: MSI3515597B-1

Site No.: NEW

Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Customer Information
Customer: Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Contact: 0 Yrs Support Ext Warranty

5 5nbd

Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc.. Contact Information
Sales Support Specialist: Jennifer Caviles Account Rep: Jamie Johnson

Phone: 847-576-1074 Phone: (619) 674-6599

E-Mail: Jennifer.Caviles@MotorolaSolutions.com E-Mail: jamie.johnson@motorolasolutions.com

VESTA® 9-1-1  
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

VESTA® 9-1-1  

2 870899-0104R7.9 V911 R7.9 LIC/DOC/MED 2,002.60 EA $4,005.20

1 873099-03002 V911 CAD INTF KIT 591.75 EA $591.75

1 870891-66101 V911 CAD INTFC LIC ONLY 294.76 EA $294.76

VM Medium Server Bundle 

Note:  The Medium Server Bundle is for PSAP's up to 40 

positions with an annual call volume of 500,000 or less.

1 853031-DLSVRSG-2 V-DL MED SVR BNDL SNGL 26,369.70 EA $26,369.70

2 06500-00201 2-POST RELAY RACK MNT KIT 416.42 EA $832.84

1 870890-75002 VIRTUAL MEDIA SET R7.0 016 0.00 EA $0.00

2 04000-68005 V-SVR BASIC SPT 1YR 102.52 EA Optional

2 04000-68009 V-SVR BASIC SPT 5YR 509.53 EA $1,019.06

VESTA® 9-1-1 Features

ESInet Interface Module (EIM)

Note: Pricing is provided for budgetary purposes only.  

Equipment/service requirements may change upon selection 

of ESInet Service Provider.

2 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00

2 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $1,275.96

Note: Firewall supports Call and Text Handling for ESInet 

Interface Module (EIM), Text to 9-1-1 and Direct PSAP 

Interconnect (DPI).  EIM & SMS to Share Firewall.

2 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $1,322.26

2 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $336.98

1 04000-00570 M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL W/1YR SPT 10,017.32 EA $10,017.32

Note: An M800C Session Border Controller (SBC) is required 

for all i3 deployments.

1 04000-00571 WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41

1 04000-00571 WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41

1 04000-00571 WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41

1 04000-00571 WARR M800C HA PAIR PSAP BNDL ADDTL 1YR 1,676.41 EA $1,676.41

208 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS 79.17 EA $16,467.36
Note: FE for installing i3 EIM and/or DPI, post VESTA 

installation.

Includes:

 - Firewall Configuration

 - EIM Configuration

 - Carrier Failover Testing

 - Operational Readiness Testing

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 1 of 16481



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

2 809800-51009 PROJECT MGMT - SUPPORT 1,700.42 EA $3,400.84

VESTA® SMS

Note:  Customer is responsible for Text Control Center 

(TCC) services and network charges.

2 870891-66301 VESTA 9-1-1 SMS LIC 0.00 EA $0.00

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4

1 809810-00102 V911 ADV DATA LVL 1 ANNUAL SUB 0.00 EA $0.00

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5

VESTA RapidSOS

1 809810-00103 V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL SUB 884.28 EA $884.28

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 1

1 809810-00103 V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL SUB 884.28 EA $884.28

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 2

1 809810-00103 V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL SUB 884.28 EA $884.28

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 3

1 809810-00103 V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL SUB 884.28 EA $884.28

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 4

1 809810-00103 V911 ADV DATA LVL 2 STD ANNUAL SUB 884.28 EA $884.28

Note: Annual Subscription - Year 5

VESTA® 9-1-1 CDR Module

Note: Customer to provide CDR Printer

2 873099-00602 V911 CDR SVR LIC 1,290.67 EA $2,581.34

2 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $212.14

VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations

2 PS-0SQ-VSML VS BSC MLTP PER SEAT LIC 2,936.40 EA $5,872.80

2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-1Y SPT VS BSC 1YR 1,453.68 EA Optional

2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,654.40 EA $11,308.80

VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to VESTA® 9-1-1 Advanced Licenses

Note: Advanced licenses required for RapidSOS

2 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00

2 SA-0AD-VSSL-1Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 1YR 396.36 EA Optional

2 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,542.00 EA $3,084.00

VESTA® 9-1-1 IRR Module

2 873099-00502 V911 IRR LIC/MED 1,177.91 EA $2,355.82

2 809800-35110 V911 IRR SW SPT 1YR 244.56 EA Optional

2 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 816.60 EA $1,633.20

VESTA® Workstation Equipment 

2 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA $2,464.46

2 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $243.54

4 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $1,835.04

2 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA $407.96

2 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA $44.66

2 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,514.50 EA $5,029.00

4 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA $150.24

2 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $414.12

2 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA $28.42

2 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA $79.18

2 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA $8.12

2 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $533.90

2 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $801.86

1 870890-07501 CPR/SYSPREP MEDIA IMAGE 0.00 EA $0.00

VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin Printer

1 64040-60019 PRNTR USB/ETHERNET COLOR 318.99 EA $318.99

Note:  Inkjet Color printer.  Recommended monthly volume, 

7,500 pages.

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 2 of 16482



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

1 65000-13403 CBL USB 2.0 A/B 10FT 4.70 EA $4.70

Network Equipment

Note: Firewall supports Remote and Internet Access for 

Managed Services, Remote position access and RapidSOS.

1 03800-03070 FIREWALL 60F 637.98 EA $637.98

1 03800-03075 WARR FIREWALL 60F 5YR 661.13 EA $661.13

1 809800-00201 VPN CFG SVCS 194.88 EA $194.88

1 809800-00200 CFG NTWK DEVICE 168.49 EA $168.49

Switches

Note: Part number includes switch and warranty.

2 04000-09206 SWITCH 9200 24-PORT W/24X7 5YR 5,161.29 EA $10,322.58

2 04000-02919 USB CONSOLE CBL 103.53 EA $207.06

Peripherals & Gateways

2 04000-00129 MED 1000B CHASSIS BNDL 3,184.72 EA $6,369.44

1 870890-74901 V911 M1KB FIRMWARE 0.00 EA $0.00

2 04000-00186 SW SPT M1000 GATEWAY 1YR 400.93 EA Optional

2 04000-00190 SW SPT M1000 GATEWAY 5YR 2,002.60 EA $4,005.20

2 04000-00116 MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL 520.76 EA $1,041.52

2 04000-00119 MED 1000 FXS-O BNDL 497.26 EA $994.52

ALI/CAD Output

1 04000-00159 BLKBX TL159A 8-PORT DATACAST 746.36 EA $746.36

8 65000-00262 KIT CBL RJ11 ADPTR DB25 17.26 EA $138.08

Rack & Peripheral Equipment

1 06500-55053 7FT EQUIPMENT RACK 19IN 366.42 EA $366.42

1 63000-192610 MNTR LCD 19IN 479.40 EA $479.40

1 04000-00809 KVM 8-PORT SWITCH USB 698.42 EA $698.42

Time Synchronization Equipment

1 04000-09483 NETCLOCK 9483 8,512.64 EA $8,512.64

1 04000-08230 GPS/GNSS OUTDOOR ANTENNA 492.56 EA $492.56

1 04000-08231 GPS ANTENNA POST MT KIT 188.94 EA $188.94

1 04000-08236 GPS PVC POST MNT 143.82 EA $143.82

1 04000-08228 GPS ANTENNA SURG PROTECTR 301.46 EA $301.46

1 04000-20601 GND KIT FOR 8226 422.24 EA $422.24

2 04000-13150 CBL GPS ANTENNA 150FT 573.48 EA $1,146.96

Subtotal $154,713.46

VESTA® 9-1-1 IP Phones
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

VESTA® 9-1-1 Phones

1 870809-00901 IP PHN LIC ENH 353.94 EA $353.94

1 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA $373.18

1 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA $316.78

1 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA $66.99

ESInet Interface Module (EIM)

1 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00

VESTA® 9-1-1 CDR Module

1 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $106.07

VESTA® Analytics - Standard Multi Product Purchase

1 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $954.61

1 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional

1 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $667.80

VESTA® 9-1-1 Backup 911 IP Phones

4 870809-00901 IP PHN LIC ENH 353.94 EA $1,415.76

4 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA $1,492.72

4 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA $1,267.12

4 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA $267.96

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 3 of 16483



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Network Equipment for IP Phones

Note: Phones to be powered via the AC power adapter that is 

included with the phone.

Subtotal $7,282.93

VESTA® CommandPOST
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

ESInet Interface Module (EIM)

2 873090-11102 V911 LIC EIM MOD 0.00 EA $0.00

VESTA® 9-1-1  CDR Module

2 873099-01102 V911 CDR PER SEAT LIC 106.07 EA $212.14

VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic Operations

2 PS-0SQ-VSML VS BSC MLTP PER SEAT LIC 2,936.40 EA $5,872.80

2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-1Y SPT VS BSC 1YR 1,453.68 EA Optional

2 SS-0SQ-VSSL-5Y SPT VS BSC 5YR 5,654.40 EA $11,308.80

VESTA® 9-1-1 Basic/Prime to VESTA® 9-1-1 Advanced Licenses

Note: Advanced licenses required for RapidSOS

2 PA-0AD-VSSL VADV LIC ADD-ON 0.00 EA $0.00

2 SA-0AD-VSSL-1Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 1YR 396.36 EA Optional

2 SA-0AD-VSSL-5Y SPT VADV ADD-ON 5YR 1,542.00 EA $3,084.00

VESTA® 9-1-1  IRR Module

2 873099-00502 V911 IRR LIC/MED 1,177.91 EA $2,355.82

2 809800-35110 V911 IRR SW SPT 1YR 244.56 EA Optional

2 809800-35114 V911 IRR SW SPT 5YR 816.60 EA $1,633.20

CommandPOST Hardware

2 61050-G819605-5Y HP LAPTOP W/O OS & WARR 5YR 2,614.64 EA $5,229.28

2 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $243.54

2 65000-00263 DOCK STATION THUNDERBOLT KIT 543.03 EA $1,086.06

2 64021-10025 KYBD/MOUSE BNDL 72.38 EA $144.76

4 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $1,835.04

2 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA $44.66

2 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA $407.96

2 853004-00301 CPOST SAM HDWR KIT 3,384.00 EA $6,768.00

2 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA $75.12

2 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA $414.12

2 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA $28.42

2 809800-35109 V911 IWS CFG 266.95 EA $533.90

2 809800-35108 V911 IWS STG FEE 400.93 EA $801.86

VESTA® Analytics Licensing & Support

2 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $1,909.22

2 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional

2 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $1,335.60

Subtotal $45,324.30

VESTA® Analytics
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

VESTA® Analytics Standard - Multi Product Purchase

1 873399-00103.6 V-ANLYT 3.6 MED 0.00 EA $0.00

1 873391-00501 V-ANLYT STD LIC 2,786.78 EA $2,786.78

1 873391-00301 V-ANLYT USER LIC 1,045.04 EA $1,045.04

2 PA-MSG-ASSL V-ANLYT STD PER SEAT LIC 954.61 EA $1,909.22

2 SA-MSG-ALSL-1Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 1YR 171.96 EA Optional

2 SA-MSG-ALSL-5Y SPT V-ANLYT STD 5YR 667.80 EA $1,335.60

VESTA® Analytics Standard Server Equipment for Virtualized Server Bundle

Note: Additional Hardware to be installed in DDS-B Server.

1 BA-M00-ASA0-3 V-ANLYT STD ADD-ON 7,035.98 EA $7,035.98

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 4 of 16484



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

VESTA® Analytics Standalone Workstation Equipment

1 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA $1,232.23

1 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA $121.77

1 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA $458.76

1 809800-00102 GENERIC WKST CFG FEE 459.80 EA $459.80

Subtotal $16,385.18

Managed Services
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

Monitoring & Response (M&R): Activation Fee

1 809800-14150 M&R ACT FEE, SMALL SITE 1,821.93 EA $1,821.93

Monitoring, PM & AV Service: Servers

Note: Includes (2) DDS Servers, (1) VESTA Analytics 

Server

3 04000-00398 M&R SVR AGENT LIC 526.79 EA $1,580.37

3 809800-16361 M&R PM AV SVR SRVC 1YR 1,966.20 EA Optional

3 809800-16365 M&R PM AV SVR SRVC 5YR 8,588.40 EA $25,765.20

Monitoring, PM & AV Service: Workstations

Note: Includes (2) Workstations, (1) Management Console, 

(1) Analytics Admin Workstations, (2) Laptop (In order to 

provide Managed Services offerings for CommandPOST 

positions, they are required to be connected to the VESTA 

9-1-1 system and active at all times.).

6 04000-00399 M&R WKST AGENT LIC 154.28 EA $925.68

6 809800-16377 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 1YR 792.72 EA Optional

6 809800-16381 M&R PM AV WKST SRVC 5YR 3,541.80 EA $21,250.80

Monitoring, PM & AV Service: IP Devices
Note: Includes (2) Virtual Host/Machines, (2) MDS Servers, 

(1) ASN Node, (1) ASN Repo, (1) ASN Node 2, (2) 

Firewalls for EIM/SMS, (2) SBC Gateway Devices for EIM,  

(1) Firewall for Internet/Remote Access, (2) Cisco 

Switches, (2) M1K Gateways,  (1) 8TB NAS Device

17 04000-00400 M&R NETWORK/IP AGENT LIC 85.26 EA $1,449.42

17 809800-16343 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 1YR 424.32 EA Optional

17 809800-16347 M&R IP DEVICE SRVC 5YR 1,825.80 EA $31,038.60

Subtotal $83,832.00

Optional Parts/Spares
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

Gateways and Equipment

1 04000-00127-SP MED 1000B CHASSIS SPARE 2,625.42 EA Optional

1 870890-74901 V911 M1KB FIRMWARE 0.00 EA Optional

1 04000-00116 MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL 520.76 EA Optional

1 04000-00119 MED 1000 FXS-O BNDL 497.26 EA Optional

Cables and Switches

Note: Part number includes switch and warranty.

1 04000-09206 SWITCH 9200 24-PORT W/24X7 5YR 5,161.29 EA Optional

1 04000-02919 USB CONSOLE CBL 103.53 EA Optional

VESTA IP Phones

1 04000-16867 6867I PHN/ADPTR KIT 373.18 EA Optional

1 04000-01685 685I KEY EXP MOD 316.78 EA Optional

1 04000-51028 PWR SPLY 6867 PHN 34.78 EA Optional

1 809800-10201 IP PHN CFG FEE PER PHN 66.99 EA Optional

ProDesk Mini Workstation Equipment

1 61000-409620 DKTP ELITE MINI 800 G6 W/O OS 1,232.23 EA Optional

1 04000-00448 WINDOWS 10 LTSC LIC 21H2 121.77 EA Optional

1 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS 458.76 EA Optional

1 64007-50022 KEYPAD 24-KEY USB CBL 25FT 203.98 EA Optional

1 04000-13363 CBL DP M/M 25FT BLK 22.33 EA Optional

1 853030-00302 V911 SAM HDWR KIT 2,514.50 EA Optional

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 5 of 16485



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

1 833401-00101G-15 CBL SAM JKBX 15FT 37.56 EA Optional

1 853004-00401 SAM EXT SPKR KIT 207.06 EA Optional

1 65000-00124 CBL PATCH 15FT 14.21 EA Optional

1 02800-20501 HDST 4W MOD ELEC MIC BLK 39.59 EA Optional

1 03044-20000 HDST CORD 12FT 4W MOD BLK 4.06 EA Optional

1 809800-00102 GENERIC WKST CFG FEE 459.80 EA Optional

1 04000-01594 WARR NBD 600/705/805 G2/G3/G4/G5/G6 5YR 123.83 EA Optional

Subtotal $0.00

Extended Warranties
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

Server Extended Warranty

Note: Includes (2) VESTA 9-1-1 Servers

2 04000-01621 WARR NBD DL380G10 5YR 3,149.55 EA $6,299.10

Note:  Upgrade & uplift from 3 yr warranty 9x5 NBD to 5 

yrs, 9x5 NBD response time.

Workstation Extended Warranty

Note: Includes (2) Workstations, (1) Management Console, 

(1) Analytics Admin Workstations

4 04000-01594 WARR NBD 600/705/805 G2/G3/G4/G5/G6 5YR 123.83 EA $495.32

Note:  Warranty upgrade from 3 yrs warranty 9x5 NBD to 5 

yrs 9x5 NBD.

Subtotal $6,794.42

VESTA® Services
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

Services to Support VESTA® SMS

90 809800-17006-SMS FIELD ENG-EXPRESS SMS 79.17 EA $7,125.30

43 809800-51007-SMS PROJECT MGMT - REMOTE SMS COORDINATION 100.49 EA $4,321.07

1 000001-06805-SMS E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS ADMIN DELTA TR - SMS SVC 530.85 EA $530.85
Note:  Remote Field Engineering support to perform the 

configuration of VESTA SMS. Services include: 

* Firewall Configuration

* VESTA 911 / VESTA SMS configuration

* Import of VESTA SMS VM's (if applicable)

* Preparation of screen layouts

* TCC Testing

* Carrier Testing

* Express Field Engineering Services

* Remote Project Management

* E-Learn SMS Admin Delta Training Course

1 000001-06806 E-LEARN V9-1-1 SMS AGENT DELTA TRNG 316.68 EA $316.68

Note:  E-Learning for VESTA SMS AGENT is a computer-

based training course. The course is for up to a maximum 

of 10 students. E-Learning course is available for each 

student for 365 days.

Project Management Services

5 809800-51009 PROJECT MGMT - SUPPORT 1,700.42 EA $8,502.10

Note:  Support PM is Remote only.

MSI Direct Services

1 809800-17035 MSI DIRECT SITE READINESS SVCS 17,414.08 EA $17,414.08

Note: Cold Install/Rack and Stack

1 809800-51010 MSI DIRECT PM 1,980.00 EA $1,980.00

1 809800-00132 MSI DIRECT ENGINEERING SERVICES 52,242.25 EA $52,242.25

1 809800-17041 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 1YR 5,400.00 EA Optional

1 809800-17045 MSI DIRECT MAINT SVC - 5YR 27,000.00 EA $27,000.00

Training

2 000001-06701 V9-1-1 AGENT TRNG 1,298.19 EA $2,596.38

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 6 of 16486



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Agent bundle includes (1) 1/2 day 

class of Agent training for up to 8 students.  Includes 

trainer's daily training expenses and travel. VESTA® 9-1-1 

Agent training does not include training on the SIP phones.  

SIP phone training is a separate class and can be quoted 

upon request.

1 000001-06704 V9-1-1 ADMIN FOR STD 4,325.93 EA $4,325.93

Note:  VESTA® 9-1-1 Admin bundle includes (1) 1 1/2 day 

class of Admin training for up to 8 students.  Includes 

trainer's daily training expenses and travel. 

1 000001-06807 E-LEARN V9-1-1 SIP TRNG 316.68 EA $316.68

1 000001-06795 CPOST ON-SITE TRNG 0.00 EA $0.00

Note:  On-site training included as part of the VESTA® 9-1-

1 Admin training using customer equipment.  

CommandPOST positions must be configured to the 

network/firewall prior to training. This is a 15 minute 

demonstration on how to use the CommandPOST position.

1 000002-24404 V-ANLYT ADMIN TRNG 2,162.97 EA $2,162.97

Note:  VESTA® Analytics Admin bundle includes (1) 1 day 

class of Admin training for up to 8 students.  Includes 

trainer's daily training expenses and travel. 

Cutover Coaching

1 000001-08541 CUTOVER COACHING 3,751.44 EA $3,751.44

Note:  Cutover Coaching includes (1) 8 hour session within 

a 24 hour day.  Includes trainer's daily training expenses 

and travel.

Subtotal $132,585.74

Quote Summary
PRODUCT TOTAL

VESTA 9-1-1 $154,713.46

VESTA 9-1-1 IP Phones $7,282.93

VESTA CommandPOST $45,324.30

VESTA Analytics $16,385.18

Managed Services $83,832.00

Optional Parts/Spares $0.00

Extended Warranties $6,794.42

VESTA Services $132,585.74

Vesta Solutions Discounts/Incentives * $0.00

MAIN QUOTE SUBTOTAL $446,918.03

GRAND TOTAL $446,918.03

Power Draw Information
Product Total Amps

VESTA 9-1-1 36.55

VESTA 9-1-1 IP Phones 0

VESTA CommandPOST 0

VESTA Analytics 0.9

Managed Services 0

Total Amps 37.45

Total Watts/VA 4494

Total KVA 4.494

BTU's 12273.114

Configuration Notes
Licenses and support for Citizen Input and Smart Transcription must be purchased as quoted.

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 7 of 16487



Lemoore Police CA
Singleback Room VESTA 9-1-1

Additional Comments
Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this quote.

*Discount/Incentive Codes are provided for Vesta Solutions internal use only.  Discount/Incentive Codes do not have to be 
ordered on customer PO's using the codes shown and instead can be applied as a bottom line discount.  

Any line items listed as "Optional" in this quote are not included in the Product Totals, Product Summaries, Site Totals,
Quote Summary, or the Grand Total. These items are not considered to be part of the system. The "Grand Total" on
the Quote Summary page reflects the quote value. This figure includes any and all applicable charges, fees, and or
discounts. Costs for actual freight will be added to your invoice. All pricing is in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise stated.

Strategic Incentives, Discounts, etc.:
Any strategic incentives, discounts, etc. that are applied to this quote are based on the purchase of all non-optional
items listed within the quote. If the quote should change or if items are removed, the incentive is subject to change.

Budgetary Quotes:
Quotes marked Budgetary are nonbinding and subject to change. This quote is being provided as an estimate of
approximate pricing and cannot serve as the basis for any order.

Support Renewals:
If this is a first time renewal and is subject to the agreed upon grace period, then reinstatement fees will not apply as
long as the PO is received prior to the expiration of the grace period. For questions regarding your support renewal
term, please contact Jennifer York at 951-719-2142.

Software Support Start and End Dates are based on active software support agreements. Dates and pricing are subject
to change once existing software support agreements expire.
 
Implementation services 
Field engineering, training and project management units are based on the scope and estimated effort as presented during 
the Quote preparation.  Change orders would be required during a scope or responsibility change between Customer 
and Vesta Solutions.
 
Please refer to the Terms & Conditions tab for additional information related to this Quote.

© 2021 This software is protected by copyright law and international treaties, and is the CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

information of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc. All trademarks, service marks, product names, brands, company names

and logos appearing in this software are the property of their respective owners. VESTA® is a registered trademark

of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc..(hereafter referred to as "Motorola Solutions").

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 8 of 16488



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 9 of 16489



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 10 of 16490



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 11 of 16491



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 12 of 16492



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 13 of 16493



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 14 of 16494



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 15 of 16495



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 16 of 16496



.

Quote Date: 8/10/2022

Quote No.: MSI3515597B-2

Site No.: NEW

Lemoore Police CA
Optional Cybersecurity

Customer Information
Customer: Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Contact: 0 Yrs Support Ext Warranty

5 5nbd

Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc.. Contact Information
Sales Support Specialist: Jennifer Caviles Account Rep: Jamie Johnson

Phone: 847-576-1074 Phone: (619) 674-6599

E-Mail: Jennifer.Caviles@MotorolaSolutions.com E-Mail: jamie.johnson@motorolasolutions.com

Advanced Cybersecurity Services
Qty. Part No. Description HGAC Price U/M Total

Managed Detection and Response - Small

1 CYBER-SM-SML1Y CYBERSECURITY SM, SML 1YR 25,000.00 EA Optional

1 CYBER-SM-SML5Y CYBERSECURITY SM, SML 5YR 132,728.40 EA $132,728.40

Cybersecurity FE Services

16 809800-17007 FIELD ENG-STANDARD 107.59 EA $1,721.44

Subtotal $134,449.84

Quote Summary
PRODUCT TOTAL

Advanced Cybersecurity Services ##############

Vesta Solutions Discounts/Incentives * $0.00

MAIN QUOTE SUBTOTAL ##############

GRAND TOTAL ##############

Configuration Notes
Optional Cybersecurity

Additional Comments
Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this quote.

*Discount/Incentive Codes are provided for Vesta Solutions internal use only.  Discount/Incentive Codes do not have to be 
ordered on customer PO's using the codes shown and instead can be applied as a bottom line discount.  

Any line items listed as "Optional" in this quote are not included in the Product Totals, Product Summaries, Site Totals,
Quote Summary, or the Grand Total. These items are not considered to be part of the system. The "Grand Total" on
the Quote Summary page reflects the quote value. This figure includes any and all applicable charges, fees, and or
discounts. Costs for actual freight will be added to your invoice. All pricing is in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise stated.

Strategic Incentives, Discounts, etc.:
Any strategic incentives, discounts, etc. that are applied to this quote are based on the purchase of all non-optional
items listed within the quote. If the quote should change or if items are removed, the incentive is subject to change.

Budgetary Quotes:

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 1 of 4497



Lemoore Police CA
Optional Cybersecurity

Quotes marked Budgetary are nonbinding and subject to change. This quote is being provided as an estimate of
approximate pricing and cannot serve as the basis for any order.

Support Renewals:
If this is a first time renewal and is subject to the agreed upon grace period, then reinstatement fees will not apply as
long as the PO is received prior to the expiration of the grace period. For questions regarding your support renewal
term, please contact Jennifer York at 951-719-2142.

Software Support Start and End Dates are based on active software support agreements. Dates and pricing are subject
to change once existing software support agreements expire.
 
Implementation services 
Field engineering, training and project management units are based on the scope and estimated effort as presented during 
the Quote preparation.  Change orders would be required during a scope or responsibility change between Customer 
and Vesta Solutions.
 
Please refer to the Terms & Conditions tab for additional information related to this Quote.

© 2021 This software is protected by copyright law and international treaties, and is the CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

information of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc. All trademarks, service marks, product names, brands, company names

and logos appearing in this software are the property of their respective owners. VESTA® is a registered trademark

of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc..(hereafter referred to as "Motorola Solutions").

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 2 of 4498



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 3 of 4499



Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 4 of 4500



.

Quote Date: 8/10/2022

Quote No.: MSI3515597B-3

Site No.: NEW

Lemoore Police CA
Optional VML

Customer Information
Customer: Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Contact: 0

Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc.. Contact Information
Sales Support Specialist: Jennifer Caviles

Phone: 847-576-1074

E-Mail: Jennifer.Caviles@MotorolaSolutions.com

VESTA® CommandPOST
Qty. Part No. Description

VESTA® Map Local

2 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY

2 809800-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 1YR

2 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR

2 6400C-40053 8GB RAM ZBOOK POWER G5/G6/G7/G8

VESTA Map Local Installation

2 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS

Note:  Channel to install RAM onsite.  Vesta Solutions FE 

remote installation/configuration of VML software, map build 

per workstation.

VESTA® Map Local
Qty. Part No. Description

VESTA® Map Local

1 871399-40104.0 VMAP LOCAL R4 BASE LIC-KEY/MED

1 871391-40101.0 VMAP LOCAL BASE LIC ONLY

2 809800-46006 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 1YR

2 809800-46010 VMAP LOCAL BASE SPT 5YR

1 809800-44119 VMAP LOCAL GIS SVCS

VESTA® Map Local - Additional Hardware

2 63010-242801 MNTR HP 24IN TS

VESTA Map Local Installation

10 809800-17006 FIELD ENG-EXPRESS

Note:  Channel to install RAM onsite.  Vesta Solutions FE 

remote installation/configuration of VML software, map build 

per workstation.

VESTA Map Local Training

2 000001-69012 E-LEARN VESTA MAP LOCAL AGENT TRNG

Note: VESTA Map Local Agent training course.  Only 

offered as a computer-based training course. Maximum 

number of students per class is 10.

1 000001-69014 E-LEARN VMAP LOCAL SYS GIS DATA HUB TRNG

Note: VESTA Map Local GIS Hub training course.  Only 

offered as a computer-based training course. Maximum 

number of students per class is 5. 

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 1 of 2
501



Lemoore Police CA
Optional VML

Quote Summary
PRODUCT

VESTA CommandPOST

VESTA Map Local

Vesta Solutions Discounts/Incentives *

MAIN QUOTE SUBTOTAL

GRAND TOTAL

Configuration Notes
Optional VML

Additional Comments
Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this quote.

*Discount/Incentive Codes are provided for Vesta Solutions internal use only.  Discount/Incentive Codes do not have to be 
ordered on customer PO's using the codes shown and instead can be applied as a bottom line discount.  

Any line items listed as "Optional" in this quote are not included in the Product Totals, Product Summaries, Site Totals,
Quote Summary, or the Grand Total. These items are not considered to be part of the system. The "Grand Total" on
the Quote Summary page reflects the quote value. This figure includes any and all applicable charges, fees, and or
discounts. Costs for actual freight will be added to your invoice. All pricing is in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise stated.

Strategic Incentives, Discounts, etc.:
Any strategic incentives, discounts, etc. that are applied to this quote are based on the purchase of all non-optional
items listed within the quote. If the quote should change or if items are removed, the incentive is subject to change.

Budgetary Quotes:
Quotes marked Budgetary are nonbinding and subject to change. This quote is being provided as an estimate of
approximate pricing and cannot serve as the basis for any order.

Support Renewals:
If this is a first time renewal and is subject to the agreed upon grace period, then reinstatement fees will not apply as
long as the PO is received prior to the expiration of the grace period. For questions regarding your support renewal
term, please contact Jennifer York at 951-719-2142.

Software Support Start and End Dates are based on active software support agreements. Dates and pricing are subject
to change once existing software support agreements expire.
 
Implementation services 
Field engineering, training and project management units are based on the scope and estimated effort as presented during 
the Quote preparation.  Change orders would be required during a scope or responsibility change between Customer 
and Vesta Solutions.
 
Please refer to the Terms & Conditions tab for additional information related to this Quote.

© 2021 This software is protected by copyright law and international treaties, and is the CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

information of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc. All trademarks, service marks, product names, brands, company names

and logos appearing in this software are the property of their respective owners. VESTA® is a registered trademark

of Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc..(hereafter referred to as "Motorola Solutions").

Vesta Solutions, Inc. 

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173 http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

Page 2 of 2
502



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0
Account No.: N/A

1. PRODUCTS AND PRICING. 
The term "Products" mean the Products listed herein and more fully described in the specification documents 
for such products. The current pricing for such Products is listed in this Quote.
Quote is valid for 90 days from the date of this quote.
Thereafter pricing may change.

All shipments by Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc., (hereafter referred to as "Motorola Solutions"),
shall be FOB point of origin, freight prepaid and add.

The pricing in this Quote does not Include any applicable taxes such as sales tax, state use tax, etc.

The pricing in this Quote is in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise stated.

2. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
Motorola Solutions' sale of Products to Buyer is subject to the terms and conditions contained in the master 
purchase agreement or other purchase agreement between Motorola Solutions and Buyer.  In the event there is no
purchase agreement in place between the parties, Motorola Solutions will provide a purchase agreement to govern 
the sale of Products to Buyer.

When executing this quote, Customer understands and agrees that the specific equipment listed may 
be subject to change if delays or other issues in Motorola’s supply chain make the listed equipment 

unobtainable in a reasonable time period. Motorola may, in its discretion, change such equipment with 
functionally equivalent equipment and will provide notice of such to Customer, along with the change in costs for the
alternate equipment. Customer agrees to such replacements and to pay differences in cost to Motorola upon 
notice and invoicing.

1. This budgetary proposal is nonbinding and subject to change. The quote provided is an
estimate of approximate pricing and cannot serve as the basis for any order.
2. Field engineering, training and project management units are based on the scope and
estimated effort as presented during the quote preparation. Change orders may be required
during a scope or responsibility change between customer and Motorola Solutions.
3. All pricing in this quote does not include any applicable taxes such as sales tax, state use tax, etc.
4. The pricing in this quote is in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise stated.
5. Motorola Solutions’ sale of products to customer is subject to the terms and conditions

contained in the master purchase agreement or other relevant purchase agreement between
Motorola Solutions and customer. In the event there is no purchase agreement in place
between parties in respect of the relevant Product, Motorola Solutions will provide a purchase
agreement to govern the sale of the relevant products to the Customer.

Terms & Conditions
Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com
503



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0
Account No.: N/A

1. INTRODUCTION
This document defines the Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc., (hereafter referred to as "Motorola Solutions"),
policy for customer requested changes to scheduled field resources that occur with less than the required 14-day notice. 

Motorola Solutions provides many types of field resources, such as Field Engineering, Training, Project Management,
Systems VerificationTesting (SVT), Meridian Implementation and others (“Field Services”).  There is significant demand 

for these Field Services, and Motorola Solutions continuously strives to ensure that our customers’ field needs are

met in the most efficient  manner.  To this end, Motorola Solutions schedules such Field Services well in advance of the 
intended service date.

Cancellations for scheduled Field Services with less than the required 14-day notice negatively impact resource availability 
and cost.  Therefore, Motorola Solutions has implemented a cancellation policy to address these issues.

The Field Services Cancellation Policy will apply to any customer change request that directly or indirectly affects an 
existing resource schedule for Motorola Solutions Field Services.  Motorola Solutions requires all schedule change requests
to be submitted in writing no later than 14 days before the start of the scheduled service (“Notice Period”).  Changes 

received less than 14 days before the start of the scheduled service are subject to a service charge.

Motorola Solutions will make every effort to accommodate change requests from our customers.  However, consideration 
must be given to costs associated with change requests made with less than the required notice.  Motorola Solutions
reserves the right to  determine how the customer requested schedule change for Motorola Solutions provided Field Services 
impacts the cost and availability of the Field Services.

Motorola Solutions Field Services are scheduled in several ways.  After submitting a purchase order that includes Field
Services, the customer can:

• schedule Field Services through the assigned Motorola Solutions Project Manager.

• schedule Field Services through the assigned Motorola Solutions Project Coordinator.

• schedule Field Services directly with the resource manager.

• schedule Field Services in accordance with the process identified in the project plan or associated statement of work,

as applicable.

Once a Field Service has been scheduled, changes must be requested through the same channel as initially scheduled, 
Customers who have any questions about who they should contact to schedule Motorola Solutions Field Services or how to  
make changes to previously scheduled Field Services should contact Motorola Solutions at (951) 719-2100.

2. TYPES OF CHANGES
Motorola Solutions recognizes that there are many factors that drive Field Service schedule changes.  The most common 
types of changes have been divided into three categories:

Category 1:  Changes that result from non-Motorola Solutions controlled milestones and are considered a billable schedule 
change:

• Missed milestone delivery of configuration, material or services.  

• Changes in availability of key personnel (not to include Motorola Solutions personnel).

• Customer or channel requested configuration, installation, or feature changes.

Category 2:  Changes that result from non-Motorola Solutions controlled milestones and may, in Motorola Solutions’s sole

discretion, be considered a billable schedule change:
• Operational commitments that result in disruption of the planned schedule. 

Field Service Cancellation Policy
Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

504



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0
Account No.: N/A

Field Service Cancellation Policy
Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

• Failure of channel provided equipment or materials during the implementation process.

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

505



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0
Account No.: N/A

Field Service Cancellation Policy
Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

 • Acts of God (weather, disaster, etc.).

Category 3:  Changes that result from Motorola Solutions Connectivity, Inc... controlled milestones and are not considered a billable
schedule change:

• Missed Motorola Solutions milestone delivery of configuration, material or services.

• Changes in availability of key Motorola Solutions personnel.

• Failure of equipment or materials provided by Motorola Solutions during the implementation process.

Motorola Solutions reserves the right to determine if any Category 1 or 2 schedule change that occurs after the Notice 
Period for the scheduled Field Service has a cost impact on Motorola Solutions and consequently may be eligible for 
the applicable schedule change service fee.

3. SERVICE FEES FOR TRAINING SCHEDULE CHANGES
Motorola Solutions Factory Training
Student cancellations for classes given at one of our factory training facilities will be accepted within the Notice Period
without penalty.  After that time, cancellations and “no shows” are subject to a service fee not to exceed 50% of

the student’s class tuition.  After that time, cancellations and “no shows” are subject to a service fee not to exceed

 50% of the student’s class tuition.  

Customer Site Training
Scheduled class cancellations for classes given at the customer site will be accepted within the Notice Period without
penalty.  After that time, class cancellations are subject to a service fee not to exceed 50% of the total class fee.
This applies to all  student seats reserved for the cancelled class at the customer site.

4. SERVICE FEES FOR FIELD SERVICE SCHEDULE CHANGES (NON-TRAINING)
Customer requested changes to Field Engineering, Project Management, Systems Verification Testing, Meridian
Implementation and other non-training related Field Services will be accepted within the Notice Period without penalty.
Any change requests outside the Notice Period will be subject to a service fee.

A requested schedule change received after the Notice Period is subject to a service fee up to but not greater 
than 50% of the usual and customary Motorola Solutions labor charge for 5 days of service. 

The service fee will not be considered by Motorola Solutions to be a purchase of additional resource time, and will be
attributed to the project only as a schedule change service fee.

If additional resource time becomes necessary to accommodate the Motorola Solutions project deliverables, they must be
purchased by the customer at the quoted Field Service rate.

5. FIELD SERVICE RESOURCE LEAD TIMES
Motorola Solutions Field Service resources shall be scheduled according to staff availability and standard lead times,
which average six to eight weeks.  

Only those Field Services purchased will be provided.

Special requests shall be considered on a case-by-case basis.  Such requests Inc.lude: 
• Modifications to an existing implementation schedule. 

• Shortened lead time for service requests.

• Non-standard business days or hours of operation.

• Any other factor which may contribute to unanticipated project related costs. 

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

506



Quote Date: 8/10/2022
Quote No.: MSI3515597B

Site No.: 0
Account No.: N/A

Field Service Cancellation Policy
Lemoore Police CA (Direct)

Unless otherwise stated, Field Services and on-site training will be performed during the normal business hours
of 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM local time.  

Vesta Solutions, Inc.

P.O. Box 9007 - 42505 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA  92589 - Tel: 951.719.2100 - Fax: 866.651.8173

http://www.VestaPublicSafety.com

507



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Vesta Solutions, Inc. - Public Services - - 20-00581   

 

Page 1 of 7 
 
 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council  
hereinafter referred to as H-GAC having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 
120, Houston, Texas 77027 and Vesta Solutions, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, having 
its principal place of business at 42555 Rio Nedo, Temecula, CA 92596.  
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, H-GAC hereby engages the Contractor to perform certain services in accordance with the 
specifications of the Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to perform such services in accordance with the specifications of 
the Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
The Contractor warrants and assures H-GAC that it possesses adequate legal authority to enter into 
this Agreement. The Contractor's governing body, where applicable, has authorized the signatory 
official(s) to enter into this Agreement and bind the Contractor to the terms of this Agreement and any 
subsequent amendments hereto. 
 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
The Contractor agrees to conduct all activities under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
rules, regulations, directives, standards, ordinances, and laws, in effect or promulgated during the term 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, workers’ compensation laws, minimum and maximum 
salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the 
Contractor shall furnish H-GAC with satisfactory proof of its compliance therewith. 
 
ARTICLE 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The execution of this Agreement and the rendering of services prescribed by this Agreement do not 
change the independent status of H-GAC or the Contractor. No provision of this Agreement or act of H-
GAC in performance of the Agreement shall be construed as making the Contractor the agent, servant 
or employee of H-GAC, the State of Texas or the United States Government. Employees of the 
Contractor are subject to the exclusive control and supervision of the Contractor.   The Contractor is 
solely responsible for employee related disputes and discrepancies, including employee payrolls and any 
claims arising therefrom.  
 
ARTICLE 4: WHOLE AGREEMENT 
The General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Attachments, as provided herein, constitute the 
complete Agreement (“Agreement”) between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and 
written agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. Except as otherwise provided 
herein, this Agreement cannot be modified without written consent of the parties. 
 
ARTICLE 5: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

508



Page 2 of 7 
 
 

The services to be performed by the Contractor are outlined in an Attachment to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 6: PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
This Agreement shall be performed during the period which begins Jul 01 2020 and ends Jun 30 2022. 
All services under this Agreement must be rendered within this performance period, unless directly 
specified under a written change or extension provisioned under Article 14, which shall be fully 
executed by both parties to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT OR FUNDING 
Payment provisions under this Agreement are outlined in the Special Provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 8: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
If the Contractor fails to submit to H-GAC in a timely and satisfactory manner any report required by 
this Agreement, or otherwise fails to satisfactorily render performances hereunder, H-GAC may 
terminate this agreement with notice as identified in Article 15 of these General Provisions.  H-GAC 
has final determination of the adequacy of performance and reporting by Contractor. Termination of 
this agreement for failure to perform may affect Contractor’s ability to participate in future 
opportunities with H-GAC. The Contractor's failure to timely submit any report may also be considered 
cause for termination of this Agreement. 
 
Any additional reporting requirements shall be set forth in the Special Provisions of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9: INSURANCE 
Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for work performed or services rendered under this 
Agreement as outlined and defined in the attached Special Provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 10: SUBCONTRACTS and ASSIGNMENTS 
Except as may be set forth in the Special Provisions, the Contractor agrees not to subcontract, assign, 
transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or any right, title, obligation or interest 
it may have therein to any third party without prior written approval of H-GAC. The Contractor 
acknowledges that H-GAC is not liable to any subcontractor or assignee of the Contractor. The 
Contractor shall ensure that the performance rendered under all subcontracts shall result in 
compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement as if the performance rendered was 
rendered by the Contractor. Contractor shall give all required notices, and comply with all laws and 
regulations applicable to furnishing and performance of the work. Except where otherwise expressly 
required by applicable law or regulation, H-GAC shall not be responsible for monitoring Contractor's 
compliance, or that of Contractor’s subcontractors, with any laws or regulations. 
 
ARTICLE 11: AUDIT 
Notwithstanding any other audit requirement, H-GAC reserves the right to conduct or cause to be 
conducted an independent audit of any transaction under this Agreement, such audit may be performed 
by the H-GAC local government audit staff, a certified public accountant firm, or other auditors 
designated by H-GAC and will be conducted in accordance with applicable professional standards and 
practices.  The Contractor understands and agrees that the Contractor shall be liable to the H-GAC for 
any findings that result in monetary obligations to H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 12: EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor shall maintain during the course of the work complete and accurate records of all of the 
Contractor's costs and documentation of items which are chargeable to H-GAC under this Agreement. 
H-GAC, through its staff or designated public accounting firm, the State of Texas, and United States 
Government, shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect, copy and audit those records on or 

509



Page 3 of 7 
 
 

off the premises by authorized representatives of its own or any public accounting firm selected by H-
GAC. The right of access to records is not limited to the required retention period, but shall last as long 
as the records are retained. Failure to provide access to records may be cause for termination of the 
Agreement. The records to be thus maintained and retained by the Contractor shall include (without 
limitation): (1) personnel and payroll records, including social security numbers and labor 
classifications, accounting for total time distribution of the Contractor's employees working full or part 
time on the work, as well as cancelled payroll checks, signed receipts for payroll payments in cash, or 
other evidence of disbursement of payroll payments; (2) invoices for purchases, receiving and issuing 
documents, and all other unit inventory records for the Contractor's stocks or capital items; and (3) 
paid invoices and cancelled checks for materials purchased and for subcontractors' and any other third 
parties' charges.   
 
The Contractor further agrees that the examination of records outlined in this article shall be included 
in all subcontractor or third-party agreements.  
 
ARTICLE 13: RETENTION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain all records pertinent to this Agreement, and all 
other financial, statistical, property, participant records, and supporting documentation for a period of 
no less than seven (7) years from the later of the date of acceptance of the final payment or until all 
audit findings have been resolved.  If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving 
the records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the records shall be retained 
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
seven (7) years, whichever is later, and until any outstanding litigation, audit, or claim has been fully 
resolved. 
 
ARTICLE 14: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 

A. Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this Agreement, which are required by 
changes in federal or state law or by regulations, are automatically incorporated without 
written amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or by 
regulation. 

B. To ensure the legal and effective performance of this Agreement, both parties agree that any 
amendment that affects the performance under this Agreement must be mutually agreed upon 
and that all such amendments must be in writing.  After a period of no less than 30 days 
subsequent to written notice, unless sooner implementation is required by law, such 
amendments shall have the effect of qualifying the terms of this Agreement and shall be 
binding upon the parties as if written herein. 

 
ARTICLE 15: TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
The Contractor acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated for Convenience or Default. 

A. Convenience 
H-GAC may terminate this Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, with or without cause, 
whenever H-GAC determines that for any reason such termination is in the best interest of H-
GAC, by providing written notice by certified mail to the Contractor. Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, all services hereunder of the Contractor and its employees and subcontractors 
shall cease to the extent specified in the notice of termination.  
 
The Contractor may cancel or terminate this Agreement upon submission of thirty (30) days 
written notice, presented to H-GAC via certified mail. The Contractor may not give notice of 
cancellation after it has received notice of default from H-GAC.  

B. Default 

510



Page 4 of 7 
 
 

H-GAC may, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of 
the Agreement, in any one of the following circumstances: 
(1) lf the Contractor fails to perform the services herein specified within the time specified 

herein or any extension thereof; or 
(2) If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement for any 

reason whatsoever, or so fails to make progress or otherwise violates the Agreements that 
completion of services herein specified within the Agreement term is significantly 
endangered, and in either of these two instances does not cure such failure within a period 
often (10) days (or such longer period of time as may be authorized by H-GAC in writing) 
after receiving written notice by certified mail of default from H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 
H-GAC and Contractor agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, which shall 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
ARTICLE 17: FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Agreement shall be wholly or partially prevented from the 
performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of 
labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause 
reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, in such event, 
the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to 
perform is removed. Determination of force majeure shall rest solely with H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 18: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or  subcontractor, no member of the governing body of 
the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or 
responsibilities in the review or Contractor approval of this Agreement, shall participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any 
personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 19: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE  
Contractor agrees to comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, labor standards, 
and environmental compliance.  Additionally, for work to be performed under the Agreement or 
subcontract thereof, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, Contractor shall notify 
each potential subcontractor or supplier of the Contractor's federal compliance obligations.  These may 
include, but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of sex; (c) the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 676 et. seq.), (d) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
handicaps and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; (e) the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967 (29 USC 621 et. seq.) and the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 
6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (f) the Drug Abuse Office and 
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug 
abuse; (g) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (h) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (i) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the 
sale, rental or financing of housing; (j) any other nondiscrimination provisions in any specific statute(s) 

511



Page 5 of 7 
 
 

applicable to any Federal funding for this Agreement; (k) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to this Agreement; (l) applicable provisions of the Clean 
Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 
§1251 et seq.), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and the 
Environmental Protection Agency regulations at 40 CPR Part 15; (m) applicable provisions of the 
Davis- Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 276c), and the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-332), as set forth in Department of Labor Regulations 
at 20 CPR 5.5a; (n) the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 
 
ARTICLE 20: CRIMINAL PROVISIONS AND SANCTIONS 
The Contractor agrees to perform the Agreement in conformance with safeguards against fraud and 
abuse as set forth by the H-GAC, the State of Texas, and the acts and regulations of any related state 
or federal agency. The Contractor agrees to promptly notify H-GAC of any actual or suspected fraud, 
abuse, or other criminal activity through the filing of a written report within twenty-four (24) hours of 
knowledge thereof. Contractor shall notify H-GAC of any accident or incident requiring medical 
attention arising from its activities under this Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours of such 
occurrence. Theft or willful damage to property on loan to the Contractor from H-GAC, if any, shall be 
reported to local law enforcement agencies and H-GAC within two (2) hours of discovery of any such 
act. 
 
The Contractor further agrees to cooperate fully with H-GAC, local law enforcement agencies, the State 
of Texas, the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any other duly authorized investigative unit, in 
carrying out a full investigation of all such incidents. 
 
The Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against the 
Contractor pertaining to this Agreement or which would adversely affect the Contractor’s ability to 
perform services under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 21: INDEMNIFICATION AND RECOVERY 
H-GAC’s liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to its order processing charge.  In no event will H-GAC be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, lost profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend and hold harmless H-GAC, its board 
members, officers, agents, officials, employees and indemnities from any and all claims, costs, expenses 
(including reasonable attorney fees), actions, causes of action, judgements, and liens arising as a result 
of Contractor’s negligent act or omission under this Agreement. Contractor shall notifiy H-GAC of the 
threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against Contractor relating to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 22: LIMITATION OF CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
Except as specified in any separate writing between the Contractor and an END USER, Contractor’s 
total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, but excluding its obligation to indemnify H-GAC, is limited to the price of 
the particular products/services sold hereunder, and Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase 
price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted.  In no event will Contractor be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, loss of profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be liable to repay and shall repay upon demand to 

512



Page 6 of 7 
 
 

END USER any amounts determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any agency of State or 
Federal government to have been paid in violation of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 23: TITLES NOT RESTRICTIVE 
The titles assigned to the various Articles of this Agreement are for convenience only. Titles shall not 
be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any Article, or part of this Agreement. 
  
ARTICLE 24: JOINT WORK PRODUCT 
This Agreement is the joint work product of H-GAC and the Contractor.  This Agreement has been 
negotiated by H-GAC and the Contractor and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in 
accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against 
any party. 
 
ARTICLE 25: DISPUTES 
All disputes concerning questions of fact or of law arising under this Agreement, which are not 
addressed within the Whole Agreement as defined pursuant to Article 4 hereof, shall be decided by the 
Executive Director of H-GAC or his designee, who shall reduce his decision to writing and provide 
notice thereof to the Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director or his designee shall be final 
and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Contractor 
requests a rehearing from the Executive Director of H-GAC. In connection with any rehearing under 
this Article, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of 
its position. The decision of the Executive Director after any such rehearing shall be final and 
conclusive.  The Contractor may, if it elects to do so, appeal the final and conclusive decision of the 
Executive Director to a court of competent jurisdiction.  Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Agreement and in accordance with 
H- GAC's final decision. 
 
ARTICLE 26: CHOICE OF LAW: VENUE 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue and jurisdiction of any suit 
or cause of action arising under or in connection with the Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris 
County, Texas.  Disputes between END USER and Contractor are to be resolved in accordance with the 
law and venue rules of the state of purchase.  Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC of such 
disputes. 
 
ARTICLE 27: ORDER OF PRIORITY 
In the case of any conflict between or within this Agreement, the following order of priority shall be 
utilized: 1) General Provisions, 2) Special Provisions, 3) Scope of Work, and, 4) Other Attachments. 
 
  

513



Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
 
SIGNATURES: 
H-GAC and the Contractor have read, agreed, and executed the whole Agreement as of the date first 
written above, as accepted by: 
 
 
Vesta Solutions, Inc.    
                                  
Signature  $docusign:SignHere::Customer1  
 
Name     Dan Twohig   
           
Title     Vice President, Next Gen Core Svcs  
 
Date     $docusign:DateSigned::Customer1  

 
H-GAC 
 
Signature $docusign:SignHere::InternalSigner 
 
Name       Chuck Wemple 
 
Title         Executive Director 
 
Date   $docusign:DateSigned::InternalSigner

 

514



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Vesta Solutions, Inc. - Public Services -    

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
Incorporated by attachment, as part of the whole agreement, H-GAC and the Contractor do, hereby agree to the 
Special Provisions as follows:  
 
 
ARTICLE 1: BIDS/PROPOSALS INCORPORATED 
 
In addition to the whole Agreement, the following documents listed in order of priority are incorporated 
into the Agreement by reference: Bid/Proposal Specifications and Contractor’s Response to the Bid/Proposal. 
  
 
ARTICLE 2: END USER AGREEMENTS (“EUA”) 
 
H-GAC acknowledges that the END USER may choose to enter into an End User Agreement (“EUA) with the 
Contractor through this Agreement, and that the term of the EUA may exceed the term of the current H-GAC 
Agreement.  H-GAC’s acknowledgement is not an endorsement or approval of the End User Agreement’s 
terms and conditions.  Contractor agrees not to offer, agree to or accept from the END USER, any terms or 
conditions that conflict with those in Contractor’s Agreement with H-GAC.  Contractor affirms that 
termination of its Agreement with H-GAC for any reason shall not result in the termination of any underlying 
EUA, which shall in each instance, continue pursuant to the EUA’s stated terms and duration. Pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement, termination of this Agreement will disallow the Contractor from entering into any 
new EUA with END USERS. Applicable H-GAC order processing charges will be due and payable to H-GAC 
on any EUAs, surviving termination of this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 3: MOST FAVORED CUSTOMER CLAUSE 
 
Contractor shall provide its most favorable pricing and terms to H-GAC.  If at any time during this Agreement, 
Contractor develops a regularly followed standard procedure of entering into agreements with other 
governmental customers within the State of Texas, and offers the same or substantially the same 
products/services offered to H-GAC on a basis that provides prices, warranties, benefits, and or terms more 
favorable than those provided to H-GAC, Contractor shall notify H-GAC within ten (10) business days 
thereafter, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically retroactively amended, to the effective date 
of Contractor’s most favorable past agreement with another entity.  Contractor shall provide the same prices, 
warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and its END USER as provided in its most favorable past agreement.  
H-GAC shall have the right and option at any time to decline to accept any such change, in which case the 
amendment shall be deemed null and void.  If Contractor claims that a more favorable price, warranty, benefit, 
or term that was charged or offered to another entity during the term of this Agreement, does not constitute 
more favorable treatment, than Contractor shall, within ten (10) business days, notify H-GAC in writing, 
setting forth the detailed reasons Contractor believes the aforesaid offer is not in fact most favored treatment.  
H-GAC, after due consideration of Contractor’s written explanation, may decline to accept such explanation 
and thereupon this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor shall be automatically amended, effective 
retroactively, to the effective date of the most favored agreement, to provide the same prices, warranties, 

515



 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

benefits, or terms to H-GAC and the END USER. 
EXCEPTION:  This clause shall not be applicable to prices and price adjustments offered by a bidder, 
Proposer or contractor, which are not within bidder's/proposer’s control [example; a manufacturer's bid 
concession], or to any prices offered to the Federal Government and its agencies. 
 
ARTICLE 4: PARTY LIABILITY 
 
Contractor’s total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to the price of the particular products/services sold hereunder. 
Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. 
Contractor accepts liability to repay, and shall repay upon demand to END USER, any amounts determined by 
H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any state or federal agency, to have been paid in violation of the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNING LAW & VENUE 
 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor will make every reasonable effort to resolve disputes with the END 
USER in accord with the law and venue rules of the state of purchase.  Contractor shall immediately notify H-
GAC of such disputes.  
 
ARTICLE 6: SALES AND ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE                                
 
Contractor shall sell its products to END USERS based on the pricing and terms of this Agreement.  H-GAC 
will invoice Contractor for the applicable order processing charge when H-GAC receives notification of an 
END USER order. Contractor shall remit to H-GAC the full amount of the applicable order processing 
charge, after delivery of any product or service and subsequent END USER acceptance.  Payment of the Order 
Processing Charge shall be remitted from Contractor to H-GAC, within thirty (30) calendar days or ten (10) 
business days after receipt of an END USER’s payment, whichever comes first, notwithstanding Contractor’s 
receipt of invoice.  For sales made by Contractor based on this Agreement, including sales to entities without 
Interlocal Agreements, Contractor shall pay the applicable order processing charges to H-GAC.  Further, 
Contractor agrees to encourage entities who are not members of H-GAC’s Cooperative Purchasing Program to 
execute an H-GAC Interlocal Agreement.  H-GAC reserves the right to take appropriate actions including, but 
not limited to, Agreement termination if Contractor fails to promptly remit the appropriate order processing 
charge to H-GAC.  In no event shall H-GAC have any liability to Contractor for any goods or services an 
END USER procures from Contractor. At all times, Contractor shall remain liable to pay to H-GAC any 
order processing charges on any portion of the Agreement actually performed, and for which compensation was 
received by Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 7: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES          
 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor shall cooperate with the END USER at the time an END USER 
purchase order is placed, to determine terms for any liquidated damages. 
 
ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 
 
Unless otherwise stipulated in Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications, Contractor must have the 
following insurance and coverage minimums: 
a. General liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a General 

516



 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit. 
       Product liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a     
     General Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit for all Products except  
    Automotive Fire Apparatus.  For Automotive Fire Apparatus, see Section B of the Bid/Proposal  
       Specifications. 

Property Damage or Destruction insurance is required for coverage of End User owned 
equipment while in Contractor's possession, custody or control.  The minimum Single Occurrence 
limit is $500,000.00 and the General Aggregate limit must be at least two times the Single Occurrence 
limit. This insurance may be carried in several ways, e.g.  under an Inland Marine policy, as art of 
Automobile coverage, or under a Garage Keepers policy.  In any event, this coverage must be specifically 
and clearly listed on insurance certificate(s) submitted to H-GAC. 

b.   Insurance coverage shall be in effect for the length of any contract made pursuant to the Bid/Proposal, 
and for any extensions thereof, plus the number of days/months required to deliver any outstanding 
order after the close of the contract period. 

c.  Original Insurance Certificates must be furnished to H-GAC on request, showing Contractor as the 
insured and showing coverage and limits for the insurances listed above. 

d.   If any Product(s) or Service(s) will be provided by parties other than Contractor, all such parties 
are required to carry the minimum insurance coverages specified herein, and if requested by H-GAC, 
a separate insurance certificate must be submitted for each such party. 

e.   H-GAC reserves the right to contact insurance underwriters to confirm policy and certificate issuance 
and document accuracy. 

 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS FOR INDIVIDUAL ORDERS  
 
H-GAC’s contractual requirements DO NOT include a Performance & Payment Bond (PPB); therefore, 
Contractor shall offer pricing that reflects this cost savings.  Contractor shall remain prepared to offer a PPB to 
cover any order if so requested by the END USER.  Contractor shall quote a price to END USER for 
provision of any requested PPB, and agrees to furnish the PPB within ten business (10) days of receipt of END 
USER's purchase order. 
       
ARTICLE 10: CHANGE OF STATUS 
 
Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC, in writing, of ANY change in ownership, control, 
dealership/franchisee status, Motor Vehicle license status, or name.  Contractor shall offer written guidance to 
advise H-GAC if this Agreement shall be affected in any way by such change.  H-GAC shall have the right to 
determine whether or not such change is acceptable, and to determine what action shall be warranted, up to and 
including cancellation of Agreement. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 11: TEXAS MOTOR VEHICLE BOARD LICENSING 
 
All  that deal in motor vehicles shall maintain current licenses that are required by the Texas Motor Vehicle 
Commission Code. If at any time during this Agreement term, any required Contractor license is denied, 
revoked, or not renewed, Contractor shall be in default of this Agreement, unless the Texas Motor Vehicle 

517



 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Board issues a stay or waiver.  Contractor shall promptly provide copies of all current applicable Texas Motor 
Vehicle Board documentation to H-GAC upon request. 
 
 
                                                                                                         
 
 

518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



593



594



595



596



597



598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



610



611



612



613



614



615



616



617



618



619



620



621



622



623



624



625



626



627



628



629



630



631



632



633



634



635



636



637



638



639



640



641



642



643



644



645



646



647



648



649



650



651



652



653



654



655



656



657



658



659



660



661



662



663



664



665



666



667



668



669



670



671



672



673



674



LEMOORE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 

 

4-POSITION MCC7500E AND K-CORE SEPTEMBER 8, 2022 
 

 

 

675



676



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Cover Letter 

Section 1 
System Description ......................................................................................................................... 1-1 

1.1 ASTRO 25 Infrastructure ................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.1.1 Conventional K2 Core Site Components ...................................................................... 1-2 

1.2 Dispatch Console Configuration for Lemoore Police Department ....................................... 1-4 
1.3 Embracing Interoperability and Integration....................................................................... 1-5 

1.3.1 Integration Capable with ASTRO 25 Networks ............................................................. 1-6 
1.4 Making Consoles Easy to Operate .................................................................................. 1-6 

1.4.1 Customizable Dispatch Interface ................................................................................. 1-6 
1.5 Dispatch Console Solution Components .......................................................................... 1-7 

1.5.1 MCC 7500E Console Operator Position ....................................................................... 1-7 
1.6 Verint v15.2 Recording Solution Overview ....................................................................... 1-9 

1.6.1 Solution Design ......................................................................................................... 1-10 
1.7 Conventional Base Radio .............................................................................................. 1-10 

1.7.1 Architecture ............................................................................................................... 1-10 
1.8 APX® All-Band Consolette ............................................................................................. 1-11 
1.9 Watson Furniture ........................................................................................................... 1-12 
1.10 Vesta 9-1-1 .................................................................................................................... 1-13 

Section 2 
Statement of Work .......................................................................................................................... 2-1 

2.1 Responsibility Matrix ........................................................................................................ 2-1 
2.2 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities ............................................................................... 2-10 
2.3 Lemoore Police Department Responsibilities ................................................................. 2-11 
2.4 Assumptions .................................................................................................................. 2-11 

Section 3 
Equipment List ................................................................................................................................ 3-1 

Section 4 
Project Schedule ............................................................................................................................. 4-1 

Section 5 
Acceptance test Plan ...................................................................................................................... 5-1 

5.1 MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources ....................................................................... 5-2 
5.1.1 Frequency Selectable Conventional Resource ............................................................ 5-2 
5.1.2 Console Priority ........................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.1.3 Alert Tones - Conventional Channel ............................................................................ 5-4 
5.1.4 Activity Log - Conventional .......................................................................................... 5-5 
5.1.5 Tone Generation on Conventional Resource ............................................................... 5-6 

677



5.1.6 Radio Check ................................................................................................................ 5-7 
5.2 Signoff Certificate ............................................................................................................ 5-9 

Section 6 
Warranty And Maintenance ............................................................................................................. 6-1 

6.1 Essential Plus Services Overview .................................................................................... 6-1 
6.2 Essential Plus Element Descriptions ................................................................................ 6-1 

6.2.1 Remote Technical Support .......................................................................................... 6-1 
6.2.2 Network Hardware Repair ............................................................................................ 6-1 
6.2.3 Security Update Service .............................................................................................. 6-2 
6.2.4 On-site Infrastructure Response .................................................................................. 6-2 
6.2.5 Annual Preventive Maintenance .................................................................................. 6-2 

6.3 Motorola Solutions Service Delivery Ecosystem .............................................................. 6-2 
6.3.1 Centralized Managed Support Operations ................................................................... 6-3 
6.3.2 Field Service ................................................................................................................ 6-3 
6.3.3 Repair Depot ............................................................................................................... 6-3 
6.3.4 Customer Support Manager ......................................................................................... 6-3 
6.3.5 MyView Portal .............................................................................................................. 6-3 

6.4 System Upgrade Agreement II (SUA II) Overview ........................................................... 6-4 

Section 7 
Training ........................................................................................................................................... 7-1 

7.1 Training Overview ............................................................................................................ 7-1 
7.2 Motorola Solutions Training ............................................................................................. 7-1 

7.2.1 Training Delivery .......................................................................................................... 7-2 
7.2.2 Training Courses ......................................................................................................... 7-3 
7.2.3 Training Tools .............................................................................................................. 7-5 

7.3 Proposed Training Overview for Lemoore PD .................................................................. 7-6 
7.3.1 Console Operator and Supervisor Training Plan .......................................................... 7-6 
7.3.2 Course Descriptions for Lemoore PD........................................................................... 7-6 

7.3.2.1 MCC7500 Console Supervisor ............................................................................. 7-6 
7.3.2.2 MCC7500 Console Operator ................................................................................ 7-7 

Section 8 
Pricing............................................................................................................................................. 8-1 

8.1 Lemoore PD MCC 7500E Consoles ................................................................................ 8-1 
8.2 Optional Supervisor Furniture .......................................................................................... 8-2 
8.3 Payment Terms ............................................................................................................... 8-2 
8.4 Essential Plus and SUA II Services ................................................................................. 8-2 
8.5 Essential PLus and SUA II Payment Terms ..................................................................... 8-3 

Section 9 
Contractual Documentation ............................................................................................................. 9-1 

Communications System and Services Agreement ................................................................................... 9-1 

678



Section 10 
Literature ...................................................................................................................................... 10-1 

 

679



September 8, 2022 
 

Captain Margarita Ochoa 
Lemoore Police Department 
657 Fox Drive 
Lemoore, CA 93245 
 
Subject:  4 Position MCC7500E and K-Core/ 
 
Dear Captain Ochoa, 
 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola Solutions”) is pleased to have the opportunity to provide Lemoore 
Police Department with quality communications equipment and services. The Motorola Solutions 
project team has taken great care to propose a solution that will meet your needs and provide 
unsurpassed value.  
 

To best meet the functional and operational specifications of this solicitation, our solution includes a 
combination of hardware, software, and services. Specifically, this solution is for a 4-position dispatch 
center and provides: 
 

• One (1) ASTRO Conventional K2 Core 
• Four (4) MCC 7500E Consoles 
• Two (2) MCG8000 Enhanced Conventional 

Channel Gateways 
• Seven (7) APX Consolettes 
• One (1) Verint Analog Logging Solution 

• One (1) MC-Edge for Aux I/O 
• Three (3) GTR Base Radios 
• UPS 
• Spares 
• Watson Furniture 

 

This proposal consists of this cover letter and the Communications System and Services Agreement 
(CSSA), together with its Exhibits. This proposal shall remain valid for a period of 90 days from the date 
of this cover letter. Lemoore Police Department (PD) may accept the proposal by delivering to 
Motorola the CSSA signed by Customer Contact Name. Alternatively, Motorola Solutions would be 
pleased to address any concerns Captain Ochoa may have regarding the proposal. Any questions can 
be directed to your Motorola Account Executive, Jeff Wade, our Senior Account Executive, at (707) 
548-6527. 
 

We thank you for the opportunity to furnish Lemoore Police Department with “best in class” solutions 
and we hope to strengthen our relationship by implementing this project. Our goal is to provide you with 
the best products and services available in the communications industry.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Gordon Poole 
Area Sales Manager 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. 

Cover Le 
 
er{ TC "Cover Letter" \f C \l "1" } 
 

680



SECTION 1 

SYSTEM 
DESCRIPTION  

Motorola Solutions proposes an ASTRO 25 MCC7500E dispatch console with an ASTRO 
Conventional Redundant K-core. This will provide the Lemoore Police Department with the 
confidence of state-of-the-art secure communications, seamless IP-based connectivity, flexible 
system architecture with scalable components and centralized console management.  

The dispatch console proposed would connect to the radio infrastructure via the conventional 
channel gateways and would allow for a future upgrade path to a fully digital P25 compliant 
radio system. 

Motorola Solutions designs its console to help reduce the total cost of owning an IP-based, 
feature-rich dispatch system without compromising quality and reliability. The console provides 
Lemoore Police Department with sophisticated network management and easy migration to 
future capabilities. 

The proposed ASTRO Conventional Redundant K-core, four (4) dispatch consoles with one (1) 
Verint Analog Voice Recorder and seven (7) APX Consolettes will be located in the Lemoore 
Police Department Main Office.  

It also includes the upgrade of the existing standalone VHF and UHF repeater sites with 
GTR8000 Base Radios. As your existing equipment continues to age and more parts become 
obsolete, Motorola Solutions understands the importance of replacing your existing system to 
maintain your organization’s mission critical operations. 

The following summarizes the equipment provided at each site. 

 

Lemoore PD Backroom Equipment: 

• One (1) ASTRO Conventional 
Redundant K2 Core 

• Two (2) 1350 W UPS for Backup  
25 Minutes Runtime 

• One (1) Configuration Manager 

• One (1) MKM 7000 Console Alias 
Manager 

• One (1) GCP 8000 Conventional 
Site Controller 

• Two (2) MCG8000 Enhanced 
Conventional Channel Gateways 

• Seven (7) APX Consolettes 

• One (1) MC-Edge for Aux I/O 

• One (1) Verint Analog Logging 
Solution 

• Spares 

 

681



Lemoore PD Dispatch: 

• Four (4) MCC 7500E Consoles 

• Four (4) 19” Non-Touch Monitors 

• Four (4) 900 W UPS for 25 Minutes Runtime 

• Watson Furniture  

 

Remote RF Sites: 

• Three (3) GTR Base Radios for Channels PD1, PD2, and FD 

 

 
Figure 1-1 System Diagram – Lemoore Police Department 

The sections below provide details on the proposed system. 

1.1 ASTRO 25 INFRASTRUCTURE 
The proposed ASTRO 25 conventional system is comprised of an ASTRO Conventional 
Redundant K-core site, four (4) MCC7500E consoles and a Verint Analog Voice Recorder, and 
three (3) GTR8000 Base Radios. Lemoore PD will reuse existing lines and antennas at the 
remote RF sites.  Lemoore PD will also be providing lines and antennas for the APX Consolette 
radios.  Motorola Solutions will test the antenna lines to verify operation. 

A description of the subsystems and their equipment are discussed in this section.  

CONFIGURATION 
MANAGER /

CAM

MCC 7500E
x 4 Positions

DISPATCH CENTER

EQUIPMENT ROOM

S25 00

 
 

  

      

    

 

IP 

LEGEND

   
 

    

 

   
 

   
 

    

  
 

   
 

 

682



1.1.1 Conventional K2 Core Site Components 
The ASTRO 25 Conventional Core is a scalable and virtualized core that provides an adaptable 
and affordable platform for mission critical wireless communications. The Conventional Core 
allows customers to interface channels to an IP based MCC 7500 or MCC 7500E Console, 
provides a migration path for customers with fielded Motorola Solutions Conventional solutions, 
and allows the flexibility for customers to join a larger system in the future while maximizing their 
equipment investment.  

 

GCP 8000 Conventional Site Controller  

The GCP 8000 Site Controllers provides mission–critical call processing and mobility 
management throughout the ASTRO 25 conventional system. The GCP 8000 interfaces 
through the Ethernet LAN switch, providing access to the packet switched network through the 
Core Services Gateway. Equipped with a single controller module, the GCP 8000 can support 
the full set of dispatch consoles and conventional gateways. 

 
Figure 1-2 GCP 8000 Controller 

SRX 345 Services Gateway 
The SRX 345 Services Gateway is used for devices that forward packets beyond their local 
LAN. The gateways perform the routing control of audio, data, and network management traffic, 
replicating packets while achieving the fast access levels required by real-time voice systems. 
The Core site audio, data, control, and network management equipment interfaces to the 
dispatch sites, via the LAN switch through the SRX 345 Services Gateway. 

The SRX1500 Services Gateway consolidates security, routing, switching, and WAN interfaces 
for midsize distributed enterprises. With advanced threat mitigation capabilities, the services 
gateway provides cost-effective and secure connectivity across distributed enterprises. The 
services gateway simplifies network complexity, protects and prioritizes network resources, and 
improves user and application experience. 

Two (2) site gateways have been provided in this system design.  

LAN Switches 
The Core site equipment includes a set of LAN switches. Two switches are connected via 100 
Mb Ethernet trunks. The LAN switches aggregate all the Ethernet interfaces for all servers, 
clients, and routers at the core.  

Two (2) core LAN switches have been provided in this system design.  

683



MCG 8000 Conventional Channel Gateway 
The MCG 8000 provides the interface between the IP network and conventional sites in 
ASTRO25 system by translating the voice and data into the format needed for each individual 
site type. 

The MCG 8000 serves as the control point between the master site and the site devices (for 
example, the GCM 8000 comparator, the GTR 8000 Base Radio, and the GPW 8000 Receiver). 
The MCG 8000 application also communicates with the Zone Controller at the master site for 
proxy control of the site device, and the MCG 8000 passes voice and signaling payload between 
dispatch consoles and the site device and between dispatch consoles and the consolettes. For 
packet data, the MCG 8000 passes control information and packet data payload between the 
Radio Network Gateway (RNG) and the stations and comparators. 

The MCG 8000 supports circuit based, serial and Ethernet based interfaces to conventional 
base stations. 

CCGW serves as the control point between the Master Site and the site devices (that is, GCM 
8000 Comparator, GTR 8000 Base Radio, and GPW 8000 Receiver). The CCGW application 
also communicates with the ZC at the Master Site for proxy control of the site devices. The 
CCGW passes voice and signaling payload between the MCC 7500E AIM Dispatch Console(s) 
and the site devices. In a different setup involving the consolette, CCGW passes voice and 
signaling payload between the MCC 7500E AIM Dispatch Console(s) and the consolettes. For 
packet data, CCGW passes control information and packet data payload between the RNG and 
the stations and comparators. 

                                    

Figure 1–3:  MCG 8000 Conventional Channel Gateway—Connects dispatch operators to analog or 
digital conventional channels in the system. 

There will be two (2) MCG8000 included in this proposal. In addition to the sixteen channels 
supported on the analog and ASIM ports, the ECCGW is also capable of supporting up to 
sixteen digital conventional channels via its IP port. 

MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager (CAM) 
The MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager (CAM) manages the radio unit ID aliases displayed on 
dispatch positions. It enables agencies that share a radio system to change aliases displayed on 
their dispatch positions and logging recorders without affecting the aliases displayed at the other 
agencies on the system. 

A typical console uses many types of aliases to provide meaningful, descriptive names instead 
of numeric ID numbers for different resources on the console, such as: 

• Trunking talkgroups and conventional channels 
• Aux I/Os 
• Secure keys used for voice encryption 
• Frequencies on multi-frequency conventional channels 
• Private Line (PL) codes on conventional channels 

684



• Predefined pages 
• Radio unit IDs (also called radio PTT IDs) 

The CAM supports aliases for radio unit IDs on ASTRO 25 trunking systems, ASTRO 25 
conventional systems, MDC 1200 conventional systems, and Advanced SECURENET 
conventional systems. When SmartX site converters are used with SmartZone or SMARTNET 
systems, the CAM supports aliases for those types of radio unit IDs as well. 

The CAM does not support aliases for systems connected through an ISSI link or non-Motorola 
Solutions consoles connected through a CSSI link. 

The CAM Application will reside in the Configuration Management PC.  This PC will connect to 
the KVM. 

Configuration Management Application 
The Configuration Manager is used to configure the following equipment in an ASTRO 25 
system: MCC 7500E Consoles,  ASTRO 25 conventional channel gateways (CCGW), and the 
Archive Interface Server (AIS), not included in this solution. In addition, the Configuration 
Manager configures subscriber information for the Packet Data Gateway (PDG), as well as alias 
information, channel table information, and the main/alternate table for the GCP 8000. 

The Configuration Manager application runs on a Microsoft Windows operating system (OS) 
and can cohabitate on a Console operator position (OP) or can run on a dedicated PC. There 
should be only one Configuration Manager (CM) that is connected and running continuously and 
can only be used from the core. 

A data versioning/synchronization scheme using the SNMPv3 protocol is implemented between 
the CM and GCP 8000 and the PDG. The Configuration Manager will provide full and delta 
configuration downloads with progress status and configuration history status.  

A dedicated PC is included in this proposal. 

Auxiliary Inputs/Outputs 
The proposed console supports Global Auxiliary Inputs/Outputs (Aux I/Os) for remote status 
indications or remote control through dispatch positions. Global Aux I/Os are typically 
implemented by hardware that is independent of the dispatch positions in a system and may be 
accessible to multiple dispatch positions. Aux I/O Servers provide the Aux I/O feature for the 
consoles. 

One MC-EDGE Aux I/O server is included in this proposal. 

1.2 DISPATCH CONSOLE CONFIGURATION FOR 
LEMOORE POLICE DEPARTMENT  
The proposed solution offers the Lemoore Police Department 2 MCC 7500E dispatch positions. 
The figure titled “MCC 7500E Dispatch Position” shows an MCC 7500E operator position. 

685



 

Figure 1-4: MCC 7500E Dispatch Position provides a small form factor, familiar GUI, and advanced features. 

1.3 EMBRACING INTEROPERABILITY AND 
INTEGRATION 
Motorola Solutions is an active participant in establishing P25 standards for interoperability. The 
proposed console is a key component for the interoperability of the ASTRO 25 system. When a 
situation requires coordination between multiple radio resources (i.e. multiple agencies), the 
dispatcher can patch together the respective radio resources (see the figure titled "Patching"). 

Incident conversations are seamless from the moment of the patch initiation and can be 
recorded like any talkgroup conversation within the Land Mobile Radio (LMR) network. The 
dispatcher can also take part in and monitor conversations for the duration of the incident, as 
necessary. 

 

686



 

Figure 1-5: Patching  
Radio resources connect to the ASTRO 25 network through a CCGW. 

1.3.1 Integration Capable with ASTRO 25 Networks 
The proposed dispatch console can seamlessly integrate into an existing or new ASTRO 25 
system, without interface boxes, digital voice gateways, or backroom electronics for an 
integrated, mission-critical network. This tight union between radio infrastructure and console 
equipment has several operational benefits to Lemoore Police Department. 

1.4 MAKING CONSOLES EASY TO OPERATE 
Motorola Solutions designs its proposed console to provide mission-critical audio between the 
dispatcher and users in the field. It is optimized for real-time audio, prioritizing emergency calls 
over other traffic, and minimizing voice queuing. Using robust error mitigation to maintain call 
quality even when the system is heavily loaded, the proposed console reduces communication 
errors that may force dispatchers or radio users to repeat their transmissions. 

1.4.1 Customizable Dispatch Interface 
The proposed console provides dispatchers with a graphical user interface (GUI) that can be 
customized by agency or by individual users to optimize user efficiency. Based on dispatcher 
preference, the proposed GUI can be customized to show details of trunked and conventional 
RF channels on a per-channel basis. 

Busy dispatchers can respond to a missed call by simply clicking on an entry in the Activity Log. 
The number of calls and call information displayed in the Activity Log is customizable to suit the 
needs of the user. The status of Auxiliary I/Os can be easily interpreted from the GUI with the 
use of familiar graphical icons, such as a door shown open or closed. 

687



Elite Dispatch Graphical User Interface 
The proposed Elite Dispatch GUI is an enhanced version of Motorola Solutions Gold Elite 
Dispatch GUI. For existing Gold Elite users, the GUI allows a smooth transition and minimal 
training for dispatchers. For new users, the graphical icons and customization options make the 
proposed console GUI easy to learn and operate. 

Inbound Event Display 
For those users who prefer a call-based GUI, the proposed console supports the Inbound Event 
Display (IED) GUI. The IED GUI displays incoming radio events in a queue format. The 
dispatcher can manage and respond to these events directly from the queue. 

Filtering and sorting features are available to allow the information in the queue to be tailored to 
the needs of the dispatcher. The console can be configured to operate in “quiet mode” when 
using the IED GUI. This is well suited to customers who operate in a Request-To-Talk (RTT) 
environment. 

1.5 DISPATCH CONSOLE SOLUTION COMPONENTS 
The proposed components are connected together and to the rest of the ASTRO 25 system on 
an IP network through console site routers and switches. The console functions as an integrated 
component of the total radio system and fully participates in system-level features, such as end-
to-end encryption and Agency Partitioning. 

The console connects directly to the radio system’s IP transport network without gateways or 
interface boxes. Audio processing, encryption, and switching intelligence for dispatch are 
performed within each software- based dispatch position without additional centralized 
electronics. 

Since the network is IP-based, the system interfaces and components can be distributed 
physically throughout the network. Some of the available console components are identified 
below. 

1.5.1 MCC 7500E Console Operator Position 
The dispatch position supports commercially available accessories, including a USB 
microphone, USB headset, and USB footswitch, as shown in the figure titled “MCC 7500E 
Dispatch Position.” The following list describes the components included in the proposed 
configuration. 

688



 
Figure 1-6: MCC 7500E Dispatch Position supports multiple accessories. 

Audio Interface Module (AIM) 
The USB Audio Interface Module (AIM) acts as an interface between analog devices and the 
dispatch position and as a general purpose input/output module. The USB AIM supports audio 
routing between the dispatcher and Motorola Solutions standard peripherals. The USB AIM 
connects to the MCC 7500E dispatch position with a USB cable. 

Personal Computer (PC) 
The personal computer included with the dispatch position is Windows-based and certified by 
Motorola Solutions. 

Computer Display 
The dispatch position will use a 19” Computer Display. 

Enhanced Integrated Instant Recall Recorder (IRR) 
The Enhanced IRR is seamlessly integrated with the dispatch position’s software, allowing audio 
and call data from any radio or telephony resource to be recorded and easily played back. Call 
data includes PTT IDs, name of resource, start time and date, and stop time and date. Two 
analog inputs are available for use with recording audio from external devices. 

Desktop Speakers 
Two (2) audio speakers have been included with each dispatch position and can be configured 
to transmit audio from a specific channel. Each speaker is a self-contained unit, with individual 
volume controls, and can be placed on a desktop or mounted on a rack or computer display. 

Headset Jack 
The dispatch position supports up to two headset jacks, both push-to-talk (PTT) and non-PTT-
enabled, for simultaneous use by the dispatcher and a supervisor. The headset jack contains 
two volume controls for the separate adjustment of received radio and telephone audio. 

Purpose-built USB Microphone 
The microphone controls the dispatch position's general transmit and monitor features through 
two buttons on its base. The microphone can be fastened down or left loose. It can be used 
alone or in conjunction with a headset. It connects via USB to the PC. 

689



Footswitch 
Each dispatch position includes a dual pedal footswitch that controls general transmit and 
monitor functions. 

Redundant Ethernet Connection 

The optional redundant Ethernet connections increase MCC 7500E console availability by 
protecting against the loss of multiple dispatch positions. In the event of a LAN switch failure, the 
system will automatically detect and switchover with no manual intervention required. 
Dispatching operations will not be interrupted. 

1.6 VERINT V15.2 RECORDING SOLUTION OVERVIEW   
Verint’s Recording solutions provide for full-time recording, selective recording, recording on 
demand, and dial-in recording across digital and analog telephones, trunked and conventional 
Land Mobile Radio systems, telephone lines and trunks, IP phones, short message service 
(SMS), and PC screens. It can record screens while minimizing network usage and storage 
requirements and can capture screen changes, including mouse movements and keystrokes, 
without disrupting call handlers. 

The requirements of this new system are fairly simple. 

 Support recording for eight (8) analog sources; six (6) radio and two (2) telephony  
 No AIS interface 
 Analog provided to Verint’s recorder via CCGW and a 66 block 

All users will have playback licenses and the limit of users is only that of “Concurrent” user 
replay sessions, which is equal to the number of Recording Licenses purchased.  In this 
proposal, that is 12 concurrent. 

The proposed solution that has been quoted consists of Verint’s consolidated server. This sever 
is SVR7KH2-CONL0 to support 2 telephony cards (1 each of 8-port cards) , as well as a local 
storage volume of 1.0 TB of disk space. This disk space is the primary storage location of call 
storage before the calls are “Archived” to the long-term archive storage location. 

For Replay and Incident Management, The Lemoore PD users will have the ability to use the 
Verint Insight Center application. Verint External RDX drive has been added to support the 
capability to expand to 16 channels. 

Once all records are recorded the Verint v15 system will be configured with one or more Archive 
Campaigns to support the archiving needs of the customer.  As currently designed, the Network 
Archival location is to be the Verint External RDX Drive.  Multiple archive campaigns may be 
created to run simultaneously to archive the recorded communications to the location(s) of 
choosing by the customer. 

 

690



1.6.1 Solution Design 

        

 

 

  
 

 
   

    
   
    

  
   

   

  
   

  

 
Figure 1-8 : Verint Solution Design 

1.7 CONVENTIONAL BASE RADIO 

1.7.1 Architecture 
Direct radio frequency (RF) communication – relying solely on the transmitter output power of a 
portable or mobile radio – is not always enough to successfully network a fleet of field radios 
throughout a system coverage area. When coverage over a large area or in a building is 
required, an infrastructure must be added to complete the network. 

Conventional systems vary in both size and sophistication. Systems are often configured as 
single-site or multi-site depending on the coverage or "talk range" that is desired. A basic 
conventional system consists of a GTR8000 repeater or base station. The system can be 
expanded to increase system wide coverage by adding equipment to make it a standalone 
multi-site, voting, simulcast or multi-cast system. 

 

691



Single Site 

The basic conventional configuration is the single-site system. A single-site system contains 
either one base station or one repeater, and operates over the distance that the transmitter 
covers. When a system mobile or portable radio is within range of the station, they are able to 
communicate to dispatch or other mobile/portable users. 

Single-site systems provide excellent service in a small geographical area. 

GTR 8000 Base Radio 

The GTR 8000 base radio supports Motorola Solutions single, multi-site, and high 
performance data systems. The modular software design coupled with the Software 
Download Manager enhances the ability for future upgrades. The GTR 8000 base radio 
ships with a transceiver, power supply, and power amplifier. 
 
The power supply allows operation from both AC and DC power. Also, the standard battery 
revert and charging eliminates the need for an Uninterruptible Power Supply in many 
installations. 
 
One GTR 8000 base radio is needed per channel at each site. The standalone base radio 
only occupies 3-rack units of space allowing for efficient use of expensive site space. 
 
The Conventional GTR 8000 base radio is future proofed to handle LMR technology 
changes of the next 10-20 years. Software upgrades are available to refresh the station 
through:  
 

• Analog 12.5kHz/25kHz 
• P25 Phase I Trunking and Conventional (FDMA and LSM) 
• High Performance Data (HPD) 
• P25 Phase II Trunking TDMA 

Three (3) new GTR 8000 Base Radios are included in this proposal. 

1.8 APX® ALL-BAND CONSOLETTE 
The APX All-Band Consolette provides a low-cost, mid-
power wireless dispatch solution as an ideal complement to 
a modern P25 dispatch center. Equipped with leading edge 
P25 Phase 2 TDMA technology and multi-band 
interoperability, the APX All-Band Consolette can also be 
used as an emergency backup station when infrastructure is 
offline, or for wireless access to different system types for 
increased interoperability between agencies. 

The APX All-Band Consolette’s P25 operation and compatibility with legacy systems ensures 
that communications are clear, continuous, and coordinated across multiple users, agencies, 
and systems. The durable robust metal housing provides durability and allows for easy 
servicing, while the integrated front panel numeric keypad allows fast access to radio controls. In 
addition, optional features and benefits of the APX All-Band Consolette include: 

 

APX All-Band Consolette 

692



• Optional Multi-Band Operation in One Radio – The APX All-Band Consolette delivers the 
convenience of three radios in one while maintaining APCO TIA receiver specifications. With 
the APX All-Band, personnel can use one consolette to communicate and provide dispatch 
operations across multiple digital and analog networks that operate in any three of the 
following frequency bands: 700 MHz, 800 MHz, VHF, and UHF (R1/R2). 

• Meets Radio Users’ Needs – The APX All-Band Consolette is compatible with the following 
optional advanced features and data applications: Programming over Project 25 (POP25), 
Text Messaging, Over the Air Rekeying (OTAR), and Enhanced Encryption Software 
Options. It is also capable of Extended Dispatch Operation including: Emergency Alarm 
ACK Encode, Radio Inhibit/ Uninhibit Encode, Radio Monitor Encode, Radio Check Encode, 
Status Query Encode, Status Query Response Decode, Status Update Decode, and 
Message Update Decode. 
 

Seven (7) APX Consolettes are included in this proposal: 
 
• Three (3) UHF APX Consolettes 
• One (1) VHF APX Consolettes 
• Three (3) Dual Band UHF/VHF APX Consolettes 

 

1.9 WATSON FURNITURE 
Watson’s approach to Emergency Communication Center needs has not changed over the 
years, and in fact since 1986 and with over 2,000 individual Centers installed, Watson has 
always maintained that Communication Centers need special attention due to the amount of 
detail and customization that is required to perform the job of dispatching. Engineers and 
Designers have been tasked with integrating all of the ergonomic features, equipment 
accessibility issues, environmental concerns, and anthropometrical standards into the design of 
the console, while keeping the overall footprint of the consoles in a space plan that assures ADA 
compliance. 

Watson’s Console line provides features and benefits that are exclusive to Watson. 

1. Watson’s patent pending Dynamic Ergonomic System provides the end user with superior 
ergonomics. The surface height, monitor height, and focal length adjustment all move 
independently, and are infinitely adjustable throughout the range of adjustment. The Surface 
height and monitor height also provide a flush mounted, programmable setting and digital 
readout. No other manufacturer offers this complete integrated adjustment system. Watson 
console features 4 lifting legs, and features the most recent generation of integrated 
electronic anti-rebound mechanism. Watson is the first to offer this new generation leg. 

2. Watson’s Environmental Comfort System delivers the ultimate in User Controlled 
environmental controls. Watson integrated the Environmental Control System into the 
console face, and the panel allows the end user precise control over the entire work 
environment. The user can adjust task lighting, ambient lighting, heated forced air, and 
filtered fresh air through a single interface. The heated forced air device is new and highly 
efficient, only drawing 400 watts at peak. Watson is the only manufacturer offering this new 
efficient technology. 

3. Technology integration and support. Watson is the only product to offer full hub access from 
side or floor, with complete lay-in wiring distribution across the bridge and into adjacent 

693



consoles. This feature provides fast and efficient initial installation and future additions. The 
technology hub also offers an active cooling design. The rear door is vented and plumbed to 
draw in fresh air, filter, and then exit at the door base. The thermally activated fans, with 
CPU matching CFM specifications, draw the cool filtered air from the bottom of the cabinet 
through the top mounted access panel with integral diffuser, exiting the heated air from the 
hub. This active cooling system is unique to the industry, and provides cleaner and cooler 
technology housing. Another unique technology feature is the integrated, configurable 
connection ports for the interface of user equipment. The port is built directly into the console 
and is not an additional piece of equipment. 

4. The unique design elements of Watson allow the consoles to be scalable and modular to 
provide exactly the right solution for your needs, but be flexible to adapt to changes in the 
future. So, as technology and the way you work changes in the future, your consoles can be 
easily adapted to meet these changes. The modular design allows the exchange of 
technology hubs and storage hubs as needed in the center change. 

These are four areas with key elements of Watson that are unique to product solution and 
configuration. The Watson team spent 2 years researching the current issues in the Public 
Safety market, and has delivered Watson as a truly unique and differentiated console solution. 

Each Position Includes: 

• 48" High Screens 

• Electronically Height Adjustable Work Surface with Techlink + Power 

• Stationary Monitor Array with Individually Adjustable Monitor Arms - 4 over 4 
Configuration 

• Built-In Surface Multi Ports for Power/Voice/Data 

• Environment Control Package - Includes Forced Air Heat, Cooling Fans, LED Ambient 
Lighting & 

• Dimmable LED Task Lighting 

• Technology ridge with Active Ventilation to Accommodate Small Format PCs 

• Technology Cabinet with Active Ventilation to Accommodate (3)Standard Size PCs 

• Personal Storage Pallet w/Drawer 

• Grounding Bar Kit 

• (6) Technology Ports to Include: (4) USB-A, (1) Audio, (1) Data, (1) Phone, (1) USB 
Charger 

1.10 VESTA 9-1-1 
A singleback room VESTA 9-1-1 solution is being considered for Lemoore PD.  The VESTA 
solution will be provided in a separate proposal from this effort. 

 

694



SECTION 2 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
Motorola Solutions is proposing to the Lemoore Police Department the installation and 
configuration of the following equipment at the specified locations. 

Site Name Major Equipment 

Lemoore Police Department Main 
Office  

• One (1) ASTRO Conventional Redundant K2 
Core 

• Two (2) 1350 W UPS for Backup  25 Minutes 
Runtime 

• One (1) Configuration Manager 
• One (1) MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager 
• One (1) GCP 8000 Conventional Site Controller 
• Two (2) MCG8000 Enhanced Conventional 

Channel Gateways 
• Seven (7) APX Consolettes 
• One (1) MC-Edge for Aux I/O 
• One (1) Verint Analog Logging Solution 
• Spares 

Lemoore Police Department 
Dispatch 

• Four (4) MCC 7500E Consoles 
• Four (4) 19” Non-Touch Monitors 
• Four (4) 900 W UPS for 25 Minutes Runtime 
• Watson Furniture  

Remote Sites • Three (3) GTR 8000 Base Radios for PD1, PD2 
and FD 

The document delineates the general responsibilities between Motorola Solutions and the 
Lemoore Police Department as agreed to by contract. 

2.1 RESPONSIBILITY MATRIX 

This section delineates the responsibilities between Motorola and Lemoore Police Department 
(Customer) as agreed to by contract. 

 
Tasks Motorola Customer 

PROJECT INITIATION 

Contract Finalization and Team Creation 

Execute contract and distribute contract documents. X X 

Assign a Project Manager as a single point of contact. X X 

695



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Assign resources. X X 

Schedule project kickoff meeting. X X 

Deliverable: Signed contract, defined project team, and scheduled project kickoff 
meeting. 

Project Administration 

Ensure that project team members attend all 
meetings relevant to their role on the project. 

X X 

Set up the project in the Motorola Solutions 
information system. 

X  

Record and distribute project status meeting minutes. X  

Maintain responsibility for third-party services 
contracted by Motorola Solutions. 

X  

Complete assigned project tasks according to the 
project schedule. 

X X 

Submit project milestone completion documents. X  

Upon completion of tasks, approve project milestone 
completion documents. 

 X 

Conduct all project work Monday thru Friday, 7:30 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). 

X  

Deliverable: Completed and approved project milestones throughout the project. 

Project Kickoff and Design Review 

Introduce team, review roles, and decision authority. X X 

Present project scope and objectives. X  

Review SOW responsibilities and project schedule. X X 

Present the system design and operational 
requirements for the solution. 

X  

Present installation plan. X  

Present preliminary cutover plan and methods to 
document final cutover process. X  

Present configuration and details of sites required by 
system design. X  

Validate that Customer site(s) can accommodate 
proposed equipment. 

X X 

Provide approvals required to add equipment to 
proposed existing sites.  X 

696



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Review safety, security, and site access procedures. X  

Present equipment layout plans and system design 
drawings. 

X  

Provide backhaul performance specifications and 
demarcation points. 

X  

Provide heat load and power requirements for new 
equipment. 

X  

Provide for heat load and power requirements as 
specified by Motorola for new equipment. 

 X 

Provide information on existing system interfaces.  X 

Assume liability and responsibility for proving all 
information necessary for complete installation. 

 X 

Assume responsibility for issues outside of Motorola 
Solutions’ control. 

 X 

Review and update design documents, including 
System Description, Statement of Work, Project 
Schedule, and Acceptance Test Plan, based on 
Design Review agreements. 

X 
 

Provide minimum acceptable performance 
specifications for customer provided hardware, 
software, LAN, WAN and internet connectivity. 

X 
 

Provide minimum acceptable performance as 
specified by Motorola for customer provided 
hardware, software, LAN, WAN and internet 
connectivity. 

 
X 

Execute Change Order (if any) in accordance with all 
material changes to the Contract resulting from the 
Design Review. 

X  

Deliverable: Finalized design documentation based upon “frozen” design, along with 
any relevant Change Order documentation. 

SITE PREPARATION  

Site Access 

Provide site owners/managers with written notice to 
provide entry to sites identified in the project design 
documentation. 

 X 

Obtain site licensing and permitting, including site 
lease/ownership, zoning, permits, regulatory 
approvals, easements, power, and telco connections, 
if required. 

 X 

697



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Deliverable: Access, permitting, and licensing necessary to install system equipment 
at each site. 

General Facility Improvements 

Provide adequate HVAC, grounding, lighting, cable 
routing, and surge protection based upon Motorola 
Solutions’ Standards and Guidelines for 
Communication Sites (R56) 

 X 

Provide adequate rack/cabinet space to 
accommodate new equipment. 

 X 

Ensure the resolution of environmental and 
hazardous material issues at each site including, but 
not limited to, asbestos, structural integrity (tower, 
rooftop, water tank, etc.), and other building risks. 

 X 

Ensure that electrical service will accommodate 
installation of system equipment, including isolation 
transformers, circuit breakers, surge protectors, and 
cabling. 

 X 

Provide obstruction-free area for the cable run 
between the demarcation point and system 
equipment. 

 X 

Provide structure penetrations (wall or roof) for 
transmission equipment (e.g. antennas, microwave 
radios, etc.). 

 X 

Supply interior building cable trays, raceways, 
conduits, and wire supports. 

 X 

Pay for usage costs of power and generator fueling, 
both during the construction and installation effort, and 
on an ongoing basis. 

 X 

Deliverable: Sites meet physical requirements for equipment installation. 

SYSTEM INSTALLATION 

Equipment Order and Manufacturing 

Create equipment order and reconcile to contract. X  

Manufacture Motorola Solutions-provided equipment 
necessary for system based on equipment order. 

X  

Procure non-Motorola Solutions equipment necessary 
for the system. 

X  

Deliverable: Equipment procured and ready for shipment. 

Equipment Shipment and Storage 

698



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Provide secure location for solution equipment.  X 

Pack and ship solution equipment to the identified, or 
site locations. 

X  

Receive solution equipment.  X 

Inventory solution equipment. X  

Deliverable: Solution equipment received and ready for installation 

Field System Staging 

Provide information on existing system interfaces, 
room layouts, or other information necessary for the 
assembly to meet field conditions. 

 X 

Set up and rack the solution equipment. X  

Cut and label the cables with to/from information to 
specify interconnection for field installation and future 
servicing needs. 

X  

Complete the cabling/connecting of the subsystems to 
each other (“connectorization” of the subsystems). X  

Assemble required subsystems to assure system 
functionality. X  

Power up, load application parameters, program, and 
test all staged equipment. 

X  

Confirm system configuration and software 
compatibility with the existing system. 

X  

Inventory the equipment with serial numbers and 
installation references. 

X  

Perform factory functional acceptance tests of system 
features – Customer will not be attending. 

X  

Deliverable: System staged and ready for shipment. 

General Installation 

Deliver solution equipment to installation location. X  

Coordinate receipt of and inventory solution 
equipment with designated contact. X  

699



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Install all proposed fixed equipment as outlined in the 
System Description based upon the agreed-upon floor 
plans, connecting audio and control cables to connect 
equipment to the power panels or receptacles, and 
audio/control line connection points. Installation 
performed in accordance with R56 standards and 
state/local codes. 

X  

Provide system interconnections that are not 
specifically outlined in the system design, including 
dedicated phone circuits, radio transmission cables, 
microwave links, or other types of connectivity. 

 X 

Install and terminate all network cables between site 
routers and network demarcation points. 

X  

Ensure that Type 1 and Type 2 AC suppression is 
installed to protect installed equipment. 

 X 

Install Consolette lines and antennas prior to 
backroom equipment installation. 

 X 

Connect installed equipment to the existing lines and 
antennas (RFDS). 

X  

Connect installed equipment to the provided ground 
system. 

X  

Label equipment, racks, and cables. X  

Identify circuits for connection to console and a 
demarcation point located within 25 feet of the 
console interface.   

 X 

Perform preliminary audit of installed equipment to 
ensure compliance with requirements and R56 
standards. 

X  

Note any required changes to the installation for 
inclusion in the “as-built” system documentation. 

X  

Remove, transport, and dispose of old equipment.  X 

Deliverable: Equipment installed. 

Console System Installation and Configuration 

Identify circuits for connection to console and a 
demarcation point located within 25 feet of the 
console interface. 

 X 

Provide desk space for four (4) new Mercury 
Standard Consoles desk furniture.   

 X 

700



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Tasks Motorola  Customer 

Install four (4)  MCC 7500E consoles with 19” non-
touch monitors in the Dispatch Center. 

X  

Provide space in equipment room for Lemoore PD’s 
new KVM for the CAM and Configuration 
Management PC to be displayed. 

  
 

X 

Connect console to circuit demarcation points. X  

Install purchased peripheral console equipment in 
accordance with R56 standards and state/local codes. 

X  

Provide all Cat6 cable to connect the consoles to the 
switches in the backroom (2 recommended per 
console) 

 X 

Permanently install, cable, and ground equipment in 
the backroom in customer provided cabinet space.  

X  

Develop templates for console programming. X  

Perform console programming and configuration. X  

Deliverable: Console system equipment installation completed. 

SYSTEM OPTIMIZATION AND TESTING 

R56 Site Audit 

Perform R56 site-installation quality-audits, verifying 
proper physical installation and operational 
configurations. 

X  

Create site evaluation report to verify site meets or 
exceeds requirements, as defined in Motorola 
Solutions’ R56 Standards and Guidelines for 
Communication Sites. 

X  

Deliverable: R56 Standards and Guidelines for Communication Sites audits completed 
successfully. 

Solution Optimization 

Verify that all equipment is operating properly and that 
all electrical and signal levels are set accurately. X  

Verify that all audio and data levels are at factory 
settings. X  

Verify communication interfaces between devices for 
proper operation. X  

Ensure that functionality meets manufacturers’ 
specifications and complies with the final configuration 
established during design review or system staging. 

X 
 

701



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Deliverable: Completion of System Optimization. 

Tasks Motorola  Customer 

Functional Acceptance Testing 

Verify the operational functionality and features of the 
solution supplied by Motorola Solutions, as 
contracted. 

X  

Witness the functional testing.  X 

Document all issues that arise during the acceptance 
tests. 

X  

If any major task for the system as contractually 
described fails during the Customer acceptance 
testing or beneficial use, repeat that particular task 
after Motorola Solutions determines that corrective 
action has been taken. 

X  

Resolve any minor task failures before Final System 
Acceptance. 

X  

Document the results of the acceptance tests and 
present for review. 

X  

Review and approve final acceptance test results.  X 

If any major task as contractually described fails, 
repeat that particular task after Motorola Solutions 
determines that corrective action has been taken. 

X  

Document all issues that arise during the acceptance 
tests. X  

Document the results of the acceptance tests and 
present to the Customer for review. X  

Resolve any minor task failures before Final System 
Acceptance. X  

Deliverable: Completion of functional testing and approval by Customer. 

PROJECT TRANSITION 

Cutover 

Finalize Cutover Plan. X X 

Conduct cutover meeting with relevant personnel to 
address both how to mitigate technical and 
communication problem impacts to the users during 
cutover and during the general operation of the 
system. 

X  

702



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Notify the personnel affected by the cutover of the 
date and time planned for cutover. 

 X 

Tasks Motorola  Customer 

Provide ongoing communication with users regarding 
the project and schedule. 

X X 

Cut over console system. X  

Resolve punchlist items, documented during the 
Acceptance Testing phase, in order to meet all the 
criteria for final system acceptance. 

 
X 

 

Assist Motorola with resolution of identified punchlist 
items by providing support, such as access to the 
sites, equipment and system, and approval of the 
resolved punchlist items. 

 X 

Deliverable: Migration to new system completed, and punchlist items resolved. 

PROJECT TRANSITION 

Transition to Warranty 

Review the items necessary for transitioning the 
project to warranty support and service. 

X  

Motorola Solutions to provide services during year 1 
warranty which align with the proposed services.  
Additional out-years have been included as an option 
for Essential Plus and SUA II post-warranty services. 

X  

Provide a Customer Support Plan detailing the 
warranty support associated with the contract 
equipment. 

X 
 

Participate in the Transition Service/Project Transition 
Certificate (PTC) process.  X 

Provide a Customer Support Plan detailing the 
warranty support associated with the contract 
equipment. 

X  

Participate in the Transition Service/Project Transition 
Certificate (PTC) process. 

 X 

Deliverable: Service information delivered and approved by Customer 

Finalize Documentation and System Acceptance 

Resolve punchlist items, documented during the 
Acceptance Testing phase, in order to meet all the 
criteria for final system acceptance. 

X  

703



Tasks Motorola Customer 

Assist Motorola Solutions with resolution of identified 
punchlist items by providing support, such as access 
to the sites, equipment and system, and approval of 
the resolved punchlist items. 

  
X 

Provide manufacturer’s installation material, part list 
and other related material to Customer upon project 
completion. 

X 
 

Tasks Motorola  Customer 

Provide an electronic as-built system manual on CD 
or other Customer preferred electronic media. The 
documentation will include the following: 
 Site Block Diagrams. 
 Site Floor Plans. 
 Site Equipment Rack Configurations. 
 ATP Test Checklists. 
 Functional Acceptance Test Plan Test Sheets and 

Results. 
 Equipment Inventory List. 
 Console Programming Template (where applicable). 
 Maintenance Manuals (where applicable). 
 Technical Service Manuals (where applicable). 
Drawings will be delivered in Adobe PDF format. 

 
 
 
 

X 

 

Receive and approve documentation.  X 

Execute Final Project Acceptance. X X 

Deliverable: All required documents are provided and approved. Final Project 
Acceptance. 

 

2.2 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS RESPONSIBILITIES 
Motorola Solutions general responsibilities include the following: 

♦ Perform the installation of the Motorola Solutions supplied equipment described above. 
♦ Schedule the implementation in agreement with the Lemoore Police Department. 
♦ Coordinate the activities of all Motorola Solutions subcontractors under this contract. 
♦ Administer safe work procedures for installation. 
♦ Provide the Lemoore Police Department with the appropriate system interconnect 

specifications. 

704



2.3 LEMOORE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
RESPONSIBILITIES  
The Lemoore Police Department will assume responsibility for the installation and 
performance of all other equipment and work necessary for completion of this project that is 
not provided by Motorola Solutions. The Lemoore Police Department’s general 
responsibilities include the following: 

♦ Provide all buildings, equipment shelters, and towers required for system installation. 
♦ Provide cables, antennas and RFDS required for system installation. 
♦  
♦ Insure communications sites meet space, grounding, power, and connectivity 

requirements for the installation of all equipment. 
♦ Obtain all licensing, site access, or permitting required for project implementation. 
♦ Obtain frequencies for project as required. 
♦ Provide required system interconnections. 
♦ The Lemoore Police Department will provide a dedicated delivery point, such as a 

warehouse, for receipt, inventory and storage of equipment prior to delivery to the 
site(s). 

♦ Coordinate the activities of all the Lemoore Police Department’s vendors or other 
contractors. 

2.4 ASSUMPTIONS 
Motorola Solutions has made several assumptions in preparing this proposal, which are 
noted below.  

♦ All existing sites or equipment locations will have sufficient space available for the 
system described as required/specified by R56.  

♦ Motorola Solutions has proposed 7.5’ racks. 
♦ All existing sites or equipment locations will have adequate electrical power (and backup 

power, if necessary) in the proper phase and voltage and site grounding to support the 
requirements of the system described.  
- Demarcation is the Motorola Solutions proposed hardware itself  

♦ Any site/location upgrades or modifications are the responsibility of Lemoore Police 
Department.  

♦ All required approved local, State or Federal, FCC/FAA, and any other permits as may 
be required for the installation and operation of the proposed equipment are the 
responsibility of Lemoore Police Department.  

♦ Any applicable frequencies and FCC/FAA licensing will be the responsibility of Lemoore 
Police Department. 

♦ Existing frequencies will be re-used for the proposed system equipment.  
♦ Any required system interconnections not specifically outlined here will be provided by 

Lemoore Police Department. These may include dedicated phone circuits, radio 
transmission cables, microwave links, Ethernet links or other types of connectivity.  

♦ Any necessary demarcation points are defined as the Motorola Solutions-provided 
equipment. This includes demarcation for the following services:  
- 120VAC/ -48DC Power & Circuits 
- Backup Power 
- Grounding 

705



- Communication Circuits and backhaul links between sites 
♦ UPS with at least 25-minute runtime per site are included in this proposal. 
♦ The power loading of the UPS was designed to accommodate only Motorola Solutions 

supplied equipment. 
♦ No coverage guarantee is included or implied for this proposal. 
♦ Motorola Solutions is not responsible for interference caused or received by the Motorola 

Solutions provided equipment except for interference that is directly caused by the 
Motorola Solutions provided transmitter(s) to the Motorola Solutions provided 
receiver(s). Should Lemoore Police Department’s system experience interference, 
Motorola Solutions can be contracted to investigate the source and recommend 
solutions to mitigate the issue.  

♦ All existing towers and or antenna mounting locations will have adequate space and size 
to support the antenna network requirements of the system described. 

♦ Any tower stress analysis or tower upgrade requirements are the responsibility of the 
Lemoore Police Department. 

♦ Antenna and lines are not included in this proposal. 
♦ Lemoore Police Department will provide all the antenna, lines and RFDS needed for the 

consolettes and base radios. Motorola will sweep test all of those lines. If these lines do 
not meet Motorola’s specifications, Lemoore Police Department will replace them. 

♦ The Lemoore Police Department is responsible for providing an appropriate antenna 
mounting structures and coax/cable pathways to the equipment room racks. Motorola 
Solutions has also assumed a standard over the ground coax installation.  

♦ Coring of a floor, wall or ceiling is not included. 
♦ Standard spares for the Core, Dispatch Consoles and Verint IP Voice Recorder are 

included in the proposal. 
♦ Verint IP Voice Recorder with eight (8) simultaneous audio sources in six (6) radio and 

two (2) telephony are included in this design. 
♦ Archiving Interface Server (AIS) is not included in this proposal. 
♦ Any CAD or any 3rd party upgrades or reconfigurations will be the responsibility of 

Lemoore Police Department. 
♦ Any 3rd party interfaces including paging, CAD, 9-1-1 and telephony (if applicable) will 

be addressed outside of the scope of this proposal. 
♦ Performance bond is not required. 
♦ Prevailing wage is required for the Watson furniture installation. 
♦ Prevailing wage is not required for the installation of the MCC7500E consoles, backroom 

equipment, nor Verint Analog Logger. 
♦ Work is performed on non-holidays during normal business hours, Monday – Friday, 

8am – 5pm. 

706



SECTION 3 

EQUIPMENT LIST 
This section lists the equipment necessary for the proposed solution.  

 

SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

K-Series Core Site CORE 1 - 1 SQM01SUM0237 SINGLE ZONE CONV NON-RED CORE 

K-Series Core Site CORE 1 a 1 CA02259AA ADD: Redundancy 

K-Series Core Site CORE 1 b 1 CA01663AB ADD: RACK 

K-Series Core Site CORE 2 - 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 

K-Series Core Site RACK 3 - 1 DS11011188 
PDU, 120/240 SPLIT PH OR N+1 REDUNDANT, 60A MAX 
PER PHASE, SIX DEDICAT 

K-Series Core Site RACK 4 - 4 DS3750295 
BREAKER, 5 AMP, CB UL 489 LISTED FOR AC EDGE II 
(1101-1188) 

K-Series Core Site RACK 5 - 4 DS3750296 
BREAKER, 10 AMP, CB UL 489 LISTED FOR AC EDGE II 
(1101-1188) 

K-Series Core Site RACK 6 - 4 DS3750297 
BREAKER, 15 AMP, CB UL 489 LISTED FOR AC EDGE II 
(1101-1188) 

K-Series Core Site RACK 7 - 2 DS1101990 
SPD, SHIELDED RJ-45 JACK, SINGLE LINE GBE 
(1000MBPS) R56 COMPLIANT 

K-Series Core Site RACK 8 - 1 DSTSJADP 
RACK MOUNT GROUND BAR, 19 IN FOR TSJ AND WPH 
SERIES DATA SPDS 

K-Series Core Site RACK 9 - 1 DDN9748 19 INCH BLACK SHELF 

K-Series Core Site POWERSURGE 10 - 2 DSRMP615A 
SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RACK MOUNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 
15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 

K-Series Core Site UPS 11 - 2 DS9PXXR13501026S  
UPS, 9PX, 1350W, 120V, SOFTWIRED, 26 MIN RUNTIME 
RACK MOUNT 

K-Series Core Site CONFIG MGR 12 - 1 TT3903B Z2 G5 MINI WORKSTATION NON RETURNABLE 

K-Series Core Site CONFIG MGR 13 - 1 T8742 MCAFEE FOR WINDOWS CLIENT, A2019.2 

K-Series Core Site CONFIG MGR 14 - 1 T8719 WINDOWS SUPP TRANS CONFIG, A2019.2 

K-Series Core Site KVM 15 - 1 DDN2093 
17IN LCD DRAWER WITH KEYBOARD AND MOUSE, KVM 
8 PORTS, CABLES 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 - 1 T7039 GTR 8000 Base Radio 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 a 1 CA03678AA ADD: ASTRO SYSTEM RELEASE 2021.1 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 b 1 X640AL ADD: UHF R2 (435-524 MHZ) 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 c 1 CA01948AA ADD: DIGITAL CONVENTIONAL SOFTWARE 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 d 1 CA01400AA ADD: POWER CABLE, DC 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 e 1 CA03111AA ADD: CEC COMPLIANCE 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 f 1 X265AP ADD: BR PRESELECTOR 380-512 MHZ 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 g 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 

Lemoore PD1 CONV_GTR 16 h 1 CA01953AA ADD:  POWER EFFICIENCY PACKAGE 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 - 1 T7039 GTR 8000 Base Radio 

707



SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 a 1 CA03678AA ADD: ASTRO SYSTEM RELEASE 2021.1 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 b 1 X640AL ADD: UHF R2 (435-524 MHZ) 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 c 1 CA01948AA ADD: DIGITAL CONVENTIONAL SOFTWARE 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 d 1 CA01400AA ADD: POWER CABLE, DC 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 e 1 CA03111AA ADD: CEC COMPLIANCE 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 f 1 X265AP ADD: BR PRESELECTOR 380-512 MHZ 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 g 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 

Lemoore PD2 CONV_GTR 17 h 1 CA01953AA ADD:  POWER EFFICIENCY PACKAGE 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 - 1 T7039 GTR 8000 Base Radio 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 a 1 CA03678AA ADD: ASTRO SYSTEM RELEASE 2021.1 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 b 1 X530BG ADD: VHF (136-174 MHZ) 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 c 1 CA01949AA ADD: ANALOG ONLY CONV SW 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 d 1 CA01400AA ADD: POWER CABLE, DC 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 e 1 CA03111AA ADD: CEC COMPLIANCE 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 f 1 X153AW ADD:  RACK MOUNT HARDWARE 

Lemoore FD CONV_GTR 18 g 1 CA01953AA ADD:  POWER EFFICIENCY PACKAGE 

Dispatch OP_POS 19 - 1 B1948 MCC 7500E DISPATCH POSITION LICENSES 

Dispatch OP_POS 19 a 4 UA00653AA ADD: BASIC CONSOLE OPERATION 

Dispatch OP_POS 19 b 4 UA00655AA ADD: ADVANCED CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

Dispatch OP_POS 19 c 4 UA00249AA ADD: 15 RADIO RESOURCES LICENSE 

Dispatch OP_POS 19 d 4 UA00661AA ADD: ENHANCED IRR 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 20 - 1 B1949 MCC 7500E SOFTWARE DVD 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 21 - 0 DSTG191B TECH GLOBAL EVOLUTION SERIES 19INCH NON TOUCH 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 22 - 4 TT3903B Z2 G5 MINI WORKSTATION NON RETURNABLE 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 23 - 8 B1952 SPEAKER, DESKTOP, USB 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 23 a 8 CA03405AA ADD: POWER SUPPLY WITH DC CORD 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 23 b 8 CA03406AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICA 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 23 c 8 CA03413AA ADD: USB CABLE, TYPE A TO TYPE C, 4.5M 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 24 - 4 B1941 USB AUDIO INTERFACE MODULE 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 25 - 4 B1951 MICROPHONE, DESKTOP, USB 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 25 a 4 CA03413AA ADD: USB CABLE, TYPE A TO TYPE C, 4.5M 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 26 - 8 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 27 - 4 DSTWIN6328A PROVIDES ONE DUAL PEDAL FOOTSWITCH 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 28 - 4 T8742 MCAFEE FOR WINDOWS CLIENT, A2019.2 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 29 - 1 DSF2B56AA USB EXTERNAL DVD DRIVE 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 30 - 4 DSST7300U3M STARTECH 7 PORT USB 3.0 HUB 

Dispatch OP_POSIT 31 - 4 T8806A WINDOWS SUPP TRANS CONFIG, A2020.1/A2021.1 

708



SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

Dispatch POWERSURGE 32 - 4 DSRMP615A 
SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RACK MOUNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 
15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 

Dispatch UPS 33 - 4 DS9PXXT09001024S 
UPS, 9PX, 900W, 120V, SOFTWIRED, 24 MIN RUNTIME 
TOWER 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 - 1 F0016A MC IOT MAIN MODEL 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 a 1 VA00147 ADD: FRONT CABLE COVERS 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 b 1 VA01370AA ADD:  MC-EDGE 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 c 1 VA00985AA ADD: NO PIGGY_ MC-EDGE 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 d 2 VA00989AA ADD: 8DO EE 16DI 5-18 V /DRY 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 e 1 VA00009 ADD: AC POWER SUPPLY UNIT 12V / 5A  DC OUTPUT 

Dispatch AUX_IO 34 f 1 VA00155 ADD:DC POWER CABLE 

Dispatch AUX_IO 35 - 1 DSIABDIN4 
PANDUIT IABDIN4 4 RACK UNIT DIN RAIL FOR EIA 19" 
MOUNT 

Dispatch AUX_IO 36 - 1 FHN1668 TERM BLOCK & CONN WIRED M25T68 

Dispatch AUX_IO 37 - 1 FHN0057 DIN RAIL STOPPER 

Dispatch AUX_IO 38 - 1 CDN6135 CABLE ASSY 25 PR M-NONE 25FT 

Dispatch AUX_IO 39 - 1 QRN5066 PUNCHBLOCK W/PANEL 

Dispatch CCGW 40 - 1 SQM01SUM0333 MCG 8000 CONVENTIONAL GATEWAY 

Dispatch CCGW 40 a 1 CA03714AA ADD: AC POWER 

Dispatch CCGW 40 b 4 CA03718AA ADD: ANALOG 4WIRE INTERFACE 

Dispatch CCGW 40 c 4 CA03717AA ADD: ACIM INTERFACE 

Dispatch CCGW 41 - 1 SQM01SUM0333 MCG 8000 CONVENTIONAL GATEWAY 

Dispatch CCGW 41 a 1 CA03714AA ADD: AC POWER 

Dispatch CCGW 41 b 4 CA03718AA ADD: ANALOG 4WIRE INTERFACE 

Dispatch CCGW 41 c 4 CA03717AA ADD: ACIM INTERFACE 

Dispatch CAM 42 - 1 BVN1013 MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Software 

Dispatch LOG_REC 43 - 1 
DQ060120225915J
M2 VERINT LOGGING RECORDER 

Optional - Spares SPARES 44 - 1 B1941 USB AUDIO INTERFACE MODULE 

Optional - Spares SPARES 45 - 1 B1952 SPEAKER, DESKTOP, USB 

Optional - Spares SPARES 45 a 1 CA03405AA ADD: POWER SUPPLY WITH DC CORD 

Optional - Spares SPARES 45 b 1 CA03406AA ADD: AC LINE CORD, NORTH AMERICA 

Optional - Spares SPARES 45 c 1 CA03413AA ADD: USB CABLE, TYPE A TO TYPE C, 4.5M 

Optional - Spares SPARES 46 - 1 B1951 MICROPHONE, DESKTOP, USB 

Optional - Spares SPARES 46 a 1 CA03413AA ADD: USB CABLE, TYPE A TO TYPE C, 4.5M 

Optional - Spares SPARES 47 - 1 B1913 MCC SERIES HEADSET JACK 

Optional - Spares SPARES 48 - 1 TT3903B Z2 G5 MINI WORKSTATION NON RETURNABLE 

Optional - Spares SPARES 49 - 1 SQM01SUM0333 MCG 8000 CONVENTIONAL GATEWAY 

Optional - Spares SPARES 49 a 1 CA03714AA ADD: AC POWER 

Optional - Spares SPARES 49 b 4 CA03718AA ADD: ANALOG 4WIRE INTERFACE 

709



SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

Optional - Spares SPARES 49 c 4 CA03717AA ADD: ACIM INTERFACE 

Optional - Spares SPARES 50 - 1 T8492 SITE  ROUTER & FIREWALL- AC 

Optional - Spares SPARES 50 a 1 CA03445AA ADD: MISSION CRITICAL HARDENING 

Optional - Spares SPARES 50 b 1 CA03448AA ADD: STATEFUL FIREWALL 

Optional - Spares SPARES 51 - 1 CLN1868 2930F 24-PORT SWITCH 

Optional - Spares SPARES 52 - 1 DLN6893 FRU: XCVR VHF V2 W/OPTION CARD 

Optional - Spares SPARES 53 - 1 DLN6805 FRU: ENERGY EFFICIENT POWER SUPPLY 

Optional - Spares SPARES 54 - 1 DLN6898 FRU: FAN MODULE 

Optional - Spares SPARES 55 - 1 DLN6887 FRU: XCVR UHF R2 V2 PWR EFF OPT CRD 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 - 1 L37TSS9PW1 N ALL BAND CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 a 1 L998 ADD: LIMITED FRONT PANEL W/CLOCK/VU 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 b 1 G48 ENH: CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 c 1 GA00469 ENH: EXTENDED DISPATCH APX CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 d 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 e 1 GA05507 DEL:  DELETE 7/800MHZ BAND 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 f 1 GA05508 DEL:  DELETE VHF BAND 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 g 1 G78 ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 h 1 G843 ADD: AES ENCRYPTION APX AND ADP 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 56 i 1 G806 ENH:  ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 

APX - PD1 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 57 - 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 - 1 L37TSS9PW1 N ALL BAND CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 a 1 L998 ADD: LIMITED FRONT PANEL W/CLOCK/VU 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 b 1 G48 ENH: CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 c 1 GA00469 ENH: EXTENDED DISPATCH APX CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 d 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 e 1 GA05507 DEL:  DELETE 7/800MHZ BAND 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 f 1 GA05508 DEL:  DELETE VHF BAND 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 g 1 G78 ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 h 1 G843 ADD: AES ENCRYPTION APX AND ADP 

710



SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 58 i 1 G806 ENH:  ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 

APX - PD2 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 59 - 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 - 1 L37TSS9PW1 N ALL BAND CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 a 1 G843 ADD: AES ENCRYPTION APX AND ADP 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 b 1 L998 ADD: LIMITED FRONT PANEL W/CLOCK/VU 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 c 1 G48 ENH: CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 d 1 G806 ENH:  ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 e 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 f 1 GA05507 DEL:  DELETE 7/800MHZ BAND 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 g 1 GA05508 DEL:  DELETE VHF BAND 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 h 1 G78 ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 60 i 1 GA00469 ENH: EXTENDED DISPATCH APX CONSOLETTE 

APX - PD TAC 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 61 - 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 - 1 L37TSS9PW1 N ALL BAND CONSOLETTE 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 a 1 L998 ADD: LIMITED FRONT PANEL W/CLOCK/VU 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 b 1 G48 ENH: CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 c 1 GA00469 ENH: EXTENDED DISPATCH APX CONSOLETTE 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 d 1 QA05751 

ADD: NO ENCRYPTION, CLEAR RADIO (NO ADP) (US 
ONLY) 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 e 1 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 f 1 GA05507 DEL:  DELETE 7/800MHZ BAND 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 g 1 GA05509 DEL:  DELETE UHF BAND 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 h 1 G78 ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 62 i 1 G241 ENH:  SOFTWARE ASTRO READY (ANALOG) APX 

APX - FD 
APX 
CONSOLETTE 63 - 1 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 - 3 L37TSS9PW1 N ALL BAND CONSOLETTE 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 a 3 L998 ADD: LIMITED FRONT PANEL W/CLOCK/VU 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 b 3 G48 ENH: CONVENTIONAL OPERATION 

711



SUB SYS BLOCK LIM O 

Q
T
Y NOMENCLATURE DESCRIPTION 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 c 3 GA00469 ENH: EXTENDED DISPATCH APX CONSOLETTE 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 d 3 CA01598 ADD: AC LINE CORD US 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 e 3 GA05507 DEL:  DELETE 7/800MHZ BAND 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 f 3 G78 ADD: 3Y ESSENTIAL SERVICE 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 g 3 G843 ADD: AES ENCRYPTION APX AND ADP 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 h 3 G806 ENH:  ASTRO DIGITAL CAI OP APX 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 64 i 3 W969 ADD: MULTIPLE KEY ENCRYPTION OPERATION 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 65 - 3 HKN6233C APX CONSOLETTE RACK MOUNT KIT 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 66 - 1 HKN6184C CABLE CH, PROGRAMMING,USB 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY 

APX 
CONSOLETTE 67 - 1 DSRMP615A 

SPD, TYPE 3, 120V RACK MOUNT, 15A PLUG-IN W/ (6) 
15A NEMA 5-15 OUTLETS 

APX - MUTI-
AGENCY RACK 68 - 1 TRN7343 SEVEN AND A HALF FOOT RACK 
APX - MUTI-
AGENCY RACK 69 - 1 DSTSJADP 

RACK MOUNT GROUND BAR, 19 IN FOR TSJ AND WPH 
SERIES DATA SPDS 

FURNITURES - 
WATSON FURNITURES 70 - 1 

DSFURNITURESLEM
OORE FURNITURES - 4 STANDARD CONSOLES 

 

 

 

712



SECTION 4 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

713



 

 

 

714



SECTION 5 

ACCEPTANCE TEST 
PLAN 

Lemoore Police Department 
 
MCC 7500E Dispatch Console  
 

In-Field Draft 
 
www.motorolasolutions.com/services/government 
 
Representative 1 Name 
Field Program Manager 
(XXX) XXX-XXXX 
 
Representative 2 Name 
Field Engineer 
(XXX) XXX-XXXX 

715

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/services/government


5.1 MCC 7100/7500 CONVENTIONAL RESOURCES
 
 

5.1.1 Frequency Selectable 
Conventional Resource 

 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
A Resource is selected on the console by placing 
the cursor over the Resource, choosing an area and 
selecting. The Resource choice area is the region 
where the name of the Resource is located (Top 
alphanumeric line of the Resource). When selected, 
the background of the Radio Resource will turn 
white and the border will turn green. Choosing the 
Instant Transmit button will send keying commands 
to the station. 
The Frequency Select option provides the capability 
to choose from a number of available frequencies 
based on the channel type. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
CONSOLE-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
 
VERSION #1.020 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. Using CONSOLE-1, select the first 

frequency in the list for the resource. 
 
Step 2. Select the corresponding frequency on 

RADIO-1. 
 
Step 3. Verify communications between CONSOLE-

1 and RADIO-1. 
 
Step 4. Using CONSOLE-1, select another 

frequency in the list for the resource. 
 
Step 5. Select the corresponding frequency on 

RADIO-1. 
 
Step 6. Verify communications between CONSOLE-

1 and RADIO-1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

716



MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources 
 
 

5.1.2 Console Priority 
 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Console Operator Positions have ultimate control of 
transmitted audio on an assigned resource. The 
Console Position has the capability to take control of 
an assigned voice channel for a channel/talkgroup 
call so that the operator's audio overrides any 
subscriber audio. Console priority is a feature that 
enables dispatchers to gain immediate access to an 
assigned voice channel so that a central point of 
audio control exists. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
RADIO-2 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
CONSOLE-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
 
VERSION #1.040 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. Initiate a call from RADIO-1 on 

CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1. Keep this 
call in progress until the test has completed. 

 
Step 2. Observe that RADIO-2 receives the call. 
 
Step 3. While the call is in progress, key up 

CONSOLE-1 on CONVENTIONAL 
CHANNEL 1. 

 
Step 4. Observe that RADIO-2 is now receiving 

audio from CONSOLE-1 on 
CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 

 
Step 5. De-key CONSOLE-1. 
 
Step 6. Verify RADIO-2 now receives RADIO-1 

audio. 
 
Step 7. End the CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 call 

from RADIO-1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

717



MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources 
 
 

5.1.3 Alert Tones - 
Conventional Channel 

 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Pre-defined alert tones can be transmitted on the 
selected Radio Resource to subscribers which can 
alert members of a channel / talkgroup to a 
particular event or signify to radio users special 
instructions are to follow. The Console has the ability 
to send an Alert-Tone signal on selected 
conventional or talkgroup resources. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
RADIO-2 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
CONSOLE-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
 
VERSION #1.030 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. Select CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 on 

CONSOLE-1. 
 
Step 2. Select Alert Tone 1 and depress the Alert 

Tone button. 
 
Step 3. Verify that RADIO-1 and RADIO-2 hear Alert 

Tone 1. 
 
Step 4. Repeat Steps 2-3 for Alert Tone 2 and 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

718



MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources 
 
 

5.1.4 Activity Log - 
Conventional 

 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
The MCC7100/7500 Console activity log will show 
all traffic for the resource assigned to that console to 
include the time, radio alias, Channel, PTT ID and 
Emergency Call. 
The dispatcher has the capability of selecting a 
logged call within in the "Activity Log Window" for 
instant transmit on the corresponding logged 
resource. 
This activity log can be logged to a text file for 
archival purposes. 
 
Note: The log file in the ops will only be seen if you 
first check Log Activity in Elite Admin application 
then in folder options uncheck hide hidden system 
files. The location will be c:\Program 
Data\MCC7500\MessageMonitorLogs. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 – CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
RADIO-2 – CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 2 
RADIO-3 – CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 3 
RADIO-4 – CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 4 
 
CONSOLE-1 – CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1, 
CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 2, CONVENTIONAL 
CHANNEL 3, CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 4 
 
 
VERSION #1.060 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. On CONSOLE-1 select the "Show Activity 

Log" button on the tool bar to open the 
Activity Log Window. 

 
Step 2. Initiate calls on RADIO-1, RADIO-2, RADIO-

3 and RADIO-4 to log call information and 
verify calls are displayed in the activity log 
window. 

 
Step 3. Select a logged call in the Activity Log 

Window and verify that the Channel Control 
Window (CCW) at the top of the Activity log 
window changes to the corresponding 
resource. Verify the dispatcher is capable of 
responding via the instant transmit button. 

 
Step 4. Open the text file created by the Activity Log 

and verify call traffic has been archived to 
the document file. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

719



MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources 
 
 

5.1.5 Tone Generation on 
Conventional Resource 

 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
This test will demonstrate that the dispatch console 
is able to transmit on a conventional resource during 
the tone generation period. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
CCGW-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
CCGW-1 - SITE 1 
 
CONSOLE-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
CONSOLE-1 - SITE - CONSITE 1 
 
(Note: Use General Transmit by keying up 
CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 via console  
microphone or footswitch) 
 
 
VERSION #1.040 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. Send an Alert tone from CONSOLE-1, 

followed by a voice announcement. 
 
Step 2. Verify that RADIO-1 hears Alert tone from 

CONSOLE-1 
 
Step 3. Verify that RADIO-1 hears audio from 

CONSOLE-1 during the Alert Tone Talk 
Extend period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

720



MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources 
 
 

5.1.6 Radio Check 
 

 
1. DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Radio Check allows the console operator to 
determine if a subscriber is operational or within 
range. The subscriber sends the acknowledgment 
that it has received the Radio Check. 
 
NOTE: The status/message line must be added to 
the Channel Control Window (CCW) of the resource 
in order for the "ACKNOWLEDGED" indication to be 
visible. 
 
This test can be run using Digital Conventional or 
MDC1200 Channels. 
 
SETUP 
 
 
RADIO-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
CONSOLE-1 - CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 
 
 
VERSION #1.030 
 
 

2. TEST 
 
Step 1. Using CONSOLE-1 select the 

CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1 Radio 
Resource. 

 
Step 2. From the active Radio Resource select the 

Radio Check button. Enter the ID or alias of 
RADIO-1 in the Radio Check window. 

 
Step 3. Click the "Send" button from the Radio 

Check window to initiate the Radio Check. 
 
Step 4. Verify that "ACKNOWLEDGED" is shown on 

CONVENTIONAL CHANNEL 1's Channel 
Control Window. 

 
Step 5. Turn off RADIO-1. 
 
Step 6. Click the "Send" button from the Radio 

Check window to initiate the Radio Check on 
RADIO-1. 

 
Step 7. Verify that an error message is logged: 

"Send Radio Check failed: Target not 
found." 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pass____ Fail____ 

 
 

721



5.2 SIGNOFF CERTIFICATE 
By their signatures below, the following witnesses certify they have observed the system 
Acceptance Test Procedures. 

Signatures 
 

 
WITNESS: 
 
 
Please Print Name: ________________________________________ 
 
 Initials: 
Please Print Title:   ________________________________________ 
 

 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
Please Print Name: ________________________________________ 
 
 Initials: 
Please Print Title:   ________________________________________ 
 

 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
Please Print Name: ________________________________________ 
 
 Initials: 
Please Print Title:   ________________________________________ 

 

 

___________________________________Date: _______ 

___________________________________Date: _______ 

___________________________________Date: _______ 

________ 

________ 

________ 

722



SECTION 6 

WARRANTY AND 
MAINTENANCE  

Motorola Solutions will provide the Lemoore Police Department with Warranty services as 
outlined in the CSSA. In addition, Motorola Solutions will include our Essential Plus Services 
during the Warranty period. Maintenance and Lifecycle services are described generally 
below and full statements of work describing the services are available upon request. 

6.1 ESSENTIAL PLUS SERVICES OVERVIEW 
Motorola Solutions is proposing our Essential Plus Services for ASTRO® 25 infrastructure to 
provide Lemoore Police Department with the support needed to detect and resolve unforeseen 
issues. Essential Plus Services consists of the following elements: 

• Remote Technical Support. 
• Network Hardware Repair. 
• Security Update Service (SUS). 
• On-site Infrastructure Response. 
• Annual Preventive Maintenance. 
Together, these elements will help to avoid operational disruptions and maintain the value of 
Lemoore Police Department’s communications investment. 

6.2 ESSENTIAL PLUS ELEMENT DESCRIPTIONS 
The following sections describe the elements proposed for Lemoore Police Department’s 
ASTRO 25 infrastructure. 

6.2.1 Remote Technical Support 
Motorola Solutions’ Centralized Managed Support Operations (CMSO) will provide Remote 
Technical Support for infrastructure issues that require specific technical expertise. Experienced 
technical support specialists will be available to consult with Lemoore PD to help diagnose, 
troubleshoot, and resolve infrastructure issues. Service Desk maintenance procedures and 
incident resolution techniques are based on ISO 9001 and TL 9000 standards. 

6.2.2 Network Hardware Repair 
To restore Lemoore Police Department’s ASTRO 25 network components if they malfunction, 
Motorola Solutions will repair Motorola Solutions-provided infrastructure equipment. This 
includes select third-party infrastructure equipment supplied by Motorola Solutions. Motorola 
Solutions will ship and return repaired equipment, and will coordinate the repair of third-party 
solution components.  

723



6.2.3 Security Update Service 
Commercial security software updates are often designed without consideration for specialized 
systems like radio communications networks. Therefore, they may at sometimes inadvertently 
disrupt ASTRO 25 networks such as the one proposed to Lemoore PD. Motorola Solutions will 
test anti-virus, operating system, and other software patches to check their compatibility with 
ASTRO 25.  

Once tested, Motorola Solutions will post the updates to a secured extranet website and send 
an email notification to Lemoore PD. If there are any recommended configuration changes, 
warnings, or workarounds, Motorola Solutions will provide detailed documentation along with the 
updates on the website. When tested updates have been posted, Lemoore PD will need to 
download and install them.  

6.2.4 On-site Infrastructure Response 
Motorola Solutions will provide repair service from trained and qualified technicians. Once 
dispatched, technicians will travel to Lemoore Police Department’s ASTRO 25 network location 
to diagnose issues and restore functionality. These technicians will run diagnostics on hardware 
to identify defective components, and repair or replace them as appropriate. Infrastructure 
Response times are based on a given issue’s impact on overall system function.  

Travel times and service levels are governed by local geography. Motorola Solutions will provide 
additional information in the Statement of Work for ASTRO 25 Essential Plus Services and in the 
Customer Support Plan agreed between Lemoore PD and Motorola Solutions. 

6.2.5 Annual Preventive Maintenance 
Motorola Solutions will annually test and service network components. Qualified field technicians 
will perform routine hands-on examination and diagnostics of network equipment to keep them 
operating according to original manufacturer specifications. 

6.3 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS SERVICE DELIVERY 
ECOSYSTEM 
Essential Plus Services are delivered through a tailored combination of field service personnel, 
centralized teams, product repair depots, and MyView Portal. These service resources will 
collaborate to swiftly analyze network issues, accurately diagnose root causes, and efficiently 
resolve issues to return the network to normal operation.  

Motorola Solutions services will be delivered by staff experienced in servicing mission-critical 
networks. Motorola Solutions uses the Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL) 
framework to define service tasks based on industry-recognized best practices. As staff perform 
tasks, service incident information will be available to Lemoore Police Department’s 
administrators and personnel through MyView Portal. 

Service activities and Motorola Solutions’ service team are described in more detail below. 

724



6.3.1 Centralized Managed Support Operations 
The cornerstone of Motorola Solutions’ support process is the Centralized Managed Support 
Operations (CMSO) organization. This TL 9000/ISO 9001-certified organization is staffed 
24x7x365 by experienced service desk specialists, security analysts, and operations managers. 
The CMSO houses critical central functions, including the Service Desk. 

The CMSO Service Desk will serve as a single point of contact for services. It processes service 
requests, service incidents, change requests, and dispatching. The Service Desk communicates 
necessary information to stakeholders, bridging communications among Lemoore PD, Motorola 
Solutions, and third-party subcontractors.  

Service Desk teams record, track, and update incidents through the Motorola Solutions 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system. They document and respond to inquiries, 
requests, concerns, and service tickets. When an incident is initiated, the CMSO will engage 
with teams to resolve that incident. The CMSO will escalate to new teams when needed. 
Depending on the incident, the CMSO will coordinate incident resolution with local field service 
and authorized repair depots. 

6.3.2 Field Service 
Motorola Solutions authorized and qualified field service technicians will perform the On-site 
Infrastructure Response service, repair malfunctioning hardware in the field, and conduct 
preventive maintenance tasks. These technicians will coordinate with the Service Desk, 
technical support teams, and product engineering as needed to resolve incidents.  

6.3.3 Repair Depot 
The Motorola Solutions Repair Depot will provide Lemoore PD with a central repair location. 
This will eliminate the need to send network equipment to multiple vendor locations for repair. 
Motorola Solutions tracks products sent to the Depot via a case management system 
throughout the repair process. This system will enable Lemoore Police Department’s 
representatives to check repair status, from inbound shipment to return.  

6.3.4 Customer Support Manager 
A Motorola Solutions Customer Support Manager (CSM) will be Lemoore Police Department’s 
key point of contact for the definition and administration of services. The CSM will work with 
Lemoore PD to define service delivery details to address Lemoore Police Department’s specific 
priorities.  

6.3.5 MyView Portal 
To provide Lemoore PD with quick access to service details, Motorola Solutions will provide our 
MyView Portal online network information tool. MyView Portal provides our customers with real-
time critical network and services information through an easy-to-use graphical interface.  

725



 

Figure 1-1: MyView Portal offers real-time, role-based access to critical network and services information.  

With MyView Portal, Lemoore Police Department’s administrators will be able to monitor system 
health and maintenance updates. Capabilities include: 

• Viewing network and support compliance. 
• Viewing incident reports. 
• Updating and creating incidents. 
• Checking system update status. 
• Receiving pro-active notifications regarding updates.  
Available 24x7x365 from any web-enabled device, the information provided by MyView will be 
based on your needs and user access permissions, ensuring that the information displayed is 
secure and pertinent to your operations. 

 

6.4 SYSTEM UPGRADE AGREEMENT II (SUA II) 
OVERVIEW 
The System Upgrade Agreement II (SUA II) service provides public safety radio system release 
updates on a consistent, budgeted plan. These updates maintain reliable network operations 
and cybersecurity protection. In addition, SUA II keeps Lemoore PD’s ASTRO 25 network 
compatible with expansion elements, as well as new products or features. With SUA II, Lemoore 
PD’s network will remain on a release that qualifies for support services. 

Motorola Solutions will deliver SUA II in two-year periods, with up to one update in each period. 
The SUA II service includes the following: 

• Software Release Updates - Motorola Solutions-certified software that improves 
network functions over previous releases. This also includes commercial operating 
system and  application software updates. 

726



• Hardware Update – When needed to support a software release update, Motorola 
Solutions provides new hardware. New hardware will both support the new software 
update, as well as maintain existing functions and features. 

• Professional Implementation Services – Motorola Solutions will plan and implement 
updates at Lemoore PD’s site. This includes factory integration, testing, and supply 
chain management for new software and hardware. 

With these services, Lemoore PD will have access to the technology, support, and planning 
expertise needed for an effective upgrade.

727



SECTION 7 

TRAINING  
7.1 TRAINING OVERVIEW 

Partnering with Motorola Solutions will enable Lemoore PD to 
build personnel competency and maximize return on 
investment. 

Effective training ensures successful implementation and use of 
your communications system by all personnel for the life of the 
system. The training plan furnished to Lemoore PD is comprised 
of targeted coursework developed and delivered by our expert 
instructors. This plan, included below, will effectively provide 
Lemoore PD’s personnel with a comprehensive understanding 
of the proposed system and user equipment. 

We will collaborate with Lemoore PD to tailor a final training plan 
to enable Lemoore PD’s organization to operate, configure, and 
manage the proposed solution effectively and efficiently. 

7.2 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS TRAINING 
Motorola Solutions provides an expanding portfolio of training delivery methods, tools, and 
courses to support the training needs of our customers. The figure below shows the elements of 
our training methodology that qualify us as the leader in the communications training industry. 

 

Figure 1-1: Build the competencies of Lemoore PD personnel and maximize your return on investment with 
Motorola Solutions’ expanding portfolio of training delivery methods, tools, and courses. 

728



7.2.1 Training Delivery 
Training Methods 
Motorola Solutions’ training experience and expertise enables our customers to gain the training 
they need to use during critical times in a variety of methods. As shown in the figure below, we 
offer three interactive methods of training: Online Self-Paced, Virtual Instructor-Led, and 
Instructor-Led.  

 

Figure 1-2: Motorola Solutions offers a variety of interactive training methods that cater to different learning 
techniques, allowing more effective ways to give personnel the skills they need. 

These training approaches ensure our customers receive the understanding they need for the 
practical aspects of their jobs. 
Delivery Options 
Field 
Field class delivery is “tailored” to the customer’s specific system. We are providing classes 
which are not offered as standard “Open Resident” classes at our training facilities. The students 
benefit from working on their own systems, at their home location and within their schedules. 

Motorola Facility 
Resident classes are open to all Motorola customers, seating is based on availability, and 
participant guides and required pre-work when applicable are included in the tuition. These 
courses are comprehensive and are not tailored to any one customer’s system. Students benefit 
from other students’ experiences and are allowed to take systems out of service. These courses 
provide optimal “hands-on” training. 

729



Motorola Facility Closed Sessions-Customer Specific  

Special Resident classes are closed sessions for a particular Motorola Solutions customer. 
The customer is essentially renting the classroom. These courses are tailored to the 
customer’s system as much as possible. The instructor will require the customer’s system 
diagrams prior to the class taking place. The students will receive their ASTRO 25 IV&D 
manuals on CD-ROM and hard copy participant guides. Class manuals, participant guides, 
and required pre-work are included in the pricing of the class per student. The students are 
allowed to take systems out of service, which provides optimal “hands-on” training.  

Motorola Solutions Instructors 
We have approximately 40 instructor resources distributed across North America. These 
instructors are available to train customers in our Technical Training Center located in 
Schaumburg, Illinois, while specific training courses are available at our facility in Plantation, 
Florida. Training can also be delivered directly on-site at customer locations. All instructors 
undergo an Instructional Skills and Technical Knowledge Program, which is a globally-
recognized training and instructor assessment program. 

Consultative Services 
Motorola Solutions provides consultative services for our customers, which includes 
personalized training plans and other training-related services. Our dedicated training consultant 
team works with our customers and Motorola Solutions account teams to identify and meet the 
training needs of technical, administrative end users, and other audiences. 

7.2.2 Training Courses 
Motorola Solutions offers a wide range of training courses to help our customers improve their 
proficiency with our expanding portfolio and get the most from their training system. 

Our specialized courses/curriculums are designed for our customers’ role. Whether they are an 
administrator, technician or user, Motorola Solutions makes sure our customers are equipped 
with foundational and advances skills.  

General overviews of product and/or solution training offered are listed below: 

Foundational Radio and Networking Training 
Foundational Radio and Networking training provides new hires or staff from different skilled 
backgrounds fundamental knowledge. Some of these courses are online/self-paced while others 
are instructor led. Some topics include: Radio System Basics, Basic Networking, 
Communication System Concepts, Networking Essentials and Applied Networking. This allows 
Motorola Solutions to offer training before installation, during installation and after your solution 
is operational. 

ASTRO 25 Infrastructure Training Courses 
ASTRO 25 Infrastructure Training provides participants with a full curriculum that will enable 
them to maintain/service the new solution, and will give them the skills required to manage and 
operate the solution to obtain its fullest potential and capabilities. 

730



ASTRO 25 Patch Management Training Course 
ASTRO 25 Patch Management Training provides ASTRO 25 Land Mobile Radio (LMR) system 
administrators the information needed to access and patch their radio network infrastructure, 
update antivirus definitions, and review log files. 

Console Training Courses 
Console Training provides participants with a curriculum that will enable them to obtain a high-
level understanding of the system configuration, general console operation, how to perform 
basic tasks, operating procedures for specific features, and the knowledge and skills necessary 
to manage and maintain the system. 

Mobile and Portable Radio Training Courses 
Mobile and Portable Radio Training provides participants with an introduction to the radio, the 
knowledge and skills necessary to perform basic radio operation, common operational tasks, 
operating procedures for specific features of the radio, and technical programming and 
maintenance of radios. 

MOTOTRBO Training Courses 
MOTOTRBO Training provides participants with a full curriculum that will enable them to 
maintain/service the new solution, and will give them the skills required to manage and operate 
the solution to obtain its fullest potential and capabilities. 

CallWorks Training Courses 
CallWorks Training provides participants with an overview of the components and functionality 
of the main application, operation, troubleshooting, a high-level understanding of the software, 
and configuration and maintenance of components of the CallWorks solution. 

PremierOne Training Courses 
PremierOne Training provides participants with sufficient knowledge of the PremierOne solution 
and its tools, giving them the skills necessary to operate and maintain the PremierOne solution. 

LTE Training Courses 
LTE Training provides participants a high-level understanding of the Public Safety LTE system 
and the network elements that comprise the system. Participants will gain knowledge of LTE 
architecture, signaling, system administration, and applied networking. 

WAVE Training Courses 
WAVE Training provides participants with an overview of the WAVE solution. It offers a basic 
understanding of how WAVE delivers a Radio-over-IP solution; describes features, hardware, 
and software requirements; how to use applications; and provides instruction in designing, 
integrating, and troubleshooting the WAVE solution. 

  

731



7.2.3 Training Tools 
Training Kits 
Training kits are essential suitcase equipment, labs and exercises that apply to some of the 
ASTRO, MOTOTRBO, WAVE and LTE solutions. These kits are used in addition to equipment, 
in order to prevent solution downtime while training is conducted. As part of specific on-site 
classes, shown in Table 1-1, kits are included and shipped to our customers to allow students 
an in-depth, hands-on experience.  

Table 1-1: Field Classes Training Kit Availability 

Field Classes Training Kit Availability 
Networking Essentials Server Virtualization 
Applied Systems Networking WAVE Certified Integration Engineer 
Domain Controller MOTOTRBO™ Systems Applied Networking 

Tracking and Evaluation 
All customer training is tracked and evaluated. The Project Manager and training team tracks 
and records all courses completed through the implementation of the project. Surveys are given 
to trainees to evaluate the trainers. Feedback is given and placed on our customer shared 
website. 

End User Training Kit (EUTK) 
The End User Training Kit is a knowledge-transfer tool designed to accelerate learning through 
customizability. Using the EUTK allows trainers to customize user/operator training to match 
unique button, feature programming, and displays provided in the system and radio codeplug. 
These tailored materials are developed by Motorola Solutions trainers using training kits that 
allow customer trainers to modify training materials when radio or console features change. 
Personnel are taught how to maneuver through and tailor the EUTK screens. The tailored 
selections are saved to an electronic file that the Motorola Solutions training team provides to 
the customer. 

For a more detailed view of the training Motorola Solutions provides, please see our Product and 
System Technical Training Course Catalog: 
https://learning.motorolasolutions.com/catalog/56280enus 

  

732

https://learning.motorolasolutions.com/catalog/56280enus


7.3 PROPOSED TRAINING OVERVIEW FOR LEMOORE 
PD 
In order to achieve the training goals identified by Lemoore PD, we propose the following 
courses.  

7.3.1 Console Operator and Supervisor Training Plan 
Course Title Target 

Audience 
Sessions Duration Location Date Participants 

MCC7500e Console 
Operator/Admin 
Utilizing the End                                                                                          
User Training Kit                                                                   
2 training consoles     
Ratio: 2 per console 
(Instructor-led) 

Dispatch 
Supervisor

s 

1                
(8-hour 

Session) 

1 day Lemoore, CA Prior to 
training 

Operators 

2                          

MCC7500e Console              
Operator Training    
2 training consoles    
Ratio: 2 per console 
(Instructor-led) 

Dispatch 
Operators 

2                
(4-hour 

Sessions) 

1 day Lemoore, CA Prior to 
cutover 

8                      
(4 per Session)                                                                      

7.3.2 Course Descriptions for Lemoore PD  
Course descriptions for Lemoore PD are included on the following pages. 

7.3.2.1 MCC7500 Console Supervisor 
Course Synopsis and 

Objectives: 
This course provides participants with the knowledge and skills to manage 
and utilize the MCC7500 console administrator functions. Through 
facilitation and hands-on activities, the participant learns how to customize 
the console screens. 
 
After completing this training course, you will be able to: 
 Understand the menu items and tool bar icons. 
 Edit folders, multi-select/patch groups, auxiliary input output groups, 

windows and toolbars. 
 Add/delete folders. 

Delivery Method: ILT - Instructor-led training 
Duration: 4 hours Operator, plus 

4 hours Admin 
Participants: Dispatch Supervisors and System Administrators 

Class Size: Based on number of Training Consoles available (2 students per Console) 
Prerequisite: None 
Curriculum:  Introduction 

 Configurations 
 Folders and Resource Setup 
 Customizing Folders 
 Auto Starting the MCC7500 Dispatch Console 
 Editing Preferences 
 Configuring the Toolbar 

733



 Setting Up Aux IOs 
 Resource Groups 

7.3.2.2 MCC7500 Console Operator 
 

Course Synopsis and 
Objectives: 

This course provides participants with an introduction to the dispatch 
console, its basic operation and tailored job aids which will be available for 
assistance in operation. Through facilitation and hands-on activities, the user 
learns how to perform common tasks associated with the console operation. 
 
After completing this training course, you will be able to: 
 Perform basic operational tasks of the dispatch console. 
 Utilize the provided job aids to perform specific tasks associated with the 

console. 
 Understand a high level view of the system configuration. 
 Understand a high-level overview of the customer system configuration. 
 Understand general console operation. 
 Understand proper operating procedures for specific customer features. 

Delivery Method: ILT - Instructor-led training 
Duration: 4 hours 

Participants: Dispatch Console Operators, Supervisors, System Administrators, and 
Support Personnel 

Class Size: Based on number of Training Consoles available (2 students per Console) 
Prerequisite: None 
Curriculum:  Overview 

 Communicating with Radios 
 Advanced Signaling Features 
 Resource Groups 
 Working with Configurations 
 Working with Aux IOs 
 Troubleshooting 

 
  

734



SECTION 8 

PRICING  
8.1 LEMOORE PD MCC 7500E CONSOLES  

Motorola’s pricing is based on the equipment list and services for the system designed for 
Lemoore PD The Statement of Work (SOW) describes the work to be performed for the 
installation, optimization, and testing of the system and the equipment list provides the 
equipment necessary for this project. 

Below pricing includes: (4) MCC 7500E Consoles, Training and 1st Year Warranty. 

Description Price (USD) 
Equipment: 
- One Redundant K2 Core  
- Three GTR Base Radios 
- Four MCC7500E Consoles 
- Two MCG8000 ECCGWs 
- Network Routers and Switches 
- MKM7000 Console Alias Manager 
- Seven APX Consolettes 
- SDM3000 for AUX I/Os 
- Verint Logging Solution 
- Watson Furniture 
- Spares $517,610 
Equipment Discount (HGAC Contract) -$91,220 

Equipment Total $426,390 
  

Project Services: 
- Project Management 
- Engineering Support 
- Detailed Design Review 
- Equipment Ordering and Manufacturing 
- Equipment Staging and Shipment 
- Equipment Installation 
- Programming and Configuration 
- Functional Acceptance Testing 
- Customer Training $308,879 

  
Estimated Tax on Equipment (7.25%) $30,913 

  
Project Total $766,182 

735



 
8.2 OPTIONAL SUPERVISOR FURNITURE  

Description Price (USD) 
Equipment: 
- Supervisor Furniture $6,219 
Equipment Discount (Sourcewell Contract) -$933 

Equipment Total $5,286 
  

Project Services: 
- Project Management 
- Engineering Support 
- Detailed Design Review 
- Equipment Ordering and Manufacturing 
- Equipment Shipment 
- Equipment Installation $3,436 

  
Estimated Tax on Equipment (7.25%) $383 

  
Project Total $9,105 

 

 

8.3 PAYMENT TERMS  
1.  25% of the Contract Price due upon contract execution (due upon effective date); 
  
2.  60% of the Contract Price due upon shipment of Equipment from Staging; 
  
3. 10% of the Contract Price due upon installation of Equipment 
 
4. 5% of the Contract Price due upon Final Project Acceptance 

 

8.4 ESSENTIAL PLUS AND SUA II SERVICES 

 

8.4.1 Essential Plus 
Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 

$ 38,313.60 $ 39,846.15 $ 41,439.99 $ 43,098.97 $ 162,698.71 

736



 

8.4.2 SUA II 
Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 

$ 28,876.08 $ 29,900.60 $ 30,966.10 $ 32,074.22 $ 121,817.01 
 

8.4.3 Verint Maintenance 
Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 

$ 11,708.25 $ 12,541.89 $ 13,434.87 $ 14,391.89 $ 52,076.90 

 

8.4.4 Verint SUA 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 TOTAL 

$ 15,290.35 $ 15,749.05 $ 16,870.39 $ 18,071.55 $ 19,358.87 $ 70,049.87 

 

 

8.5 ESSENTIAL PLUS AND SUA II PAYMENT TERMS 

For Essential Plus and SUA II Services: 

Motorola will invoice Customer annually in advance of each year of the plan. 

The chart below outlines the hourly labor rates for Motorola System Integration resources to be used.  
The staffing requirements shall be multiplied by the appropriate rate per resource in the table below. 
The hourly labor rates are fully burdened.   The hourly rates per resource type and level are listed in 
Table 1. 

 
These rates apply to ordinary days and times (Monday to Friday during the hours 8am to 5pm).  
Additional surcharges may apply to work done outside these timeframes.  The minimum charge for 
any resource will be 4 hours.  Travel expenses are not included in these rates and may be charged 
separately. The qualifications of each type and level of resource are defined in the tables found at 
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/labor-rates-exhibit-
160408.pdf.  All Motorola System Integration personnel assigned to this project will be classified 
according these levels.  Project Administrative roles are varied and their specific duties and 
qualifications will be determined by the complexity and requirements of each project. 

737

https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/labor-rates-exhibit-160408.pdf
https://www.motorolasolutions.com/content/dam/msi/secure/services/labor-rates-exhibit-160408.pdf


SECTION 9 

CONTRACTUAL 
DOCUMENTATION  

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (“Motorola Solutions”) and the Lemoore Police Department (“Customer”) enter into this 
“Agreement,” pursuant to which Customer will purchase and Motorola Solutions will sell the System and Services, 
as described below.  Motorola Solutions and Customer may be referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively 
as the “Parties.”   For good and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
  
Section 1 ATTACHMENTS 
  
1.1. EXHIBITS. The Exhibits listed below are exhibits related to the System sale and implementation. 
These Exhibits are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.   
Exhibit A     “Motorola Solutions Software License Agreement” 
Exhibit B     “Payment” 
Exhibit C     Technical and Implementation Documents 

C-1 “System Description” dated September 9, 2019 
C-2 “Pricing Summary & Equipment List” dated September 9, 2019 
C-3    “Implementation Statement of Work” dated September 9, 2019 
C-4    “Acceptance Test Plan” or “ATP” dated September 9, 2019 

Exhibit D “System Acceptance Certificate” 
 
1.2. ADDENDUM (ADDENDA).  Customer may elect to purchase professional or subscription services in 
addition to the System and related services. Any such services will be governed by the terms in the main body of 
the Agreement and the applicable Addendum containing terms specific to such service. Such Addendums will be 
labeled with the name of the service being purchased. 
 
1.3 In interpreting this Agreement and resolving any ambiguities: 1) the main body of this Agreement takes 
precedence over the exhibits and any inconsistency between Exhibits A through D will be resolved in their listed 
order, and 2) The applicable service Addendum will take precedence over the main body of the Agreement and the 
Exhibits.  
 
Section 2 DEFINITIONS 
  
Capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the following meanings: 
  
“Acceptance Tests” means those tests described in the Acceptance Test Plan. 
 
“Addendum (Addenda)” is the title of the document(s) containing a specific set of terms and conditions applicable 
to a particular service or other offering beyond the communication System and System implementation services. 
The terms in the Addendum are applicable only to the specific service or offering described therein.  
 
“Administrative User Credentials” means an account that has total access over the operating system, files, end 
user accounts and passwords at either the System level or box level.  Customer’s personnel with access to the 
Administrative User Credentials may be referred to as the Administrative User. 
  
“Beneficial Use” means when Customer first uses the System or a Subsystem for operational purposes (excluding 

738



training or testing). 
  
“Confidential Information” means all information consistent with the fulfillment of this Agreement that is (i) 
disclosed under this Agreement in oral, written, graphic, machine recognizable, and/or sample form, being clearly 
designated, labeled or marked as confidential or its equivalent or (ii) obtained by examination, testing or analysis of 
any hardware, software or any component part thereof provided by discloser to recipient. The nature and existence 
of this Agreement are considered Confidential Information. Confidential Information that is disclosed orally must be 
identified as confidential at the time of disclosure and confirmed by the discloser by submitting a written document 
to the recipient within thirty (30) days after such disclosure. The written document must contain a summary of the 
Confidential Information disclosed with enough specificity for identification purpose and must be labeled or marked 
as confidential or its equivalent. 
  
“Contract Price” means the price for the System and implementation Services, excluding applicable sales or 
similar taxes and freight charges. Further, unless otherwise stated in Exhibit B, “Payment Schedule” or the pricing 
pages of the proposal, recurring fees for maintenance, SUA, or subscription services are not included in the Contract 
Price.   
 
“Deliverables” means all written information (such as reports, specifications, designs, plans, drawings, analytics, 
Solution Data, or other technical or business information) that Motorola Solutions prepares for Customer in the 
performance of the Services and is obligated to provide to Customer under this Agreement.  The Deliverables, if 
any, are more fully described in the Statement of Work. 
  
“Derivative Proprietary Materials” means derivatives of the Proprietary Materials that Motorola Solutions may 
from time to time, including during the course of providing the Services, develop and/or use and/or to which Motorola 
Solutions provides Customer access. 
 
“Effective Date” means that date upon which the last Party executes this Agreement.  
  
“Equipment” means the hardware components of the Solution that Customer purchases from Motorola Solutions 
under this Agreement.  Equipment that is part of the System is described in the Equipment List.  
 
 “Feedback” means comments or information, in oral or written form, given to Motorola Solutions by Customer in 
connection with or relating to Equipment or Services, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
“Force Majeure” means an event, circumstance, or act that is beyond a Party’s reasonable control, such as an act 
of God, an act of the public enemy, an act of a government entity, strikes, other labor disturbances, supplier 
performance, hurricanes, earthquakes, fires, floods, epidemics, embargoes, war, riots, or any other similar cause.  
  
“Motorola Solutions Software” means software that Motorola Solutions or its affiliated companies owns.  
  
“Non-Motorola Solutions Software” means software that a party other than Motorola Solutions or its affiliated 
companies owns. 
  
“Open Source Software” (also called “freeware” or “shareware”) means software with either freely obtainable 
source code, license for modification, or permission for free distribution.  
  
“Proprietary Materials” means certain software tools and/or other technical materials, including, but not limited to, 
data, modules, components, designs, utilities, subsets, objects, program listings, models, methodologies, programs, 
systems, analysis frameworks, leading practices and specifications which Motorola Solutions has developed prior 
to, or independently from, the provision of the Services and/or which Motorola Solutions licenses from third parties. 
 
“Proprietary Rights” means the patents, patent applications, inventions, copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, 
trade names, mask works, know-how, and other intellectual property rights in and to the Equipment and Software, 
including those created or produced by Motorola Solutions under this Agreement and any corrections, bug fixes, 
enhancements, updates or modifications to or derivative works from the Software whether made by Motorola 

739



Solutions or another party. 
 
“Services” means system implementation, maintenance, support, subscription, or other professional services 
provided under this Agreement, which may be further described in the applicable Addendum and/or SOW. 
  
“Software” (i) means proprietary software in object code format, and adaptations, translations, de-compilations, 
disassemblies, emulations, or derivative works of such software; (ii) means any modifications, enhancements, new 
versions and new releases of the software provided by Motorola Solutions; and (iii) may contain one or more items 
of software owned by a third party supplier.  The term "Software" does not include any third party software provided 
under separate license or third party software not licensable under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
“Software Support Policy” (“SwSP”) means the policy set forth at 
http://www.motorolasolutions.com/softwarepolicy describing the specific technical support that will be provided to 
Customers under the Warranty Period and during any paid maintenance support period for Motorola Solutions 
Software.  This policy may be modified from time to time at Motorola Solutions’ discretion. 
 
“Solution” means the combination of the System(s) and Services provided by Motorola Solutions under this 
Agreement. 
 
“Solution Data” means Customer data that is transformed, altered, processed, aggregated, correlated or operated 
on by Motorola Solutions, its vendors or other data sources and data that has been manipulated or retrieved using 
Motorola Solutions know-how to produce value-added content to data consumers, including customers or citizens 
which is made available to Customer with the Solution and Services. 
  
“Specifications” means the functionality and performance requirements that are described in the Technical and 
Implementation Documents.  
 
“SUA” or “SUA II” means Motorola Solutions’ Software Upgrade Agreement program.  
 
“Subsystem” means a major part of the System that performs specific functions or operations.  Subsystems are 
described in the Technical and Implementation Documents. 
  
“System” means the Equipment, including incidental hardware and materials, Software, and design, installation 
and implementation services that are combined together into an integrated system; the System(s) is (are) described 
in the Technical and Implementation Documents.   
  
“System Acceptance” means the Acceptance Tests have been successfully completed. 
“System Data” means data created by, in connection with or in relation to Equipment or the performance of Services 
under this Agreement.  
  
“Warranty Period” for System Hardware, Software, or services related to system implementation means one (1) 
year from the date of System Acceptance or Beneficial Use, whichever occurs first. Unless otherwise stated in the 
applicable Addendum, Warranty Period for other Services means ninety (90) days from performance of the Service. 
  
Section 3 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT AND TERM 
  
3.1.    SCOPE OF WORK.  Motorola Solutions will provide, install and test the System(s), and perform its other 
contractual responsibilities to provide the Solution, all in accordance with this Agreement.  Customer will perform 
its contractual responsibilities in accordance with this Agreement. 
  
3.2.    CHANGE ORDERS.  Either Party may request changes within the general scope of this Agreement.  If a 
requested change causes an increase or decrease in the cost or time required to perform this Agreement, the 
Parties will agree to an equitable adjustment of the Contract Price or applicable subscription fees, Performance 
Schedule, or both, and will reflect the adjustment in a change order or Addendum.  Neither Party is obligated to 

740



perform requested changes unless both Parties execute a written change order. 
  
3.3.    TERM.  Unless terminated in accordance with other provisions of this Agreement or extended by mutual 
agreement of the Parties, the term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues until the date of 
Final Project Acceptance or expiration of the Warranty Period, whichever occurs last.  The term and the effective 
date of recurring Services will be set forth in the applicable Addendum. 
          
3.4.    ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE.  For three (3) years after the expiration date of the 
Agreement, Customer may order additional Equipment or Software, if it is then available.  Each purchase order 
must refer to this Agreement, the expiration date of the Agreement, and must specify the pricing and delivery terms.  
The Parties agree that, notwithstanding expiration of the Agreement, the applicable provisions of this Agreement 
(except for pricing, delivery, passage of title and risk of loss to Equipment, warranty commencement, and payment 
terms) will govern the purchase and sale of the additional Equipment or Software.  Additional or contrary terms in 
the purchase order will be inapplicable, unless signed by both parties. Title and risk of loss to additional Equipment 
will pass at shipment, warranty will commence upon delivery, and payment is due within thirty (30) days after the 
invoice date.  Motorola Solutions will send Customer an invoice as the additional Equipment is shipped or Software 
is licensed.  Alternatively, Customer may register with and place orders through Motorola Solutions Online (“MOL”), 
and this Agreement will be the “Underlying Agreement” for those MOL transactions rather than the MOL On-Line 
Terms and Conditions of Sale.  MOL registration and other information may be found at 
https://businessonline.motorolasolutions.com and the MOL telephone number is (800) 814-0601.   
 
3.5.    MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS SOFTWARE.  Any Motorola Solutions Software, including subsequent releases, 
is licensed to Customer solely in accordance with the Motorola Solutions Software License Agreement in Exhibit A 
(“Software License Agreement”).  Customer hereby accepts and agrees to abide by all of the terms and restrictions 
of the Software License Agreement. 
  
3.6.    NON-MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS SOFTWARE.  Any Non-Motorola Solutions Software is licensed to 
Customer in accordance with the standard license, terms, and restrictions of the copyright owner on the Effective 
Date unless the copyright owner has granted to Motorola Solutions the right to sublicense the Non-Motorola 
Solutions Software pursuant to the Software License Agreement, in which case it applies and the copyright owner 
will have all of Licensor’s rights and protections under the Software License Agreement.  Motorola Solutions makes 
no representations or warranties of any kind regarding Non-Motorola Solutions Software.  Non-Motorola Solutions 
Software may include Open Source Software.   
  
3.7.    SUBSTITUTIONS.  At no additional cost to Customer, Motorola Solutions may substitute any Equipment, 
Software, or services to be provided by Motorola Solutions, if the substitute meets or exceeds the Specifications 
and is of equivalent or better quality to the Customer.  Any substitution will be reflected in a change order. 
  
3.8.    OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE.  This paragraph applies only if a “Priced Options” exhibit is 
shown in Section 1, or if the parties amend this Agreement to add a Priced Options exhibit.  During the term of the 
option as stated in the Priced Options exhibit (or if no term is stated, then for one (1) year after the Effective Date), 
Customer has option to purchase the equipment, software, and related services that are described in the Priced 
Options exhibit.  Customer may exercise this option by giving written notice to Motorola Solutions which must 
designate what equipment, software, and related services Customer is selecting (including quantities, if applicable).  
To the extent they apply, the terms and conditions of this Agreement will govern the transaction; however, the 
parties acknowledge that certain provisions must be agreed upon, and they agree to negotiate those in good faith 
promptly after Customer delivers the option exercise notice.  Examples of provisions that may need to be negotiated 
are: specific lists of deliverables, statements of work, acceptance test plans, delivery and implementation schedules, 
payment terms, maintenance and support provisions, additions to or modifications of the Software License 
Agreement, hosting terms, and modifications to the acceptance and warranty provisions. 
 
Section 4 SERVICES 
 
4.1. If Customer desires and Motorola Solutions agrees to continue Services beyond the Term, Customer’s 
issuance and Motorola Solutions’ acceptance of a purchase order for Services will serve as an automatic extension 

741

https://businessonline.motorola.com/
https://businessonline.motorola.com/
https://businessonline.motorola.com/


of the Agreement for purposes of the continuing Services. Only the terms and conditions applicable to the 
performance of Services will apply to the extended Agreement.   
 
4.2. MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT, AND SUA SERVICES.  During the Warranty Period, in addition to warranty 
services, Motorola Solutions will provide maintenance Services for the Equipment and support for the Motorola 
Solutions Software pursuant to the Statement of Work set forth in the Maintenance and Support Addendum.  
Support for the Motorola Solutions Software will be in accordance with Motorola Solutions' established Software 
Support Policy.  Copies of the SwSP can be found at http://www.motorolasolutions.com/softwarepolicy and will be 
sent by mail, email or fax to Customer upon written request. Maintenance Services and support during the Warranty 
Period are included in the Contract Price.  If Customer wishes to purchase 1) additional maintenance or software 
support services during the Warranty Period; or 2) continue or expand maintenance, software support, installation, 
and/or SUA services after the Warranty Period, Motorola Solutions will provide the description of and pricing for 
such services in a separate proposal document.   Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the terms and 
conditions in this Agreement applicable to the maintenance, support, installation, and/or SUA Services, will be 
included in the Maintenance and Support Addendum, SUA Addendum, the applicable Statements of Work, and the 
proposal. These collective terms will govern the provision of such Services.   
 
To obtain any such additional Services, Customer will issue a purchase order referring to this Agreement and the 
separate proposal document.  Omission of reference to this Agreement in Customer’s purchase order will not affect 
the applicability of this Agreement. Motorola Solutions’ proposal may include a cover page entitled “Service 
Agreement” or “Installation Agreement”, as applicable, and other attachments. These cover pages and other 
attachments are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  
 
4.3. PROFESSIONAL AND SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES.  If Customer purchases professional or subscription 
Services as part of the Solution, additional or different terms specific to such Service will be included in the 
applicable Addendum and will apply to those Services.  Customer may purchase additional professional or 
subscription services by issuing a purchase order referencing this Agreement and Motorola Solutions’ proposal for 
such additional services.  
 
4.4. Any information in the form of specifications, drawings, reprints, technical information or otherwise furnished 
to Customer in providing Services under this Agreement or Motorola Solutions data viewed or accessed by 
Customer will remain Motorola Solutions’ property and will be deemed Confidential Information. This Confidential 
Information will be promptly returned at Motorola Solutions' request.   
 
4.5. TOOLS.  All tools, equipment, dies, gauges, models, drawings or other materials paid for or furnished by 
Motorola Solutions for the purpose of providing Services under this Agreement will be and remain the sole property 
of Motorola Solutions.  Customer will safeguard all such property while it is in Customer’s custody or control, be 
liable for any loss or damage to such property, and return it to Motorola Solutions upon request.  Such property will 
be held by Customer for Motorola Solutions’ use without charge and may be removed from Customer’s premises 
by Motorola Solutions at any time without restriction.  Upon termination of the Agreement for any reason, Customer 
shall return to Motorola Solutions all equipment delivered to Customer.   

4.6. COVENANT NOT TO EMPLOY.  During the term of this Agreement and continuing for a period of two (2) 
years thereafter, Customer will not hire, engage on contract, solicit the employment of, or recommend employment 
to any third party of any employee of Motorola Solutions or its subcontractors without the prior written authorization 
of Motorola Solutions.  This provision applies only to those employees of Motorola Solutions or its subcontractors 
who are responsible for rendering Services under this Agreement.  If this provision is found to be overly broad under 
applicable law, it will be modified as necessary to conform to applicable law. 
4.7. CUSTOMER OBLIGATIONS.  If the applicable Statement of Work or Addendum contains assumptions that 
affect the Services or Deliverables, Customer will verify that they are accurate and complete.  Any information that 
Customer provides to Motorola Solutions concerning the Services or Deliverables will be accurate and complete in 
all material respects.   Customer will make timely decisions and obtain any required management approvals that 
are reasonably necessary for Motorola Solutions to perform the Services and its other duties under this Agreement.  
Unless the Statement of Work states the contrary, Motorola Solutions may rely upon and is not required to evaluate, 
confirm, reject, modify, or provide advice concerning any assumptions and Customer-provided information, 

742

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/softwarepolicy


decisions and approvals described in this section.   
 
4.8. ASSUMPTIONS.  If any assumptions or conditions contained in this Agreement, applicable Addenda or 
Statements of Work prove to be incorrect or if Customer’s obligations are not performed, Motorola Solutions’ ability 
to perform under this Agreement may be impacted and changes to the Contract Price, subscription fees, project 
schedule, Deliverables, or other changes may be necessary. 
 
4.9. NON-PRECLUSION.  If, as a result of the Services performed under this Agreement, Motorola Solutions 
recommends that Customer purchase products or other services, nothing in this Agreement precludes Motorola 
Solutions from participating in a future competitive bidding process or otherwise offering or selling the recommended 
products or other services to Customer.  Customer represents that this paragraph does not violate its procurement 
or other laws, regulations, or policies. 
 
4.10. PROPRIETARY MATERIALS.  Customer acknowledges that Motorola Solutions may use and/or provide 
Customer with access to Proprietary Materials and Derivative Proprietary Materials.  The Proprietary Materials and 
the Derivative Proprietary Materials are the sole and exclusive property of Motorola Solutions and Motorola 
Solutions retains all right, title and interest in and to the Proprietary Materials and Derivative Proprietary Materials. 
 
4.11. ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  Any services performed by Motorola Solutions outside the scope of this 
Agreement at the direction of Customer will be considered to be additional Services which are subject to additional 
charges.  Any agreement to perform additional Services will be reflected in a written and executed change order, 
Addendum or amendment to this Agreement.  
  
Section 5 PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE 
  
The Parties will perform their respective responsibilities in accordance with the Performance Schedule.  By 
executing this Agreement, Customer authorizes Motorola Solutions to proceed with contract performance.  
  
Section 6 CONTRACT PRICE, PAYMENT AND INVOICING 
  
6.1. Customer affirms that a purchase order or notice to proceed is not required for contract performance or for 
subsequent years of service, if any, and that Customer will appropriate funds according to the Payment Schedule.  
The Customer will pay all invoices as received from Motorola Solutions and any changes in scope will be subject 
to the change order process as described in this Agreement.  At the time of execution of this Agreement, the 
Customer will provide all necessary reference information to include on invoices for payment in accordance with 
this Agreement. 
 
6.2. CONTRACT PRICE.  The Contract Price in U.S. dollars is $________________________.  If applicable, a 
pricing summary is included with the Payment schedule in Exhibit B.  Motorola Solutions has priced the Services, 
Software, and Equipment as an integrated System.  A reduction in Software or Equipment quantities, or Services, 
may affect the overall Contract Price, including discounts if applicable. Fees for professional, SUA, and/or 
subscription services which are not included in the Contract Price may be listed in Exhibit B, the pricing pages of 
the proposal, or the applicable Addendum.     
  
6.3. INVOICING AND PAYMENT.  Motorola Solutions will submit invoices to Customer according to the 
Payment schedule in Exhibit B.  Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make 
payments to Motorola Solutions within thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice. Customer will make payments 
when due in the form of a wire transfer, check, or cashier’s check from a U.S. financial institution.  Overdue invoices 
will bear simple interest at the maximum allowable rate. For reference, the Federal Tax Identification Number for 
Motorola Solutions is 36-1115800. 
  
6.4. FREIGHT, TITLE, AND RISK OF LOSS.  Motorola Solutions will pre-pay and add all freight charges to the 
invoices.  Title and risk of loss to the Equipment will pass to Customer upon shipment.  Title to Software will not 
pass to Customer at any time. Motorola Solutions will pack and ship all Equipment in accordance with good 
commercial practices.  

743



 
6.5. INVOICING AND SHIPPING ADDRESSES.  Invoices will be sent to the Customer at the following address: 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Phone:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Email:_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  
The address which is the ultimate destination where the Equipment will be delivered to Customer is: 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
  
The Equipment will be shipped to the Customer at the following address (insert if this information is known): 
Name:______________________________________________________________________________ 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Phone:______________________________________________________________________________ 
  
Customer may change this information by giving written notice to Motorola Solutions. 
 
Section 7 SITES AND SITE CONDITIONS 
 
7.1.    ACCESS TO SITES.  In addition to its responsibilities described elsewhere in this Agreement, Customer 
will provide a designated project manager; all necessary construction and building permits, zoning variances, 
licenses, and any other approvals that are necessary to develop or use the sites and mounting locations; and access 
to the worksites or vehicles identified in the Technical and Implementation Documents as reasonably requested by 
Motorola Solutions so that it may perform its duties in accordance with the Performance Schedule and Statement 
of Work.  If the Statement of Work so indicates, Motorola Solutions may assist Customer in the local building permit 
process. 
  
7.2.    SITE CONDITIONS.  Customer will ensure that all work sites it provides will be safe, secure, and in 
compliance with all applicable industry and OSHA standards.  To the extent applicable and unless the Statement 
of Work states to the contrary, Customer will ensure that these work sites have adequate: physical space; air 
conditioning and other environmental conditions; adequate and appropriate electrical power outlets, distribution, 
equipment and connections; and adequate telephone or other communication lines (including modem access and 
adequate interfacing networking capabilities), all for the installation, use and maintenance of the System.  Before 
installing the Equipment or Software at a work site, Motorola Solutions may inspect the work site and advise 
Customer of any apparent deficiencies or non-conformities with the requirements of this Section.  This Agreement 
is predicated upon normal soil conditions as defined by the version of E.I.A. standard RS-222 in effect on the 
Effective Date. 
  
7.3.    SITE ISSUES.  If a Party determines that the sites identified in the Technical and Implementation 
Documents are no longer available or desired, or if subsurface, structural, adverse environmental or latent 
conditions at any site differ from those indicated in the Technical and Implementation Documents, the Parties will 
promptly investigate the conditions and will select replacement sites or adjust the installation plans and 
specifications as necessary.  If change in sites or adjustment to the installation plans and specifications causes a 
change in the cost or time to perform, the Parties will equitably amend the Contract Price, Performance Schedule, 
or both, by a change order. 
 
 Section 8 TRAINING 
 
Any training to be provided by Motorola Solutions to Customer will be described in the applicable Statement of 
Work.  Customer will notify Motorola Solutions immediately if a date change for a scheduled training program is 
required.  If Motorola Solutions incurs additional costs because Customer reschedules a training program less than 
thirty (30) days before its scheduled start date, Motorola Solutions may recover these additional costs. 
   
Section 9 SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE 

744



  
9.1. COMMENCEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE TESTING. Motorola Solutions will provide to Customer at least ten 
(10) days notice before the Acceptance Tests commence. System testing will occur only in accordance with the 
Acceptance Test Plan. 
  
9.2. SYSTEM ACCEPTANCE. System Acceptance will occur upon successful completion of the Acceptance 
Tests.  Upon System Acceptance, the Parties will memorialize this event by promptly executing a System 
Acceptance Certificate.  If the Acceptance Test Plan includes separate tests for individual Subsystems or phases 
of the System, acceptance of the individual Subsystem or phase will occur upon the successful completion of the 
Acceptance Tests for the Subsystem or phase, and the Parties will promptly execute an acceptance certificate for 
the Subsystem or phase.  If Customer believes the System has failed the completed Acceptance Tests, Customer 
will provide to Motorola Solutions a written notice that includes the specific details of the failure.  If Customer does 
not provide to Motorola Solutions a failure notice within thirty (30) days after completion of the Acceptance Tests, 
System Acceptance will be deemed to have occurred as of the completion of the Acceptance Tests.  Minor 
omissions or variances in the System that do not materially impair the operation of the System as a whole will not 
postpone System Acceptance or Subsystem acceptance, but will be corrected according to a mutually agreed 
schedule. 
  
9.3. BENEFICIAL USE.  Customer acknowledges that Motorola Solutions’ ability to perform its implementation 
and testing responsibilities may be impeded if Customer begins using the System before System Acceptance.  
Therefore, Customer will not commence Beneficial Use before System Acceptance without Motorola Solutions’ prior 
written authorization, which will not be unreasonably withheld. Motorola Solutions is not responsible for System 
performance deficiencies that occur during unauthorized Beneficial Use. Upon commencement of Beneficial Use, 
Customer assumes responsibility for the use and operation of the System.   
  
9.4. FINAL PROJECT ACCEPTANCE. Final Project Acceptance will occur after System Acceptance when all 
deliverables and other work have been completed.  When Final Project Acceptance occurs, the parties will promptly 
memorialize this final event by so indicating on the System Acceptance Certificate. 
  
Section 10 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
  
10.1.    SYSTEM FUNCTIONALITY.  Motorola Solutions represents that the System will perform in accordance 
with the Specifications in all material respects.  Upon System Acceptance or Beneficial Use, whichever occurs first, 
this System functionality representation is fulfilled.  Motorola Solutions is not responsible for System performance 
deficiencies that are caused by ancillary equipment not furnished by Motorola Solutions which is attached to or 
used in connection with the System or for reasons or parties beyond Motorola Solutions’ control, such as natural 
causes; the construction of a building that adversely affects the microwave path reliability or radio frequency (RF) 
coverage; the addition of frequencies at System sites that cause RF interference or intermodulation; or Customer 
changes to load usage or configuration outside the Specifications. 
  
10.2. EQUIPMENT WARRANTY.  During the Warranty Period, Motorola Solutions warrants that the Equipment 
under normal use and service will be free from material defects in materials and workmanship.  If System 
Acceptance is delayed beyond six (6) months after shipment of the Equipment by events or causes beyond Motorola 
Solutions’ control, this warranty expires eighteen (18) months after the shipment of the Equipment. 
  
10.3. SOFTWARE WARRANTY.  Except as described in the SwSP and unless otherwise stated in the Software 
License Agreement, during the Warranty Period, Motorola Solutions warrants the Software in accordance with the 
warranty terms set forth in the Software License Agreement and the provisions of this Section that are applicable 
to the Software.  If System Acceptance is delayed beyond six (6) months after shipment of the Motorola Solutions 
Software by events or causes beyond Motorola Solutions’ control, this warranty expires eighteen (18) months after 
the shipment of the Motorola Solutions Software.  Nothing in this Warranty provision is intended to conflict or 
modify the Software Support Policy. In the event of an ambiguity or conflict between the Software Warranty 
and Software Support Policy, the Software Support Policy governs. TO THE EXTENT, IF ANY, THAT THERE 
IS A SEPARATE LICENSE AGREEMENT PACKAGED WITH, OR PROVIDED ELECTRONICALLY WITH, A 
PARTICULAR PRODUCT THAT BECOMES EFFECTIVE ON AN ACT OF ACCEPTANCE BY THE END USER, 

745



THEN THAT AGREEMENT SUPERSEDES THE SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT AS TO THE END USER 
OF EACH SUCH PRODUCT.  
  
10.4.    EXCLUSIONS TO EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE WARRANTIES.  These warranties do not apply to: (i) 
defects or damage resulting from: use of the Equipment or Software in other than its normal, customary, and 
authorized manner; accident, liquids, neglect, or acts of God; testing, maintenance, disassembly, repair, installation, 
alteration, modification, or adjustment not provided or authorized in writing by Motorola Solutions; Customer’s failure 
to comply with all applicable industry and OSHA standards; (ii) breakage of or damage to antennas unless caused 
directly by defects in material or workmanship; (iii) Equipment that has had the serial number removed or made 
illegible; (iv) batteries (because they carry their own separate limited warranty) or consumables; (v) freight costs to 
ship Equipment to the repair depot; (vi) scratches or other cosmetic damage to Equipment surfaces that does not 
affect the operation of the Equipment; and (vii) normal or customary wear and tear. 
 
10.5. SERVICE WARRANTY.  During the Warranty Period, Motorola Solutions warrants that the Services will be 
provided in a good and workmanlike manner and will conform in all material respects to the applicable Statement 
of Work. Services will be free of defects in materials and workmanship for a period of ninety (90) days from the date 
the performance of the Services are completed.  Customer acknowledges that the Deliverables may contain 
recommendations, suggestions or advice from Motorola Solutions to Customer (collectively, “recommendations”).  
Motorola Solutions makes no warranties concerning those recommendations, and Customer alone accepts 
responsibility for choosing whether and how to implement the recommendations and the results to be realized from 
implementing them. 
  
10.6. WARRANTY CLAIMS.  To assert a warranty claim, Customer must notify Motorola Solutions in writing of 
the claim before the expiration of the Warranty Period.  Upon receipt of this notice, Motorola Solutions will investigate 
the warranty claim.  If this investigation confirms a valid Equipment or Software warranty claim, Motorola Solutions 
will (at its option and at no additional charge to Customer) repair the defective Equipment or Motorola Solutions 
Software, replace it with the same or equivalent product, or refund the price of the defective Equipment or Motorola 
Solutions Software.  These actions will be the full extent of Motorola Solutions’ liability for the warranty claim.  In 
the event of a valid Services warranty claim, Customer’s sole remedy is to require Motorola Solutions to re-perform 
the non-conforming Service or to refund, on a pro-rata basis, the fees paid for the non-conforming Service.  If this 
investigation indicates the warranty claim is not valid, then Motorola Solutions may invoice Customer for responding 
to the claim on a time and materials basis using Motorola Solutions’ then current labor rates.  Repaired or replaced 
product is warranted for the balance of the original applicable warranty period.  All replaced products or parts will 
become the property of Motorola Solutions. 
  
10.7. ORIGINAL END USER IS COVERED.  These express limited warranties are extended by Motorola 
Solutions to the original user purchasing the System or Services for commercial, industrial, or governmental use 
only, and are not assignable or transferable. 
  
10.8. DISCLAIMER OF OTHER WARRANTIES.  THESE WARRANTIES ARE THE COMPLETE WARRANTIES 
FOR THE EQUIPMENT AND MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS SOFTWARE PROVIDED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
AND ARE GIVEN IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES.  MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  
 
Section 11 DELAYS 
  
11.1. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither Party will be liable for its non-performance or delayed performance if caused 
by a Force Majeure.  A Party that becomes aware of a Force Majeure that will significantly delay performance will 
notify the other Party promptly (but in no event later than fifteen days) after it discovers the Force Majeure.  If a 
Force Majeure occurs, the Parties will execute a change order to extend the Performance Schedule or applicable 
Addenda for a time period that is reasonable under the circumstances. 
  
11.2. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE DELAYS CAUSED BY CUSTOMER. If Customer (including its other 
contractors) delays the Performance Schedule, it will make the promised payments according to the Payment 

746



Schedule as if no delay occurred; and the Parties will execute a change order to extend the Performance Schedule 
and, if requested, compensate Motorola Solutions for all reasonable charges incurred because of the delay.  Delay 
charges may include costs incurred by Motorola Solutions or its subcontractors for additional freight, warehousing 
and handling of Equipment; extension of the warranties; travel; suspending and re-mobilizing the work; additional 
engineering, project management, and standby time calculated at then current rates; and preparing and 
implementing an alternative implementation plan. 
  
Section 12 DISPUTES 
  
The Parties will use the following procedure to address any dispute arising under this Agreement (a “Dispute”). 
  
12.1.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State in which the System is installed. 
  
12.2. NEGOTIATION.  Either Party may initiate the Dispute resolution procedures by sending a notice of Dispute 
(“Notice of Dispute”).  The Parties will attempt to resolve the Dispute promptly through good faith negotiations 
including 1) timely escalation of the Dispute to executives who have authority to settle the Dispute and who are at 
a higher level of management than the persons with direct responsibility for the matter and 2) direct communication 
between the executives.  If the Dispute has not been resolved within ten (10) days from the Notice of Dispute, the 
Parties will proceed to mediation.  
  
12.3. MEDIATION.  The Parties will choose an independent mediator within thirty (30) days of a notice to mediate 
from either Party (“Notice of Mediation”).  Neither Party may unreasonably withhold consent to the selection of a 
mediator.  If the Parties are unable to agree upon a mediator, either Party may request that American Arbitration 
Association nominate a mediator.  Each Party will bear its own costs of mediation, but the Parties will share the 
cost of the mediator equally.  Each Party will participate in the mediation in good faith and will be represented at the 
mediation by a business executive with authority to settle the Dispute. 
  
12.4.  LITIGATION, VENUE and JURISDICTION.  If a Dispute remains unresolved for sixty (60) days after receipt 
of the Notice of Mediation, either Party may then submit the Dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction in the state 
in which the System is installed.  Each Party irrevocably agrees to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts 
in such state over any claim or matter arising under or in connection with this Agreement. 
  
12.5. CONFIDENTIALITY.  All communications pursuant to subsections 12.2 and 12.3 will be treated as 
compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of applicable rules of evidence and any additional 
confidentiality protections provided by applicable law.  The use of these Dispute resolution procedures will not be 
construed under the doctrines of laches, waiver or estoppel to affect adversely the rights of either Party. 
 
Section 13 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
  
13.1. DEFAULT BY A PARTY.  If either Party fails to perform a material obligation under this Agreement, the 
other Party may consider the non-performing Party to be in default (unless a Force Majeure causes the failure) and 
may assert a default claim by giving the non-performing Party a written and detailed notice of default.  Except for a 
default by Customer for failing to pay any amount when due under this Agreement which must be cured immediately, 
the defaulting Party will have thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice of default to either cure the default or, if the 
default is not curable within thirty (30) days, provide a written cure plan.  The defaulting Party will begin implementing 
the cure plan immediately after receipt of notice by the other Party that it approves the plan.  If Customer is the 
defaulting Party, Motorola Solutions may stop work on the project until it approves the Customer’s cure plan. 
  
13.2. FAILURE TO CURE.  If a defaulting Party fails to cure the default as provided above in Section 13.1, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing, the non-defaulting Party may terminate any unfulfilled portion of this Agreement.  In the 
event of termination for default, the defaulting Party will promptly return to the non-defaulting Party any of its 
Confidential Information.  If Customer is the non-defaulting Party, terminates this Agreement as permitted by this 
Section, and completes the System through a third Party, Customer may as its exclusive remedy recover from 
Motorola Solutions reasonable costs incurred to complete the System to a capability not exceeding that specified 

747



in this Agreement less the unpaid portion of the Contract Price.  Customer will mitigate damages and provide 
Motorola Solutions with detailed invoices substantiating the charges. In the event Customer elects to terminate this 
Agreement for any reason other than default, Customer shall pay Motorola Solutions for the conforming Equipment 
and/or Software delivered and all services performed. 
 
Section 14     INDEMNIFICATION 
  
14.1.  GENERAL INDEMNITY BY Motorola Solutions.  Motorola Solutions will indemnify and hold Customer 
harmless from any and all liability, expense, judgment, suit, cause of action, or demand for personal injury, death, 
or direct damage to tangible property which may accrue against Customer to the extent it is caused by the 
negligence of Motorola Solutions, its subcontractors, or their employees or agents, while performing their duties 
under this Agreement, if Customer gives Motorola Solutions prompt, written notice of any claim or suit.  Customer 
will cooperate with Motorola Solutions in its defense or settlement of the claim or suit.  This Section sets forth the 
full extent of Motorola Solutions’ general indemnification of Customer from liabilities that are in any way related to 
Motorola Solutions’ performance under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding, this obligation does not apply if Motorola 
Solutions is entitled to immunity under the NG9-1-1 Act of 2012. 
  
14.2.  GENERAL INDEMNITY BY CUSTOMER.  Customer will indemnify and hold Motorola Solutions harmless 
from any and all liability, expense, judgment, suit, cause of action, or demand for personal injury, death, or direct 
damage to tangible property which may accrue against Motorola Solutions to the extent it is caused by the 
negligence of Customer, its other contractors, or their employees or agents, while performing their duties under this 
Agreement, if Motorola Solutions gives Customer prompt, written notice of any the claim or suit.  Motorola Solutions 
will cooperate with Customer in its defense or settlement of the claim or suit.  This Section sets forth the full extent 
of Customer’s general indemnification of Motorola Solutions from liabilities that are in any way related to Customer’s 
performance under this Agreement. 
  
14.3. PATENT AND COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT.  
  
14.3.1.  Motorola Solutions will defend at its expense any suit brought against Customer to the extent it is based on 
a third-party claim alleging that the Equipment manufactured by Motorola Solutions or the Motorola Solutions 
Software (“Motorola Solutions Product”) directly infringes a United States patent or copyright (“Infringement Claim”). 
Motorola Solutions’ duties to defend and indemnify are conditioned upon: Customer promptly notifying Motorola 
Solutions in writing of the Infringement Claim; Motorola Solutions having sole control of the defense of the suit and 
all negotiations for its settlement or compromise; and Customer providing to Motorola Solutions cooperation and, if 
requested by Motorola Solutions, reasonable assistance in the defense of the Infringement Claim.  In addition to 
Motorola Solutions’ obligation to defend, and subject to the same conditions, Motorola Solutions will pay all 
damages finally awarded against Customer by a court of competent jurisdiction for an Infringement Claim or agreed 
to, in writing, by Motorola Solutions in settlement of an Infringement Claim.  
  
14.3.2 If an Infringement Claim occurs, or in Motorola Solutions' opinion is likely to occur, Motorola Solutions may 
at its option and expense: (a) procure for Customer the right to continue using the Motorola Solutions Product; (b) 
replace or modify the Motorola Solutions Product so that it becomes non-infringing while providing functionally 
equivalent performance; or (c) accept the return of the Motorola Solutions Product and grant Customer a credit for 
the Motorola Solutions Product, less a reasonable charge for depreciation. The depreciation amount will be 
calculated based upon generally accepted accounting standards.  
  
14.3.3  Motorola Solutions will have no duty to defend or indemnify for any Infringement Claim that is based upon: 
(a) the combination of the Motorola Solutions Product with any software, apparatus or device not furnished by 
Motorola Solutions; (b) the use of ancillary equipment or software not furnished by Motorola Solutions and that is 
attached to or used in connection with the Motorola Solutions Product; (c) Motorola Solutions Product designed or 
manufactured in accordance with Customer’s designs, specifications, guidelines or instructions, if the alleged 
infringement would not have occurred without such designs, specifications, guidelines or instructions; (d) a 
modification of the Motorola Solutions Product by a party other than Motorola Solutions; (e) use of the Motorola 
Solutions Product in a manner for which the Motorola Solutions Product was not designed or that is inconsistent 
with the terms of this Agreement; or (f) the failure by Customer to install an enhancement release to the Motorola 

748



Solutions Software that is intended to correct the claimed infringement.   In no event will Motorola Solutions’ liability 
resulting from its indemnity obligation to Customer extend in any way to royalties payable on a per use basis or the 
Customer’s revenues, or any royalty basis other than a reasonable royalty based upon revenue derived by Motorola 
Solutions from Customer from sales or license of the infringing Motorola Solutions Product. 
  
14.3.4. This Section 14 provides Customer’s sole and exclusive remedies and Motorola Solutions’ entire liability in 
the event of an Infringement Claim.  Customer has no right to recover and Motorola Solutions has no obligation to 
provide any other or further remedies, whether under another provision of this Agreement or any other legal theory 
or principle, in connection with an Infringement Claim.  In addition, the rights and remedies provided in this Section 
14 are subject to and limited by the restrictions set forth in Section 15. 
  
Section 15 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
  
Except for personal injury or death, Motorola Solutions' total liability, whether for breach of contract, warranty, 
negligence, strict liability in tort, indemnification, or otherwise, will be limited to the direct damages recoverable 
under law, but not to exceed the price of the Equipment, Software, or implementation Services with respect to which 
losses or damages are claimed.  With respect to all non-implementation Services and unless as otherwise provided 
under the applicable Addenda, Motorola Solutions’ total liability will be limited to the direct damages recoverable 
under law, but not to exceed the price of twelve (12) months of Services preceding the incident giving rise to the 
claim. ALTHOUGH THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSSES OR DAMAGES, 
THEY AGREE THAT MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY COMMERCIAL LOSS, 
INCONVENIENCE, LOSS OF USE, LOSS TIME, DATA, GOODWILL, REVENUES, PROFITS OR SAVINGS; OR 
OTHER SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN ANY WAY RELATED TO OR 
ARISING FROM THIS AGREEMENT, THE SALE OR USE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE, OR THE 
PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES BY Motorola Solutions PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.  This limitation of 
liability provision survives the expiration or termination of the Agreement and applies notwithstanding any contrary 
provision.  No action for contract breach or otherwise relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
may be brought more than one (1) year after the accrual of the cause of action, except for money due upon an open 
account. 
 
 Section 16     CONFIDENTIALITY AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 
  
16.1.  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  
  
16.1.1. Each party is a disclosing party (“Discloser”) and a receiving party (“Recipient”) under this Agreement. All 
Deliverables will be deemed to be Motorola Solutions’ Confidential Information.  During the term of this Agreement 
and for a period of three (3) years from the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Recipient will (i) not disclose 
Confidential Information to any third party; (ii) restrict disclosure of Confidential Information to only those employees 
(including, but not limited to, employees of any wholly owned subsidiary, a parent company, any other wholly owned 
subsidiaries of the same parent company), agents or consultants who must be directly involved with the Confidential 
Information for the purpose and who are bound by confidentiality terms substantially similar to those in this 
Agreement; (iii) not copy, reproduce, reverse engineer, de-compile or disassemble any Confidential Information; 
(iv) use the same degree of care as for its own information of like importance, but at least use reasonable care, in 
safeguarding against disclosure of Confidential Information; (v) promptly notify Discloser upon discovery of any 
unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information and take reasonable steps to regain possession of 
the Confidential Information and prevent further unauthorized actions or other breach of this Agreement; and (vi) 
only use the Confidential Information as needed to fulfill this Agreement. 
  
16.1.2.  Recipient is not obligated to maintain as confidential, Confidential Information that Recipient can 
demonstrate by documentation (i) is now available or becomes available to the public without breach of this 
agreement; (ii) is explicitly approved for release by written authorization of Discloser; (iii) is lawfully obtained from a 
third party or parties without a duty of confidentiality; (iv) is known to the Recipient prior to such disclosure; or (v) is 
independently developed by Recipient without the use of any of Discloser’s Confidential Information or any breach 
of this Agreement. 
  

749



16.1.3. All Confidential Information remains the property of the Discloser and will not be copied or reproduced 
without the express written permission of the Discloser, except for copies that are absolutely necessary in order to 
fulfill this Agreement. Within ten (10) days of receipt of Discloser’s written request, Recipient will return all 
Confidential Information to Discloser along with all copies and portions thereof, or certify in writing that all such 
Confidential Information has been destroyed. However, Recipient may retain one (1) archival copy of the 
Confidential Information that it may use only in case of a dispute concerning this Agreement. No license, express 
or implied, in the Confidential Information is granted other than to use the Confidential Information in the manner 
and to the extent authorized by this Agreement. The Discloser warrants that it is authorized to disclose any 
Confidential Information it discloses pursuant to this Agreement. 
  
16.2.     PRESERVATION OF MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS’ PROPRIETARY RIGHTS.  Motorola Solutions, the third 
party manufacturer of any Equipment, and the copyright owner of any Non-Motorola Solutions Software own and 
retain all of their respective Proprietary Rights in the Equipment and Software, and nothing in this Agreement is 
intended to restrict their Proprietary Rights.  All intellectual property developed, originated, or prepared by Motorola 
Solutions in connection with providing to Customer the Equipment, Software, or related services remain vested 
exclusively in Motorola Solutions, and this Agreement does not grant to Customer any shared development rights 
of intellectual property.  Except as explicitly provided in the Software License Agreement, Motorola Solutions does 
not grant to Customer, either directly or by implication, estoppel, or otherwise, any right, title or interest in Motorola 
Solutions’ Proprietary Rights.  Customer will not modify, disassemble, peel components, decompile, otherwise 
reverse engineer or attempt to reverse engineer, derive source code or create derivative works from, adapt, 
translate, merge with other software, reproduce, distribute, sublicense, sell or export the Software, or permit or 
encourage any third party to do so.  The preceding sentence does not apply to Open Source Software which is 
governed by the standard license of the copyright owner.  
 
16.3 VOLUNTARY DISCLOSURE.  Except as required to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, Motorola 
Solutions will have no obligation to provide Customer with access to its Confidential Information and/or proprietary 
information.  Under no circumstances will Motorola Solutions be required to provide any data related to cost and 
pricing. 
 
16.4   DATA AND FEEDBACK. 
  
16.4.1  To the extent permitted by law, Customer owns all right, title and interest in System Data created solely by 
it or its agents (hereafter, “Customer Data””), and grants to Motorola Solutions the right to use, host, cache, store, 
reproduce, copy, modify, combine, analyze, create derivatives from, communicate, transmit, publish, display, and 
distribute such Customer Data.   
  

16.4.2  Motorola Solutions owns all right, title and interest in data resulting from System Data that is or has been 
transformed, altered, processed, aggregated, correlated or operated on (hereafter, “Derivative Data”). 

  
16.4.3   Any Feedback given by Customer is and will be entirely voluntary and, even if designated as confidential, 
will not create any confidentiality obligation for Motorola Solutions. Motorola Solutions will be free to use, reproduce, 
license or otherwise distribute and exploit the Feedback without any obligation to Customer. Customer 
acknowledges that Motorola Solutions’ receipt of the Feedback does not imply or create recognition by Motorola 
Solutions of either the novelty or originality of any idea. The parties further agree that all fixes, modifications and 
improvements made to Motorola Solutions products or services conceived of or made by Motorola Solutions that 
are based, either in whole or in part, on the Feedback are the exclusive property of Motorola Solutions and all right, 
title and interest in and to such fixes, modifications or improvements to the Motorola Solutions product or service 
will vest solely in Motorola Solutions.  
 
Section 17     GENERAL 
  
17.1. TAXES.  The Contract Price does not include any excise, sales, lease, use, property, or other taxes, 
assessments or duties, all of which will be paid by Customer except as exempt by law.  If Motorola Solutions is 

750



required to pay any of these taxes, Motorola Solutions will send an invoice to Customer and Customer will pay to 
Motorola Solutions the amount of the taxes (including any interest and penalties) within thirty (30) days after the 
date of the invoice.  Customer will be solely responsible for reporting the Equipment for personal property tax 
purposes, and Motorola Solutions will be solely responsible for reporting taxes on its income or net worth. 
  
17.2. ASSIGNABILITY AND SUBCONTRACTING.  Except as provided herein, neither Party may assign this 
Agreement or any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Party, which 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld.  Any attempted assignment, delegation, or transfer without the necessary 
consent will be void.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Motorola Solutions may assign this Agreement to any of its 
affiliates or its right to receive payment without the prior consent of Customer. In addition, in the event Motorola 
Solutions separates one or more of its businesses (each a “Separated Business”), whether by way of a sale, 
establishment of a joint venture, spin-off or otherwise (each a “Separation Event”), Motorola Solutions may, without 
the prior written consent of the other Party and at no additional cost to Motorola Solutions, assign this Agreement 
such that it will continue to benefit the Separated Business and its affiliates (and Motorola Solutions and its affiliates, 
to the extent applicable) following the Separation Event.  Motorola Solutions may subcontract any of the work, but 
subcontracting will not relieve Motorola Solutions of its duties under this Agreement. 
  
17.3. WAIVER.  Failure or delay by either Party to exercise a right or power under this Agreement will not be a 
waiver of the right or power.  For a waiver of a right or power to be effective, it must be in a writing signed by the 
waiving Party.  An effective waiver of a right or power will not be construed as either a future or continuing waiver 
of that same right or power, or the waiver of any other right or power. 
  
17.4.  SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction renders any part of this Agreement invalid or 
unenforceable, that part will be severed and the remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect. 
  
17.5.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.  Each Party will perform its duties under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor.  The Parties and their personnel will not be considered to be employees or agents of the 
other Party.  Nothing in this Agreement will be interpreted as granting either Party the right or authority to make 
commitments of any kind for the other.  This Agreement will not constitute, create, or be interpreted as a joint 
venture, partnership or formal business organization of any kind. 
 
17.6.  HEADINGS AND SECTION REFERENCES.  The section headings in this Agreement are inserted only for 
convenience and are not to be construed as part of this Agreement or as a limitation of the scope of the particular 
section to which the heading refers.  This Agreement will be fairly interpreted in accordance with its terms and 
conditions and not for or against either Party. 
 
17.7.  NOTICES.  Notices required under this Agreement to be given by one Party to the other must be in writing 
and either personally delivered or sent to the address provided by the other Party by certified mail, return receipt 
requested and postage prepaid (or by a recognized courier service, such as Federal Express, UPS, or DHL), or by 
facsimile with correct answerback received, and will be effective upon receipt. 
 
17.8.  COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Each Party will comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, regulations and rules concerning the performance of this Agreement or use of the System.  Customer 
will obtain and comply with all Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) licenses and authorizations required 
for the installation, operation and use of the System before the scheduled installation of the Equipment.  Although 
Motorola Solutions might assist Customer in the preparation of its FCC license applications, neither Motorola 
Solutions nor any of its employees is an agent or representative of Customer in FCC or other matters.  
 
17.9.   AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE AGREEMENT. Each Party represents that it has obtained all necessary 
approvals, consents and authorizations to enter into this Agreement and to perform its duties under this Agreement; 
the person executing this Agreement on its behalf has the authority to do so; upon execution and delivery of this 
Agreement by the Parties, it is a valid and binding contract, enforceable in accordance with its terms; and the 
execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement does not violate any bylaw, charter, regulation, law or any 
other governing authority of the Party. 
 

751



17.10.   ADMINISTRATOR LEVEL ACCOUNT ACCESS. If applicable to the type of System purchased by 
Customer, Motorola Solutions will provide Customer with Administrative User Credentials.  Customer agrees to only 
grant access to the Administrative User Credentials to those personnel with the training and experience to correctly 
use them.  Customer is responsible for protecting Administrative User Credentials from disclosure and maintaining 
Credential validity by, among other things, updating passwords when required.  Customer may be asked to provide 
valid Administrative User Credentials when in contact with Motorola Solutions System support personnel.  Customer 
understands that changes made as the Administrative User can significantly impact the performance of the System.  
Customer agrees that it will be solely responsible for any negative impact on the System or its users by any such 
changes.  System issues occurring as a result of changes made using the Administrative User Credentials may 
impact Motorola Solutions’ ability to perform Services or other obligations under the Agreement. In such cases, a 
revision to the appropriate provisions of the Agreement, including the Statement of Work, may be necessary.  To 
the extent Motorola Solutions provides assistance to correct any issues caused by or arising out of the use of or 
failure to maintain Administrative User Credentials, Motorola Solutions will be entitled to bill Customer and Customer 
will pay Motorola Solutions on a time and materials basis for resolving the issue.  
 
17.11.   SURVIVAL OF TERMS.  The following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement 
for any reason: Section 3.5 (Motorola Solutions Software); Section 3.6 (Non-Motorola Solutions Software); if any 
payment obligations exist, Sections 6.1 and 6.2 (Contract Price and Invoicing and Payment); Subsection 10.8 
(Disclaimer of Implied Warranties); Section 12 (Disputes); Section 15 (Limitation of Liability); and Section 16 
(Confidentiality and Proprietary Rights); and all of the General provisions in Section 17.  
 
17.12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the 
Parties regarding the subject matter of the Agreement and supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and 
understandings, whether written or oral, relating to this subject matter.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, and shall have the same legal force and effect as if the Parties had executed it as a single document.  
The Parties may sign in writing, or by electronic signature, including by email.  An electronic signature, or a facsimile 
copy or computer image, such as a PDF or tiff image, of a signature, shall be treated as and shall have the same 
effect as an original signature.  In addition, an electronic signature, a true and correct facsimile copy or computer 
image of this Agreement shall be treated as and shall have the same effect as an original signed copy of this 
document.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed by authorized 
representatives of both Parties.  The preprinted terms and conditions found on any Customer purchase or purchase 
order, acknowledgment or other form will not be considered an amendment or modification of this Agreement, even 
if a representative of each Party signs that document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Parties hereby enter into this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
   
Motorola Solutions, Inc. Customer 
   
By: ______________________________   By: ______________________________ 
 
Name: ___________________________   Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: ____________________________    Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________   Date: _____________________________ 

752



Exhibit A 
MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

  
This Exhibit A Motorola Solutions Software License Agreement ("Agreement") is between Motorola Solutions, Inc., 
(“Motorola Solutions"), and ______________________________________ (“Licensee”).  
  
For good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 
  
Section 1 DEFINITIONS 
  
1.1     “Designated Products” means products provided by Motorola Solutions to Licensee with which or for which 
the Software and Documentation is licensed for use. 
  
1.2     “Documentation” means product and software documentation that specifies technical and performance 
features and capabilities, and the user, operation and training manuals for the Software (including all physical or 
electronic media upon which such information is provided). 
  
1.3     “Open Source Software” means software with either freely obtainable source code, license for modification, 
or permission for free distribution. 
  
1.4     “Open Source Software License” means the terms or conditions under which the Open Source Software is 
licensed. 
  
1.5     “Primary Agreement” means the agreement to which this exhibit is attached. 
  
1.6     “Security Vulnerability” means a flaw or weakness in system security procedures, design, implementation, 
or internal controls that could be exercised (accidentally triggered or intentionally exploited) and result in a security 
breach such that data is compromised, manipulated or stolen or the system damaged. 
  
1.7     “Software” (i) means proprietary software in object code format, and adaptations, translations, de-
compilations, disassemblies, emulations, or derivative works of such software; (ii) means any modifications, 
enhancements, new versions and new releases of the software provided by Motorola Solutions; and (iii) may contain 
one or more items of software owned by a third party supplier.  The term "Software" does not include any third party 
software provided under separate license or third party software not licensable under the terms of this Agreement. 
  
Section 2 SCOPE 
  
Motorola Solutions and Licensee enter into this Agreement in connection with Motorola Solutions' delivery of certain 
proprietary software or products containing embedded or pre-loaded proprietary software, or both.  This Agreement 
contains the terms and conditions of the license Motorola Solutions is providing to Licensee, and Licensee’s use of 
the proprietary software and affiliated documentation. 
 
Section 3       GRANT OF LICENSE 
  
3.1.    Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the payment of applicable license fees, Motorola Solutions 
grants to Licensee a personal, limited, non-transferable (except as permitted in Section 7) and non-exclusive license 
under Motorola Solutions’ copyrights and Confidential Information (as defined in the Primary Agreement) embodied 
in the Software to use the Software, in object code form, and the Documentation solely in connection with Licensee's 
use of the Designated Products. This Agreement does not grant any rights to source code. 
 
3.2.    If the Software licensed under this Agreement contains or is derived from Open Source Software, the terms 
and conditions governing the use of such Open Source Software are in the Open Source Software Licenses of the 
copyright owner and not this Agreement.  If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

753



and the terms and conditions of the Open Source Software Licenses governing Licensee’s use of the Open Source 
Software, the terms and conditions of the license grant of the applicable Open Source Software Licenses will take 
precedence over the license grants in this Agreement.  If requested by Licensee, Motorola Solutions will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) determine whether any Open Source Software is provided under this 
Agreement; and (ii) identify the Open Source Software (or specify where that license may be found).  
 
Section 4       LIMITATIONS ON USE 

  
4.1.    Licensee may use the Software only for Licensee's internal business purposes and only in accordance with 
the Documentation.  Any other use of the Software is strictly prohibited.  Without limiting the general nature of these 
restrictions, Licensee will not make the Software available for use by third parties on a "time sharing," "application 
service provider," or "service bureau" basis or for any other similar commercial rental or sharing arrangement. 
  
4.2.    Licensee will not, and will not allow or enable any third party to: (i) reverse engineer, disassemble, peel 
components, decompile, reprogram or otherwise reduce the Software or any portion to a human perceptible form 
or otherwise attempt to recreate the source code; (ii) modify, adapt, create derivative works of, or merge the 
Software; (iii) copy, reproduce, distribute, lend, or lease the Software or Documentation to any third party, grant any 
sublicense or other rights in the Software or Documentation to any third party, or take any action that would cause 
the Software or Documentation to be placed in the public domain; (iv) remove, or in any way alter or obscure, any 
copyright notice or other notice of Motorola Solutions' proprietary rights; (v) provide, copy, transmit, disclose, divulge 
or make the Software or Documentation available to, or permit the use of the Software by any third party or on any 
machine except as expressly authorized by this Agreement; or (vi) use, or permit the use of, the Software in a 
manner that would result in the production of a copy of the Software solely by activating a machine containing the 
Software.  Licensee may make one copy of Software to be used solely for archival, back-up, or disaster recovery 
purposes; provided that Licensee may not operate that copy of the Software at the same time as the original 
Software is being operated.  Licensee may make as many copies of the Documentation as it may reasonably require 
for the internal use of the Software. 
  
4.3.    Unless otherwise authorized by Motorola Solutions in writing, Licensee will not, and will not enable or allow 
any third party to: (i) install a licensed copy of the Software on more than one unit of a Designated Product; or (ii) 
copy onto or transfer Software installed in one unit of a Designated Product onto one other device.  Licensee may 
temporarily transfer Software installed on a Designated Product to another device if the Designated Product is 
inoperable or malfunctioning, if Licensee provides written notice to Motorola Solutions of the temporary transfer and 
identifies the device on which the Software is transferred.  Temporary transfer of the Software to another device 
must be discontinued when the original Designated Product is returned to operation and the Software must be 
removed from the other device.  Licensee must provide prompt written notice to Motorola Solutions at the time 
temporary transfer is discontinued.  
 
4.4 Licensee will maintain, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years thereafter, accurate 
records relating to this license grant to verify compliance with this Agreement.  Motorola Solutions or an independent 
third party (“Auditor”) may inspect Licensee’s premises, books and records, upon reasonable prior notice to 
Licensee, during Licensee’s normal business hours and subject to Licensee's facility and security regulations.  
Motorola Solutions is responsible for the payment of all expenses and costs of the Auditor. Any information obtained 
by Motorola Solutions and the Auditor will be kept in strict confidence by Motorola Solutions and the Auditor and 
used solely for the purpose of verifying Licensee's compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 
  

754



Section 5 OWNERSHIP AND TITLE 
  
Motorola Solutions, its licensors, and its suppliers retain all of their proprietary rights in any form in and to the 
Software and Documentation, including, but not limited to, all rights in patents, patent applications, inventions, 
copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, and other proprietary rights in or relating to the Software and 
Documentation (including any corrections, bug fixes, enhancements, updates, modifications, adaptations, 
translations, de-compilations, disassemblies, emulations to or derivative works from the Software or 
Documentation, whether made by Motorola Solutions or another party, or any improvements that result from 
Motorola Solutions’ processes or, provision of information services).  No rights are granted to Licensee under this 
Agreement by implication, estoppel or otherwise, except for those rights which are expressly granted to Licensee 
in this Agreement.  All intellectual property developed, originated, or prepared by Motorola Solutions in connection 
with providing the Software, Designated Products, Documentation or related services, remains vested exclusively 
in Motorola Solutions, and Licensee will not have any shared development or other intellectual property rights. 
 
Section 6       LIMITED WARRANTY; DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY 
  
6.1.    Unless otherwise stated in the Primary Agreement, the commencement date and the term of the Software 
warranty will be a period of ninety (90) days from Motorola Solutions' shipment of the Software (the "Warranty 
Period").  If Licensee is not in breach of any of its obligations under this Agreement, Motorola Solutions warrants 
that the unmodified Software, when used properly and in accordance with the Documentation and this Agreement, 
will be free from a reproducible defect that eliminates the functionality or successful operation of a feature critical to 
the primary functionality or successful operation of the Software.  Whether a defect occurs will be determined by 
Motorola Solutions solely with reference to the Documentation.  Motorola Solutions does not warrant that Licensee’s 
use of the Software or the Designated Products will be uninterrupted, error-free, completely free of Security 
Vulnerabilities, or that the Software or the Designated Products will meet Licensee’s particular requirements.  
Motorola Solutions makes no representations or warranties with respect to any third party software included in the 
Software.  Notwithstanding, any warranty provided by a copyright owner in its standard license terms will flow 
through to Licensee for third party software provided by Motorola Solutions. 
  
6.2     Motorola Solutions’ sole obligation to Licensee and Licensee’s exclusive remedy under this warranty is to 
use reasonable efforts to remedy any material Software defect covered by this warranty.  These efforts will involve 
either replacing the media or attempting to correct significant, demonstrable program or documentation errors or 
Security Vulnerabilities.  If Motorola Solutions cannot correct the defect within a reasonable time, then at Motorola 
Solutions’ option, Motorola Solutions will replace the defective Software with functionally-equivalent Software, 
license to Licensee substitute Software which will accomplish the same objective, or terminate the license and 
refund the Licensee’s paid license fee. 
  
6.3.    Warranty claims are described in the Primary Agreement. 
  
6.4.    The express warranties set forth in this Section 6 are in lieu of, and Motorola Solutions disclaims, any and 
all other warranties (express or implied, oral or written) with respect to the Software or Documentation, including, 
without limitation, any and all implied warranties of condition, title, non-infringement, merchantability, or fitness for 
a particular purpose or use by Licensee (whether or not Motorola Solutions knows, has reason to know, has been 
advised, or is otherwise aware of any such purpose or use), whether arising by law, by reason of custom or usage 
of trade, or by course of dealing.  In addition, Motorola Solutions disclaims any warranty to any person other than 
Licensee with respect to the Software or Documentation. 
  
Section 7       TRANSFERS 
  
Licensee will not transfer the Software or Documentation to any third party without Motorola Solutions' prior written 
consent.  Motorola Solutions’ consent may be withheld at its discretion and may be conditioned upon transferee 
paying all applicable license fees and agreeing to be bound by this Agreement. If the Designated Products are 
Motorola Solutions' radio products and Licensee transfers ownership of the Motorola Solutions radio products to a 
third party, Licensee may assign its right to use the Software (other than CPS and Motorola Solutions' FLASHport® 
software) which is embedded in or furnished for use with the radio products and the related Documentation; 

755



provided that Licensee transfers all copies of the Software and Documentation to the transferee, and Licensee and 
the transferee sign a transfer form to be provided by Motorola Solutions upon request, obligating the transferee to 
be bound by this Agreement. 
  
Section 8       TERM AND TERMINATION 
  
8.1     Licensee’s right to use the Software and Documentation will begin when the Primary Agreement is signed 
by both parties and will continue for the life of the Designated Products with which or for which the Software and 
Documentation have been provided by Motorola Solutions, unless Licensee breaches this Agreement, in which 
case this Agreement and Licensee's right to use the Software and Documentation may be terminated immediately 
upon notice by Motorola Solutions.  
  
8.2     Within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement, Licensee must certify in writing to Motorola 
Solutions that all copies of the Software have been removed or deleted from the Designated Products and that all 
copies of the Software and Documentation have been returned to Motorola Solutions or destroyed by Licensee and 
are no longer in use by Licensee. 
 
8.3     Licensee acknowledges that Motorola Solutions made a considerable investment of resources in the 
development, marketing, and distribution of the Software and Documentation and that Licensee's breach of this 
Agreement will result in irreparable harm to Motorola Solutions for which monetary damages would be inadequate.  
If Licensee breaches this Agreement, Motorola Solutions may terminate this Agreement and be entitled to all 
available remedies at law or in equity (including immediate injunctive relief and repossession of all non-embedded 
Software and associated Documentation unless Licensee is a Federal agency of the United States Government).  

Section 9      Commercial Computer Software  

9.1   This Section 9 only applies to U.S. Government end users.  The Software, Documentation and updates are 
commercial items as that term is defined at 48 C.F.R. Part 2.101, consisting of “commercial computer software” and 
“computer software documentation” as such terms are defined in 48 C.F.R. Part 252.227-7014(a)(1) and 48 C.F.R. 
Part 252.227-7014(a)(5), and used in 48 C.F.R. Part 12.212 and 48 C.F.R. Part 227.7202, as applicable.  Consistent 
with 48 C.F.R. Part 12.212, 48 C.F.R. Part 252.227-7015, 48 C.F.R. Part 227.7202-1 through 227.7202-4, 48 C.F.R. 
Part 52.227-19, and other relevant sections of the Code of Federal Regulations, as applicable, the Software, 
Documentation and Updates are distributed and licensed to U.S. Government end users: (i) only as commercial 
items, and (ii) with only those rights as are granted to all other end users pursuant to the terms and conditions 
contained herein. 

9.2    If Licensee is licensing Software for end use by the United States Government or a United States 
Government agency, Licensee may transfer such Software license, but only if: (i) Licensee transfers all copies of 
such Software and Documentation to such United States Government entity or interim transferee, and (ii) Licensee 
has first obtained from the transferee (if applicable) and ultimate end user an enforceable end user license 
agreement containing restrictions substantially identical to the ones contained in this Agreement.  Except as stated 
in the foregoing, Licensee and any transferee(s) authorized by this subsection 9.2 may not otherwise use or transfer 
or make available any Motorola Solutions software to any third party nor permit any party to do so. 
Section 10     CONFIDENTIALITY 

  
Licensee acknowledges that the Software and Documentation contain Motorola Solutions’ valuable proprietary and 
Confidential Information and are Motorola Solutions Solutions’ trade secrets, and that the provisions in the Primary 
Agreement concerning Confidential Information apply. 
  

756



Section 11     LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 
The Limitation of Liability provision is described in the Primary Agreement. 
 
Section 12     NOTICES 
 
Notices are described in the Primary Agreement. 

Section 13     GENERAL 

  
13.1.  COPYRIGHT NOTICES. The existence of a copyright notice on the Software will not be construed as an 
admission or presumption of publication of the Software or public disclosure of any trade secrets associated with 
the Software. 
  
13.2.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Licensee acknowledges that the Software is subject to the laws and 
regulations of the United States and Licensee will comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including export 
laws and regulations of the United States.  Licensee will not, without the prior authorization of Motorola Solutions 
and the appropriate governmental authority of the United States, in any form export or re-export, sell or resell, ship 
or reship, or divert, through direct or indirect means, any item or technical data or direct or indirect products sold or 
otherwise furnished to any person within any territory for which the United States Government or any of its agencies 
at the time of the action, requires an export license or other governmental approval.  Violation of this provision is a 
material breach of this Agreement. 
  
13.3.  ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTING.  Motorola Solutions may assign its rights or subcontract its 
obligations under this Agreement, or encumber or sell its rights in any Software, without prior notice to or consent 
of Licensee. 
  
13.4.  GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States to the extent that they 
apply and otherwise by the internal substantive laws of the State to which the Software is shipped if Licensee is a 
sovereign government entity, or the internal substantive laws of the State of Illinois if Licensee is not a sovereign 
government entity.  The terms of the U.N. Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods do not apply.  
In the event that the Uniform Computer Information Transaction Act, any version of this Act, or a substantially similar 
law (collectively "UCITA") becomes applicable to a party's performance under this Agreement, UCITA does not 
govern any aspect of this Agreement or any license granted under this Agreement, or any of the parties' rights or 
obligations under this Agreement.  The governing law will be that in effect prior to the applicability of UCITA. 
  
13.5.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of Motorola 
Solutions and Licensee.  No third party has the right to make any claim or assert any right under this Agreement, 
and no third party is deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any licensor or supplier 
of third party software included in the Software will be a direct and intended third party beneficiary of this Agreement. 
  
13.6.  SURVIVAL.  Sections 4, 5, 6.4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 13 survive the termination of this Agreement. 
  
13.7.  ORDER OF PRECEDENCE.  In the event of inconsistencies between this Exhibit and the Primary 
Agreement, the parties agree that this Exhibit prevails, only with respect to the specific subject matter of this Exhibit, 
and not the Primary Agreement or any other exhibit as it applies to any other subject matter. 
  
13.8   SECURITY.  Motorola Solutions uses reasonable means in the design and writing of its own Software and 
the acquisition of third party Software to limit Security Vulnerabilities.  While no software can be guaranteed to be 
free from Security Vulnerabilities, if a Security Vulnerability is discovered, Motorola Solutions will take the steps set 
forth in Section 6 of this Agreement.   

757



Exhibit B 

PAYMENT  
Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to Motorola Solutions within 
thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice.  Customer will make payments when due in the form of a check, 
cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. financial institution. If Customer has purchased additional 
Professional or Subscription services, payment will be in accordance with the applicable Addenda. Payment for 
the System purchase will be in accordance with the following milestones.   

  
System Purchase (excluding Subscribers, if applicable) 

  
1.     25% of the Contract Price due upon contract execution (due upon effective date); 
  
2.     60% of the Contract Price due upon shipment of Equipment from Staging; 
  
3.     10% of the Contract Price due upon installation of Equipment; and 
  
4.     5% of the Contract Price due upon Final Project Acceptance. 

  
If Subscribers are purchased, 100% of the Subscriber Contract Price will be invoiced upon shipment (as 
shipped). 
  
Motorola Solutions may make partial shipments of Equipment and will request payment upon shipment of such 
Equipment. In addition, Motorola Solutions will invoice for installations completed on a site-by-site basis or when 
professional services are completed, when applicable.  The value of the Equipment shipped/services performed will 
be determined by the value of the shipped/services performed as a percentage of the total milestone value.  Unless 
otherwise specified, contract discounts are based upon all items proposed and overall System package.  For 
invoicing purposes only, discounts will be applied proportionately to the FNE and Subscriber Equipment values to 
total Contract Price.  Overdue invoices will bear simple interest at the maximum allowable rate. 
  
For Lifecycle Support Plan and Subscription Based Services: 
Motorola Solutions will invoice Customer annually in advance of each year of the plan. 
 
  

758



EXHIBIT D 
  

System Acceptance Certificate 
 

  
  

 
Customer Name: ______________________________________________________ 

  
  
Project Name: ________________________________________________________ 
  
  
This System Acceptance Certificate memorializes the occurrence of System Acceptance.  Motorola Solutions and 
Customer acknowledge that: 
 
1.  The Acceptance Tests set forth in the Acceptance Test Plan have been successfully completed. 
  
2.  The System is accepted. 
  
Customer Representative:                                           Motorola Solutions Representative: 
                                                                                                                                                     
Signature: ____________________________                Signature: ____________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________                Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________                 Title: ________________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________________                Date: ________________________________ 
  
FINAL PROJECT ACCEPTANCE: 
 
Motorola Solutions has provided and Customer has received all deliverables, and Motorola Solutions has performed 
all other work required for Final Project Acceptance. 
  
Customer Representative:                                           Motorola Solutions Representative: 
                                                                                                                                                   
Signature: ____________________________                Signature: ____________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________                Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________                 Title: ________________________________ 
 

Date: ________________________________                Date: ________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

759



MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT AND SUA ADDENDUM 
 

This Addendum to the Communications System and Services Agreement or other previously executed 
Agreement currently in force, as applicable (“Primary Agreement”) provides additional or different terms 
and conditions to govern the sale of Maintenance, Support and SUA II services.  The terms in this 
Addendum are integral to and incorporated into the Primary Agreement signed by the Parties.   
 
1. DEFINITIONS    
 
All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as defined in the Primary 
Agreement. 
 
“SUA” or “SUA II” means Motorola’s Software Upgrade Agreement program. 
 
2. SCOPE 
 
Motorola will provide Maintenance and Support Services and/or SUA Services as further described in the 
applicable Statement of Work, or attachment to Motorola’s proposal for additional services. 
 
 
3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The terms of the Primary Agreement combined with the terms of this Addendum will govern the products 
and services offered pursuant to this Addendum.  To the extent there is a conflict between the terms and 
conditions of the Primary Agreement and the terms and conditions of this Addendum, this Addendum 
takes precedence. 
 
3.1 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

3.1.1 PURCHASE ORDER ACCEPTANCE.  Purchase orders for additional, continued, or 
expanded maintenance and  software support, during the Warranty Period or after the Warranty Period, 
become binding only when accepted in writing by Motorola.   

 
3.1.2 START DATE.  The “Start Date” for Maintenance and Support Services will be indicated 

in the proposal or a cover page entitled “Service Agreement”.   
 
3.1.3 AUTO RENEWAL.  Unless the cover page or SOW specifically states a termination date 

or one Party notifies the other in writing of its intention to discontinue the Services, this Agreement will 
renew  for an additional one (1) year term on every anniversary of the Start Date.  At the anniversary 
date, Motorola may adjust the price of the Services to reflect the renewal rate. 

 
3.1.4 TERMINATION.  Written notice of intent to terminate must be provided thirty (30) days or 

more prior to the anniversary date.  If Motorola provides Services after the termination or expiration of 
this Addendum, the terms and conditions in effect at the time of the termination or expiration will apply to 
those Services and Customer agrees to pay for those services on a time and materials basis at Motorola’s 
then effective hourly rates. 

 

760



3.1.5 EQUIPMENT DEFINITION.  For maintenance and support services, Equipment will be 
defined to mean the hardware specified in the applicable SOW or attachments to the maintenance and 
support proposal.   

 
3.1.6 ADDITIONAL HARDWARE.  If Customer purchases additional hardware from Motorola 

that becomes part of the System, the additional hardware may be added to this Addendum and will be 
billed at the applicable rates after the warranty period for that additional equipment expires. Such 
hardware will be included in the definition of Equipment. 

 
3.1.7 MAINTENANCE.  Equipment will be maintained at levels set forth in the manufacturer’s 

product manuals and routine procedures that are prescribed by Motorola will be followed. Motorola parts 
or parts of equal quality will be used for Equipment maintenance.  

 
3.1.8 EQUIPMENT CONDITION.  All Equipment must be in good working order on the Start 

Date or when additional equipment is added to the Addendum.  Upon reasonable request by Motorola, 
Customer will provide a complete serial and model number list of the Equipment.  Customer must 
promptly notify Motorola in writing when any Equipment is lost, damaged, stolen or taken out of service.  
Customer’s obligation to pay maintenance and support fees for this Equipment will terminate at the end 
of the month in which Motorola receives the written notice.  If Equipment cannot, in Motorola’s reasonable 
opinion, be properly or economically maintained for any reason, Motorola may modify the scope of 
Services related to that Equipment; remove that Equipment from the Agreement; or increase the price to 
maintain that Equipment. 

 
3.1.9 EQUIPMENT FAILURE.  Customer must promptly notify Motorola of any Equipment 

failure.  Motorola will respond to Customer's notification in a manner consistent with the level of Service 
purchased as indicated in this Addendum and applicable SOW.    

 
3.1.10 INTRINSICALLY SAFE.  Customer must specifically identify any Equipment that is labeled 

intrinsically safe for use in hazardous environments. 
 
3.1.11 EXCLUDED SERVICES. 
 

a) Service excludes the repair or replacement of Equipment that has become 
defective or damaged from use in other than the normal, customary, intended, and authorized 
manner; use not in compliance with applicable industry standards; excessive wear and tear; 
or accident, liquids, power surges, neglect, acts of God or other force majeure events. 
 

b) Unless specifically included in this Addendum, Service excludes items that are 
consumed in the normal operation of the Equipment, such as batteries or magnetic tapes.; 
upgrading or reprogramming Equipment; accessories, belt clips, battery chargers, custom or 
special products, modified units, or software; and repair or maintenance of any transmission 
line, antenna, microwave equipment, tower or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or 
multicoupler.  Motorola has no obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone 
lines, computer networks, the internet or the worldwide web, or for Equipment malfunction 
caused by the transmission medium.  
 

3.1.12 TIME AND PLACE.  Service will be provided at the location specified in this Addendum 
and/or the SOW.  When Motorola performs maintenance, support, or installation at Customer’s location, 
Customer will provide Motorola, at no charge, a non-hazardous work environment with adequate shelter, 
heat, light, and power and with full and free access to the Equipment.  Waivers of liability from Motorola 

761



or its subcontractors will not be imposed as a site access requirement.  Customer will provide all 
information pertaining to the hardware and software elements of any system with which the Equipment 
is interfacing so that Motorola may perform its Services.  Unless otherwise stated in this Addendum or 
applicable SOW, the hours of Service will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., local time, excluding weekends and 
holidays.  Unless otherwise stated in this Addendum or applicable SOW, the price for the Services 
exclude any charges or expenses associated with helicopter or other unusual access requirements; if 
these charges or expenses are reasonably incurred by Motorola in rendering the Services, Customer 
agrees to reimburse Motorola for those charges and expenses. 

 
3.1.13 CUSTOMER CONTACT.  Customer will provide Motorola with designated points of 

contact (list of names and phone numbers) that will be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven 
(7) days per week, and an escalation procedure to enable Customer’s personnel to maintain contact, as 
needed, with Motorola. 
 
3.2 SUA SERVICES 
 

3.2.1 The Software License Agreement included as Exhibit A to the Primary Agreement 
applies to any Motorola Software provided as part of the SUA transactions. 
 

3.2.2 The term of this Addendum is __________ years, commencing on _________, 201_.  
The SUA Price for the ___ years of services is $______________, excluding applicable sales or use 
taxes but including discounts as more fully set forth in the pricing pages.  Because the SUA is a 
subscription service as more fully described in the applicable SUA Statement of Work, payment from 
Customer is due in advance and will not be in accordance with any Payment Milestone Schedule. 
 

3.2.3 The System upgrade will be scheduled during the subscription period and will be 
performed when Motorola’s system upgrade operation resources are available.  Because there might 
be a significant time frame between when this Addendum is executed and when a System upgrade 
transaction is performed, Motorola may substitute any of the promised Equipment or Software so long 
as the substitute is equivalent or superior to the initially promised Equipment or Software. 
 

3.2.4  Acceptance of a SUA transaction occurs when the Equipment (if any) and Software are 
delivered and the SUA services are fully performed; there is no Acceptance Testing with a SUA 
transaction.  
 

3.2.5 The Warranty Period for any Equipment or Motorola Software provided under a SUA 
transaction will commence upon shipment and not on System Acceptance or Beneficial Use, and is for 
a period of ninety (90) days rather than one (1) year.  The ninety (90) day warranty for SUA services is 
set forth in the SUA Statement of Work. 
 

3.2.6 In addition to the description of the SUA services and exclusions provided in the SUA 
Statement of Work, the following apply:  
 

a) Upon reasonable request by Motorola, Customer will provide a complete serial and 
model number list of the Equipment.   
 

b) SUA services exclude the repair or replacement of Equipment that has become 
defective or damaged from use in other than the normal, customary, intended, and 
authorized manner; use not in compliance with applicable industry standards; 

762



excessive wear and tear; or accident, liquids, power surges, neglect, acts of God or 
other force majeure events.   

 
c) Unless specifically included in this Addendum or the SUA Statement of Work, SUA 

services exclude items that are consumed in the normal operation of the Equipment; 
accessories; and repair or maintenance of any transmission line, antenna, 
microwave equipment, tower or tower lighting, duplexer, combiner, or multicoupler.  
Motorola has no obligations for any transmission medium, such as telephone lines, 
computer networks, the internet or the worldwide web, or for Equipment malfunction 
caused by the transmission medium.   

 
d) Customer will provide Motorola with designated points of contact (list of names and 

phone numbers) that will be available during the performance of the SUA services. 
 

3.2.7 The SUA annualized price is based on the fulfillment of the two year cycle.  If Customer 
terminates this service during a two year cycle, except for Motorola’s default, then Customer will be 
required to pay for the balance of payments owed for the two year cycle if a major system release has 
been implemented before the point of termination. 
    

3.2.8  If Customer terminates this service and contractual commitment before the end of the __ 
year term, for any reason other than Motorola’s default, then the Customer will pay to Motorola a 
termination fee equal to the discount applied to the last three years of service payments related to the __ 
year commitment.   

 
3.2.9  SUA  INFLATION ADJUSTMENT. After the end of the ____ year  of the SUA service 

period in this Addendum, if the change in the U.S. Department of Labor, Consumer Price Index, all Items, 
Unadjusted Urban Areas (CPI-U) annual index for each SUA year exceeds five percent (5%), the price 
for the coming year's services will increase by an incremental dollar amount per the following formula: 
Current year's maintenance price * (actual change in the CPI - 5 percentage points). The successive 
year's service will increase from this new baseline by the dollar amount as described in the Pricing Exhibit. 
This adjustment will be calculated 60 days prior to the 12th/24th/36th, etc. anniversary of the end of the 
last service period in this Addendum. It will be calculated based upon the CPI for the most recent twelve 
month increments beginning from the most current month available as posted by the U.S. Department of 
Labor. The price adjustment would fix the price for the following 12 months. 
 
4. PAYMENT 
Unless alternative payment terms are stated in this Agreement, Motorola will invoice Customer in 
advance for each payment period.  All other charges will be billed monthly, and Customer must pay each 
invoice in U.S. dollars within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.  Customer will reimburse Motorola for all 
property taxes, sales and use taxes, excise taxes, and other taxes or assessments that are levied as a 

763



result of Services rendered under this Agreement (except income, profit, and franchise taxes of Motorola) 
by any governmental entity.  
 

5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Addendum, any related attachments, and the Primary Agreement, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject matter of this Addendum and 
supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to 
this subject matter.  This Addendum may be amended or modified only by a written instrument signed 
by authorized representatives of both Parties.  The preprinted terms and conditions found on any 
Customer purchase or purchase order, acknowledgment or other form will not be considered an 
amendment or modification of this Addendum, even if a representative of each Party signs that 
document. 

 
 
 
 

764



SECTION 10

LITERATURE 
Motorola Solutions is pleased to provide the following literature. 

• Watson Furniture
• MCC7500E

765



Mercury Collection
Durable, High-Performance Consoles Built to Suit any Application

766



Mercury is a modular system built for the demands of 24/7 operations. Choose 
the features that are right for your user groups and the unique needs of your center. 

For emergency teams and back-up centers, Mercury Base 
can be outfitted with the essentials to be up and running 
swiftly. Mercury Pro packs all the strength and functionality 
that high performance dispatch teams require.

Select features like one-touch height-adjustability to handle 
the comfort and ergonomic needs of each user. Or add in 

easy-access outboard technology storage for more  
robust IT needs.

Engineered with a blend of materials to withstand the 
console environment for a decade or longer, we are with  
you every step of the way to create the right professional 
workspace for your needs and budget. 

Mercury BASE

EOCs Backup Call Centers SOCs, NOCs Command + Control PSAPs

Mercury STANDARD Mercury PRO

Mercury Consoles
Lifetime +10 Warranty    

Wood and Steel Construction    

Fully Integrated Technology    

Adjustable Monitor Focal Depth   

Tackable Fabric Screens   

Accessory Rail   

Adjustable Worksurface Height   

Modular Environment Controls    

Fully Integrated Environment Controls    

Adjustable Worksurface Focal Depth    

Electronically Adjustable Monitor Array   

Integrated Wellness Controls   

Feature Mercury BASE Mercury STANDARD Mercury PRO

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 2 | 3
767



Mercury BASE
at a glance

Steel fixed-height legs 
provide the sturdiness 
required for 24/7 use.

Tackable privacy screens create 
functional privacy. Available acrylic 
upper section controls sound but 
preserves sightlines.

Outboard Technology Cabinets with  
axial fans to provide active cooling extend  
technology life and allow for easy IT access.

Hub cabinets allow for dedicated 
power and data entry points as 
well as cable management.

Customize to your IT needs by 
incorporating either a Cable 
Bridge for wire management, or a 
Technology Bridge to house PCs.

Mercury BASE: Practical. Adaptable. Reliable. 

Size Ranges:
Worksurface width: 60"-96"
Hub depth: 39"
Screen heights: 36"-60"

Adjustability:
Monitor capacity: Up to ten 24" monitors
Row 1 monitor arms focal depth: 20.5" extension
Row 1 monitor arms focal height: 8.5" above surface  
+/- 7" height adjustment
Row 2 monitor arms focal depth: 20.5" extension
Row 2 monitor arms focal height: 21.5" above surface  
+/- 7" height adjustment 

Environment Controls:
Available as an add-on accessory.

Screening:
Tackable 
12" acrylic toppers: Optional

Technology:
Standard PC max capacity: 12
Rack mount ready: Optional in Technology Cabinets 
User accessible plug-ins: Up to 4 outlets optional
110V AC NEMA 5-15R receptacles: Two 10-outlet 
PDUs provided per console.

 Practical: Mercury Base provides the full 
technological capacity and worksurface space  
of other consoles at a fraction of the cost.

Adaptable: Mercury Base can be adjusted and 
customized as your technology and staffing 
needs change.

Reliable: Made with industry-best 
materials, this console is built to with-
stand 24/7 use.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 4 | 5
768



Size Ranges:
Worksurface widths: 60"-96"
Hub depth: 39"
Screen heights: 36"-60"

Adjustability:
Worksurface height range: 22"-48"
Monitor capacity: Up to ten 24" monitors
Monitor arm focal depth adjustment: 20"
Monitor height: Custom +/- 7" additional height 
adjustment
Lifting columns: 2
Lifting capacity: 535 lb.

Environment Controls:
Heating, cooling and individual dimmable task 
lighting and ambient lighting available as optional, 
modular accessories.

Screening:
Tackable 
12" acrylic toppers: Optional

Technology:
Standard PC max capacity: 12+
Rack mount ready: Optional in Technology Cabinets 
User accessible plug-ins: 4
110V NEMA 5-15R receptacles: Two 10-outlet PDUs 
provided per console.

 

Steel lifting columns 
provide up to 26" 
surface height  
adjustment and have 
a capacity of 535 lbs.

Tackable privacy screens create functional  
privacy. Acrylic upper section controls sound 
but preserves sightlines.

Slat rail monitor system provides for a variety of 
user created configurations. Monitor system 
provides height and focal depth adjustability.

Hub cabinets allow for dedicated 
power and data entry points as 
well as cable management.

Stackable storage  
assists in organization, 
with no wasted space.

Outboard Technology Cabinets  
with axial fans to provide active cooling  
extend technology life and allow for easy IT access.

Mercury STANDARD: Functional. Durable. Flexible. 

Functional: Mercury Standard pro-
vides operators, IT technicians and 
facility managers benefits that boost 
performance efficiency for public 
safety and operations control teams.

Durable: Mercury Standard exceeds standards across the 
board—in fire safety, BIFMA durability, R-56 compliance, FCC, 
ASTM E84, and CA TB 117. Watson’s use of industry-best 
materials, expert machining and rigorous quality assurance 
ensure that your console will serve your team for a decade plus.  

Flexible: Not only is Mercury’s in-line design 
a space-saver, the true modular build  
means technology and personal storage 
components can be moved and added as 
technology and staffing changes.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 6 | 7
769



Size Ranges:
Worksurface widths: 60"-96"
Hub depth: 39" or 51"
Screen heights: 36"-60"

Adjustability:
Worksurface height range: 24"-50"
Worksurface focal depth range: 13"
Monitor capacity: Up to ten 24" monitors
Monitor arm focal depth adjustment: 15"
Monitor array height: 13" electronically controlled 
height adjustment
Optional fully articulating monitor arms: 13" 
additional height adjustment

Environment Controls:
Heating, cooling and individual dimmable task- and 
ambient-lighting included as accessories. 
Accessories are all FCC tested to ensure no 
components cause Radio interference.

Screening:
Tackable 
12" acrylic toppers: Optional, available in clear or tinted

Energy + Environmental:
Total draw for entire console: 13.3 amps
Worksurface Lift Standby Usage: 0.1 amps
All lighting is low wattage LED 
SCS Indoor Air Quality Certification: Advantage

Technology:
Standard PC max capacity: 12+
Rack mount ready: 7RU Standard 
User accessible technology connections: 20+
110V NEMA 5-20R receptacles: Two 13-outlet PDUs 
provided per console.
Motorola R56 grounding standard compliant

Four Steel lifting columns 
provide up to 26" surface 
height adjustment and 
have static load capacity 
of 2500 lb.

Tackable privacy screens create functional 
privacy. Acrylic upper section controls 
sound but preserves sightlines.

Monitor height power-adjusts to support 
optimal visual acuity. Worksurface 
moves in and out, providing one-touch 
focal depth adjustment.

Customize your technology needs  
by incorporating either a Cable 
Bridge for wire management, or  
a Tech Bridge to house PCs.

Stackable storage  
assists in organization, 
with no wasted space.

Hub cabinets allow for dedicated 
power and data entry points as 
well as cable management.

Outboard Technology Cabinets are accessible 
from both the front and the rear of the console. 
Built-in axial fans provide active cooling extend 
technology life and allow for easy IT access.

Mercury PRO: Incomparable. Efficient. Evolved.

Incomparable: No other console provides the 
user benefits of a Mercury Pro. Designed to 
customize comfort and maximize performance  
in a high-stress environment, the user experience  
at a Mercury Pro is unique by definition.

Efficient: Between the tech bays thoughtfully 
placed for rapid access, the fans to actively cool 
the tech systems and keep their performance 
optimized, and the easy-access cabling, the Pro 
is the IT Specialist’s dream.

Evolved: Mercury Pro’s modularity allows for 
easy reconfiguration, expansion, and adaptability. 
The linear design maximizes space, and the 
intelligent combination of material, maximizes 
strength and promotes user wellness.

Mercury PRO is the only console on the market to be ETL tested 
and listed to the UL 962 standard as a complete assembly. This 
premier standard verifies that Mercury meets multiple safety 
requirements for  Stability/Mechanical Strength, Fire Resistance 
and Power/Lighting/Electrical Safety.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 8 | 9
770



Cable Bridge & Technology Integration
Mercury’s modular tech/cable bridges, hubs and cabinets allow you to tailor 
PCs, wiring and accessories to meet the needs of your dispatch operations. 
Our consoles seamlessly integrate technology to save time and space, while 
enhancing operator effectiveness.

Active Cooling System
The Active Cooling System found in our technology 
storage cabinets helps to extend technology life 
through use of low noise axial fans with front and 
back vents to circulate cool air and keep equipment 
running at optimal temperature. 

Dedicated Connection Points
The Hub Cabinets have dedicated locations to 
bring power, voice, and data into the furniture. 
There are mounting locations for the electrical 
junction boxes inside of the cabinets.

Versatile Access
The Cable Bridge has an optional feature for 
accessing electrical and data from the wall.

Technology Cabinets
This outboard technology storage can be accessed 
from both front and rear and offers optional slide  
out shelves as well as significant cable management 
capacity. Built in fans provide active cooling,  
optimizing performance and extending technology life. 

Tech Cabinets can be optioned with rack mounts  
to increase PC capacity and provide mounting for 
other technology.

Hub cabinets 
Hub cabinets are the heart of the 
console, allowing dedicated 
power and data entry points, 
centralized grounding and 
facilitating cable management. 

In Mercury Pro, the hub can rack 
mount up to 7RU Standard, and 
provides two 13-outlet PDUs per 
console. In Standard and Base, 
the hubs supply two 10-outlet 
PDUs per console. 

High Capacity Cable Bridge
Ideal for more robust technology needs, 
the cable bridge accommodates tech and 
equipment cabling. Dedicated channels  
for power and low voltage cables reduce 
the risk of signal interference and 
facilitate troubleshooting. Combine with 
the Watson Tech Cabinet to create an 
optimal technology solution.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 10 | 11
771



Technology Bridge

*Small Format PC is up to 11.5"D; Mid Tower is up to 15.75"D. 
All formats must be no larger than 15" H and 7"W.

W
D

H

Console  
Width

Small Format 
PCs* 

Mid Tower 
PCs* 

60" 2 2
66"-72" 3 2
78"-90" 4 3

96" 5 3

Technology Bridge
This space-saving, under-surface solution is 
ideal for Centers with light technology needs. 
Easy PC installation and side-firing PC 
placement simplify maintenance access. 
The vented Tech Bridge fits up to five 
small-format or mid-size PCs. Fans circulate 
cool air and keep technology operating at 
optimal temperatures. Dual cable channels 
keep power and low voltage cables separate, 
reducing the risk of signal interference.

Technology Bridge Capacity

Mercury Collection 

Wire Management
Complex technology doesn't require a complex 
solution. Our easy to use energy chains for Pro and 
Standard, and shrouds for Base keep everything 
organized and convenient while providing superior, 
high capacity cable management to both adjustable  
and fixed worksurfaces.  

Energy Chain shown with Technology Bridge.

Wire Shroud shown with Technology Bridge.

Wired for Convenience
Watson technology storage is created for easy access 
for the IT team, but no cables are exposed after 
installation and most components are lockable to 
prevent DIYers from fix attempts. Even when the 
position is active—or placed against a wall—cables, 
cabinets, and bridges are easily reachable. 

12 | 13Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection
772



Zion Colorscheme shown with Tensile Fabric.

Worksurface  
Up/Down

Report  
1 - Sit/Stand
2 - Activations Set

Cal/min Alert Display

Cal/Min: Count stand minutes and calories.
Report: Track desk use (total number of adjustments)
Alert: Remind yourself to stand.

Bringing Movement to the Workstation
Support employee health and wellness with Mercury, the 
only console with embedded features to assist your team in 
their fitness goals and overall activity levels. Dispatchers 
spend long hours at a desk; the Wellness Switch enhances 
the sit to stand functionality of their console by layering on a 
digital readout of work surface height and overall calorie 
burn. Users can program alerts for custom intervals of 
sitting and standing. The report feature keeps track of the 
individual adjustments, giving users the opportunity to see 
their improvement over time. An active work environment is 
important to the mental and physical wellbeing of your team. 
Encourage healthful goal setting with the wellness switch.

Mean Discomfort by Body Region
Incorporating standing into a work routine 
lessens body discomfort that can be caused  
by sitting all day. The Wellness Switch can be 
programmed to remind your team to stand and 
break the routine of sitting all day.

Stand Sit

 

Sit + Stand

High

Low

Combined Total, Six Hours

775

Sitting for Three Hours

374
Standing for Three Hours

471
Calories
Burned

Calories
Burned

Calories
Burned

Sitting for Six Hours

612 Calories
Burned

Take a Stand
Working at a standing desk burns up to 55% 
more calories. Operators can transition 
between sitting and standing at the touch  
of a button, contributing to productivity.

Wellness Switch
Move. Report. Improve. 

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 14 | 15
773



Monitor Systems
Increasing Focus & Efficiency 

Flexibility+Options
Mercury's Slat Rail Array system—which is electronically 
adjustable on Mercury Pro models, and fixed on Mercury 
Standard—can be stacked to provide dual tier monitor 
configurations. The array is available in sizes 36" to 84" (in 
six-inch increments), holding any variety of monitor sizes and 
orientations, including large format monitors up to 55". The 
extruded aluminum bars eliminate bowing and flexing, and each 
system includes cable management to keep power and video 
cables tidy. A variety of monitor arms—including fixed, focal-
depth only, or fully articulating—can be fitted.

Display Options
The bolt through array system can be stacked to provide 
dual tier monitor configurations and can hold a wide variety 
of monitor sizes and orientations. Each system includes 
cable management to keep power and video cables tidy. 

Agility in Design
Watson monitor arms can be matched with a variety of 
configurations, including large format monitors up to 55". Choose 
the configuration that fits your team and our designers will match 
the system to the design.

Mercury Standard & Pro

Slat Rail System
The Slat Rail for Mercury Pro and Standard is a robust 
solution for all of your monitors and work tools. Create 
the monitor array that is best for your team today with 
the system that will continue to meet your evolving 
needs tomorrow.

Mercury Base & Table Monitors

Bolt Through System
The Bolt Through Monitor Arm System is a simple and 
effective solution for all of your Base Console and shared 
table monitors. Add a monitor to a conference or team 
table or scale Base up or down depending on your needs.

Additional arm and screen configurations available

Slat Rail Array system can hold  any variety of monitor sizes and orientations.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 16 | 17
774



Consultation
With you from the beginning, past the 
finish line

We’ll walk you through the process, working together to evaluate 
your specific needs, and determining the right products, 
features, and layout to fit your space and your budget. You’ll 
have experts on your side from day one. Even after your 
installation ends, our support specialists take pride in ensuring 
your consoles live up to their reputation. You’ll have the peace of 
mind that comes with having the strongest warranty in the 
industry and a team with you for life.

         

Fabrication
Design and Manufacturing expertise

We design and manufacture all the wood and steel components 
in our facility, giving us full control over the design, material 
selections, and processes. The result is a finished product that 
meets the highest standards for durability, build quality, and 
environmental standards.

Installation
No time for downtime

Our installation experts orchestrate live cutovers and 
installations that don’t interfere with your operations.  
They’ve completed thousands of installations across  
the country, in PSAPs of every size, and can anticipate  
any need.

Why Watson?
Process. Product. People. 

MADE
HERE

ISO 9001 
QUALITY

ISO 14001 
ENVIRONMENT

OHSAS 18001 
HEALTH & SAFETY

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 18 | 19
775



Wood 
Durability + Beauty
Carefully selected as best-in-class, the wood used in Watson 
Consoles meets the most rigorous standards for strength and 
performance. With zero formaldehyde so you can breathe easier

Steel
Strength + Stability
The welded steel substructure provides a superior support 
system for the components of a Mercury Console.

A Proven Blend
A welded steel frame, a lifting system tested to perform through 40,000 cycles, commercial-grade, engineered 
wood core cabinets—every component used in the design of Mercury was designed to create a console as 
resilient as the people who work at it. Our decades of experience in both wood and steel manufacturing have 
resulted in a console that has both structural integrity and a pleasing aesthetic.

Lifetime
A lifetime warranty on all parts manufactured by Watson,  
at no additional cost to you. No subscription plans, no fine print. 
If any Watson part fails at any time while installed with the original 
console purchaser, it is covered. This includes wood and metal 
parts such as worksurfaces, cabinets, doors, and screens. We 
believe so strongly in our unique approach of combining wood 
and steel that we will cover it for the lifetime of the product. 
This includes freight, and even labor for the first five years!

Plus Ten
Our history in the consoles industry has created partnerships 
that no other manufacturer can equal. We select our partners 
with such care that we extend our protection to their parts as 
well—for ten years. This includes electronics and buy-out parts 
such as lights, switches, lifting columns, and climate controls, 
along with associated freight, and even labor for the first five 
years! No other manufacturer protects you like Watson. 

We are committed to supporting our product 
and our customers for a lifetime. That’s why we 
not only build exceptionally durable consoles, 
but back it up with the strongest standard parts 
warranty in the industry, 

PROUDLY MADE IN USA 
SINCE 1960

+ 10
L I F E T I M E

W A R R A N T Y

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 20 | 21
776



Dispatchers:
• Every feature is selected to optimize performance and 

intelligently placed to ensure ease-of-use
• Task lighting can be moved and adjusted to perfectly  

suit the user, including down to red for dark environments
• Ambient lighting adds a second level of lighting to the 

entire worksurface
• Personal heating and cooling fans help promote operator comfort
• Sit-to-stand functionality at the touch of a button
• Mobile device charging at the workstation
• Easily adjustable monitor height and depth

Supervisors:
• Ergonomic features keep teams healthy and reduce call outs 

and L&I claims
• Screens maintain line of sight while keeping teams safe  

and distanced
• Accessories keep centers tidy and uncluttered
• Personal lighting and heating minimize complaints
• Seamless tech integration ensures every station runs every day

IT Managers & Techs
• Lockable doors prevent users from unplugging power
• Easily accessible cabling and technology make maintenance 

accessible even during use
• Cupholders prevent spilling on expensive equipment
• Cable management system prevents pinching and provides 

separation for mission critical power and data
• Axial fans actively cool technology, extending the life of  

the investment
• Scalable tech integration makes future upgrades and additions 

simple and efficient

Smart Design
Watson’s approach benefits the whole team

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 22 | 23
777



Storage
Multi-functional lockers, multi-purpose work islands, stacking storage, 
and mobile units create open or concealed storage and make efficient 
use of every square foot of your dispatch center. 

Work Islands
A multi functional addition to any control room. 
Incorporate the elements that work for your team, 
from recycling centers to lockers.

Build depth between positions to store personal items with end stacking 
storage, either on its own or on a tech cabinet. Combine open, drawer, 
and doors to create a multi functional area for each dispatcher. Or build 
up from the hub to use end-of-run space to its full potential. 

Lockers
Personal gear lockers are available in multiple styles, 
sizes, and finishes. Create small groups of lockers 
along the aisle or group together in a traditional style.

Bookcases
Keep document binders 
right at hand.

Personal & End 
Stacking Storage

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 24 | 25
778



Tables

Bridge
A table spanner that creates space 
between positions and can seat  
a trainer or observer. Designed to 
accommodate a Technology- or 
Cable-Bridge underneath. Available  
in 29½" or 31½" heights.

Shared Resource
Shared Resource is a table spanner 
style that integrates 30" high, custom-
configured open, closed, and/or  
drawer storage between stations. 

Table spanner styles are available in 
39" or 51" depths, with pop up power.

Peninsula
An extended worksurface that is well-suited to 
training, collaboration, and meetings. Offered in 
depths of 60"to 84"—29½" or 31½" high—with 
pop up or flip lid power. Can be combined with 
a 24" Technology Cabinet or a Technology- or 
Cable-Bridge for additional technology storage.

Team Table 
The team table meets a variety of needs—from a collaborative meeting 
space, to shared storage and/or creating distance between positions.

Mobile Tables 
Configure for the classroom or the break  
room. Available with cable management  
and power integration. Easy to store, multi- 
functional, and meet the needs of the moment.

 

Tables  

Meeting Tables
Tech-ready tables for any type of meeting, 
from formal decision making to pop-up 
brainstorming.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 26 | 27
779



Accessories  Safety Screens
Safeguard the health of your team. Providing Safety Screens 
protects individual health, increases a sense of security, and 
ensures the productivity of your center. Screens can be fitted to 
all Mercury Consoles (as shown left and below) and are also 
available in free standing configurations (shown atop a technology 
cabinet, bottom right) that require no mounting.

Cup holder
Never worry about spills during a stressful call 
or into technology with an attached cupholder.

Status Light
A valuable communication enhancement, 
signaling when positions are active, vacant,  
or in need of assistance.

Personal Sanitation Station
Keep cleaning materials close at hand to ensure 
proper disinfecting during and between shifts.

Markerboards
Mobile and hanging markerboards can 
assist in wayfinding, be used as planning 
space, and help with organization

Without screens

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 28 | 29
780



Finishes

Arches*

WORKSURFACE
Crisp Linen

STORAGE CASES
Phantom Pearl

STORAGE FACES
Grey Elm

FABRIC
Tensile

ALT. FABRIC
Galvanize

Bandelier

WORKSURFACE
Crisp Linen

STORAGE CASES
Field Elm

STORAGE FACES
Field Elm

FABRIC
Galvanize

ALT. FABRIC
Quench

Canyon

WORKSURFACE
Carajillo

STORAGE CASES
Satin Grey

STORAGE FACES
Satin Grey

FABRIC
Galvanize

ALT. FABRIC
Grey Brindle

Carlsbad*

WORKSURFACE
Phantom Pearl

STORAGE CASES
Satin Grey

STORAGE FACES
Phantom Pearl

FABRIC
Grey Brindle

ALT. FABRIC
Galvanize

WORKSURFACE
Fawn Cypress

STORAGE CASES
Fawn Cypress

STORAGE FACES
Charcoal

FABRIC
Quench

ALT. FABRIC
Alloy

Denali

WORKSURFACE
Carajillo

STORAGE CASES
Charcoal

STORAGE FACES
Charcoal

FABRIC
Galvanize

ALT. FABRIC
Vitreous

Mesa

WORKSURFACE
Crisp Linen

STORAGE CASES
Satin Grey

STORAGE FACES
Satin Grey

FABRIC
Galvanize

ALT. FABRIC
Grey Brindle

Olympic

WORKSURFACE
Fawn Cypress

STORAGE CASES
Charcoal

STORAGE FACES
Fawn Cypress

FABRIC
Alloy

ALT. FABRIC
Quench

Shenandoah

WORKSURFACE
Studio Teak

STORAGE CASES
Studio Teak

STORAGE FACES
Studio Teak

FABRIC
Wire

ALT. FABRIC
Quench

Teton

WORKSURFACE
White Cypress

STORAGE CASES
Studio Teak

STORAGE FACES
Fashion Grey

FABRIC
Vitreous

ALT. FABRIC
Tensile

Zion

À la carte
LAMINATES FABRICS | CAMIRA RIVET

Carajillo Forge

Lagoon

Quench

Wire

Fawn Cypress

Grey Elm

Studio Teak

Crisp Linen Galvanize

Molten

Spark

Alloy

Grey Brindle

Otter

VitreousTensile

Fashion Grey

Satin Grey

Charcoal

Field Elm

Phantom Pearl

White Cypress

Select your own combination from our finishes palette.

Watson Consoles | Mercury Collection 30 | 31
781



26246 Twelve Trees Lane NW,  Poulsbo, WA 98370   
tel 360.394.1300    watsonconsoles.com

MADE
HERE

ISO 9001 
QUALITY

ISO 14001 
ENVIRONMENT

OHSAS 18001 
HEALTH & SAFETY

Mercury BASE
Shown in Carlsbad color scheme.

Mercury PRO
Shown in Teton color scheme.

Mercury STANDARD
Shown in Shenandoah color scheme.

©
 2

0
2
0
 W

A
T

S
O

N
 C

O
N

S
O

L
E

S
. 
A

L
L
 R

IG
H

T
S

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
D

. 
N

O
V

 2
0
2
0
  

782



TAKE IT WITH YOU 
The MCC 7500E IP Dispatch Console provides a full console 
interface experience anywhere inside or outside of your radio 
network. It can operate as a permanent, back up or mobile 
solution, with full console functionality. Whether for a planned 
event or immediate emergency response, command a wealth 
of information for high-impact results. Connect to responders 
with voice, Talkgroup Text Message and tone communication on 
ASTRO® 25 trunked and conventional systems.

THE CONTINUAL PURSUIT FOR OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
Better manage the flow of critical information and be the pipeline of intelligence to those who need  
it most with the MCC 7500E IP Dispatch Console. The ultra small form factor makes deployment simple 
and easy across dispatch centers where space is at a premium. Additionally, the MCC 7500E offers 
dual Ethernet connections minimizing the risk of a lost connection.

NEW SMALL FORM FACTOR 

CONTINUAL REDUCTION IN PHYSICAL SPACE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE HARDWARE 

REDUNDANCY IN ETHERNET CONNECTIONS 
HELPING TO ENSURE HIGH AVAILABILITY OF 
THE SYSTEM

DISPATCH APPLICATION ECOSYSTEM 
The ability to integrate Motorola Solutions and other third  
party dispatch applications with the MCC 7500E console API 
creates a dispatch environment that helps you meet the needs 
of your first responders.

Motorola Solutions Certified Logging Recorders 
The Motorola Solutions certified NICE and Verint Logging 
Recorders provide seamless dedicated recording for the  
MCC 7500E console to improve productivity and offer post 
incident insights to your operations. They are the only recording 
solutions that meet all of the extensive Motorola Solutions 
performance specifications required to be implemented on the 
ASTRO 25 IP network.

PremierOne™ Computer Aided Dispatch 
PremierOne CAD integrates with the MCC 7500E console to 
streamline workflows, minimize key strokes and reduce input 
error for more dispatch efficiency. Your personnel can operate 
within a single interface and from one mouse and keyboard 
to receive 9-1-1 calls, manage an incident response and 
communicate critical information to responders in the field.

MCC 7500E IP DISPATCH CONSOLE

DATA SHEET | MCC 7500E IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 
783



Advanced Messaging Solution 
The Advanced Messaging Solution builds upon the Talkgroup Text 
Messaging capability of the MCC 7500E IP Dispatch Console, further 
enhancing responder decision–making abilities by facilitating 
two-way texting between dispatch and users in the field. When 
voice communication is not an option, Advanced Messaging 
Solution provides responders with critical information, right at their 
fingertips, on portable radios or broadband devices.

APX Personnel Accountability 
Streamline on-scene roll calls and gain the confidence to make 
critical decisions with an easy to use single screen view showing 
the status of all on-scene personnel. Rapidly execute evacuation 
orders to quickly alert your team to changing situations and see 
that everyone acknowledges.

EASE OF USE MAKES FOR MORE 
EFFECTIVE SUPPORT 
First responders don’t know or care where your dispatchers are. 
Yet, they need the same high level of responsiveness in each 
and every emergency. The MCC 7500E leverages a graphical user 
interface (GUI) that has been continuously improved upon based on 
user feedback for over 10 years. Examples of enhancements range 
from various color choices for resource backgrounds, buttons, or on 
screen text to fully customizable sizes of resources. The continual 
pursuit of operational efficiency enables your dispatchers to quickly 
adapt to a new system with a short learning curve and minimal 
training allowing them to feel right at home.

The customizeable GUI design helps your dispatchers become more 
efficient and productive using purpose-designed workflows with 
minimal click-throughs, critical resource information displays and 
contextual right-click menus. It is also beneficial for switching 
seamlessly between the MCC 7500E, MCC 7500 and MCC 7100 IP 
Dispatch Consoles. enabling dispatchers to provide the same level 

Enhanced Integrated Instant Recall Recorder
Desk Top 

Microphone Port

NENA Compliant  
External Phone  
Interface Port

Local Logging  
Recorder Port Reserved

Headset 
Jackbox Computer

External Paging 
Encoder Port

Foot Switch Port Reserved Private Aux 
I/O Port

Headset 
Jackbox

DATA SHEET | MCC 7500E IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 

of service every time, with no additional training. Extra features are 
designed specifically to enable a smooth transition. The Enhanced 
Integrated Instant Recall Recorder helps maintain typical dispatch 
operation without extra equipment or installations. It can provide 
your dispatchers with access to the audio and associated call 
information across all call on their dispatch consoles. With flexible 
configuration options the Enhanced Integrated Instant Recall 
Recorder can be easily customized to meet the needs of individual 
dispatchers. The optional Audio Interface Module (AIM) facilitates 
use of purpose-built dispatch accessories if desired in place of 
commercial off-the-shelf USB accessories. With the MCC 7500E, 
you’ll maximize your effectiveness in coordinating and informing 
first responders, from anywhere.

THE INTELLIGENCE YOU NEED, EVERY TIME, 
ALL THE TIME 
First responders rely heavily on dispatch for support. They need to 
be confident that your team can always offer the right information 
and coordination when an emergency arises. The inherent reliability 
and security of the ASTRO 25 system ensures first responders 
and dispatchers stay connected with best-in-class audio quality. 
Redundant Ethernet connections provide dispatchers with continued 
access to their dispatch consoles even during failures in the IP 
network LAN switches. For peace of mind that the right information 
always gets through, rely on the MCC 7500E IP Dispatch Console’s 
smart voice prioritization and intelligent audio routing capabilities at 
your dispatch positions. Furthermore, continuous link and resource 
polling gives your dispatchers the confidence that once connected 
they stay connected.

SCALE UP YOUR SYSTEM NOT YOUR COST 
If your public safety agency is like most others, money is tight for 
you right now.

784



Tailor the MCC 7500E IP Disptach Console to your needs with the customizable user interface

The MCC 7500E console is a cost effective, completely software-
based solution. Flexible deployment options reduce physical space 
requirements and system management does not require specialized 
hardware knowledge. New functionality and expanded capacity 
arrive via software updates – upgradeable from a centralized, 
single point of contact. This cuts down on the time, expense and 
inconvenience of growing or managing your system.

Scale to the needs of your organization now and  into the future 
with licensed capacity of 15, 30, 45, 60, 100,  or 160 Radio 
Resources. Deploy the MCC 7500E console incrementally with 
interoperation with the MCC 7500, for even more installation 
flexibility.

SOLUTION COMPONENTS 
MCC 7500E Console Positions 
The MCC 7500E console connects directly to the radio system’s IP 
transport network without gateways or interface boxes. Vocoding 
and encryption are performed within each software-based operator 
position. MCC 7500E consoles functions as an integrated component 
of the total radio system without additional centralized electronics.

The MCC 7500E console position can be comprised of a desktop 
workstation with just a headset, or operate with a small formfactor 
computer and monitor with a keyboard, mouse/trackball/
touchscreen, up to 8 assignable speakers, and a a range of audio 
accessories. The MCC 7500E is designed for the workspace of the 
future. At 2.3 inches tall, the HP Z2 Mini is perfectly suited for 
dispatch operations were space is limited.

Audio Accessories 
Both Mission-Critical Audio Accessories are available including 
goose neck microphone, foot-switch and headset jack-box. 
Additionally, commercially available USB connected accessories can 
be used if desired.

DATA SHEET | MCC 7500E IP DISPATCH CONSOLE 

Compatibility 
For dispatch users who need to conduct dispatching activities and 
other tasks on a single computer, the following applications are 
supported for such installation:

• K Core Configuration Manager
• ASTRO 25 Advanced Messaging Solution
• MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Server
• MKM 7000 Console Alias Manager Client
• PRX 7000 Console Proxy Server
• Voting Control and Display Client
• Personnel Accountability Client
• PremierOne Text Messaging Client.

Radio Resource Capacity Licenses  
Radio Resource Capacity Licenses are available for 15, 30, 45, 60, 
100, or 160 radio resources.

Capacity licenses are issued for the life of the product and continue 
in force when the system is upgraded.

Remote Operation 
Full dispatch capability is provided when operating outside of the 
ASTRO 25 Network. The MCC 7500E console supports firewall 
controlled access for up to 160 channels into the secure ASTRO 25 
network from the Customer Enterprise Network (CEN). For remote 
access with additional security, virtual private network (VPN) access 
is also supported through the CEN.

785



SPECIFICATIONS
System Compatibility ASTRO® 25 System

Vocoder Algorithms Supported AMBE, (IMBE is compatible with AMBE), G.728 (for Analog Conventional), G.711 (Telephony)

Encryption Algorithms Supported AES (256 bit), DES-OFB, ADP (Advanced Digital Privacy)

MCC 7500E IP DISPATCH CONSOLE CAPACITIES

Assignable Radio Resource Capacities 15, 30, 45, 60, 100, 160

Simultaneous Audio Sessions per Console 60

Bandwidth Requirement per Channel 35 kbps

Simultaneous Encryption/ 
Decryption Sessions per Secure Capable Console

60

Multi-Select Groups per Dispatch Console Up to 16  
(with up to 20 Members per Multi-Select group)

Patch Groups per Dispatch Console Up to 16 (with 20 members per patch group)

USB AUDIO INTERFACE MODULE SPECIFICATIONS
Before you mount and install the USB Audio Interface device (AIM), verify that you meet the environmental requirements necessary for the device to operate.

Audio Interface Module (AIM)

Connector type Device

RJ45 One desktop gooseneck microphone, one local logging recorder, 
one external telephone headset, one external paging encoder, one 
footswitch, and support for four private Aux I/O’s.

DB15 Two headset jacks connectors.

Dimensions (H x D x W) 1.69 x 5.23 x 8.39 in (43 x 133 x 213 mm) 

Weight 1.43 lbs (0.65 kg)

AC Operating Voltage for the  
USB AIM Power Supply

90 VAC - 264 VAC

Minimum Input Voltage 90 VAC with 57~63 Hz

Maximum Input Voltage 264 VAC with 47~53 Hz

Typical Input Voltages 115 VAC and 230 VAC

DC Operating Voltage for the  
USB AIM Device

12 VDC (nominal)

Maximum Power Consumption 0.5 A at 12 VDC (6 Watt)

Operating Temperature 5°C (41°F) – 40°C (104°F)

Storage Temperature -25°C (-13°F) – 70°C (158°F)

Relative Humidity Operating 0% – 90% relative humidity at 40°C non-condensing

Certifications CE
CMM EPUF 50
EAC
Safety

CSA 60950-1-07 2011-12
UL 60950-1 2011
IEC 60950-1 2005

EMC Emissions & Immunity
FCC part15B Class B 

 ICES-003 
EN 60950 - 1 : 2006 + A11 : 2009 + A1 : 2010 + A12: 2011
EN55022 :2010
EN55024 :2010 
EN 61000-3-2:2006 +A1:2009 +A2:2009 
EN 61000-3-3:2008 

Energy Efficiency
International Energy Efficiency Level V
(AIM power supply only) 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. 500 West Monroe Street, Chicago, Il 60661 U.S.A.  motorolasolutions.com/dispatch 

MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and  
are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2017 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.  08-2017

786

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/dispatch


BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES
787



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES 

As a dispatcher, when every second counts, it’s your job to provide crucial intelligence to personnel and to keep people safe. Yet in today’s world 
you have more information, resources, and tools competing for your attention than ever. Precious time is lost if you have to repeat yourself due to 
transmission difficulties. That’s why we created a portfolio of mission-critical dispatching accessories. Based on extensive observation of the way 
dispatchers work, they have been thoughtfully designed to help you confidently and efficiently manage any situation that comes your way. 

Purpose Built Accessories  
Superior Audio Quality and Performance 

Flexible Mounting Options  
Freestanding or Permanently Mounted  

Reliability Through and Through  
Rugged Physical Design for 24/7/365 Use 

788



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The USB gooseneck microphone is specifically designed for use in 
mission critical dispatch products. This purpose-built USB-based 
microphone connects directly to the dispatch position’s PC or USB hub.  

With a dedicated instant transmit button located directly at the base of the 
microphone, dispatchers can effortlessly communicate with the talkgroup 
of their choice. The microphone has a dedicated monitor button, allowing 
dispatchers to quickly and easily listen on the channel to make sure another 
group isn’t using it. 

This microphone has built-in active noise cancellation capability 
designed to provide 20 db of front to back noise cancellation. Active 
noise cancellation delivers loud and clear audio by virtually eliminating 
both off-axis coloration and proximity effect that causes bassy and 
muffled audio when speaking too close to the microphone.
  

Dedicated Monitor Button

18 Inch Flexible Shaft

Dual Input Microphone 
for Noise Cancellation 

Dedicated Instant Transmit Button

 GOOSENECK MICROPHONE SPECIFICATIONS

Frequency Response 150 - 12,500 Hz at 48 kHz sampling rate
80 - 3,750 Hz at 8 kHz sampling rate

Total Harmonic Distortion <5%

Noise Cancellation Minimum of 20 dB active noise cancellation

Dimensions (H x W x D) 21.0 x 4.7 x 6.5 inches  (Gooseneck pointing straight up)
533 x 119 x 165 mm 

Mounting Options

Freestanding
Or 
Permanent - via two #10-32 threaded holes conveniently 
located at the base of the microphone stand that can be 
used to attach to flat surfaces. 

Weight 2.6 lbs 
1.2 kg 

Power Consumption << 1 Watt

Thermal Output < 1 BTU/Hr

Operating Temperature 32°F to 104°F
0°C to 40°C

Storage Temperature -13°F to 158°F
-25°C to 70°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 40°C non-condensing

Cable Connector Type USB-C

Cable Length  4.5 meters
14.8 feet

The microphone has flexible mounting configurations available. With 
both freestanding or permanent mounting options, the microphone will 
seamlessly blend into the environment however you see fit. The base of the 
microphone has threaded holes allowing you to securely fasten it to your 
dispatch furniture. 

Utilizing the industry standard USB-C connector, the gooseneck microphone 
can be used with commercially available cables. For added assurance and 
optimal performance, special cables are available that can better meet the 
needs of mission-critical environments. The USB gooseneck microphone 
comes with two different cables. One of the cables has a Type A connector. 
The other cable has a Type C connector. These cables are longer than 
commercially available cables (4.5 meters) so they can be routed through 
dispatch furniture. They also include a thumb screw on the end that connects 
to the speaker to secure the cable to the speaker minimizing the risk of 
accidentally losing connection and missing incoming audio.  

USB GOOSENECK MICROPHONE B1951

789



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The USB speaker has been specifically designed for use in mission-critical 
environments. This USB-based desktop speaker connects directly into the 
dispatch position’s PC or USB hub. Unlike commercially available desktop 
speaker systems, each speaker offers its own individual volume control. 
Having an adjustable volume control on each speaker allows dispatchers 
to more effectively manage incoming audio streams. The speakers can 
be powered via USB, or for added amplification, with an external power 
supply. For the highest audio quality it is recommended the speaker be 
used with an external power supply. 

The speakers have a Type C USB connector with a threaded hole above 
it. While the speaker can be used with commercially available USB 
cables, special cables are available that can better meet the needs 
of mission critical customers. The USB desktop speaker comes with 
two different cables. One of the cables has a Type A connector. The 
other cable has a Type C connector. These cables are longer than 
commercially available cables (4.5 meters) so they can be routed 
through dispatch furniture. They also include a thumb screw on the 
end that connects to the speaker to secure the cable to the speaker 
minimizing the risk of accidentally losing connection and missing 
incoming audio. 

Volume Control Knob

Flexible Mounting Options

LED Status Indicator 

THE USB DESKTOP SPEAKER SYSTEM PROVIDES  
DIFFERENT POWER LEVELS AS FOLLOWS: 

85 db SPL at 50 cm ~2W With no external power supply and a USB 
connection capable of providing 500mA of current 

92 db SPL at 50 cm ~5W With no external power supply and a USB con-
nection capable of providing 1.5A of current

95 db SPL at 50 cm ~10W With no external power supply and a USB con-
nection capable of providing 3.0A of current 

102 db SPL at 50 cm ~20W With any type of USB connection and an external 
power supply 

USB DESKTOP SPEAKER B1952
USB DESKTOP SPEAKER SPECIFICATIONS

Frequency Response 120 - 10,300 Hz at 48kHz sampling rate
120 - 3,700 Hz at 8 kHz sampling rate

Total Harmonic Distortion <5%

Dimensions (H x W x D)

Without Mounting Bracket
6.1 x 5.3 x 5.0 inches 
155 x 135 x 127 mm 

With Mounting Bracket
6.5 x 6.9 x 5.5 inches 
165 x 175 x 140 mm

Weight

Speaker Only
2.0 lbs
0.9 kg

With Mounting Bracket
2.6 lbs
1.2 kg

Power Consumption

With External Power Supply
41 Watts (maximum)
25 Watts (typical)

With USB Supplying 3A
15 Watts (maximum)
9.1 Watts (typical)

With USB Supplying 1.5A 
7.5 Watts (maximum) 
4.5 Watts (typical)

With USB Supplying 500 mA
2.5 Watts (maximum)
1.5 Watts (typical)

Thermal Output

With External Power Supply
140 BTU/Hr (maximum)
86 BTU/Hr (typical)

With USB Supplying 3A
52 BTU/Hr (maximum)
31 BTU/Hr (typical)

With USB Supplying 1.5A
26 BTU/Hr (maximum)
16 BTU/Hr (typical)

With USB Supplying 500 mA
9 BTU/Hr (maximum)
6 BTU/Hr (typical)

DC Operating Voltage 24 VDC (nominal) 

Operating Temperature 32°F to 104°F
0°C to 40°C

Storage Temperature -13°F to 158°F
-25°C to 70°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 40°C non-condensing

790



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The headset jack box allows a dispatcher to use a headset while 
operating the dispatch position. The headset jack supports headsets 
which use either PJ7 (6-wire) or PJ327 (4-wire) longframe connectors.  
(6-wire headsets have a PTT button while 4-wire headsets do not have a 
PTT button.) The headset jacks ship from the factory configured for 6-wire 
headsets but can be reconfigured for 4-wire headsets in the field. 

The headset jack contains two volume controls; one for adjusting the 
level of received radio audio and one for adjusting the level of received 
telephone audio. A small dimple is molded into the headset jack housing 
near the telephone volume control so the dispatcher can tell them apart 
without having to look at them.

The headset jack may be mounted either underneath a writing surface or on 
top of a writing surface. It is designed with a low profile and rounded edges 
to minimize “knee banging” when mounted underneath a writing surface.

Received Radio Audio Adjuster

Received Telephone Audio Adjuster

Mounting Holes (x4)

Top View

Bottom View

HEADSET JACK BOX  SPECIFICATIONS

Frequency Response 300 - 3400 Hz

Total Harmonic Distortion <1.0%

Dimensions (H x W x D) 1.6 x 5 x 6 inches
41 x 127 x 152 mm 

Weight 1.2 lbs (0.5 kg) 

Cable Length
12 feet (3.7 m) total length
6 feet (1.8 m) for permanently attached cable
6 feet (1.8 m) for extension cable

Power Consumption << 1 Watt

Thermal Output < 1 BTU/Hr

Operating Temperature 50°F to 86°F
10°C to 30°C

Storage Temperature 50°F to 86°F
10°C to 30°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 30°C non-condensing

HEADSET JACK BOX B1913

791



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The footswitch provides two separate foot pedals for controlling functions on your radio dispatch position.  Typically, one pedal controls the 
general transmit function while the other pedal controls the monitor (disable CTCSS) function.

Each pedal controls its own single pole, double throw (Form C) switch with the common and normally open terminals of each switch connected 
to the footswitch cable.  The free end of the cable terminates in a RJ45 connector.

The footswitch is built with quality heavy cast iron construction and provides a non-skid base pad minimizing the chance of a missed 
transmission.  With four screw holes you can permanently install the footswitch or keep it mobile. 

FOOTSWITCH SPECIFICATIONS

Dimensions (H x W x D) 1.8 x 8.4 x 4.6 inches
45.72 x 213.36 x 116.84 mm 

Weight 5.0 lbs (2.3 kg) 

Cable Length 10 feet
3.0 m

Operating Temperature -20°F to 140°F
-29°C to 60°C

Storage Temperature -20°F to 140°F
-29°C to 60°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 60°C non-condensing

FOOTSWITCH DSTWIN6328A

792



DATA SHEET | WAVE MOBILE COMMUNICATOR

The Plantronics EncorePro 510 and EncorePro 520 headsets are 
certified for use with dispatch consoles from Motorola Solutions. These 
headsets provide all day comfort with soft ear cushions, superior noise-
cancelling for clearer calls, and increased reliability so conversations 
can continue without worry. The flexible microphone provides both 
visual and tactical positioning guides for precise positioning resulting in 
clearer conversations.  These headsets meet OSHA standards for work 
regulations. You can use headsets not certified by Motorola Solutions but 
we cannot guarantee their performance. 

For more information about these products is available at 
https://www.plantronics.com/us/en/product/encorepro-510-520

PLANTRONICS HEADSETS

EncorePro 510

EncorePro 520

793

https://www.plantronics.com/us/en/product/encorepro-510-520


BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The analog gooseneck microphone is specifically designed for use in mission-critical dispatch products.  It is an analog microphone that 
connects directly to the dispatch positions’ voice processor module (VPM) or audio interface module (AIM).  It has an 18 inch flexible shaft, a 
dedicated transmit button and a dedicated monitor button.

The microphone has a cardiod pickup pattern that provides at least 12 dB of front-to-back discrimination of audio to minimize unwanted 
background noise from being picked up. 

The cable connecting the microphone to the VPM or AIM is 10 feet (3.05 m) long.  The microphone can be freestanding or permanently mounted.  
There are two #10-32 threaded holes in the base of the microphone that can be used to attach it to flat surfaces.

ANALOG GOOSENECK MICROPHONE SPECIFICATIONS
 Frequency Response 300 -3400 Hz

Total Harmonic Distortion <5%

Front-to-Back Discrimination Minimum of 12 dB

Dimensions (H x W x D) 21.8 x 4.8 x 6.6 inches (Gooseneck pointing straight up)
552 x 121 x 168 mm 

Weight 2.4 lbs (1.1 kg) 

Power Consumption << 1 Watt

Thermal Output -< 1 BTU/Hr

Operating Temperature 50°F to 86°F
10°C to 30°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 30°C non-condensing

ANALOG GOOSENECK MICROPHONE B1914

794



BROCHURE | MISSION-CRITICAL DISPATCH ACCESSORIES

The analog speaker is specifically designed for use in mission critical dispatch products.  It is an analog desktop speaker that connects to the 
MCC 7500 dispatch position’s voice processor module (VPM).  Each speaker has its own individual volume control with a configurable minimum 
volume level.  It is powered by the VPM, so no AC line cords or external power supplies are needed.

The speaker provides up to 2 Watts of output power.

The cable connecting the speaker to the VPM is 10.1 feet (3.09 m) long.  The speaker comes with a mounting bracket that can be used to 
permanently mount the speaker on flat horizontal or vertical surfaces.  The speaker may also be freestanding.

ANALOG SPEAKER SPECIFICATIONS
 Frequency Response 300 - 3400 Hz

Total Harmonic Distortion <5%

Dimensions (H x W x D) 

Without Mounting Bracket
4.9 x 4.0 x 3.5 inches 
124 x 102 x 89 mm 

With Mounting Bracket
4.9 x 4.0 x 5.8 inches 
124 x 102 x 146 mm 

Weight 0.7 lbs
0.3 kg 

Power Consumption 4.5 Watts (maximum)
2.3 Watts (typical)

Thermal Output 15 BTU/Hr (maximum)
8 BTU/Hr (typical)

DC Operating Voltage 12 VDC (nominal) 

Operating Temperature 50°F to 86°F
10°C to 30°C

Storage Temperature 50°F to 86°F
10°C to 30°C

Relative Humidity Operating 0% - 90% relative humidity at 30°C non-condensing

ANALOG SPEAKER B1912

795



Motorola Solutions, Inc. 500 West Monroe Street, Chicago, Il 60661 U.S.A.  motorolasolutions.com 

MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and  
are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2019 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.  07-2019

For more information about our mission-critical dispatch accessories please visit  
www.motorolasolutions.com/dispatch

USB 
Gooseneck 
Microphone

USB 
Speaker

Headset 
Jackbox Footswitch EncorePro 

510
EncorePro 
520

Analog 
Gooseneck 
Microphone

Analog 
Speaker 

CommandCentral AXS    ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓

MCC 7500E ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

MCC 7500 ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
    

796

http://www.motorolasolutions.com/en_us/products/voice-applications/wave-work-group-communications.html#taboverview


H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Watson Furniture Group, Inc. - Public Services - -    

 

Page 1 of 7 
 
 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Houston-Galveston Area Council  
hereinafter referred to as H-GAC having its principal place of business at 3555 Timmons Lane, Suite 
120, Houston, Texas 77027 and Watson Furniture Group, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the 
Contractor, having its principal place of business at 26246 Twelve Trees Lane NW, Poulsbo, WA 98370.  
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, H-GAC hereby engages the Contractor to perform certain services in accordance with the 
specifications of the Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to perform such services in accordance with the specifications of 
the Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, H-GAC and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
The Contractor warrants and assures H-GAC that it possesses adequate legal authority to enter into 
this Agreement. The Contractor's governing body, where applicable, has authorized the signatory 
official(s) to enter into this Agreement and bind the Contractor to the terms of this Agreement and any 
subsequent amendments hereto. 
 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
The Contractor agrees to conduct all activities under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable 
rules, regulations, directives, standards, ordinances, and laws, in effect or promulgated during the term 
of this Agreement, including without limitation, workers’ compensation laws, minimum and maximum 
salary and wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the 
Contractor shall furnish H-GAC with satisfactory proof of its compliance therewith. 
 
ARTICLE 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
The execution of this Agreement and the rendering of services prescribed by this Agreement do not 
change the independent status of H-GAC or the Contractor. No provision of this Agreement or act of H-
GAC in performance of the Agreement shall be construed as making the Contractor the agent, servant 
or employee of H-GAC, the State of Texas or the United States Government. Employees of the 
Contractor are subject to the exclusive control and supervision of the Contractor.   The Contractor is 
solely responsible for employee related disputes and discrepancies, including employee payrolls and any 
claims arising therefrom.  
 
ARTICLE 4: WHOLE AGREEMENT 
The General Provisions, Special Provisions, and Attachments, as provided herein, constitute the 
complete Agreement (“Agreement”) between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and 
written agreements between the parties relating to matters herein. Except as otherwise provided 
herein, this Agreement cannot be modified without written consent of the parties. 
 
ARTICLE 5: SCOPE OF SERVICES 

797



Page 2 of 7 
 
 

The services to be performed by the Contractor are outlined in an Attachment to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 6: PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
This Agreement shall be performed during the period which begins Jul 01 2020 and ends Jun 30 2022. 
All services under this Agreement must be rendered within this performance period, unless directly 
specified under a written change or extension provisioned under Article 14, which shall be fully 
executed by both parties to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 7: PAYMENT OR FUNDING 
Payment provisions under this Agreement are outlined in the Special Provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 8: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
If the Contractor fails to submit to H-GAC in a timely and satisfactory manner any report required by 
this Agreement, or otherwise fails to satisfactorily render performances hereunder, H-GAC may 
terminate this agreement with notice as identified in Article 15 of these General Provisions.  H-GAC 
has final determination of the adequacy of performance and reporting by Contractor. Termination of 
this agreement for failure to perform may affect Contractor’s ability to participate in future 
opportunities with H-GAC. The Contractor's failure to timely submit any report may also be considered 
cause for termination of this Agreement. 
 
Any additional reporting requirements shall be set forth in the Special Provisions of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9: INSURANCE 
Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for work performed or services rendered under this 
Agreement as outlined and defined in the attached Special Provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 10: SUBCONTRACTS and ASSIGNMENTS 
Except as may be set forth in the Special Provisions, the Contractor agrees not to subcontract, assign, 
transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of this Agreement or any right, title, obligation or interest 
it may have therein to any third party without prior written approval of H-GAC. The Contractor 
acknowledges that H-GAC is not liable to any subcontractor or assignee of the Contractor. The 
Contractor shall ensure that the performance rendered under all subcontracts shall result in 
compliance with all the terms and provisions of this Agreement as if the performance rendered was 
rendered by the Contractor. Contractor shall give all required notices, and comply with all laws and 
regulations applicable to furnishing and performance of the work. Except where otherwise expressly 
required by applicable law or regulation, H-GAC shall not be responsible for monitoring Contractor's 
compliance, or that of Contractor’s subcontractors, with any laws or regulations. 
 
ARTICLE 11: AUDIT 
Notwithstanding any other audit requirement, H-GAC reserves the right to conduct or cause to be 
conducted an independent audit of any transaction under this Agreement, such audit may be performed 
by the H-GAC local government audit staff, a certified public accountant firm, or other auditors 
designated by H-GAC and will be conducted in accordance with applicable professional standards and 
practices.  The Contractor understands and agrees that the Contractor shall be liable to the H-GAC for 
any findings that result in monetary obligations to H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 12: EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor shall maintain during the course of the work complete and accurate records of all of the 
Contractor's costs and documentation of items which are chargeable to H-GAC under this Agreement. 
H-GAC, through its staff or designated public accounting firm, the State of Texas, and United States 
Government, shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect, copy and audit those records on or 

798



Page 3 of 7 
 
 

off the premises by authorized representatives of its own or any public accounting firm selected by H-
GAC. The right of access to records is not limited to the required retention period, but shall last as long 
as the records are retained. Failure to provide access to records may be cause for termination of the 
Agreement. The records to be thus maintained and retained by the Contractor shall include (without 
limitation): (1) personnel and payroll records, including social security numbers and labor 
classifications, accounting for total time distribution of the Contractor's employees working full or part 
time on the work, as well as cancelled payroll checks, signed receipts for payroll payments in cash, or 
other evidence of disbursement of payroll payments; (2) invoices for purchases, receiving and issuing 
documents, and all other unit inventory records for the Contractor's stocks or capital items; and (3) 
paid invoices and cancelled checks for materials purchased and for subcontractors' and any other third 
parties' charges.   
 
The Contractor further agrees that the examination of records outlined in this article shall be included 
in all subcontractor or third-party agreements.  
 
ARTICLE 13: RETENTION OF RECORDS 
The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain all records pertinent to this Agreement, and all 
other financial, statistical, property, participant records, and supporting documentation for a period of 
no less than seven (7) years from the later of the date of acceptance of the final payment or until all 
audit findings have been resolved.  If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving 
the records has been started before the expiration of the retention period, the records shall be retained 
until completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 
seven (7) years, whichever is later, and until any outstanding litigation, audit, or claim has been fully 
resolved. 
 
ARTICLE 14: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 

A. Any alterations, additions, or deletions to the terms of this Agreement, which are required by 
changes in federal or state law or by regulations, are automatically incorporated without 
written amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or by 
regulation. 

B. To ensure the legal and effective performance of this Agreement, both parties agree that any 
amendment that affects the performance under this Agreement must be mutually agreed upon 
and that all such amendments must be in writing.  After a period of no less than 30 days 
subsequent to written notice, unless sooner implementation is required by law, such 
amendments shall have the effect of qualifying the terms of this Agreement and shall be 
binding upon the parties as if written herein. 

 
ARTICLE 15: TERMINATION PROCEDURES 
The Contractor acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated for Convenience or Default. 

A. Convenience 
H-GAC may terminate this Agreement at any time, in whole or in part, with or without cause, 
whenever H-GAC determines that for any reason such termination is in the best interest of H-
GAC, by providing written notice by certified mail to the Contractor. Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, all services hereunder of the Contractor and its employees and subcontractors 
shall cease to the extent specified in the notice of termination.  
 
The Contractor may cancel or terminate this Agreement upon submission of thirty (30) days 
written notice, presented to H-GAC via certified mail. The Contractor may not give notice of 
cancellation after it has received notice of default from H-GAC.  

B. Default 

799



Page 4 of 7 
 
 

H-GAC may, by written notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of 
the Agreement, in any one of the following circumstances: 
(1) lf the Contractor fails to perform the services herein specified within the time specified 

herein or any extension thereof; or 
(2) If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement for any 

reason whatsoever, or so fails to make progress or otherwise violates the Agreements that 
completion of services herein specified within the Agreement term is significantly 
endangered, and in either of these two instances does not cure such failure within a period 
often (10) days (or such longer period of time as may be authorized by H-GAC in writing) 
after receiving written notice by certified mail of default from H-GAC. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 
H-GAC and Contractor agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, which shall 
continue in full force and effect. 
 
ARTICLE 17: FORCE MAJEURE 
To the extent that either party to this Agreement shall be wholly or partially prevented from the 
performance of any obligation or duty placed on such party by reason of or through strikes, stoppage of 
labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, accident, order of any court, act of God, or specific cause 
reasonably beyond the party's control and not attributable to its neglect or nonfeasance, in such event, 
the time for the performance of such obligation or duty shall be suspended until such disability to 
perform is removed. Determination of force majeure shall rest solely with H-GAC. 
 
ARTICLE 18: CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
No officer, member or employee of the Contractor or  subcontractor, no member of the governing body of 
the Contractor, and no other public officials of the Contractor who exercise any functions or 
responsibilities in the review or Contractor approval of this Agreement, shall participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest, or shall have any 
personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 19: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE  
Contractor agrees to comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination, labor standards, 
and environmental compliance.  Additionally, for work to be performed under the Agreement or 
subcontract thereof, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, Contractor shall notify 
each potential subcontractor or supplier of the Contractor's federal compliance obligations.  These may 
include, but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of sex; (c) the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 USC 676 et. seq.), (d) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
handicaps and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; (e) the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967 (29 USC 621 et. seq.) and the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 
6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (f) the Drug Abuse Office and 
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug 
abuse; (g) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (h) §§ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (i) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the 
sale, rental or financing of housing; (j) any other nondiscrimination provisions in any specific statute(s) 

800



Page 5 of 7 
 
 

applicable to any Federal funding for this Agreement; (k) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to this Agreement; (l) applicable provisions of the Clean 
Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 
§1251 et seq.), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and the 
Environmental Protection Agency regulations at 40 CPR Part 15; (m) applicable provisions of the 
Davis- Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a - 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 276c), and the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-332), as set forth in Department of Labor Regulations 
at 20 CPR 5.5a; (n) the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163). 
 
ARTICLE 20: CRIMINAL PROVISIONS AND SANCTIONS 
The Contractor agrees to perform the Agreement in conformance with safeguards against fraud and 
abuse as set forth by the H-GAC, the State of Texas, and the acts and regulations of any related state 
or federal agency. The Contractor agrees to promptly notify H-GAC of any actual or suspected fraud, 
abuse, or other criminal activity through the filing of a written report within twenty-four (24) hours of 
knowledge thereof. Contractor shall notify H-GAC of any accident or incident requiring medical 
attention arising from its activities under this Agreement within twenty-four (24) hours of such 
occurrence. Theft or willful damage to property on loan to the Contractor from H-GAC, if any, shall be 
reported to local law enforcement agencies and H-GAC within two (2) hours of discovery of any such 
act. 
 
The Contractor further agrees to cooperate fully with H-GAC, local law enforcement agencies, the State 
of Texas, the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any other duly authorized investigative unit, in 
carrying out a full investigation of all such incidents. 
 
The Contractor shall notify H-GAC of the threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against the 
Contractor pertaining to this Agreement or which would adversely affect the Contractor’s ability to 
perform services under this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 21: INDEMNIFICATION AND RECOVERY 
H-GAC’s liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to its order processing charge.  In no event will H-GAC be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, lost profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to defend and hold harmless H-GAC, its board 
members, officers, agents, officials, employees and indemnities from any and all claims, costs, expenses 
(including reasonable attorney fees), actions, causes of action, judgements, and liens arising as a result 
of Contractor’s negligent act or omission under this Agreement. Contractor shall notifiy H-GAC of the 
threat of lawsuit or of any actual suit filed against Contractor relating to this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 22: LIMITATION OF CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
Except as specified in any separate writing between the Contractor and an END USER, Contractor’s 
total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, but excluding its obligation to indemnify H-GAC, is limited to the price of 
the particular products/services sold hereunder, and Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase 
price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted.  In no event will Contractor be liable 
for any loss of use, loss of time, inconvenience, commercial loss, loss of profits or savings or other 
incidental, special or consequential damages to the full extent such use may be disclaimed by law. 
Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be liable to repay and shall repay upon demand to 

801



Page 6 of 7 
 
 

END USER any amounts determined by H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any agency of State or 
Federal government to have been paid in violation of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 23: TITLES NOT RESTRICTIVE 
The titles assigned to the various Articles of this Agreement are for convenience only. Titles shall not 
be considered restrictive of the subject matter of any Article, or part of this Agreement. 
  
ARTICLE 24: JOINT WORK PRODUCT 
This Agreement is the joint work product of H-GAC and the Contractor.  This Agreement has been 
negotiated by H-GAC and the Contractor and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in 
accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against 
any party. 
 
ARTICLE 25: DISPUTES 
All disputes concerning questions of fact or of law arising under this Agreement, which are not 
addressed within the Whole Agreement as defined pursuant to Article 4 hereof, shall be decided by the 
Executive Director of H-GAC or his designee, who shall reduce his decision to writing and provide 
notice thereof to the Contractor. The decision of the Executive Director or his designee shall be final 
and conclusive unless, within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, the Contractor 
requests a rehearing from the Executive Director of H-GAC. In connection with any rehearing under 
this Article, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of 
its position. The decision of the Executive Director after any such rehearing shall be final and 
conclusive.  The Contractor may, if it elects to do so, appeal the final and conclusive decision of the 
Executive Director to a court of competent jurisdiction.  Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, 
the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Agreement and in accordance with 
H- GAC's final decision. 
 
ARTICLE 26: CHOICE OF LAW: VENUE 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue and jurisdiction of any suit 
or cause of action arising under or in connection with the Agreement shall lie exclusively in Harris 
County, Texas.  Disputes between END USER and Contractor are to be resolved in accordance with the 
law and venue rules of the state of purchase.  Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC of such 
disputes. 
 
ARTICLE 27: ORDER OF PRIORITY 
In the case of any conflict between or within this Agreement, the following order of priority shall be 
utilized: 1) General Provisions, 2) Special Provisions, 3) Scope of Work, and, 4) Other Attachments. 
 
  

802



Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
 
SIGNATURES: 
H-GAC and the Contractor have read, agreed, and executed the whole Agreement as of the date first 
written above, as accepted by: 
 
 
Watson Furniture Group, Inc.    
                                  
Signature  $docusign:SignHere::Customer1  
 
Name     Lisa Dotterweich   
           
Title       
 
Date     $docusign:DateSigned::Customer1  

 
H-GAC 
 
Signature $docusign:SignHere::InternalSigner 
 
Name       Chuck Wemple 
 
Title         Executive Director 
 
Date   $docusign:DateSigned::InternalSigner

 

803



H-GAC 
Houston-Galveston Area Council 

P.O. Box 22777 · 3555 Timmons · Houston, Texas 77227-2777 
Cooperative Agreement - Watson Furniture Group, Inc. - Public Services -    

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
Incorporated by attachment, as part of the whole agreement, H-GAC and the Contractor do, hereby agree to the 
Special Provisions as follows:  
 
 
ARTICLE 1: BIDS/PROPOSALS INCORPORATED 
 
In addition to the whole Agreement, the following documents listed in order of priority are incorporated 
into the Agreement by reference: Bid/Proposal Specifications and Contractor’s Response to the Bid/Proposal. 
  
 
ARTICLE 2: END USER AGREEMENTS (“EUA”) 
 
H-GAC acknowledges that the END USER may choose to enter into an End User Agreement (“EUA) with the 
Contractor through this Agreement, and that the term of the EUA may exceed the term of the current H-GAC 
Agreement.  H-GAC’s acknowledgement is not an endorsement or approval of the End User Agreement’s 
terms and conditions.  Contractor agrees not to offer, agree to or accept from the END USER, any terms or 
conditions that conflict with those in Contractor’s Agreement with H-GAC.  Contractor affirms that 
termination of its Agreement with H-GAC for any reason shall not result in the termination of any underlying 
EUA, which shall in each instance, continue pursuant to the EUA’s stated terms and duration. Pursuant to the 
terms of this Agreement, termination of this Agreement will disallow the Contractor from entering into any 
new EUA with END USERS. Applicable H-GAC order processing charges will be due and payable to H-GAC 
on any EUAs, surviving termination of this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 3: MOST FAVORED CUSTOMER CLAUSE 
 
Contractor shall provide its most favorable pricing and terms to H-GAC.  If at any time during this Agreement, 
Contractor develops a regularly followed standard procedure of entering into agreements with other 
governmental customers within the State of Texas, and offers the same or substantially the same 
products/services offered to H-GAC on a basis that provides prices, warranties, benefits, and or terms more 
favorable than those provided to H-GAC, Contractor shall notify H-GAC within ten (10) business days 
thereafter, and this Agreement shall be deemed to be automatically retroactively amended, to the effective date 
of Contractor’s most favorable past agreement with another entity.  Contractor shall provide the same prices, 
warranties, benefits, or terms to H-GAC and its END USER as provided in its most favorable past agreement.  
H-GAC shall have the right and option at any time to decline to accept any such change, in which case the 
amendment shall be deemed null and void.  If Contractor claims that a more favorable price, warranty, benefit, 
or term that was charged or offered to another entity during the term of this Agreement, does not constitute 
more favorable treatment, than Contractor shall, within ten (10) business days, notify H-GAC in writing, 
setting forth the detailed reasons Contractor believes the aforesaid offer is not in fact most favored treatment.  
H-GAC, after due consideration of Contractor’s written explanation, may decline to accept such explanation 
and thereupon this Agreement between H-GAC and Contractor shall be automatically amended, effective 
retroactively, to the effective date of the most favored agreement, to provide the same prices, warranties, 

804



 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

benefits, or terms to H-GAC and the END USER. 
EXCEPTION:  This clause shall not be applicable to prices and price adjustments offered by a bidder, 
Proposer or contractor, which are not within bidder's/proposer’s control [example; a manufacturer's bid 
concession], or to any prices offered to the Federal Government and its agencies. 
 
ARTICLE 4: PARTY LIABILITY 
 
Contractor’s total liability under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, warranty, negligence, strict 
liability, in tort or otherwise, is limited to the price of the particular products/services sold hereunder. 
Contractor agrees either to refund the purchase price or to repair or replace product(s) that are not as warranted. 
Contractor accepts liability to repay, and shall repay upon demand to END USER, any amounts determined by 
H-GAC, its independent auditors, or any state or federal agency, to have been paid in violation of the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 5: GOVERNING LAW & VENUE 
 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor will make every reasonable effort to resolve disputes with the END 
USER in accord with the law and venue rules of the state of purchase.  Contractor shall immediately notify H-
GAC of such disputes.  
 
ARTICLE 6: SALES AND ORDER PROCESSING CHARGE                                
 
Contractor shall sell its products to END USERS based on the pricing and terms of this Agreement.  H-GAC 
will invoice Contractor for the applicable order processing charge when H-GAC receives notification of an 
END USER order. Contractor shall remit to H-GAC the full amount of the applicable order processing 
charge, after delivery of any product or service and subsequent END USER acceptance.  Payment of the Order 
Processing Charge shall be remitted from Contractor to H-GAC, within thirty (30) calendar days or ten (10) 
business days after receipt of an END USER’s payment, whichever comes first, notwithstanding Contractor’s 
receipt of invoice.  For sales made by Contractor based on this Agreement, including sales to entities without 
Interlocal Agreements, Contractor shall pay the applicable order processing charges to H-GAC.  Further, 
Contractor agrees to encourage entities who are not members of H-GAC’s Cooperative Purchasing Program to 
execute an H-GAC Interlocal Agreement.  H-GAC reserves the right to take appropriate actions including, but 
not limited to, Agreement termination if Contractor fails to promptly remit the appropriate order processing 
charge to H-GAC.  In no event shall H-GAC have any liability to Contractor for any goods or services an 
END USER procures from Contractor. At all times, Contractor shall remain liable to pay to H-GAC any 
order processing charges on any portion of the Agreement actually performed, and for which compensation was 
received by Contractor. 
 
ARTICLE 7: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES          
 
Contractor and H-GAC agree that Contractor shall cooperate with the END USER at the time an END USER 
purchase order is placed, to determine terms for any liquidated damages. 
 
ARTICLE 8: INSURANCE 
 
Unless otherwise stipulated in Section B of the Bid/Proposal Specifications, Contractor must have the 
following insurance and coverage minimums: 
a. General liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a General 

805



 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit. 
       Product liability insurance with a Single Occurrence limit of at least $1,000,000.00, and a     
     General Aggregate limit of at least two times the Single Occurrence limit for all Products except  
    Automotive Fire Apparatus.  For Automotive Fire Apparatus, see Section B of the Bid/Proposal  
       Specifications. 

Property Damage or Destruction insurance is required for coverage of End User owned 
equipment while in Contractor's possession, custody or control.  The minimum Single Occurrence 
limit is $500,000.00 and the General Aggregate limit must be at least two times the Single Occurrence 
limit. This insurance may be carried in several ways, e.g.  under an Inland Marine policy, as art of 
Automobile coverage, or under a Garage Keepers policy.  In any event, this coverage must be specifically 
and clearly listed on insurance certificate(s) submitted to H-GAC. 

b.   Insurance coverage shall be in effect for the length of any contract made pursuant to the Bid/Proposal, 
and for any extensions thereof, plus the number of days/months required to deliver any outstanding 
order after the close of the contract period. 

c.  Original Insurance Certificates must be furnished to H-GAC on request, showing Contractor as the 
insured and showing coverage and limits for the insurances listed above. 

d.   If any Product(s) or Service(s) will be provided by parties other than Contractor, all such parties 
are required to carry the minimum insurance coverages specified herein, and if requested by H-GAC, 
a separate insurance certificate must be submitted for each such party. 

e.   H-GAC reserves the right to contact insurance underwriters to confirm policy and certificate issuance 
and document accuracy. 

 
ARTICLE 9: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS FOR INDIVIDUAL ORDERS  
 
H-GAC’s contractual requirements DO NOT include a Performance & Payment Bond (PPB); therefore, 
Contractor shall offer pricing that reflects this cost savings.  Contractor shall remain prepared to offer a PPB to 
cover any order if so requested by the END USER.  Contractor shall quote a price to END USER for 
provision of any requested PPB, and agrees to furnish the PPB within ten business (10) days of receipt of END 
USER's purchase order. 
       
ARTICLE 10: CHANGE OF STATUS 
 
Contractor shall immediately notify H-GAC, in writing, of ANY change in ownership, control, 
dealership/franchisee status, Motor Vehicle license status, or name.  Contractor shall offer written guidance to 
advise H-GAC if this Agreement shall be affected in any way by such change.  H-GAC shall have the right to 
determine whether or not such change is acceptable, and to determine what action shall be warranted, up to and 
including cancellation of Agreement. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 11: TEXAS MOTOR VEHICLE BOARD LICENSING 
 
All  that deal in motor vehicles shall maintain current licenses that are required by the Texas Motor Vehicle 
Commission Code. If at any time during this Agreement term, any required Contractor license is denied, 
revoked, or not renewed, Contractor shall be in default of this Agreement, unless the Texas Motor Vehicle 

806



 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Board issues a stay or waiver.  Contractor shall promptly provide copies of all current applicable Texas Motor 
Vehicle Board documentation to H-GAC upon request. 
 
 
                                                                                                         
 
 

807



808



809



810



811



812



813



814



815



816



817



818



819



820



821



822



823



824



825



826



827



828



829



830



831



832



833



834



835



836



837



838



839



840



841



842



843



844



845



846



847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



860



861



862



863



864



865



866



867



868



869



870



871



872



873



874



875



876



877



878



879



880



881



882



883



884



885



886



887



888



889



890



891



892



893



894



895



896



897



898



899



900



901



902



903



904



905



906



907



908



909



910



911



912



913



914



915



916



917



918



919



920



921



922



923



924



925



926



927



928



929



930



931



932



933



934



935



936



937



938



939



940



941



942



943



944



945



946



947



948



949



950



951



952



953



954



955



956



957



958



959



960



961



962



963



964



965



966



967



968



969



970



971



972



973



974



975



976



977



978



979



980



981



982



983



984



985



986



987



988



989



990



991



992



993



994



995



996



997



998



999



1000



1001



1002



1003



1004



1005



1006



1007



1008



1009



1010



1011



1012



1013



1014



1015



1016



1017



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-8 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: November 23, 2022  Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Bid Award – Cimarron Lift Station – CIP 5309 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Award the Cimarron Lift Station Project (CIP 5309) to Steve Dovali Construction in the 
amount of $368,583 and allocate an additional 10% for project contingency and authorize 
the City Manager, or designee, to execute the agreement.  
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The Cimarron Lift Station is located at the intersection of Belle Haven Drive and Park 
Lane. This project is to remove and rehabilitate the current wet well and upgrade electrical 
components. The contractor will install new sensors and pumps as well as redo the wet 
well concrete cover. The project was advertised October 6, 2022 and bids were opened 
on November 16, 2022. The lowest bid received was from Steve Doyali Construction, Inc. 
in the amount of $368, 583. 
 
Other bids received are as follows: 
  
 Dawson-Mauldin LLC - $ 413,100 
 W.M. Lyles- $ 431,000 
 HPS Mechanical, Inc- $465,480 
 
 
 

1018



 
Financial Consideration (s):, 
The amount of the bid is $368,583 and an additional 10% for project contingency. This 
project is funded utilizing local funds. Project 5309 was approved by City Council on 
September 20, 2022 with a project budget of $550,000. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros:  

• Increase productivity of the well and sustainability for lift station. 
Cons:  

• None noted. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends Council award the Cimarron Lift Station Project to Steve Dovali 
Construction in the amount of $368,583 and allocate an additional 10% for project 
contingency and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☒ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☐ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  

1019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 
 
 
 This Agreement, effective ________________, 2022, is by and between City of Lemoore 
California, hereinafter called the "Owner" and Steve Dovali Construction Inc., hereinafter called 
the "Contractor."  
 
 WITNESSETH:  That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter 
named agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment 
and materials, including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the Work 
in a good and workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, 
material suppliers, subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers 
required for construction of the Cimarron Lift Station Project (the “Project”) which is located at 
Belle Haven Drive and Park Lane in Lemoore, CA. All work under this Agreement shall be in 
strict compliance with the plans, drawings, and specifications prepared by: 
 
 Jeff Cowart 
 901 E Main St 
 Visalia, CA 93292 
and other Contract Documents relating thereto. 
 
Unless otherwise specifically noted, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, 
equipment, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and 
completion of the Project.  The Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order 
among Contractor’s employees and subcontractors and shall not employ on the Project anyone not 
skilled in the task assigned. Contractor shall, for the duration of this Agreement, maintain all 
required licenses, certifications, and any other qualifications necessary to carry out the Project. 
Any employee of Contractor or employee of Contractor’s subcontractors, suppliers or material 
men Owner deems not skilled or otherwise unqualified for the task assigned shall, upon Owner’s 
request, be dismissed from the site. 
 
During the Work, the Contractor shall ensure that all Work, including but not limited to Work 
performed by Subcontractors, is performed in compliance with all applicable legal, contractual, 
and local government requirements related to the novel coronavirus and COVID-19, including 
“social distancing,” masks, and hygiene as may be ordered by the State or local authorities and as 
may be directed in the Contract Documents.   
 

ARTICLE II.  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The Contractor and the Owner agree that 
all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions (attached as Exhibit A) form 
the Contract Documents which form the Contract. 
 
 ARTICLE III.  TIME TO COMPLETE AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.   
 

 Time is of the essence in this Contract, and the time of Completion for the Work (“the 

1020



Contract Time”) shall be Thirty (30) working days which shall start to run on (a) the date of 
commencement of the Work as established in the Owner’s Notice to Proceed, or (b) if no date of 
commencement is established in a Notice to Proceed from Owner, the date of Contractor’s actual 
commencement of the Work (including mobilization).  
 

Failure to Complete the Work within the Contract Time and in the manner provided for by 
the Contract Documents, or failure to complete any specified portion of the Work by a milestone 
deadline, shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages.  The actual occurrence of damages 
and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the Work were not 
Completed within the Contract Time, or if any specified portion of the Work were not completed 
by a milestone deadline, are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions which could 
prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely 
difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of such 
delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Work, disruption of activities, costs of 
administration and supervision, third party claims, and the incalculable inconvenience and loss 
suffered by the public. 
 

Accordingly, the parties agree that $1,000 per calendar day of delay shall be the damages 
which the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to Complete the Work within 
the Contract Time or Complete any specified portion of the Work by a milestone deadline, as 
described above.  Liquidated damages will accrue for failure to meet milestone deadlines even if 
the Contractor Completes the Work within the Contract Time. 

 
In addition, to the extent applicable, Contractor shall be subject to liquidated damages, or 

actual damages if liquidated damages are not recoverable under law, for causing another contractor 
on the Project to fail to timely complete its work under its contract or for causing delayed 
completion of the Project.  The actual occurrence of damages and the actual amount of the damages 
which the Owner would suffer if another contractor on the Project were to fail to timely complete 
its work under its contract or delay completion of the Project are dependent upon many 
circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of 
the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages which the 
Owner would suffer in the event of such delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the 
Work, loss of use of the other contractor’s work, loss of use of the Project, disruption of activities, 
costs of administration and supervision, third party claims, the incalculable inconvenience and loss 
suffered by the public, and an Owner’s inability to recover its delay damages from the contractors 
whose work was delayed by Contractor. 
 

Accordingly, the parties agree that $1,000 for each calendar day of delay shall be the 
amount of damages which the Owner shall directly incur upon Contractor causing another 
contractor on the Project to fail to timely complete its work under its contract or causing delayed 
completion of the Project.  
 

For Contractor’s obligations regarding claims against Owner from other contractors on the 
Project alleging that Contractor caused delays to their work, see General Conditions sections 3.7.4, 
3.16, 6.2.3, and 6.2.4.   

 

1021



If liquidated damages accrue as described above, the Owner, in addition to all other 
remedies provided by law, shall have the right to assess the liquidated damages at any time, and to 
withhold liquidated damages (and any interest thereon) at any time from any and all retention or 
progress payments, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor.  In addition, if it is 
reasonably apparent to the Owner before liquidated damages begin to accrue that they will accrue, 
Owner may assess and withhold, from retention or progress payments, the estimated amount of 
liquidated damages that will accrue in the future.  If the retained percentage or withheld progress 
payments are not sufficient to discharge all liabilities of the Contractor incurred under this Article, 
the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to the Owner until all such liabilities 
are satisfied in full.    
 
 If Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under the Contract Documents after a 
default by reason of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or 
modification of any provision in the Contract Documents regarding time of Completion, milestone 
deadlines, or liquidated damages. 
 
 ARTICLE IV.  PAYMENT AND RETENTION.  The Owner agrees to pay the 
Contractor Three hundred sixty-eight thousand five hundred and eight-three dollars and zero cents 
($368,583.00) for work satisfactorily performed after receipt of properly documented and 
submitted Applications for Payment and to make payments on account thereof, as provided in the 
General Conditions.  
 
The above contract price does not include any special allowances.  
 
 ARTICLE V.  CHANGES.  Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under 
this Agreement shall be made as provided in the General Conditions Art. 7. 
 
 ARTICLE VI.  TERMINATION.  The Owner or Contractor may terminate the Contract 
as provided in the General Conditions Art. 14. 
 
 ARTICLE VII.  PREVAILING WAGES.  The Project is a public work.  The Work shall 
be performed as a public work and pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor 
Code of the State of California, which are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof. 
The Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages 
and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is 
to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute this Contract.  
Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, 
vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar purposes.  Copies of the rates are 
on file at the Owner's principal office.  The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, classification or 
type of workmanship to be employed on this Project is the rate established by the applicable 
collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is hereby adopted by reference and shall 
be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of the Department of Industrial 
Relations determines that another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and 
on any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers employed in the 
execution of this Agreement. 
 

1022



 The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall 
forfeit not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for 
each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such 
worker is employed.  The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less 
than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor. 
 
 The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record 
for Work on this Contract and Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, 
work classification, straight time and overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, 
workers and mechanics employed by them in connection with the performance of this Contract or 
any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the actual per diem wage paid to each of such 
workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to inspection by the Owner, its officers 
and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the State 
Department of Industrial Relations.  The Contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish a certified 
copy of all payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner at least monthly.    
 

Public works projects shall be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  For all projects over Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), 
a contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to submit a bid or to be listed in a bid proposal 
subject to the requirements of Public Contract Code section 4104 unless currently registered and 
qualified under Labor Code section 1725.5 to perform public work as defined by Division 2, Part 
7, Chapter 1 (§§ 1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code.  For all projects over Twenty-five Thousand 
Dollars ($25,000), a contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to enter into, or engage in 
the performance of, any contract of public work (as defined by Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 (§§ 
1720 et seq.) of the Labor Code) unless currently registered and qualified under Labor Code section 
1725.5 to perform public work.   

 
ARTICLE VIII.  WORKING HOURS.  In accordance with the provisions of Sections 

1810 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are hereby 
incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of service of any worker employed by the Contractor 
or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work contemplated by this Agreement 
is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one calendar day and forty hours during any one 
calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by such employee in excess of said eight 
hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation for all hours worked in excess 
of eight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and one-half 
(1½) times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate 
record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar 
week by each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The records shall be kept 
open at all reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of 
Labor Standards Enforcement.  The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-five 
Dollars ($25.00) for each worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor 
or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted 
to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, 
except as herein provided. 
 

1023



 ARTICLE IX.  APPRENTICES.  The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 
7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the California Labor Code, which are hereby 
incorporated and made a part hereof.  These sections require that contractors and subcontractors 
employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not less than one hour of apprentice's 
work for each five hours of work performed by a journeyman (unless an exemption is granted in 
accordance with Section 1777.5) and that contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate 
among otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works solely on the 
ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as defined 
in Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have 
signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable 
occupations.  The responsibility for compliance with these provisions is fixed with the Contractor 
for all apprenticeable occupations. 
 
 ARTICLE XI.  INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  The Contractor will 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, trustees, 
employees and others as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
 By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers' 
Compensation in compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and 
during the performance of the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said 
provisions of said Code.  The Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance 
evidencing that Workers' Compensation Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will 
receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. 
 
 Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.  The amount of 
general liability insurance shall be $1,000,000.00 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury 
and property damage, $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate, and the amount of automobile liability 
insurance shall be $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined single 
limit. 
 
 ARTICLE XII.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  While performing the services 
contemplated by this Agreement, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including, but not limited to, standards and regulations promulgated by the Kings 
County Department of  Public Health,  California Department of Public Health, and Cal/OSHA, 
and the California Code of Regulations Title 24, Uniform Building Code, and National Electric 
Code.  
 
 ARTICLE XII.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The Contract constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties relating to the Work and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement 
between the parties, oral or written, including the Owner's award of the Contract to Contractor, 
unless such agreement is expressly incorporated herein.  The Owner makes no representations or 
warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract.  The Contract is intended as the 
complete and exclusive statement of the parties’ agreement pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 
section 1856. 
 
 ARTICLE XIII.  EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS.  The parties to this 

1024



Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in the 
completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and 
effect to the terms and intent of the Contract. 
 
 ARTICLE XIV.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be 
executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, 
or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE XV.  BINDING EFFECT.  Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, 
acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, 
understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.  The Contract shall inure 
to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Owner and their respective 
successors and assigns. 
 
 ARTICLE XVI.  SEVERABILITY; GOVERNING LAW; CHOICE OF FORUM.  If 
any provision of the Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.  
The Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any action or proceeding 
seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior 
Court of the State of California for the County of Kings, subject to transfer of venue under 
applicable State law, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity 
to suit by Owner.  
 
 ARTICLE XVII.  AMENDMENTS.  The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, 
altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written 
agreement, including change orders, signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the 
Governing Board. 
 
 ARTICLE XVIII.  ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not assign 
or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations 
without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the surety on the performance 
bond and the Owner. 
 
 ARTICLE XIX.  WRITTEN NOTICE.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been 
duly served if delivered in person to the individual or member of the firm or to an officer of the 
corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified or 
overnight mail to the last business address known to the person who gives the notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1025



 
 
CONTRACTOR    OWNER 
Steve Dovali Construction     City of Lemoore 
               
        
___________________________  ___________________________ 
________________ (Name)   _____________________ (Name) 
_______________ (Title)   _____________________ (Title) 
 
 
___________________________  
________________ (Name) 
_______________ (Title) 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
CALIFORNIA CONTRACTOR'S  
LICENSE NO. 
 
 
___________________________ 
LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE 
 
NOTE: Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign with 

Contractor’s usual signature.  Partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners 
and the Agreement must be signed in the partnership name by a general partner 
with authority to bind the partnership in such matters, followed by the signature 
and designation of the person signing.  The name of the person signing shall also 
be typed or printed below the signature.  Corporations must sign with the legal 
name of the corporation, followed by the name of the state of incorporation and by 
the signature and designation of the chairman of the board, president or any vice 
president, and then followed by a second signature by the secretary, assistant 
secretary, the chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. All persons signing must 
be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.  The name of each person 
signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature.  Satisfactory evidence of 
the authority of the officer signing on behalf of a corporation shall be furnished. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1026



 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

for 
 

CONTRACT OF CONSTRUCTION 
 
 
 
 
 

CIMARRON LIFT STATION PROJECT 
 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________, 2022 
 

1027



SUMMARY OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1:  GENERAL CONDITIONS .......................................................................................1 
 
ARTICLE 2: OWNER .....................................................................................................................7   
 
ARTICLE 3: THE CONTRACTOR ................................................................................................11    
 
ARTICLE 4: ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT ...........................................................31   
 
ARTICLE 5: SUBCONTRACTORS ..............................................................................................47      
 
ARTICLE 6:     CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS ............54 
 
ARTICLE 7: CHANGES IN THE WORK .....................................................................................56 
 
ARTICLE 8: TIME ..........................................................................................................................64  
 
ARTICLE 9: PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION .........................................................................69    
 
ARTICLE 10: PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY ...................................................80   
 
ARTICLE 11: INSURANCE AND BONDS ....................................................................................86      
 
ARTICLE 12: UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK..................................................92   
 
ARTICLE 13: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ..........................................................................94      
 
ARTICLE 14: TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT...................................106  

1028



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1:  GENERAL CONDITIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.2 THE CONTRACT 
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.3 THE WORK  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.4 THE PROJECT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS 
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.7 THE PROJECT MANUAL
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.8 OR    
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.9 COMPLETION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.1.10 COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION  
 AND INTENT 

 Error! Bookmark not defined. 
1.2.1 CORRELATION AND INTENT ................ 3 

1.2.1.1 Documents Complementary and 
Inclusive   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.1.2 Coverage of the Drawings and 
Specifications
 Er
ror! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.1.3 Conflicts   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.1.4 Conformance With Laws 
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.1.5 Ambiguity  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.1.6 Execution  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.2 ADDENDA AND DEFERRED  

 APPROVALS  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.2.1 Addenda   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.2.2 Deferred Approvals 
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3 SPECIFICATION INTERPRETATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.1 Titles   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.2 As Shown, Etc.  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.3 Provide   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.4 General Conditions 
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.5 Abbreviations  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.6 Plural   
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

1.2.3.7 Metric    ........... 5 
1.2.3.8 Standard Specifications 

 Error! Bookmark not defined. 
1.2.3.9 Absence of Modifiers 

 Error! Bookmark not defined. 
1.3 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF 

ARCHITECT’S DRAWINGS, 
SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS  ................................. 7 

ARTICLE 2:  OWNER
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

2.1 DEFINITION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined. 

2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES 
REQUIRED OF THE OWNER ........ 7 

2.2.1 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ............ 7 
2.2.2 SITE SURVEY 8 
2.2.3 SOILS 8 

2.2.3.1 Owner Furnished Services ........ 8 
2.2.3.2 Contractor Reliance  ........... 7 

2.2.4 UTILITY SURVEY ................................ 8 
2.2.5 INFORMATION   ................................. 8 
2.2.6 Existing Utility Lines; Removal, 

Relocation   ................................. 8 

1029



2.2.6.1 Removal, Relocation  ........... 8 
2.2.6.2 Assessment   ........... 8 
2.2.6.3 Notification   ........... 8 
2.2.6.4 Underground Utility Clearance . 9 

2.2.7 EASEMENTS 10 
2.2.8 REASONABLE PROMPTNESS ................ 9 
2.2.9 COPIES FURNISHED ............................. 9 
2.2.10 DUTIES CUMULATIVE ......................... 9 
2.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE 

WORK   .................................. 9 
2.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CARRY  
 OUT THE WORK ............................. 9 
ARTICLE 3:  THE CONTRACTOR

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
3.1 DEFINITION Error! Bookmark not 

defined.1 
3.2 SUPERVISION AND  
 CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
3.2.1 CONTRACTOR  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
3.2.2 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.2.3 Obligations not Changed by  
 OTHERS' ACTIONS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.2.4 Contractor Responsibility for  
 Readiness for Work

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.2.5 PROJECT MEETINGS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.3 SUPERINTENDENT

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.3.1 FULL TIME SUPERINTENDENT

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.3.2 STAFF   

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.3.3 RIGHT TO REMOVE

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
3.4.1 CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
3.4.2 QUALITY  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

3.4.3 REPLACEMENT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

3.4.4 DISCIPLINE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

3.5 WARRANTY  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.6 TAXES  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.7 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.7.1 PAYMENT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.7.2 COMPLIANCE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.7.3 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.7.4 RESPONSIBILITY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8 ALLOWANCES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.1 CONTRACT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.2 SCOPE   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.2.1 Prompt Selection  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.2.2 Cost   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.2.3 Cost Included in Contract Sum
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.8.2.4 Contract Sum Adjustment
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.9 CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION 
SCHEDULES  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.9.1 Requirements  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.9.2 FAILURE TO MEET REQUIREMENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 

3.10 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT 
THE SITE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 

3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT 
DATA, AND SAMPLES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 

1030



3.11.1 SUBMITTALS DEFINED
 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 

3.11.1.1 Shop  Drawings  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 

3.11.1.2 Samples   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.8 

3.11.1.3 Contractor’s Responsibility
 Error! Bookmark not defined.8 

3.11.1.4 Extent of Review   ........... 19 
3.11.2 DRAWING SUBMISSION PROCEDURE ... 19 

3.11.2.1 Transmittal Letter and Other 
Requirements   ........... 19 

3.11.2.2 Copies Required   ........... 19 
3.11.2.3 Corrections   ........... 19 
3.11.2.4 Approval Prior to  
   Commencement of Work  ........... 20 

3.11.3 SAMPLE SUBMISSIONS PROCEDURE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

3.11.3.1 Samples Required 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

3.11.3.2 Labels and Instructions 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

3.11.3.3 Architect’s Review 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

3.11.3.4 Record Drawings and Annotated 
Specifications  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

3.11.3.5 Equipment Manuals 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

3.11.3.6 Owner’s Property  ........... 21 
3.11.4 SUBSTITUTIONS 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.11.4.1 One Product Specified 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.11.4.2 Two or More Products Specified  

Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
3.11.4.3 Substitution Request Form

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
 
3.11.4.4 List of Manufacturers and  
  Products Required  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
3.11.5 DEFERRED APPROVALS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
3.12 CUTTING AND PATCHING

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

3.12.1 SCOPE   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

3.12.2 CONSENT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.12.3 STRUCTURAL MEMBERS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.12.4 Subsequent Removal
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.13 CLEANING UP
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.13.1 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

3.13.2 FAILURE TO CLEANUP
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.13.3 CONSTRUCTION BUILDINGS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.14 ACCESS TO WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.15 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.15.1 PAYMENT AND INDEMNITY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.15.2 REVIEW  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.16 INDEMNIFICATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.16.1 SCOPE: CONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

3.16.2 SCOPE: SUBCONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

3.16.2.1 Indemnity  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

3.16.2.2 Joint and Several Liability
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

3.16.3 NO LIMITATION 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

3.17 OWNER AS INTENDED 
BENEFICIARY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

3.18 NOTICE OF EXCUSE FOR 
NONPERFORMANCE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

3.19   RECOVERY OF DAMAGES  
 FROM OWNER   27 
3.20 USE OF FEDERAL FUNDS  27 
ARTICLE 4:  ADMINISTRATION OF  

1031



 THE CONTRACT
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

4.1 ARCHITECT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

4.1.1 DEFINITION   .................................. 30 
4.1.2 MODIFICATION  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.1.3 TERMINATION  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.2 ARCHITECT’S ADMINISTRATION  
 OF THE CONTRACT

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.2.1 STATUS  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.2.2 SITE VISITS  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.2.3 Limitations of Construction 

Responsibility  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

4.2.4 Communications Facilitating Contract 
Administration 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

4.2.5 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

4.2.6 REJECTION OF WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

4.2.7 CHANGE ORDERS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

4.2.8 WARRANTIES UPON COMPLETION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.2.9 INTERPRETATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.2.10 ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.2.10.1 Architect’s Interpretations and 
Decisions   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.2.10.2 Typical Parts and Sections
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.2.10.3 Dimensions  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

4.3 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

4.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
ADDITIONAL CHARGES INCURRED 
BY THE OWNER FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

4.5 NOTICES OF POTENTIAL CHANGE, 
CHANGE ORDER REQUESTS, AND 
CLAIMS  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

4.5.1 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CHANGE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

4.5.2 CHANGE ORDERS REQUESTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

4.5.3 DEFINITION OF CLAIM
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

4.5.4 Time for Submitting Claim;  
 WAIVER  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 
4.5.5 CONTENT OF CLAIM

 Error! Bookmark not defined.8 
4.5.5.1 Claim Format; Waiver

 Error! Bookmark not defined.8 
4.5.5.2 Claims for Additional Money ............ 39 
4.5.5.3 Claims for Additional Time .............. 39 
4.5.5.3.1 Notice of Extent of Claim  ........... 39 
4.5.5.3.2 Unusually Severe Weather  
  Claims   ................................. 40 
4.5.5.4 Pass Through Claims

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
4.5.6 Procedures for Claims (Public  
 Contract Code section 9204)

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
4.5.6.1 Claims   

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
4.5.6.2 Meet and Confer

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
4.5.6.3 Government Code Claim

 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 
4.5.7 Continuing Contract  
 PERFORMANCE  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 
4.5.8 Claims for Concealed or Unknown 

Conditions  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

4.5.8.1 Trenches or Excavations Less Than  
 Four Feet Below the Surface

 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 
4.5.8.2 Trenches or Excavations Greater  

1032



 Than Four Feet Below the Surface
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

4.5.9 INJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSON OR 
PROPERTY  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

ARTICLE 5:  SUBCONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.1 DEFINITIONS 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.1.1 SUBCONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.1.2 SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.1.3 SPECIALTY CONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS  
 AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR 

PORTIONS OF THE WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

5.2.1 Assignment or Substitution -  
 CONSENT OF OWNER

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
5.2.2 GROUNDS FOR SUBSTITUTION

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
5.2.2.1 No Change in Contract 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 
5.2.2.2 Substitution Due to Clerical  
  Error    

 Error! Bookmark not defined.7 
5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

      .................................. 47 
5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF 

SUBCONTRACTS ............................ 48 
5.5 SUBCONTRACTOR’S 

RESPONSIBILITIES ........................ 48 
5.5.1 SUPERVISION BY SUBCONTRACTORS .. 48 
5.5.2 DISCIPLINE AND ORDER ...................... 48 
5.5.3 DEFECTS DISCOVERED ........................ 49 
5.5.4 SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION ........ 49 
5.5.5 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES .................. 49 
5.5.6 CHARGES TO SUBCONTRACTOR .......... 49 
5.5.7 FINES IMPOSED  .................................. 49 
5.5.8 PROJECT SIGNS  .................................. 50 
5.5.9 REMEDIES FOR FAILURE TO PERFORM

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

5.5.10 DISPUTES NOT TO AFFECT WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

5.5.11 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

5.5.12 COMPLIANCE WITH PROCEDURES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

5.5.13 ON-SITE RECORD KEEPING
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

5.5.14 NON-EXCLUSIVE OBLIGATIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

ARTICLE 6:  CONSTRUCTION BY  
 OWNER OR BY SEPARATE 

CONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

6.1 OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM 
CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD 
SEPARATE CONTRACTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

6.1.1 OWNER’S RIGHTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

6.1.2 DESIGNATION AS CONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

6.1.3 CONTRACTOR DUTIES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

6.1.4 OWNER OBLIGATIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

6.2.1 DELIVERY AND STORAGE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

6.2.2 NOTICE BY CONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

6.2.3 COSTS INCURRED
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

6.2.4 CORRECTION OF DAMAGE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

6.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

ARTICLE 7:  CHANGES IN THE WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

7.1 CHANGES  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

7.1.1 No Changes Without Authorization
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

7.1.2 Authority to Order Minor  

1033



 CHANGES  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

7.2 CHANGE ORDERS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE 
DIRECTIVES ("CCD”)
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

7.3.1 DEFINITION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

7.3.2 USE TO DIRECT CHANGE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

7.4 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION  
 ("RFI”)  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
7.4.1 DEFINITION  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
7.4.2 SCOPE   

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
7.4.3 RESPONSE TIME 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
7.4.4 COSTS INCURRED

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
7.5 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ("RFP”)

     
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

7.5.1 DEFINITION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

7.5.2 SCOPE   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

7.6 CHANGE ORDER REQUEST  
 ("COR”)  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
7.6.1 DEFINITION  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
7.6.2 CHANGES IN PRICE

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
7.6.3 CHANGES IN TIME

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
7.7 PRICE OF CHANGE ORDERS ........ 57 
7.7.1 SCOPE    .................................. 57 
7.7.2 DETERMINATION OF COST .................. 57 
7.7.3 FORMAT FOR PROPOSED COST  
 CHANG    .................................. 59 
7.7.4 DISCOUNTS, REBATES, AND REFUNDS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

7.7.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

7.7.6 NOTICE REQUIRED
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

7.7.7 APPLICABILITY TO SUBCONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

7.8 Waiver of Right to Claim Money  
 OR TIME  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
ARTICLE 8:  TIME  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
8.1 DEFINITIONS 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
8.1.1 CONTRACT TIME

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
8.1.2 NOTICE TO PROCEED

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
8.1.3 DAYS   

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
8.2 HOURS OF WORK

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
8.2.1 SUFFICIENT FORCES

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
8.2.2 Performance During Working  
 HOURS   

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
8.2.3 LABOR CODE APPLICATION

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
8.2.4 COSTS FOR AFTER HOURS  
 INSPECTIONS   ................................. 62 
8.2.5 TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT BY 

SUBCONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

8.3 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

8.3.1 TIME OF THE ESSENCE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

8.3.2 NO COMMENCEMENT WITHOUT 
INSURANCE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

8.3.3 EXPEDITIOUS COMPLETION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

8.4 EXTENSIONS OF TIME - 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

1034



8.4.1 Conditions Allowing for Extensions of 
Time to Complete the Work Only 
(Excusable Delay)  ............................. 64 

8.4.2 Compensable Delay (Time and  
 Money)   .................................. 64 
 8.4.3  Notice by Contractor Required; 

Procedures for Demanding Additional 
Time or Money 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

8.4.4 EARLY COMPLETION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

8.4.5 Liquidated Damages .......................... 65 
8.5 GOVERNMENT APPROVALS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 
ARTICLE 9:  PAYMENTS AND 

COMPLETION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

9.1 CONTRACT SUM
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

9.2 COST BREAKDOWN
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

9.2.1 REQUIRED INFORMATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

9.2.2 OWNER ACCEPTANCE REQUIRED ........ 66 
9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT .. 67 
9.3.1 PROCEDURE   .................................. 67 
9.3.2 PURCHASE OF MATERIALS AND 

EQUIPMENT   .................................. 68 
9.3.3 WARRANTY OF TITLE ......................... 68 
9.4  REVIEW OF PROGRESS PAYMENT .. 68 
9.4.1 OWNER ACCEPTANCE ......................... 68 
9.4.2 OWNER’S REVIEW .............................. 68 
9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD 

PAYMENT   .................................. 69 
9.5.1 REASONS TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT .... 69 
9.5.2 PAYMENT AFTER CURE

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
9.5.3 OVERPAYMENT AND/OR FAILURE TO 

WITHHOLD  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

9.6.1 PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

9.6.2 PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

9.6.3 Percentage of Completion or  
 Payment Information

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
9.6.4 No Obligation of Owner for 

Subcontractor Payment
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.6.5 PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.6.6 Payment Not Constituting Approval or 
Acceptance  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.6.7 JOINT CHECKS  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.7 COMPLETION OF THE WORK
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.7.1 CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

9.7.2 COSTS OF MULTIPLE INSPECTIONS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

9.8 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

9.9 FINAL PROGRESS PAYMENT AND 
RELEASE OF RETENTION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

9.9.1 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PROGRESS 
PAYMENT   ................................. 75 

9.9.2 Procedures for Application for Final 
Progress Payment
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

9.9.3 RELEASE OF RETAINAGE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

9.10 SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 

ARTICLE 10:  PROTECTION OF  
 PERSONS AND PROPERTY .......... 77 
10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND 

PROGRAMS   ................................. 77 
10.1.1 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY .......... 7 
10.1.2 SUBCONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY .... 77 
10.1.3 COOPERATION   ................................. 77 
10.1.4 ACCIDENT REPORTS ........................... 77 
10.1.5 FIRST-AID SUPPLIES AT SITE .............. 77 
10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND 

PROPERTY   ................................. 78 
10.2.1 THE CONTRACTOR ............................. 78 
10.2.2 CONTRACTOR NOTICES ...................... 78 

1035



10.2.3 SAFETY BARRIERS AND SAFEGUARDS 78 
10.2.4 USE OR STORAGE OF HAZARDOUS 

MATERIAL   .................................. 78 
10.3 PROTECTION OF WORK AND 

PROPERTY   .................................. 78 
10.3.1 Protection  of Work ........................... 78 
10.3.2 PROTECTION FOR ELEMENTS .............. 79 
10.3.3 SHORING AND STRUCTURAL LOADING 79 
10.3.4 CONFORMANCE WITHIN ESTABLISHED 

LIMITS    .................................. 79 
10.3.5 SUBCONTRACTOR ENFORCEMENT OF 

RULES    .................................. 79 
10.3.6 SITE ACCESS   .................................. 80 
10.3.7 PROTECTION OF MATERIALS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.4 EMERGENCIES

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.4.1 EMERGENCY ACTION

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.4.2 ACCIDENT REPORTS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.5 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.5.1 Discovery of Hazardous  
 MATERIALS  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
10.5.2 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL WORK 

LIMITATIONS  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

10.5.3 Indemnification By Owner for 
Hazardous Material Not Caused by 
Contractor   .................................. 81 

10.5.4 NATURALLY OCCURRING ASBESTOS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

10.5.5 Indemnification by Contractor for 
Hazardous Material Caused by 
Contractor  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

10.5.6 TERMS OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL 
PROVISION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

10.5.7 ARCHEOLOGICAL MATERIALS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

ARTICLE 11:  INSURANCE AND  
 BONDS  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

11.1 CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY 
INSURANCE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

11.1.1 Liability Insurance  
 REQUIREMENTS 

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
11.1.2 SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE 

REQUIREMENTS 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

11.1.3 OWNER’S INSURANCE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

11.1.4 Additional Insured Endorsement 
Requirements  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

11.1.5 Workers’ Compensation  
 INSURANCE  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 
11.1.6 Builder’s Risk/"All Risk"  
 Insurance   ................................. 84    
11.1.6.1 Course-of-Construction Insurance 

Requirements   ................................. 84 
11.1.7 Consent of Insurer for Partial  
 Occupancy or Use

 Error! Bookmark not defined.6 
11.1.8 FIRE INSURANCE ................................ 86 
11.1.9 OTHER INSURANCE ............................ 86 
11.1.10 Proof of Carriage of  
   INSURANCE   ................................. 86 
11.1.11 COMPLIANCE ................................. 87 
11.2 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT 

BONDS   ................................. 87 
11.2.1 BOND REQUIREMENTS ....................... 87 
11.2.2 SURETY QUALIFICATION .................... 87 
ARTICLE 12:  UNCOVERING AND 

CORRECTION OF WORK .............. 88 
12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK ............. 88 
12.1.1 UNCOVERING WORK FOR REQUIRED 

INSPECTIONS   ................................. 88 
12.1.2 Costs for Inspections not  
 REQUIRED   ................................. 88 
12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK; 

WARRANTY   ................................. 88 
12.2.1 CORRECTION OF REJECTED WORK ..... 88 
12.2.2 Removal of Nonconforming WORK .. 88 
12.2.3 Owner’s Rights if Contractor  
 FAILS TO CORRECT ............................ 88 

1036



12.2.4 COST OF CORRECTING THE WORK ...... 89 
12.2.5 WARRANTY CORRECTIONS ................. 89 
12.2.6 NO TIME LIMITATION ......................... 89 
12.3 NONCONFORMING WORK AND 

WITHHOLDING THE VALUE  
 OF IT    .................................. 89 
ARTICLE 13: MISCELLANEOUS 

PROVISIONS  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

13.1 GOVERNING LAW
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

13.3 WRITTEN NOTICE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 

13.4.1 Duties and Obligations 
 CUMULATIVE  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
13.4.2 NO WAIVER  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.0 
13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
13.5.1 COMPLIANCE  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
13.5.2 INDEPENDENT TESTING LABORATORY

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
13.5.3 ADVANCE NOTICE TO INSPECTOR OF 

RECORD  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.5.4 TESTING OFF-SITE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.5.5 ADDITIONAL TESTING OR INSPECTION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.5.6 COSTS FOR RETESTING
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.5.7 COSTS FOR PREMATURE TEST
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.5.8 TESTS OR INSPECTIONS NOT TO  
 DELAY WORK  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
13.6 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
13.7 TRENCH EXCAVATION

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.7.1TRENCHES GREATER THAN FIVE FEET
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.7.2 EXCAVATION SAFETY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 

13.7.3 NO TORT LIABILITY OF OWNER
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.7.4 NO EXCAVATION WITHOUT PERMITS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.8 WAGE RATES 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.8.1 WAGE RATES  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.8.2 HOLIDAY AND OVERTIME PAY
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.8.3 WAGE RATES NOT AFFECTED BY 
SUBCONTRACTS 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

13.8.4 Change in Prevailing Wage During Bid 
or Construction 
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

13.8.5 FORFEITURE AND PAYMENTS
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

13.8.6 MINIMUM WAGE RATES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

13.8.7 PER DIEM WAGES
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

13.8.8 Posting of Wage Rates and Other 
Required Job Site Notices
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

13.9 RECORD OF WAGES PAID: 
INSPECTION  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

13.9.1 APPLICATION OF LABOR CODE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

13.10 APPRENTICES ................................ 97 
13.10.1 APPRENTICE WAGES AND 

DEFINITIONS   ................................. 97 
13.10.2 APPRENTICE LABOR POOL ............. 97 
13.10.3 Journeyman/Apprentice Ratio; 

Computation of Hours .................. 98 
13.10.4 JOURNEYMAN/APPRENTICE RATIO 98 

13.10.4.1 Apprenticeable Craft or Trade .. 98 
13.10.5 RATIO EXEMPTION ........................ 99 
13.10.6 APPRENTICE FUND ........................ 99 
13.10.7 PRIME CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE 99 

1037



13.10.8 Decisions of Joint Apprenticeship 
Committee   .................................. 99 

13.10.9 NO BIAS   .................................. 100 
13.10.10 VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE .......... 100 
13.11  ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST 

CLAIMS   
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.11.1 APPLICATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.11.2 ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIM
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.12 AUDIT  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 

13.13 STORM WATER DISCHARGE  
 PERMIT  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.1 
ARTICLE 14:  TERMINATION OR 

SUSPENSION OF THE  
 CONTRACT  

 Error! Bookmark not defined.2 
14.1 TERMINATION BY THE 

CONTRACTOR FOR CAUSE ......... 102 
14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER 

FOR CAUSE   .................................. 102 
14.2.1 Grounds for Termination ................... 102 
14.2.2 NOTIFICATION OF TERMINATION

 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

14.2.3 Payments Withheld ........................... 103 
14.2.4 Payments Upon Completion ............. 103 
14.2.5 Inclusion of Termination for 

Convenience  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

14.3 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION 
BY THE OWNER FOR 
CONVENIENCE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

14.3.1 SUSPENSION BY OWNER
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

14.3.1.1 Adjustments  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

14.3.1.2 Adjustments for Fixed Cost
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

14.3.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR 
CONVENIENCE  
 Error! Bookmark not defined.4 

14.4 NOT A WAIVER
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

14.5 MUTUAL TERMINATION FOR 
CONVENIENCE
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

14.6 EARLY TERMINATION
 Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1038



 
 
 
 
 
 

1039



ARTICLE 1 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS 
 
 1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

The “Contract Documents” consist of the Agreement between Owner and Contractor 
(hereinafter the Agreement), Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, addenda issued prior to bid, Instructions to Bidders, 
Notice to Bidders, the Bid Form, Payment Bond, Performance Bond, required insurance 
certificates, additional insured endorsement and declarations page, Designation of 
Subcontractors, Noncollusion Declaration, Roof Project Certification (where applicable), 
Sufficient Funds Declaration (Labor Code section 2810) and other documents referred to in the 
Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of the Agreement.  A Modification is a 
written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, a Change Order, a Construction 
Change Directive, or a written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Owner.  The 
Contract Documents are complementary, and each obligation of the Contractor, Subcontractors, 
material or equipment suppliers in any one shall be binding as if specified in all. 
 
 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT 
 
The Contract Documents form the Contract.  The “Contract” represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or 
agreements, either written or oral.  The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written 
Modification.  The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual 
relationship of any kind between the Architect and Contractor, any Construction Manager and 
Contractor, between the Owner and any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, or between any 
persons or entities other than the Owner and the Contractor.  The terms of the Contract shall not 
be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by 
written agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the City Council.   
 
 1.1.3 THE WORK 
 
The “Work” shall include all labor, materials, services and equipment necessary for the 
Contractor to fulfill all of its obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents, including but not 
limited to punch list items and submission of documents.  It shall include the initial obligation of 
any Contractor or Subcontractor, who performs any portion of the Work, to visit the Site of the 
proposed Work with Owner’s representatives, a continuing obligation after the commencement 
of the Work to fully acquaint and familiarize itself with the conditions as they exist and the 
character of the operations to be carried on under the Contract Documents, and make such 
investigation as it may see fit so that it shall fully understand the facilities, physical conditions, 
and restrictions attending the Work under the Contract Documents.  Each such Contractor or 
Subcontractor shall also thoroughly examine and become familiar with the Drawings, 
Specifications, and associated bid documents.  The “Site” refers to the grounds of the Project as 

1040



defined in the Contract Documents and such adjacent lands as may be directly affected by the 
performance of the Work.  The Work shall constitute a “work of improvement” under Civil Code 
section 8050 and Public Contract Code section 7107. 
 
 1.1.4 THE PROJECT 
 
The “Project” is the total construction of the Work performed in accordance with the Contract 
Documents.  However, where applicable, the Project may also include construction by the Owner 
or by separate contractors. 
 
 1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS 
 
The “Drawings” are graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents prepared for the 
Project and approved changes thereto, wherever located and whenever issued, showing the 
design, location, and scope of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, 
schedules, and diagrams as drawn or approved by the Architect. 
 
 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS 
 
The “Specifications” are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written 
requirements for material, equipment, construction systems, instructions, quality assurance 
standards, workmanship, and performance of related services. 
 
 1.1.7 THE PROJECT MANUAL 
 
The “Project Manual” is the volume usually assembled for the Work which may include, without 
limitation, the bidding requirements, sample forms, Agreement, Conditions of the Contract, and 
Specifications. 
 
 1.1.8 OR 
 
“Or” shall include “and/or.” 
 
 1.1.9 COMPLETION  
 
Statutory definitions of “Completion” and “Complete” shall apply for those statutory purposes.  
For all other purposes, including accrual of liquidated damages, Claims and warranties, 
“Completion” and “Complete” mean the point in the Work where (1) Contractor has fully and 
correctly performed all Work in all parts and requirements, including corrective and punch list 
work, and (2) Owner’s representatives have conducted a final inspection that confirmed this 
performance.  Substantial, or any other form of partial or non-compliant, performance shall not 
constitute “Completion” or “Complete” under the Contract Documents, except to the extent that 
substantial completion is required for a milestone deadline. 
 

1041



  1.1.10  COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
For purposes of accrual of liquidated damages for delays to the Project, completion shall mean 
the point in the Project where (1) all contractors and Owner have fully and correctly performed 
all work of the entire Project in all parts and requirements, including corrective and punch list 
work, and (2) Owner’s representatives have conducted a final inspection of the entire Project that 
confirmed this performance.  Substantial, or any other form of partial or non-compliant, 
performance of the entire Project shall not constitute completion or complete. 
 
1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION AND INTENT 
 
 1.2.1 CORRELATION AND INTENT 
 
  1.2.1.1 Documents Complementary and Inclusive.  The Contract Documents are 
complementary and are intended to include all items required for the proper execution and 
Completion of the Work.  Any item of work mentioned in the Specifications and not shown on 
the Drawings, or shown on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be 
provided by Contractor as if shown or mentioned in both. 
 
  1.2.1.2 Coverage of the Drawings and Specifications.  The Drawings and 
Specifications generally describe the work to be performed by Contractor.  Generally, the 
Specifications describe work which cannot be readily indicated on the Drawings and indicate 
types, qualities, and methods of installation of the various materials and equipment required for 
the Work.  It is not intended to mention every item of Work in the Specifications, which can be 
adequately shown on the Drawings, or to show on the Drawings all items of Work described or 
required by the Specifications even if they are of such nature that they could have been shown.  
All materials or labor for Work, which is shown on the Drawings or the Specifications (or is 
reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to Complete the Work), shall be provided by 
the Contractor whether or not the Work is expressly covered in the Drawings or the 
Specifications.  It is intended that the Work be of sound, quality construction, and the Contractor 
shall be responsible for the inclusion of adequate amounts to cover installation of all items 
indicated, described, or implied in the portion of the Work to be performed by Contractor. 
 

 1.2.1.3 Conflicts.  Without limiting Contractor’s obligation to identify conflicts 
for resolution by the Owner, it is intended that the more stringent, higher quality, and greater 
quantity of Work shall apply.  
 
  1.2.1.4 Conformance With Laws.  Each and every provision of law required by 
law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and the Contract shall 
be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any 
such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon application of either party 
the Contract shall be amended in writing to make such insertion or correction. 
 
 Before commencing any portion of the Work, Contractor shall check and review the 
Drawings and Specifications for such portion for conformance and compliance with all laws, 
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations of all governmental authorities and public utilities 

1042



affecting the construction and operation of the physical plant of the Project, all quasi-
governmental and other regulations affecting the construction and operation of the physical plant 
of the Project, and other special requirements, if any, designated in the Contract Documents.  In 
the event Contractor observes any violation of any law, ordinance, code, rule or regulation, or 
inconsistency with any such restrictions or special requirements of the Contract Documents, 
Contractor shall promptly notify Architect and Owner in writing of same and shall ensure that 
any such violation or inconsistency shall be corrected in the manner provided hereunder prior to 
the construction of that portion of the Work.  Where requirements of the Contract Documents 
exceed those of the applicable building codes and ordinances, the Contract Documents shall 
govern.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws. 
 
 If, as and to the extent that Public Contract Code section 1104 is deemed to apply after 
the award of the Contract, Contractor shall not be required to assume responsibility for the 
completeness and accuracy of architectural or engineering plans and specifications, 
notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract Documents, except to the extent that 
Contractor discovered or should have discovered and reported any errors and omissions to the 
Architect and Owner, including but not limited to as the result of any review of the plans and 
specifications by Contractor required by the Instructions to Bidders or other Contract 
Documents, whether or not actually performed by Contractor. 
 
  1.2.1.5 Ambiguity.  Before commencing any portion of the Work, Contractor shall 
carefully examine all Drawings and Specifications and other information given to Contractor as 
to materials and methods of construction and other Project requirements.  Contractor shall 
immediately notify Architect and Owner in writing of any perceived or alleged error, 
inconsistency, ambiguity, or lack of detail or explanation in the Drawings and Specifications in 
the manner provided herein.  If the Contractor or its Subcontractors, material or equipment 
suppliers, or any of their officers, agents, and employees performs, permits, or causes the 
performance of any Work under the Contract Documents, which it knows or should have known 
to be in error, inconsistent, or ambiguous, or not sufficiently detailed or explained, Contractor 
shall bear any and all costs arising therefrom including, without limitation, the cost of correction 
thereof without increase or adjustment to the Contract Sum or the time for performance.  If 
Contractor performs, permits, or causes the performance of any Work under the Contract 
Documents prepared by or on behalf of Contractor which is in error, inconsistent or ambiguous, 
or not sufficiently detailed or explained, Contractor shall bear any and all resulting costs, 
including, without limitation, the cost of correction, without increase to or adjustment in the 
Contract Sum or the time for performance.  In no case shall any Subcontractor proceed with the 
Work if uncertain without the Contractor’s written direction and/or approval. 
 
  1.2.1.6 Execution.  Execution of the Agreement Between Owner and Contractor 
by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the Site, become familiar 
with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed and has correlated personal 
observations with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 

1043



 1.2.2 ADDENDA AND DEFERRED APPROVALS 
 
  1.2.2.1 Addenda.  Subsequent addenda issued shall govern over prior addenda 
only to the extent specified.   
 
  1.2.2.2 Deferred Approvals.  The requirements approved by the the relevant 
government agency on any item submitted as a deferred approval in accordance with Title 24, 
California Code of Regulations, shall take precedence over any previously issued addenda, 
drawing or specification. 
 
 1.2.3 SPECIFICATION INTERPRETATION 
 
  1.2.3.1 Titles.  The Specifications are separated into titled sections for 
convenience only and not to dictate or determine the trade or craft involved.  Organization of the 
Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not 
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent 
of work to be performed by any trade. 
 
  1.2.3.2 As Shown, Etc.  Where “as shown,” “as indicated,” “as detailed,” or 
words of similar import are used, reference is made to the Drawings accompanying the 
Specifications unless otherwise stated.  Where “as directed,” “as required,” “as permitted,” “as 
authorized,” “as accepted,” “as selected,” or words of similar import are used, the direction, 
requirement, permission, authorization, approval, acceptance, or selection by Architect is 
intended unless otherwise stated. 
 
  1.2.3.3 Provide.  “Provide” means “provided complete in place,” that is, 
furnished, installed, tested, and ready for operation and use. 
 
  1.2.3.4 General Conditions.  The General Conditions and any supplementary 
general conditions are a part of each and every section of the Specifications. 
 
  1.2.3.5 Abbreviations.  In the interest of brevity, the Specifications are written in 
an abbreviated form and may not include complete sentences.  Omission of words or phrases 
such as “Contractor shall,” “shall be,” etc., are intentional. Nevertheless, the requirements of the 
Specifications are mandatory.  Omitted words or phrases shall be supplied by inference in the 
same manner as they are when a “note” occurs on the Drawings. 
 
  1.2.3.6 Plural.  Words in the singular shall include the plural whenever applicable 
or the context so indicates. 
 
  1.2.3.7 Metric.  The Specifications may indicate metric units of measurement as a 
supplement to U.S. customary units.  When indicated thus:  1” (25 mm), the U. S. customary unit 
is specific, and the metric unit is nonspecific.  When not shown with parentheses, the unit is 
specific.  The metric units correspond to the “International System of Units” (SI) and generally 
follow ASTM E 380, “Standard for Metric Practice.” 
 

1044



  1.2.3.8 Standard Specifications.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Any reference to standard specifications of any society, institute, association, or governmental 
authority is a reference to the organization’s standard specifications, which are in effect as of the 
date the Notice to Bidders is first published.  If applicable specifications are revised prior to 
completion of any part of the Work, the Contractor may, if acceptable to Owner and Architect, 
perform such Work in accordance with the revised specifications.  The standard specifications, 
except as modified in the Specifications for the Project, shall have full force and effect as though 
printed in the Specifications.  Architect will furnish, upon request, information as to how copies 
of the standard specifications referred to may be obtained. 
 
  1.2.3.9 Absence of Modifiers.  In the interest of brevity, the Contract Documents 
frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and articles such as “the” and “an,” but 
the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is not 
intended to affect the interpretation of either statement. 
 
1.3 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF ARCHITECT’S DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS 

AND OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared on behalf of the Owner are 
instruments of the services of the Architect and its consultants and are the property of the Owner.  
The Contractor may retain one contract record set.  Neither the Contractor nor any 
Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a 
copyright in the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect, and 
unless otherwise indicated the Architect shall be deemed the author of them.  All copies of them, 
except the Contractor’s record set, shall be returned or suitably accounted for to the Owner, upon 
request upon Completion of the Work.  The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents 
prepared by the Architect, and copies thereof furnished to the Contractor, are for use solely with 
respect to this Contract.  They are not to be used by the Contractor or any Subcontractor, Sub-
subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier on other contracts or projects or for additions to 
this Contract or Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the 
Owner and the Architect.  The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or 
equipment suppliers are granted a limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the 
Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect appropriate to and for 
use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.  Submittal or distribution to 
meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with this Project is not 
to be construed as publication in derogation of the Owner’s property interest or other reserved 
right.  All copies made under this license shall bear appropriate attribution and the statutory 
copyright notice, if any, shown on the Drawings, Specifications and other documents prepared 
by the Architect. 
 

1045



ARTICLE 2 
 

OWNER 
 
2.1 DEFINITION 
 
The term “Owner” means the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred 
to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.  The term “Owner” means the 
Owner and/or the Owner’s authorized representatives, including but not limited to architects and 
construction managers.  To the extent the Contract Documents indicate that Owner has assigned 
duties to particular representatives of the Owner (such as the Architect, or any construction 
manager), Owner reserves the right at all times to reassign such duties to different Owner 
representatives. 
 
2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER 
 
 2.2.1 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 2.2.2 SITE SURVEY 
 
When required by the scope of the Project, the Owner will furnish, at its expense, a legal 
description or a land survey of the Site, giving, as applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, 
pavements, adjoining property, rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, 
deed restrictions, boundaries, and contours of the Site.  Surveys to determine locations of 
construction, grading, and Site work shall be provided by the Contractor. 
 
 2.2.3 SOILS 
 
  2.2.3.1 Owner Furnished Services.  When required by the scope of the Project, 
the Owner will furnish, at its expense, the services of geotechnical engineers or consultants when 
reasonably required or as required by local or state codes.  Such services with reports and 
appropriate professional recommendations shall include test boring, test pits, soil bearing values, 
percolation tests, air and water pollution tests, and ground corrosion and resistivity tests, 
including necessary operations for determining subsoil, air, and water conditions. 
 
  2.2.3.2 Contractor Reliance.  Test borings and soils reports for the Project have 
been made for the Owner to indicate the subsurface materials that might be encountered at 
particular locations on the Project.  The Owner has made these documents available to the 
Contractor and the Contractor has studied the results of such test borings and information that it 
has as to the subsurface conditions and Site geology as set forth in the test borings and soils 
reports.  The Owner does not assume any responsibility whatsoever with respect to the 
sufficiency or accuracy of the borings made, or of the logs of the test borings, or of other 
investigations, or of the soils reports furnished pursuant hereto, or of the interpretations to be 
made beyond the location or depth of the borings.  There is no warranty or guarantee, either 
express or implied that the conditions indicated by such investigations, borings, logs, soil reports 
or other information are representative of those existing throughout the Site of the Project, or any 

1046



part thereof, or that unforeseen developments may not occur.  At the Owner’s request, the 
Contractor shall make available to the Owner the results of any Site investigation, test borings, 
analyses, studies or other tests conducted by or in the possession of the Contractor of any of its 
agents.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a waiver by the Contractor to pursue any 
available legal right or remedy it may have at any time against any third party who may have 
prepared any report and/or test relied upon by the Contractor. 
 
 2.2.4 UTILITY SURVEY 
 
When required by the scope of the Project, the Owner will furnish, at its expense, all information 
regarding known existing utilities on or adjacent to the Site, including location, size, inverts, and 
depths. 
 
 2.2.5 INFORMATION  
 
Upon the request of the Contractor, Owner will make available such existing information 
regarding utility services and Site features, including existing construction, related to the Project 
as is available from Owner’s records.  The Contractor may not rely upon the accuracy of any 
such information, other than that provided under Sections 2.2.2 and 2.2.4 (except that the 
Contractor may not rely upon and must question in writing to the Owner and the Architect any 
information which appears incorrect based upon Contractor’s Site inspection, knowledge of the 
Work and Project, and prior experience with similar projects), unless specifically stated in 
writing that the Contractor may rely upon the designated information. 
 
 2.2.6 EXISTING UTILITY LINES; REMOVAL, RELOCATION 
 
  2.2.6.1 Removal, Relocation.  Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, the 
Owner assumes the responsibility for removal, relocation, and protection of utilities located on 
the Site at the time of commencement of construction under this Contract with respect to any 
such utility facilities which are not identified in the drawings and specifications made part of the 
invitation to bid.  The Contractor shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in 
Completion of the Work caused by failure of the Owner to provide for removal or relocation of 
such utility facilities.  Owner shall compensate the Contractor for the costs of locating, repairing 
damage not due to the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care, removing or 
relocating such utility facilities, and for equipment necessarily idle during such work. 
 
  2.2.6.2 Assessment.  These subparagraphs shall not be construed to preclude 
assessment against the Contractor for any other delays in Completion of the Work.  Nothing in 
these subparagraphs shall be deemed to require the Owner to indicate the presence of existing 
service laterals or appurtenances whenever the presence of such utilities on the Site can be 
inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, such as buildings, or meter junction boxes 
on or adjacent to the Site. 
 
  2.2.6.3 Notification.  If the Contractor, while performing work under this 
Contract, discovers utility facilities not identified by the Owner in the Contract plans or 
specifications, Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner and the utility in writing. 

1047



 
  2.2.6.4 Underground Utility Clearance.  It shall be Contractor’s sole 
responsibility to timely notify all public and private utilities serving the Site prior to commencing 
work.  The Contractor shall notify and receive clearance from any cooperative agency, such as 
Underground Service Alert, in accordance with Government Code section 4216, et seq.  
Contractor shall promptly provide a copy of all such notifications to the Owner. 
 
 2.2.7 EASEMENTS 
 
Owner shall secure and pay for easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in 
existing facilities, if any, unless otherwise specified in the Contract or Contract Documents. 
 
 2.2.8 REASONABLE PROMPTNESS 
 
Information or services under Owner’s control will be furnished by the Owner with reasonable 
promptness.  The Owner shall not be liable for any delays caused by factors beyond the Owner’s 
control including any other local, State or federal agency’s review of bids, change order requests, 
RFI’s or any other documents. 
 
 2.2.9 COPIES FURNISHED 
 
The Contractor will be furnished such copies of Drawings and Project Manuals as are stated in 
the Contract Documents. 
 
 2.2.10 DUTIES CUMULATIVE 
 
The foregoing are in addition to other duties and responsibilities of the Owner enumerated 
herein, and especially those in Article 6 (Construction by Owner or by Separate Contractors), 
Article 9 (Payments and Completion), and Article 11 (Insurance and Bonds). 
 
2.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK 
 
If the Contractor fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents, or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the Owner may order the Contractor to stop the Work or any portion thereof, until 
the Contractor corrects the deficiencies.  Contractor shall not be entitled to a time extension for 
any delays caused by such order.  The right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a 
duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other 
person or entity, except to the extent required by Article 6. 
 
2.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK 
 
If the Contractor fails or refuses to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, Owner may correct such deficiencies by whatever reasonable method the Owner 
may deem expedient without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, including but not 
limited to having another contractor perform some or all of the Work without terminating the 

1048



Contract with Contractor.  Owner may exercise this right at any time during the Contractor’s 
Work.   
 
Owner shall first provide written notice to Contractor of Contractor’s failure or refusal to 
perform.  The notice will provide the time period within which Contractor must begin correction 
of the failure or refusal to perform.  If the Contractor fails to begin correction within the stated 
time, or fails to continue correction, the Owner may proceed to correct the deficiencies.  In the 
event the Owner bids the work, Contractor shall not be eligible for the award of the contract.  
The Contractor may be invoiced the cost to Owner of the work, including compensation for 
additional professional and internally generated services and expenses made necessary by 
Contractor’s failure or refusal to perform.  Owner may withhold that amount from the retention, 
or progress payments due the Contractor, pursuant to Section 9.5.  If retention and payments 
withheld then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover that amount, the 
Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.  
 

ARTICLE 3 
 

THE CONTRACTOR 
 

3.1 DEFINITION 
 

The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to 
throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.  The term “Contractor” means the 
Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.  To the extent that any portion of the 
Work is provided with the Contractor’s own forces, any reference to Subcontractors shall be 
equally applicable to the Contractor.  
 
3.2 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES 
 
 3.2.1 CONTRACTOR 
 
The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor’s best skill and 
attention, which shall meet or exceed the standards in the industry. The Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
procedures, and coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless Contract 
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.   
 
If part of the Project is performed by other contractors that Owner directly retains, Owner shall 
schedule and coordinate the activities of Contractor with the other contractors.  Contractor agrees 
to accept the Owner’s construction schedules, schedule updates, overall sequence and 
coordination of construction for the Project.   
 
Contractor realizes that work by other contractors or Owner may occur simultaneously with 
Contractor’s Work in any given area.  Contractor is responsible for its own sequences that may 
occur within a given activity or set of activities.  Contractor shall not commit or permit any act 
which will adversely affect the work of any other contractor or Owner.  Contractor shall provide 

1049



layout of its Work at the request of any other contractor or Owner. 
 
Specific duties of the Contractor shall be in accordance with Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations.   
 
 3.2.2 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s 
employees, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, and their agents, employees, 
invitees, and other persons performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with 
the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 
 
 3.2.3 OBLIGATIONS NOT CHANGED BY OTHERS’ ACTIONS 
 
The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents by the activities or duties of the Owner’s representatives, including but not 
limited to any construction manager and the Architect, or the Inspector of Record; or by tests, 
inspections, or approvals required or performed by persons other than the Contractor. 
 
 3.2.4 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR READINESS FOR WORK 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of Work already performed under the Contract 
Documents to determine that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent work. 
 
 3.2.5  PROJECT MEETINGS 
 
During its Work, Contractor shall attend Owner’s Project meetings as scheduled by the Contract 
Documents, or as otherwise instructed by Owner, to discuss the current status of the Work and 
Project and the future progress of the Work and the Project.  Contractor shall have five (5) days 
after receipt of Owner’s Project meeting minutes to provide written objections and suggested 
corrections.  
 
3.3 SUPERINTENDENT 
 
 3.3.1 FULL TIME SUPERINTENDENT 
 
The Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent and assistants as necessary, all of 
whom shall be reasonably proficient in speaking, reading and writing English and, who shall be 
in attendance at the Project Site during performance of the Work.  The superintendent shall 
represent the Contractor, and communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as 
if given to the Contractor. 
 
 3.3.2 STAFF 
 
The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall: furnish a competent and adequate staff as 
necessary for the proper administration, coordination, supervision, and superintendence of its 

1050



portion of the Work; organize the procurement of all materials and equipment so that the 
materials and equipment will be available at the time they are needed for the Work; and keep an 
adequate force of skilled workers on the job to Complete the Work in accordance with all 
requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
 3.3.3 RIGHT TO REMOVE 
 
Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to require the removal from the Project of any 
superintendent, staff member, agent, or employee of any Contractor, Subcontractor, material or 
equipment supplier, etc., for cause. 
 
3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS 
 
 3.4.1 CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
 
Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for 
labor, material, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, 
transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution and Completion of 
the Work whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated 
in the Work. Owner shall have no responsibility for security of, or repair or replacement costs of, 
any and all material, equipment, tools, construction equipment, and machinery provided by 
Contractor pursuant to this Subsection.   
 
 3.4.2 QUALITY 
 
Unless otherwise specified, all materials and equipment to be permanently installed in the Project 
shall be new and shall be of such quality as required to satisfy the standards of the Contract 
Documents.  The Contractor shall, if requested, promptly furnish satisfactory evidence as to kind 
and quality of all materials and equipment.  All labor shall be performed by workers skilled in 
their respective trades, and the quality of their work shall meet whichever is the higher standard 
for their work:  the standard in the industry or the standard in the Contract Documents. 
 
 3.4.3 REPLACEMENT 
 
Any work, materials, or equipment, which does not conform to these standards may be 
disapproved and rejected by the Owner, in which case, they shall be removed and replaced by the 
Contractor at no cost to the Owner. 
 
 3.4.4 DISCIPLINE 
 
The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees 
and other persons carrying out the Contract in accordance with paragraph 5.5.1 including, but not 
limited to, Subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers retained for the Project. 
 

1051



3.5 WARRANTY 
 
For the period of one (1) year after Completion of the Work (see Sections 9.7.1, 12.2.5 and 
12.2.6), the Contractor warrants to the Owner that material and equipment furnished under the 
Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract 
Documents, that the Work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or 
permitted, and that the Work will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents.  
Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and 
authorized, may be considered defective.  The Contractor’s warranty does not cover damage or 
defect caused by abuse, modifications not executed by the Contractor, improper or insufficient 
maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear under normal usage.  If required by 
the Owner, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of 
materials and equipment.  
 
3.6 TAXES 
 
Contractor will pay all applicable Federal, State, and local taxes on all materials, labor, or 
services furnished by it, and all taxes arising out of its operations under the Contract Documents.  
Owner is exempt from Federal Excise Tax, and a Certificate of Exemption shall be provided 
upon request.  
 
3.7 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES 
 
 3.7.1 PAYMENT 
 
The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and governmental fees, licenses, and 
inspections necessary for proper execution and Completion of the Work which are customarily 
secured after execution of the Contract and are legally required by any authority having 
jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
 3.7.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by any law, ordinance, rule, 
regulation, and lawful order of public authorities bearing on performance of the Work. 
 
 3.7.3 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
It is not the Contractor’s responsibility to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in 
accordance with any applicable law, statute, ordinance, building codes, rule, or regulation. 
However, if the Contractor knew, or should have known, or observes that portions of the 
Contract Document are at variance therewith, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Architect, 
any construction manager, and Owner in writing, and necessary changes shall be accomplished 
by appropriate modification. 
 

1052



 3.7.4 RESPONSIBILITY 
 
If the Contractor performs any work that it knows, or should have known, is contrary to any law, 
statute, ordinance, building code, rule or regulation, the Contractor shall assume full 
responsibility for such work, and shall bear the attributable cost of correction and delays to the 
Work, other contractors’ work, and the Project. 
 
3.8 ALLOWANCES 
 
 3.8.1 CONTRACT 
 
The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances, including any general 
contingency allowance, stated in the Contract Documents.  Items covered by specific allowances 
shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but 
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities against whom the Contractor 
makes reasonable and timely objection. 
 
 3.8.2 SCOPE 
 
  3.8.2.1 Prompt Selection.  Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be 
selected promptly by the Owner to avoid delay to the Work. 
 
  3.8.2.2 Cost.  Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and 
equipment delivered at the Site and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts, etc., as 
delineated in paragraph 7.7.4. 
 
  3.8.2.3 Cost Included in Contract Sum.  Contractor’s costs for unloading and 
handling at the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated 
for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum and not in the allowances. 
 
  3.8.2.4 Contract Sum Adjustment.  Whenever Contractor seeks payment from an 
allowance and the requested costs are approved by Owner as compliant with the Contract 
Documents (including Sections 3.8.2.2 and 3.8.2.3, above), Owner may elect to pay the approved 
costs from the allowance, or pay the costs via Change Order.  Any such allowance payment shall 
conform to the requirements of the Agreement and other Contract Documents.   
 
3.9 CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES 
 
 3.9.1 REQUIREMENTS 
 
Before the Contractor’s commencement of Work or within two (2) weeks of award of the 
Contract, whichever is earlier, Contractor shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s, and any 
construction manager’s, information the baseline construction schedule for the Work, which 
shall conform to the Contract Documents’ requirements.   
 

1053



Contractor shall submit an updated schedule by the first day of every month, and whenever else 
requested by the Owner.  Each schedule update must include an accurate as-built schedule and 
the current as-planned schedule, both of which shall conform to the Contract Documents’ 
requirements.  Contractor shall submit its daily logs for the prior month with the updated 
schedule. 
 
The original schedule and all updates shall conform, at a minimum, to industry standards for (a) 
critical path scheduling and (b) facilitation of Owner’s Project management and evaluation of 
Contractor Claims for additional money or time.   
 
The original schedule and all updates shall not exceed time limits (including milestone 
deadlines) under the Contract Documents and shall comply with the Contract Documents 
scheduling requirements and with any scheduling requirements the Owner provides to the 
Contractor at the beginning of the Work.  The original schedule and all updates shall accurately 
reflect Work performed to date, reasonable dates for future Work; all construction activities 
(including procurement); the critical path schedule for Completion of the remainder of the Work; 
the logic, sequencing, and relationship between the contruction activities, including each 
activity’s predecessor and successor activities; and the percentage of the Work completed.  The 
original schedule and all updates shall include a reasonable number of days for weather that is 
usual or common for each month, as time extensions are not available for such days (see 
Sections 4.5.5.3.2 and 8.4.1, below); and any failure by Contractor to include a reasonable 
number of such days, or by Owner to require Contractor to include a reasonable number of such 
days, shall not affect the reasonable number of such days to be used when determining time 
extensions under Sections 4.5.5.3.2 and 8.4.1, below.   
 
The construction schedule shall be in the form of either a tabulation, chart, or graph, unless 
otherwise stated in Division 1 of the Specifications, and shall be in sufficient detail to show the 
chronological relationship of all activities of the Work including, but not limited to, estimated 
starting and completion dates of various activities, (including early and late dates and reasonable 
float for each activity), procurement of materials, the critical path, and scheduling of equipment.  
Float suppression techniques such as preferential sequencing, special lead/lag logic restraints, 
extended activity durations, or imposed dates shall be apportioned for the benefit of the Work.  
Whenever in the Contract Documents Contractor is required to provide a schedule and/or 
schedule updates, the Contractor shall provide the schedule and updates in electronic format as 
well as hard copy.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for the accuracy, utility and 
reasonableness of all of its schedules.  Owner’s acceptance, approval or non-rejection of 
Contractor’s schedules shall not affect Contractor’s responsibility for its schedules. 
 
The Contractor and Owner shall use any float on a “first come, first served” basis.  The original 
schedule and updates shall reflect Contractor’s and Owner’s use of float.  Float is not for the 
exclusive use or benefit of either Owner or Contractor, but it is a jointly owned expiring Work 
resource available to both parties as needed to meet schedule milestones.  For the original 
schedule and updates, Contractor shall use a critical path network format with the critical paths 
clearly indicated.  Contractor shall use an MS Project, Primavera, or an equivalent or better 
program.  Contractor shall include reports that sort and list the activities in order of increasing 
float and by early and late start dates.  Contractor shall endeavor to label ten to thirty percent 

1054



(10-30%) of the tasks as critical, but shall not label less than five (5%) or more than fifty (50%) 
as critical.  Contractor shall use calendar days. 
 
If any change in Contractor’s method of operations will cause a change in the construction 
schedule, Contractor shall submit to Owner, Architect, and any construction manager, a revised 
construction schedule within seven (7) days of the change. 
 
If, in the Owner’s opinion, the Contractor is not prosecuting the Work at a rate sufficient to meet 
the Work schedule or a contractual milestone, or to Complete the Work within the Contract Time 
as adjusted by change orders or if the Contractor’s actual progress falls behind the Work 
schedule or it is apparent to Owner that Contractor will not meet contractual milestones or 
Complete the Work within the Contract Time (as adjusted by change orders), the Owner may 
require that the Contractor prepare and submit a recovery plan.  Contractor must submit a 
recovery plan within seven (7) days of a demand for the plan.  At a minimum, the recovery plan 
must include a proposed schedule that shows Completion of the Work by the contractual 
milestones and within the Contract Time, as adjusted by change orders, or Completion by other 
dates Owner specifies in the demand for a recovery plan.  The recovery plan shall state the 
corrective actions Contractor will undertake to implement it.  The recovery plan shall also list 
any additional money that Contractor believes it should receive if Owner orders Contractor to 
fully or partially implement the recovery plan.  If the Owner orders Contractor to implement the 
recovery plan, Contractor shall do so, but the order shall not constitute an admission by Owner 
that Contractor is entitled to additional money.  To recover additional money, Contractor must 
comply with General Conditions Articles 4.5, 7 and 8.     
 
All schedules Contractor submits shall be certified as true and correct, as follows: 
 

I, __________ [name of declarant], declare the following: 
 
____________ [Contractor company name] has contracted with ______ 
[public entity name] for the ____________ Contract (“Contract”).  
__________ [Contractor company name] authorized me to prepare schedules 
for _________ [public entity name] for this Project, and I prepared the 
attached schedule.  I am the most knowledgeable person at _______ 
[Contractor company name] regarding the scheduling of the Work for this 
Contract.     
 
The attached schedule does not breach the Contract between ______ 
[Contractor company name] and ______ [public entity name] for this Project, 
does not violate any applicable law, satisfies all provisions of the Contract 
applicable to submission of schedules, only contains truthful and accurate as-
built and as-planned dates of the Work (including supporting data), and is not 
a false claim.   
 
The attached schedule is submitted in compliance with all laws applicable to 
submission of a Claim, including but not limited to California Penal Code 
section 72 (Fraudulent Claims), Government Code sections 12650 et seq. 

1055



(False Claims Act; for example, Government Code section 12651(a)(7)), and 
Business and Professions Code sections 17200 et seq. (Unfair Business 
Practices Act).  I am aware that submission or certification of false claims, or 
other Claims that violate law or the Contract, may lead to fines, imprisonment, 
and/or other serious legal consequences for myself and/or _____ [Contractor 
company name].   
 
While preparing this declaration and schedule I consulted with others 
(including attorneys, consultants, or others who work for _____ [Contractor 
company name]) when necessary to ensure that the statements were true and 
correct.  
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct.  Executed _________, 20__, at 
___________, California. 
 
_______________ [signature] 
_______________ [name of declarant] 

 
 
 3.9.2 FAILURE TO MEET REQUIREMENTS 
 
Failure of the Contractor to provide proper schedules may, at the sole discretion of Owner, 
constitute either grounds to withhold, in whole or in part, progress payments to the Contractor, or 
a breach of contract allowing Owner to terminate the Contract. 
 
3.10 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE 
 
The Contractor shall maintain at the Site for the Owner one applicable copy of Titles 19 and 24 
and record copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, and other 
Modifications, in good order and marked currently to record changes and selections made during 
construction.  In addition, the Contractor shall maintain at the Site approved Shop Drawings,  
 
Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals.  These documents shall be available to 
the Owner and shall be delivered to the Owner, or the Architect for delivery to the Owner, upon 
Completion of the Work. 
 
3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES 
 
 3.11.1 SUBMITTALS DEFINED 
 
  3.11.1.1  Shop Drawings.  The term “shop drawings” as used herein means 
drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data, which are prepared by Contractor, 
Subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors illustrating some portion of the Work, 
and includes: illustrations; fabrication, erection, layout and setting drawings; manufacturer’s 
standard drawings; schedules; descriptive literature, instructions, catalogs, and brochures; 

1056



performance and test data including charts; wiring and control diagrams; and all other drawings 
and descriptive data pertaining to materials, equipment, piping, duct and conduit systems, and 
methods of construction as may be required to show that the materials, equipment, or systems 
and their position conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall 
obtain and submit with the shop drawings all seismic and other calculations and all product data 
from equipment manufacturers.  “Product data” as used herein are illustrations, standard 
schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information 
furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product, or system for some portion of the 
Work.  As used herein, the term “manufactured” applies to standard units usually mass-
produced, and “fabricated” means items specifically assembled or made out of selected materials 
to meet individual design requirements.  Shop drawings shall: establish the actual detail of all 
manufactured or fabricated items, indicate proper relation to adjoining work, amplify design 
details of mechanical and electrical systems and equipment in proper relation to physical spaces 
in the structure, and incorporate minor changes of design or construction to suit actual 
conditions. 
 
  3.11.1.2  Samples.  The term “samples” as used herein are physical examples 
furnished by Contractor to illustrate materials, equipment, or quality and includes natural 
materials, fabricated items, equipment, devices, appliances, or parts thereof as called for in the 
Specifications, and any other samples as may be required by the Owner to determine whether the 
kind, quality, construction, finish, color, and other characteristics of the materials, etc., proposed 
by the Contractor conform to the required characteristics of the various parts of the Work.  All 
Work shall be in accordance with the approved samples. 
 
  3.11.1.3  Contractor’s Responsibility.  Contractor shall obtain and shall submit to 
Architect all required shop drawings and samples in accordance with Contractor’s “Schedule for 
Submission of Shop Drawings and Samples” provisions in Division 1 of the Specifications and 
in accordance with the Contractor’s original and updated schedules, and with such promptness as 
to cause no delay in its own Work or in that of any other contractor, Owner or subcontractor but 
in no event later than ninety (90) days after the execution of the Agreement.  Contractor may be 
assessed $100 a day for each day it is late in submitting a shop drawing or sample.  No 
extensions of time will be granted to Contractor or any Subcontractor because of its failure to 
have shop drawings and samples submitted in accordance with the Schedule.  Each 
Subcontractor shall submit all shop drawings, samples, and manufacturer’s descriptive data for 
the review of the Owner, the Contractor, and the Architect through the Contractor.  By 
submitting shop drawings, product data, and samples, the Contractor or submitting party (if other 
than Contractor) represents that it has determined and verified all materials, field measurements, 
field conditions, catalog numbers, related field construction criteria, and other relevant data in 
connection with each such submission, and that it has checked, verified, and coordinated the 
information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the 
Contract Documents.  At the time of submission, any deviation in the shop drawings, product 
data, or samples from the requirements of the Contract Documents shall be narratively described 
in a transmittal accompanying the submittal.  However, submittals shall not be used as a means 
of requesting a substitution, the procedure for which is defined in paragraph 3.11.4, 
“Substitutions.”  Review by Owner and Architect shall not relieve the Contractor or any 
Subcontractor from its responsibility in preparing and submitting proper shop drawings in 

1057



accordance with the Contract Documents.  Contractor shall stamp, sign, and date each submittal 
indicating its representation that the submittal meets all of the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.  Any submission, which in Owner’s or Architect’s opinion is incomplete, contains 
numerous errors, or has been checked only superficially by Contractor will be returned 
unreviewed for resubmission by the Contractor.  
 
  3.11.1.4  Extent of Review.  In reviewing shop drawings, the Owner will not 
verify dimensions and field conditions.  The Architect will review and approve shop drawings, 
product data, and samples for aesthetics and for conformance with the design concept of the 
Work and the information given in the Contract Documents.  The Architect’s review shall 
neither be construed as a complete check nor relieve the Contractor, Subcontractor, 
manufacturer, fabricator, or supplier from responsibility for any deficiency that may exist or 
from any departures or deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless the 
Contractor has, in writing, called the Architect’s attention to the deviations at the time of 
submission and the Architect has given specific written approval.  The Architect’s review shall 
not relieve the Contractor or Subcontractors from responsibility for errors of any sort in shop 
drawings or schedules, for proper fitting of the Work, or from the necessity of furnishing any 
Work required by the Contract Documents, which may not be indicated on shop drawings when 
reviewed.  Contractor and Subcontractors shall be solely responsible for determining any 
quantities, whether or not shown on the shop drawings. 
 
 3.11.2 DRAWING SUBMISSION PROCEDURE 
 
  3.11.2.1  Transmittal Letter and Other Requirements.  All shop drawings must 
be properly identified with the name of the Project and Contractor’s name and dated, and each 
lot submitted must be accompanied by a letter of transmittal referring to the name of the Project 
and Contractor and to the Specification section number for identification of each item clearly 
stating in narrative form, as well as “clouding” on the submissions, all qualifications, departures, 
or deviations from the Contract Documents, if any.  Shop drawings, for each section of the 
Work, shall be numbered consecutively, and the numbering system shall be retained throughout 
all revisions.  All Subcontractor submissions shall be made through the Contractor.  Each 
drawing shall have a clear space for the stamps of Architect and Contractor.  Only shop drawings 
required to be submitted by the Contract Documents shall be reviewed. 
 
  3.11.2.2  Copies Required.  Each submittal shall include one (1) legible, 
reproducible sepia and five (5) legible prints of each drawing, including fabrication, erection, 
layout and setting drawings, and such other drawings as required under the various sections of 
the Specifications until final acceptance thereof is obtained.  Subcontractor shall submit copies, 
in an amount as requested by the Contractor, of: manufacturers’ descriptive data for materials, 
equipment, and fixtures, including catalog sheets showing dimensions, performance, 
characteristics, and capacities; wiring diagrams and controls; schedules; all seismic calculations 
and other calculations; and other pertinent information as required. 
 
  3.11.2.3  Corrections.  The Contractor shall make any corrections required by 
Architect and shall resubmit as required by Architect the required number of corrected copies of 
shop drawings or new samples until approved.  Contractor shall direct specific attention in 

1058



writing or on resubmitted shop drawings to revisions other than the corrections required by the 
Architect on previous submissions.  Professional services required for more than one (1) re-
review of required submittals of shop drawings, product data, or samples are subject to charge to 
the Contractor pursuant to paragraph 4.4. 
 
  3.11.2.4  Approval Prior to Commencement of Work.  No portion of the Work 
requiring a shop drawing or sample submission shall be commenced until the submission has 
been reviewed by Owner and approved by Architect unless specifically directed in writing by the 
Owner.  All such portions of the Work shall be in accordance with approved shop drawings and 
samples. 
 
 3.11.3 SAMPLE SUBMISSIONS PROCEDURE 
 
  3.11.3.1  Samples Required.  In case a considerable range of color, graining, 
texture, or other characteristics may be anticipated in finished products, a sufficient number of 
samples of the specified materials shall be furnished by the Contractor to indicate the full range 
of characteristics, which will be present in the finished products; and products delivered or 
erected without submittal and approval of full range samples shall be subject to rejection.  Except 
for range samples, and unless otherwise called for in the various sections of the Specifications, 
samples shall be submitted in duplicate.  All samples shall be marked, tagged, or otherwise 
properly identified with the name of the submitting party, the name of the Project, the purpose 
for which the samples are submitted, and the date and shall be accompanied by a letter of 
transmittal containing similar information, together with the Specification section number for 
identification of each item.  Each tag or sticker shall have clear space for the review stamps of 
Contractor and Architect. 
 
  3.11.3.2  Labels and Instructions.  Samples of materials, which are generally 
furnished in containers bearing the manufacturers’ descriptive labels and printed application 
instructions, shall, if not submitted in standard containers, be supplied with such labels and 
application instructions. 
 
  3.11.3.3  Architect’s Review.  The Architect will review and, if appropriate, 
approve submissions and will return them to the Contractor with the Architect’s stamp and 
signature applied thereto, indicating the appropriate action in compliance with the Architect’s 
standard procedures. 
 
  3.11.3.4  Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications.  The Contractor will 
prepare and maintain on a current basis an accurate and complete set of Record Drawings 
showing clearly all changes, revisions, and substitutions during construction, including, without 
limitation, field changes and the final location of all mechanical equipment, utility lines, ducts, 
outlets, structural members, walls, partitions, and other significant features, and Annotated 
Specifications showing clearly all changes, revisions, and substitutions during construction.  A 
copy of such Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications will be delivered to Owner in 
accordance with the schedule prepared by Contractor.  In the event of a specification that allows 
Contractor to elect one of several brands, makes, or types of material or equipment, the 
annotations shall show which of the allowable items the Contractor has furnished.  The 

1059



Contractor will update the Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications as often as necessary 
to keep them current but no less often than weekly.  The Record Drawings and Annotated 
Specifications shall be kept at the Site and available for inspection by the Owner, Inspector of 
Record and the Architect.  On Completion of the Contractor’s Work and prior to Application for 
Final Progress Payment, the Contractor will provide one complete set of Record Drawings and 
Annotated Specifications to the Owner, certifying them to be a complete and accurate reflection 
of the actual construction conditions of the Work. 
 
  3.11.3.5  Equipment Manuals.  Contractor shall obtain and furnish to the Owner 
three (3) complete sets of manuals containing the manufacturers’ instructions for maintenance 
and operation of each item of equipment and apparatus furnished under the Contract Documents 
and any additional data specifically requested under the various sections of the Specifications for 
each division of the Work.  The manuals shall be arranged in proper order, indexed, and placed 
in three-ring binders.  At the Completion of its Work, the Contractor shall certify, by 
endorsement thereon, that each of the manuals is complete, accurate, and covers all of its Work.  
Prior to submittal of Contractor’s Application for Final Progress Payment, and as a further 
condition to its approval by the Architect, each Subcontractor shall deliver the manuals, arranged 
in proper order, indexed, endorsed, and placed in three-ring binders, to the Contractor, who shall 
assemble these manuals for all divisions of the Work, review them for completeness, and submit 
them to the Owner through the Architect. 
 
  3.11.3.6  Owner’s Property.  All shop drawings and samples submitted shall 
become the Owner’s property. 
 
 3.11.4 SUBSTITUTIONS 
 
  3.11.4.1  One Product Specified.  Unless the Specifications state that no 
substitution is permitted, whenever in the Contract Documents any specific article, device, 
equipment, product, material, fixture, patented process, form, method, or type of construction is 
indicated or specified by name, make, trade name, or catalog number, with or without the words 
“or equal,” such specification shall be deemed to be used for the purpose of facilitating 
description of material, process, or article desired and shall be deemed to be followed by the 
words “or equal.”  Contractor may, unless otherwise stated, offer any material, process, or 
article, which shall be substantially equal or better in every respect to that so indicated or 
specified and will completely accomplish the purpose of the Contract Documents. 
 
  3.11.4.2  Two or More Products Specified.  When two or more acceptable 
products are specified for an item of the Work, the choice will be up to the Contractor.  
Contractor shall utilize the same product throughout the Project.  If a timely substitution request 
as set forth in Section 3.11.4.3 is not provided and an “or equal” substitution is requested, the 
Owner may consider the substitution if the product specified is no longer commercially 
available.  If the Owner allows the substitution to be proposed pursuant to such an untimely 
request, the Contractor will be responsible for the professional fees incurred by the Architect or 
Architect’s consultants in reviewing the proposed substitution which fees may be withheld from 
progress payments and/or retention. 
 

1060



  3.11.4.3  Substitution Request Form.  Requests for substitutions of products, 
materials, or processes other than those specified must be made on the Substitution Request form 
available from the Owner prior to the date of the bid opening. Any Requests submitted less than 
fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the bid opening will not be considered, except as noted in 
paragraph 3.11.4.2.  A Substitution Request must be accompanied by evidence as to whether or 
not the proposed substitution: is equal in quality and serviceability to the specified item; will 
entail no changes in detail and construction of related work; will be acceptable in consideration 
of the required design and artistic effect; will provide no cost disadvantage to Owner; and will 
require no excessive or more expensive maintenance, including adequacy and availability of 
replacement parts.  The burden of proof of these facts shall be upon the Contractor.  The 
Contractor shall furnish with its request sufficient information to determine whether the proposed 
substitution is equivalent including but not limited to all drawings, specifications, samples, 
performance data, calculations, and other information as may be required to assist the Architect 
and the Owner in determining whether the proposed substitution is acceptable.  The final 
decision shall be the Owner’s.  The written approval of the Owner, consistent with the procedure 
for Change Orders, shall be required for the use of a proposed substitute material.  Owner may 
condition its approval of the substitution upon delivery to Owner of an extended warranty or 
other assurances of adequate performance of the substitution.  If Contractor requests 
substitutions that require approval by another governmental entity with jurisdiction, Contractor 
shall bear all risks of delay.    
 
  3.11.4.4  List of Manufacturers and Products Required.  The Subcontractor shall 
prepare and submit to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of execution of the Subcontract 
comprehensive lists, in quadruplicate, of the manufacturers and products proposed for the 
Project, including information on materials, equipment, and fixtures required by the Contract 
Documents, as may be required for Contractor’s or Architect’s preliminary approval.  Approval 
of such lists of products shall not be construed as a substitute for the shop drawings, 
manufacturer’s descriptive data, and samples, which are required by the Contract Documents, 
but rather as a base from which more detailed submittals shall be developed for the final review 
of the Contractor and the Architect. 
 
 3.11.5 DEFERRED APPROVALS 
 
Deferred approvals shall be submitted and processed pursuant to the requirements of Division 1 
of the Specifications.  All risks of delay due the approval of a deferred approval by any 
governmental agency having jurisdiction over the Project shall be on the requesting party. 
 
3.12 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
 
 3.12.1 SCOPE 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to Complete the 
Work or to make its parts fit together properly. 
 

1061



 3.12.2 CONSENT 
 
The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially 
completed construction of the Owner or a separate contractor by cutting, patching, or otherwise 
altering such construction, or by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter such 
construction by the Owner or a separate contractor except with written consent of the Owner and 
of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor 
shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor the Contractor’s 
consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.  All cutting shall be done promptly, and all 
repairs shall be made as necessary. 
 
 3.12.3 STRUCTURAL MEMBERS 
 
New or existing structural members and elements, including reinforcing bars and seismic 
bracing, shall not be cut, bored, or drilled except by written authority of the Architect.  Work 
done contrary to such authority is at the Contractor’s risk, subject to replacement at its own 
expense and without reimbursement under the Contract.  Agency approvals shall be obtained by 
the Architect, not by the Contractor. 
 
 3.12.4 SUBSEQUENT REMOVAL 
 
Permission to patch any areas or items of the Work shall not constitute a waiver of the Owner’s 
or the Architect’s right to require complete removal and replacement of the areas of items of the 
Work if, in the opinion of the Architect or the Owner, the patching does not satisfactorily restore 
quality and appearance of the Work or does not otherwise conform to the Contract Documents.  
Any costs caused by defective or ill-timed cutting or patching shall be borne by the person or 
entity responsible. 
 
3.13 CLEANING UP 
 
 3.13.1 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Contractor shall keep the Site and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste 
material or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract.  The Site shall be maintained in a 
neat and orderly condition.  All crates, cartons, paper, and other flammable waste materials shall 
be removed from Work areas and properly disposed of at the end of each day.  The Contractor 
shall continuously remove from and about the Site the waste materials, rubbish, tools, 
construction equipment, machinery, and materials no longer required for the Work. 
 

1062



 3.13.2 FAILURE TO CLEANUP 
 
If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so, 
without prior notice to the Contractor and the cost thereof shall be invoiced to the Contractor and 
withheld from progress payments and/or retention.  Each Subcontractor shall have the 
responsibility for the cleanup of its own Work.  If the Subcontractor fails to clean up, the 
Contractor must do so. 
 
 3.13.3 CONSTRUCTION BUILDINGS 
 
When directed by the Owner or the Architect, Contractor and Subcontractor shall dismantle 
temporary structures, if any, and remove from the Site all construction and installation 
equipment, fences, scaffolding, surplus materials, rubbish, and supplies belonging to Contractor 
or Subcontractor.  If the Contractor does not remove the tools, equipment, machinery, and 
materials within fifteen (15) days after Completion of its Work, then they shall be deemed 
abandoned, and the Owner can dispose of them for its own benefit in whatever way it deems 
appropriate.  Contractor shall pay for any costs to dispose of the items. 
 
3.14 ACCESS TO WORK 
 
The Contractor shall provide the Owner, the Architect, and the Inspector of Record, access to the 
Work in preparation and progress wherever located. 
 
3.15 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS 
 
 3.15.1 PAYMENT AND INDEMNITY 
 
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees.  The Contractor shall defend suits or 
claims of infringement of patent rights and shall hold the Owner and the Architect harmless and 
indemnify them, to the extent not caused by the Owner’s active negligence, sole negligence or 
willful misconduct, from loss on account thereof but shall not be responsible for such defense or 
loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer is required by the 
Contract Documents.  However, if the Contractor has reason to believe the required design, 
process, or product is an infringement of a patent, the Contractor shall be responsible for such 
loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the Owner and Architect. 
 
 3.15.2 REVIEW 
 
The review by the Owner or Architect of any method of construction, invention, appliance, 
process, article, device, or material of any kind shall be for its adequacy for the Work and shall 
not be an approval for the use by the Contractor in violation of any patent or other rights of any 
person or entity. 
 
3.16 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 3.16.1 SCOPE: CONTRACTOR 

1063



 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
the Owner, any construction manager, Architect, Architect’s consultants, the Inspector of 
Record, the State of California, and their respective agents, employees, officers, volunteers, 
Boards of Trustees, members of the Boards of Trustees, and directors (“Indemnitees”), from and 
against claims, actions, damages, liabilities, losses (including but not limited to injury or death of 
persons, property damage, and compensation owed to other parties), and expenses (including but 
not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs including fees of consultants) alleged by third parties 
against Indemnitees arising out of or resulting from the following:  Contractor’s, its 
Subcontractors’, or its suppliers’ performance of the Work, including but not limited to the 
Contractor’s or its Subcontractors’ use of the Site; the Contractor’s or its Subcontractors’ 
construction of the Project, or failure to construct the Project, or any portion thereof; the use, 
misuse, erection, maintenance, operation, or failure of any machinery or equipment including, 
but not limited to, scaffolds, derricks, ladders, hoists, and rigging supports, whether or not such 
machinery or equipment was furnished, rented, or loaned by any of the Indemnitees; or any act, 
omission, negligence, or willful misconduct of the Contractor or its Subcontractors or their 
respective agents, employees, material or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees but only to 
the extent caused in whole or in part by the acts or omissions of the Contractor, its 
Subcontractors, its suppliers, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone 
for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or 
expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be 
construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would 
otherwise exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.  The obligation to 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless includes any claims or actions by third parties arising out 
of or resulting from Labor Code section 2810.  Contractor shall have no obligation to defend or 
indemnify the Indemnitees against claims, actions, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses 
caused by the active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees.  This 
indemnification shall apply to all liability, as provided for above, regardless of whether any 
insurance policies are applicable, and insurance policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the 
amount of the indemnification to be provided by the Contractor. 
 
 3.16.2 SCOPE: SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
  3.16.2.1  Indemnity.  The Subcontractors shall defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the Indemnitees from and against claims, actions, damages, liabilities, and losses 
(including but not limited to injury or death of persons, property damage, and compensation 
owed to other parties), and expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs 
including fees of consultants) alleged by third parties against Indemnitees arising out of or 
resulting from the following: Subcontractors’ performance of the Work, including but not limited 
to the Subcontractors’ use of the Site; the Subcontractors’ construction of the Project or failure to 
construct the Project or any portion thereof; the use, misuse, erection, maintenance, operation, or 
failure of any machinery or equipment, including, but not limited to, scaffolds, derricks, ladders, 
hoists, and rigging supports, whether or not such machinery or equipment was furnished, rented, 
or loaned by any of the Indemnitees; or any act, omission, negligence, or willful misconduct of 
the Subcontractors or their respective agents, employees, material or equipment suppliers, 
invitees, or licensees but only to the extent caused in whole or in part by the acts or omissions of 

1064



the Subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose 
acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is 
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 
negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise exist 
as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.  This obligation to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless includes any claims or actions by third parties arising out of or resulting from 
Labor Code section 2810.  Subcontractors shall have no obligation to defend or indemnify the 
Indemnitees against claims, actions, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses caused by the 
active negligence, sole negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees.  This indemnification 
shall apply to all liability, as provided for above, regardless of whether any insurance policies are 
applicable, and insurance policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount of the 
indemnification to be provided by the Subcontractors. 
 
  3.16.2.2  Joint and Several Liability.  In the event more than one Subcontractor is 
connected with an accident or occurrence covered by this indemnification, then all such 
Subcontractors shall be jointly and severally responsible to each of the Indemnitees for 
indemnification, and the ultimate responsibility among such indemnifying Subcontractors for the 
loss and expense of any such indemnification shall be resolved without jeopardy to any 
Indemnitee.  The provisions of the indemnity provided for herein shall not be construed to 
indemnify any Indemnitee for its own negligence if not permitted by law or to eliminate or 
reduce any other indemnification or right which any Indemnitee has by law or equity. 
 
 3.16.3 NO LIMITATION 
 
The Contractor’s and the Subcontractor’s obligation to indemnify and defend the Indemnitees 
hereunder shall include, without limitation, any and all claims, damages, and costs: for injury to 
persons and property (including loss of use), and sickness, disease or death of any person; for 
breach of any warranty, express or implied; for failure of the Contractor or the Subcontractor to 
comply with any applicable governmental law, rule, regulation, or other requirement; and for 
products installed in or used in connection with the Work. 
 
3.17 OWNER AS INTENDED BENEFICIARY 
 
The Owner is an intended beneficiary of any architectural or engineering work secured by, or 
performed by, the Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Contract.  Contractor shall state 
in its contracts with architectural or engineering consultants that their work is for the intended 
benefit of the Owner.   
 
3.18 NOTICE OF EXCUSE FOR NONPERFORMANCE 
 
If Contractor believes that acts or omissions of Owner (including but not limited to Owner 
caused delay) have prevented Contractor from performing the Work as required by the Contract 
Documents and Contractor intends to rely on Owner’s acts or omissions and Civil Code section 
1511(1) as reasons to excuse Contractor’s nonperformance or to support, among other things, 
Contractor’s requests for time extensions under section 4.5, below, Contractor shall provide 
written notice of the excuse within five (5) days of the Owner’s acts or omissions. If Contractor 

1065



fails to timely submit the written notice, Contractor shall have waived any right to later rely on 
the acts or omissions as a defense to Contractor’s nonperformance or as the basis for a time 
extension, regardless of the merits of the defense or time extension.  Contractor will not have 
satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies.  Contractor acknowledges 
that these written notices are of critical importance to the Owner’s management of the Work and 
Project and the mitigation of costs and delays to the Work and Project.   
 
3.19 RECOVERY OF COSTS, DAMAGES, OR TIME EXTENSIONS FROM OWNER  
 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Contract Documents, Contractor expressly waives 
its right to recover any special, consequential, or indirect damages from Owner in relation to this 
Contract or the Project. Contractor may only recover general (also known as direct) damages 
from Owner to the extent allowed by the Contract Documents.  
 
A Notice of Potential Change, Change Order Request and, if necessary, a Claim (see Sections 
4.5, 7.2, and 7.6, below) are the exclusive means for Contractor to preserve its rights to recover 
any costs, damages, or time extensions related to the Contract or the Project from Owner, 
including but not limited to alleged breaches of contract based on extra work, delay, wrongful 
withholding, or wrongful termination.  Contractor’s failure to comply with the Contract 
Documents’ procedures for a COR, CO, and Claim (including but not limited to Sections 4.5, 
7.2, 7.6, and 7.7, below) may completely waive Contractor’s rights to recovery any such costs or 
damages. 
 
3.20 USE OF FEDERAL FUNDS 
 
If federal funds are being used either in whole or in part for this Project (see the Instructions to 
Bidders), then the Project is subject to, and Contractor must comply with, all applicable federal 
laws including but not limited to the federal regulations set forth in CFR Title 2, Part 200.  
Accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all such federal requirements, including but not 
limited to the following:  
 
A.  EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Contractor agrees to comply with and be 
bound by Title 14, CFR, Section 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal 
Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as 
amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity,” and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, “Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor,” the 
terms of which are incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT.  If the Contract Price exceeds $2,000, Contractor agrees to 
comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, the Davis-Bacon 
Act, as applicable.  (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144; 3146-3148 as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts 
Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”).)  Contractor is required to pay wages 
to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor.  Additionally, Contractor is required to pay wages 

1066

https://www.federalregister.gov/citation/30-FR-12319
https://www.federalregister.gov/citation/30-FR-12935
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-3
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-3/part-1964
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-41/part-60


not less than once a week.  Furthermore, pursuant to the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 
U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, “Contractors 
and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or 
Grants from the United States”), Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any means, any 
person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of 
the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT.  If the Contract 
Price exceeds $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers, Contractor agrees 
to comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as applicable.  (40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).)  Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of 
the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer 
on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours.  Work in excess of the standard work week is 
permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half 
times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.  The 
requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer 
or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are 
unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of 
supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for 
transportation or transmission of intelligence. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT AGREEMENT.  For all 
contracts that meet the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the 
recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit 
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” Contractor agrees to comply 
with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights 
to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government 
Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” the provisions of which are incorporated herein 
by this reference, and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency, as 
applicable. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION ACT CONTROL.  If the Contract 
Price exceeds $150,000, Contractor agrees to comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in 
ensuring compliance with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended 
(33 U.S.C. 1251-1387).  Any violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the 
Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION.  Contractor represents and warrants that it is not 
listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), and 
Contractor agrees to comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance 
with, the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 
1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.”  
SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by 

1067



agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than 
Executive Order 12549. 
 
G.  BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT.  If the Contract Price exceeds $100,000, 
Contractor agrees to comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance 
with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 1352).  Contractor shall file the 
declaration and certification required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352(b). 
 
H.  PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS.  Contractor agrees to comply with, 
and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, 2 CFR Section 200.323, as 
applicable.   
 
I.  PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO 
SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT.  Contractor agrees to comply with, and be 
bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, 2 CFR Section 200.216, as applicable. 
 
J. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENT.  Contractor agrees to comply 
with, and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, 2 CFR Section 200.322, 
as applicable.  2 CFR Section 200.322 requires Contractor to provide a preference for the 
purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States 
(including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products), to 
the greatest extent practicable.   
 
K. CONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES, WOMEN’S 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS.  Contractor agrees to 
comply with, and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, 2 CFR Section 
200.321, as applicable.    2 CFR Section 200.321 requires Contractor to take the affirmative steps 
listed in 2 CFR Section 200.321 paragraphs (b)(1) through (5) to assure that minority businesses, 
women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 
 
L. SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS.  As required by 34 CFR 75.609, Contractor 
agrees to comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring compliance with, the 
standards under the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C.A., Section 
651 et seq.) and State and local codes to the extent that they are more stringent.   
 
M. ENERGY CONSERVATION.  As required by 34 CFR 75.616, Contractor agrees to 
construct facilities to maximize the efficient use of energy and to comply with and be bound by, 
and assist OWNER in ensuring compliance with, the following standards of the American 
Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) set forth in 34 
CFR 75.616.  Contractor shall also comply with and be bound by, and assist Owner in ensuring 
compliance with, the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plans issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act (Pub. L 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).   
 
N.  If any provision is required by federal law, or by the federal grant program funding such 
project, to be included in the Contract Documents, such provisions shall be deemed by the 

1068



parties to have been included. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
 

ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 
 

4.1 ARCHITECT 
 
 4.1.1 DEFINITION 
 
The Architect is the person lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity lawfully 
practicing architecture identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number.  The term “Architect” means the Architect or the 
Architect’s authorized representative, and shall also refer to all consultants under the Architect’s 
direction and control.   
 
 4.1.2 MODIFICATION 
 
To the extent the Contract Documents indicate that Owner has assigned duties or responsibilities 
to the Architect, Owner reserves the right at all times to reassign such duties or responsibilities to 
different Owner representatives.   
 
 4.1.3 TERMINATION 
 
In the case of the termination of the Architect, the Owner may appoint an architect or another 
construction professional or may perform such functions with its own licensed professional 
personnel.  The status of the replacement Architect under the Contract Documents shall be that 
of the former architect. 
 
4.2 ARCHITECT’S ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 
 
 4.2.1 STATUS 
 
To the extent authorized in the Owner/Architect agreement, the Architect will provide 
administration of the Contract and may be one of several Owner’s representatives during 
construction, through release of all retention, and during the one (1) year period following the 
commencement of any warranties.  The Architect will advise and consult with the Owner.  The 
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent set forth in the 
Owner/Architect agreement.  The Architect will have all responsibilities and power established 
by law, including California Code of Regulations, Title 24, to the extent set forth in the 
Owner/Architect agreement. 
 
 4.2.2 SITE VISITS 
 
The Architect will visit the Site at intervals necessary in the judgment of the Architect or as 
otherwise agreed by the Owner and the Architect in writing to become generally familiar with 

1069



the progress and quality of the completed Work and to determine in general if the Work is being 
performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when Completed, will be in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 
 
 4.2.3 LIMITATIONS OF CONSTRUCTION RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s 
administration of the Contract Documents, or by tests, inspections, or approvals required or 
performed by persons other than the Contractor.   
 
 4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The Owner and the Contractor shall communicate through the Architect, unless there is a 
construction manager for the Project or the Owner directs otherwise.  Communications between 
Owner and Subcontractors or material or equipment suppliers shall be through the Contractor. 
 
 4.2.5 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS 
 
The Contractor shall submit payment applications to the Architect, unless there is a construction 
manager for the Project or the Owner directs otherwise.  
 
 4.2.6 REJECTION OF WORK 
 
The Architect, Inspector of Record, any construction manager and others may recommend to the 
Owner that the Owner reject Work which does not conform to the Contract Documents or that 
the Owner require additional inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with paragraph 
13.5.5, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.  However, no 
recommendation shall create a duty or responsibility to the Contractor, Subcontractors, material 
and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons performing portions of the 
Work. 
 
 4.2.7 CHANGE ORDERS 
 
The Architect may prepare change orders and construction change directives and may authorize 
minor changes in the Work. 
  

1070



 4.2.8 WARRANTIES UPON COMPLETION 
 
The Architect in conjunction with the Inspector of Record, or as otherwise directed by Owner, 
will conduct field reviews of the Work to determine the date of Completion, shall receive and 
forward to the Owner for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related 
documents required by the Contract and assembled by the Contractor.  The handling by the 
Architect of such warranties, maintenance manuals, or similar documents shall not diminish or 
transfer to the Architect any responsibilities or liabilities required by the Contract Documents of 
the Contractor or other entities, parties, or persons performing or supplying the Work. 
 
Except as may be otherwise directed by Owner, the Architect will conduct a field review of the 
Contractor’s comprehensive list of items to be completed or corrected for development of a 
punch list and one (1) follow-up field review if required.  The cost incurred by the Owner for 
further field reviews or the preparation of further punch lists by the Architect shall be invoiced to 
the Contractor and withheld from payment and/or retention. 
 
 4.2.9 INTERPRETATION 
 
The Architect, Inspector of Record, any construction manager, the Owner or any independent 
consultant of Owner, as Owner deems appropriate, will interpret and decide matters concerning 
performance under and requirements of the Contract Documents on written request of the 
Contractor.  The Owner’s response to such requests will be made with reasonable promptness, 
while allowing sufficient time to permit adequate review and evaluation of the request.   
 
 4.2.10 ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 
  4.2.10.1  Architect’s Interpretations and Decisions.  Interpretations and decisions 
of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract 
Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings.  When making such interpretations 
of and decisions regarding the Contract Documents, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful 
performance under the Contract Documents by both the Owner and the Contractor and will not 
show partiality to either.  The Work shall be executed in conformity with, and the Contractor 
shall do no work without, approved drawings, Architect’s clarifying instructions, and/or 
submittals.  
 
  4.2.10.2  Typical Parts and Sections.  Whenever typical parts or sections of the 
Work are completely detailed on the Drawings, and other parts or sections which are essentially 
of the same construction are shown in outline only, the complete details shall apply to the Work 
which is shown in outline. 
 
  4.2.10.3  Dimensions.  Dimensions of Work shall not be determined by scale or 
rule.  Figured dimensions shall be followed at all times.  If figured dimensions are lacking on 
Drawings, Architect shall supply them on request.  The Owner’s decisions on matters relating to 
aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the Contract Documents. 
 

1071



4.3 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
4.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL CHARGES INCURRED BY THE 

OWNER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
If at any time prior to the Completion of the requirements under the Contract Documents, 
through no fault of its own, the Owner is required to provide or secure additional professional 
services for any reason by any act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor shall be invoiced 
by the Owner for any actual costs incurred for any such additional services, which costs may, 
among other remedies, be withheld from the progress payments and/or retention.  Such invoicing 
shall be independent from any other Owner remedies, including but not limited to liquidated 
damages.  If payments then or thereafter due to the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such 
amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. Additional services shall include, 
but shall not be limited to, the following: 
 
 A. Services made necessary by the default of the Contractor. 
 
 B. Services made necessary due to the defects or deficiencies in the Work of the 

Contractor. 
 
 C. Services required by failure of the Contractor to perform according to any 

provision of the Contract Documents. 
 
 D. Services in connection with evaluating substitutions of products, materials, 

equipment, Subcontractors proposed by the Contractor, and making subsequent 
revisions to drawings, specifications, and providing other documentation required 
(except for the situation where the specified item is no longer manufactured or 
available). 

 
 E. Services for evaluating and processing Claims submitted by the Contractor in 

connection with the Work outside the established Change Order process. 
 
 F. Services required by the failure of the Contractor to prosecute the Work in a 

timely manner in compliance within the specified time for Completion. 
 
 G. Services in conjunction with the testing, adjusting, balancing and start-up of 

equipment other than the normal amount customarily associated for the type of 
Work involved. 

 
 H. Services in conjunction with more than one (1) re-review of required submittals of 

shop drawings, product data, and samples. 
 
 

1072



4.5 NOTICES OF POTENTIAL CHANGE, CHANGE ORDER REQUESTS, AND 
CLAIMS 

 
If the Contractor identifies the potential for extra work, delay in the critical path schedule, or the 
need for additional money or time, or if the Contractor requests additional money or time on any 
grounds (including but not limited to an alleged breach of an implied warranty of the correctness 
of the plans and specifications [Souza & McCue Construction Co. v. Superior Court (1962) 57 
Cal.2d 508]), or if the Contractor believes that Owner has failed to pay amounts due or otherwise 
breached the Contract, or otherwise believes that it is entitled to a modification of the Contract 
terms and conditions, then Contractor shall follow the procedures in this Section 4.5 and Article 
7, otherwise Contractor shall have waived its rights to pursue those issues and any later attempts 
to recover money or obtain a modification shall be barred.  Contractor specifically acknowledges 
the Owner’s and public’s interest in, and need to know of, potential changes and disputes as early 
as possible so Owner can investigate, mitigate and resolve adverse cost and time impacts, if any.  
It is Contractor’s obligation to know and comply with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents, including but not limited to Section 4.5 and Articles 7 and 8, and Owner has no 
obligation to notify Contractor of any failure to comply with those requirements.  

 
4.5.1 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CHANGE 

 
Contractor shall submit a written Notice of Potential Change for extra work, critical path delay, 
or additional money or time.  Contractor shall submit written Notices of Potential Change to 
Owner within five (5) days of the earlier of (a) Contractor becoming aware of the issue creating a 
potential change, or (b) the date by which Contractor should have become aware of the issue 
creating a potential change; unless the issues are, or may soon be, adversely affecting the costs or 
critical path of the Work, in which case the Contractor must submit the written notice without 
delay so the Owner may take immediate action to mitigate cost and schedule impacts of the 
change, if any.  The written notice shall explain the nature of the potential change so the Owner 
may take action to mitigate costs and schedule impacts, if necessary.   
 
When submitting a written Notice of Potential Change based on extra work, Contractor shall not 
perform the extra work until directed in writing to do so by Owner.  When submitting a written 
Notice of Potential Change for an issue of critical path delay, Contractor shall proactively 
mitigate the effects of the alleged delay as much as reasonably possible so as to minimize any 
impact to the schedule, until otherwise directed by Owner.  If Contractor intends to rely on 
Owner’s acts or omissions in support of a request for a time extension, then Contractor must also 
provide the notice set forth in section 3.18, above. 
 
Failure to timely submit a written Notice of Potential Change shall constitute a complete waiver 
by Contractor of any right to later submit a change order request or pursue a Claim on that issue, 
or to later pursue any additional money or time extensions in any manner related to that issue, 
regardless of the merits.  Contractor will not have satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted 
administrative remedies.  Contractor acknowledges that these written notices are of critical 
importance to the Owner’s Work and Project management and the mitigation of Work and 
Project costs and delays. 
 

1073



4.5.2 CHANGE ORDERS REQUESTS 
 
If, after submitting a written Notice of Potential Change pursuant to Section 4.5.1, Contractor 
continues to believes that it is entitled to additional money or time (including but not limited to 
grant of a time extension; payment of money or damages arising from work done by, or on 
behalf of, the Contractor, payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or the 
claimant is not otherwise entitled to; or an amount the payment of which is disputed by the 
Owner) based on an issue, then Contractor shall submit a Change Order Request (“COR”; see 
Section 7.6.1) to Owner within twenty (20) days of the earlier of (i) Contractor becoming aware 
of the issue creating a potential change, or (ii) the date by which Contractor should have become 
aware of the issue creating a potential change.  A rejection at any time or a lack of a rejection by 
Owner of a Notice of Potential Change does not affect the timeline for submitting a COR. 
 
Failure to timely submit a COR related to an issue, or failure to comply with any of the COR 
requirements in the Contract shall constitute a complete waiver by Contractor of any right to 
later submit a COR or Claim on that issue, or to later pursue any additional money (or time) in 
any manner related to that issue, regardless of the merits.  Contractor will not have satisfied a 
condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies.   
 
The COR shall state the grounds for the additional money or time requested and the amount of 
money or time requested, and Contractor shall include all information and documentation 
supporting the COR, including but not limited to calculations and analysis that demonstrate that 
the requested money or time is allowed by the applicable contract provisions and law.  For any 
money or time other than the money and time specifically requested in the COR, Contractor will 
have completely waived its rights to recover such additional money or time (Contractor will not 
have satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies). If the COR requests 
time, then the COR must identify the number of days of time being requested and must include 
some critical path schedule analysis to support the number of days requested.  Contractor may 
not reserve its rights, whether in a COR or other document, to submit a COR at a later time or in 
a manner other than as required by the Contract Documents.  Any inclusion of a reservation of 
rights in a COR shall be grounds for rejection of the COR.   
 
In the event that costs or delay are continuing to accrue at the time that a COR is required to be 
submitted, Contractor must still timely submit the COR with all available information and 
documentation supporting the COR as described above, and Contractor shall identify the costs or 
delay that are continuing.  For continuing costs, the COR must include an estimate of when the 
extra work is expected to conclude and the total costs that will be incurred by the time that the 
extra work is expected to conclude.  For continuing delay, the COR must include a schedule and 
delay analysis of when Contractor estimates that the delay will cease, what the final time 
extension request is estimated to be, and an estimate of the total of delay damages, if any, that 
will be requested.  When the continuing cost or delay ends, within ten (10) days Contractor shall 
submit an updated COR that states the final dollar amount and/or time extension requested and 
that includes all required information and documentation.  Failure to submit such final COR shall 
act as a waiver as described above. 
 

1074



Contractor shall certify each COR that it submits, including the initial COR and final COR for a 
continuing cost or delay, using the form set forth in Section 4.5.5.1, except that every reference 
to “Claim” shall be changed to “COR.”  If a COR is submitted without certification, a 
certification can still be submitted within the timelines set forth in the first paragraph of Section 
4.5.2.  If the COR is not timely certified, Contractor will have completely waived its rights to 
any money or time for that issue.  Contractor will not have satisfied a condition precedent or 
exhausted administrative remedies.  A certification of an initial COR for a continuing cost or 
delay shall include a statement that “Any estimates in the attached initial COR for a continuing 
cost or delay are based on true and correct facts and reasonable assumptions, as explained in the 
initial COR.” 
 
The Owner may accept the entire COR, accept part of the COR and reject the remainder, reject 
the entire COR, or request additional information.  If the Owner does not respond within thirty 
(30) days of submission of the COR by accepting the entire COR, accepting part of the COR and 
rejecting the remainder, or requesting additional information, the entire COR shall be deemed 
rejected as of the thirtieth (30th) day.  In the case of continuing costs or delay, the 30-day 
deadline in the previous sentence shall not apply to the initial COR; it will only apply to the  
final COR (see above).  If the Owner requests additional information within thirty (30) days of 
submission, then the Contractor shall submit the information within fifteen (15) days of the date 
of the request and the Owner shall have fifteen (15) days after the receipt of the additional 
information to accept or reject (in whole or in part) the COR.  If the Contractor fails to submit 
the information within fifteen (15) days, then the COR shall be deemed rejected.  If the Owner 
fails to respond within fifteen (15) days after the submission of additional information, the entire 
COR shall be deemed rejected as of the fifteenth (15th) day.   
 

4.5.3 DEFINITION OF CLAIM  
 
A “Claim” is a separate demand by the Contractor sent by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, for (a) a time extension, including, without limitation, a request for relief from 
damages or penalties for delay assessed by Owner under the Contract Documents; (b) payment 
by Owner of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the Contractor 
pursuant to the Contract Documents, and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided 
for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to (including but not limited to a claim for damages 
based on misleading or incomplete plans or specifications); or (c) an amount the payment of 
which is disputed by the Owner.  A Claim includes any claim within the scope of Public Contract 
Code sections 9204 or 20104 et seq., and any alleged violation of a prompt payment statute.   
Resubmittal in any manner of a COR which was previously rejected under Section 4.5.2 
constitutes a Claim, whether the COR was rejected in whole or in part, and whether the COR 
was rejected expressly or deemed rejected by Owner inaction.  A Claim includes any dispute 
Contractor may have with the Owner, including one which does not require a Notice of Potential 
Change or COR under Sections 4.5.1 and 4.5.2, and including any alleged breach of contract by 
the Owner (such as wrongful withholding of a payment by the Owner).  A Claim under this 
Article 4.5 shall also constitute a claim for purposes of the California False Claims Act.  In the 
event of a conflict between a Claims provision in Division 1 of the Specifications and Section 
4.5, Section 4.5 shall take precedence.   
 

1075



The Notice of Potential Change and COR procedures above are less formal procedures which 
precede the more formal Claim.  A Notice of Potential Change does not constitute a Claim.  A 
COR does not constitute a Claim; except that if insufficient time remains before the Claim 
deadline (see Article 4.5.4) for Contractor to submit a COR and for Owner to process and reject 
the COR under Article 4.5.2, then either (1) Contractor may submit a COR which Owner shall 
treat as a Claim, but only if the COR complies with all requirements in this Article 4.5 and 
Article 7 for COR’s and Claims, or (2) a COR is not required so long as a Claim complying with 
this Article 4.5 is timely submitted. 
 
A Claim does not include vouchers, invoices, progress payment applications, or other routine or 
authorized forms of requests for progress payments on the Contract; however, those documents 
remain “claims” for purposes of the California False Claims Act.   A Claim does not include a 
Government Code Claim.  (“Government Code Claim” means a claim under Government Code 
sections 900 et seq. and 910 et seq.) 
 

4.5.4 TIME FOR SUBMITTING CLAIM; WAIVER 
 
Contractor shall submit a Claim to the Owner’s construction manager (or in the absence of a 
construction manager, to Architect) and Owner within the earlier of (a) fifteen (15) days after 
Owner’s rejection of a COR in whole or in part, or (b) fifteen (15) days after a COR being 
deemed rejected, pursuant to Section 4.5.2 above.  If the Claim is not based on an issue for which 
a COR would be required (such as wrongful withholding by the Owner), then Contractor shall 
submit the Claim within fifteen (15) days after the date on which Contractor knew, or should 
have known, about the issue on which the Claim is based.  If a Claim has not been submitted as 
of the date that the Contractor Completes the Work and submittal of the Claim was not yet 
required under the Contract Documents, then the Claim shall be submitted within seven (7) days 
of Completion of the Work; and such Claim shall not be barred due to lack of a Notice of 
Potential Change or COR if the deadline for the Notice of Potential Change or COR was after 
Completion of the Work.   
 
In addition, within seven (7) days of Completion of the Work, Contractor shall submit to Owner, 
in writing, a list and summary of all Claims for money or time extensions under or arising out of 
this Contract which were timely filed, which were fully compliant with the Contract’s 
requirements for Claims, and which the Contractor wishes to pursue in whole or in part.  This 
Claim summary requirement shall not extend the time for submitting a Claim.   
 
Failure to timely submit a Claim or Claim summary, failure to specifically identify a Claim in 
the Claim summary, or failure to comply with any of the requirements in the Contract for a 
Claim, including but not limited to this Article 4, will act as a complete waiver of Contractor’s 
rights to (a) recover money or time on the issues for which a Claim was required, (b) submit a 
Government Code Claim for the money or time (see Section 4.5.6.4), and (c) initiate any action, 
proceeding or litigation for the money or time, regardless of the merits; Contractor will not have 
satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies.  Owner does not have an 
obligation to reject the Claim for a failure to comply with any of the Claim requirements in the 
Contract, including the lack of certification, and any failure by Owner to reject, or any delay in 
rejecting, a Claim on that basis does not waive the Owner’s right to reject the Claim on that basis 

1076



at a later time.  In no event may the Contractor reserve its rights to assert a Claim for a time 
extension or additional money beyond the timelines set forth in this provision unless the Owner 
agrees in writing to allow the reservation. 
 

4.5.5 CONTENT OF CLAIM  
 
  4.5.5.1  Claim Format; Waiver 
 
Every Claim shall be in writing.  All money or time extensions sought must be stated and 
itemized in the Claim at the time submitted.  The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest 
with the Contractor, and the Contractor shall furnish reasonable documentation to support each 
Claim, including as applicable, that documentation set forth in sections 4.5.5.2 through 4.5.5.4.  
 
In addition, the Contractor shall include a certification with each and every Claim at the time of 
submission, as follows: 
 

I, _____ [name of declarant], declare the following: 
 
_______[Contractor company name] has entered into a Contract with ____ 
[public entity name] on the ______ [name of project] Project.  __________ 
[Contractor company name] authorized me to prepare the attached Claim for 
money and/or time extension) for ______ [public entity name] regarding ____ 
[Contractor company’s name] Work on the Contract, and requesting 
$_________ and/or ___ additional days), and I prepared the attached Claim.  I 
am the most knowledgeable person at ______ [Contractor company name] 
regarding this Claim.  
 
The attached Claim complies with all laws applicable to submission of a 
Claim, including but not limited to California Penal Code section 72, 
Government Code sections 12650 et seq. (False Claims Act), and Business 
and Professions Code sections 17200 et seq. (Unfair Business Practices Act).  
I am aware that submission or certification of false claims, or other claims that 
violate law or the Contract, may lead to fines, imprisonment, and/or other 
serious legal consequences for myself or _____[Contractor company name].   
 
The attached Claim does not breach the Contract between _______[Contractor 
company name] and ______ [public entity name] for this Project, is not a false 
claim, does not violate any applicable law, satisfies all provisions of the 
Contract applicable to submission of the Claim, only contains truthful and 
accurate supporting data, and only requests money and/or time extensions that 
accurately reflect the adjustments to money and time for which I believe that 
_______[public entity name] is responsible under its Contract with _______ 
[Contractor company name].    

 

1077



While preparing this declaration and Claim, I consulted with others (including 
attorneys, consultants, or others who work for ________[Contractor company 
name]) when necessary to ensure that the statements were true and correct. 

 
Contractor understands and agrees that any Claim submitted without this 
certification does not meet the terms of the Contract Documents; that Owner, 
or Owner’s representatives, may reject the Claim on that basis; and that unless 
Contractor properly and timely files the Claim with the certification, 
Contractor cannot further pursue the Claim in any forum and all rights to 
additional money or time for the issues covered by the Claim are waived due 
to a condition precedent not having been satisfied.   
 
I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct.  Executed _________, 20__, at 
___________, California. 
 
_______________ 
______________ [name of declarant] 

 
 
Contractor’s failure to timely submit a certification will constitute a complete waiver of 
Contractor’s rights to (a) recover money or time on the issues for which a Claim was required, 
(b) submit a Government Code Claim (see Section 4.5.6.3) for the money or time, and (c) initiate 
any action, proceeding or litigation for the money or time.  Contractor will not have satisfied a 
condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies.  
 

4.5.5.2  Claims for Additional Money 
 
Each Claim for additional money (including but not limited to those described in (b) and (c) of 
the first paragraph of Section 4.5.3) must include all facts supporting the Claim, including but 
not limited to all supporting documentation plus a written analysis as to (a) why the claimed cost 
was incurred, (b) why Contractor could not mitigate its costs, (c) why the claimed cost is the 
responsibility of the Owner, and (d) why the claimed cost is a reasonable amount.  In no event 
will the Contractor be allowed to reserve its rights, whether in a Claim or other document, to 
assert a Claim for money at a later time or in a manner other than as required by the Contract 
Documents.  Any inclusion of a reservation of rights in a Claim shall be grounds for rejection of 
the Claim.  Any costs not asserted shall be waived.  A Claim may not include any costs incurred 
in preparation of the Claim or in preparation of any underlying COR, including but not limited to 
costs of delay analysis. 
 
  4.5.5.3  Claims for Additional Time  
 

4.5.5.3.1  Notice of Extent of Claim 
 
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time (including but not 
limited to Section 4.5.3(a)), the Claim shall include, but not be limited to, all facts supporting the 

1078



Claim, all documentation of such facts, all information required by the Contract Documents, all 
information establishing entitlement to a time extension pursuant to Section 8.4.1 below, a 
current and certified schedule (see Section 3.9.1, above), and a delay analysis explaining (a) the 
nature of the delay, (b) the Owner’s responsibility for the claimed delay, (c) the claimed delay’s 
impact on the critical path, (d) the claimed delay’s impact on the date of Completion (including 
an analysis of any float still remaining and whether the alleged delay in work exceeds such 
remaining float), and (e) why Contractor could not mitigate the delay impacts.  Failure to include 
an updated and certified schedule, or a delay analysis, in a Claim seeking a time extension will 
act as a complete waiver of Contractor’s rights to (i) recover money or time based on the issues 
addressed by the Claim, (ii) submit a Government Code Claim for the requested money or time 
(see Section 4.5.6.4), and (iii) initiate any action, proceeding or litigation for the requested 
money or time, regardless of the merits; Contractor will not have satisfied a condition precedent 
or exhausted administrative remedies.   
 
In no event will the Contractor be allowed to reserve its rights, whether in a Claim or other 
document, to assert a Claim for a time extension at a later time or in a manner other than as 
required by the Contract Documents.  Any inclusion of a reservation of rights in a Claim shall be 
grounds for rejection of the Claim.  Any time extension not timely asserted in a certified Claim 
shall be waived.  
 
   4.5.5.3.2  Unusual and Uncommon Weather Claims 
 
If unusual and uncommon weather is the basis for a Claim for additional time, Contractor’s delay 
analysis (see Section 4.5.5.3.1, above) must also provide Owner data and facts showing that the 
weather conditions were unusual and uncommon for the period of time, could not have been 
reasonably anticipated or mitigated, had an adverse effect on the critical path of the scheduled 
construction, and meet all other Contract requirements for a time extension (including but not 
limited to Section 8.4.1, below). 
 
  4.5.5.4  Subcontractor Requests for Money or Time  
 
A Subcontractor or supplier to Contractor may not submit a request for additional time or money 
directly to the Owner due to its lack of contractual privity with Owner.  If a Subcontractor or 
supplier submits to Contractor a request for additional money or time based on an alleged breach 
of the subcontract or supplier contract by Contractor, Contractor may elect to seek money or time 
from Owner based on that request of the Subcontractor or supplier.   
 
For any such request to Owner by Contractor, Contractor must comply with the requirements and 
prerequisites in the Contract Documents for requests to the Owner for money or time (including 
but not limited to Section 4.5 of the General Conditions regarding Notices of Potential Change, 
Change Order Requests [“CORs”], Claims, and certifications) and with Public Contract Code 
section 9204(d)(5).  Any such COR or Claim by Contractor must include Contractor’s 
certification (see General Conditions §§4.5.2 and 4.5.5.1), a complete copy of the 
Subcontractor’s or supplier’s request for money or time (including all documents submitted by 
the Subcontractor or supplier), and any other necessary supporting documentation.  Any such 
COR or Claim by Contractor must also include (a) Contractor’s detailed analysis of the merit of 

1079



Subcontractor’s or supplier’s request to the Contractor, including (i) analysis of Contractor’s 
alleged breaches of the subcontract or supplier contract that allegedly caused the Subcontractor 
or supplier to incur damages or delay, and (ii) analysis of all of Contractor’s defenses to the 
request for money or time by the Subcontractor or supplier; and (b) Contractor’s detailed 
analysis of the Owner’s liability to Contractor for any money or time that Contractor owes, or 
may later be determined to owe, to Subcontractor or supplier (including but not limited to how 
Owner’s alleged breaches of the Contract Documents caused Contractor to breach the 
subcontract or supplier contract).  In any such COR or Claim, Contractor may deny that it is 
liable to the Subcontractor or supplier for some or all of the requested money or time, or it may 
assert that it is merely submitting the COR or Claim to Owner on behalf of the Subcontractor or 
supplier; but doing one or the other would not excuse Contractor from complying with the above 
requirements for its request to the Owner.   
 
Any failure by Contractor to timely comply with this Section 4.5.5.4 (including a failure to 
timely submit a Notice of Potential Change, COR, Claim, certifications, or detailed analysis) 
shall act as a complete waiver of Contractor’s rights to (a) recover money or time from Owner 
based on any money or time that Contractor owes, or may later be determined to owe, to the 
Subcontractor or supplier, (b) submit a Government Code Claim to Owner for the money or time 
requested by the Subcontractor or supplier (see Section 4.5.6.3), and (c) initiate any action, 
proceeding or litigation against Owner for any money or time that Contractor owes, or may later 
be determined to owe, to the Subcontractor or supplier.  Contractor will not have satisfied a 
condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies. 

 
4.5.6 PROCEDURES FOR CLAIMS (PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 9204) 

 
Claims are subject to this section 4.5.6, and Public Contract Code section 9204, as well as the 
separate procedures and substantive provisions of Sections 4.5.1 through 4.5.5 and the rest of the 
Contract Documents. Claims of $375,000 or less, are also subject to Public Contract Code 
sections 20104 et seq., but to the extent that one of the procedures in Sections 20104 et seq. 
conflicts with the procedures in Section 9204, the requirements of Section 9204 shall control.   
 
  4.5.6.1  Claims  
 
The Owner shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and shall respond in writing to any 
written Claim within 45 days of receipt of the Claim.  During that 45-day period, plus any 
extension, Owner may request in writing additional documentation supporting the Claim or 
relating to defenses to the Claim the Owner may have against the Contractor.  Owner shall 
review any additional documentation Contractor supplies in response to that request within the 
45 day, plus any extension, timeline.   
 
After receipt of a Claim, the 45-day period may be extended by Owner and Contractor.  The 
written response shall identify which portion of the Claim is disputed and what portion is 
undisputed.  If Owner needs approval from its city council to provide the written response, and 
the city council does not meet within the 45 days or any extended period of time, then the Owner 
shall have up to three days after the next publicly noticed meeting of the city council to provide 
the written response.  Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall be processed 

1080



and made within sixty (60) days after the Owner issues the written response.  Owner’s failure to 
respond to a Claim within the above time periods or to otherwise meet the above time 
requirements shall result in the Claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. 
 
  4.5.6.2  Meet and Confer 
 
If the Contractor disputes the Owner’s written response, or the Owner fails to respond within the 
time prescribed, the Contractor may so notify the Owner, in writing, either within 15 days of 
receipt of the Owner’s response or within 15 days of the Owner’s failure to respond within the 
time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for 
settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon a written demand sent by registered or certified mail 
return receipt requested, the Owner shall schedule a meet and confer conference for settlement of 
the dispute, which shall take place within 30 days of the demand.  Upon written agreement of the 
Owner and Contractor, the conference may take place during regularly scheduled Project 
meetings. The informal conference is not a mediation since there is no neutral person facilitating 
communication to assist the parties to reach agreement; therefore, the provisions of Evidence 
Code sections 1115-1128 shall not apply to any portion of the informal conference (including but 
not limited to any documents provided or shown, or statements of fact or opinion made, by a 
party) unless the parties expressly agree in writing to their application.  Any offer of compromise 
at an informal conference shall not be admissible to prove liability, as provided in Evidence 
Code section 1152, but this statute’s prohibition of admissibility shall not apply to other 
statements before or at the informal conference, or in any document prepared for or exchanged at 
the informal conference. 
 
If Contractor fails to timely notify the Owner that it wishes to meet and confer pursuant to the 
previous paragraph, then Contractor will have waived all rights to (a) recover money or time on 
the issues for which a Claim was required, (b) submit a Government Code Claim (see Section 
4.5.6) for such money or time, and (c) initiate any action, proceeding or litigation for such money 
or time.  Contractor will not have satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted administrative 
remedies.  
 
Within ten (10) business days after the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, the Owner 
shall give a written statement to the Contractor identifying the portion of the Claim that remains 
in dispute and the portion that is undisputed.  Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the 
Claim shall be processed and made within sixty (60) days after the Owner issues the written 
statement.  Within ten (10) business days of issuance of Owner’s written statement, Contractor 
shall identify in writing the disputed portion of the Claim that shall be submitted to non-binding 
mediation (which may consist of any nonbinding process, including but not limited to neutral 
evaluation or a dispute review board), with the Owner and Contractor sharing the costs equally.  
The Owner and Contractor shall mutually agree to a mediator within ten (10) business days after 
the Contractor has identified in writing the disputed portion of the Claim.  If they cannot agree 
upon a mediator, then each shall select a mediator and those two mediators shall select a 
qualified neutral third party to mediate the disputed portion of the Claim. (Each party shall bear 
the fees and costs its respective mediator charged in connection with the selection of the neutral 
mediator).  The parties may mutually waive in writing the requirement for mediation.  If 
Contractor fails to timely notify the Owner in writing that it wishes to mediate pursuant to this 

1081



paragraph, Contractor will have waived all right to further pursue the Claim pursuant to section 
4.5.4.  The parties shall reasonably cooperate to schedule and attend a mediation as soon as 
reasonably possible.  Owner’s failure to respond to the Claim within the above time periods or to 
otherwise meet the above time requirements shall result in the Claim being deemed rejected in its 
entirety.   
 
  4.5.6.3  Government Code Claim 
 
If the Claim or any portion remains in dispute after the mediation and Contractor wishes to 
pursue it, the Contractor must file a timely and proper Government Code Claim.  The filing of a 
Government Code Claim is specifically required in addition to all contractual procedures 
described in Sections 4.5 through 4.5.6.2.  The above contractual procedures do not act as a 
substitute for the Government Code Claim process, and the two sets of procedures shall be 
sequential with the contractual procedures coming first. 
 
Failure to timely file a Government Code Claim shall act as complete waiver of Contractor’s 
rights to (a) recover money or time on the issues for which a Government Code Claim was 
required, and (b) initiate any action, proceeding or litigation for such money or time.  Contractor 
will not have satisfied a condition precedent or exhausted administrative remedies. 
 
Owner and Contractor shall proceed with the Government Code Claim according to Government 
Code, Section 900 et seq., and as otherwise permitted by law.  For purposes of the applicable 
Government Code provisions, and as provided in Public Contract Code section 20104.2(e), the 
running of the time period within which a Contractor must file a Government Code Claim shall 
be tolled from the time the Contractor submits a written Claim under Article 4.5 until the time 
that the Claim is denied, in whole or in part, as a result of the meet and confer process in Section 
4.5.6.2, including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process. 
 

4.5.7 CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 
 
Despite Contractor’s submission of, or Owner’s rejection of, a Notice of Potential Change, COR 
or Claim, or Government Code Claim based on alleged breaches of the Contract by Owner, the 
Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract as directed by Owner, and 
the Owner shall continue to make any undisputed payments in accordance with the Contract. 
Contractor acknowledges that Completion of the Work is a high priority for both Owner and 
Contractor as failure to Complete the Work would most likely cause each of them to incur much 
greater costs and damages than would be incurred if the Work were Completed.  If Contractor 
believes that Owner has breached the Contract and that such breach is preventing or delaying 
Contractor’s performance as directed by Owner, then Contractor must submit notice as required 
by Section 3.18, above.     

 
4.5.8 CLAIMS FOR CONCEALED OR UNKNOWN CONDITIONS 

 
  4.5.8.1  Trenches or Excavations Less Than Four Feet Below the Surface 
 
If Contractor encounters conditions at the Site which are subsurface or otherwise concealed 

1082



physical conditions, which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or 
unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily 
found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character 
provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall give notice to the Owner promptly 
before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than ten (10) days after first observance of 
the conditions.  If Contractor believes that such conditions differ materially and will cause an 
increase in the Contractor’s cost of, time required for, or performance of any part of the Work, 
Contractor must comply with the provisions above for Notice of Potential Change, Change Order 
Request, and Claims (beginning with Section 4.5.1).   
 

4.5.8.2  Trenches or Excavations Greater Than Four Feet Below the Surface 
 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, when any excavation or trenching extends 
greater than four feet below the surface: 
 
   4.5.8.2.1  The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following 

conditions are disturbed, notify the public entity, in writing, of any: 
 
    (1)  Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is 

hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that 
is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in 
accordance with the provisions of existing law. 

 
    (2)  Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing 

from those indicated by information about the site made available to bidders prior 
to the deadline for submitting bids. 

 
    (3)  Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, 

different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized 
as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract. 

 
   4.5.8.2.2  The public entity shall promptly investigate the conditions, and 

if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous 
waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or the time 
required for, performance of any part of the Work shall issue a change order 
under the procedures described in the Contract. 

 
   4.5.8.2.3  In the event that a dispute arises between the public entity and 

the Contractor whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous 
waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required 
for, performance of any part of the Work, the Contractor shall not be excused 
from the Contract Completion deadline, but shall proceed with all Work to be 
performed under the Contract.  The Contractor shall retain any and all rights 
provided either by Contract or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes 
and protests between the contracting parties. 

 

1083



 4.5.9  INJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY 
 
If either party to the Contract suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or 
omission of the other party, any of the other party’s employees or agents, or others for whose 
acts such party is legally liable, written notice of such injury or damage, whether or not insured, 
shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding ten (10) days after first 
observance.  The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the 
matter.  For a Notice of Potential Change, COR and Claim for additional cost or time related to 
this injury or damage, Contractor shall follow Section 4.5. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
 

SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

5.1 DEFINITIONS 
 
 5.1.1 SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
A Subcontractor is a person or entity, who has a contract with the Contractor to perform a 
portion of the Work at the Site.  The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative 
of the Subcontractor.  The term “Subcontractor” does not include a separate contractor or 
subcontractors of a separate contractor.  To the extent that the term Trade Contractor is utilized 
in the Contract Documents, it shall have the same meaning as the term “Subcontractor.”  
 
 5.1.2 SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a 
Subcontractor to perform a portion of the Work at the Site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is 
referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-
subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor. 
 
 5.1.3 SPECIALTY CONTRACTORS 
 
If a Subcontractor is designated as a “Specialty Contractor” as defined in section 7058 of the 
Business and Professions Code, all of the Work outside of that Subcontractor’s specialty shall be 
performed in compliance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act, Public 
Contract Code sections 4100, et seq.   
 
5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF 

THE WORK 
 
 5.2.1 ASSIGNMENT OR SUBSTITUTION - CONSENT OF OWNER 
 
In accordance with Public Contract Code sections 4107 and 4107.5, no Contractor whose bid is 
accepted shall, without the written consent of the Owner: substitute any person or entity as a 

1084



Subcontractor in place of the Subcontractor designated in the original bid; permit any such 
Subcontract to be assigned or transferred, or allow it to be performed by any person or entity 
other than the original Subcontractor listed in the original bid; sublet or subcontract any portion 
of the Work in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the Contractor’s total bid as to which 
its original bid did not designate a Subcontractor.  Any assignment or substitution made without 
the prior written consent of the awarding authority shall be void, and the assignees shall acquire 
no rights in the Contract.  Any consent, if given, shall not relieve Contractor or its 
Subcontractors from their obligations under the terms of the Contract Documents. 
 
 5.2.2 GROUNDS FOR SUBSTITUTION 
 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4107 and the procedure set forth therein, no Contractor 
whose bid is accepted may request to substitute any person or entity as a Subcontractor in place 
of a Subcontractor listed in the original bid except in the following instances: 
 
 A. When the Subcontractor listed in the bid after having a reasonable opportunity to 

do so, fails or refuses to execute a written contract for the scope of work specified 
in the subcontractor’s bid and at the price specified in the subcontractor’s bid, 
when that written contract, based upon the general terms, conditions, plans and 
specifications for the Project involved or the terms of that Subcontractor’s written 
bid, is presented to the Subcontractor by the Contractor; 

 
 B. When the listed Subcontractor becomes insolvent or the subject of an order for 

relief in bankruptcy;  
 
 C. When the listed Subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his or her Subcontract; 
 
 D. When the listed Subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bond requirements of 

the prime contractor set forth in Public Contract Code section 4108. 
 
 E. When the Contractor demonstrates to the awarding authority, or its duly 

authorized officer, subject to the further provisions of Public Contract Code 
section 4107.5, that the name of the Subcontractor was listed as the result of 
inadvertent clerical error;  

 
 F. When the listed Subcontractor is not licensed pursuant to the Contractors License 

Law; or 
 
 G. When the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, determines that the 

Work being performed by the listed Subcontractor is substantially unsatisfactory 
and not in substantial accordance with the plans and specifications, or the 
Subcontractor is substantially delaying or disrupting the progress of the Work. 

 
H. When the listed Subcontractor is ineligible to work on a public works project 

pursuant to Section 1777.1 of the Labor Code. 
 

1085



 I. When the awarding authority determines that a listed Subcontractor is not a 
responsible contractor. 

 
  5.2.2.1  No Change in Contract.  Any substitutions of Subcontractors shall not 
result in any increase in the Contract Sum or result in the granting of any extension of time for 
Completion of the Work. 
 
  5.2.2.2  Substitution Due to Clerical Error.  The Contractor, as a condition of 
asserting a claim of inadvertent clerical error in the listing of a Subcontractor, shall, pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 4107.5, within two (2) working days after the time of the prime bid 
opening by the awarding authority, give written notice to the awarding authority and copies of 
such notice to both the Subcontractor it claims to have listed in error, and the intended 
Subcontractor who had bid to the Contractor prior to bid opening.  Any listed Subcontractor who 
has been notified by the Contractor in accordance with the provisions of this section as to an 
inadvertent clerical error, shall be allowed six (6) working days from the time of the prime bid 
opening within which to submit to the awarding authority and to the Contractor written objection 
to the Contractor’s claim of inadvertent clerical error. 
 
 In all other cases, the Contractor must make a request in writing to the awarding authority 
for the substitution of a subcontractor, giving reasons therefor.  The awarding authority shall 
mail a written notice to the listed Subcontractor giving reasons for the proposed substitution.  
The listed Subcontractor shall have five (5) working days from the date of such notice within 
which to file with the awarding authority written objections to the substitution. 
 
 Failure to file written objections pursuant to the provisions of this section within the 
times specified herein shall constitute a complete waiver of objection to the substitution by the 
listed Subcontractor and, where the ground for substitution is an inadvertent clerical error, an 
agreement by the listed Subcontractor that an inadvertent clerical error was made. 
 
 If written objections are filed, the awarding authority shall give five (5) days notice to the 
Contractor and to the listed Subcontractor of a hearing by the awarding authority on the 
Contractor’s request for substitution as provided in Public Contract Code section 4107.  The 
determination by the awarding authority shall be final. 
 
5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS  
 
By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall 
require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be 
bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the 
Contractor all obligations and responsibilities, which the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, 
assumes toward the Owner.  Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of 
the Owner under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the 
Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the 
Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit 
of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract 
Documents, has against the Owner.  Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each 

1086



Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors.  The Contractor shall 
make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract 
agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound.  Upon 
written request of the Subcontractor, the Contractor shall identify to the Subcontractor the terms 
and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement, which may be at variance with the 
Contract Documents.  Subcontractors shall similarly make copies of applicable portions of such 
documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors. 
 
5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS 
 
Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner 
provided that: 
 
 A. Assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract with the Contractor 

by the Owner for cause pursuant to Article 14 and only for those subcontract 
agreements which the Owner accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; 
and 

 
 B. Assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any 

bond relating to the Contract. 
 
5.5 SUBCONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Every Subcontractor is bound to the following provisions, unless specifically noted to the 
contrary in the Subcontractor’s contract subject to the limitations of section 5.3. 
 
 5.5.1 SUPERVISION BY SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Subcontractors shall efficiently supervise their Work, using their best skill and attention.  Each of 
them shall carefully study and compare all Drawings, Specifications, and other instructions, shall 
at once report to Contractor any error or omission which any of them may discover, and shall 
subsequently proceed with the Work in accordance with instructions from the Contractor 
concerning such error or omission.  Each Subcontractor shall be fully responsible for and shall 
bear the full risk of loss of all of its property. 
 
 5.5.2 DISCIPLINE AND ORDER 
 
Each Subcontractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 
Subcontractors, material or equipment suppliers, or their agents, employees, and invitees, and 
shall establish and maintain surveillance over the activities of each of the foregoing to minimize 
any disturbance, damage, pollution, or unsightly conditions relative to property areas adjacent to 
or in the vicinity of the Site.  The Contractor shall have the right to remove from the Work any 
employee of a Subcontractor for any reason including, without limitation, incompetence or 
carelessness. 
 

1087



 5.5.3 DEFECTS DISCOVERED 
 
Should the proper and accurate performance of the Work depend upon the proper and accurate 
performance of other work not included in its Contract, each Subcontractor shall use all 
necessary means to discover any defect in such other work and shall allow the Contractor, the 
Owner and Architect, or other Subcontractors as Contractor elects, a reasonable amount of time 
to remedy such defects.  If the Subcontractor should proceed with its Work, it shall be considered 
to have accepted such other work, unless the Subcontractor shall have proceeded pursuant to 
instructions in writing by the Contractor over its written objection. 
 
 5.5.4 SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 
 
Each Subcontractor shall submit to the Owner, the Contractor, or the Architect, as the case may 
be, promptly when requested by any of the foregoing, information with respect to the names, 
responsibilities, and titles of the principal members of its staff, the adequacy of the 
Subcontractor’s equipment and the availability of necessary materials and supplies.  
Subcontractor shall fully cooperate with Contractor in its periodic review of the adequacy of 
Subcontractor’s supervision, personnel, and equipment, and the availability of necessary 
materials and supplies and shall promptly comply with the requirements of the Contractor with 
respect thereto. 
 
 5.5.5 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES 
 
Each Subcontractor shall furnish at its expense its own temporary facilities and storage except 
those specifically agreed to be furnished to it by the Contractor in the Subcontract Agreement.  
Subcontractor’s material storage rooms and field offices, etc., will be placed in locations 
designated by the Contractor.  When it becomes necessary due to the progress of the Work for 
the Subcontractor to relocate its field operations, it will do so in an expeditious manner and at no 
additional cost to Contractor or Owner.  The construction of material storage rooms and field 
offices, etc., will be of fire resistive material only, such as concrete or gypsum block, rated 
drywall, or sheet metal. 
 
 5.5.6 CHARGES TO SUBCONTRACTOR 
 
Each Subcontractor may be subject to the Contractor’s reasonable charges for hoisting, repair to 
other work caused by the fault or negligence of Subcontractor, removal of Subcontractor’s 
rubbish, and clean-up occasioned by Subcontractor. 
 
 5.5.7 FINES IMPOSED 
 
Subcontractor shall comply with and pay any fines or penalties imposed for violation of any 
applicable law, ordinance, rule, regulation, Environmental Impact Report mitigation requirement, 
and lawful order of any public authority, including, without limitation, all OSHA and California 
OSHA requirements and those of other authorities having jurisdiction of the safety of persons or 
property. 
 

1088



 5.5.8 PROJECT SIGNS 
 
Each Subcontractor shall not display on or about the Project any sign, trademark, or other 
advertisement.  The Owner will permit a single Project sign, which shall be subject to the 
Owner’s prior and sole discretion and approval, as to all matters including, without limitation, 
size, location, material, colors, style and size of printing, logos and trademarks (if any), text, and 
selection of names to be displayed. 
 
 5.5.9 REMEDIES FOR FAILURE TO PERFORM 
 
Without limitation of any other right or remedy available to Contractor under the Contract 
Documents or at law, should: the Subcontractor fail to perform its portion of the Work in a 
skilled and expeditious manner in accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents with 
sufficient labor, materials, equipment, and facilities; delays the progress of the job or otherwise 
fail in any of its obligations; or either a receiver is appointed for the Subcontractor or the 
Subcontractor is declared to be bankrupt or insolvent, and such appointment, bankruptcy, or 
insolvency proceedings or declaration is not set aside within thirty (30) days, then the Contractor, 
upon three (3) days notice to the Subcontractor (subject to the requirements of Pub. Contracts 
Code, § 4107), may provide such labor, materials, or perform such work and recover the cost 
plus profit and overhead from monies due or to become due thereafter to the Subcontractor.  The 
Contractor may terminate the employment of the Subcontractor, taking possession of its tools, 
materials, and equipment related to the Work and cause the entire portion of the Subcontractor’s 
Work to be finished either by another Subcontractor or through the Contractor’s own forces. 
 
  5.5.10 DISPUTES NOT TO AFFECT WORK 
 
In the event of any dispute as to whether or not any portion of the Work is within the scope of 
the Work to be performed by a Subcontractor, or any dispute as to whether or not the 
Subcontractor is entitled to a Change Order for any Work requested of it or entitled to payment, 
the Subcontractor shall continue to proceed diligently with the performance of the Work.  
Regardless of the size or nature of the dispute, the Subcontractor shall not under any 
circumstances cease or delay performance of its portion of the Work during the existence of the 
dispute.  The Contractor shall continue to pay the undisputed amounts called for under the 
Subcontract Agreement during the existence of the dispute.  Any party stopping or delaying the 
progress of the Work because of a dispute shall be responsible in damages to the Owner, the 
Architect, and the Contractor for any losses suffered as a result of the delay. 
 
 5.5.11 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
 
Contractor agrees to advise the Subcontractor if any documentation in connection with the 
Subcontractor’s application for payment has not been accepted or is in any way unsatisfactory. 
 
 5.5.12 COMPLIANCE WITH PROCEDURES 
 
Each Subcontractor shall comply with all procedures established by the Contractor for 
coordination among the Owner, the Owner’s consultants, Architect, Contractor, and the various 

1089



Subcontractors for coordination of the Work with all local municipal authorities, government 
agencies, utility companies, and any other agencies with jurisdiction over all or any portion of 
the Work.  The Subcontractor shall cooperate fully with all of the foregoing parties and 
authorities. 
 
 5.5.13 ON-SITE RECORD KEEPING 
 
Subcontractor shall comply with all on-Site record keeping systems established by the Contractor 
and shall, upon the request of the Contractor, provide the Contractor with such information and 
reports as the Contractor may deem appropriate.  Without limitation of the foregoing, the 
Subcontractor shall assemble all required permits and certificates so that they are readily 
accessible at the Site. 
 
 5.5.14 NON-EXCLUSIVE OBLIGATIONS 
 
The specific requirements of Article 5 are not intended to exclude the obligation of the 
Subcontractor to comply with any of the other provisions of the General Conditions and the other 
Contract Documents which are relevant to the proper performance of its portion of the Work. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
 

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS 
 

6.1  OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD 
SEPARATE CONTRACTS 
 
 6.1.1 OWNER’S RIGHTS 
 
The Owner reserves the right to perform Project work with the Owner’s own forces, or to award 
separate contracts in connection with such other work or other construction or operations on the 
Site under contract conditions identical or substantially similar to these including those portions 
related to insurance.  Upon the election to perform such work with its own forces or by separate 
contracts, the Owner shall notify the Contractor.  If the Contractor claims that delay or additional 
cost is involved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall proceed pursuant to 
Section 4.5 in the Contract Documents. 
 
 6.1.2 DESIGNATION AS CONTRACTOR 
 
When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or 
operations on the Site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each of those 
contracts shall mean the contractor who executes each separate Owner/Contractor agreement. 
 
 6.1.3 CONTRACTOR DUTIES 
 
Although the Owner shall have overall responsibility for coordination and scheduling of the 
activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each separate contractor with the Work of the 

1090



Contractor, Contractor shall cooperate with Owner. The Contractor shall participate with other 
separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules when directed to do 
so.  The Contractor shall make any revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after 
a joint review and mutual agreement.  The construction schedules shall then constitute the 
schedules to be used by the Contractor until subsequently revised. 
 
 6.1.4 OWNER OBLIGATIONS 
 
Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs work related to 
the Project with the Owner’s own forces, the Owner shall be deemed to be subject to the same 
obligations, and to have the same rights, which apply to the Contractor under the General 
Conditions, including, without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6 and 
Articles 10 and 12. 
 
6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
 6.2.1 DELIVERY AND STORAGE 
 
The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for 
delivery and storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and 
shall connect and coordinate the separate contractors’ construction and operations with theirs as 
required by the Contract Documents. 
 
 6.2.2 NOTICE BY CONTRACTOR 
 
If part of the Contractor’s Work depends upon proper execution or results from work by the 
Owner or a separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the 
Work, promptly report to the Owner patent discrepancies or defects in such other construction 
that would render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results.  Failure of the Contractor to 
so report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or separate contractors’ 
completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work, 
except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable. 
 
 6.2.3 COSTS INCURRED 
 
Costs, expenses, and damages caused by delays, improperly timed activities, defective 
construction, or damages to another’s work/Work or property shall be borne by the party 
responsible.  Should Contractor cause damage to the work or property of any other contractor on 
the Project, or to the Project or property of a third party, or cause any delay to any such 
contractor or third party, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold Owner harmless for 
such damage or delay under Section 3.16, above.  Owner may withhold from progress payments 
and/or retention the cost of delay or damage to another contractor’s work or damage to another 
contractor’s property or to the property of Owner caused by Contractor. 
 

1091



 6.2.4 CORRECTION OF DAMAGE 
 
The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage wrongfully caused by the Contractor to 
completed or partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate 
contractors. 
 
6.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP 
 
If a dispute arises among the Contractor, separate contractors, and the Owner as to the 
responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area 
free from waste materials and rubbish as described in Section 3.13, the Owner may clean up and 
allocate the cost among those responsible as the Owner determines to be just. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
 

CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 

7.1 CHANGES 
 
 7.1.1 NO CHANGES WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION 
 
The Owner reserves the right to change the Work by making such alterations, deviations, 
additions to, or deletions from the plans and specifications, as may be deemed by the Owner to 
be necessary or advisable for the proper Completion or construction of the Work contemplated, 
and Owner reserves the right to require Contractor to perform such work.  No adjustment will be 
made in the Contract unit price of any Contract item regardless of the quantity ultimately 
required.   
 
Owner shall compensate Contractor with money or grant extra time for any extra work ordered 
by the Owner to be performed.  Contractor shall follow the provisions of the Contract 
Documents, including General Conditions sections 4.5, 7.6, 7.7, and 8.4, when requesting 
additional money or additional time.  Contractor shall expeditiously perform all extra work upon 
direction, even if no agreement has been reached on extra time or money.  For all such changes 
resulting in a credit to Owner, Contractor shall follow Sections 7.5 and 7.7 in providing the 
credit to Owner.  Contractor shall bring all potential credits to the Owner’s attention. 
 
There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings, specifications, or in the Work or payments 
under the Contract Documents without an executed Change Order, Construction Change 
Directive, or order by the Owner pursuant to Section 7.1.2.  Owner shall not be liable for the cost 
of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the 
Drawings and Specifications unless the same shall have been properly requested under Section 
4.5 and authorized by, and the cost thereof approved in writing by, Change Order or 
Construction Change Directive.  Owner shall not be liable for, and Contractor shall bear the 
burden of, any post-bid escalation in the costs of materials; but Contractor will retain the benefit 
of any post-bid cost decreases.  No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be 
allowed hereunder unless request for such extension is properly made under Section 4.5 and such 

1092



time is thereof approved in writing by Change Order or Construction Change Directive.  The 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall apply to all such changes, additions, and omissions 
with the same effect as if originally embodied in the Drawings and Specifications.   
 
 7.1.2 AUTHORITY TO ORDER MINOR CHANGES  
 
The Owner has authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any adjustment in the 
Contract Sum, an extension of the Contract Time, or a change which is inconsistent with the 
intent of the Contract Documents.  Such changes shall be effected by written Construction 
Change Directive and shall be binding on the Contractor.  The Contractor shall carry out such 
written orders promptly. 
 
7.2 CHANGE ORDERS (“CO”)  
 
A CO is a written instrument signed by the Owner and the Contractor, stamped (or sealed) and 
signed by Architect, and approved by the Owner’s City Council, stating the agreement of Owner 
and Contractor upon all of the following: 
 
 A. A change in the Work; 
 
 B. The amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and 
 
 C. The extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any. 
 
Unless expressly stated otherwise in the CO, any CO executed by Owner and Contractor 
constitutes and includes full and complete money and time (including but not limited to, 
adjustments to money and time) for all costs and effects caused by any of the changes described 
within it.  Unless expressly stated otherwise in the CO, in consideration for the money received 
for the changes described in the CO, Contractor waives all Claims for all costs and effects caused 
by any of the changes, including but not limited to labor, equipment, materials, delay, extra 
work, overhead (home and field), profit, direct costs, acceleration, disruption, impaired 
productivity, time extensions, and any the costs and effects on Subcontractors and suppliers of 
any tier. 
 
7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES (“CCD 
 
 7.3.1 DEFINITION 
 
A CCD is a written unilateral order signed by the Owner directing performance of the Work or a 
change in the Work.  The CCD may state an adjustment in the Contract Sum, Contract Time, or 
Milestone Deadline.  The Owner may by CCD, without invalidating the Contract, order changes 
in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions pursuant to Section 7.1.1.   
 

1093



7.3.2 USE TO DIRECT CHANGE 
 
A CCD shall be used in the absence of agreement on the terms of a CO.  If Contractor disagrees 
with the terms of a CCD, it shall nevertheless perform the work directed by the CCD, but it may 
pursue the Notice of Potential Change, COR and Claim procedures of Section 4.5 if Contractor 
believes it is entitled to changes in the Contract Sum or Contract Time.   
 
7.4 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (“RFI 
 
 7.4.1 DEFINITION 
 
An RFI is a written request prepared by the Contractor asking the Owner to provide additional 
information necessary to clarify an item which the Contractor feels is not clearly shown or called 
for in the drawings or specifications, or to address problems which have arisen under field 
conditions. 
 
 7.4.2 SCOPE 
 
The RFI shall reference all the applicable Contract Documents including specification section, 
detail, page numbers, drawing numbers, and sheet numbers, etc.  The Contractor shall make 
suggestions and/or interpretations of the issue raised by the RFI.  An RFI cannot modify the 
Contract Sum, Contract Time, or the Contract Documents. 
 
 7.4.3 RESPONSE TIME 
 
Unless Owner expressly directs otherwise in writing, Contractor shall submit RFIs directly to the 
Architect, with copies forwarded to the Owner.  Contractor shall submit a revised and updated 
priority schedule with each RFI.  The Architect shall endeavor to follow the Contractor’s 
requested order of priorities.  The Owner and Contractor agree that an adequate time period for 
the Architect (or other designated recipient of the RFI) to respond to an RFI is generally fourteen 
(14) calendar days after the Architect’s receipt of an RFI, unless the Owner and Contractor agree 
otherwise in writing.  However, in all cases, the Architect shall take such time, whether more or 
less than 14 days, as is necessary in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate 
review and evaluation of the RFI.  If Contractor informs the Architect that it needs a response to 
an RFI expedited to avoid delay to the critical path, the Architect shall provide a response as 
quickly as reasonably possible.  The total time required for the Architect to respond is subject to 
the complexity of the RFI, the number of RFI’s submitted concurrently and the reprioritization of 
pending RFI’s submitted by the Contractor, among other things.  If Contractor believes that the 
Architect’s response results in a change in the Work that warrants additional money or time, or 
that Architect’s response was unreasonably delayed and caused delay to the Work’s critical path, 
Contractor shall follow the procedures for additional money or time under Section 4.5.  No 
presumption shall arise as to the timeliness of the response if the response is more than fourteen 
(14) days after the Architect’s receipt of the RFI.  Contractor shall review the Contract 
Documents before submitting an RFI to ensure that the information is not already in the Contract 
Documents.  To compensate the Owner for time and costs incurred for each time the information 
was already in the Contract Documents, Owner may withhold $100 from progress payments or 

1094



retention in addition to any other remedies which Owner may have the right to pursue. 
 
 7.4.4 COSTS INCURRED 
 
The Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for any costs incurred for professional services, 
which shall be withheld from progress payments or retention, if an RFI requests an interpretation 
or decision of a matter where the information sought is equally available to the party making 
such request. 
 
7.5 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (“RFP”) 
 
 7.5.1 DEFINITION 
 
An RFP is Owner’s written request asking the Contractor to submit to the Owner an estimate of 
the effect, including credits, of a proposed change on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time. 
 
 7.5.2 SCOPE 
 
An RFP shall contain adequate information, including any necessary drawings and 
specifications, to enable Contractor to provide the cost breakdowns required by section 7.7.  The 
Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional money for preparing a response to an RFP, 
whether ultimately accepted or not. 
 
7.6 CHANGE ORDER REQUEST (“COR”) 
 
 7.6.1 DEFINITION 
 
A COR is any written request prepared by the Contractor asking the Owner for additional money 
or time, including a “proposed change order” or “PCO.”  However, a Claim (see Sections 4.5.3-
4.5.6) is not a COR.  See Section 4.5.2 for additional COR requirements.  The COR shall include 
all information necessary to establish the Contractor’s entitlement to additional money or time. 
 
 7.6.2 CHANGES IN PRICE 
 
A COR shall include breakdowns per section 7.7 to validate any proposed change in Contract 
Sum. 
 
 7.6.3 CHANGES IN TIME 
 
Where a change in a Milestone Deadline or Contract Time is requested, a COR shall also include 
delay analysis to validate any proposed change, and shall meet all requirements in these General 
Conditions, including but not limited to Section 8.4.  Any additional time requested shall not be 
the number of days to make the proposed change, but must be based upon the impact to the 
Work schedule as defined in section 3.9 and Division 1 of the Specifications. 
 

1095



7.7 PRICE OF CHANGE ORDERS 
 
 7.7.1 SCOPE 
 
Any COR shall provide in writing to the Owner, the Architect and any construction manager, the 
effect of the proposed CO upon the Contract Sum and the actual cost of construction, which shall 
include a complete itemized cost breakdown of all labor and material showing actual quantities, 
hours, unit prices, wage rates, required for the change, and the effect upon the Contract Time of 
such CO.   
 
 7.7.2 DETERMINATION OF COST 
 
The amount of the increase or decrease in the Contract Sum resulting from a CO, if any, shall be 
determined in one or more of the following ways as applicable to a specific situation: 
 
 A. Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient 

substantiating data to permit evaluation; 
 
 B. Unit prices stated in the Contractor’s original bid, the Contract Documents, or 

subsequently agreed upon between the Owner and the Contractor; 
 
 C. Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually 

acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or 
 
 D. By cost of material and labor and percentage of overhead and profit.  If the value 

is determined by this method the following requirements shall apply: 
 
  1. Daily Reports by Contractor. 
 

 a)   General:  At the close of each working day, the Contractor shall 
submit a daily report to the Inspector of Record and any construction manager, 
on forms approved by the Owner, together with applicable delivery tickets, 
listing all labor, materials, and equipment involved for that day, the location of 
the work, and for other services and expenditures when authorized concerning 
extra work items.  An attempt shall be made to reconcile the report daily, and it 
shall be signed by the Inspector of Record and the Contractor.  In the event of 
disagreement, pertinent notes shall be entered by each party to explain points 
which cannot be resolved immediately.  Each party shall retain a signed copy 
of the report.  Reports by Subcontractors or others shall be submitted through 
the Contractor. 

 
   b)   Labor:  Show names of workers, classifications, and hours worked. 
 
   c)   Materials:  Describe and list quantities of materials used. 
 
   d)   Equipment:  Show type of equipment, size, identification number, and hours 

1096



of operation, including, if applicable, loading and transportation. 
 
   e)   Other Services and Expenditures:  Describe in such detail as the Owner may 

require. 
 
  2. Basis for Establishing Costs. 
 
   a)   Labor will be the actual cost for wages prevailing locally for each craft or type 

of workers at the time the extra work is done, plus employer payments of 
payroll taxes and insurance, health and welfare, pension, vacation, 
apprenticeship funds, and other direct costs resulting from Federal, State, or 
local laws, as well as assessments or benefits required by lawful collective 
bargaining agreements.  The use of a labor classification, which would increase 
the extra work cost, will not be permitted unless the Contractor establishes the 
necessity for such additional costs.  Labor costs for equipment operators and 
helpers shall be reported only when such costs are not included in the invoice 
for equipment rental. 

 
   b)   Materials shall be at invoice or lowest current price at which such materials 

are locally available and delivered to the Site in the quantities involved, plus 
sales tax, freight, and delivery. 

 
      The Owner reserves the right to approve materials and sources of supply or to 

supply materials to the Contractor if necessary for the progress of the Work.  
No markup shall be applied to any material provided by the Owner. 

 
   c)   Tool and Equipment Rental.  No payment will be made for the use of tools 

which have a replacement value of $100 or less. 
 
      Regardless of ownership, the rates to be used in determining equipment rental 

costs shall not exceed listed rates prevailing locally at equipment rental 
agencies or distributors at the time the work is performed. 

 
      The rental rates paid shall include the cost of fuel, oil, lubrication, supplies, 

small tools, necessary attachments, repairs and maintenance of any kind, 
depreciation, storage, insurance, and all incidentals. 

 
      Necessary loading and transportation costs for equipment used on the extra 

work shall be included.  If equipment is used intermittently and, when not in 
use, could be returned to its rental source at less expense to the Owner than 
holding it at the work Site, it shall be returned unless the Contractor elects to 
keep it at the work Site at no expense to the Owner. 

 
      All equipment shall be acceptable to the Inspector of Record, in good 

working condition, and suitable for the purpose for which it is to be used.  
Manufacturer’s ratings and modifications shall be used to classify equipment, 

1097



and equipment shall be powered by a unit of at least the minimum rating 
recommended by the manufacturer. 

 
   d)   Other Items.  The Owner may authorize other items which may be required on 

the extra work.  Such items include labor, services, material, and equipment 
which are different in their nature from those required by the Work, and which 
are of a type not ordinarily available from the Contractor or any of the 
Subcontractors.  Invoices covering all such items in detail shall be submitted 
with the Application for Payment. 

 
   e)   Invoices.  Vendors’ invoices for material, equipment rental, and other 

expenditures shall be submitted with the COR.  If the Application for Payment 
is not substantiated by invoices or other documentation, the Owner may 
establish the cost of the item involved at the lowest price which was current at 
the time of the Daily Report. 

 
   f)   Overhead, premiums and profit.  For overhead, including direct costs, submit 

with the COR and include: home office overhead, off-Site supervision, CO 
preparation/negotiation/research for Owner initiated changes, time delays, 
project interference and disruption, additional guaranty and warranty durations, 
on-Site supervision, additional temporary protection, additional temporary 
utilities, additional material handling costs, and additional safety equipment 
costs. 

 
 7.7.3 FORMAT FOR PROPOSED COST CHANGE 
 
The following format shall be used as applicable by the Owner and the Contractor to 
communicate proposed additions and deductions to the Contract. 
 
   EXTRA   CREDIT 
A. Material (attach itemized quantity and 
unit cost plus sales tax, invoices, receipts, 
truck tags, etc., for force account work)  
 

 
 
 ________ 

 
 
________  
 

B. Labor (attach itemized hours and 
rates, daily logs, certified payroll, etc.) 

 
 ________ 

  
________  
 

C. Equipment (attach any invoices)  ________ ________  

D. Subtotal  ________ ________  
 

E. If Subcontractor performed Work, add 
Subcontractor’s overhead and profit to 
portions performed by Subcontractor, not to 
exceed fifteen percent (15%) of item D. 

 
 
 
 ________ 

 
 
 
________  
 

1098



F. Liability and Property Damage 
Insurance, Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance, Social Security, and 
Unemployment Taxes, not to exceed twenty-
five percent (25%) of Item B. 

 
 
 
 
 ________ 

 
 
 
 
________  
 

G. Subtotal  ________  ________  
 

H. General Contractor’s Overhead and 
Profit, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) of 
Item G; and for work performed by 
subcontractors, not to exceed five percent 
(5%). 

 
 
 
 
 ________ 

 
 
 
 
________  
 

I. Subtotal  ________ ________  
 

J. Bond not to exceed one percent (1%) 
of Item I.  

 
 ________ 

 
________  
 

K.        TOTAL  ________ ________  
 

 
It is expressly understood that the value of such extra work or changes, as determined by any of 
the aforementioned methods, expressly includes (1) any and all of the Contractor’s costs and 
expenses resulting from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the 
project, and (2) any costs of preparing a COR, including but not limited to delay analysis.  Any 
costs or expenses not included are deemed waived. 
 
 7.7.4 DISCOUNTS, REBATES, AND REFUNDS 
 
For purposes of determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to the Work 
hereunder, all trade discounts, rebates, refunds, and all returns from the sale of surplus materials 
and equipment shall accrue and be credited to the Contractor, and the Contractor shall make 
provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns may be secured, and the amount 
thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of the Contractor’s cost in determining the actual cost of 
construction for purposes of any change, addition, or omissions in the Work as provided herein. 
 
 7.7.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS 
 
With respect to portions of the Work performed by COs and CCDs on a time-and-materials, unit-
cost, or similar basis, the Contractor shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records satisfactory 
to the Owner, which shall be available to the Owner on the same terms as any other books and 
records the Contractor is required to maintain under the Contract Documents. 
 

1099



 7.7.6 NOTICE REQUIRED 
 
Contractor shall submit a written Notice of Potential Change for additional money or time 
pursuant to section 4.5.1.   
 
 7.7.7 APPLICABILITY TO SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Any requirements under this Article 7 shall be equally applicable to COs or CCDs issued to 
Subcontractors by the Contractor to the same extent required of the Contractor. 
 
7.8 WAIVER OF RIGHT TO CLAIM MONEY OR TIME  
 
Failure to demand money based on costs, or time extensions, as part of a COR constitutes a 
complete waiver of Contractor’s right to claim the omitted money or time.  All money or time for 
an issue must be included in the COR at the time submitted. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
 

TIME 
 

8.1 DEFINITIONS 
 
 8.1.1 CONTRACT TIME 
 
Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized 
adjustments, allotted in the Contract Documents for Completion of the Work. 
 
 8.1.2 NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
Contractor shall not commence the Work until it receives a Notice to Proceed from Owner.  The 
date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Notice to Proceed.  The date of 
commencement shall not be postponed by the failure to act of the Contractor or of persons or 
entities for whom the Contractor is responsible. 
 
 8.1.3 DAYS 
 
The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise 
specifically defined. 
 

1100



8.2 HOURS OF WORK 
 
 8.2.1 SUFFICIENT FORCES 
 
Contractors and Subcontractors shall furnish sufficient forces to ensure the prosecution of the 
Work, including Work directed pursuant to a CCD (see Section 7.3, above), in accordance with 
the Construction Schedule.   
 
 8.2.2 PERFORMANCE DURING WORKING HOURS 
 
Work shall be performed during regular working hours except that in the event of an emergency 
or when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, work may be performed 
outside of regular working hours with the advance written consent of the Owner. 
 
 8.2.3 LABOR CODE APPLICATION 
  
As provided in Article 3 (commencing at § 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor 
Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal day’s work.  The time of service of any 
worker employed at any time by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract 
under this Contract, upon the work or upon any part of the work contemplated by this Contract, 
is limited and restricted to eight (8) hours during any one calendar day and forty (40) hours 
during any one calendar week, except as hereinafter provided.  Notwithstanding the provision 
hereinabove set forth, work performed by employees of Contractors in excess of eight (8) hours 
per day and forty (40) hours during any one week shall be permitted upon this public work with 
compensation provided for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at not less than 
one and one-half (1-1/2) times the basic rate of pay. 
 
Contractor or subcontractor shall pay to the Owner a penalty of Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) for 
each worker employed in the execution of this Contract by the Contractor, or by any 
Subcontractor, for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work 
more than eight (8) hours in any calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one (1) calendar week, 
in violation of the provisions of Article 3 (commencing at § 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
of the Labor Code, unless compensation for the workers so employed by Contractor is not less 
than one and one-half (1-1/2) times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of eight 
(8) hours per day. 
 
 8.2.4 COSTS FOR AFTER HOURS INSPECTIONS 
 
If the work done after hours is required by the Contract Documents to be done outside the 
Contractor’s or the Inspector of Record’s regular working hours, the costs of any inspections, if 
required to be done outside normal working hours, shall be borne by the Owner. 
 
If the Owner allows the Contractor to do work outside regular working hours for the Contractor’s 
own convenience, the costs of any inspections required outside regular working hours, among 
other remedies, shall be invoiced to the Contractor by the Owner and withheld from progress 
payments and/or retention.  Contractor shall give Owner at least 48 hours notice prior to working 

1101



outside regular working hours. 
 
If the Contractor elects to perform work outside the Inspector of Record’s regular working hours, 
costs of any inspections required outside regular working hours, among other remedies, may be 
invoiced to the Contractor by the Owner and withheld from progress payments and/or retention. 
 
 8.2.5 TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT BY SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, all Subcontractors shall commence their 
Work within two (2) consecutive business days after notice to them by the Contractor and shall 
prosecute their Work in accordance with the progress of the Work. 
 
8.3 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION 
 
 8.3.1 TIME OF THE ESSENCE 
 
Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.  By executing 
the Agreement the Contractor confirms that the Milestone Deadlines and Contract Time are 
reasonable periods for performing the Work. 
 
 8.3.2 NO COMMENCEMENT WITHOUT INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner, in writing, 
commence operations on the Site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by 
Article 11 to be furnished by the Contractor.  The date of commencement of the Work shall not 
be changed by the effective date of such insurance.  
 
 8.3.3 EXPEDITIOUS COMPLETION 
 
The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously to perform the Work, including Work directed 
pursuant to a CCD (see Section 7.3, above), with adequate forces, labor, materials, equipment, 
services and management, shall achieve all Milestone Deadlines, and shall achieve Completion 
within the Contract Time. 
. 
8.4 EXTENSIONS OF TIME - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
Contractor waives all rights and remedies as to any delay experienced during the Work 
(including any right to rescind the Contract and any right to refuse to perform the Contract) 
except for the rights and remedies expressly allowed by the Contract (including but not limited to 
time extensions and delay damages pursuant to this Section 8.4.1 and Section 8.4.2 below, and 
termination pursuant to Section 14.1 below).   

1102



 
 8.4.1 CONDITIONS ALLOWING FOR EXTENSIONS OF TIME TO COMPLETE THE WORK 

ONLY (EXCUSABLE DELAY 
 
The Contractor shall be granted a reasonable time extension under the Contract Documents, 
including but not limited to Sections 3.18 and 4.5 and Article 7, for excusable delays, which are 
those delays that meet each and every of the following conditions:  
 (a) The delay was beyond the control of Contractor and its subcontractors and material 
suppliers;  
 (b) The delay was caused by events that were not reasonably foreseeable to Contractor at 
the time of bidding;  
 (c) All float in the schedule had been used, and the delay impacted and delayed the 
controlling items of Work (i.e., the as-built critical path, as determined from the as-planned 
schedule and the actual progress of the Work), thus delaying the achievement of a Milestone 
Deadline or the Completion of the whole Work within the Contract Time;  
 (d) The delay was not caused by Contractor or its subcontractors or suppliers, including 
but not limited to their breaches of contract or the standard of care;  
 (e) The delay was not associated with loss of time resulting from the necessity of 
submittals to Owner for approval, or from necessary Owner surveys, measurements, inspections 
and testing;  
 (f) The delay was not caused by usual or common weather for the time of year, including 
usual or common severe weather; and  
 (g) The delay could not have been prevented or mitigated by the exercise of care, 
prudence, foresight, and diligence by Contractor. 
 
Excusable delays may include acts of God, acts of public enemy, acts of the Owner or anyone 
employed by it, acts of another contractor in performance of a contract (other than this Contract) 
with the Owner, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, labor disputes, unusual and 
uncommon weather for the time of year, unforeseen site conditions, or delays of subcontractors 
due to such causes.  Owner shall take into consideration other relevant factors such as concurrent 
delays.  Contractor has the burden of proving that any delay was excusable. 
 
 8.4.2  COMPENSABLE DELAY (TIME AND MONEY 
 
Compensable delays are those excusable delays for which Contractor is also entitled to money.  
To be compensable, an excusable delay must be one for which the Owner is responsible, where 
the delay was unreasonable under the circumstances involved, and where the delay was not 
within the contemplation of the parties; however, Contractor shall not be entitled to monetary 
compensation when (a) Contractor could have reasonably anticipated the delay and avoided or 
minimized the cost impacts of it, (b) there was a concurrent delay which does not qualify for 
monetary compensation under this paragraph, (c) the cause of the delay was reasonably 
unforeseen by the Owner or the delay was caused by factors beyond the control of the Owner, 
including but not limited to a delay under Section 2.2.8 above or a delay caused by a utility 
company’s failure to perform despite Owner’s reasonable arrangements for such performance; or 
(d) any other defense available to Owner under law or equity applies.  Contractor has the burden 
of proving that any delay was excusable and compensable, including an analysis that establishes 

1103



non-concurrency.  Compensation shall be limited to field overhead (i.e., general conditions) and 
home office overhead, as may be allowed by law.   
 
 8.4.3 NOTICE BY CONTRACTOR REQUIRED; PROCEDURES FOR DEMANDING 

ADDITIONAL TIME OR MONEY  
 
For notice and other required procedures related to requests by Contractor for additional time or 
money related to delay, Contractor shall comply with the Contract Documents, including but not 
limited to Sections 3.18 and 4.5, and Article 7, above.    
 
 8.4.4 EARLY COMPLETION 
 
Regardless of the cause therefore, the Contractor may not maintain any Claim or cause of action 
against the Owner for damages incurred as a result of its failure or inability to Complete its Work 
on the Project in a shorter period than established in the Contract Documents, the parties 
stipulating that the period set forth in the Contract Documents is a reasonable time within which 
to perform the Work on the Project. 
 
 8.4.5 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
Failure to Complete the Work within the Contract Time and in the manner provided for by the 
Contract Documents, or failure to complete any specified portion of the Work by a milestone 
deadline, shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages as described in Article III of the 
Agreement and the Contract Documents.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount set forth 
in the Agreement shall be presumed to be the amount of damages which the Owner shall directly 
incur as a result of each calendar day by which Completion of the Work is delayed beyond the 
Contract Time as adjusted by Change Orders. 
  
In addition, delaying another contractor’s work on the Project or causing delay to the completion 
of the Project shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages as described in Article III of the 
Agreement and the Contract Documents.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount set forth 
in the Agreement shall be presumed to be the amount of damages which the Owner shall directly 
incur as a result of each calendar day by which Contractor delays  the work of others on the 
Project or completion of the Project itself. 
 
If liquidated damages accrue as described above, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies 
provided by law, shall have the right to assess and withhold as provided in Article III of the 
Agreement and the Contract Documents. 
 
8.5 GOVERNMENT APPROVALS 
 
Owner shall not be liable for any delays or damages related to the time required to obtain 
government approvals. 
 

1104



ARTICLE 9 
 

PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 
 
9.1 CONTRACT SUM 
 
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement, later adjusted by Change Orders and Construction 
Change Directives, and is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for 
performance of the Work under the Contract Documents. 
 
9.2 COST BREAKDOWN 
 
 9.2.1 REQUIRED INFORMATION 
 
On forms approved by the Owner, the Contractor shall furnish the following: 
 
 A. Within ten (10) days of the mailing, faxing or delivering of the Notice of Award of the 

Contract, a detailed breakdown of the Contract Sum (Schedule of Values) for 
each Project or Site.  Each item in the schedule of values shall include its proper 
share of the overhead and profit. 

 
 B. Within ten (10) days of the mailing, faxing or delivering of the Notice of Award of the 

Contract, a schedule of estimated monthly payment requests (cash flow) due the 
Contractor showing the values and construction time of the various portions of the 
Work to be performed by it and by its Subcontractors or material and equipment 
suppliers containing such supporting evidence as to its correctness as the Owner 
may require;  

 
 C. Five (5) days prior to the submission of a pay request, an itemized breakdown of work 

done for the purpose of requesting partial payments; 
 
 D. Within ten (10) days of the mailing, faxing or delivering of the Notice of Award of the 

Contract, the name, address, telephone number, fax number, license number and 
classification, and for all projects over Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) 
the public works contractor registration number, of all of its Subcontractors and of 
all other parties furnishing labor, material, or equipment for its Contract, along 
with the amount of each such subcontract or the price of such labor, material, and 
equipment needed for its entire portion of the Work. 

 
 9.2.2 OWNER ACCEPTANCE REQUIRED 
 
The Owner shall review all submissions received pursuant to paragraph 9.2.1 in a timely manner.  
All submissions must be accepted by the Owner before becoming the basis of any payment. 
 

1105



9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 
 
 9.3.1 PROCEDURE 
 
On or before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month during the progress of the portion of the 
Work for which payment is being requested, the Contractor shall submit to the Architect, unless 
there is a construction manager for the Project or the Owner directs otherwise, an itemized 
Application for Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values 
through the end of the previous calendar month.  Such application shall be notarized, if required, 
and supported by the following or such portion thereof as the applicable entity requires: 
 
 A.  The amount paid to the date of the Application to the Contractor, to all its 

Subcontractors, and all others furnishing labor, material, or equipment for its 
Contract; 

  
 B.  The amount being requested with the Application for Payment by the Contractor 

on its own behalf and separately stating the amount requested on behalf of each of 
the Subcontractors and all others furnishing labor, material, and equipment under 
the Contract; 

 
 C.  The balance that will be due to each of such entities after said payment is made; 
 
 D.  A certification that the Record Drawings and Annotated Specifications are 

current; 
 
 E.  The Owner approved additions to and subtractions from the Contract Sum and 

Time; 
 
 F.  A summary of the retentions (each Application shall provide for retention, as set 

out in Article 9.6); 
 
 G.  Material invoices, evidence of equipment purchases, rentals, and other support 

and details of cost as the Owner may require from time to time; 
 
 H.  The percentage of Completion of the Contractor’s Work by line item;  
 
 I.  A statement showing all payments made by the Contractor for labor and materials 

on account of the Work covered in the preceding Application for Payment.  Such 
applications shall not include requests for payment of amounts the Contractor 
does not intend to pay to subcontractors or others because of a dispute or other 
reason; and  

   
 J.  Contractor’s monthly reports, daily reports, and monthly schedule updates for all 

months of Work prior to the Application for Payment that Contractor has not 
previously submitted. 

 

1106



 9.3.2 PURCHASE OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 
 

  As the Contractor is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in 
advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from Owner, to assure that there 
will be no delays, payment by the Owner for stored material shall be made only in unusual 
circumstances where the Architect specifically recommends, and Owner specifically approves 
the payment in writing.  If payments are to be made on account of materials and equipment not 
incorporated in the Work, but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at some other location 
agreed upon in writing by the Owner, the payments shall be conditioned upon submission by the 
Contractor, Subcontractor, or vendor of bills of sale and such other documents satisfactory to the 
Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such materials or equipment free of all liens and 
encumbrances, and otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, including, without limitation, 
provision of applicable insurance and transportation to the Site.  All stored items shall be 
inventoried, specified by identification numbers (if applicable), released to the Owner by sureties 
of the Contractor and the Subcontractor and, if stored off-Site, stored only in a bonded 
warehouse. 
 
 9.3.3 WARRANTY OF TITLE 
 
The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to 
the Owner no later than the time of payment.  The Contractor further warrants that upon 
submittal of an Application for Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been 
previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s 
knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or 
encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, or 
other persons or entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials, and 
equipment relating to the Work.  Transfer of title to Work does not constitute a waiver by Owner 
of any defects in the Work. 
 
9.4 REVIEW OF PROGRESS PAYMENT 
 
 9.4.1 OWNER ACCEPTANCE 
 
The Owner will, within seven (7) days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, 
either accept such payment or notify the Contractor in writing of the Owner’s reasons for 
withholding acceptance in whole or in part as provided in paragraph 9.5.1. 
 
 9.4.2 OWNER’S REVIEW 
 
The review of the Contractor’s Application for Payment by the Owner will be based, at least in 
part, on the Owner’s observations at the Site and the data comprising the Application for 
Payment that the Work has progressed to the point indicated.  The review is also subject to an 
evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents, to results of subsequent 
tests and inspections, to minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable prior to 
Completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Owner.  The Owner may reject the 
Application for Payment if it is not complete under section 9.3.  The issuance of a Certificate for 

1107



Payment will constitute a representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount 
certified, subject to any specific qualifications Owner expresses in the Certificate for Payment.  
However, Contractor’s entitlement to payment may be affected by subsequent evaluations of the 
Work for conformance with the Contract Documents, test and inspections and discovery of 
minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable prior to Completion.  The issuance of 
a Certificate for Payment will not be a waiver by the Owner of any defects in the Work covered 
by the Application for Payment, nor will it be a representation that the Owner has: 
 
 A.  Made exhaustive or continuous on-Site inspections to check the quality or 

quantity of the Work; 
 
 B.  Reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; 
 
 C.  Reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors, material and 

equipment suppliers, and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the 
Contractor’s right to payment; or  

 
 D.  Made an examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has 

used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum. 
 
9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT 
 
 9.5.1 REASONS TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT 
 
The Owner may withhold from a progress payment, in whole or in part, to such extent as may be 
necessary to protect the Owner due to any of the following: 
 
 A.  Defective or incomplete Work not remedied; 
 
 B.  Stop Payment Notices.  For any stop payment notice, the Owner shall withhold 

the amount stated in the stop payment notice, the stop notice claimant’s 
anticipated interest and court costs and an amount to provide for the public entity’s 
reasonable cost of any litigation pursuant to the stop payment notice.  For any stop 
payment notice action the parties resolve before judgment is entered, Owner has 
the right to permanently withhold for any reasonable cost of litigation for that stop 
payment notice, even if it exceeds the amount originally withheld by Owner for 
the estimated reasonable cost of litigation.  However, if (1) the Contractor at its 
sole expense provides a bond or other security satisfactory to the Owner in the 
amount of at least one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the claim, in a form 
satisfactory to the Owner, which protects the Owner against such claim, and (2) 
the Owner chooses to accept the bond, then Owner would release the withheld 
stop payment notice funds to the Contractor, except that Owner may permanently 
withhold for any reasonable cost of litigation.  Any stop payment notice release 
bond shall be executed by a California admitted, fiscally solvent surety, 
completely unaffiliated with and separate from the surety on the payment and 
performance bonds, that does not have any assets pooled with the payment and 

1108



performance bond sureties. 
 
 C.  Liquidated damages against the Contractor, whether already accrued or estimated 

to accrue in the future; 
 
 D.  Reasonable doubt that the Work can be Completed for the unpaid balance of any 

Contract Sum or within the Contract Time; 
 
 E.   Damage to the property or work of the Owner, another contractor, or 

subcontractor; 
 
 F. Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by the Contractor; 
 
 G.  Failure to store and properly secure materials; 
 
 H.  Failure of the Contractor to submit on a timely basis, proper and sufficient 

documentation required by the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, 
monthly progress schedules, shop drawings, submittal schedules, schedule of 
values, product data and samples, proposed product lists, executed change orders, 
and verified reports; 

 
 I.  Failure of the Contractor to maintain record drawings; 
 
 J.  Erroneous estimates by the Contractor of the value of the Work performed, or 

other false statements in an Application for Payment; 
 
 K.  Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents;  
 
 L.  Failure of the Contractor to prosecute the Work in a timely manner in compliance 

with established progress schedules and Completion deadlines; 
 
 M. Subsequently discovered evidence or observations nullifying the whole or part of 

a previously issued Certificate for Payment; 
 
 N.  Failure by Contractor to pay Subcontractors or material suppliers as required by 

Contract or law, which includes but is not limited to Contractor’s failure to pay 
prevailing wage and any assessment of statutory penalties; 

 
 O.  Overpayment to Contractor on a previous payment; 
 
 P.  Credits owed to Owner for reduced scope of work or work that Contractor will 

not perform; 
 
 Q.  The estimated cost of performing work pursuant to Section 2.4; 
 
 R.  Actual damages related to false claims by Contractor; 

1109



 
 S.  Breach of any provision of the Contract Documents; 
 
 T.  Owner’s potential or actual loss, liability or damages caused by the Contractor; 

and 
 
 U.  As permitted by other provisions in the Contract or as otherwise allowed by law, 

including statutory penalties Owner or other entities assessed against Contractor.  
(See e.g., Labor Code section 1813 (working hours) or Public Contract Code 
section 4110 (subcontractor listings and substitutions)) 

 
Owner may, but is not required to, provide to Contractor written notice of the items for which 
Owner is withholding amounts from a progress payment.   
 
To claim a breach of contract or violation of law based on wrongful withholding by the Owner 
from a progress payment or based on a late progress payment, or if Contractor otherwise disputes 
any progress payment or lack thereof, within fifteen (15) days of the alleged breach of contract, 
violation of law, or late or disputed progress payment Contractor shall submit a Claim pursuant 
and subject to Sections 4.5.3-4.5.6.  The Contractor need not submit a Notice of Potential 
Change or a Change Order Request.   
 
For any withheld amount based on an estimate where the actual amount later becomes known 
and certain, no later than the final accounting for the Contract the Owner will release any amount 
withheld over that certain and known amount.  If the certain and known amount exceeds the 
amount previously withheld, Owner may withhold additional amounts from Contractor to cover 
the excess amount.  If available funds are not sufficient, Contractor shall pay Owner the 
difference. 
 
Despite any withholding from a progress payment, or any other dispute about a progress 
payment, Contractor shall continue to expeditiously perform the Work pursuant to the Contract 
Documents, including but not limited to General Conditions sections 4.5.8, 7.1.1, 8.3.1, and 
8.3.3. 
 
 9.5.2 PAYMENT AFTER CURE 
 
When Contractor removes or cures the grounds for withholding amounts, payment shall be made 
for amounts withheld because of them.  No interest shall be paid on any retainage or amounts 
withheld due to the failure of the Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 

1110



 9.5.3 OVERPAYMENT AND/OR FAILURE TO WITHHOLD 
 
Neither Owner’s overpayment to Contractor, nor Owner’s failure to withhold an amount from 
payment that Owner had the right to withhold, shall constitute a waiver by Owner of its rights to 
withhold those amounts from future payments to Contractor or to otherwise pursue recovery of 
those amounts from Contractor.  
 
9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
 
 9.6.1 PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR 
 
Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, within thirty (30) days after receipt of an 
undisputed and properly submitted Application for Payment, Contractor shall be paid a sum 
equal to ninety-five percent (95%) of the undisputed value of the Work performed up to the last 
day of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments; and Owner shall retain the 
other five percent (5%) of the undisputed value of the Work.  The value of the Work completed 
shall be an estimate only, no inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall operate to release the 
Contractor, or any bondsman, from damages arising from such Work or from enforcing each and 
every provision of this Contract, and the Owner shall have the right subsequently to correct any 
error made in any estimate for payment.  Contractor shall base an Application for Payment only 
on the original Contract Sum plus any fully executed and Board-approved Change Orders.  
Contractor shall not include Notices of Potential Claims, CORs, Claims or disputed amounts.   
 
The Contractor shall not be entitled to have any payment requests processed, or be entitled to 
have any payment made for work performed, so long as any lawful or proper direction given by 
the Owner concerning the Work, or any portion thereof, remains uncomplied with.  Payment 
shall not be a waiver of any such direction. 
 
 9.6.2 PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
No later than ten (10) days after receipt of payment from Owner, pursuant to Business and 
Professions Code section 7108.5, the Contractor shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of the 
amount paid to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of the Work, the 
amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from 
payments to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of the Work.  The 
Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor 
to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. 
 
 9.6.3 PERCENTAGE OF COMPLETION OR PAYMENT INFORMATION 
  
The Owner will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding 
percentages of Completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor, and action taken thereon by 
the Owner, on account of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor. 
 

1111



 9.6.4 NO OBLIGATION OF OWNER FOR SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENT 
 
The Owner shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of, money to a 
Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. 
 
 9.6.5 PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS 
 
Payment to material or equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided 
in paragraphs 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4. 
 
 9.6.6 PAYMENT NOT CONSTITUTING APPROVAL OR ACCEPTANCE 
 
An accepted Application for Payment, issuance of a Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, 
or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Owner shall not constitute acceptance 
or approval of any portion of the Work, especially any Work not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 9.6.7 JOINT CHECKS 
 
Owner shall have the right, if necessary for the protection of the Owner, to issue joint checks 
made payable to the Contractor and Subcontractors and/or material or equipment suppliers.  The 
joint check payees shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of funds included as 
part of any such joint payment.  However, Owner has no duty to issue joint checks.  In no event 
shall any joint check payment be construed to create any contract between the Owner and a 
Subcontractor of any tier, any obligation from the Owner to such Subcontractor, or rights in such 
Subcontractor against the Owner. 
 
9.7 COMPLETION OF THE WORK 
 
 9.7.1 CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES 
 
When the Contractor considers that the Work is Complete and submits a written notice to Owner 
requesting an inspection of the Work, the Owner shall review the Work and prepare and submit 
to the Contractor a comprehensive list of items to be Completed or corrected (the “Punch List”).  
The Punch List shall include all outstanding obligations of Contractor, including training, start-
up, testing, and submission to Owner of all required documentation (e.g., written guarantees, 
warranties, invoices, as-built drawings, manuals, bonds, and the documents described in Sections 
9.3 and 9.9).  The Contractor and/or its Subcontractors shall proceed promptly to Complete and 
correct items on the Punch List.  Failure to include an item on the Punch List does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to Complete all Work (including the omitted item) in accordance 
with the Contract Documents, and to Complete or correct the Work so long as the statute of 
limitations (or repose) has not run.   
 
When the Contractor believes the Punch List Work is Complete and in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, it shall then submit a request for an additional inspection by the Owner to 
determine Completion.  Owner shall again inspect the Work and inform the Contractor of any 

1112



items that are not complete or correct.  Contractor shall promptly Complete or correct items until 
no items remain.   
 
After the Work, including all Punch List Work, is inspected and informally deemed by the 
Owner to be Complete, the Owner’s governing body may formally accept the Work as Complete 
at a meeting of the governing body.  Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall 
commence on the date of Contractor’s Completion of the Work (see Sections 3.5, 12.2.5, and 
12.2.6).   
 
Owner may record a Notice of Completion as allowed by Civil Code section 9200 et seq.  
 
 9.7.2 COSTS OF MULTIPLE INSPECTIONS 
 
More than two (2) requests by Contractor to make inspections to confirm Completion as required 
under paragraph 9.7.1 shall be considered an additional service of Owner, and all subsequent 
costs will be invoiced to Contractor and withheld from remaining payments.   
 
9.8 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE 
 
The Owner may occupy or use any completed, or partially completed, portion of the Work at any 
stage prior to acceptance, or prior to Completion if there is no formal acceptance.  Occupancy or 
use of any portion of the Work, or the whole Work, shall not constitute approval or acceptance of 
it, nor shall such occupancy or use relieve Contractor of any of its obligations under the Contract 
Documents regarding that portion of, or the whole, Work. 
 
The Owner and the Contractor shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned to each of 
them for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, insurance, the 
period for correction of the Work, and the commencement of warranties required by the Contract 
Documents.  When the Contractor considers a portion complete, the Contractor may request an 
inspection of that portion and preparation of a Punch List by the Owner for that portion, as set 
forth for the entire Work under paragraph 9.7.1; however, such inspection and Punch List shall 
not act as any form of approval or acceptance of that portion of the Work, or of any Work not 
complying with the requirements of the Contract, and that portion shall be subject to subsequent 
inspections and Punch Lists. 
 
Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, the Architect and the Contractor 
shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to 
determine and record the condition of the Work. 
 

1113



9.9 FINAL PROGRESS PAYMENT AND RELEASE OF RETENTION  
 
 9.9.1 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT  
 
When, pursuant to Section 9.7.1, the Owner finds all of the Work is Completed in accordance 
with the Contract Documents, it shall so notify Contractor, who shall then submit to the Owner 
its final Application for Payment.  
 
Upon receipt and approval of such final Application for Payment, the Owner shall issue a final 
Certificate of Payment, based on its knowledge, information, and belief, and on the basis of its 
observations, inspections, and all other data accumulated or received by the Owner in connection 
with the Work, that such Work has been Completed in accordance with the Contract Documents.  
If required to do so under Labor Code section 1773.3, subd. (d), Owner shall withhold final 
payment. 
  
 9.9.2 PROCEDURES FOR APPLICATION FOR FINAL PROGRESS PAYMENT 
 
The Application for Final Progress Payment pursuant to Section 9.9.1 shall be accompanied by 
the same details as set forth in paragraph 9.3, and in addition, the following conditions must be 
fulfilled: 
 
 A.  The Work shall be Complete, and the Contractor shall have made, or caused to 

have been made, all corrections to the Work which are required to remedy any 
defects therein, to obtain compliance with the Contract Documents or any 
requirements of applicable codes and ordinances, or to fulfill any of the orders or 
directions of Owner required under the Contract. 

 
 B.  Each Subcontractor shall have delivered to the Contractor all written guarantees, 

warranties, applications, and bonds required by the Contract Documents for its 
portion of the Work, and Contractor delivered them to the Owner. 

 
 C.  The Contractor shall deliver to the Owner (i) reproducible final Record Drawings 

and Annotated Specifications showing the Contractor’s Work “as built,” with the 
Contractor’s certification of the accuracy of the Record Drawings and Annotated 
Specifications, (ii) all warranties and guarantees, (iii) operation and maintenance 
instructions, manuals and materials for equipment and apparatus, and (iv) all other 
documents required by the Contract Documents. 

 
D. Contractor shall provide extensive assistance in the utilization of any equipment 

or system such as initial start-up or testing, adjusting and balancing, preparation 
of operation and maintenance manuals and training personnel for operation and 
maintenance. 

 
Acceptance of Final Progress Payment shall constitute a complete waiver of Claims except for 
those previously identified in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of Final 
Progress Payment. 

1114



 
 9.9.3 RELEASE OF RETAINAGE 
 
Owner shall withhold not less than 5% of the Contract Sum (“retainage,” or “retention”) until 
Completion and acceptance of the Project, per Public Contract Code section 9203.   
 
Owner may withhold from release or payment of retainage up to 150% of disputed amounts, 
including but not limited to the issues listed in Section 9.5.  If retainage is held in an escrow 
account pursuant to an escrow agreement under Public Contract Code section 22300 (see Section 
9.10) and Owner withholds from release of retainage based on a breach of the Contract, or other 
default, by Contractor, Owner may withdraw the withheld retainage from the escrow account.   
 
Owner shall release the undisputed retainage within sixty (60) days after Completion of the 
Project.  For this purpose, “Completion” is defined in Public Contract Code section 7107(c).  No 
interest shall be paid on any retainage, or on any amounts withheld, except as provided to the 
contrary in any Escrow Agreement and General Conditions between the Owner and the 
Contractor under Public Contract Code section 22300.  
 
To claim a breach of contract or violation of law based on wrongful withholding by the Owner 
from retention or based on a late payment or late release of retention, or if Contractor otherwise 
disputes any payment or release of retention or lack thereof, within fifteen (15) days of the 
alleged breach of contract, violation of law, or late or disputed payment/release of retention 
Contractor shall submit a Claim pursuant and subject to Sections 4.5.3-4.5.6.  The Contractor 
need not submit a Notice of Potential Change or a Change Order Request.   
 
9.10 SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES 
 
In accordance with section 22300 of the Public Contract Code, the Owner will permit the 
substitution of securities for any retention monies withheld by the Owner to ensure performance 
under the Contract.  At the request and expense of the Contractor, securities equivalent to the 
amount withheld shall be deposited with the Owner, or with a state or federally chartered bank as 
the escrow agent, who shall then pay such retention monies to the Contractor.  Upon Completion 
of the Contract, the securities shall be returned to the Contractor if Owner has no basis to 
withhold under the Contract Documents. 
 
Securities eligible for investment under this section shall include those listed in Government 
Code section 16430, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing, demand-
deposit accounts, standby letters of credit, or any other security mutually agreed to by the 
Contractor and the Owner. 
 
The Contractor shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for monies withheld 
and shall receive any interest thereon. 
 
Any escrow agreement entered by Owner and Contractor pursuant to Public Contract Code 
section 22300, shall be substantially similar to the form set forth in Public Contract Code section 
22300. 

1115



 
ARTICLE 10 

 
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

 
10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS 
 
 10.1.1 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Contractor shall have responsibility for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the Contract.  Each Contractor 
shall designate a responsible member of its organization whose duties shall include loss and 
accident prevention, and who shall have the responsibility and full authority to enforce the 
program.  This person shall attend meetings with the representatives of the various 
Subcontractors employed to ensure that all employees understand and comply with the programs. 
Contractor will ensure that his employees and Subcontractors cooperate and coordinate safety 
matters with any other contractors on the Project to form a joint safety effort. 
 
 10.1.2 SUBCONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Subcontractors have the responsibility for participating in, and enforcing, the safety and loss 
prevention programs established by the Contractor for the Project, which will cover all Work 
performed by the Contractor and its Subcontractors.  Each Subcontractor shall designate a 
responsible member of its organization whose duties shall include loss and accident prevention, 
and who shall have the responsibility and full authority to enforce the program.  This person 
shall attend meetings with the representatives of the various Subcontractors employed to ensure 
that all employees understand and comply with the programs. 
 
 10.1.3 COOPERATION 
 
All Subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers, shall cooperate fully with Contractor, 
the Owner, and all insurance carriers and loss prevention engineers. 
 
 10.1.4 ACCIDENT REPORTS 
 
Subcontractors shall promptly report in writing to the Contractor all accidents whatsoever arising 
out of, or in connection with, the performance of the Work, whether on or off the Site, which 
caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements of 
witnesses.  In addition, if death or serious injuries or serious damages are caused, the accident 
shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger.  Contractor shall thereafter promptly 
report the facts in writing to the Owner giving full details of the accident. 
 
 10.1.5 FIRST-AID SUPPLIES AT SITE 
 
The Contractor will provide and maintain at the Site first-aid supplies for minor injuries. 
 

1116



10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
 
 10.2.1 THE CONTRACTOR 
 
The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable 
protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to: 
 

A. Employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 
 

B. The Work, material, equipment, tools, construction equipment, and machinery to 
be incorporated therein or necessary for the proper execution and Completion of 
the Work, whether in storage on or off the Site, under the care, custody, or control 
of the Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors; and 

 
C. Other property at the Site or adjacent thereto such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, 

pavement, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, 
relocation, or replacement in the course of construction. 

 
 
 10.2.2 CONTRACTOR NOTICES 
 
The Contractor shall give notices and comply with applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on the safety of persons or property 
or their protection from damage, injury, or loss. 
 
 10.2.3 SAFETY BARRIERS AND SAFEGUARDS 
 
The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of 
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and 
other warnings against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users 
of adjacent Sites and utilities. 
 
 10.2.4 USE OR STORAGE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL 
 
When use or storage of explosives, other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods 
are necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on 
such activities under supervision of properly qualified personnel.  The Contractor shall notify the 
Owner any time that explosives or hazardous materials are expected to be stored on Site.  
Location of storage shall be coordinated with the Owner and local fire authorities. 
 
10.3 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY 
 
 10.3.1 PROTECTION  OF WORK 
 
The Contractor and Subcontractors shall continuously protect the Work, the Owner’s property, 
and the property of others, from damage, injury, or loss until the earlier of formal acceptance of 

1117



the Work or Completion of the Work.   The Contractor and Subcontractors shall make good any 
such damage, injury, or loss, except such as may be solely due to, or caused by, agents or 
employees of the Owner; except that for projects not solely funded through revenue bonds, (a) 
Contractor shall not be responsible for damages caused by a tidal wave to the extent that the 
damages exceed 5% of the Contract Sum, and (b) Contractor shall not be responsible for 
damages caused by an earthquake above 3.5 on the Richter Scale in magnitude to the extent that 
the damages exceed 5% of the Contract Sum, per Public Contract Code §7105(a). 
 
 10.3.2 PROTECTION FOR ELEMENTS 
 
The Contractor will remove all mud, water, or other elements as may be required for the proper 
protection and prosecution of its Work.  The Contractor shall at all times provide heat, coverings, 
and enclosures necessary to maintain adequate protection against weather so as to preserve the 
Work, materials, equipment, apparatus, and fixtures free from injury or damage. 
 
 10.3.3 SHORING AND STRUCTURAL LOADING 
 
The Contractor shall not impose structural loading upon any part of the Work under construction 
or upon existing construction on or adjacent to the Site in excess of safe limits, or loading such 
as to result in damage to the structural, architectural, mechanical, electrical, or other components 
of the Work.  The design of all temporary construction equipment and appliances used in 
construction of the Work and not a permanent part thereof, including, without limitation, hoisting 
equipment, cribbing, shoring, and temporary bracing of structural steel, is the sole responsibility 
of the Contractor.  All such items shall conform to the requirements of governing codes and all 
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of all authorities having jurisdiction.  The 
Contractor shall take special precautions, such as shoring of masonry walls and temporary tie 
bracing of structural steel work, to prevent possible wind damage during construction of the 
Work.  The installation of such bracing or shoring shall not damage or cause damage to the Work 
in place or the Work installed by others.  Any damage which does occur shall be promptly 
repaired by the Contractor at no cost to the Owner. 
 
 10.3.4 CONFORMANCE WITHIN ESTABLISHED LIMITS 
 
The Contractor and Subcontractors shall confine their construction equipment, the storage of 
materials, and the operations of workers to the limits indicated by laws, ordinances, permits, and 
the limits established by the Owner, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with 
construction equipment or materials. 
 
 10.3.5 SUBCONTRACTOR ENFORCEMENT OF RULES 
 
Subcontractors shall enforce the Owner’s and the Contractor’s instructions, laws, and regulations 
regarding signs, advertisements, fires, smoking, the presence of liquor, and the presence of 
firearms by any person at the Site. 
 

1118



  10.3.6 SITE ACCESS 
 
The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall use only those ingress and egress routes designated 
by the Owner, observe the boundaries of the Site designated by the Owner, park only in those 
areas designated by the Owner, which areas may be on or off the Site, and comply with any 
parking control program established by the Owner such as furnishing license plate information 
and placing identifying stickers on vehicles. 
 
 10.3.7 PROTECTION OF MATERIALS 
 
The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall receive, count, inspect for damage, record, store, 
and protect construction materials for the Work and Subcontractors shall promptly send to the 
Contractor evidence of receipt of such materials, indicating thereon any shortage, change, or 
damage (failure to so note shall constitute acceptance by the Subcontractor of financial 
responsibility for any shortage). 
 
10.4 EMERGENCIES 
 
 10.4.1 EMERGENCY ACTION 
 
In an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall take any action 
necessary, at the Contractor’s discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss.  
Additional money or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of an emergency 
shall be determined as provided in Section 4.5 and Article 7. 
 
 10.4.2 ACCIDENT REPORTS 
 
The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner all accidents arising out of or in 
connection with the Work, which caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full  
details and statements of any witnesses.  In addition, if death, serious personal injuries, or serious 
property damages are caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or 
messenger to the Owner. 
 
10.5 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
 10.5.1 DISCOVERY OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
In the event the Contractor encounters or suspects the presence on the Site material reasonably 
believed to be asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any other material defined as being 
hazardous by section 25249.5 of the California Health and Safety Code, which (a) has not been 
rendered harmless, and (b) the handling or removal of which is not within the scope of the Work, 
the Contractor shall immediately stop Work in the area affected and report the condition to the 
Owner and the Architect in writing, whether such material was generated by the Contractor, 
another contractor, or the Owner.  The Work in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed, 
except by written agreement of the Owner and the Contractor, if in fact the material is asbestos, 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or other hazardous material, and has not been rendered 

1119



harmless.  The Work in the affected area shall be resumed only in the absence of asbestos, 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or other hazardous material, or when it has been rendered 
harmless by written agreement of the Owner and the Contractor. 
 
 10.5.2 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL WORK LIMITATIONS 
 
In the event that the presence of hazardous materials is suspected or discovered on the Site, the 
Owner shall retain an independent testing laboratory to determine the nature of the material 
encountered and whether corrective measures or remedial action is required.  The Contractor 
shall not be required pursuant to Article 7 to perform without consent any Work in the affected 
area of the Site relating to asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or other hazardous material, 
until any known or suspected hazardous material has been removed, or rendered harmless, or 
determined to be harmless by Owner, as certified by an independent testing laboratory and/or 
approved by the appropriate government agency. 
 
 10.5.3 INDEMNIFICATION BY OWNER FOR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL NOT CAUSED BY 

CONTRACTOR 
 
In the event the presence of hazardous materials on the Site is not caused by the Contractor, 
Owner shall pay for all costs of testing and remediation, if any, and shall compensate Contractor 
for any delay or additional costs incurred in accordance with the applicable provisions of Article 
7 and 8 herein.  Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and its agents, 
officers, directors and employees from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, costs and 
expenses incurred in connection with or arising out of, or relating to, the performance of the 
Work in the area affected by the hazardous material, except to the extent the claims, damages, 
losses, costs, or expenses were caused by Contractor’s active negligence, sole negligence or 
willful misconduct.  By providing this indemnification, Owner does not waive any immunities. 
 
 10.5.4  NATURALLY OCCURRING ASBESTOS  
 
If the Site is found to contain naturally occurring asbestos (asbestos naturally contained in rocks 
which can become airborne when released “NOA”), in addition to complying with applicable 
provisions in sections 10.5.1-10.5.3 above, Contractor shall comply with, and be solely 
responsible for, all applicable NOA requirements of the California Air Resources Board 
(CARB), California Department of Industrial Relations, California Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA), any local air quality management district with jurisdiction over 
the Site, the County, and all other applicable federal, State and local governmental entities.  This 
compliance and responsibility includes, but is not limited to, dust control mitigation measures 
and a monitoring plan. 
 
 10.5.5 INDEMNIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR FOR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CAUSED BY 

CONTRACTOR 
 
In the event the presence of hazardous materials on the Site is caused by Contractor, 
Subcontractors, materialmen or suppliers, the Contractor shall pay for all costs of testing and 
remediation, if any, and shall compensate the Owner for any additional costs incurred as a result 
of the generation of hazardous material on the Project Site.  In addition, the Contractor shall 

1120



defend, indemnify and hold harmless Owner and its agents, officers, and employees from and 
against any and all claims, damages, losses, costs and expenses incurred in connection with, 
arising out of, or relating to, the presence of hazardous material on the Site, except to the extent 
the claims, damages, losses, costs, or expenses were caused by Owner’s active negligence, sole 
negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
 10.5.6 TERMS OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL PROVISION 
 
The terms of this Hazardous Material provision shall survive the Completion of the Work and/or 
any termination of this Contract. 
 
 10.5.7 ARCHEOLOGICAL MATERIALS 
 
In the event the Contractor encounters or reasonably suspects the presence on the Site of 
archeological materials, the Contractor shall immediately stop Work in the area affected and 
report the condition to the Owner and the Architect in writing.  The Work in the affected area 
shall not thereafter be resumed, except after Contractor’s receipt of written notice from the 
Owner. 
 

ARTICLE 11 
 

INSURANCE AND BONDS 
 
11.1. CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
 11.1.1 LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 11.1.1  By the earlier of the deadline set forth in the Instructions to Bidders or the 
commencement of the Work and within limits acceptable to the Owner, the Contractor shall 
purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in 
California as admitted carriers with a financial rating of at least A+, Class XII status as rated in 
the most recent edition of Best’s Insurance Reports such commercial general liability insurance 
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage as set forth in the 
Agreement and automobile liability insurance per accident for bodily injury and property damage 
combined single limit as set forth in the Agreement as will protect the Contractor from claims set 
forth below, which may arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations under the Contract 
and for which the Contractor may be legally liable, whether such operations are by the 
Contractor, by a Subcontractor, by Sub-subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable: 
 
   11.1.1.1   claims for damages because of bodily injury (including emotional 

distress), sickness, disease, or death of any person other than the 
Contractor’s employees.  This coverage shall be provided in a form at 
least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 0001 
11188; 

 

1121



   11.1.1.2 claims for damages arising from personal or advertising injury in a 
form at least as broad as ISO Form CG 0001 11188; 

 
   11.1.1.3 claims for damages because of injury or destruction of tangible 

property, including loss of use resulting therefrom, arising from 
operations under the Contract Documents; and 

 
   11.1.1.4 claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person, or 

property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of a 
motor vehicle, all mobile equipment, and vehicles moving under their 
own power and engaged in the Work; and 

 
  11.1.1.5 claims involving blanket contractual liability applicable to the 

Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents, including 
liability assumed by and the indemnity and defense obligations of the 
Contractor and the Subcontractors; and 

 
   11.1.1.6 claims involving Completed Operations, Independent Contractors’ 

coverage, and Broad Form property damage, without any exclusions 
for collapse, explosion, demolition, underground coverage, and 
excavating.  (XCU) 

 
If commercial general liability insurance or another insurance form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the 
project location (with the ISO CG 2501 or insurer’s equivalent endorsement provided 
to the Owner) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence 
limit. 

 
Any deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by the 
Owner.  At the option of the Owner, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 
deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the Owner, its City Council, members 
of its City Council, officers, employees, agents and volunteers; or the Contractor shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration and defense expenses. 
 

 11.1.2 SUBCONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors and any Sub-subcontractors to take out and 
maintain similar public liability insurance and property damage insurance, in a company or 
companies lawfully authorized to do business in California as admitted carriers with a financial 
rating of at least A+, Class XII status as rated in the most recent edition of Best’s Insurance 
Reports, in like amounts and scope of coverage. 
 
 11.1.3 OWNER’S INSURANCE 
 
The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability 

1122



insurance.  Optionally, the Owner may purchase and maintain other insurance for self protection 
against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract. The Contractor shall not be 
responsible for purchasing and maintaining this optional Owner’s liability insurance unless 
specifically required by the Contract Documents. 
 
 11.1.4 ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor shall name, on any policy of insurance, the Owner and the Architect as additional 
insureds.  Subcontractors shall name the Contractor, the Owner and the Architect as additional 
insureds.  The Additional Insured Endorsement included on all such insurance policies shall state 
that coverage is afforded the additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations 
performed by or on behalf of the insured.  If the additional insureds have other insurance which 
is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall be excess to any policy of insurance required 
herein.  The amount of the insurer’s liability shall not be reduced by the existence of such other 
insurance.  
 
 11.1.5 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE 
 
During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide workers’ compensation insurance 
for all of the Contractor’s employees engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the Site of the 
Project and, in case any of the Contractor’s work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the 
Subcontractor to provide workers’ compensation insurance for all the Subcontractor’s employees 
engaged in Work under the subcontract.  Any class of employee or employees not covered by a 
Subcontractor’s insurance shall be covered by the Contractor’s insurance.  In case any class of 
employees engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the Site of the Project is not protected 
under the Workers’ Compensation laws, the Contractor shall provide or cause a Subcontractor to 
provide adequate insurance coverage for the protection of those employees not otherwise 
protected.  The Contractor shall file with the Owner certificates of insurance as required under 
this Article and in compliance with Labor Code section 3700. 
 
If the contractor fails to maintain such insurance, the Owner may take out compensation 
insurance which the Owner might be liable to pay under the provisions of the Act by reason of an 
employee of the Contractor being injured or killed, and withhold from progress payments and/or 
retention the amount of the premium for such insurance. 
 
 11.1.6 BUILDER’S RISK/“ALL RISK” INSURANCE 
 
   11.1.6.1 COURSE-OF-CONSTRUCTION INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Unless provided by Owner at Owner’s sole discretion, Contractor, during the progress of the 
Work and until final acceptance of the Work by Owner upon Completion of the entire Contract, 
shall maintain Builder’s Risk/Course-of-Construction insurance satisfactory to the Owner, issued 
on a completed value basis on all insurable Work included under the Contract Documents.  This 
insurance shall insure against all risks, including but not limited to the following perils: 
Vandalism, theft, malicious mischief, fire, sprinkler leakage, civil authority, sonic boom, 
explosion, collapse, flood including tidal wave (however, for projects not solely funded through 

1123



revenue bonds, Contractor is only required to provide insurance for damages caused by a tidal 
wave up to 5% of the Contract Sum [except as provided in Section 11.1.6.2, below; see Public 
Contract Code §7105(a)]), earthquake (however, for projects not solely funded through revenue 
bonds, Contractor is only required to provide insurance for damages caused by an earthquake 
above 3.5 magnitude on the Richter Scale up to 5% of the Contract Sum [except as provided in 
Section 11.1.6.3, below; see Public Contract Code §7105(a)]), wind, hail, lightning, smoke, riot 
or civil commotion, debris removal (including demolition) and reasonable compensation for the 
Architect’s services and expenses required as a result of such insured loss.  This insurance shall 
provide coverage in an amount not less than the full cost to repair, replace or reconstruct the 
Work.  Such insurance shall include the Owner, the Architect, and any other person or entity 
with an insurable interest in the Work as an additional named insured.   
 
The Contractor shall submit to the Owner for its approval all items deemed to be uninsurable 
under the Builder’s Risk/Course-of Construction insurance.  The risk of the damage to the Work 
due to the perils covered by the Builder’s Risk/Course-of-Construction insurance, as well as any 
other hazard which might result in damage to the Work, is that of the Contractor and the surety, 
and no claims for such loss or damage shall be recognized by the Owner, nor will such loss or 
damage excuse the Complete and satisfactory performance of the Contract by the Contractor. 
 
   11.1.6.2 TIDAL WAVE INSURANCE 
 
If the Contract is not solely funded through revenue bonds and Owner accepts an alternate bid by 
Contractor for insurance coverage for a tidal wave, Contractor shall maintain, in effect during the 
Work and until final acceptance of the Work by Owner upon Completion of the entire Contract, 
insurance providing coverage for loss, destruction or damage arising out of or caused by tidal 
wave and other similar acts of God.  This insurance shall provide coverage in an amount not less 
than the full cost to repair, replace or reconstruct the Work. 
 
   11.1.6.3  EARTHQUAKE INSURANCE 
 
If the Contract is not solely funded through revenue bonds and Owner accepts an alternate bid by 
Contractor for insurance coverage for an earthquake over 3.5 on the Richter Scale, Contractor 
shall maintain, in effect during the Work and until final acceptance of the Work by Owner upon 
Completion of the entire Contract, insurance providing coverage for loss, destruction or damage 
arising out of or caused by earthquake and/or other earth movement, whether seismic or volcanic 
in origin, over 3.5 on the Richter Scale in magnitude.  This insurance shall provide coverage in 
an amount not less than the full cost to repair, replace or reconstruct the Work.   
 

1124



 11.1.7 CONSENT OF INSURER FOR PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE 
 
Partial occupancy or use in accordance with the Contract Documents shall not commence until 
the insurance company providing property insurance has consented to such partial occupancy or 
use by endorsement or otherwise.  The Owner and the Contractor shall take reasonable steps to 
obtain consent of the insurance company and shall, without mutual consent, take no action with 
respect to partial occupancy or use that would cause cancellation, lapse, or reduction of the 
insurance. 
    
 11.1.8 FIRE INSURANCE 
 
Before the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall procure, maintain, and cause to be 
maintained at the Contractor’s expense, fire insurance on all Work included under the Contract 
Documents, insuring the full replacement value of such Work as well as the cost of any removal 
and demolition necessary to replace or repair all Work damaged by fire.  The amount of fire 
insurance shall be subject to approval by the Owner and shall be sufficient to protect the Work 
against loss or damage in full until the Work is accepted by the Owner.  Should the Work being 
constructed be damaged by fire or other causes during construction, it shall be replaced in 
accordance with the requirements of the drawings and specifications without additional expense 
to the Owner. 
 
 11.1.9 OTHER INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor shall provide all other insurance required to be maintained under applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations. 
 
 11.1.10 PROOF OF CARRIAGE OF INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any Subcontractor to commence 
Work under this Contract until all required insurance, certificates, and an Additional Insured 
Endorsement and Declarations Page have been obtained and delivered in duplicate to the Owner 
for approval subject to the following requirements: 
 

(a) Certificates and insurance policies shall include the following clause: 
 

This policy shall not be non-renewed, canceled, or 
reduced in required limits of liability or amounts of 
insurance until notice has been mailed to the 
Owner.  Date of cancellation or reduction may not 
be less than thirty (30) days after the date of 
mailing notice. 

 
(b) Certificates of insurance shall state in particular those insured, the extent of 

insurance, location and operation to which the insurance applies, the expiration 
date, and cancellation and reduction notices. 

 

1125



(c) Certificates of insurance shall clearly state that the Owner and the Architect are 
named as additional insureds under the policy described and that such insurance 
policy shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Owner 
and any other insurance carried by the Owner with respect to the matters covered 
by such policy shall be excess and non-contributing. 

 
(d) The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall produce a certified copy of any 

insurance policy required under this Section upon written request of the Owner. 
 
 11.1.11 COMPLIANCE 
 
In the event of the failure of any contractor to furnish and maintain any insurance required by 
this Article, the Contractor shall be in default under the Contract.  Compliance by Contractor 
with the requirement to carry insurance and furnish certificates, policies, Additional Insured 
Endorsement and Declarations Page evidencing the same shall not relieve the Contractor from 
liability assumed under any provision of the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, 
the obligation to defend and indemnify the Owner and the Architect. 
 
11.2 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS 
 
 11.2.1 BOND REQUIREMENTS 
 
Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, prior to commencing any portion of the 
Work, the Contractor shall apply for and furnish Owner separate payment and performance 
bonds for its portion of the Work which shall cover 100% faithful performance of and payment 
of all obligations arising under the Contract Documents and/or guaranteeing the payment in full 
of all claims for labor performed and materials supplied for the Work.  All bonds shall be 
provided by a corporate surety authorized and admitted to transact business in California.  All 
bonds shall be submitted on the Owner’s approved form.   
 
To the extent, if any, that the Contract Sum is increased in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the Contractor shall cause the amount of the bonds to be increased accordingly and 
shall promptly deliver satisfactory evidence of such increase to the Owner.  To the extent 
available, the bonds shall further provide that no change or alteration of the Contract Documents 
(including, without limitation, an increase in the Contract Sum, as referred to above), extensions 
of time, or modifications of the time, terms, or conditions of payment to the Contractor will 
release the surety.  If the Contractor fails to furnish the required bond, the Owner may terminate 
the Contract for cause. 
 
 11.2.2 SURETY QUALIFICATION 
 
Only bonds executed by admitted Surety insurers as defined in Code of Civil Procedure 
section 995.120 shall be accepted. The surety insurers must, unless otherwise agreed to by 
Owner in writing, at the time of issuance of the bonds, have a rating not lower than “A-” as rated 
by A.M. Best Company, Inc. or other independent rating companies. Owner reserves the right to 
approve or reject the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to require Contractor to obtain 

1126



bonds from surety insurers satisfactory to the Owner. 
 

ARTICLE 12 
 

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
 

12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK 
 
 12.1.1 UNCOVERING WORK FOR REQUIRED INSPECTIONS 
 
If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Owner’s request or to requirements 
specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, Contractor must, if required in writing by the 
Owner, uncover it for the Owner’s observation and replace the removed work at the Contractor’s 
expense without change in the Contract Sum or Time. 
 
 12.1.2 COSTS FOR INSPECTIONS NOT REQUIRED 
 
If a portion of the Work has been covered which the Owner has not specifically requested to 
observe prior to its being covered, the Owner may request to see such work, and it shall be 
uncovered by the Contractor.  If such work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs 
of uncover and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be paid by the Owner.  If such 
work is not in accordance with Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such costs, unless 
the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor, in which event the Owner shall 
be responsible for payment of such costs to the Contractor. 
 
12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK; WARRANTY  
 
 12.2.1 CORRECTION OF REJECTED WORK 
 
The Contractor shall promptly correct the work rejected by the Owner for failing to conform to 
the requirements of the Contract Documents, until the statutes of limitation (or repose) and all 
warranties have run, as applicable, and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed.  The 
Contractor shall bear costs of correcting the rejected work, including additional testing, 
inspections, and compensation for the Owner’s expenses and costs incurred. 
 
 12.2.2 REMOVAL OF NONCONFORMING WORK 
 
The Contractor shall remove from the Site portions of the Work which are not in accordance 
with the requirements of the Contract Documents and are not corrected by the Contractor or 
accepted or approved by the Owner.  
 
 12.2.3 OWNER’S RIGHTS IF CONTRACTOR FAILS TO CORRECT 
 
If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming work within a reasonable time, the Owner may 
correct it in accordance with Section 2.4.  As part of Owner’s correction of the work, the Owner 
may remove any portion of the nonconforming Work and store any salvageable materials or 

1127



equipment at the Contractor’s expense.  If the Contractor does not pay costs of such removal and 
storage within ten (10) days after written notice, the Owner may upon ten (10) additional days 
written notice sell such material or equipment at auction or at private sale and shall account for 
the proceeds thereof, after deducting costs and damages that should have been borne by the 
Contractor, including compensation for the Architect’s and other professionals and 
representatives’ services and expenses, made necessary thereby.  If such proceeds of sale do not 
cover costs which the Contractor should have borne, the Contractor shall be invoiced for the 
deficiency or Owner may withhold such costs from payment pursuant to Section 9.5.  If progress 
payments or retention then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such 
amount, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. 
 
 12.2.4 COST OF CORRECTING THE WORK 
 
The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner 
or separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s 
correction or removal of the nonconforming work. 
 
 12.2.5 WARRANTY CORRECTIONS (INCLUDES REPLACEMENT 
 
Pursuant to the warranty in Section 3.5, if within one (1) year after the Completion of the Work 
or within a longer time period for an applicable special warranty or guarantee required by the 
Contract Documents, any of the Work does not comply with the Contract Documents, the 
Contractor shall correct it after receipt of Owner’s written notice to do so, unless the Owner has 
previously waived in writing such right to demand correction.  Contractor shall correct the Work 
promptly, and passage of the applicable warranty period shall not release Contractor from its 
obligation to correct the Work if Owner provided the written notice within the applicable 
warranty period.  Contractor’s obligation to correct the warranty item continues until the 
correction is made.  After the correction is made to Owner’s satisfaction, a new warranty period 
of the same length as the original warranty period shall run on the corrected work.  The 
obligations under this paragraph 12.2.5 shall survive acceptance of the Work under the Contract 
and termination of the Contract.  
 
 12.2.6 NO TIME LIMITATION 
 
Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with 
respect to other obligations which the Contractor might have under the Contract Documents.  
Establishment of the time period of one (1) year as described in Sections 3.5 and 12.2.5 relates 
only to the specific warranty obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work after the date of 
commencement of warranties and has, for example, no relationship to the time within which the 
obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, or to the time 
within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor’s liability with respect 
to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. 
 
12.3 NONCONFORMING WORK AND WITHHOLDING THE VALUE OF IT  
 
If it is found at any time before Completion of the Work that the Contractor has varied from the 

1128



Contract Documents in materials, quality, form, finish, or in the amount or value of the materials 
or labor used, the Owner may, in addition to other remedies in the Contract Documents or under 
law and as allowed by law, accept the improper Work.  The Owner may withhold from any 
amount due or to become due Contractor that sum of money equivalent to the difference in value 
between the Work performed and that called for by the Drawings and Specifications.  The Owner 
shall determine such difference in value.  No structural related work shall be accepted that is not 
in conformance with the Contract Documents. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
13.1 GOVERNING LAW 
 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located. 
 
13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
The Owner and the Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, 
and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party in respect to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained 
in the Contract Documents.  Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole or 
in part without written consent of the other.  If either party attempts to make such an assignment 
without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations 
under the Contract.   
 
13.3 WRITTEN NOTICE 
 
In the absence of specific notice requirements in the Contract Documents, written notice shall be 
deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, member of the firm or 
entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended, or if delivered at or sent by 
registered or certified or overnight mail to the last business address known to the party giving 
notice.  Owner shall, at Contractor’s cost, timely notify Contractor of Owner’s receipt of any 
third party claims relating to the Contract pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201. 
 
13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES 
 
 13.4.1 DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS CUMULATIVE 
 
Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available 
thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies 
otherwise imposed or available by law. 
 
 13.4.2 NO WAIVER 
 
No action or failure to act by the Owner, Inspector of Record, Architect or any construction 

1129



manager shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract 
Documents, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed to in a written amendment to the 
Contract.  
 
13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS 
 
 13.5.1 COMPLIANCE 
 
Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents 
will comply with Title 24, and with all other laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of 
public authorities having jurisdiction. 
 
 13.5.2 INDEPENDENT TESTING LABORATORY 
 
The Owner will select and pay an independent testing laboratory to conduct all tests and 
inspections, including shipping or transportation costs or expenses (mileage and hours).  
Selection of the materials required to be tested shall be made by the laboratory and not by the 
Contractor.  However, if Contractor requests that the Owner use a different testing laboratory and 
Owner chooses to approve such request, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for any additional 
shipping or transportation costs or expenses (mileage and hours).  Owner may invoice such costs 
or expenses to the Contractor or withhold such costs or expenses from progress payments and/or 
retention. 
 
 13.5.3 ADVANCE NOTICE TO INSPECTOR OF RECORD 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Inspector of Record a sufficient time in advance of its readiness 
for required observation or inspection so that the Inspector of Record may arrange for same.  The 
Contractor shall notify the Inspector of Record a sufficient time in advance of the manufacture of 
material to be supplied under the Contract Documents which must, by terms of the Contract 
Documents, be tested in order that the Inspector of Record may arrange for the testing of the 
material at the source of supply. 
  
 13.5.4 TESTING OFF-SITE 
 
Any material shipped by the Contractor from the source of supply, prior to having satisfactorily 
passed such testing and inspection or prior to the receipt of notice from said Inspector of Record 
that such testing and inspection will not be required, shall not be incorporated in the Work. 
 

1130



 13.5.5 ADDITIONAL TESTING OR INSPECTION 
 
If the Inspector of Record, the Architect, the Owner, or public authority having jurisdiction 
determines that portions of the Work require additional testing, inspection, or approval not 
included under section 13.5.1, the Inspector of Record will, upon written authorization from the 
Owner, make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, or approval.  The Owner shall 
bear such costs except as provided in section 13.5.6. 
 
 13.5.6 COSTS FOR RETESTING 
 
If such procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under sections 13.5.1, 13.5.2 and 13.5.5 
reveal failure of the portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the 
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall bear all costs arising from such failure, including those 
of re-testing, re-inspection, or re-approval, including, but not limited to, compensation for the 
Architect’s services and expenses.  Any such costs shall be paid by the Owner, invoiced to the 
Contractor, and, among other remedies, can be withheld from progress payments and/or 
retention. 
 
 13.5.7 COSTS FOR PREMATURE TEST 
 
In the event the Contractor requests any test or inspection for the Project and is not completely 
ready for the inspection, the Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for all costs and expenses 
resulting from that testing or inspection, including, but not limited to, the Architect’s fees and 
expenses, and the amount of the invoice can among other remedies, be withheld from progress 
payments and/or retention. 
 
 13.5.8 TESTS OR INSPECTIONS NOT TO DELAY WORK 
 
Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to 
avoid unreasonable delay in the Work. 
 
13.6 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  
 
13.7 TRENCH EXCAVATION 
 
 13.7.1 TRENCHES GREATER THAN FIVE FEET 
 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Contract Sum exceeds $25,000 and involves the 
excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall, in 
advance of excavation, submit to the Owner or a registered civil or structural engineer employed  
by the Owner a detailed plan showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of 
caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches.  
 
 13.7.2 EXCAVATION SAFETY 
 
If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Construction Safety 

1131



Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in no case shall 
such plan be less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders.  No excavation 
of such trench or trenches shall be commenced until said plan has been accepted by the Owner or 
by the person to whom authority to accept has been delegated by the Owner. 
 
 13.7.3 NO TORT LIABILITY OF OWNER 
 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability upon the 
Owner or any of its employees. 
 
 13.7.4 NO EXCAVATION WITHOUT PERMITS 
 
The Contractor shall not commence any excavation work until it has secured all necessary 
permits including the required CAL OSHA excavation/shoring permit.  Any permits shall be 
prominently displayed on the Site prior to the commencement of any excavation. 
 
13.8 WAGE RATES 
 
 13.8.1 WAGE RATES 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at § 1770), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of 
the Labor Code, the city council of the Owner has obtained the general prevailing rate of per 
diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in 
which this public work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed 
for this Project from the Director of Industrial Relations (“Director”).  These rates are on file 
with the Clerk of the Owner’s City Council, and copies will be made available to any interested 
party on request.  The Contractor shall post a copy of such wage rates at the Site. 
 
 13.8.2 HOLIDAY AND OVERTIME PAY 
 
Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for at a rate of at least one and 
one-half (1½) times the above specified rate of per diem wages, unless otherwise specified.  
Holidays shall be defined in the Collective Bargaining Agreement applicable to each particular 
craft, classification, or type of worker employed. 
 
 13.8.3 WAGE RATES NOT AFFECTED BY SUBCONTRACTS 
 
The Contractor shall pay and shall cause to be paid each worker engaged in the Work on the 
Project not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages determined by the Director, 
regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor 
or any Subcontractor and such workers. 
 

1132



 13.8.4 CHANGE IN PREVAILING WAGE DURING BID OR CONSTRUCTION 
 
If during the period this bid is required to remain open, the Director of Industrial Relations 
determines that there has been a change in any prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality  
in which this public work is to be performed, such change shall not alter the wage rates discussed 
in the Notice to Bidders or the Contract subsequently awarded. 
 
 13.8.5 FORFEITURE AND PAYMENTS 
 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 1775, the Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor 
shall as a penalty to the Owner, forfeit not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing rate of per diem 
wages, determined by the Director, for such craft or classification in which such worker is 
employed for any public work done under the Agreement by the Contractor or by any 
Subcontractor under it.  Minimum penalties shall apply, as also provided in Civil Code section 
1775.  The amount of the penalty shall be determined by the Labor Commissioner and shall be 
based on both of the following: (1) whether the failure of the contractor or subcontractor to pay 
the correct rate of per diem wages was a good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly 
and voluntarily corrected upon being brought to the attention of the contractor or subcontractor; 
and (2) whether the contractor or subcontractor has a prior record of failing to meet its prevailing 
wage obligations.  The difference between such prevailing rate of per diem wage and the amount 
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less 
than the prevailing rate of per diem wage shall be paid to each work by the Contractor or 
subcontractor.  Labor Code section 1777.1 shall also apply.   
 
 13.8.6 MINIMUM WAGE RATES 
 
Any worker employed to perform Work on the Contract, which Work is not covered by any craft 
or classification listed in the general prevailing rate of per diem wages determined by the 
Director, shall be paid not less than the minimum rate of wages specified therein for the craft or 
classification which most nearly corresponds to the Work to be performed by them, and such 
minimum wage rate shall be retroactive to time of initial employment of such person in such 
craft or classification. 
 
 13.8.7 PER DIEM WAGES 
 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 1773.1, per diem wages includes employer payments for health 
and welfare, pension, and vacation pay. 
 
 13.8.8 POSTING OF WAGE RATES  AND OTHER REQUIRED JOB SITE NOTICES 
 
The Contractor shall post at appropriate conspicuous points on the Site, a schedule showing all 
determined minimum wage rates and all authorized deductions, if any, from unpaid wages 
actually earned and all other required job site notices as prescribed by regulation.   
 

1133



13.9 RECORD OF WAGES PAID: INSPECTION 
 
 13.9.1 APPLICATION OF LABOR CODE 
 
 Pursuant to section 1776 of the Labor Code: 
 

(a) Each Contractor and subcontractor shall keep accurate payroll records, showing 
the name, address, social security number, work classification, and straight time and 
overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each 
journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in 
connection with the public work.  Each payroll record shall contain or be verified by a 
written declaration that is made under penalty of perjury, stating both of the following:   

 
(1)  The information contained in the payroll record is true and correct. 

   
  (2)  The employer has complied with the requirements of sections 1771, 1811 and 

1815 for any work performed by his or her employees on the public works 
project. 

 
(b) The payroll records enumerated under subdivision (a) shall be certified and shall 
be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the 
Contractor on the following basis: 

 
 (1) A certified copy of an employee’s payroll record shall be made available for 
inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on 
request. 

 
 (2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall 
be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the 
Owner and the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the Department of 
Industrial Relations ((“DIR”) and as may be required by the Labor Commissioner 
under Labor Code section 1771.4).  The Contractor and each subcontractor shall 
furnish a certified copy of all payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner 
monthly or more frequently, if so specified in the Agreement and in a format the Labor 
Commissioner prescribes.   

 
 (3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision (a) shall 
be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for copies thereof.  
However, a request by the public shall be made through either the body awarding the 
contract or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the …(DIR).  If the 
requested payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph (2), the 
requesting party shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of the 
preparation by the contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request 
was made.  The public may not be given access to such records at the principal office 
of the Contractor. 

 

1134



(c) Unless required as of January 1, 2015, to be furnished directly to the Labor 
Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4(a)(3), the certified payroll records 
shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (of the 
DIR) or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by the division.  The 
payroll records may consist of printouts of payroll data that are maintained as 
computer records, if the printouts contain the same information as the forms provided 
by the division and the printouts are verified in the manner specified in (a) above. 
 
(d) A Contractor or subcontractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated 
in subdivision (a) with the entity that requested such records within 10 days after 
receipt of a written request. 

 
(e) Except as provided in subdivision (f), any copy of records made available for 
inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by 
the awarding body or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (of the DIR) shall 
be marked or obliterated to prevent disclosure of an individual’s name, address and 
social security number.  The name and address of the Contractor awarded the Contract 
or the subcontractor performing the Contract shall not be marked or obliterated.  Any 
copy of records made available for inspection by, or furnished to, a multiemployer 
Taft-Hartley trust fund (29 U.S.C. Sec. 186(c)(5) that requests the records for the 
purposes of allocating contributions to participants shall be marked or obliterated only 
to prevent disclosure of an individual’s full social security number, but shall provide 
the last four digits of the social security number.  Any copy of records made available 
for inspection by, or furnished to, a joint labor-management committee established 
pursuant to the federal Labor Management Cooperation Act of 1978 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 
175a) shall be marked or obliterated only to prevent disclosure of an individual’s social 
security number.   
 
(f)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, agencies that are included in the Joint 
Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy established pursuant to 
Section 329 of the Unemployment Insurance Code and other law enforcement agencies 
investigating violations of law shall, upon request, be provided nonredacted copies of 
certified payroll records.  Any copies of records or certified payroll made available for 
inspection and furnished upon request to the public by an agency included in the Joint 
Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy or to a law enforcement 
agency investigating a violation of law shall be marked or redacted to prevent 
disclosure of an individual’s name, address, and social security number.  An employer 
shall not be liable for damages in a civil action for any reasonable act or omission 
taken in good faith in compliance with this subsection.   

 
(g) The contractor shall inform the body awarding the contract of the location of the 
records enumerated under subdivision (a), including the street address, city and county, 
and shall, within five working days, provide a notice of a change of location and 
address. 

 
(h) The contractor or subcontractor has 10 days in which to comply subsequent to 

1135



receipt of written notice requesting the records enumerated in subdivision (a).  In the 
event that the Contractor or subcontractor fails to comply within the 10-day period, he 
or she shall, as a penalty to the state or political subdivision on whose behalf the 
contract is made or awarded, forfeit One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for each calendar 
day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict compliance is effectuated.  Upon 
the request of the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (of the DIR), these 
penalties shall be withheld from progress payments then due.  A contractor is not 
subject to a penalty assessment pursuant to this section due to the failure of the 
subcontractor to comply with this section. 

 
13.10 APPRENTICES 
 
 13.10.1 APPRENTICE WAGES AND DEFINITIONS 
 
All apprentices employed by the Contractor to perform services under the Contract shall be paid 
the standard wage paid to apprentices under the regulations of the craft or trade at which he or 
she is employed, and shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which he or she 
is registered.  Only apprentices, as defined in section 3077 of the Labor Code, who are in training 
under apprenticeship standards and written apprenticeship agreements under Chapter 4 
(commencing with § 3070) of Division 3, are eligible to be employed under this Contract.  The 
employment and training of each apprentice shall be in accordance with the apprenticeship 
standards and apprentice agreements under which he or she is training.  Contractor shall pay 
apprentices for any preemployment activities, as set forth in Labor Code section 1777.5. 
 
 13.10.2 APPRENTICE LABOR POOL 
 
When the Contractor to whom the Contract is awarded by the Owner, or any Subcontractor under 
him or her, in performing any of the Work under the Contract or subcontract, employs workers in 
any apprenticeable craft or trade, the Contractor and Subcontractor shall apply to the joint 
apprenticeship committee administering the apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the 
area of the Site of the Project, for a certificate approving the Contractor or Subcontractor under 
the apprenticeship standards for the employment and training of apprentices in the area or 
industry affected.  However, approval as established by the joint apprenticeship committee or 
committees shall be subject to the approval of the Administrator of Apprenticeship.  The joint 
apprenticeship committee or committees, subsequent to approving the subject Contractor or 
Subcontractor, shall arrange for the dispatch of apprentices to the Contractor or Subcontractor in 
order to comply with this section.  Every Contractor and Subcontractor shall submit the contract 
award information to the applicable joint apprenticeship committee which shall include an 
estimate of journeyman hours to be performed under the Contract, the number of apprentices to 
be employed, and the approximate dates the apprentices will be employed.  There shall be an 
affirmative duty upon the joint apprenticeship committee or committees administering the 
apprenticeship standards of the crafts or trade in the area of the Site of the public work, to ensure 
equal employment and affirmative action and apprenticeship for women and minorities.  
Contractors or Subcontractors shall not be required to submit individual applications for approval 
to local joint apprenticeship committees provided they are already covered by the local 
apprenticeship standards.  The ratio of work performed by apprentices to journeymen, who shall 

1136



be employed in the craft or trade on the Project, may be the ratio stipulated in the apprenticeship 
standards under which the joint apprenticeship committee operates, but, except as otherwise 
provided in this section, in no case shall the ratio be less than one (1) hour of apprentice work for 
every five (5) hours of labor performed by a journeyman.  However, the minimum ratio for the 
land surveyor classification shall not be less than one (1) apprentice for each five (5) 
journeymen. 
 
 13.10.3 JOURNEYMAN/APPRENTICE RATIO; COMPUTATION OF HOURS 
 
Any ratio shall apply during any day or portion of a day when any journeyman, or the higher 
standard stipulated by the joint apprenticeship committee, is employed at the job Site and shall 
be computed on the basis of the hours worked during the day by journeymen so employed, 
except for the land surveyor classification.  The Contractor shall employ apprentices for the 
number of hours computed as above before the end of the Contract.  However, the Contractor 
shall endeavor, to the greatest extent possible, to employ apprentices during the same time period 
that the journeymen in the same craft or trade are employed at the job Site.  Where an hourly 
apprenticeship ratio is not feasible for a particular craft or trade, the Division of Apprenticeship 
Standards, upon application of a joint apprenticeship committee, may order a minimum ratio of 
not less than one (1) apprentice for each five (5) journeymen in a craft or trade classification. 
 
 13.10.4 JOURNEYMAN/APPRENTICE RATIO 
 
The Contractor or Subcontractor, if he or she is covered by this section upon the issuance of the 
approval certificate, or if he or she has been previously approved in the craft or trade, shall 
employ the number of apprentices or the ratio of apprentices to journeymen stipulated in the 
apprenticeship standards.  Upon proper showing by the Contractor that he or she employs 
apprentices in the craft or trade in the state on all of his or her contracts on an annual average of 
not less than one (1) hour of apprentice work for every five (5) hours of labor performed by a 
journeyman, or in the land surveyor classification, one (1) apprentice for each five (5) 
journeymen, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards may grant a certificate exempting the 
Contractor from the 1-to-5 hourly ratio as set forth in this section.  This section shall not apply to 
contracts of general contractors or to contracts of specialty contractors not bidding for work 
through a general or prime contractor, when the contracts of general contractors or those 
specialty contractors involve less than Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000) or twenty (20) 
working days.  Any work performed by a journeyman in excess of eight (8) hours per day or 
forty (40) hours per week, shall not be used to calculate the hourly ratio required by this section. 
 
  13.10.4.1  Apprenticeable Craft or Trade.  “Apprenticeable craft or trade” as used in 
this Article means a craft or trade determined as an apprenticeable occupation in accordance with 
the rules and regulations prescribed by the California Apprenticeship Council.  The joint 
apprenticeship committee shall have the discretion to grant a certificate, which shall be subject to 
the approval of the Administrator of Apprenticeship, exempting a Contractor from the 1-to-5 
ratio set forth in this Article when it finds that any one of the following conditions is met: 
 
  A. Unemployment for the previous three-month period in the area exceeds an 

average of fifteen percent (15%). 

1137



 
  B. The number of apprentices in training in such area exceeds a ratio of 1-to-5. 
 
  C. There is a showing that the apprenticeable craft or trade is replacing at least one-

thirtieth (1/30) of its journeymen annually through the apprenticeship training, 
either on a statewide basis or on a local basis. 

 
  D. Assignment of an apprentice to any work performed under this contract would 

create a condition which would jeopardize his or her life or the life, safety, or 
property of fellow employees or the public at large or if the specific task to which 
the apprentice is to be assigned is of such a nature that training cannot be 
provided by a journeyman. 

 
 13.10.5 RATIO EXEMPTION 
 
When exemptions are granted to an organization which represents Contractors in a specific trade 
from the 1-to-5 ratio on a local or statewide basis, the member Contractors will not be required to 
submit individual applications for approval to local joint apprenticeship committees, if they are 
already covered by the local apprenticeship standards. 
 
 13.10.6 APPRENTICE FUND 
 
A Contractor to whom the Contract is awarded or any Subcontractor under him or her, who, in 
performing any of the work under the Contract, employs journeymen or apprentices in any 
apprenticeable craft or trade and who is not contributing to a fund or funds to administer and 
conduct the apprenticeship program in any such craft or trade in the area of the Site of the 
Project, to which fund or funds other contractors in the area of the Site of the Project are 
contributing, shall contribute to the fund or funds in each craft or trade in which he or she 
employs journeymen or apprentices on the Project in the same amount or upon the same basis 
and in the same manner as the other contractors do, but where the trust fund administrators are 
unable to accept the funds, contractors not signatory to the trust agreement shall pay a like 
amount to the California Apprenticeship Council.  The Contractor or Subcontractor may add the 
amount of the contributions in computing his or her bid for the contract.  The Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement is authorized to enforce the payment of the contributions to the fund or 
funds as set forth in the Labor Code section 227. 
  
 13.10.7 PRIME CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE 
 
The responsibility of compliance with section 13.10 and section 1777.5 of the Labor Code for all 
apprenticeable occupations is with the Prime Contractor. 
 
 13.10.8 DECISIONS OF JOINT APPRENTICESHIP COMMITTEE 
 
All decisions of the joint apprenticeship committee under this section 13.10 and Labor Code 
section 1777.5 are subject to Labor Code section 3081. 
 

1138



 13.10.9 NO BIAS 
 
It shall be unlawful for an employer or a labor union to refuse to accept otherwise qualified 
employees as registered apprentices on any public works on the grounds of race, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry, sex, or age, except as provided in the Labor Code section 3077. 

 
13.10.10 VIOLATION OF LABOR CODE 

 
Pursuant to Labor Code sections 1777.1 and 1777.7, in the event a Contractor or Subcontractor 
fails to comply with the provisions of this section 13.10 and Labor Code section 1777.5, among 
other things: 
 

(a) If a Contractor or Subcontractor willfully fails to comply, the Labor 
Commissioner may deny to the contractor or subcontractor, and to its responsible 
officers, the right to bid on, or be awarded or perform work as a subcontractor on, any 
public works project for a period of up to one year for the first violation and for a 
period of up to three years for the second and subsequent violation.  Each period of 
debarment shall run from the date the determination of noncompliance by the Labor 
Commissioner becomes a final order. 

 
(b) A contractor or subcontractor who violates section 1777.5 shall forfeit as a civil 
penalty an amount not exceeding the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100) for each full 
calendar day of noncompliance. Upon receipt of a determination that a civil penalty 
has been imposed, the awarding body shall enforce the penalty, which includes 
withholding the amount of the civil penalty from the contract progress payments or 
retention then due or to become due. 

 
(c) In lieu of the penalty provided, the Labor Commissioner may for a first time 
violation and with the concurrence of an applicable apprenticeship program, order the 
contractor or subcontractor to provide apprentice employment equivalent to the work 
hours that would have been provided for apprentices during the period of 
noncompliance. 

 
(d) Any funds withheld by the awarding body pursuant to this section shall be 
deposited in the General Fund. 
 
(e) The interpretation and enforcement of section 1777.5 and this section shall be in 
accordance with the regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council. 

 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 6109, no contractor or subcontractor may bid on, be 
awarded, or perform work as a subcontractor on a public works project if ineligible to bid or 
work on, or be awarded, a public works project pursuant to section 1777.1 of the Labor Code. 
 

1139



13.11 ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST CLAIMS 
 
 13.11.1 APPLICATION 
 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7103.5 and Government Code section 4552, in entering 
into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a 
public works contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the Owner 
all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the 
Clayton Act, (15 U.S.C. § 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with 
§ 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Bus. & Prof. Code), arising from the purchase of goods, 
services, or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract.  This assignment 
shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders Final Progress 
Payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.  If the Owner 
receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action 
assigned under Chapter 11 (commencing with § 4550) of Division 5 of Title 1 of the 
Government Code, the assignor  may, upon demand, recover from the Owner any portion of the 
recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but 
were not paid by the Owner as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that 
portion of the recovery. 
 
 13.11.2 ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIM 
 
Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the Owner shall, within one (1) year from such 
demand, reassign the cause of action assigned pursuant to this Article if the assignor has been or 
may have been injured by the violation of law for which the cause of action arose and the Owner 
has not been injured thereby or the Owner declines to file a court action for the cause of action. 
 
13.12 AUDIT 
 
Pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Government Code section 8546.7, or any 
amendments thereto, all books, records, and files of the Owner, the Contractor, or any 
Subcontractor connected with the performance of this Contract involving the expenditure of state 
funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), including, but not limited to, the 
administration thereof, shall be subject to the examination and audit of the Office of the Auditor 
General of the State of California for a period of three (3) years after release of all retention 
under this Contract.  Contractor shall preserve and cause to be preserved such books, records, 
and files for the audit period.  During the progress of the Work and for three (3) years after 
release of all retention under the Contract, Owner shall also have the right to an audit of 
Contractor’s books, records, subcontracts, material and equipment contracts, files, and 
information related to the project, and Contractor must cooperate by producing all requested 
items within seven (7) days. 
 
13.13 STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT 
 
If applicable, the Contractor shall file a Notice of Intent to comply with the terms of the general 
permit to discharge storm water associated with construction activity (WQ Order No. 920-08-

1140



DWQ).  The Notice of Intent must be sent to the following address along with the appropriate 
payment (warrant to be furnished by the Owner upon request by the Contractor, allow warrant 
processing time.):  California State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Water Quality, 
Storm Water Permit Unit, P.O. Box 1977, Sacramento, CA 95812-1977.  The Contractor may 
also call the State Water Board’s Construction Activity Storm Water Hotline at (916) 657-1146.  
The Notice of Intent shall be filed prior to the start of any construction activity. 
 

ARTICLE 14 
 

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 
 
14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR CAUSE 
 
Contractor may not terminate performance for convenience.  Contractor may only terminate 
performance for cause if the Work is stopped by others for a period of one hundred eighty (180) 
consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor of any tier, their 
agents or employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work for whom the 
Contractor is contractually responsible, and the Work was stopped by others for one of the 
following reasons:  (A) Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having 
jurisdiction which requires Owner to stop all Work; or (B) an act of government, such as a 
declaration of national emergency, making material unavailable which requires Owner to stop all 
Work.  If such grounds exist, the Contractor may serve written notice of such grounds on Owner 
and demand a meet-and-confer conference to negotiate a resolution in good faith within twenty 
(20) days of Owner’s receipt of such notice.  If such conference does not lead to resolution and 
the grounds for termination still exist, Contractor may terminate the Contract and recover from 
the Owner payment for Work executed and for reasonable verified costs with respect to 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment, and machinery, including reasonable 
overhead, profit, and damages for the Work executed, but excluding overhead (field and home 
office) and profit for (i) Work not performed and (ii) the period of time that the Work was 
stopped. 
 
14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE 
 
 14.2.1 GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION 
 
The Owner may terminate performance of the Contract if the Contractor: 
 
 A. Refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials, or 

refuses or fails to take steps to adequately prosecute the Work to meet a Milestone 
Deadline or to Complete within the Contract Time; 

 
 B. Fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with 

Public Contract Code section 10262 or Business and Professions Code section 
7108.5, as applicable; 

 
 C. Violates Labor Code section 1771.1(a), subject to the provisions of Labor Code section 

1141



1771.1(f); 
 
 D. Disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of a public authority having 

jurisdiction; or  
 
 E. Otherwise is in breach of the Contract Documents. 
 
 14.2.2 NOTIFICATION OF TERMINATION 
 
When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or 
remedies of the Owner, give notice to Contractor of the grounds for termination and demand cure 
of the grounds within seven (7) days (a “Notice of Intent to Terminate”).  If Contractor fails to 
either (a) completely cure the grounds for termination within seven (7) days or (b) reasonably 
commence cure of the grounds for termination within seven (7) days and reasonably continue to 
cure the grounds for termination until such cure is complete, then Owner may terminate the 
performance of Contract effective immediately upon service of written Notice of Termination 
and may, subject to any prior rights of Contractor’s surety on the performance bond (“Surety”): 
 
 A. Take possession of the Site and of all material, equipment, tools, and construction 

equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;  
 
 B. Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to section 5.4; and  
 
 C. Complete the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient, 

including tender of completion to the Surety. 
 
14.2.3 PAYMENTS WITHHELD 

 
If the Owner terminates performance of the Contract for one of the reasons stated in section 
14.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is 
Complete. 
 
 14.2.4 PAYMENTS UPON COMPLETION 
 
If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of Completing the Work, including 
compensation for professional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall 
be paid to the Contractor.  If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the 
difference to the Owner.  This payment obligation shall survive Completion of the Work. 
 
 14.2.5 INCLUSION OF TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
Any purported termination by Owner for cause under this section 14.2, which is revoked or 
determined to not have been for cause, shall be deemed to have been a termination for 
convenience effective as of the same date as the purported termination for cause. 
 

1142



14.3 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
 14.3.1 SUSPENSION BY OWNER 
 
The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the 
Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 
 
   14.3.1.1  Adjustments.  An adjustment shall be made for increases in the cost of 
performance of the Contract, including profit on the increased cost of performance caused by 
suspension, delay, or interruption.  No adjustment shall be made to the extent: 
 

   A. That performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed, or 
interrupted by another cause for which the Contractor is responsible; or 

 
   B. That an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of 

this Contract. 
 
   14.3.1.2  Adjustments for Fixed Cost.  Adjustments made in the cost of 
performance may have a mutually agreed fixed or percentage fee. 
 
 14.3.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
   14.3.2.1  The Owner may, at any time, terminate performance of the Contract for 
the Owner’s convenience and without cause. 
 
   14.3.2.2  Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for 
the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall: 
 
   1. Cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 
 
   2. Take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and 

preservation of the Work; and 
 
   3. Except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of 

termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and 
purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

 
   14.3.2.3  In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor 
shall be entitled to receive payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such 
termination. 
 

1143



14.4 NOT A WAIVER 
 
Any suspension or termination by Owner of performance by Contractor for convenience or cause 
under this Article 14 shall not act as a waiver of any claims by Owner against Contractor or 
others for damages based on breach of contract, negligence or other grounds. 
 
14.5 MUTUAL TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
The Contractor and the Owner may mutually agree in writing to terminate performance of this 
Contract for convenience.  The Contractor shall receive payment for all Work performed to the 
date of termination in accordance with the provisions of Article 9. 
 
14.6 EARLY TERMINATION 
 
Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, if for any fiscal year of this Contract the 
governing body of the Owner fails to appropriate or allocate funds for future periodic payments 
under the Contract after exercising reasonable efforts to do so, the Owner may upon thirty (30) 
days’ notice, order Work on the Project to cease. The Owner will remain obligated to pay for the 
Work already performed but shall not be obligated to pay the balance remaining unpaid beyond 
the fiscal period for which funds have been appropriated or allocated and for which the Work has 
not been done.   
 
 
J:\WDOCS\01943\001\agt\01009529.DOCX 

1144



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 3-9 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Frank Rivera, Public Works Director   
Date: November 22, 2022  Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject: Notice of Completion – CIP 5705 – Downtown Parking Lot Project 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 5705 – Downtown Parking Lot 
Project and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the document for 
recordation. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore awarded the Downtown Parking Lot Project to Powers Construction 
on September 22, 2022.  
 
The parking lot is located on C Street behind Tadeo’s and Wells Fargo. The project 
consisted of removing and regrading the parking lot, replacing the asphalt with 5 inches 
of concrete, and restriping all lines upon completion of the project. The project was 
inspected and deemed complete as of November 18, 2022.  
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
The overall budget and cost of this project was $124,080.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pro:  

• Filing of the Notice of Completion will allow time for creditors to notify the City of 
unpaid bills and allow for the release of some of the bonds for the Contractor. 

1145



Cons:   
• None noted 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the filing of the Notice of Completion for CIP 
5705 –Downtown Parking Lot Project and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to 
execute the document for recordation. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  Notice of Completion 

1146



 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Lemoore 
711 W Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore, CA  93245 
 
 
No Fee Per Government Code 6103 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Civil Code Section 9204, that the interest or 
estate stated below herein in the real property herein described is owned by the CITY OF 
LEMOORE and that the City Council of the City of Lemoore, 711 W Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore, 
California, entered into an Agreement on September 22, 2022 with Powers Construction for 
the Downtown Parking Lot Project, located on the northwest corner of the intersection of 
Heinlen Street and C Street, in the City of Lemoore in Kings County, California 93245.  Such 
work has been completed and accepted by the City of Lemoore on the 6th day of December. 
 
       CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
              
                                                                            Nathan Olson, City Manager 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS            )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE            ) 
 
 I, Frank Rivera, am the Public Works Director of the City of Lemoore.  I have read the 
foregoing Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof, and I certify that the same is 
true of my knowledge except for those matters stated upon information and belief, and as to 
those matters, I believe them to be true and correct.  I certify under penalty of perjury that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 EXECUTED this     day of     , 2022 at Lemoore, California. 
 
 
       
Frank Rivera 
Public Works Director 
City of Lemoore 

1147



 
 

 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )     ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Nathan Olson, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 
 
 

PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 

 On       before me, Marisa Avalos, City Clerk, 
personally appeared Frank Rivera, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be 
the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, 
the person or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
      
Marisa Avalos, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

1148



                                       
 
 
       

   City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 

Staff Report 
 

   Item No: 3-10 
              
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From Michael Kendall, Police Chief 
Date: November 30, 2022   Meeting Date:  December 6, 2022  
Subject: Budget Amendment – Lemoore Police Shoe Drive 
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motions: 
Approve a budget amendment in the amount of $600.00 to increase the expenditures for 
the Lemoore Police Department Shoe Drive and authorize the City Manager, or designee 
to execute the transfer. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Annually Lemoore Police Department conducts a children’s shoe drive. Donations are 
collected all year to provide children in need with new shoes. To date, 45 children have 
been identified as needing a new pair of shoes.  The number tends to increase through 
the fiscal year as more children are identified.  This year there has also been an increase 
in shoe prices. A budget amendment in the amount of $600 is necessary in order to 
purchase enough shoes for the children in need. Fund 124 has an approximate fund 
balance of $1800. The additional funds will come from Fund 124, and will not effect the 
City’s general fund.  
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
A budget amendment in the amount of $600.00 from Fund 124. There is no effect to the 
City’s general fund.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Provide shoes to children in need. 

1149



 
Cons: 

• None noted. 
 

Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approve a budget amendment in the amount of 
$600.00 for the purchase of children’s shoes and authorize the City Manager, or 
designee, to execute the transfer. 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/30/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☐ City Attorney  
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 12/01/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 12/01/2022 
☒ Other:  Budget Amendment  ☐ Finance  

 
 

1150



Date: Request By:

Requesting Department: 

TYPE OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST:

Appropriation Transfer within Budget Unit

All other appropriations (Attach Council approved Staff Report)

FROM:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

124 1010 1,878.69$                 (600.00)$                          1,278.69$                                   

TO:

Fund Budget Unit Account Current Budget Proposed
Increase/Decrease: Proposed New Budget

124 4288 4220 750.00$                     600.00$                           1,350.00$                                   

-$                           

-$                           

APPROVALS: 

Completed By:  Date:

Department Head: Date:

Date:City Manager:

JUSTIFICATION FOR CHANGE/FUNDING SOURCE:

To increase expenses for the Lemoore PD Shoe Drive 2022-2023.

11/30/2022 Margarita Ochoa

Police 

CITY OF LEMOORE
BUDGET AMENDMENT FORM

1151



                                                                            
 
 
        

     City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  Fax (559) 924-9003 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 4-1 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Ray Greenlee, Community Services Manager   
Date: November 4, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject:  Resolution 2022-42 – Amending the Master User Fee Schedule to Revise 

and Update Fees Associated with Facility and Park Rentals  
 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☒ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Hold a public hearing on proposed amendments to the Master User Fee Schedule 
regarding Facility and Park rentals, as presented in the attached fee schedule, to take 
effect immediately upon approval of Resolution 2022-42.   
 
Subject/Discussion: 
Periodic review of various City services and fees is important for revenue management, 
and also to assure continued equitable pricing for services and offerings by the City.  
Additionally, reviews provide an opportunity to analyze core programs, facilities, and 
services, and to add categories for new or revised offerings.  Critical to this undertaking 
is the support and buy-in of elected officials, advisory boards, staff, and, most importantly, 
the citizens. 
 
The attached schedule for Facility and Park rentals outlines existing and proposed fees.  
New fees are clearly identified with an adjacent “n.”  Fees that are changed, either 
increased or decreased, are marked with a “c.”   
 
 

1152



Financial Consideration(s): 
The revised fees will generate additional revenue to the City to offset the increased costs 
of providing those services.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Increases cost recovery for specific services covered by fees. 
• Supports general fund revenue available for community beneficial programs not 

covered by fees. 
 
Cons: 

• Increased fees are often not supported by residents and builders. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not Applicable 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
City staff recommends that City Council hold the public hearing and adopt Resolution 
2022-41, amending the Master User Fee Schedule to revise and update fees associated 
with facility and park rentals. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review:  Date: 
☐ Resolution: 2022-41  ☒ Asst. City Mgr. 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map    ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Other     ☐ Finance  

 List:   Master User Fee Schedule 
    

1153



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-42 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

AMENDING THE MASTER USER FEE SCHEDULE TO REVISE AND UPDATE FEES 
ASSOCIATED WITH FACILITY AND PARK RENTALS 

 
 
 WHEREAS California state law authorizes local governments to charge fees for public 
services based on the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fees are 
charged; and 
 
 WHEREAS the City Council has the authority to increase certain fees annually, based on 
an appropriate measure within the nationally published Consumer Price Index, or by reevaluation 
and assignment of actual municipal costs to cover the estimated cost of providing the services for 
which such fees are levied; and 
 
 WHEREAS a fee study has been conducted by city staff to assess costs for facility and 
park rentals within the city; and 
 
 WHEREAS the City of Lemoore has met the requirements pursuant to Government Code 
Section 66016 by holding a public hearing concerning the adoption of said fees and has made 
available to the public, at least 10 days before the hearing, data on the amount of costs or estimated 
costs required to provide the services for which the fees are levied and the revenue sources 
anticipated to provide the services; and 
 
 WHEREAS the City of Lemoore determines to update and include all within the Master 
Fee Schedule. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
that: 
 

1. The Council finds that the specific amount of the added and otherwise updated user fees, 
the description of the benefit and impact area on which the user fee is imposed, the 
description of the reasonable relationship between the fees and the various types of 
services, and the time for payment set forth below in this resolution are proper and 
necessary and the information and data upon which the fees are based is correct and 
accurate; and, 

 
2. Council hereby adopts and approves the Facility and Park Rental Feeds to be added to the 

Master User Fee Schedule, following a public hearing on the matter and the same is 
incorporated herein; and, 
 

3. The fees adopted by this resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
approval of this resolution. 
 

4. Fees in the Master Fee Schedule may be increased annually based on the “Consumer Price 
Index - All Urban Customers,” for the area of “Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange County, 

1154



CA.”  The increase shall be effective each July 1st, and shall be based on the most recent 
12-month average compared to the previous 12-month average.  

 
5. Any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside or annul this resolution shall 

be brought within 120 days of its adoption; and, 
 

6. Specific defined User Fees are presented in the attachment.. 
 

7. The provisions of this resolution are severable, and the validity of any part thereof 
including any fee shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of the 
resolution. 

 
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on                                   
the 6th day of December, 2022 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAINING: 
 
         
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Stuart Lyons 
City Clerk      Mayor  
  

1155



EXHIBIT A 
City of Lemoore Facility Rental Fees 

  Existing  Proposed   

  Resident 
Non-

Resident 
Non-
Profit Resident 

Non-
Resident Non-Profit * 

Civic Auditorium     
City Sponsored Events No fee No Fee   

Entire Facility 
$450 / 4 

hours 
$500 / 4 

hours 
$315 / 
4 hours 

$450 / 4 
hours 

$500 / 4 
hours 

$315 / 4 
hours c 

Any Additional Hours - Including 
Decorating/Cleanup $40 / hour $125 / hour $87.50/hour c 

Conference Room Only 
$20 / 
hour 

$25 / 
hour 

$14 / 
hour 

$50 / 
hour 

$55 / 
hour $35 / hour c 

Foyer not including Kitchen  none none none $75 / 
hour 

$82.50 / 
hour 

$52.50 / 
hour n 

Kitchen none none none $100 / 
hour 

$110 / 
hour $70 / hour n 

Tables none none none $8 each $8 each $8 each n 
Chairs none none none $1 each $1 each $1 each n 
Deposit none none none $250  $250  $250  n 

Lemoore Veterans Memorial Hall     

Veterans Hall Side $200 / 4 hours 
$200 / 4 

hours 
$250 / 4 

hours 
$140 / 4 

hours c 

Vets Hall Old Teen Center Side $200 / 4 hours $250 / 4 
hours 

$275 / 4 
hours 

$175 / 4 
hours c 

Rent Both Sides/ Vets Hall & Teen 
Center $300 / 4 hours $300 / 4 

hours 
$350 / 4 

hours 
$275 / 4 

hours c 
Any Additional Hours - Including 

Decorating/Cleanup $30 / hour $60 / 
hour 

$65 / 
hour $42 / hour c 

Kitchen none none none $50 / 
hour 

$55 / 
hour $30 / hour n 

Tables none none none $8 each $8 each $8 each n 
Chairs none none none $1 each $1 each $1 each n 
Deposit none none none $250  $250  $250  n 

Lemoore Recreation Center     
Lemoore Recreation Center - 

Entire Facility 
$800 / 6 

hours 
$800 / 6 

hours 
$560 / 
6 hours 

$1,200 / 
6 hours 

$1,320 / 
6 hours 

$840 / 6 
hours c 

Any Additional Hours - Including 
Decorating/Cleanup $60 / hour $220 / hour $154 / hour c 

Lemoore Recreation Center 
Commercial Kitchen $50 / hour (3 hour minimum) $150 / 

hour 
$165 / 
hour $105 / hour c 

        4 hour minimum for kitchen rental   

Indoor Soccer Field $50 / hour $50 / 
hour 

$55 / 
hour $35 / hour c 

Basketball Courts per court / 
Basketball Only $20 / hour $30 / 

hour 
$35 / 
hour $21 / hour c 

Day Camp / Multi Purose Room $150 / 3 hours $200 / 3 
hours 

$220 / 3 
hours 

$140 / 3 
hours c 

Dance Room / Meeting Room $300 / 4 hours $300 / 3 
hours 

$330 / 3 
hours 

$210 / 3 
hours c 

1156



Spring Floor none none none $50 / 
hour 

$55 / 
hour $35 / hour n 

Miscellaneous Recreation 
Programs Various Various   

Tables none none none $8 each $8 each $8 each n 
Chairs none none none $1 each $1 each $1 each n 
Deposit none none none $300  $300  $300  n 

* c = change, n = new               
 

City of Lemoore Park Rental Fees 
  Existing  Proposed   

  Resident 
Non-

Resident 
Non-
Profit Resident 

Non-
Resident Non-Profit * 

Veterans Memorial Park     

Small BBQ Area $25 / 4 hours or $40 / all day $60 / 4 
hours $66 / 4 hours $42 / 4 

hours c 

  
$150 / all 

day 
$165 / all 

day 
$105 / all 

day c 
    

Large BBQ Area $25 / 4 hours or $40 / all day $75 / 4 
hours 

$82.50 / 4 
hours 

$52.50 / 4 
hours c 

  
$175 / all 

day 
$192.50 / all 

day 
$122.50 / all 

day c 
    

Gazebo $25 / 4 hours or $40 / all day $50 / 4 
hours $55 / 4 hours $35 / 4 

hours c 

  
$110 / all 

day 
$122 / all 

day $77 / all day c 
    

Large BBQ Area with 
Gazebo $40 / 4 hours or $60 / all day $125 / 4 

hours 
$137.50 / 4 

hours 
$87.50 / 4 

hours c 

  
$285 / all 

day 
$314.50 / all 

day 
$199.50 / all 

day c 
    

Entire Park none none none $700 / all 
day 

$770 / all 
day 

$490 / all 
day n 

    
Deposit (Entire Park) none none none $300  $300  $300  n 

Heritage Park     

1 Section $25 / 4 hours or $40 / all day $75 / 4 
hours 

$82.50 / 4 
hours 

$52.50 / 4 
hours c 

  
$175 / all 

day 
$185 / all 

day 
$122.50 / all 

day c 
    

2 Sections $40 / 4 hours or $60 / all day $140 / 4 
hours 

$150 / 4 
hours 

$98 / 4 
hours c 

  
$280 / all 

day 
$290 / all 

day 
$203 / all 

day c 
    

1157



Entire Pavillion (4 
Sections) $75 / 4 hours or $115 / all day $280 / 4 

hours 
$290 / 4 

hours 
$203 / 4 

hours c 

    $550 / all 
day 

$560 / all 
day 

$385 / all 
day c 

    
Softball Field  none none none $20 / hour $25 / hour $14 / hour n 
Tennis Court none none none $20 / hour $25 / hour $14 / hour n 

Tennis Court (with lights) none none none $25 / hour $30 / hour $17.50 / 
hour n 

Basketball Court  none none none $20 / hour $25 / hour $14 / hour n 
Basketball Court (with 

lights) none none none $25 / hour $30 / hour $17.50 / 
hour n 

Disc Golf none none none $20 / hour $25 / hour $14 / hour n 
    

Pavilion & Parking Area none none none $500 / 4 
hours 

$550 / 4 
hours 

$350 / 4 
hours n 

  
$750 / all 

day 
$800 / all 

day 
$525 / all 

day n 
    

Deposit (Entire Park) none none none $300  $300  $300  n 
* c = change, n = new               

 
City of Lemoore Park Rental Fees 

  Existing  Proposed   

  Resident 
Non-

Resident 
Non-
Profit Resident 

Non-
Resident 

Non-
Profit * 

Lions Park     

1 Section $35 / 4 hours or $55 / all day $50 / 4 
hours 

$60 / 4 
hours 

$35 / 4 
hours c 

        $110 / all 
day 

$120 / all 
day 

$77 / all 
day c 

    

2 Sections (Entire Pavillion) $70 / 4 hours or $105 / all day $100 / 4 
hours 

$110 / 4 
hours 

$70 / 4 
hours c 

        $220 / all 
day 

$240 / all 
day 

$154 / all 
day c 

    
Softball Field none none none $20 / hour $25 / hour $14 / hour n 
Soccer Field none none none $20 / hour $20 / hour $14 / hour n 
Deposit (Entire Park) none none none $300  $300  $300  n 

Lemoore Youth Sports 
Complex     

Entire Complex none none none $1200 / all 
day 

$1320 / all 
day 

$840 / all 
day n 

Softball Field none none none $40 / hour $50 / hour $28 / hour n 
Softball Field Lights none none none $10 / hour $10 / hour $10 / hour n 
Soccer Field none none none $40 / hour $50 / hour $28 / hour n 

1158



Soccer Field Lights none none none $10 / hour $10 / hour $10 / hour n 

Concession Stand none none none $100 / all 
day 

$105 / all 
day 

$70 / all 
day n 

Deposit (Entire Park) none none none $300  $300  $300  n 
Kings Lions Complex     

Entire Complex none none none $800 / all 
day 

$880 / all 
day 

$560 / all 
day n 

Softball Field none none none $40 / hour $50 / hour $28 / hour n 
Softball Field Lights none none none $10 / hour $10 / hour $10 / hour n 
Soccer Field none none none $40 / hour $50 / hour $28 / hour n 

Concession Stand none none none $100 / all 
day 

$105 / all 
day 

$70 / all 
day n 

Deposit (Entire Park) none none none $300  $300  $300  n 
D Street Plaza Park     

Gazebo none none none $50 / 4 
hours 

$60 / 4 
hours 

$35 / 4 
hours n 

Deposit none none none $75  $75  $75  n 
Lemoore Arbor Plaza     

Entire Arbor  none none none $100 / all 
day 

$105 / all 
day 

$70 / all 
day n 

Deposit none none none $200 $200 $200 n 
Miscellaneous     

Alcohol Use Permit $25  $50  c 
Community Event Street 

Banners $27  none $50  $45 / 30 
Days 

$45 / 30 
Days 

$45 / 30 
Days c 

Vendor Booths none none none $30 / 20x20 space n 
City Personnel none none none $22 / hour n 
Advertisement none none none $1,200 / annually up to 32 sqft n 

  $1,500 / annually up to 100 sqft n 
* c = change, n = new               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1159



 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Application Fee to Request Reservation 
A non-refundable application fee of $25 must be paid and an application completed for rental of city facilities. 

Deposits and Cancellation 
The full amount of the deposit must be paid to reserve a facility. If a reservation is cancelled, this amount will not 
be refunded. The amount of deposit, depends on the facility being rented. All deposits are refundable as long as 
there is not a cancellation and the facility is returned as found (no food, spills, debris). 

Additional Costs 
Upon review of an application, the City may determine that additional costs associated with hosting a 
special event, in particular, weighted personnel costs (except direct personnel costs only for Service 
Clubs) for Police, Fire or Public Works personnel, deposits, rental of portable restrooms, refuse services, 
signage and other permits, may be necessary. Stated per hour charge is for one meeting room, kitchen, 
conference room, court or designated space. 
City of Lemoore Service Clubs 
City of Lemoore Service Clubs will not be charged a facility rental fee for three (3) special events per 
calendar year, nor will they be charged a rental fee for their regular meetings. 

City of Lemoore Non-Profit Organizations 
City of Lemoore non-profit organizations will receive a thirty percent (30%) discount on rental fees for 
facilities as specified above. Proof of non-profit status must be shown to receive the discount. 

* c = change, n = new             
 

1160



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 4-2 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Michael Kendall, Chief of Police   
Date: October 17, 2022   Meeting Date: December 6, 2022 
Subject:  Amendment to Military Policy 709 
Strategic Initiative:  

☒ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 

Proposed Motion: 
Approve the amendment to the Lemoore Police Department Policy 709, including the 
addition of an Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) – DJI Mini 2, deemed “military 
equipment” pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.  
 
Subject/Discussion: 
On April 19, 2022 the Lemoore City Council adopted Lemoore Police Department 
Military Equipment Use Policy 709 pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.  As described in AB 
481 “Future acquisition of any item deemed to be “military equipment” will require a 
further public meeting, policy update, and City Council approval”.  The Lemoore Police 
Department has purchased DJI Mini 2.   
 
The DJI Mini 2 is an unmanned aerial system (UAS) that may be utilized to enhance 
the Lemoore Police Department’s mission of protecting lives and property when other 
means and resources are not available or are less effective.  Unlike our current UAS, 
the DJI Mini 2 is a small UAS capable of flying indoors. Any use of a UAS will be in 
strict accordance with the constitutional and privacy rights and Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) regulations. 
 

1161



The policy amendment requirements were satisfied as the public hearing was noticed 
and the draft amended policy was posted on the city’s website more than 30 days prior 
to the hearing.  
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
None.   
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• LPD will be able to use it to protect and serve our community. 
 

Cons: 
• None. 

 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
N/A 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council approves the amended Lemoore Police Department 
Policy section 709-Military Equipment, including the addition of an Unmanned Aircraft 
System (UAS) – DJI Mini 2, deemed “military equipment” pursuant to Assembly Bill 481. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review:   Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022   
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney  11/29/2022 
☐ Map    ☒ City Manager  11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Clerk  11/28/2022 
☒ Other     ☐ Finance 

 List: Policy 709 

1162



Policy

709
Lemoore Police Department

Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 1

Military Equipment
709.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the approval, acquisition, and reporting
requirements of military equipment (Government Code § 7070; Government Code § 7071;
Government Code § 7072).

709.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State  MODIFIED

Definitions related to this policy include (Government Code § 7070):

Governing body – The elected or appointed body that oversees the Department.

Military equipment – Includes but is not limited to the following:

• Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles.

• Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored personnel carriers.

• High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), two-and-one-half-ton trucks,
five-ton trucks, or wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry apparatus attached.

• Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their occupants.

• Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate the
operational control and direction of public safety units.

• Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles of any kind.

• Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive in nature. This
does not include a handheld, one-person ram.

• Firearms and ammunition of_.50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue shotguns
and standard-issue shotgun ammunition.

• Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than_.50 caliber, including firearms and
accessories identified as assault weapons in Penal Code § 30510 and Penal Code §
30515, with the exception of standard-issue firearms.

• Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive projectiles.

• Noise-flash diversionary devices and explosive breaching tools.

• Munitions containing tear gas or OC, excluding standard, service-issued handheld
pepper spray.

• TASER® Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and long-range acoustic
devices (LRADs).

• Kinetic energy weapons and munitions.

• Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state agency to require
additional oversight.

1163



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 2

709.2   POLICY
State  MODIFIED

It is the policy of the Lemoore Police Department that members of this Department comply with
the provisions of Government Code § 7071 with respect to military equipment.

709.3   MILITARY EQUIPMENT COORDINATOR
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Chief of Police should designate a member of this Department to act as the military equipment
coordinator. The responsibilities of the military equipment coordinator include but are not limited to:

(a) Acting as liaison to the governing body for matters related to the requirements of this
policy.

(b) Identifying Department equipment that qualifies as military equipment in the current
possession of the Department, or the equipment the Department intends to acquire
that requires approval by the governing body.

(c) Conducting an inventory of all military equipment at least annually.

(d) Collaborating with any allied agency that may use military equipment within the
jurisdiction of the Lemoore Police Department (Government Code § 7071).

(e) Preparing for, scheduling, and coordinating the annual community engagement
meeting to include:

1. Publicizing the details of the meeting.

2. Preparing for public questions regarding the Department's funding, acquisition,
and use of equipment.

(f) Preparing the annual military equipment report for submission to the Chief of
Police and ensuring that the report is made available on the Department website
(Government Code § 7072).

(g) Establishing the procedure for a person to register a complaint or concern, or how that
person may submit a question about the use of a type of military equipment, and how
the Department will respond in a timely manner.

709.4   MILITARY EQUIPMENT INVENTORY
State  MODIFIED

The following constitutes a list of qualifying equipment for the Department:

A. Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS). An unmanned aircraft, remotely piloted, powered
vehicle, along with the associated equipment necessary to control it.

1. DJI INSPIRE 1V2, cost $1200 each, quantity: 2. UAS with a single-color camera,
DGI XT 336 FLIR Thermal Sensor Camera ($6900) weighs approx. 7.5 pounds and has
video recording capabilities, approx. 30 minutes of flight time. Expected life span: 3-5
years. Fiscal Impact; $1000.

1164



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 3

2. DJI Mini 2, cost $750, quantity:1. UAS with single-color camera, weighs approximately
0.5 lbs, has video recording and photographing capabilities, approximately 31 minutes
of flight time on a single battery charge with optimal flight conditions. Expected life span:
2-3 years. Fiscal impact $750.

a. Purpose

To be deployed when its view would assist officers or incident commanders
with the following situations, which include but are not limited to:

  i. major collision investigations.

  ii. search for missing persons.

  iii. natural disaster management.

  iv. crime scene photography.

  v. SWAT, tactical or other public safety and life preservation missions.

 iv. in response to specific requests from local, state or federal fire
authorities for fire response and/or prevention.

 b. Authorized Use

Only assigned operators who have completed the required training shall be
permitted to operate any UAS.

 c. Training

All department UAS operators are licensed by the Federal Aviation
Administration for UAS operation. In addition, each operator must attend a 40-
hour department training and ongoing quarterly training. Use is established
under Policy section 613.

d. Legal and Procedural Rules

Use is established under Department Policy section 613 and FAA Regulation
14CFR Part 107. It is the policy of the Lemoore Police Department to utilize the
UAS only for official law enforcement purposes, and in a manner that respects
the privacy of our community, pursuant to State and Federal law.

B. Mobile Command Post: A vehicle used mobile office that provides shelter, access to
Department computer systems, and restroom facilities during extended events.

1. 2018, Sandstorm, toy hauler, modified to facilitate the operational control and
direction of public safety units. Cost: $29,800. Expected life-span: 20 years. Fiscal
Impact: $600.

a. Purpose

1165



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 4

To be used on the specific circumstances of a given critical incident, large
event, natural disaster, or community event that is taking place.

b. Authorized Use

Only Department employees trained in their deployment and operations
in a manner consistent with Department Policy and training are
authorized to operate the Mobile Command Post. The Mobile Command
Post can be used for SWAT and other critical incidents, preplanned large
events, searching for missing persons, natural disasters, and community
events.

c. Training

The driver/operator shall receive training in the safe handling of the
vehicle on a closed training course. Once the operator has shown
competence in safe vehicle handling, the driver/operator will drive the
vehicle throughout the city with an experienced driver.

d. Legal and Procedural Rules

It is the policy of the Department to use the Mobile Command Post only
for official law enforcement purposes, and in accordance with California
State law regarding the operation of motor vehicles.

C. High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicle (Humvee).

1. 1986, American General, Humvee, received through CalOES at no cost.
Expected lifespan: 5 years. Fiscal Impact:$600

a. Purpose

The specific use of this vehicle is for community events and engagement.
It serves no operational purposes for the enforcement of law.

b. Authorized Use

Only City or authorized VIP's may operate the Humvee in a manner
consistent with Department Policy. The Humvee can be used for
preplanned community events.

c. Training

The driver/operator shall received training in the safe handling of the
vehicle on a closed training course. Once the operator has shown
competence in safe vehicle handling, the driver will drive the vehicle
throughout the city with an experienced driver.

d. Legal and Procedural Rules

1166



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 5

It is the policy of the Department to use the Humvee only for preplanned
community events in accordance with California State Law regarding the
operation of motor vehicles.

D. Distraction Devices (Flash-Bang).

1. COMBINED TACTICAL SYSTEMS, 7290-2 Flash Bang, cost: $52, quantity 5. A
non-bursting, non-fragmenting multi bang device that produces a thunderous bang
with intense bright light. Ideal for distracting dangerous suspects during hostage
rescue, room entry, or other high risk situations.

2. COMBINED TACTICAL SYSTEMS, 7290M Mini Flash Bang, cost: $38, quantity
25. The 7290M Mini Flash Bang exhibits all the same attributes of its lager
counterpart but in a smaller and lighter package. The 7290M is approximately 30%
lighter than the 7290-2 but still has the 175db output of the 7290-M and produces
6-8 million candelas of light.

a. Purpose

A distraction device used to distract dangerous suspects during hostage
rescue, room entry or other high risk arrest situations. To produce
atmospheric over-pressure and brilliant white light and, as a result,
can cause short term (6-8 seconds) physiological/psychological sensory
deprivation to give officers a tactical advantage.

b. Authorized Use

Diversionary Devices shall only be used:

i, By officers who have been trained in their proper use.

ii. In hostage and barricaded subject situations.

iii. In high risk warrant (search/arrest) services where there may be
extreme hazards to officers.

iv. During other high risk situations where their use would enhance
officer safety

v. During training exercises

c. Lifespan

Until Used

d. Fiscal Impact

No annual maintenance

e. Training

1167



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 6

Prior to use, officers must attend diversionary device training that is
conducted by POST certified instructors.

f. Legal and Procedural

Use is established under Department Policy section 308. It is the policy
of the Lemoore Police Department to utilize diversion devices only for
official law enforcement purposes, pursuant to State and Federal law
regarding the use of force.

E. Less Lethal Shotgun: Less Lethal Shotgun is used to deploy the less lethal 12-gauge
Accusox Beanbag Round.

1. Remington 870 Less Lethal Shotgun, cost: $946, quantity: 8. The Remington
870 Shotgun is used to deploy the less lethal 12-gauge Accusox Beanbag round
up to a distance of 75 feet. The range of the weapon system helps maintain space
between officers and a suspect reducing the immediacy of the threat which is a
principle of De-escalation.

2. 12 gauge Accusox Beanbag Round, cost $5, quantity: 455. A less lethal 2.4 inch,
12 gauge shotgun round firing a ballistic fiber bag filled with 40 grams of lead shot
at a velocity of approximately 275 feet per second. Accusox rounds are discharged
from a dedicated 12-gauge shotgun that is distinguishable by an orange butt stock
and for grip. This round provides accurate and effective performance when fired
from the approved distance of not fewer than 5 feet. The maximum effective range
of this munition is up to 75 feet from the target.

a. Purpose

To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is
prohibited or undesirable.

b. Authorized Use

Situations for use of the less lethal weapon system may include, but is
not limited to:

i. Self-destructive, dangerous and/or combative individuals.

ii. Riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents.

iii. Circumstances where a tactical advantage can be obtained.

iv. Potentially vicious animals.

v. Training exercises or approved demonstrations.

c. Lifespan

Remington 870: 25 years

1168



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 7

Accusox Round: No listed expiration date

d. Fiscal Impact

Annual maintenance for each shotgun is approximately $50

e. Training

All officers are trained in the 12 gauge less lethal shotgun as a less lethal
option by in service training.

f. Legal and Procedural Rules

Use is established under Department Policy Section 392. It is the policy
of the Lemoore Police Department to utilize the less lethal shotgun only
for official law enforcement purposes, and pursuant to State and Federal
law, including those regarding the use of force.

F. Rifles: Guns that are fired from shoulder level, having a long spirally grooved barrel
intended to make bullets spin and thereby have greater accuracy over a long distance.

1. Bushmaster XM-15/XM-152S. Quantity: 37. Cost: $776 each. 11.5" barrel.
Overall length 32.5". Collapsible Stock. Caliber.223 REM. Semi Automatic. 30
round magazine.

2. Colt M4 Commando. Quantity: 3. Cost $985 each. 11.5" barrel length. Overall
length 32.5". Collapsible stock. Caliber.223 REM. Semi Automatic. 30 round
magazine.

3. Federal.223 REM, 55 grain, Metal Case, Cost $179.84 per 500, Quantity: 13100

4. Federal.223 REM 55 grain Bonded SP, Cost $257.64 per 200, Quantity: 8900

a. Purpose

To be used as precision weapons to address a threat with more a
accurate and/or greater distance than a handgun, if present and feasible.

b. Authorized Use

Only members that are POST certified are authorized to use a rifle.

c. Lifespan

No Expiration

d. Fiscal Impact

Annual maintenance is approximately $50 per rifle.

e. Training

1169



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 8

Prior to using a rifle, officers must be certified by POST instructors in the
operation of the rifle. Additionally. all members that operate any rifle are
required to pass a range qualification two times per year.

f. Legal and Procedural Rules

Use is established under Department Policy section 312. It is the policy
of the Lemoore Police Department to utilize rifles only for official law
enforcement purposes, and pursuant to State and Federal law regarding
the use of force.

Maintenance of Military Use Supply Levels

When stocks of military equipment have reached significantly low levels or have been
exhausted, the Department may order up to 10% of stock in a calendar year without City
Council approval to maintain essential availability for the Department needs. Lemoore Police
Department is authorized to acquire additional stock of items listed here from other law
enforcement agencies of CalOES in the event of an emergency when approved by the Chief
of Police or designee.

709.5   APPROVAL
State  MODIFIED

The Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall obtain approval from the governing body by
way of an ordinance adopting the military equipment policy. As part of the approval process, the
Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall ensure the proposed military equipment policy is
submitted to the governing body and is available on the Department website at least 30 days prior
to any public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue (Government Code § 7071). The
military equipment policy must be approved by the governing body prior to engaging in any of the
following (Government Code § 7071):

(a) Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to 10 USC § 2576a.

(b) Seeking funds for military equipment, including but not limited to applying for a grant,
soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal funds, in-kind donations, or other
donations or transfers.

(c) Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, including by borrowing
or leasing.

(d) Collaborating with another law enforcement agency in the deployment or other use of
military equipment within the jurisdiction of this Department.

(e) Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a manner, or by a person
not previously approved by the governing body.

1170



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 9

(f) Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an agreement with, any other
person or entity to seek funds for, apply to receive, acquire, use, or collaborate in the
use of military equipment.

(g) Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided above.

709.6   COORDINATION WITH OTHER JURISDICTIONS
State  MODIFIED

The Lemoore Police Department participates with the Central Valley Regional SWAT Team and
works closely with local, county, state, and federal partners. In exigent circumstances and/or
in a pre-planned high risk event (i.e SWAT deployment, arrest warrant) and with the approval
of the Chief of Police or designee, "military equipment" may be deployed from outside entities
to promote the safety and security of community members. "Military equipment" used by other
jurisdictions that are providing mutual aid to this jurisdiction shall comply with their respective
"military equipment" use policies in rendering mutual aid.

709.7   ANNUAL REPORT
State  MODIFIED

Upon approval of a military equipment policy, the Chief of Police or the authorized designee should
submit a military equipment report to the governing body for each type of military equipment
approved within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment
is available for use (Government Code § 7072).

The Chief of Police or the authorized designee should also make each annual military equipment
report publicly available on the Department website for as long as the military equipment is
available for use. The report shall include all information required by Government Code § 7072
for the preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment in Department inventory.

709.8   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
State  MODIFIED

Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing the annual report, the Department shall hold
at least one well-publicized and conveniently located community engagement meeting, at which
the Department should discuss the report and respond to public questions regarding the funding,
acquisition, or use of military equipment.

Pursuant to California Government Code section 7070(d)(7), members of the public may register
complaints or concerns or submit questions about the use of each specific type of Military
Equipment in this policy by any of the following means:

1. In person at the Lemoore Police Department during normal office hours 8:00AM to 5:00PM,
Monday to Friday.

657 Fox St. Lemoore, CA. 93245

1171



Lemoore Police Department
Lemoore PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/09/29, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Lemoore Police Department ***DRAFT*** Military Equipment - 10

2. Via telephone: 559-924-9574

3. Via mail sent to:

Lemoore Police Department

Attn: Military Equipment Use Coordinator

657 Fox Street

Lemoore, CA. 93245

The Lemoore Police Department is committed to responding to complaints, concerns and/or
questions received through any of the above methods in a timely manner.

1172



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-1 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk/Executive Assistant   
Date: November 18, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject:  Resolution 2022-43 – Declaring Fact of City Election and Statement of 

Election Results for November 8, 2022 
Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☒ Fiscally Sound Government ☐ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Approve Resolution 2022-43, which approves the Official Canvass and Certification of 
Election Results by the County Clerk for the November 8, 2022 election. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
The Lemoore City Council approved Resolution 2022-28 in July 2022 to authorize the 
consolidated election with Kings County (this means the County acted on the City’s behalf 
to hold the City Council election). 
 
The General Election was held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022, in accordance with the 
law and pursuant to Resolution 2022-28. The Election was for two (2) full term Council 
Member positions, Districts A and C, each with a term of four (4) years. 
 
The results of said Election have been canvassed by the County Clerk of the County of 
Kings. The official canvass is the public process of processing and tallying all ballots 
received in an election. The two (2) candidates with the highest number of votes within 
Districts A and C elected for full terms of four (4) years to the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore are: 
 

1173



    Stuart Lyons – District A 
    Frank Gornick – District C 
 
The Kings County Board of Supervisors has canvassed the election results and the official 
canvass has been received. The official canvass is well over 100 pages and only the 
pages that pertain to the City of Lemoore election are attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
Not applicable. 
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• Approves the final election results. 
 
Cons: 

• None. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not Applicable. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve Resolution 2022-43 for the November 8, 2022 election canvass. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☒ Resolution: 2022-43  ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manager 11/28/2022 
☒ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:  Exhibit A 
 

1174



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-43 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LEMOORE DECLARING FACT OF CITY ELECTION 
AND STATEMENT OF ELECTION RESULTS FOR NOVEMBER 8, 2022 

 
 WHEREAS, the Lemoore City Council did adopt Resolution 2022-28 on July 5, 2022 
requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Kings to permit the County Clerk to render 
specified services to the City of Lemoore relating to the conduct of the Municipal Election to be 
held in the City of Lemoore on November 8, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said General Municipal Election was held in the City of Lemoore, on 
Tuesday, November 8, 2022, in accordance with the law, and pursuant to Resolution 2022-28, 
the County Clerk of the County of Kings did canvass the returns of said General Municipal 
Election held on November 8, 2022, and did certify to the Lemoore City Council said canvass 
and statement of results dated November 29, 2022, consisting of two (2) pages, a true copy of 
which is attached to this Resolution marked Exhibit “A”. 
 
 WHEREAS, the conduct of said Election and the county of the votes were duly 
conducted as provided in the Elections Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Election was for one (1) full term Council Member within Districts A 
and C each serving a four (4) year term; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lemoore City Council did meet in Council Chamber on December 6, 
2022, to declare the results of said Election in accordance with the provisions of the Elections 
Code. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Lemoore City Council hereby 
finds and declares that a General Municipal Election was held on November 8, 2022 in the City 
of Lemoore for the Election of one (1) full term Council Member within Districts A & C and that 
the results of said Election have been canvassed by the County Clerk of the County of Kings and 
that said Canvass shows the following results: 
 
1. The total number of ballots cast at said Election was 1,015 for District A, and 973 for 
District C. 
 
2. The names of the person being voted upon for the office of Council Member were: 

Full Term of Four Years 
 

District A 
Stuart Lyons 

 
District C 

Frank Gornick 
 

1175



3. The number of votes given in the City and at each precinct to each person are fully set 
forth in said Canvass and Certification of Election Results. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Lemoore City Council hereby declares that the 
one (1) candidate having the highest number of votes within Districts A and C are elected to the 
City Council of the City of Lemoore are: 
 
  Stuart Lyons  – District A  1,015 
 
  Frank Gornick – District C  973 
   
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk make and sign a certificate of 
election to each such person elected and administer the oath of office thereto. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular 
meeting held on the 6th day of December 2022 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
             
Marisa Avalos      Stuart Lyons 
City Clerk      Mayor  

1176



1177



1178



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6700  Fax (559) 924-6708 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

    Item No: 5-3 
                  
To:  Lemoore City Council 
From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk/Executive Assistant   
Date: November 18, 2022   Meeting Date:    December 6, 2022 
Subject:  City Council Reorganization – Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 

Strategic Initiative:  

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community ☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy  

☐ Fiscally Sound Government ☒ Operational Excellence 

☐ Community & Neighborhood Livability ☐ Not Applicable  

 
Proposed Motion: 
Authorize the City Clerk to conduct the City Council reorganization with the election of 
Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Subject/Discussion: 
While Lemoore’s Municipal Code is silent on the election of the Mayor and Mayor Pro 
Tem, the City’s practice has been to hold an election of the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
among the Council Members every two years. With the seating of the new City Council, 
it is time for the election of the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
Duties of the Mayor include: 
1. The Mayor presides over the Regular and Special meetings of the Council.  

a. Keeps the discussion focused on the issues. 
b. Prevents overly dominant members from having a disproportionate influence. 
c. Solicits opinions, feelings, and positions from reticent members. 
d. Discourages finger pointing and blame-oriented statements or questions. 
e. Protects colleagues and staff from verbal attacks. 
f. Encourages the generation of alternative solutions. 
g. Protects new thought from being rejected prior to consideration. 
h. Delays evaluation and analysis of alternatives until all are on the table. 

1179



i. Moves the meeting along and does not let the elected body drift off the subject 
at hand. 

j. Guides the process of screening alternative and selecting a solution. 
k. Attempts to build consensus among members during the meetings only. 

2. The Mayor also has the authority to call Special Council meetings.  
3. The Mayor has the authority to cancel Regular Council meetings. 
4. The Mayor has the authority to suppress disorderly conduct at meetings held in the 

Council Chamber with the aid of the Police Chief or a Police Officer.  
5. Committee/Commission appointments by the Mayor are subject to the consensus of 

the Council.   
6. The Mayor is required to sign all Ordinances, Resolutions and City Council minutes. 
7. The Mayor signs all letters from the Council. 
8. The Mayor approves and signs all Certificates. 
9. The Mayor represents the City at Civic and Community functions such as: 

a. The Chamber of Commerce Annual Meeting (Certificates presented for Citizen 
of the Year, Business of the Year, Organization of the Year) 

b. The Chamber Ag Dinner (Certificates presented for Agriculturalist of the Year, 
Agricultural Supporter of the Year) 

c. Quarterly City/County Coordinating meetings 
d. Possible service club meetings 
e. Usually attends 5 South San Joaquin Valley Division League of California Cities 

meetings 
f. Miscellaneous meetings where the Mayor’s presence is requested. 

 
The Mayor Pro Tem assumes the duties of the Mayor when the Mayor is not available. 
 
Reorganization Procedure: 
The City Clerk chairs the reorganization process. The Chair shall call for nominations.  
Any Council Member may nominate another Council Member or himself/herself. When 
there are no further nominations, the chair will close the nominations and call for a motion 
to approve a nominee. A Council Member may make a motion to approve any of the 
nominees.  If the motion fails, a Council Member may make a motion to approve a 
different nominee.  Upon a second and a majority vote of the Council, a nominee shall 
become the Mayor. The same process is followed for the position of Mayor Pro Tem.  If 
there is more than one nomination, a vote will be taken in last name alphabetical order. 
 
Financial Consideration(s): 
The City Council Members receive a monthly stipend of $300. The Mayor receives a $400 
monthly stipend.  
 
Alternatives or Pros/Cons: 
Pros: 

• A Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are elected every two years. 
 
Commission/Board Recommendation: 
Not applicable. 
 
 
 

1180



 
Staff Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the City Council initiate the process for the election of the Mayor and 
Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
 
 
Attachments:   Review: Date: 
☐ Resolution:   ☒ Asst. City Manager 11/23/2022    
☐ Ordinance:   ☒ City Attorney 11/29/2022 
☐ Map   ☒ City Clerk 11/30/2022 
☐ Contract   ☒ City Manger 11/28/2022 
☐ Other    ☐ Finance  

 List:   
 

1181



                                                                            
 
 
        

City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
711 West Cinnamon Drive  Lemoore, California 93245  (559) 924-6744  

 
 

Staff Report 
 

                  
To: Lemoore City Council   

From: Marisa Avalos, City Clerk  

Date: November 23, 2022 Meeting Date: December 6, 2022 
Subject: Activity Update 
Strategic 
Initiative: 

☐ Safe & Vibrant Community 
☒ Fiscally Sound Government  
☐ Community & Neighborhood                                     
L   Livability 

☐ Growing & Dynamic Economy 
☐ Operational Excellence 
☐ Not Applicable  

 
Reports 

 
 Warrant Register – FY 22/23 November 10, 2022 
 Warrant Register – FY 22/23 November 23, 2022 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

1182



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/14/2022 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4216 - PLANNING

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310 PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11814   -01 15777 0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC. 5,000.00 -5,000.00 AGOL ANUAL SERVICES HOSTI
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

TOTAL    PLANNING .00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17 PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

Warrant Register 11-10-2022

1183



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4220 - MAINTENANCE DIVISION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.93               .00 BRS CMP SLEEVE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.26               .00 NUTS & BOLTS
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 12.85               .00 HD STAPLE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.43               .00 BLK VELCRO STRIP
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.35               .00 KEY RING
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.40               .00 LOCK KEYBLANK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 34.23               .00 LOCK KEYBLANK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 39.66               .00 BLK OX BIT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 41.81               .00 LOBBY DUST PAN
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 49.75               .00 LOCK KEYBLANK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 53.58               .00 SPRAYER BOTTLE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 55.75               .00 DURA C ALK BATTERY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 55.75               .00 DURA ALK BATTERY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 58.26               .00 OSCK EXTENSION
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 58.93               .00 RED DUCT TAPE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 65.39               .00 STEMMNT LGT CONTROL
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 65.77               .00 SPRAY PAINT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 72.84               .00 SAND SHEET
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 86.83               .00 SW REL BULD
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 94.82               .00 ICE MAKER KIT W/POLY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 96.07               .00 SCHLAG LOCK KEYBLANK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                101.06               .00 NUTS & BOLTS
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                103.80               .00 NUTS & BOLTS
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                151.64               .00 WHT PRIMER SPRAY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15783        6613 THE SHERWIN WILL                274.29               .00 SSTRIPE FMP WHITE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15774        5941 OMEGA INDUSTRIAL                283.67               .00 JELL STRIP
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15783        6613 THE SHERWIN WILL                365.72               .00 SSTRIPE FMP WHITE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15792        0428 STONEY'S SAND &                 391.76               .00 RED DYE BARK
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11610   -01 15796        1547 VERITIV OPERATIN                696.44           -696.44 MISC SUPPLIES
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          3,384.04           -696.44

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15781        5287 RES COM PEST CON                 41.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 411
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15781        5287 RES COM PEST CON                 45.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 657
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 50.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 711
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 85.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 711
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 85.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 41
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                 95.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 435
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                120.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 210
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                160.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 657
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15734        1259 ADVANCED PEST CO                175.00               .00 FY23 PEST CONTROL 721
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            856.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15787        0423 SOCALGAS                          3.91               .00 09/19/2022-10/18/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15784        0423 SOCALGAS                         20.59               .00 09/18/2022-10/18/2022

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1184



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4220 - MAINTENANCE DIVISION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                 (cont'd)
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15789        0423 SOCALGAS                         37.48               .00 09/21/2022/10/20/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15786        0423 SOCALGAS                         37.74               .00 09/19/2022-10/18/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15788        0423 SOCALGAS                        125.62               .00 09/19/2022-10/18/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15790        0423 SOCALGAS                        247.96               .00 09/21/2022-10/20/2022
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            473.30               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11827   -01 15736        7320 AMERICAN MOBILE               1,800.00         -1,800.00 REC KITCHEN CLEAN
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,800.00         -1,800.00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00          6,513.34         -2,496.44

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1185



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4221 - POLICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15778        0381 QUILL CORP.                     123.22               .00 HP 952XL/952 HYBLK/ST
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            123.22               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15737        7164 AT&T                             70.00               .00 LEA TRACKING L2203887
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15776        2709 PVP COMMUNICATIO                145.00               .00 RECERTIFICATION OF RA
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11806   -01 15762        1250 KINGS CO. SHERIF             44,985.44        -44,985.44 KINGS COUNTY ANIMAL SERVI
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11835   -01 15776        2709 PVP COMMUNICATIO                233.10           -233.10 REPAIR LIDAR 13305
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11835   -02 15776        2709 PVP COMMUNICATIO                503.20           -503.20 REPAIR LIDAR 13307
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11835   -03 15776        2709 PVP COMMUNICATIO                 60.00            -60.00 FREIGHT
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         45,996.74        -45,781.74

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15750        6685 DIRECTV                         131.74               .00 11/04/2022-12/03/2022
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            131.74               .00

4360     TRAINING
5 /23 11/10/22 21             15733        7223 ZACHARY ROGERS-J                247.00               .00 ICI-SEXUAL ASSAULT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15769        6089 JONATHAN MORITZ                  42.00               .00 INTERNAL AFFAIRS INVE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15760        T2575 KAYLA KRUG                      70.00               .00 FIELD TRAINING OFFICE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15758        2688 JOHN HENDERSON                  202.00               .00 CNOA TRAINING
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            561.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11615   -01 15794        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPM                729.35           -729.35 COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            729.35           -729.35

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         47,542.05        -46,511.09

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1186



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4222 - FIRE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.66               .00 ARM & HAMMER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15766        0313 LEMOORE VOLUNTEE                917.64               .00 TUESDAY TRAININGS
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            941.30               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  9.11               .00 GAS LINE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.87               .00 WHT SXS COUPLING
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.36               .00 BRS PIPE PLUG
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.43               .00 GALV PLUG
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.51               .00 BULD
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.32               .00 CLEANER/DEGREASER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 37.43               .00 QUICK SNAP CONNECTORS
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                129.01               .00 CARABINEER KEY RING
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            289.04               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11559   -01 15743        2787 CITY OF VISALIA               3,010.75         -3,010.75 HAZ-MAT COST SHARE FEE
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,010.75         -3,010.75

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15738        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   295.46               .00 10/03/2022-11/02/2022
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            295.46               .00

4365     WEED ABATEMENT
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -01 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                  450.00           -450.00 1 234 G ST
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -02 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -03 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -04 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -05 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -06 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -07 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -08 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -09 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -10 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -11 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -12 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: RR PROPERTY WEST OF 19
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11798   -13 15753        5758 MARK FERNANDES                1,600.00         -1,600.00 1: RR PROP 1200FT EAST OF
TOTAL    WEED ABATEMENT                                          .00         19,650.00        -19,650.00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         24,186.55        -22,660.75

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1187



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4224 - BUILDING INSPECTION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11559   -02 15743        2787 CITY OF VISALIA                 312.12           -312.12 CHANGE ORDER - ADDITION M
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            312.12           -312.12

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00            312.12           -312.12

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1188



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4231 - STREETS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15768        5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                333.27               .00 DPST 40A 125V TIME SW
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15768        5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                401.01               .00 26W LMP
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            734.28               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15780        0388 REED ELECTRIC, L                172.66               .00 LIONS PARK BOOSTER PU
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11813   -01 15780        0388 REED ELECTRIC, L              1,595.39         -1,595.39 FIXED STREET LIGHT AT THE
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,768.05         -1,595.39

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00          2,502.33         -1,595.39

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1189



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4242 - RECREATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.35               .00 LETT STENCIL SET
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.57               .00 BLK PAINT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15752        5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 98.61               .00 INVERTED STRIPE WAND
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            112.53               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15735        7361 ALMA MILLAN                     329.00               .00 CHEERLEADING SEPT. 22
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            329.00               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00            441.53               .00

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1190



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4296 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15745        7265 COMPUTER SYSTEMS                400.00               .00 CSP SYNCED FOLDER
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            400.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15739        5516 AT&T                            103.59               .00 939-103-4007
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            103.59               .00

TOTAL    INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                                  .00            503.59               .00

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1191



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4297 - HUMAN RESOURCES

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11805   -01 15771        7227 NATION AND BADIL              2,757.00         -2,757.00 ADMIN INVESTIGATION
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11805   -01 NB 462 2022  7227 NATION AND BADIL                   .00               .00 ADMIN INVESTIGATION
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11805   -02 15771        7227 NATION AND BADIL              2,183.00         -2,183.00 ADMIN INVESTIGATION
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,940.00         -4,940.00

TOTAL    HUMAN RESOURCES                                         .00          4,940.00         -4,940.00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         91,941.51        -83,515.79

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1192



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 040 - FLEET MAINTENANCE
BUDGET UNIT - 4265 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15749        6966 ABSOLUTE PROFESS                 37.12               .00 VIPER CREEPER CASTER
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             37.12               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15773        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                -16.09               .00 CORE RETURN
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15756        0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                112.20               .00 MOUNT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15756        0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                116.47               .00 MOUNT
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15761        2671 KELLER MOTORS                   146.86               .00 N-MIRROR
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15773        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                157.08               .00 CABLE CHAINS
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15740        1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS,                314.91               .00 BATTERY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15740        1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS,                314.91               .00 BATTERY
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15773        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                431.04               .00 NEW MSTR CYL/PWR BRK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15740        1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS,                432.44               .00 BATTERY
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11824   -01 15770        7236 N & S TRACTOR                   942.35           -942.35 FILTERS FOR STOCK
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          2,952.17           -942.35

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15775        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRA                118.99               .00 CUSTOM PRINTED DECAL
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11721   -01 15741        4085 BETTS TRUCK PART             16,214.91        -16,214.91 SUSPENSION REPAIRS TO UNI
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11721   -02 15741        4085 BETTS TRUCK PART              2,282.95         -2,282.95 CHANGE ORDER - ADD MORE M
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11763   -01 15779        6323 QUINN COMPANY                 5,004.00         -5,004.00 MAJOR CYLINDER REPAIR FOR
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11763   -02 15779        6323 QUINN COMPANY                    64.33            -64.33 CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD MONE
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11792   -01 15795        0458 KELLER FORD LINC                999.51           -999.51 BODY CONTROL MODULE REPLA
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11822   -01 15747        5289 CUMMINS SALES AN                897.40           -897.40 RESET DPF PARAMETERS
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11823   -01 15782        6251 SEQUOIA EQUIPMEN                784.00           -784.00 DIAG CEL ON UNIT 862
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11831   -01 15746        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA                604.46           -604.46 LIGHT BAR REPAIR FOR UNIT
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00         26,970.55        -26,851.56

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         29,959.84        -27,793.91

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         29,959.84        -27,793.91

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1193



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4250 - WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15767        4051 MATSON ALARM CO.                 46.50               .00 11/01/2022-11/30/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15785        0423 SOCALGAS                        130.54               .00 09/21/2022-10/20/2022
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15744        7058 COMCAST                         199.30               .00 10/25/2022-11/24/2022
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            376.34               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11811   -01 15791        3040 SWRCB                         4,532.50         -4,532.50 RECYCLED WATER PERMIT
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00          4,532.50         -4,532.50

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11807   -01 15793        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME              3,028.00         -3,028.00 WELL 4 BREAKER REPAIR
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11807   -01 15793        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME              2,880.00         -2,880.00 WELL 4 BREAKER REPAIR
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11808   -01 15793        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME              7,336.66         -7,336.66 WELL 7 REPAIR
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00         13,244.66        -13,244.66

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         18,153.50        -17,777.16

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         18,153.50        -17,777.16

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1194



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 052 - WATER INCIDENT FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4752 - WATER INCIDENT

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11825   -01 15748        7259 CUSTOM TRUCK ONE              3,732.30         -3,732.30 BUCKET TRUCK RENTAL
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          3,732.30         -3,732.30

TOTAL    WATER INCIDENT                                          .00          3,732.30         -3,732.30

TOTAL    WATER INCIDENT FUND                                     .00          3,732.30         -3,732.30

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1195



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 056 - REFUSE
BUDGET UNIT - 4256 - REFUSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15754        7339 FURTADO WELDING                 202.55               .00 75/25 AR/CO2 300CF
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            202.55               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00            202.55               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00            202.55               .00

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1196



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 060 - SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT - 4260 - SEWER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.45               .00 FASTNER PK
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 16.08               .00 RAID FOGGER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.14               .00 BULD
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 20.37               .00 HOME DEF KILLER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 26.24               .00 WD HANDLE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.01               .00 NON-CONTACT VOLT TEST
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.02               .00 BLU TRIM CORD
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 31.08               .00 COBWEB DUSTER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 67.84               .00 POWERLOCK TAPE
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15755        2410 GAR BENNETT, LLC                 90.87               .00 6 PVC MALE ADAPTER
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15755        2410 GAR BENNETT, LLC                148.12               .00 6" PIPE,PVC,SCH 40
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15755        2410 GAR BENNETT, LLC                148.12               .00 6"PIPE,PVC,SCH 40,IPS
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11585   -01 15757        0205 HELENA AGRI-ENT.                643.50           -643.50 WEED ABATEMENT CHEMICALS
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,273.84           -643.50

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15765        0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  4.50               .00 N UTS & BOLTS
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11828   -01 15759        0242 JORGENSEN COMPAN              1,670.00         -1,670.00 2: MULTI GAS DETECTOR FOR
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11828   -02 15759        0242 JORGENSEN COMPAN                121.08           -121.08 TAX
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,795.58         -1,791.08

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00          3,069.42         -2,434.58

TOTAL    SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00          3,069.42         -2,434.58

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1197



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 085 - PBIA
BUDGET UNIT - 4270 - PBIA

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/14/22 21             15742        2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  56.36               .00 09/01/2022-10/03/2022
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             56.36               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00             56.36               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00             56.36               .00

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1198



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 208A - LLMD ZONE 8 COUNTRY CLUB
BUDGET UNIT - 4858A - LLMD ZONE 8 COUNTRY CLUB

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11810   -01 15797        7238 WESTSCAPES                      489.46           -489.46 LLMD 8A-RESEED
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            489.46           -489.46

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 COUNTRY CLUB                                .00            489.46           -489.46

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 COUNTRY CLUB                                .00            489.46           -489.46

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1199



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 11:49:17                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.fund between '001' and '300' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 252 - PFMD ZONE 2
BUDGET UNIT - 4872 - PFMD ZONE 2

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/14/22 21 11809   -01 15797        7238 WESTSCAPES                    1,181.59         -1,181.59 PFMD 2 RESEED
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,181.59         -1,181.59

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2                                             .00          1,181.59         -1,181.59

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2                                             .00          1,181.59         -1,181.59

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        148,786.53       -136,924.79

         RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:49:17                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1200



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 11:55:54                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between '2000' and '2999'AND transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.batch='MJ111022'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 120 - FACILITIES RENTAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/14/22  21 15772        T3268 NICOLAS HANSEN                                       250.00  REFUBD VETS HALL DEP
   5 /23 11/14/22  21 15751        T3267 ESTHER MENDOZA                                       250.00  REFUND VETS HALL
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            500.00

2300     CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
   5 /23 11/14/22  21 15772        T3268 NICOLAS HANSEN                     250.00                    REFUBD VETS HALL DEP
   5 /23 11/14/22  21 15751        T3267 ESTHER MENDOZA                     250.00                    REFUND VETS HALL
TOTAL    CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                                                  500.00               .00

TOTAL    FACILITIES RENTAL FUND                                             500.00            500.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                                500.00            500.00

1201



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/14/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 11:51:34                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr='23' and transact.period='5' and transact.account between '3000' and '3999' and transact.batch='MJ11
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL
   5 /23 11/14/22  210        15772       T3268 NICOLAS HANSEN                 -290.00                   VETS HALL REFUND
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           -290.00               .00

3880     MISCELLANEOUS
   5 /23 11/14/22  210        15772       T3268 NICOLAS HANSEN                  100.00                   VETS HALL CANCEL
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS                                           .00            100.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           -190.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           -190.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           -190.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 11/14/2022 TIME 11:51:34  PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1202



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/23/2022 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4211 - CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4980 LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21 15833 5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 495.59 .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
5 /23 11/23/22 21 15833 5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 2,041.18 .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE .00 2,536.77 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 2,536.77 .00

RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:15 PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

Warrant Register 11-23-2022

1203



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4213 - CITY MANAGER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11841   -01 15872        7365 TEAM CALIFORNIA               2,500.00         -2,500.00 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00          2,500.00         -2,500.00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15839        T1356 NATHAN OLSON                    79.56               .00 N.OLSON CELL OCT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             79.56               .00

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 39.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                754.18               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00            793.18               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          3,372.74         -2,500.00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:15                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1204



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4214 - CITY CLERK'S OFFICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 78.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00             78.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY CLERK'S OFFICE                                     .00             78.00               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:15                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1205



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4215 - FINANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                    93.29               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             93.29               .00

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                585.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00            585.00               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            678.29               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1206



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4216 - PLANNING

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11602   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                564.66           -564.66 TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11602   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                596.25           -596.25 TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11602   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              2,215.17         -2,215.17 TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,376.08         -3,376.08

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              2,812.60               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00          2,812.60               .00

TOTAL    PLANNING                                                .00          6,188.68         -3,376.08

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1207



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4220 - MAINTENANCE DIVISION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15799        6081 ALL AMERICAN POO                 64.34               .00 MURIATIC ACID 4 GAL
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             64.34               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11621   -01 15817        5758 MARK FERNANDES                2,100.00         -2,100.00 PD, SARAH MOONEY, AND CMC
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,100.00         -2,100.00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15853        0363 PG&E                          2,747.36               .00 7106804390-1 SEPT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   398.31               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15866        0423 SOCALGAS                         60.96               .00 03491607002 SEPT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15867        0423 SOCALGAS                        180.29               .00 14251743192 OCT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          3,386.92               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00          5,551.26         -2,100.00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1208



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4221 - POLICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15870        5352 STERICYCLE, INC.                328.08               .00 REGULAR SERVICE PD
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11698   -01 15815        2399 DEPARTMENT OF JU                866.00           -866.00 DOJ LIVE SCANS FY 2022-20
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11710   -01 15831        0772 COUNTY OF KINGS               5,081.04         -5,081.04 OCTOBER 2022 SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          6,275.12         -5,947.04

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15809        6230 CLEARS INC.                      50.00               .00 CLEARS ANNL MEMBERSHI
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             50.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   972.26               .00 287293971311 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            972.26               .00

4360     TRAINING
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15824        T2229 TANNER JACQUES                 472.00               .00 T.JACQUES ICI HOMICID
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11789   -01 15836        5169 NEWMAN-GARCIA PH              1,000.00         -1,000.00 DRONE OPERATOR TRAINING C
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                  67.00               .00 M.KENDALL STARTEGIC S
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15820        7177 BRANDON GRESHAM                  70.00               .00 INVESTIGATIVE INTERVI
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15827        7366 JOSEPH HERNANDEZ                 70.00               .00 J.HERNANDEZ INVESTIGA
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLL                103.00               .00 J.MORITZ INTERNAL AFF
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLL                140.00               .00 K.KRUG FIELD TNG OFF
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                 157.00               .00 M.KENDALL SUCCEEDING
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11816   -01 15863        6361 PACIFIC INSTITUT              1,154.00         -1,154.00 PIDT INSTRUCTOR TRAINING
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00          3,233.00         -2,154.00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11615   -01 15874        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPM                788.83           -788.83 COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15808        1817 C.A. REDING COMP                280.73               .00 9246714 OCT 22
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00          1,069.56           -788.83

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         11,599.94         -8,889.87

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1209



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4222 - FIRE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                670.78               .00 3RD TUES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                578.31               .00 5TH TUES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                164.61               .00 4TH TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                 95.61               .00 RESTOCK
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                184.07               .00 4TH TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                173.72               .00 4TH TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                197.25               .00 3RD TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                202.84               .00 4TH TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                204.94               .00 1ST TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                220.12               .00 1ST TUES TNG
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMA                 32.45               .00 1ST TUES TNG
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,724.70               .00

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 78.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                897.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                917.10               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00          1,892.10               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00          4,616.80               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1210



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4224 - BUILDING INSPECTION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11549   -01 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSUL                  2.40             -2.40 PLAN CHECK
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11549   -02 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSUL              1,437.60         -1,437.60 CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD FUND
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,440.00         -1,440.00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   236.88               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            236.88               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00          1,676.88         -1,440.00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1211



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4230 - PUBLIC WORKS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   142.45               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            142.45               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00            142.45               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1212



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4231 - STREETS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11836   -03 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                   146.70           -146.70 USA ALERT STREET
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            146.70           -146.70

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15852        0363 PG&E                            172.18               .00 6780068156-0 OCT22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15856        0363 PG&E                             79.06               .00 8399228188-7 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15841        0363 PG&E                             81.85               .00 0405654224-6 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15857        0363 PG&E                             83.41               .00 8399228188-7 SEPT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15842        0363 PG&E                             68.33               .00 0464835369-8 SEPT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15854        0363 PG&E                             40.69               .00 8045532966-6 SEPT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15848        0363 PG&E                          8,315.19               .00 3606272278-4 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15849        0363 PG&E                          8,315.30               .00 3606272278-4 SEPT22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15843        0363 PG&E                          1,569.70               .00 0475158959-1 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15844        0363 PG&E                            532.01               .00 0568159643-2 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15846        0363 PG&E                            338.85               .00 2343346692-9 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15847        0363 PG&E                            434.42               .00 2343346692-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         20,030.99               .00

TOTAL    STREETS                                                 .00         20,177.69           -146.70

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1213



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4242 - RECREATION

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRA                191.87               .00 REC STAFF SHIRTS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                  8.04               .00 VETS RUN VERSA FLEX
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                 64.24               .00 VETS RUN MEDALS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15837        T3273 NIYANT UPADHYAY                 61.65               .00 BABY BALLER SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRA                230.16               .00 TSHIRTS/POLOS
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            555.96               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15800        7355 ALLAN MCGHUEY                   200.00               .00 FBALL REF 11-5 11-12
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15828        7359 JOSEPH KLOVSKI                  200.00               .00 FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                     150.00               .00 FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15868        6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVA                140.00               .00 JINGLE & MINGLE SECUR
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15834        7117 ALLAN MCGHUEY JR                125.00               .00 FOOTBALL REF 11-5-22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15798        6994 TY HODGE                        125.00               .00 FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                      50.00               .00 BBALL INST 11.10
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15877        T1546 DENZEL WILLIAMS                250.00               .00 FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15826        5935 JOE JIMMEYE                     250.00               .00 FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11842   -01 15825        6329 JENNIFER CHRISTE                650.00           -650.00 JINGLE & MINGLE DJ
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,140.00           -650.00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   137.42               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            137.42               .00

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                487.50               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00            487.50               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00          3,320.88           -650.00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1214



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4296 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -01 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L              9,486.44         -9,486.47 7: PRECISION 3460 SFF
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -02 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L              4,199.85         -4,199.86 14: DELL 27" MONITORS
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -03 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L                245.00           -245.00 7: CUS, SPKR
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -04 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L                389.97           -389.97 7: SOUND BAR MOUNT BRACKE
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -05 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L                124.11           -124.11 7: TRIPP LITE SURGE PROTE
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -06 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L                922.25           -922.25 SALES TAX
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11765   -07 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L                 70.00            -70.00 DISPOSAL FEE
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         15,437.62        -15,437.66

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15810        4056 COMCAST                       4,126.01               .00 OCTOBER 2022
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   191.61               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15802        5516 AT&T                             28.68               .00 9391034003 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          4,346.30               .00

TOTAL    INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                                  .00         19,783.92        -15,437.66

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1215



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4297 - HUMAN RESOURCES

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                173.21               .00 NAME PLATES
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            173.21               .00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                    93.29               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             93.29               .00

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 19.50               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                546.00               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00            565.50               .00

TOTAL    HUMAN RESOURCES                                         .00            832.00               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1216



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 5029 - SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15871        T3270 STEVE & JULIA MA             2,500.00               .00 SIDEWALK REP S.MARTIN
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,500.00               .00

TOTAL    SIDEWALK REPAIR PROGRAM                                 .00          2,500.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         83,056.30        -34,540.31

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1217



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 036 - SB1 FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 5018 - 2020 SLURRY SB1 PROJECT

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11783   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                302.49           -302.49 SB 1 PROJECT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11783   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                635.76           -635.76 SB 1 PROJECT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11783   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,969.47         -1,969.47 SB 1 PROJECT
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,907.72         -2,907.72

TOTAL    2020 SLURRY SB1 PROJECT                                 .00          2,907.72         -2,907.72

TOTAL    SB1 FUND                                                .00          2,907.72         -2,907.72

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1218



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 040 - FLEET MAINTENANCE
BUDGET UNIT - 4265 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                 55.73               .00 CTRL ARM BSH
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11554   -01 15819        0068 GARY V. BURROWS,             16,225.86        -16,225.86 FUEL
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         16,281.59        -16,225.86

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11803   -01 15811        5030 COMMERCIAL RADIA              1,824.86         -1,824.86 REBUILT RADIATOR FOR UNIT
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                 60.82               .00 WIPER ARM
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15835        7185 MFCP INC                        233.03               .00 TUBE ASSY
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                -16.09               .00 CORE RETURN
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15804        6145 AUTOZONE                        126.53               .00 DL PURSUIT BRAKE PAD
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                182.31               .00 TRAILER HITCH
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                204.80               .00 THROTTLE BDY
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11787   -01 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT              1,040.00         -1,040.00 1: SUCTION HOSE FOR UNIT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11787   -02 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                264.68           -264.68 1: FAN BELT FOR UNIT 11
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11787   -03 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                250.00           -250.00 TAX AND SHIPPING
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11787   -04 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT                 29.42            -29.42 CHANGE 1 -ADD MORE MONEY
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15804        6145 AUTOZONE                        263.30               .00 DL PURSUIT ROTOR
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PA                438.82               .00 CTL ARM ASY
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15804        6145 AUTOZONE                        280.97               .00 DL PURSUIT ROTOR
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          5,183.45         -3,408.96

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                    88.26               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             88.26               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15812        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICA                268.02               .00 UNIT 36 LIGHTBAR REP
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11837   -01 15840        2822 PACIFIC TOWING &              1,100.00         -1,100.00 TOW FOR UNIT 114
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,368.02         -1,100.00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         22,921.32        -20,734.82

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         22,921.32        -20,734.82

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1219



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4250 - WATER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11836   -02 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                   300.00           -300.00 USA ALERT WATER
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11691   -01 15869        6663 SUSP, INC                   130,052.50       -130,052.50 LEMOORE CPO SERVICES
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00        130,352.50       -130,352.50

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15860        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                 346.06               .00 SEPT 22 1253333
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15859        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                 445.37               .00 1212651 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15850        0363 PG&E                          4,670.20               .00 4102932393-2 OCT22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15845        0363 PG&E                         37,882.76               .00 0907889927-6 OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15855        0363 PG&E                         96,148.68               .00 8260011937-2 OCT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00        139,493.07               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        269,845.57       -130,352.50

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1220



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 050 - WATER
BUDGET UNIT - 4251 - UTILITY OFFICE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11662   -01 15822        5546 INFOSEND                      1,469.55         -1,469.55 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11662   -01 15822        5546 INFOSEND                      1,954.32         -1,954.32 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11796   -01 15822        5546 INFOSEND                        795.83           -795.83 FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11796   -01 15822        5546 INFOSEND                     25,385.77        -25,385.77 FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         29,605.47        -29,605.47

4335     POSTAGE & MAILING
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11662   -02 15822        5546 INFOSEND                      3,218.14         -3,218.14 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11662   -02 15822        5546 INFOSEND                      3,219.08         -3,219.08 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
TOTAL    POSTAGE & MAILING                                       .00          6,437.22         -6,437.22

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                    88.26               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             88.26               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00         36,130.95        -36,042.69

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        305,976.52       -166,395.19

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1221



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 052 - WATER INCIDENT FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4752 - WATER INCIDENT

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4980     LEGAL EXPENSE
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                136.50               .00 SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    LEGAL EXPENSE                                           .00            136.50               .00

TOTAL    WATER INCIDENT                                          .00            136.50               .00

TOTAL    WATER INCIDENT FUND                                     .00            136.50               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1222



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 056 - REFUSE
BUDGET UNIT - 4256 - REFUSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11553   -01 15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND              75,267.60        -75,267.60 TIPPING FEE'S OCT 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND                 275.00               .00 STARBUCK RECYCLE
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         75,542.60        -75,267.60

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   534.59               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            534.59               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         76,077.19        -75,267.60

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00         76,077.19        -75,267.60

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1223



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 060 - SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT - 4260 - SEWER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11836   -01 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                   300.00           -300.00 USA ALERT WASTEWATER
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            300.00           -300.00

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                   461.47               .00 287305196021 NOV 22
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15858        0363 PG&E                             23.82               .00 9736454059-7 OCT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            485.29               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11800   -01 15873        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUME                778.00           -778.00 ELECTRIC PUMP CONTROL REP
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            778.00           -778.00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00          1,563.29         -1,078.00

TOTAL    SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00          1,563.29         -1,078.00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1224



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 155 - HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 4953 - HOUSING AUTHORITY FUNDS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11603   -01 15865        4054 SELF-HELP ENTERP                659.75           -659.75 LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            659.75           -659.75

TOTAL    HOUSING AUTHORITY FUNDS                                 .00            659.75           -659.75

TOTAL    HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND                                  .00            659.75           -659.75

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1225



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 201 - LLMD ZONE 1
BUDGET UNIT - 4851 - LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             79.64               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             79.64               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00             79.64               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1                                             .00             79.64               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1226



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 203 - LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES
BUDGET UNIT - 4853 - LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             49.33               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             49.33               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES                               .00             49.33               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES                               .00             49.33               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1227



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 206 - LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO
BUDGET UNIT - 4856 - LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                              9.86               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                  .00              9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                  .00              9.86               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1228



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 208B - LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS
BUDGET UNIT - 4858B - LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                              9.86               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS                                     .00              9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS                                     .00              9.86               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1229



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 210 - LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON
BUDGET UNIT - 4860 - LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             19.73               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             19.73               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00             19.73               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00             19.73               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1230



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 212 - LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND
BUDGET UNIT - 4862 - LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             20.13               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             20.13               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00             20.13               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00             20.13               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1231



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 251 - PFMD ZONE 1
BUDGET UNIT - 4871 - PFMD ZONE 1

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             41.91               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             41.91               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                       61.96               .00 REP BROKEN WATER LINE
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11821   -01 15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                   11,452.32        -11,452.32 FILL IN BARE AREAS IN THA
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00         11,514.28        -11,452.32

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1                                             .00         11,556.19        -11,452.32

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1                                             .00         11,556.19        -11,452.32

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1232



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   31
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 252 - PFMD ZONE 2
BUDGET UNIT - 4872 - PFMD ZONE 2

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                            149.79               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            149.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2                                             .00            149.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2                                             .00            149.79               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1233



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   32
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 253 - PFMD ZONE 3
BUDGET UNIT - 4873 - PFMD ZONE 3

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             12.49               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             12.49               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3                                             .00             12.49               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3                                             .00             12.49               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1234



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   33
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 254 - PFMD ZONE 4
BUDGET UNIT - 4874 - PFMD ZONE 4

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             40.79               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             40.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4                                             .00             40.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4                                             .00             40.79               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1235



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   34
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 255 - PFMD ZONE 5
BUDGET UNIT - 4875 - PFMD ZONE 5

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                            134.50               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            134.50               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 5                                             .00            134.50               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 5                                             .00            134.50               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1236



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   35
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 259 - PFMD ZONE 9
BUDGET UNIT - 4879 - PFMD ZONE 9

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES
5 /23 11/23/22 21             15851        0363 PG&E                             10.75               .00 4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             10.75               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 9                                             .00             10.75               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 9                                             .00             10.75               .00

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1237



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   36
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:36:15                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 403 - STREETS CIP
BUDGET UNIT - 5013 - BUSH AVE 19TH OVERLAY

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBRANC  REFERENCE  VENDOR             BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11791   -01 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSUL                728.00           -728.00 BUSH ST OVERLAY
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11791   -01 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSUL              9,265.50         -9,265.50 BUSH ST OVERLAY
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11791   -01 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSUL             15,843.20        -15,843.20 BUSH ST OVERLAY
5 /23 11/23/22 21 11784   -01 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.             12,666.69        -12,666.69 BISH STREET OVERLAY
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         38,503.39        -38,503.39

TOTAL    BUSH AVE 19TH OVERLAY                                   .00         38,503.39        -38,503.39

TOTAL    STREETS CIP                                             .00         38,503.39        -38,503.39

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        543,895.04       -351,539.10

         RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:16                                                          PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1238



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                                        8.04  VETS RUN VERSA FLEX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                      19.50  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15802        5516 AT&T                                                   28.68  9391034003 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                   32.45  1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                      39.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15854        0363 PG&E                                                   40.69  8045532966-6 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                                            50.00  BBALL INST 11.10
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15809        6230 CLEARS INC.                                            50.00  CLEARS ANNL MEMBERSHI
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15866        0423 SOCALGAS                                               60.96  03491607002 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15837        T3273 NIYANT UPADHYAY                                       61.65  BABY BALLER SUPPLIES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                                       64.24  VETS RUN MEDALS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15799        6081 ALL AMERICAN POOL CO                                   64.34  MURIATIC ACID 4 GAL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                                        67.00  M.KENDALL STARTEGIC S
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15842        0363 PG&E                                                   68.33  0464835369-8 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15820        7177 BRANDON GRESHAM                                        70.00  INVESTIGATIVE INTERVI
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15827        7366 JOSEPH HERNANDEZ                                       70.00  J.HERNANDEZ INVESTIGA
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                      78.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                      78.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15856        0363 PG&E                                                   79.06  8399228188-7 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15839        T1356 NATHAN OLSON                                          79.56  N.OLSON CELL OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15841        0363 PG&E                                                   81.85  0405654224-6 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15857        0363 PG&E                                                   83.41  8399228188-7 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                          93.29  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                          93.29  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                   95.61  RESTOCK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE                                   103.00  J.MORITZ INTERNAL AFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15834        7117 ALLAN MCGHUEY JR.                                     125.00  FOOTBALL REF 11-5-22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15798        6994 TY HODGE                                              125.00  FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         137.42  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE                                   140.00  K.KRUG FIELD TNG OFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15868        6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                                  140.00  JINGLE & MINGLE SECUR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         142.45  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                                           150.00  FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                                       157.00  M.KENDALL SUCCEEDING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  164.61  4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15852        0363 PG&E                                                  172.18  6780068156-0 OCT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                                      173.21  NAME PLATES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  173.72  4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15867        0423 SOCALGAS                                              180.29  14251743192 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  184.07  4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         191.61  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRAPHIX                                  191.87  REC STAFF SHIRTS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  197.25  3RD TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15800        7355 ALLAN MCGHUEY                                         200.00  FBALL REF 11-5 11-12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15828        7359 JOSEPH KLOVSKI                                        200.00  FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  202.84  4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  204.94  1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  220.12  1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRAPHIX                                  230.16  TSHIRTS/POLOS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         236.88  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15877        T1546 DENZEL WILLIAMS                                      250.00  FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12

1239



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE          (cont'd)
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15829        T3272 JOSH SHIYOMURA                                       250.00  REFUND DEP 7000011763
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15826        5935 JOE JIMMEYE                                           250.00  FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15816        T1298 PINI ETCHEGOIN                                       250.00  REFUND DEP 8000000145
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15808        1817 C.A. REDING COMPANY,                                  280.73  9246714 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15870        5352 STERICYCLE, INC.                                      328.08  REGULAR SERVICE PD
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15846        0363 PG&E                                                  338.85  2343346692-9 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         398.31  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15847        0363 PG&E                                                  434.42  2343346692-9 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15824        T2229 TANNER JACQUES                                       472.00  T.JACQUES ICI HOMICID
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     487.50  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     495.59  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15803        T3269 AUDREY KING                                          500.00  REFUND DEP 7000011931
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15844        0363 PG&E                                                  532.01  0568159643-2 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     546.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  578.31  5TH TUES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     585.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                                  670.78  3RD TUES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     754.18  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     897.00  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     917.10  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         972.26  287293971311 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15843        0363 PG&E                                                1,569.70  0475158959-1 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                   2,041.18  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15871        T3270 STEVE & JULIA MARTIN                               2,500.00  SIDEWALK REP S.MARTIN
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15853        0363 PG&E                                                2,747.36  7106804390-1 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                   2,812.60  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15810        4056 COMCAST                                             4,126.01  OCTOBER 2022
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15848        0363 PG&E                                                8,315.19  3606272278-4 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15849        0363 PG&E                                                8,315.30  3606272278-4 SEPT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                                    2.40  PLAN CHECK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                                1,437.60  CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD FUND
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      564.66  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      596.25  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                    2,215.17  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15874        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT                                   788.83  COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15817        5758 MARK FERNANDES                                      2,100.00  PD, SARAH MOONEY, AND CMC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15815        2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                                  866.00  DOJ LIVE SCANS FY 2022-20
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15831        0772 COUNTY OF KINGS INFO                                5,081.04  OCTOBER 2022 SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                  9,486.44  7: PRECISION 3460 SFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                  4,199.85  14: DELL 27" MONITORS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    245.00  7: CUS, SPKR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    389.97  7: SOUND BAR MOUNT BRACKE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    124.11  7: TRIPP LITE SURGE PROTE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    922.25  SALES TAX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                     70.00  DISPOSAL FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15836        5169 NEWMAN-GARCIA PHOTO                                 1,000.00  DRONE OPERATOR TRAINING C
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15863        6361 PACIFIC INSTITUTE OF                                1,154.00  PIDT INSTRUCTOR TRAINING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         146.70  USA ALERT STREET
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15872        7365 TEAM CALIFORNIA ECON                                2,500.00  ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15825        6329 JENNIFER CHRISTENSEN                                  650.00  JINGLE & MINGLE DJ
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         84,056.30

1240



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE          (cont'd)

2930     REVENUE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15803        T3269 AUDREY KING                        500.00                    REFUND DEP 7000011931
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15816        T1298 PINI ETCHEGOIN                     250.00                    REFUND DEP 8000000145
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15829        T3272 JOSH SHIYOMURA                     250.00                    REFUND DEP 7000011763
TOTAL    REVENUE CONTROL                                                  1,000.00               .00

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                204.94                    1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       236.88                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15826        5935 JOE JIMMEYE                         250.00                    FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRAPHIX                230.16                    TSHIRTS/POLOS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                220.12                    1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                184.07                    4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                202.84                    4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15828        7359 JOSEPH KLOVSKI                      200.00                    FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15800        7355 ALLAN MCGHUEY                       200.00                    FBALL REF 11-5 11-12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                197.25                    3RD TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15844        0363 PG&E                                532.01                    0568159643-2 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   495.59                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   487.50                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       398.31                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15847        0363 PG&E                                434.42                    2343346692-9 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15870        5352 STERICYCLE, INC.                    328.08                    REGULAR SERVICE PD
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15846        0363 PG&E                                338.85                    2343346692-9 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15808        1817 C.A. REDING COMPANY,                280.73                    9246714 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15877        T1546 DENZEL WILLIAMS                    250.00                    FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    564.66                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING              1,437.60                    CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD FUND
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15823        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                  2.40                    PLAN CHECK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15848        0363 PG&E                              8,315.19                    3606272278-4 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15849        0363 PG&E                              8,315.30                    3606272278-4 SEPT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   546.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15810        4056 COMCAST                           4,126.01                    OCTOBER 2022
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                 2,812.60                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15853        0363 PG&E                              2,747.36                    7106804390-1 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15871        T3270 STEVE & JULIA MARTIN             2,500.00                    SIDEWALK REP S.MARTIN
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                 2,041.18                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15843        0363 PG&E                              1,569.70                    0475158959-1 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       972.26                    287293971311 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   917.10                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   897.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   754.18                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                670.78                    3RD TUES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   585.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                578.31                    5TH TUES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15824        T2229 TANNER JACQUES                     472.00                    T.JACQUES ICI HOMICID
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15861        7220 PLAIN INSANE GRAPHIX                191.87                    REC STAFF SHIRTS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       191.61                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                         150.00                    FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15867        0423 SOCALGAS                            180.29                    14251743192 OCT 22

1241



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL       (cont'd)
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                173.72                    4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                    173.21                    NAME PLATES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15852        0363 PG&E                                172.18                    6780068156-0 OCT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                164.61                    4TH TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                     157.00                    M.KENDALL SUCCEEDING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       137.42                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       142.45                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15868        6041 SOUTH WEST PRIVATE P                140.00                    JINGLE & MINGLE SECUR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE                 140.00                    K.KRUG FIELD TNG OFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15798        6994 TY HODGE                            125.00                    FTBALL REF 11.5 11.12
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                        93.29                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15834        7117 ALLAN MCGHUEY JR.                   125.00                    FOOTBALL REF 11-5-22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15818        0719 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE                 103.00                    J.MORITZ INTERNAL AFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                 95.61                    RESTOCK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                        93.29                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15857        0363 PG&E                                 83.41                    8399228188-7 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15841        0363 PG&E                                 81.85                    0405654224-6 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                     64.24                    VETS RUN MEDALS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15839        T1356 NATHAN OLSON                        79.56                    N.OLSON CELL OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15856        0363 PG&E                                 79.06                    8399228188-7 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                    78.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                    78.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15827        7366 JOSEPH HERNANDEZ                     70.00                    J.HERNANDEZ INVESTIGA
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15820        7177 BRANDON GRESHAM                      70.00                    INVESTIGATIVE INTERVI
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15842        0363 PG&E                                 68.33                    0464835369-8 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15830        T667 MICHAEL KENDALL                      67.00                    M.KENDALL STARTEGIC S
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15799        6081 ALL AMERICAN POOL CO                 64.34                    MURIATIC ACID 4 GAL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15866        0423 SOCALGAS                             60.96                    03491607002 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15837        T3273 NIYANT UPADHYAY                     61.65                    BABY BALLER SUPPLIES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15805        0040 LARRY AVILA                          50.00                    BBALL INST 11.10
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15809        6230 CLEARS INC.                          50.00                    CLEARS ANNL MEMBERSHI
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15802        5516 AT&T                                 28.68                    9391034003 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15854        0363 PG&E                                 40.69                    8045532966-6 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                    39.00                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15864        2932 SAVEMART SUPERMARKET                 32.45                    1ST TUES TNG
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                    19.50                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15807        2045 BUDDY'S TROPHIES                      8.04                    VETS RUN VERSA FLEX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15872        7365 TEAM CALIFORNIA ECON              2,500.00                    ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                       146.70                    USA ALERT STREET
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15825        6329 JENNIFER CHRISTENSEN                650.00                    JINGLE & MINGLE DJ
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15863        6361 PACIFIC INSTITUTE OF              1,154.00                    PIDT INSTRUCTOR TRAINING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15836        5169 NEWMAN-GARCIA PHOTO               1,000.00                    DRONE OPERATOR TRAINING C
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  922.25                    SALES TAX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  124.11                    7: TRIPP LITE SURGE PROTE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                   70.00                    DISPOSAL FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  389.97                    7: SOUND BAR MOUNT BRACKE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  245.00                    7: CUS, SPKR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                4,199.85                    14: DELL 27" MONITORS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15814        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                9,486.44                    7: PRECISION 3460 SFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15831        0772 COUNTY OF KINGS INFO              5,081.04                    OCTOBER 2022 SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15815        2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                866.00                    DOJ LIVE SCANS FY 2022-20

1242



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL       (cont'd)
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15874        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT                 788.83                    COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  2,215.17                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    596.25                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15817        5758 MARK FERNANDES                    2,100.00                    PD, SARAH MOONEY, AND CMC
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                             83,056.30               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11621        5758 MARK FERNANDES                                      2,100.00  PD, SARAH MOONEY, AND CMC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      596.25  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                    2,215.17  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11615        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT                                   788.83  COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11698        2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                                  866.00  DOJ LIVE SCANS FY 2022-20
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11710        0772 COUNTY OF KINGS INFO                                5,081.04  OCTOBER 2022 SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                  9,486.47  7: PRECISION 3460 SFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                  4,199.86  14: DELL 27" MONITORS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    245.00  7: CUS, SPKR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    389.97  7: SOUND BAR MOUNT BRACKE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                     70.00  DISPOSAL FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    124.11  7: TRIPP LITE SURGE PROTE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                                    922.25  SALES TAX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11789        5169 NEWMAN-GARCIA PHOTO                                 1,000.00  DRONE OPERATOR TRAINING C
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         146.70  USA ALERT STREET
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11816        6361 PACIFIC INSTITUTE OF                                1,154.00  PIDT INSTRUCTOR TRAINING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11842        6329 JENNIFER CHRISTENSEN                                  650.00  JINGLE & MINGLE DJ
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11841        7365 TEAM CALIFORNIA ECON                                2,500.00  ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11549        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                                    2.40  PLAN CHECK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11549        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                                1,437.60  CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD FUND
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      564.66  TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00         34,540.31

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    596.25                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    564.66                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11549        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING              1,437.60                    CHANGE ORDER 1 - ADD FUND
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11549        6713 INTERWEST CONSULTING                  2.40                    PLAN CHECK
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11842        6329 JENNIFER CHRISTENSEN                650.00                    JINGLE & MINGLE DJ
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11841        7365 TEAM CALIFORNIA ECON              2,500.00                    ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11816        6361 PACIFIC INSTITUTE OF              1,154.00                    PIDT INSTRUCTOR TRAINING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                       146.70                    USA ALERT STREET
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11789        5169 NEWMAN-GARCIA PHOTO               1,000.00                    DRONE OPERATOR TRAINING C
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                   70.00                    DISPOSAL FEE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  922.25                    SALES TAX
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  124.11                    7: TRIPP LITE SURGE PROTE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  389.97                    7: SOUND BAR MOUNT BRACKE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                  245.00                    7: CUS, SPKR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                4,199.86                    14: DELL 27" MONITORS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11765        2454 DELL MARKETING L.P                9,486.47                    7: PRECISION 3460 SFF
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11710        0772 COUNTY OF KINGS INFO              5,081.04                    OCTOBER 2022 SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11698        2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                866.00                    DOJ LIVE SCANS FY 2022-20
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11621        5758 MARK FERNANDES                    2,100.00                    PD, SARAH MOONEY, AND CMC
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11615        5842 U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT                 788.83                    COPIER LEASE CONTRACT 202

1243



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED      (cont'd)
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11602        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  2,215.17                    TECHNICAL PLANNING SERVIC
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                            34,540.31               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                   118,596.61        118,596.61

1244



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 036 - SB1 FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      302.49  SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      635.76  SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                    1,969.47  SB 1 PROJECT
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          2,907.72

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    635.76                    SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  1,969.47                    SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    302.49                    SB 1 PROJECT
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                              2,907.72               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      302.49  SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                      635.76  SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                    1,969.47  SB 1 PROJECT
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00          2,907.72

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  1,969.47                    SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    635.76                    SB 1 PROJECT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11783        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                    302.49                    SB 1 PROJECT
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                             2,907.72               .00

TOTAL    SB1 FUND                                                         5,815.44          5,815.44

1245



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 040 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                1,040.00  1: SUCTION HOSE FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                  264.68  1: FAN BELT FOR UNIT 11
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                  250.00  TAX AND SHIPPING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                   29.42  CHANGE 1 -ADD MORE MONEY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15840        2822 PACIFIC TOWING & TRA                                1,100.00  TOW FOR UNIT 114
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15811        5030 COMMERCIAL RADIATOR                                 1,824.86  REBUILT RADIATOR FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15819        0068 GARY V. BURROWS, INC                               16,225.86  FUEL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15812        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICATION                                  268.02  UNIT 36 LIGHTBAR REP
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                                              280.97  DL PURSUIT ROTOR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                   438.82  CTL ARM ASY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                   204.80  THROTTLE BDY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                                              263.30  DL PURSUIT ROTOR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15835        7185 MFCP INC                                              233.03  TUBE ASSY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                  16.09                    CORE RETURN
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                    60.82  WIPER ARM
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                    55.73  CTRL ARM BSH
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                          88.26  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                                              126.53  DL PURSUIT BRAKE PAD
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                   182.31  TRAILER HITCH
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                    16.09         22,937.41

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                 182.31                    TRAILER HITCH
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                            126.53                    DL PURSUIT BRAKE PAD
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                        88.26                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                  60.82                    WIPER ARM
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                  55.73                    CTRL ARM BSH
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15835        7185 MFCP INC                            233.03                    TUBE ASSY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                                    16.09  CORE RETURN
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15812        6374 COOK'S COMMUNICATION                268.02                    UNIT 36 LIGHTBAR REP
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                            263.30                    DL PURSUIT ROTOR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                 204.80                    THROTTLE BDY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15838        6120 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                 438.82                    CTL ARM ASY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15804        6145 AUTOZONE                            280.97                    DL PURSUIT ROTOR
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15819        0068 GARY V. BURROWS, INC             16,225.86                    FUEL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15811        5030 COMMERCIAL RADIATOR               1,824.86                    REBUILT RADIATOR FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15840        2822 PACIFIC TOWING & TRA              1,100.00                    TOW FOR UNIT 114
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                250.00                    TAX AND SHIPPING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                264.68                    1: FAN BELT FOR UNIT 11
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                 29.42                    CHANGE 1 -ADD MORE MONEY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15821        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM              1,040.00                    1: SUCTION HOSE FOR UNIT
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                             22,937.41             16.09

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                1,040.00  1: SUCTION HOSE FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                   29.42  CHANGE 1 -ADD MORE MONEY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                  264.68  1: FAN BELT FOR UNIT 11
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                                  250.00  TAX AND SHIPPING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11803        5030 COMMERCIAL RADIATOR                                 1,824.86  REBUILT RADIATOR FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11837        2822 PACIFIC TOWING & TRA                                1,100.00  TOW FOR UNIT 114
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11554        0068 GARY V. BURROWS, INC                               16,225.86  FUEL

1246



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 040 - FLEET MAINTENANCE

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2950     ENCUMBRANCE               (cont'd)
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00         20,734.82

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11554        0068 GARY V. BURROWS, INC             16,225.86                    FUEL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11803        5030 COMMERCIAL RADIATOR               1,824.86                    REBUILT RADIATOR FOR UNIT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11837        2822 PACIFIC TOWING & TRA              1,100.00                    TOW FOR UNIT 114
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                 29.42                    CHANGE 1 -ADD MORE MONEY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                250.00                    TAX AND SHIPPING
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM                264.68                    1: FAN BELT FOR UNIT 11
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11787        5181 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COM              1,040.00                    1: SUCTION HOSE FOR UNIT
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                            20,734.82               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                               43,688.32         43,688.32

1247



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 050 - WATER

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                              795.83  FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                           25,385.77  FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                            1,469.55  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                            1,954.32  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                            3,218.14  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                                            3,219.08  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15869        6663 SUSP, INC                                         130,052.50  LEMOORE CPO SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         300.00  USA ALERT WATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15855        0363 PG&E                                               96,148.68  8260011937-2 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15850        0363 PG&E                                                4,670.20  4102932393-2 OCT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15845        0363 PG&E                                               37,882.76  0907889927-6 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15860        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                                       346.06  SEPT 22 1253333
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15859        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                                       445.37  1212651 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                          88.26  287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00        305,976.52

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                        88.26                    287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15859        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                     445.37                    1212651 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15860        6627 PG&E NON ENERGY                     346.06                    SEPT 22 1253333
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15855        0363 PG&E                             96,148.68                    8260011937-2 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15845        0363 PG&E                             37,882.76                    0907889927-6 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15850        0363 PG&E                              4,670.20                    4102932393-2 OCT22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                       300.00                    USA ALERT WATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                         25,385.77                    FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                          3,219.08                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15869        6663 SUSP, INC                       130,052.50                    LEMOORE CPO SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                          3,218.14                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                          1,954.32                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                          1,469.55                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15822        5546 INFOSEND                            795.83                    FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                            305,976.52               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11796        5546 INFOSEND                                              795.83  FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                                            1,469.55  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                                            1,954.32  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                                            3,218.14  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11691        6663 SUSP, INC                                         130,052.50  LEMOORE CPO SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                                            3,219.08  UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11796        5546 INFOSEND                                           25,385.77  FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         300.00  USA ALERT WATER
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00        166,395.19

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                       300.00                    USA ALERT WATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11691        6663 SUSP, INC                       130,052.50                    LEMOORE CPO SERVICES
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                          3,219.08                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                          3,218.14                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                          1,954.32                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11662        5546 INFOSEND                          1,469.55                    UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT

1248



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 050 - WATER

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED      (cont'd)
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11796        5546 INFOSEND                         25,385.77                    FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11796        5546 INFOSEND                            795.83                    FEDEX DOOR HANGERS
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                           166,395.19               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                          472,371.71        472,371.71

1249



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 052 - WATER INCIDENT FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                                     136.50  SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            136.50

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15833        5609 LOZANO SMITH, LLP                   136.50                    SEPT LEGAL SVCS
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                136.50               .00

TOTAL    WATER INCIDENT FUND                                                136.50            136.50

1250



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 056 - REFUSE

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         534.59  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY                               75,267.60  TIPPING FEE'S OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY                                  275.00  STARBUCK RECYCLE
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         76,077.19

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY                275.00                    STARBUCK RECYCLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15832        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY             75,267.60                    TIPPING FEE'S OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       534.59                    287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                             76,077.19               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11553        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY                               75,267.60  TIPPING FEE'S OCT 22
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00         75,267.60

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11553        0234 KINGS WASTE AND RECY             75,267.60                    TIPPING FEE'S OCT 22
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                            75,267.60               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                         151,344.79        151,344.79

1251



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 060 - SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                                         461.47  287305196021 NOV 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15858        0363 PG&E                                                   23.82  9736454059-7 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         300.00  USA ALERT WASTEWATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15873        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS,                                  778.00  ELECTRIC PUMP CONTROL REP
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          1,563.29

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15873        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS,                778.00                    ELECTRIC PUMP CONTROL REP
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15875        0450 USA NORTH 811                       300.00                    USA ALERT WASTEWATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15858        0363 PG&E                                 23.82                    9736454059-7 OCT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15801        5048 AT&T MOBILITY                       461.47                    287305196021 NOV 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                              1,563.29               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                                         300.00  USA ALERT WASTEWATER
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11800        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS,                                  778.00  ELECTRIC PUMP CONTROL REP
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00          1,078.00

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11800        2799 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS,                778.00                    ELECTRIC PUMP CONTROL REP
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11836        0450 USA NORTH 811                       300.00                    USA ALERT WASTEWATER
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                             1,078.00               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STORM WTR DRAINAGE                                        2,641.29          2,641.29

1252



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 120 - FACILITIES RENTAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15813        T3271 DAVID ANDRADA                                        250.00  REFUND DEP 8000000256
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            250.00

2300     CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15813        T3271 DAVID ANDRADA                      250.00                    REFUND DEP 8000000256
TOTAL    CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                                                  250.00               .00

TOTAL    FACILITIES RENTAL FUND                                             250.00            250.00

1253



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 155 - HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15865        4054 SELF-HELP ENTERPRISE                                  659.75  LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            659.75

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15865        4054 SELF-HELP ENTERPRISE                659.75                    LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                659.75               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11603        4054 SELF-HELP ENTERPRISE                                  659.75  LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00            659.75

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11603        4054 SELF-HELP ENTERPRISE                659.75                    LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                               659.75               .00

TOTAL    HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND                                           1,319.50          1,319.50

1254



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 201 - LLMD ZONE 1

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   79.64  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             79.64

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 79.64                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 79.64               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1                                                         79.64             79.64

1255



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 203 - LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   49.33  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             49.33

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 49.33                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 49.33               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 3 SILVA ESTATES                                           49.33             49.33

1256



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 206 - LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                    9.86  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00              9.86

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                  9.86                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                  9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                               9.86              9.86

1257



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 208B - LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                    9.86  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00              9.86

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                  9.86                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                  9.86               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8B GREENS                                                  9.86              9.86

1258



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 210 - LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   19.73  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             19.73

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 19.73                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 19.73               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                                 19.73             19.73

1259



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 212 - LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   20.13  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             20.13

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 20.13                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 20.13               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                             20.13             20.13

1260



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 251 - PFMD ZONE 1

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   41.91  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                                             61.96  REP BROKEN WATER LINE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                                         11,452.32  FILL IN BARE AREAS IN THA
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         11,556.19

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                       11,452.32                    FILL IN BARE AREAS IN THA
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 41.91                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15876        7238 WESTSCAPES                           61.96                    REP BROKEN WATER LINE
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                             11,556.19               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11821        7238 WESTSCAPES                                         11,452.32  FILL IN BARE AREAS IN THA
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00         11,452.32

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11821        7238 WESTSCAPES                       11,452.32                    FILL IN BARE AREAS IN THA
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                            11,452.32               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1                                                     23,008.51         23,008.51

1261



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 252 - PFMD ZONE 2

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                  149.79  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            149.79

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                149.79                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                149.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2                                                        149.79            149.79

1262



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 253 - PFMD ZONE 3

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   12.49  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             12.49

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 12.49                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 12.49               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3                                                         12.49             12.49

1263



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 254 - PFMD ZONE 4

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   40.79  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             40.79

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 40.79                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 40.79               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4                                                         40.79             40.79

1264



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 255 - PFMD ZONE 5

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                  134.50  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00            134.50

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                134.50                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                134.50               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 5                                                        134.50            134.50

1265



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 259 - PFMD ZONE 9

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                                   10.75  4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00             10.75

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15851        0363 PG&E                                 10.75                    4729057332-9 SEPT 22
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                                 10.75               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 9                                                         10.75             10.75

1266



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:37:05                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 403 - STREETS CIP

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE   VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                                9,265.50  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                               15,843.20  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                                  728.00  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                   12,666.69  BISH STREET OVERLAY
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         38,503.39

2940     EXPENDITURE CONTROL
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15862        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 12,666.69                    BISH STREET OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                728.00                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING              9,265.50                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 15806        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING             15,843.20                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
TOTAL    EXPENDITURE CONTROL                                             38,503.39               .00

2950     ENCUMBRANCE
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                               15,843.20  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                                9,265.50  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                                  728.00  BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11784        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                                   12,666.69  BISH STREET OVERLAY
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE                                                           .00         38,503.39

2960     ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11784        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 12,666.69                    BISH STREET OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING              9,265.50                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING             15,843.20                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
   5 /23 11/23/22  21 11791        6733 BLACKBURN CONSULTING                728.00                    BUSH ST OVERLAY
TOTAL    ENCUMBRANCE-RESERVED                                            38,503.39               .00

TOTAL    STREETS CIP                                                     77,006.78         77,006.78

TOTAL REPORT                                                            896,716.32        896,716.32

1267



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 11/23/2022                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 14:36:42                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='JV112322'
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  5/23

FUND - 001 - GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT - 001 - GENERAL FUND

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL
   5 /23 11/23/22  210        15829       T3272 JOSH SHIYOMURA                 -250.00                   REFUND DEP 7000011763
   5 /23 11/23/22  210        15816       T1298 PINI ETCHEGOIN                 -250.00                   REFUND DEP 8000000145
   5 /23 11/23/22  210        15803       T3269 AUDREY KING                    -500.00                   REFUND DEP 7000011931
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00         -1,000.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         -1,000.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         -1,000.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00         -1,000.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 11/23/2022 TIME 14:36:42  PEI - FUND ACCOUNTING

1268


	Agenda 12-06-2022
	Council Meeting Policy -  Via ZOOM
	SS-1-1 Staff Report - Broadband Deployment
	Item 3-1 Minutes - 11-15-2022
	Item 3-2-1 Staff Report AB 361 Renewal - December 2022 Reso 2022-41
	Item 3-2-2 Resolution 2022-41 - AB 361 - December
	Item 3-3-1 PD Vehicle Upfit_Staff Report
	Item 3-3-2 PD Vehicle Upfit_Budget Amendment
	Sheet2

	Item 3-4-1 Staff Report_Street Light BA
	Item 3-4-2 Budget Amendment_Street Light BA
	Sheet2

	Item 3-5-1 Staff Report_Hess Basin Change Order
	Item 3-5-2 Change Order - Hess Basin
	Item 3-6-1 Staff Report_Hess Basin NOC
	Item 3-6-2 Hess Basin -  Notice of Completion
	RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
	City of Lemoore
	711 W Cinnamon Drive

	NOTICE OF COMPLETION
	CERTIFICATE
	PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )



	Item 3-7-1 Staff Report-Dispatch Motorola
	Item 3-7-2 BA Dispatch - Motorola
	Sheet2

	Item 3-7-3 Lemoore Police Dept, CA_Motorola Solutions VESTA 9-1-1 Firm Proposal
	Lemoore PD_NG911 Cover Letter signrd.pdf
	Lemoore Police Dept, CA_Motorola Solutions VESTA 9-1-1 Firm Proposal (MSI3515597D) 091422 - Finance Edits.pdf
	Section 1
	Introduction
	1.1 Key System Capabilities and Advantages
	1.2 Enhancements VESTA 9-1-1 Brings to the PSAP

	Section 2
	Solution Description
	2.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Handling
	2.2 Summary of Offer

	Section 3
	Product Description
	3.1 VESTA® 9-1-1
	3.1.1 Servers
	3.1.2 Gateways
	3.1.3 Remote CAD Port Servers
	3.1.4 Networking
	3.1.5 Printing
	3.1.6 Workstations
	3.1.7 VESTA 9-1-1 Call Taking Position
	3.1.8 ESInet Interface Module (EIM)
	3.1.9 VESTA SMS
	3.1.10 Enhanced Data Window
	3.1.11 VESTA CommandPOST

	3.2 Data Management
	3.2.1 VESTA Analytics
	3.2.2 VESTA Analytics Front End
	3.2.3 Call Detail Report (CDR) Interface


	Section 4
	Optional Features
	4.1 Geographic Information System (GIS)
	4.1.1 VESTA Map Local (Optional)

	4.2 Automated Abandoned Callback (Optional)
	4.3 CommandCentral Cloud-Based Services
	4.3.1 Citizen Input (Optional)
	4.3.2 Smart Transcription (Optional)

	4.4 Cybersecurity Services for VESTA 9-1-1 – Optional
	4.4.1 Managed Detection and Response
	4.4.1.1 ActiveEye Security Management
	4.4.1.2 Network and Security Operations Center



	Section 5
	Warranty Services
	5.1 The Service Delivery Team
	5.1.1 Customer Support Manager
	5.1.2 Motorola Local Service Provider

	5.2 Warranty and Maintenance Services
	5.2.1 OnSite Response
	5.2.2 Network Security and Operation Center (NSOC)
	5.2.2.1 Service Desk
	5.2.2.2 Monitor and Response
	5.2.2.3 Anti Virus
	5.2.2.4 Patch Management
	5.2.2.5 Software Upgrades



	Section 6
	Statement of Work VESTA 9-1-1
	6.1 Implementation Methodology
	6.2 Phase I - Planning
	6.2.1 Project Kick-off Meeting
	6.2.2 Project Workflow and Design Review Meeting
	6.2.3 Project Plan Approval

	6.3 Phase II – Installation and Testing
	6.3.1 Solution Staging
	6.3.2 Site Installation
	6.3.3 Testing
	6.3.4 Lockdown
	6.3.5 Customer Responsibilities During Installation

	6.4 Phase III – Cutover
	6.4.1 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities During Cutover
	6.4.2 Customer Responsibilities During Cutover

	6.5 Phase IV – Project Closure
	6.5.1 Site Installation and Verification Package


	Section 7
	Optional Statement of Work – Citizen Input and Smart Transcription
	7.1 Contract
	7.1.1 Contract Award
	7.1.2 Contract Administration
	7.1.3 Project Kickoff

	7.2 Order Processing
	7.2.1 Process Equipment List

	7.3 Manufacturing and Staging
	7.3.1 Manufacture Motorola Solutions Equipment
	7.3.2 Staging

	7.4 System Installation
	7.4.1 Install Call Handling Equipment
	7.4.2 Fixed Call Handling Equipment Installation Complete

	7.5 Finalize
	7.5.1 Resolve Punch List

	7.6 Project Administration
	7.6.1 Project Status Meetings
	7.6.2 Change Order Process


	Section 8
	Optional Statement of Work – Cybersecurity for VESTA 9-1-1
	8.1 VESTA Managed Detection and Response
	8.1.1 Cybersecurity Incidents
	8.1.2 Priority Level Definitions and Response Times

	8.2 Scope Limitations & Clarifications

	Section 9
	Equipment List
	9.1 Lemoore Police Department PSAP
	9.2 Optional Feature Details
	9.2.1 Automated Abandon Callback
	9.2.2 VESTA Map Local
	9.2.3 CommandCentral Cloud Base Services Citizen Input and Smart Transcription
	9.2.4 Cybersecurity Managed Detection and Response Services


	Section 10
	Pricing
	10.1 VESTA 9-1-1 Solution
	10.2 Payment Terms

	Section 11
	Master Customer Agreement

	H-GAC MCA (EC07-20), CSA, EPSLA, MSA, Cyber & IA
	MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT ADDENDUM

	H-GAC Motorola EC07-20
	Contract ID #5095 - GP Motorola Cooperative Purchasing
	Contract ID #5095 - SP Motorola Cooperative Purchasing
	Attachment A - Motorola Solutions, Inc


	Item 3-7-4 Motorola-Solutions
	Contract ID #5095 - GP Motorola Cooperative Purchasing
	Contract ID #5095 - SP Motorola Cooperative Purchasing
	Attachment A - Motorola Solutions, Inc

	Item 3-7-5 Lemoore Police CA VESTA 911 MSI3515597B
	Item 3-7-6 Vesta-Solutions
	Contract ID #5129 - General Provisions Cooperative Purchasing
	Contract ID #5129 - SP Cooperative Purchasing
	Attachment A- Vesta Solutions Inc_

	Item 3-7-7 Lemoore_4 MCC7500E_Verint_Proposal_9_8_2022
	Lemoore_4 MCC 7500E_Verint_Proposal_9_8_2022.pdf
	Lemoore_4 MCC 7500E_Verint_Proposal_9_8_2022.pdf
	Section 1
	System Description
	1.1 ASTRO 25 Infrastructure
	1.1.1 Conventional K2 Core Site Components

	1.2 Dispatch Console Configuration for Lemoore Police Department
	1.3 Embracing Interoperability and Integration
	1.3.1 Integration Capable with ASTRO 25 Networks

	1.4 Making Consoles Easy to Operate
	1.4.1 Customizable Dispatch Interface

	1.5 Dispatch Console Solution Components
	1.5.1 MCC 7500E Console Operator Position

	1.6 Verint v15.2 Recording Solution Overview
	1.6.1 Solution Design

	1.7 Conventional Base Radio
	1.7.1 Architecture

	1.8 APX® All-Band Consolette
	1.9 Watson Furniture
	1.10 Vesta 9-1-1

	Section 2
	Statement of Work
	2.1 Responsibility Matrix
	2.2 Motorola Solutions Responsibilities
	2.3 Lemoore Police Department Responsibilities
	2.4 Assumptions

	Section 3
	Equipment List
	Section 4
	Project Schedule
	Section 5
	Acceptance test Plan
	5.1 MCC 7100/7500 Conventional Resources
	5.1.1 Frequency Selectable Conventional Resource
	5.1.2 Console Priority
	5.1.3 Alert Tones - Conventional Channel
	5.1.4 Activity Log - Conventional
	5.1.5 Tone Generation on Conventional Resource
	5.1.6 Radio Check



	Lemoore_4 MCC 7500E_Verint_Proposal_9_8_2022.pdf
	Acceptance test Plan
	5.2 Signoff Certificate

	Section 6
	Warranty And Maintenance
	6.1 Essential Plus Services Overview
	6.2 Essential Plus Element Descriptions
	6.2.1 Remote Technical Support
	6.2.2 Network Hardware Repair
	6.2.3 Security Update Service
	6.2.4 On-site Infrastructure Response
	6.2.5 Annual Preventive Maintenance

	6.3 Motorola Solutions Service Delivery Ecosystem
	6.3.1 Centralized Managed Support Operations
	6.3.2 Field Service
	6.3.3 Repair Depot
	6.3.4 Customer Support Manager
	6.3.5 MyView Portal

	6.4 System Upgrade Agreement II (SUA II) Overview

	Section 7
	Training
	7.1 Training Overview
	7.2 Motorola Solutions Training
	7.2.1 Training Delivery
	7.2.2 Training Courses
	7.2.3 Training Tools

	7.3 Proposed Training Overview for Lemoore PD
	7.3.1 Console Operator and Supervisor Training Plan
	7.3.2 Course Descriptions for Lemoore PD
	7.3.2.1 MCC7500 Console Supervisor
	7.3.2.2 MCC7500 Console Operator



	Section 8
	Pricing
	8.1 Lemoore PD MCC 7500E Consoles
	8.2 Optional Supervisor Furniture
	8.3 Payment Terms
	8.4 Essential Plus and SUA II Services
	8.4.1 Essential Plus
	8.4.2 SUA II
	8.4.3 Verint Maintenance
	8.4.4 Verint SUA

	8.5 Essential PLus and SUA II Payment Terms

	Section 9
	Contractual Documentation
	Communications System and Services Agreement


	Lemoore_4 MCC 7500E_Verint_Proposal_9_8_2022.pdf
	Contractual Documentation
	Communications System and Services Agreement
	MAINTENANCE, SUPPORT AND SUA ADDENDUM


	Section 10
	Literature


	MercuryCollection_2020 Reduced
	mcc-7500e-ip-dispatch-console-data-sheet

	Item 3-7-8 Watson-Furniture-Group
	Contract ID #5130 - General Provisions Cooperative Purchasing
	Contract ID #5130 - SP Cooperative Purchasing
	Attachment A- Watson Furniture Group

	Item 3-8-1 Staff Report_Award Cimarron LS
	Item 3-8-2 City of Lemoore - Full Agreement
	Item 3-8-3 Exhibit A - Cimmaron Lift Station General Conditions v. 2
	ARTICLE 1
	1.1.2 The Contract
	4.5 NOTICES OF POTENTIAL CHANGE, CHANGE ORDER REQUESTS, AND CLAIMS
	4.5.1 Notice of Potential Change



	Item 3-9-1 Staff Report_Downtown Parking Lot
	Item 3-9-2 Downtown Parking Lot Notice of Completion
	RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
	City of Lemoore
	711 W Cinnamon Drive

	NOTICE OF COMPLETION
	CERTIFICATE
	PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	PUBLIC AGENCY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	STATE OF CALIFORNIA  )



	Item 3-10-1 PD Budget Amendment Shoe Drive_Staff Report
	Item 3-10-2 PD Shoe Drive_Budget Amendment
	Sheet2

	Item 4-1-1 Master User Fee Update - Facility and Park Rentals_Staff Report
	Item 4-1-2 Master Fee Schedule - Facility and Park Rentals _Resolution
	Item 4-2-1 Staff Report Military Equipment
	Item 4-2-2 Military_Equipment (Draft)
	Item 5-1-1 - Staff Report - Approve Canvass of Election
	Item 5-1-2 - Resolution 2022-43 - Election Canvass
	Item 5-1-3 November 8, 2022 Election Canvass
	Item 5-3-1 Staff Report - City Council Reorganization 2023
	AU0 - Activity Update
	Lemoore City Council
	To:
	Marisa Avalos, City Clerk
	From:
	November 23, 2022
	Date:
	Subject:
	Strategic Initiative:

	AU1 - WR 11-10-2022
	MJ111022 - ETA
	MJ111022 - GTA
	MJ111022 - RTA

	AU2 - WR 11-23-2022
	ETA JV112322
	GTA JV112322
	RTA JV112322




